
VALLEY CENTER 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REGULAR MEETING 
VCMWD Board Room 

Zoom Meeting ID: 859 712 4912 
Pass Code: 185394 

with Live Stream to 
VCFPD Facebook Page for COVID-19 Prevention 

Thursday - April 21, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 



 
 

  
           

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 
 

   
  

  
 

   
 

   
 

    
      

    
 

   
               

 
           

    
  

          
  

 

    
 

 
  

   
   

   
   

      
 

                                        
      

 
                                          
 

  
   

Valley Center Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

April 21, 2022 / 6:00 p.m. 
This Meeting will be cast on Zoom 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8597124912?pwd=Rm9KR0dSZWYyMml0ZGtvcGJsU29VZz09 

Meeting ID: 859 712 4912 
Passcode: 185394 

One tap mobile 
+16699009128,,8597124912#,,,,,,0#,,185394# US (San Jose) 

Dial by your location 
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
Access Number: 859 712 4912 

Pass Code: 185394 
For COVID-19 Prevention 

with Live Stream to VCFPD Facebook Page 
Valley Center Municipal Water District Board Room 
29300 Valley Center Rd Valley Center, CA 92082 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. PROPOSAL TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2022-19 
Consideration to Approve Resolution NO. 2022-19 to Implement Teleconferencing    
Requirements During a Proclaimed State of Emergency Under Government Code Section 54953. 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any member of the Public may speak on any matter that is not on the Agenda. However, under State 
law, no decisions or actions can be taken and any such matters will be referred to the next meeting. 
Members of the public may address the Board during public comment by “Raising their hand” in Zoom, 
then type their comments or questions in the Chat Box and may indicate if they wish to address a 
particular agenda item, or if they wish to make a general comment on a matter within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the District. The President will call on the member of the public at the appropriate time 
and allow the member of the public to provide live comment.  The District limits each speaker to 5 
minutes per topic and 20 minutes per subject. 

6. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
None 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All items listed on the Consent Calendar listed as Consent Items are considered routine and will be 
enacted in one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items prior to the Board action on 
the motion, unless members of the Board, Staff or public request specific items be removed from the 
Consent Calendar from the Board Agenda for discussion. 

A. Approve Board Meeting Minutes on the Regular Meeting March 17, 2022 and Special Meeting 
April 7, 2022 

Standing Item – Review and Approve 
B. Proposal to adopt Resolution NO 2022-22 (Park Lilac) and Resolution NO 2022-23 (Ridge Ranch) 

on Intention to Annex Territory to CFD 2008-1. 
Review and Approve 

8. STAFF REPORTS 
A. Fire Chief’s Report 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8597124912?pwd=Rm9KR0dSZWYyMml0ZGtvcGJsU29VZz09


 

 
                                        

   
   
    

 
  

     
     

    
 

 
   

   
   

        
   

 
  
     

 
        
  
 
   
  

 
    

 
    

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

B. Operations Division Report 
C. Community Risk Reduction Division Report 
D. Valley Center Firefighters Association Report 

9. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Staff Report by Chief Napier regarding the Design Agreement for Temporary Fire Station 3 and 

Fire Station Upgrades and proposal to adopt Resolution NO. 2022-24 (Replacing Resolution 
2022-18) To Approve The Design Agreement Between The District And Design Builder - Erickson-
Hall Construction Company. 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Public Hearing on Petition for Annexation of Territory to CFD 2008-01 and related matters, 

proposal to adopt Resolution NO. 2022-20 (Eagles Noel) and Resolution 2022-21 (Infill). 
B. Proposal to vote on the Official Ballot for FASIS Board of Directors Election to Fill Three Positions 
C. First Reading FY 2022-23 Budget 

11.TREASURER’S REPORT 
Review of Fiscal Recap for March 2022 

12. CLOSED SESSION 
None 

13. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS 
None 

14. BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS 

15. ADJOURNMENT 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as 
required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability who requires a 
modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the Board Secretary at 
(760) 751-7600, at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING 
May 19, 2022 



VALLEY CENTER 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

28234 Lilac Road, Valley Center, CA 92082 
(760) 751-7600 Fax (760) 749-3892 

Website: vcfpd.org 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT RESOLUTION 2022-19 

RESOLUTION TO IMPLEMENT TELECONFE ; ~ING REQUIREMENTS 
DURING A PROCLAIMED STATE OF EMERGENCY WNDER GOVERNMENT CODE 

SECTION 54~3~, 

WHEREAS, the Ralph M. Brown Act requir~ t~al all meetings of a 1~\lative body of a local 
agency be open and public and that any person "Ill~ attend anq_ _participate · n' such meetings; 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act allows,b.legislative boqi&-to 4o"fd meetings by -~onference, 
but imposes specific requirements for. d.Qtttg~so; 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, in or~to add{e~,the neecl.fdt,public meetings during the 
present public health eme.trg@Bcy, Govemcv Newsom.js~d Exel3{l~e Order No. N-29-20, 
suspending the Act's t.el.ec~~~fiqing requirementi~ aJ¥l 

WHEREAS, on June J', 2021, G(l>V<emor Ne om issued Ex~cutive Order No. N-8-21, 
continuing the suspension,of-the ow11-.Act's tel~cbnferencing requirements through September 
30, 2021; and 

WHE~AS, these Ex~tme Or~s-,a,llowed legisfative bodies to meet virtually as long as 
certain neti6e, and accessi~fy,requ~nts were met; and 

WHEREAS,~ 'State Legisla eamended the Brown Act through Assembly Bill No. 361 (AB 
361) on Septemba{ hi,_2021; arid 

~ 

WHEREAS, AB 361 amended the Brown Act so that a local agency may use teleconferencing 
without complying with the regular teleconferencing requirements of the Act, where the 
legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and makes certain 
findings; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953 requires that the legislative body make additional 
findings every 30 days in order to continue such teleconferencing. 

NOW THEREFORE, the legislative body of the Valley Center Fire Protection District hereby 
finds, determines, declares, orders, and resolves as follows: 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 

mailto:eme.trg@Bcy
https://vcfpd.org


--- ---- ------------------

1. That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporates them by this reference. 

2. The Board ofDirectors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District (District) finds, by a 
majority vote, the following: 

a. That there exists a proclaimed state ofemergency; 
AND either: 

b. The Board ofDirectors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District is meeting for 
the purpose of determining one of the following, or more than 30 days have , 
passed since the Board met and determined one Gf the following and the Board 
now re-determines one of the following: 

i. State or local officials have imposed' or recommended measures to 
promote social distancing; OR . . · 

11. As a result of the ernergency,,m~irtg in'Rerson would present imminent 
risks to the health or safety;1>f ~ttendees. 

OR 

c. This Board ofDirectorf,l has made tht\d~temftna,,trbn set forth ~u\)division (b), 
above within the las(30 da.ys and now rnekes,,..tiie following determination: 

1. The Board of~iree~fs.-ofthe Valley tenter Fire Protection District has 
reconsidered the~hc~taaces ofthe~~ of emergency; AND 

ii. Any ofthe follow~g<circ~t~es exis~ 
1. ·~ state of ~rgenc,,y continIJes to,4.iJ;ectly impact the ability of 

trn; rilernbers tll,Inse@t sa$e1yin.pei:s~m. 
2. Sta~ or local ofl\cial, ..continue to-impose or recommend measures 

to pr.mtj.ote social $,stancing. 

3. Tife Djs.tnc! F'i'Fe Chief.pr hrs desl~e'is,au1'1.opzed to take all steps and perform all 
'actj,ons necessacy t0. exe~e'a,nd impl~'t)tlus Resolution in compliance with 
'Qovernment Code~eotjon 54_9~. 

4. That ~s"aesolution sh~!\take e~ immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED AND AD{)PTED byff~ Board ofDirectors of the Valley Center Fire Protection 
District on this 21st d~ ofAp~l, ;2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Signature: _________________________ 
Phil Bell, President, Valley Center Fire Protection District 

Signature 
Attest: 

Regina Roberts, Secretary, Valley Center Fire Protection District 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 

https://Chief.pr


CONSENT CALENDAR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' PACKET 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 



 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 

     
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
   

 
   

       
     

    
    

    
 

      
 

     
   

   
     

 
 

    
 

    
 

       
     

    
  

 
 

  
 

     
     

 

 
Minutes 

Of A Regular Meeting 
Of the Board of Directors of 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 
March 17, 2022 / 6:00 p.m. 

Valley Center Municipal Water District Board Room 
29300 Valley Center Rd 
Valley Center, CA 92082 

This Meeting was cast on Zoom with Live Stream to VCFPD Facebook Page 
For COVID-19 Prevention 

1. Call to Order at 6:00 p.m. 

2. Roll Call: 
Phil Bell – Present – Zoom attendance 
Gina Roberts - Present – Zoom attendance 
Steve Hutchison – Present 
Charlotte Seaborne – Present 
Mike O’Connor – Absent 

3. Pledge of Allegiance – led by Chief Napier 

4. A proposal was made for Consideration to Approve Resolution NO. 2022-12 continuing 
to Implement Teleconferencing Requirements During a Proclaimed State of Emergency 
Under Government Code Section 54953. After motion made and seconded and a roll 
call vote, Resolution 2022-12 was unanimously approved by the Board members 
present. 

5. Public Comment – None 

6. Proclamations and Presentations – None 

7. Consent Calendar - Consent Calendar – The consent calendar, containing the minutes 
from the February 17, 2022 Regular Meeting, and Resolution NO 2022-14 (Eagles Noel) 
and Resolution NO. 2022-15 (Infill) on Intention to Annex Territory to CFD 2008-1, after 
motion made and seconded, and a roll call vote, was approved by the Board members 
present. 

8. Staff Reports 

A. Fire Chief’s Report – Chief Napier presented the month’s activities. 
B. Operations Division Report – was also presented by Chief Napier. 

1 



     
  

 
 

     
    

 
    

   
  
 

    
  

  
 

     
  

     
  

 
      

    
    

    
 

 
     
 
      

   
    

   
    

     
 

     
     

 
 

       
 
 
             
                      
 
 

 
 

  

Valley Center Fire Protection District Board of Directors – Regular Meeting Minutes 
March 17, 2022 

C. Community Risk Reduction Division Report - Fire Marshal Jim Davidson was absent. 
D. Valley Center Firefighters Association Report – None 

9. Old Business - None 

10. New Business 

A. The Board held a Public Hearing on an Annexation Petition into CFD 2008-1. After 
the hearing, upon motion duly made and seconded, and approved by a roll call vote, 

April 21, 2022 

the Board adopted Resolution NO. 2022-13 (Paradise Mountain). 

B. A proposal was made to adopt Resolution 2022-16 Authorizing the Proposal with the 
Center for Public Safety Excellence for the Facilitation of a Community-Driven 
Strategic Plan, after motion made and seconded and roll call vote, the Resolution 
was approved by Directors Roberts, Hutchison, Bell and Seaborne. 

11. Treasurers Report – The Treasurer’s Report was presented to the Board by Director 
Seaborne, she stated that there was nothing of concern in the February report. There 
are ongoing account reconciliations being made, but she believes February is accurate. 
After motion made and seconded, the Treasurer’s Report was approved by a roll call 
vote. 

12. Closed Session – None 

13. Announcement of Closed Session Actions – None 

14. Board of Directors Comments 
Director Roberts is pleased that we’re making progress on Station 3. She is concerned 
about the number of car accidents in her neighborhood (Lilac Rd). 
Director Seaborne signed up for the Leadership Academy training that was discussed at 
the February meeting. She will share the information she gets with the Board. 
Director Hutchison may also be doing the training in Napa in September. He also 
expressed concerns about the number of traffic accidents in Valley Center. 
Director Bell had no comment. 

15. Adjournment – 6:58 p.m. 

____________________________ 
Regina Roberts, Secretary 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: 

2 



·· .

VALLEY CENTER 

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

" 
28234 Lilac Road, Valley Center, CA 92082 

(760) 751-7600 Fax (760) 749-3892 
Website: vcfpd.org 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT RESOLUTION 2022-12 

RESOLUTION TO IMPLEMENT TELECONFEM:~iNG REQUIREMENTS 
DURING A PROCLAIMED STATE OF EMERGENCY lii.'NDER GOVERNMENT CODE 

SECTION 5-~~3.., -- -~ 

WHEREAS, the Ralph M. Brown Act req~fflat all meetings of a~tive body of a local 
agency be open and public and that any person~l!Ji. attend an<!_ participato#hiuch meetings;

' .,, "; 
' ', . 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act allows,,ft»:.legislative ~" !}old meetings by'+nference, 
but imposes specific requirements £Of~~; , 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, in 01¥\0 a.the need~ublic meetings during the 
present public health.-em.e;pec:y, Govern~ l-l_ewsoht,~ Exe~e Order No. N-29-20, 
suspending the Act's ~CCl9D~ing req~e~ts(agil . 

WHEREAS, on June~,,zo21, ~orN~~ -f~sued Ex~tive Order No. N-8-21, 
continuing the suspensi<ilt_pithe 8ro'1!111-Act's te~erencing requirements through September 
30 2021 · mr- · .. ""- ',

' '• . .... . ' -· \_ 

WHERE.(s: ~e:e Ex~ ~allow~legist~tive bodies to meet virtually as long as 
certainil~'lc,and accessi~t,..requ~ts were met; and 

\ ~-- . \ ,. ', ~.. ·:._._ 

WHEREAS;t¥-'8.tate Legisla~ amended the Brown Act through Assembly Bill No. 361 (AB 
361) on Septemlil!{,16. 2021; and 

' ,;i. , . ' 
WHEREAS, AB 361 amended the Brown Act so that a local agency may use teleconferencing 
without complying with the regular teleconferencing requirements ofthe Act, where the 
legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and makes certain 
findings; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953 requires that the legislative body make additional 
findings every 30 days in order to continue such teleconferencing. 

NOW THEREFORE, the legislative body ofthe Valley Center Fire Protection District hereby 
finds, determines, declares, orders, and resolves as follows: 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 

I. 'That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and incoipOrates them by this reference. 

2. The Board ofDirectors of the Valley Center Fire Protection District (District) finds, by a 
majority vote, the following: 

a. That there exists a proclaimed state ofemergency; 
AND either: 

b. The Board ofDirectors ofthe Valley Center Fire Protection District is meeting for 
the purpose of determining one of the following, or more than 30 days have 
passed since the Board met and determined one Gt'.the following and the Board 
now re-determines one of the following: " , ' 

i. State or local officials have imposeir"or.J:cicommended measures to 
promote social distancing; OR .· 

ii. ~ a result ofthe emergency~8Qj:iilg in~_n would present imminent 
nsks to the health or safety.()f~dees. , 

OR 
~ ' '--. . ' '· 

c. This Board of Directors has made th~nset forth.kiltil.division (b), 
above within the lasQQ~ and now~the following determfnation: 

i. The Board of • fthe Valll!t'&:nter Fire Protection District has 
reconsidered '- : ofth~of emergency; AND 

ii. Anrpf the folio ' ' . • exist:, . 
1, ~ state of ~gencycoi:iltsues tl>~y impact the ability of 

.. ~members t'yi!il'!'~Y'in~QD. 
2. Sta~<!\- local 0¥1\J,-continue tl)ffllpose or recommend measures 
·.,_ to ~ote social l\i•cing.

·, ,; ' 

3. ~~)IreChief~ lil's d~.a~zed to take all steps and perform ail 
('actjons necesillllf'ID; ex~dimpl~,tliis Resolution in compliance with 
~entCode~on ~ .- -

4. Th:t~Resolution:h¢'take ~ immediately upon its adoption. 
•• •t. ..,._ . I 

PASSED AND .AB()lrJ'ED bY,~ Board ofDirectors ofthe Valley Center Fire Protection 
District on this 17th ~tlf~ 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Signature: 
- --;:;-:il;--;Be;::-;;llcc,Prest ;----:--:V-;l:-- C:;;;enter Fire ::--:---::- --;Distri.-:---Ph =-7'dent, ;-;al ey -::---=:---:Protecti.on ;::c.c-::-:ct 

Signature 

Attest: ---::---,---:=-c----::------:-:--::--=:---=:--::-----,---,=--,--
Regina Roberts, Secretary, Valley Center Fire Protection District 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 

https://Protecti.on
https://vcfpd.org


,

. .

RESOLUTION 2022-14 

CFD 2008-1-ANNEXATION 

EAGLES NOEL 

133-324-38,44,47,48,49 

....\
'-'--:~::. -_ c ~ -~ -(-! '· \!31"'1""!1\ ~/' . • ;·· J 

,.- . ~~--~- --~-,.-~-= '. -__ . . ·...• ·~~' -t~~;-;;,-;; ~-.;~ 
;~..si°:1"··- !: _--.:d'- .. , I . ') . . . 

~ 

l ,/~.-. .. ; ' ;~ • ~ ~ • • ~ \ 

,1 ·:,;.,._· • -,. ~- - I ! ; i_?i

J.~- .. .. t - - l -.. - ,.l- . • ·'·· ·. ' ...."! :t
{. ·. ; ~ . ~.~ : '!'l!I :_ , '~-- ,, ,.... . . ,,--... , ' . . l I ,, ._, . ' 

, ., • • • "' l - - • --- - ':- "'• , 
. . . .... ! ' , ,- I .-1 I .)It _,,_,4 I. ii ~ . -.·. . . . \ " .. :-•·.·J!1: ..;.Ai.. .,, ·.. · '•' _....,t. -· ' ,• 

•• I • °T), ~ ' .f':;·'1 • ,• • l , '•TI i ' .. 

. ;;,'""~~{·f~~-' ~ w-i~ ~.\r·:;...-.: I - IAt~-> 
c:c _..~:...; ~ ,, ~ .. ~;- ,~ ~.....,....~ l ..,,.':-- . ·~' 

f!', _t,:{:.. • .J /. }\'•: '. : . "\., _.j'a':; ·. r ,- ._ . ~• ; 

. . ,. 'L ~ ( .-;,,-.' ,'F' .. : - r,J' I .., ,.. . .._ , '.-1 ,,·-t._-
, . ~~ _', • ~ ,.· •i •,,;, ~~• t ,!t ~• . ~ .:"• •• .;,.~/~# · ' , · ·: : ::, 

,1 ,. ,., • ., . - ., .(. · · "· ~ , .... . · , - - --l • J.: · .. , 
e 

· 1-, ,( .· 
t.1 .,· • -- ·• ·• I',·• -~ ~ .... · • • •. ·\1 •.•--~!,, -.' - - -• ,; ..(•, -, - ~ ..'<~ ·-·! - - . r--:i -~•': . .c: -" - .._~~_..... -"""t;.: .. ·•,-~ ' ~ -- ., .,,r '(l; • f d. • I . ~ :J' . ·1,. . .. . -
!;·,'. -1~. '-' ·,.· :- ,, _::•· ,:~. 1:.· • .. ,>·. .... ·.' '·" --"' <:. .•· ,...-.< ',,. . ,#, 1· . .... l:1: . 

f_ ·- _I •·--·~ · __ :-._· ... . \~\• ~T!si . . _, .-_,J.: _'"'._1 . , _· 1 .,......,
"I .., • , , •' ... t ' . , ~- ..,~ 'f 1 ; I ---

•• _'• . • •. r. :. ,· • -f'!}:f:.., , ~~ ..:= ,-- ,.. -· ~~~}~. •1 , 
-~ \' . \.., •.. _ .. I •·• 1'> ' .,, _.._ ,. ... .. '· •, ',M . . •.. .,.., . ~-•CJ -., I 

6 ... w_ : I . . . ::z.,"' •' ·: ." :, - _-: .•-• ~ ....... ,., 

·---

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-14 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
TO ANNEX TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2008·1 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 

WHEREAS, under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 _ ~ended (the "Act"), 
Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing at sectl 11 of the California 
Government Code, the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the Va ~er Fire Protection District 
(the "District") has conducted proceedings to establish Com _ I&" · s District No. 2008-1 
(the "CFO"), and <... " . '· 

/ 
A 

. ·-.... . 

WHEREAS, the Board is the legislative body for the CFC.an~ Is empowe~~" the authority to 
annex territory to the CFO and now desires to und_pt'lake·proceedings to anne~ffit!)l'Y to the 
CFO, and . 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting institution proceedings to,~~·territory to Community Facilities 
District No.2008-1 District has been recalved from landownel'$•-Ownlng not less than 10% of the 
proposed land to be annexed to the C~r.~ - ', ., _ 

WHEREAS, the petition dated February 11>202~l>ef/n found to'(Tleet the requirements of 
Government Code section 53319, and \ · ;- ,. _ _ · • .,..- ' ' .. , 
WHEREAS, this Board,~~indications of lnteresiTrom the owner of the areas of land 
proposed to be annexefl lJ,'the CFO, n.;>w desire_s to proceed with the annexation to the CFO In 
order to finance the..,,_<ba'!1ce of the ~ of certaln pub.lie services and facilities necessary or 
incident to developm'8([!;in the o/~.:-..,._ \ ; 
NOW, :Ii~'. B~-.M~LVEl:i"Iiy ~ of Directors of the Valley Center Fire 
Protect1ad'~~'fl!lllows: 

1. Tl1\s B,?ard hereby firi~_-,d d~' l!Jes that public convenience and necessity require that 
territoly-66..added to the C O l;)e fo _:and that the Board Is authorized to conduct proceedings 
for the ~lion of territ .to..the C pursuant to the Act. 

2. The nam~tfte~exislin}PFD is "Community Facilities District No. 2008-1 ." 

"- . 
3. The territory ind~n-tl'le existing CFO Is as shown on the map thereof flied In Book 42 of 
Maps of Assessmenr~ ·Community Facllitles Districts at Page 27 in the offloe of the County 
Recorder, County of San Diego, State of California to which map reference Is hereby made for 
further particulars. The territory now proposed to be annexed to the CFD Is as shown on 
Annexation Map No.2 to the CFO on file with the Clerk of the Board. the boundaries of which 
territory are hereby preliminarily approved and which map is incorporated in full herein by 
reference. The Clerk of the Board is hereby directed to record, or cause to be recorded. said map 
showing the territory to be annexed to the CFO in the office of the County Recorder of the County 
of San Diego within fifteen days of the date of adoption of this Resolution. 

1 of3 



.

4. The types of services financed by the CFD and pursuant to the Act consist of those services 
(the "Services") described in Exhibit A to Resolution 2008-09, adopted by the Board on May 29, 
2008 (the "Resolution of Formation"). It is presently Intended that the Services will be shared, 
without preference or priority, by the existing territory In the CFD and the territory proposed to be 
annexed to the CFD. 

5. Except to the extent that the funds are otherwise available to the CFD to pay for the Services, a 
special tax sufficient to pay the costs thereof Is intended to be levied annually within the CFD and 
collected In the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad vat m property taxes. The 
proposed rate and method of apportionment of the special tax amo ,. , arcels of real property 
within the CFD, as now in existence and following the annexation .j~sed herein, in sufficient 
detail to allow each landowner within the territory proposed to ..· };i~~ed to the CFD to estimate 
the maximum amount such owner will have to pay are des · , ~;tn'<l~n Exhibit A attached to 
the Resolution of Formation, which by this reference is inrgpcs:ited h~f1 

6. The Board shall hold a public hearing (the "Hearin, 
and the proposed Rate and Method of Apportionm. 
practicable, on April 21, 2022, at the Valley Cent, 

Secretary Is ~_by dlre't:i:ed to cause notice of the public hearing to be given by 
,.lme in a .:::aper published in the area of the CFD. The publication shall be 

completed at ··. ,, . even d }~efore the date of the public hearing in Section 6. The Secretary 
shall also cause of 11i,tfearing to be given to each property owner within the CFO by first 
class mail, postage ffo each such owner's addresses as it appears on the most recent tax 
records of the District ~'s otherwise known to the Secretary to be correct. Such mailed notice 
shall be completed not less than fifteen days before the date of the public hearing. Each of the 
notices shall be substantially in the form specified In section 53322 of the Act, with the form 
summarizing the provisions hereof hereby specifically approved. 

9. Except as may otherwise be provided by law or by the rate and method of apportionment of the 
special tax for the CFD, all lands owned by any public entity, including the United States, the State 
of California and/or the District, or any departments or political subdivisions thereof, shall be 
omitted from the levy of the Special Tax to be made to cover the costs and expenses of the 

2of3 

Services and the CFD. In the event that a portion of the property within the CFD shall become for 
any reason exempt, wholly or in part, from the levy of the special tax, this Board will, on behalf of 
the CFD, increase the levy to the extent necessary upon the remaining property within the CFO 
that Is not exempt in order to yield the required revenues to pay for the Services and other annual 
expenses of the CFO, ff any, subject to the provisions of the rate and method of apportionment of 
the special tax. 

10. The officers, employees and agents of the District are hereby authorized and directed to do 
any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents wtiri_h they may deem 
necessary or advisable In order to carry out, give effect to and compl.ldilt the terms and intent of 
this resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the V, ire Protection District on 
the 1rt' day of March, 2022 by the following vote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 

ATTEST: 

3of3 



RESOLUTION 2022-15 

CFD 2008-1-ANNEXATION 

WILDFLOWER - PARK CIRCLE 

186-791-37-00 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-15 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
TO ANNEX TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2008·1 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 

WHEREAS, under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982,,s(,mended (the "Act"}, 
Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing at secti~1 of the California 
Government Code, the Board of Directors (the "Board"} of the Valf!IY ~nter Fire Protection District 
(the "District") has conducted proceedings to establish Com~~s District No. 2008-1 
(the "CFO"}. and • \_/ ·, . 

WHEREAS, the Board is the legislative body for the ~il~ is empowe~the authority to 
annex territory to the CFO and now desires to un9,erfu1:1,e· proceedings to anne~ry to the 
CFO, and ', '· • "· 

. ,, . . "' .' 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting institution proceedi119:11'to annex territory to Community Facilities 
District No.2008-1 District has been re~ from land~1>Wnlng not less than 10% of the 
proposed land to be annexed to the cr(p,~nd- -, 

\ . ' ' 
WHEREAS, the petition dated March 9, ~22hasb~Qund t~iie! the requirements of 
Government Code section 533. 19. and \ .,i .... . 

~ \ , f ' 

WHEREAS, this Boar.dd,,,h~vjn~E!d indi~•pf i~tere~ffro~ the owner of the areas of land 
proposed to be annexe8 .fo'the CFO,. nQW desir~-to proceed with the annexation to the CFO in 
order to finance the...1>alance of the ~ of certa, ~blic services and facilities necessary or 
incident to developmec(lf'lq the csg_ - \ \ 

"\. ·' ~ ... \ .' 
NOW,_J~RE, BElt RE~p(vei:i'~~la of Directors of the Valley Center Fire 
Proteo/·Dj_striet.11_81ollo~-, 

1. T~s .'e~u:ies that publlc oonvenlence and necessity require that B<iard hereby fl~ a[!d d 
territo Se.added to the Cl\l)' be fom,e<f'and that the Board is authorized to conduct proceedings 
for the a lltation of territory to,the CFO pursuant to the Act. ' . 

2. The namibf~exlsting,.CFD is "Community Facilities District No. 2008-1." 

3. The territory in~Dll~1n the existing CFO Is as shown on the map thereof flied In Book 42 of 
Maps of Assessment an(I Community Facilities Districts at Page 27 in the office of the County 
Recorder, County of Sen Diego, State of Csllfornia to which map reference is hereby made for 
further particulars. The territory now proposed to be annexed to the CFO Is as shown on 
Annexation Map No.2 to the CFO on file with the Clerk of the Board, the boundaries of which 
territory are hereby preliminarily approved end which map is incorporated In full herein by 
reference. The Cieri( of the Board is hereby directed to record, or cause to be recorded, said map 
showing the territory to be annexed to the CFO In the office of the County Recorder of the County 
of San Diego within fifteen days of the date of adoption of this Resolution. 

1 of 3 



4. The types of services financed by the CFD and pursuant to the Act consist of those services 
(the "Services") described in Exhibit A to Resolution 2008-09, adopted by the Board on May 29, 
2008 (the "Resolution of Formation"). It is presently intended that the Services will be shared, 
without preference or priority, by the existing territory in the CFD and the territory proposed to be 
annexed to the CFD. 

8. The Secretary is~ -~ di; 1:ted to cause notice of the public hearing to be given by 
publication , ·_ e in a n . . /§per published in the area of the CFO. The publication shall be 
completed at ~ --· seven d ': ;_;\Sefore the date of the public hearing In Section 6. The Secretary 
shall also cause of . ··,tearing to be given to each properly owner within the CFD by first 
class mail, postage· ... '.-r to each such owner's addresses as it appears on the most recent tax 
records of the Distric ·· Js otherwise known to the Secretary to be correct. Such malled notice 
shall be completed not less than fifteen days before the date of the public hearing. Each of the 
notices shall be substantially in the form specified in section 53322 of the Act, with the form 
summarizing the provisions hereof hereby specifically approved. 

9. Except as may otherwise be provided by law or by the rate and method of apportionment of the 
special tax for the CFD, all lands owned by any public entity, including the United States, the State 
of California and/or the District, or any departments or political subdivisions thereof, shall be 
omitted from the levy of the Special Tax to be made to cover the costs and expenses of the 

2 of3 

Services and the CFO. In the event that a portion of the properly within the CFD shall become for 
any reason exempt, wholly or in part, from the levy of the special tax, this Board will, on behalf of 
the CFD, increase the levy to the extent necessary upon the remaining property within the CFD 
that Is not exempt in order to yield the required revenues to pay for the Services and other annual 
expenses of the CFD, if any, subject to the provisions of the rate and method of apportionment of 
the special tax. 

10. The officers, employees and agents of the District are hereby authorized and directed to do 
any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents WIJlih they may deem 
necessary or advisable In order to carry out, give effect to and comp~ the terms and intent of 
this resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the V, 
the 17"' day of March, 2022 by the following vote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 

ATTEST: 

,. 

3of3 



RESOLUTION 2022-13 

CFO 2008-1- PUBLIC HEARING 

PARADISE MOUNTAIN RD 

190-160-06-00 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
Administrative Office & Fire Prevention Bureau 

28234 Lilac Road 
Valley Center. CA 92082 

Tel: 760-751-7600 Fax: 760-749-3892 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-13 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION.p!STRICT 

WHEREAS, the annexation of described territory to the-CQn'il:llunity Facilities Dlsbict 
2008-01 (the"CFD") was submitted to a vote by the ~r"Qfthe real property 
located within the Jurisdictional boundaries of theJJfl).on Febrqa);y 28, 2022; and . ' .

'·· 
WHEREAS, eleven (11) votes (1 vote per ~aniiwas cast by a pro~mail ballot in 
favor of the levy of special taxes within ~de$cribed teni!Qry of the CIEQt ar,d 

WHEREAS, a sufficient-number of votes I/Vere~~ favor of levying special taxes 
within the CFO; • •· 

\ -., ·-... ·. 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESO~~D~ • . . , , · ., 
The results of the electio11as s~'1 levy~~es..Wilhin the CFO are 
hereby certified. ·. \ / ' 

PASSED, APP~, AND ~Plc[)'~y,the Board of Directors of the Valley 
Center Fire Prot~'loi..Distri<;t(at,.aschedule,d\~peclal Board Meeting thereof, this 
17"' day of March, ~by,4 ~~ · 

~ ' -. .' ....... 

Secretary 
Boardof~rs 

Fire Station #72 Fire Station #73 
26234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Vailey Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 

https://JJfl).on


-

- --

--

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-16 

/ 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD~ -~ _ORS OF 
VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECttfJN DIS-T 

AUTHORIZING THE PR"'cisAL WITH . -_.,_ 
THE CENTER FOR PUBLICJtAFETY EXCELL~ 

FOR FACILIJ1AT;roN OF A ·, ·. 
COMMUNITY DRN~STRAT.EQJC PLAN ·,.,_) 

' cl I ~· 

,,._. -, . 

WHEREAS, there ha( ~ _presented·4e.""the District an Agreement 
between Valley Center Fire Pr~'"'E)i1;1trict anciihlt..Center for Public Safety 
Excellence in the form and cont~ttabt:l@tt"hereto, ~ ._ 

'·, '. / ·, '} 

WHEREA_ _.~,ttWfjl,,.the best'1fiireg{9'the¥~1TeJ'center Fire Protection 
District that sai?-4\~~ee~t,lle app¥-S1< ~ 

NOW( T~EREFORE, 'the Bo}rff?f Directors of Valley Center Fire 
Protection Distrj.c\,does ~adopt a~"approve the Agreement; and 

'·.. ' " .· -· -- - ·-... -·~ 

__ /~-~-PU.~THB(t R~SOLVED,thaLthe Fire Chief is hereby authorized and 
~ to -~bte the~~ement on behalf of the District. 

,/ ,... -- "-<·---._ '·<.:_"•. ' 
~o'pt~ this 17th dar~t Marclt,~022. 

-. 
'\~-"-, -,.,_ 

Gina Robert~~6c¥.etary 
'. 

Center ro, 
Public Safety 
Excellence· 

Community-Driven Strategic Plan Proposal 
to 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 
28234 Lilac Road 

Valley Center, California 92082 

Josef Napier 
Fire Chief 

February 1, 2022 

4501 Singer Court, Suite 180, Chantilly, VA 20151 
703-691-4620 - www.cpse.o!Jl 

www.cpse.o!Jl


COMMUNITY-DRIVEN STRATEGICPlAN PROPOSAL 

CONTENTS 

THE CPSE DIFFERENCE ..................................................................................... ............................................. 3 

SCOPE...................................................... ...................................................................................................... 3 

PROJECT FRAMEWORK ......................................... ........................................................................................ 4 

PROJECTTIMELINE........................... ............................................................................................................. 4 

DELIVERABLES ............................................................................................................ ................................... S 

CPSE RESOURCES ........................................... ... ............................................................................................ 5 

ESTIMATED FEES ANO EXPENSES ....... ........................................................................................................... 6 

ASSUMPTIONS .............................................................................................................................................. 6 

INQUIRIES .................................................................................................. ....... ...... .. ..... ..................... ..... ..... 6 

SAMPLE STATEMENT OF WORK.................................................................................................................... 7 

Page 2 ofB 

COMMUNITY-DRIVEN fflATEGIC PIAN PROPOSAL 

THE CPSE• DIFFERENCE 
The mission of the Center for Public Safety Excellence Is: '7o lead the fire and emergency service to 
excellence through the continuous quality Improvement process of accredltotlan, credentialing, and 
education.• 

GMom<1110/bhond-feedhlmfr,,o
By teaching, coaching, guiding, and advising. CPSE's Technical day. Tooch o matt to /bh and you feed him 
Advisor Program (TAP) strives to provide agencies the tools to ft,rall/fflmf!. 
internalize continuous quality improvement and thereby achieve 
excellence. 

TAP places great importance on thorough preparation for each project Including: 
• A clear understanding of the agency's background, goals and objectives, and the complex issues 

they are facing, 
• A workplan that is comprehensive, well designed, and provides ample opportunity for 

stakeholder Input, 
• Sufficient resources and a commitment to successfully complete the project within the desired 

time frame at a reasonable cost, and 
• A commitment to support the agency after the Strategic Plan Is adopted. 

TAP uses contemporary methods and enlists energetic and positive lndMduals to help facilitate agency 
work. Our advisors personalize their approach and gamer candid feedback from stakeholders while 
putting stakeholders at ease. The end result Is a truly strategic rather than tactical plan. 

SCOPE 
The purpose of a strategic plan is to Identify and provide a process that envisions the future by 
accomplishing organizational visions. A well-crafted Strategic Plan, guided by good management, and 
executed by committed personnel will translate to Improved effectiveness, efficiency, and better quality 
of services being delivered. CPSE believes the most successful strategic planning efforts involve both 
Internal and external stakeholders. 

The Community-Driven Strategic Plan Facilitation process typically takes 60 to 90 days and Includes: 
• Meeting with external stakeholders to gather feedback on community expectations, concerns, 

and priorities (live or virtual), 
• A three-day, In-person work session with the agency's Internal stakeholders to Integrate 

community feedback into their mission, vision, and values, and 
• A professionally formatted and published document encompassing strategic Initiatives, goals, 

objectives, critical tasks, and performance measures. 

Expected outcomes Include a Strategic Plan that will: 
• Address the organization's mission, vision, and values 
• Be achievable, measurable, and responsive to changing community needs 
• Be easily reviewed and modified to meet the changing Internal and external needs of the agency 
• Build upon community partnerships and enhance the ability to harmonize the goals of the agency 

with the community's Identified needs 
• Encourage and embrace Involvement, participation, and teamwork 
• Establish strategic Initiatives 
• Establish goals, objectives, performance measures, and an implementation strategy 

corresponding to the strategic Initiatives 
• Focus on critical Issues and needs of Internal and external stakeholders 

Page 3 of8 





_

COMMUNITY-DRIVENSTRATEGIC PLANPROPOSALCOMMUNITY-DRIVENSTRATEGICPLAN PROPOSAL 

SAMPLE STATEMENT OF WORKESTIMATED FEES AND EXPENSES 
CPSE has estimated the following fees and expenses for this project: 

The proposed cost for CPSE to facilitate the development of the Valley Center Fire Protection District's 
Community-Driven Strategic Plan Is $18,000. 

This total proposed cost indudes all technical advisor time and travel expenses to facilitate one external -

stakeholder meeting (limited to no more than 75 people) and a three-day Internal stakeholder work ProfedSlatll ~ ........llllpllllllnl...-
"AnatlndSQtalentofWDltsession (limited to no more than 36 people). These events will be scheduled during the same week. Any 
•S/tnedPmlesslonat--1. Pmj,ct CPSEondadditional travel requested and approved by the Valley Center Fire Protection District will be billed by • CoMtNctkm gfSharai Site - 1, -'lel<Yldenllflcallon of CPSE and apn<y project points 2022• "'"'"""-· CPSE at actual cost and Is above and beyond the proposed cost above. .,_ -

2. Pmject • Dlsamlan ~hlSOWandkMntl'lcatlan of lrTuosdrt,
ASSUMPTIONS N/Amawces needforachstwp _15, CPSE 

~ • OwMewofSlaffllSle lOZ2 
• The Valley Center Fire Protection District is a district-based fire service agency that protects the -- ~ __.,.. .,__ • prtmlry mnbd lnfanatlon 

residents, businesses, and visitors within its )urldlction. ·----·""'-hlllo··- N/AMatellltsto • AamK'Y current.mlalan and values. lfavlllbll!! Mmlll.2022• Josef Napier, Fire Chief Is the key contact for this project. Shared Site • Apnc:y orpnlzatlanal chart -
und ._~ _.__ Havallable• CPSE Is required to follow the agency's specific procurement requirements for this project. . ,....._.. _,.__,_• Stnd lnvttatkn ta request atel'Nl ltlleeholder 

Specific procurement requirements will need to be provided by the agency as part of the 4.lnvll, lrl'ndr/, N/A- • ll'Mtl:tdentlfled in.m.l~aftd Mardi u.2022 
development of the professional services agreement. -the-- -

•IJstclertemalltlkehaldns .,_,. -(shift,__, N/A 
• The purpose of CPSE's Technical Advisor Program (TAP) Is to coach, mentor, guide, and assist fire s. -Required 

service agencies. Agency representatives will play an active role In developing their community -••.2022 
Sh1redSll:e """"'---~- ......_, -

• Dmn'n1111!!11!!Zb!rnatmhhaklal'p,torltl!s.ddriven strategic plan. 
6. External ............... 

Stabhaldor • Oetemllne external rtlteholder epectatlom CPSE N/A 
M-rc • Remlw ab!rnal stlbhaldw l"IM ma posllve ---• This proposal Is valid for a period of sixty (60) days. 18,2022..._,_

• CPSE and the Valley Center Fire Protection District will execute a professional services agreement •-Input__,....._. 
prior to the start of this project. • ow.lap, -..orUpdll9MlsllOnSlltenlem 

•DooMiop.- ....-.--• CPSE and the Valley Center Fire Protection District will execute a statement of work governed by ,.-.... • Establllhcareproparm,na.,o,t-.v1c:1s T.....,, _ 
• ldonllfVOltlcal ____ 19, 2022- • CanductS.\V.O,T,Analyllothe professional services agreement prior to the start of this project that will be the sole a-.,, CPSEWort! 

lllunday, ...... "'"' Pricedocument to govern the scope, methods, terms, and deliverables of this project. - • ~ strm,glc lnltlatMs with outmmes ll,2022 

•Dov.ta,,..,.l!,-,lndallalllmINQUIRIES -11 ,__ fllwlltor ' .....,,'"'III VIIIGII__. 
Please contact CPSE with any Inquiries regarding this proposal : I.Draft-

• Dmt~tostiaNdSbfar~rftlew CPSE N/A 

10.-
:::=

Brian R Dean, CFO 9. -IIMl!waf ..............
• Edltstodnttrep)lt~•ShM'lldSlle N/Alnft•- .,.10. 2022__ 

4501 Singer Court, Suite 180 .... • Approvalofhldraft -.,ncy - N/A 

Strategic Planning Manager 

17,JOllR..a..dChantilly, VA 20151 
11.51mo11c • Dtlwtydcnedilbl ■ndten (10) had caple!I .,llluridoy, 

Office: (703) 691-4620, ext. 209 Plan Issued dtheftn11zed so-tt...- -. Jwte!D,ZD22 
CPSE "'"'""'" 

Mobile: (407) 919-9862 
Email: bdean@cpse.org 

Page 7 of8Page 6 of 8 

mailto:bdean@cpse.org


COMMUNITT..ORIVEN STRATEGIC PLAN PROPOSAL 

'.i'P-1'-)l;.utJ~i!t, ~.:n1t:1tQ":,Yr !raruu11lhll('-,ikllr•.:11u•Jn(1;jhYiJ'lf)M~ 

'i,\J>li•).•f<C,-~pp; 

_,.__- -of-edhrtv:J121C 

tenter for ,._Safoty E>atleooe (CPS£) lnlllalsofAuthortzedParty:'D:£:J 

Page 8 of 8 



 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
     

 
   

  
      
     

      
     

 
      

 
     

  
   

 
 

    
 

   
   

     
    

 
  

  
 

       
 

   
   

 

 

 
Minutes 

Of A Special Meeting 
Of the Board of Directors of 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 
April 7, 2022 / 6:00 p.m. 

Valley Center Municipal Water District Board Room 
29300 Valley Center Rd 
Valley Center, CA 92082 

This Meeting was cast on Zoom with Live Stream to VCFPD Facebook Page 
For COVID-19 Prevention 

1. Call to Order at 6:05 p.m. by Director Bell 

2. Roll Call: 
Phil Bell – Present 
Charlotte Seaborne – Present 
Steve Hutchison – Present 
Gina Roberts – Present – Zoom attendance 
Mike O’Connor – Present – Zoom attendance 

3. Pledge of Allegiance – led by Chief Duncan 

4. A proposal was made approve Resolution NO. 2022-17 to Implement Teleconferencing 
Requirements During a Proclaimed State of Emergency Under Government Code 
Section 54953. After motion made and seconded and a roll call vote, Resolution 2022-17 
was unanimously approved. 

5. Public Comment – None 

6. A presentation regarding the Design-Build contract for Station 3 and improvements on 
the existing stations was made by Robin Biglione from Biglione Construction with Nathan 
Complin from Erickson-Hall Construction present. After the presentation, the Board had 
a discussion with the presenter which included questions regarding contract details. 

7. New Business 
A. A request was made and approved to table the staff report by Chief Napier and 

Resolution 2022-18 To Approve Agreement Between the District and Design 
Builder, Erickson-Hall Construction Company until the April 21st regular meeting. 

8. Board of Directors Comments 
Director O’Connor thanked Robin and Nathan for their presentation. He noted that the 
report and resolution should read differently for the Board to approve pre-construction 

1 



     
 

 
 

 
    

 
     

    

   
   

 
     

   
  

  
 

             
  
                                                                       

                                                                                         
 
 
 
 

                                 

Valley Center Fire Protection District Board of Directors – Special Meeting Minutes 
April 7, 2022 

costs and would like an idea of how much each job would cost to complete, so the Board 
can look at where to take the funds from and what additional funds may be needed to 
complete the work. 
Director Roberts thanked everyone for their time. She would like a 5 year timeline to look 
at the finances, so the Board can get a better grasp of long term costs. 
Director Seaborne thanked everyone for the information, it has been helpful and eye 
opening and represents what they are on the Board to do. We need station 3 for the 
community and she applauds the team for asking the hard questions and having the 
dialogue. 
Director Hutchison expressed his thanks and noted that all of the Board and staff are 
dedicated to making it right for the community. This is a big undertaking, but we’re 
dedicated to making it happen. 
Director Bell had nothing to add. 

9. Adjournment – 7:37 p.m. 

____________________________ 
Regina Roberts, Secretary 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: April 21, 2022 

2 



VALLEY CENTER 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

28234 Lilac Road, Valley Center, CA 92082 
(760) 751-7600 Fax (760) 749-3892 

Website: vcfpd.org 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT RESOLUTION 2022-17 

RESOLUTION TO mt:PLEMENT TELECON~d 
DURING A PROCLAmt:ED STATE OF EMERGE ·· · ,..,., 

SECTION54 

'!' Or':5l,"11owed llgislative bodies to meet virtually as long as 
'•.!llCI · · " • ts were met; and 
,1'a, "· '', 
-lJ,.~ -~ 

WHEREAS,~~te Legislal·.,amen ~ the Brown Act through Assembly Bill No. 361 (AB 
36l)onSeptemb~l6,2021 ; .:ti 

' :4/_~ -- ~ ' r1 
WHEREAS, AB 361 amended the Brown Act so that a local agency may use teleconferencing 
without complying with the regular teleconferencing requirements of the Act, where the 
legislative body bolds a meeting during a proclaimed state of emergency and makes certain 
findings; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953 requires that the legislative body make additional 
findings every 30 days in order to continue such teleconferencing. 

NOW THEREFORE, the legislative body of the Valley Center Fire Protection District hereby 
finds, determines, declares, orders, and resolves as follows: 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28234 LIiac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 

I. That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and incorporates them by this reference. 

2. The Board ofDirectors ofthe Valley Center Fire Protection District (District) finds, by a 
majority vote, the following: 

a. That there exists a proclaimed state of emergency; 
AND either: 

b. The Board ofDirectors ofthe Valley Center Fire Protection District is meeting for 
the pwpose ofdetermining one ofthe following, or more than 30 days have 
passed since the Board met and determined one_&the following and the Board 
now re-determines one ofthe following: 

i. State or local officials have impo 
promote social distancing; OR 

ii. As a result of the emergency, 
risks to the health or safi 

OR 

·.vision (b ), 

:tly impact the ability of 

.pose or recommend measures 

3. ~.1¥striiil:l1Jn:.Chief.ii';Jjis d~au9zed to take all steps and perform all 
this Resolution in compliance with 

4. 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Signature: _ _____ _________________ 

Phil Bell, J>Jesident, Valley Center Fire Protection District 

Signature 

Attest: ---;:,:-:-;-:--;;-;--:--;;;--,--=;,----=---=::--,-------
Regina Roberts, Secretary, Valley Center Fire Protection District 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 

https://vcfpd.org


TEMPORARY FIRE STATION 
NO. 3 AN D REMODEL WORK 
DESIGN-BU ILD CONTRACT 

Design-Build Process 
► Hire a design-build entity that includes a design 

team and a construction team 
► The design team provides a design meeting the 

owner's criteria 
► Throughout the design process, the construction 

team and the owner provide feedback 
► The design team, construction team and owner 

approve the final design documents 
► The design-build entity provides the owner a 

Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the project 
and upon approval from the owner, proceeds to 
construct the project 



Benefits of Design-Build 

► Price certainty 

► Avoid conflicts and disputes 

► Faster project delivery 

► Design-Builder responsible for 
compliance with contracting, payment and 
reporting requirements 

Local Examples of Design-Build 
Projects - Vista Fire Station No.5 



Overview 
► Hired Biglione Construction Management (BCM) in 

2018 to: 

0 Assist with site selection process for Fire Station No. 3 and 
oversee the preparation of studies related to property 
acquisition and for use in RFP for Design-Build services 

0 Assist with the two-step recruitment and selection of 
potential design builders, in accordance with the 
requirements of State Law 

0 Provide owner's representative services to the District 
during design and construction. 

Funding Sources for Projects 

► District Mitigation Funds $350,000 

► State Budget Al location $680,000 

► Desmond's and COVID Grants $279,200 

► Fire Foundation Commitment $576,000 

TOTAL $1,885,200 



Station l Improvement Priority List 

► Increase the height of the front app bay doors 
and provide automatic openers for rear doors 

► Install a new compressor and compressor 
enclosure, with compressed air to app bays 

► Design and install a new HVAC system 
throughout the main fire station building 

► Reconfigure the dorm space, crew restroom 
and kitchen, including moving refrigerators 
out of the app bay 

Temporary Fire Station 3 



Design-Build Contract 

► The initial contract only approves the costs of 
design and preconstruction costs ($502,980) 

► When the design is complete and the design
builder provides a cost proposal, an 
amendment to the contract will be reviewed 
by the Board 

► The amendment will be a simple document 
establishing a Guaranteed Maximum Price for 
the project(s) 

Preconstruction Cost Summary 

► Design Temp. Fire Station 3 $234,500 
► Design Remodel Work Sta. 1 $90,000 
► Design Remodel Work Sta. 2 $ 71,500 

► D-B Pre-Construction Services $47,000 
► D-B Design Contingency $25,000 

► D-B Fee $30,000 
► Liability Insurance @1 % $4,980 
► Total Preconstruction Services $502,980 



Project Schedule 

► Award of D-B Contract 

► Design Dev. Complete 

► Construction Docs Complete 

► County Permits Issued** 

► GMP Proposal 

► Substantial Completion 

April 7, 2022 

May 5, 2022 

June 2, 2022 

Aug. 19, 2022 

Sept. 15, 2022 

Jan. 27, 2022 

Chula Vista Fire Station No. 1 0 



V) 
I,.,. 

Q) 

~ 
V) 

C: 
<( 

"'C V, 

C: V, L.. 
Q) <l)

rtS u ""C0
V) L.. 

:::::s
C: c.. 

0J 
V, I0 ---....,·-....., u C: 

C")
V) ·--~Q) 

V,
Q) 0 Q) 

:::s c.. 
L.. 

Cl 
.... ....0 

...., 
u 
rn 
L......, 
C: 
0 u 
.... 

,i..., 
Q) 
0, 

"'C 
:::::s 

0J 
.... 

-Q) 

:::::s 
""C 
Q) 

.c: 
u 

Vl 
.... 

'"C 
0 

..s::::: 
,i..., 
<l) 

~ 
>, 
L.. 
<l) 

-> 
<l) 

Cl 
""C 

:::::s 
0J 

I 
C: 

·-
C") 

V, 
<l) 

Cl 

Station 3 - Contract Questions 

General 

1. Has contract already been reviewed by legal? Yes, Fred Pfister reviewed and modified the 

contract to enhance the protection of the VCFPD. 

2. How dosely Involved has the VCFPD project team been Involved In the details of the project so 

far? All of the details of the project so far have been developed by the VCFPD project team. 

After the contract Is executed, the design-builder's team will start working on the project. The 

VCFPD team will stay very involved as the designs are developed. The progressive design-build 

delivery method promotes working as a team to achieve the project's goals to ensure the owner 

(VCFPD) gets the best project for a fair price. 

3. Does Erickson-Hall have examples of similar work they have done In our back-country 

environment? Erickson-Hall recently completed the Harmony Grove Fire Station for Rancho 

Santa Fe Fire Protection District. This project Is located on the edge of a new planned 

community at the wlldland interface. 

4. Have total project costs been defined? (Examples: power, water access/easements to property, 

meter, hydrant, permit fees, etc.) VCFPD Is entering into this contract with Erickson-Hall In two 
steps. The first step, approval of the framework of the contract and approval of the cost for the 

design portion only will be considered by the Board this week. Once there is a conceptual 

design, the utility costs and permit fees can be defined. Further, any easements necessary for 

utilities can be pursued. 

s, What Is the percentage of rework that will be required when the permanent station goes Into 
place? The conceptual design for the temporary station was developed with the intent that no 

rework will be required to construct the permanent station. The conceptual design does not 

locate the temporary station in the area needed for construction of the permanent station. 

6. Will work on station 1 and 2 be done parallel to Station 3? The work is planned to occur at the 

same time. This will achieve cost savings as the same Erickson-Hall staff will oversee all of the 

work. Should they be done sequentially? What Is our priority? Is 9 months a realistic time 

frame? The 9 month construction time frame is realistic. The unknown In the schedule is how 

long the County will take to permit the projects. 

7. What are our budget sources for the $1.BM? •Mitigation: $350,000 •state Assembly Funds: 
$680,000 •Grants and ARPA Funds: $279,200 •valley Center Fire Foundation Funds: $576,000 
Total: $1,885,200 

8. What Is the budget source for contingency funds? The proposed contract Includes a $25,000 

design contingency (Exhibit D). After the projects are designed and bid to subcontractors, 

Erickson-Hall will propose a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the work. The GMP will 



Station 3 - Contract Questions 

include a construction contingency. The $1.8 million budget includes all contingency funds. No 
additional money is required to fund the contingency. It is important to understand that all of 

the Station 1 and 2 improvements on the updated list (Exhibit C) will be designed in the initial 

phase and a GMP will be provided for each project. Only those projects that can be completed 
within the budget will be constructed. 

Nova Geologic Study 

9. Will NOVA be involved in construction operation? Not known at this time. Erickson-Hall has not 

solicited bids for the geotechnical work for the construction operation. NOVA will be considered 

for this work, probably along with several other firms. 

10. Did we receive SME (subject matter expert) Input, clarlflcatlon on the NOVA Geotechnlcal 

report? The NOVA Geotechnical Report was prepared under contract to VCFPD as part of the 

due diligence process for property acquisition. Additional work was done to provide 

geotechnical recommendations for construction and for septic system design. 

11. NOVA doc: Section 6.3.3 Metals: Design consideration that soil may be very corrosive to ferrous 
metals. One of the purposes of geotechnical study is to provide information to the design 

professionals to ensure their design is compatible with soils conditions on the property. 

12. Nova 6.5.4 -General slab Design 

13. Nova 6.7.3 -Design for utilities 

14. Nova 9.2 - It Is assumed that Nova will be Involved during design phase for consulting & review; 

also for construction monitoring In the form of testing and observation. A geotechnical firm will 
be involved to review the design (to ensure it conforms to NOVA's recommendations) and to 
provide testing and observation during construction. 

Contract Document 

15. What are the total contract costs? The contract is for design only and the cost is $502,980. 

16. When will the detailed 'design/build documents be provided? The schedule anticipates the 
design will be permitted August 19, 2022. 

17. What Is the risk that something of significant cost/time Impact, was missed In our RFP, and will 

not be Identified until the design/build documents are provided? The main risk is that the 
County will require changes to the project concept or take a long time to permit the plans. 

18. What is our contingency for overages? Once the design is complete and VCFPD enters into the 

Design-Build Amendment with Erickson-Hall, "contingency" will be built into the GMP. At that 

time Erickson-Hall will be responsible for cost overruns, unless they are due to some unknown 

subsurface conditions that is not known until construction starts. 

Exhibit C- Owner's program documents are referenced throughout the contract. 

Station 3 - Contract Questions 

19. Item 1.1. Owner's Crlterla...set forth In Exhibit C-
20. Exhibit C In the packet shows Improvements planned for station 1 and 2. Is there more detail? 

No, more details will be developed as the design progresses. VCFPD project staff will be 

involved throughout the design process. 

21. 2.1-3 -Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses Prior to Edecution of Design-Build 

Amendment (expenses fully defined? Costed?) The only reimbursable expenses are permit and 

utility fees, printing and other expenses If authorized in advance. VCFPD is contracting with 

Erickson-Hall at this time to refine the conceptual design, so that permit and utility fees can be 

fully defined. Reproduction reimbursable costs will only be incurred for paper copies of plans 

requested by agencies or VCFPD. 

22. 7.2.3 - Owner shall promptly obtain easements, zoning variance .. " What is the status of this 

effort? The Project Team met with County staff and we believe we can make revisions to the 

conceptual project design to avoid the need for any easements, unless the utility design, which 

will occur in the. next phase, necessitates an easement. County staff has indica~~d that only 

building permits are required to Implement the project(s). 

23. 9.1- Contract sum Is stated In the Design Build amendment. Where Is this amendment? The 

tentative project schedule indicates that on September 15, 2022, Erickson-Hall will provide the 

GMP proposal. The amendment will come to the VCFPD Board following receipt of that 

proposal. 

Exhibit D 

24. All compensation for work performed prior to execution of Design-Build Amendment Is specified 

here. 

25. ZS% of budget Is pre-construction costs.. Is that standard? No, the design cost Is high because 

of all the small remodel projects. 

26. Item 36 Is incomplete Item 36 in Exhibit D is for information only, at this time, VCFPD is only 

entering into a contract for design and pre-construction services. 

Pre-screening Checklist 

27. What is the purpose of this document in the packet? This was an Attachment to the RFP. 

Construction Approach 

28. Can we complete the grading, upper pad, and one permanent building with current funding 

sources? No, only the temporary station pad and improvements can be provided with the 

current funding. 



__ 
EXHIBITD 

Station 3 - Contract Questions 

29. Is the planned approach to grade two levels? Why? The site is steep and the cost to create a 
single pad on one level when it is not necessary did not make economic sense. 

30. Is It feasible to grade the finish pad to completion with enough space for temp buildings and not 

require a second pad? The two pad approach is more economical and keeps the temporary 
improvements away from the area of work for the permanent station. 

31. WIii we need two septic system? With two pads? There will be one septic system to serve both 
the temparary and permanent site. 

32. WIii the planed blo system be adequate for the total plant? The bioflltration system may need 
to be expanded for the permanent station, but there is adequate space near the blofiltration 
system for the temporary station. 

33. Can we build the administration building when finish grading complete? Money? There Is no 

space on the pad designed for the temporary station to locate the administration building. 
34. Do we have/require easements on Cole Grade Lane? VCFPO does not have an access easement 

to Cole Grade Lane, but It is not necessary. Access to the permanent and temporary stations is 
planned to be directly from Cole Grade Road. 

35. How Is access to Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane planned? Direct access, via on-site 
driveways, is planned to Cole Grade Road only. 

AlTACHM".., VI ltvtd. J t 10/ 2GU . Calt: Wo .,... ·-1 .... ... 
2 uau1n Tum 1""ruuu11:z ana ~ ns..1afflJli1 

3IT•mparary f-ln ~.--..- I J • 1...11• - ,u1, 
4 Ii( ,n, 
~~•-nt6 -.uments 
7 ota $234,500 

8 Rre ~-Wl Renax1111 • u ,c llld. 
9 ..,...iCU'1' 1JOOrs 111on ont¥') a o u pener or 11.ear- ..~ ...., 

, .. ompressor ana 
11 . Kep acement SICl e5 · JU.I £ 10, 
12 uorm to,y ano uav Room l\ar llWUE:1 - ,..L.,uuv•• ~ 12,000 
13 QlCrlr!!naM Restroom IU!fTWDe•Al 1C!\nAICC 15,000 
114 $90,000 
15 Ifft ·-Sbb-on fJ. -mc,o"' • N, l.alie WOnnDJ'U NII, 
161App Bay Doors 11 ront and reart - mi..31: a,u ,.,, 
1.1, 1nv,u.. 11.el)(acement 1DOm .s:ides - ,..,, 
!l8 11JUJm11ory nemocr. • Al1i::11NA 1 .1: 12,000 
19 ,C:i t wen e or Retngerator Relocation • 10,000 
20 s«eene:a ,-orch at Rear Patto Alea - AL [ 7, 
21 oncrete n.e~acement at Rear 01 .>tation - AL E~A• ~ 
22 .>umata :571,500 

o e: uo not inc uDe ocs•gn team cons rucuon aum n1str.nron seMces n 1ne 
23 preconstruction Hrvices budget TI!O 

" r 
26 08 Cost for PreconstrucUon Services (pr- Dreakdown on sep.an.1~ ihHII ) 47,000 
27 JP ropose□ uci uesian CDnttngency szS 000 
28 PropQsed DB FH! Tor AU Pre-Construction Services :i 30,000 

Subtota l 29 Sl02.000 
1,0 

1 l uutota1 r reconstrun,on .>e u >49 

1% Llablllty Insurance on Preconstructlon Servk:e:s $4,980 
, 
32 .. ....... .. 
34 
35 Construction :HrY ces 

Gener.a, Conditions,Genera1 Requirements 1provlde montn1v Dftt:11'.CIQWII on 
36 separate sheet. ldentJfy stafflrw levels and hours), To be conflrm!Mt 1t Cf'eatlon of $144,105 
37 Proposed 08 Canttngency (percentageJ 10% 
38 Pl'opo.-a ua Fee tor Construction l perct:nQ1Ce ~-,, 

s 1n11 nsunnce 
41 ,,..,. Coverage to ce quoteo at aeation °' G M t' 

42 ity nsuranu 11.u,-.1 '·°" 

667 



• • - . 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 

Staff Report 

Prepared by: Josef G. Napier Special Meeting Date: 04/07/2022 
Fire Chief, VCFPD 

Approved by: Pending Board Action Agenda: Action Item 
Location: Special Board Meeting 

~: Temporary Fire Station 3 and Fire Station Construction Projects 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It Is the recommendation of the Valley Center Fire Protection District Fire Chief to engage Into a design 
build contract with Erickson-Hall Construction utilizing a combination of California State appropriated 
general funds, Valley Center Fire Protection District mitigation funds and Valley Center Fire Foundation 
Funds to develop and install temporary Fire Station 3 on Cole Grade Road and complete facilities 
upgrades and deferred maintenance on Fire Station 1 and 2. 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION: 
On March 15, 2017, a Standards of Cover Report and Deployment Study was presented and adopted by 
the Valley Center Fire Protection District Board of Directors. In that Study, it was identified that a third Fire 
Station should be located at Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane, equipped with a Type 1 Apparatus 
and staffed with a Captain, Engineer and Firefighter-Paramedic to provide better Fire Protection and ALS 
EMS Services to the community. 

On August 27, 2021 the District purchased the property for $330,000 utilizing District mitigation funds to 
place Fire Station 3 on Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane. On August 19, 2021 by Resolution 2021-
14, the District committed $350,000 from District mitigation funds to construct Temporary Fire Station 3 
and provide Fire Facility Upgrades to Fire Station 1 and 2. On September 16, 2021, Assembly Member 
Marie Waldron presented a California State budget allocation award to the Valley Center Fire Protection 
District of $1,060,000.00 which was deposited into the general operating fund. A portion of the total 
award for the Temporary Fire Station 3 and Fire Facility Upgrades was set at $680,000 which will be 
drafted from the general operating fund. To date, grants received from Supervisor Desmond's Office and 
the District's allocation of COVID 19 ARPA funds for Temporary Fire Station 3 and Fire Facility Upgrades 

are committed at $279,200 and the Valley Center Fire Foundation has committed $576,000 to construct 
Temporary Fire Station 3 and provide Fire Facility Upgrades to Fire Station 1 and 2. 

STATEM ENT ON THE SUBJECT: 
It Is the recommendation of Fire Chief Napier that the Valley Center Fire Protection District Board of 
Directors should authorize the capital budget be adjusted for FY2021-2022 and capital funds allocated for 
FY2022-2023 to contract for design build and construction services with Erickson-Hall Construction for 
$1,800,000 dollars. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The total contracted fiscal impact of the Erickson-Hall design build and construction contract for 
Temporary Fire Station 3 and Fire Facility Upgrades is $1,800,000.00. The total accessible funding for the 
projected Temporary Fire Station 3 and Fire Facility Upgrades to Fire Station 1 and 2 from all available 
funding sources is $1,885,200.00. 

CONCLUSION: 
The positive outcome from the successful relationship that will be built between the Valley Center Fire 
Protection District and Erickson-Hall Construction will result in the long awaited operational third fire 
station which will provide the enhanced Fire Protection and ALS EMS services needed to an underserved 
response area and increased reliability to our community. It will also provide our current Fire Stations with 
the much-needed facilities upgrades and deferred maintenance updates to improve our ability to serve the 
community at the highest possible level and Improve the quality of life of our Firefighters in the Stations 
through modern Innovations. 

https://1,885,200.00
https://1,800,000.00
https://1,060,000.00


I ,Jf_ . . \ ~. 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-18 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OJl' 'lA.4..LEY CENTER FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT TO APPROVE THE AGR.E,~~~~EEN THE DISTRICT 

AND DESIGN BUILDER· ERICKSON-HALLJ;~TRU · ~ COMPANY 
., i . . ' ' ), 

WHEREAS, there has been pres "' · to the District~ , :Agreement 
between Valley Center Fire Protection .••trr6t and Erickson-Hall ".:~!r.uction 
Company in the form and content attac ·. ,ttereto, ~."-, .)· 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interes; 6f.~,a~ey Center Fire Protection 
District that said Agreement ~approved. <7:r·~<·, - ·~,:· '-

NOW, THEREFORE, t ~Boat:g ¢....Direcfi,~, of Valley Center Fire 
Protection District do;.s hereby ~t anrr'fiP~E!;_ th~greement; and 

It is FUR"t,KEfl .LVED:. :, , ~ ~ir;~fd'.1s hereby authorized and 
directed to exe~he Agrtent on ·-.3~f of the District. 

IAIA DocumentA14f-2014 
Standard Form ofAgreement Between Owner and Design-Builder 

AGREEMENT made as of the day of in the year 
(In words, indicate day, month and year,) 

BElWEEN the Owner: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 
28234 Lilac Road 
Valley Center, CA 92082 

and the Design-Builder: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

Erickson-Hall Construction Co. 
500 Corporate Drive 
Escondido, CA 92029 

for the following Project: 
(Name. location and detailed description) 

Valley Center Temporary Fire Station No. 3 and Fire Station No. I and 2 Renovations 
Temporary Fire Station No. 3 
APN 133-220-38, located in the community ofValley Center, northwest ofthe intersection 
of Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane 

Fire Station No. I 
28234 Lilac Road 
Valley Center, CA 92082 

Fire Station No. 2 
28205 N. Wohlford Lake Road 
Valley Center, CA 92082 

Design and build a temporary fire station to serve the community of Valley Center. In 
addition, design and bui Id agreed upon renovations to Fire Station No. I and 2. The Project 
will include all design, engineering, permits, grading, construction, materials, labor, 
observation, inspection and testing. Design-Builder will be responsible for obtaining all 
required permits, including federal, state and local governance as well as coordination with 
all utilities and other regulatory agencies, start-up commissioning required for occupancy 
and operations. All permits, fees and utility fees shall be paid by the Owner. Costs for 
reimbursable expenses, such as paper sets ofplans requested by agencies or the Owner, 
shall be paid by the Owner. Design-Builder shall perform all work and provide all 
documents described in the Owner's Program Documents, which are attached as Exhibit C. 

The Owner and Design-Builder agree as follows. 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 

added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard fonn. An Additions and 

Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revieions lo the 
standard form text Is available from 

the author and should be reviewed. A 
vertical line in the left margin of this 
document Indicates where the author 
has added necessary Information 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text. 

This document has important legal 
consequences. Collsultetlon with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification. 

Consultation with an aUomey is also 
encouraged with respect to 
professional Hcenslng requirements 
in the jurisdiction where the Project is 
located. 

AIA Document A141'" - 2014. CopyrightC 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reaerved. The "American Institute of Architects," "AIA.
lnll tl,e AIA L-::igo; and "AIA Contract Documents'- aro registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was producad by AIA &oftwBre at 

14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, Is not for resale, is licensed far one-time use only, and may only be UBed in 
accardance with the AIA Contract Documents«' Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail 00pyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1385848397) 

mailto:00pyright@aia.org
https://ir;~fd'.1s


TABLE OF ARTICLES 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2 COMPENSATION AND PROGRESS PAYMENTS 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE WORK OF THE DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT 

WORK PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 

WORK FOLLOWING EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 

6 CHANGES IN THE WORK 

OWNER'$ RESPONSIBILITIES 

TIME 

PAYMENT APPLICATIONS AND PROJECT COMPLETION 

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 

11 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 

12 COPYRIGHTS AND UCENSES 

13 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 

14 CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

15 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

16 SCQPE OF THE AGREEIIENT 

TABLE OF EXHIBITS 

A DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 

B INSURANCE AND BONDS 

C OWNER'S PROGRAM DOCUMENTS 

D COMPENSATION FOR WORK COMPLETED PRIOR TO DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 

ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§ 1.1 Ownei's Crltioria 
This Agreement is based on the Owner's Criteria set forth in this Section 1.1. 
(Note th'J d~spositionfor the following items by inserting the requested information or a statement such as "not 
applicable." or. "unknown at time ofexecution." //the Owner intends lo provide a set ofdesfgn documents, and the 
reque.sted.infonnation is contained In the design document.,, identijj, the design documents and insert "see Owner's 
desigr, ·docllffll!nts" where appropriate.) 

§ 1.1.1 The Owner's program for the Project: 
(Set forth the program, identify documentation in which the program is setforth, or state the manner in which the 
program will be developed.) 

A&Aoocuaent:A1'1""-2014. Cop>fright02004and2014tl'fTheAmtrtcanlnlCl1uteofArchiteda.AlrlghlafnefYad. The "AmericanlnstiltAeofArchlM:ts:•.t.lA.!nit. !he AIA Logo, and •AJA Contract Doo.,merits• ate rcgi!ltefed trademerks and may not be U!letf without J)6rmission. Thia document was produalld by AJA software at 214:24:21 ET on 03/2312022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02J00f2023, is not for resale, is licenaed for one.time use onty, and rTl9'f onty be used In 
accordance wilt, the AIA Contract Documents• Terms Df Service. To report copyright violations, e-maM copyrlght@ala.org. 
U&tr Notn: (1385848397) 

arc set forth in the Owner's Program Documents, Exhibit C 

§ 1.t2 The Owner's design requirements for the Project and related documentation: 
(ldentijj, below, or in an attached exhibit, the documentation that contains the Owner's design requirements, 
including any performance specifications for the Project.) 

are set forth in the Owner's Program Documents, Exhibit C 

§ 1.1.3 The Project's physical characteristics: 
(Identify or describe, ifappropriate, size, location, dimensions, or otherpertinent information, such as geotechnical 
reports; site, boundary and topographic surveys; trqfjlc and utility studies; availability ofpublic and private utilities 
and services; legal description ofthe site; etc.) 

are set forth in the Owners Program Documents, Exhibit C 

§ 1.1.4 The Owner's anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any: 
(ldentijj, rhe Owner's Sustainable Objective for the Project such as Sustainability Certification, benefit to the 
environment, enhancement to :the health and well-being ofbuilding occupants, or improvement ofenergy efficiency. If 
1he Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, incorporate AJA Document AJ4JTM_2014, Exhibit C, Su.Jtainable 
Projects, into this Agreement to define the terms, conditions and Work related to the Owner's Sustainable Objective.) 

Not applicable 

§ 1.1.5 lnccntive programs the Owner intends to pursue for the Project, including those related to the Sustainable 
Objective, and any deadlines for receiving the incentives that arc dependent on, or related to, the Design-Builder's 
services, are as follows: 
(Identify incentive programs the Owner intends to pursuefor the Project and deadlines for submitting or applying/or 
the incentive programs.) 

Not applicable 

§ 1.1.6 The Owner's budget for the Work to be provided by the Design-Builder is set forth below: 
(Provide ·total for Owner's budget, and Ifknow•. a line item breakdown ofcosu.J 

The Owner's budget for design and construction costs, including, but not limited to design fees, construction, 
supervisions, labor, materials, bonds and insurance is $1,880,000. This budget does not include pennit costs, fees and 
utility fees . 

f 1,1.7 The Owner's design and construction milestone dates: 

.1 Design phase milestone dates: 

Notice of Award, April 8, 2022 
Design Development Completed, May 5, 2022 
Construction Docwncnts Completed, June 2, 2022 
County Permits Issued, August 19, 2022 
Bidding Completed, September 8, 2022 

.2 Submission of Design-Builder Proposal: 

GMP Proposal, September 15, 2022 

.3 Phased completion dates: 

. 4 Substantial Completion date: 

AIA Document A1'1'" - 211'- Copyrighl 02004 and2014 ~ The American 6ndl&ltB of Archhcta. AR righta ""8Mld. The "Arnm::an Institute of An:N'.ects..• "AtA. • 
lnlt the AIA Logo, c1nd •AIA Contr?ld Or:,eoments• c1re regi,tered trademmtcs am:I may not be used without permission. TNs ~ wee produmd by AJA 90ftware at 

14:24:21 ET on 03/2312022 under Order No.2114287171 which explrnon 02J03.12023, Is not for resale, ls llcensedforone-tirne use only, and may ont, be used In 
aceordanoe with the AIA Contract Ooeumentst' Terms of Service. To report copyright violalions, •mail copyright@aia.org. 
Uaer NDl:H: (1365848397) 

3 

mailto:copyright@aia.org
mailto:copyrlght@ala.org
https://AmericanlnstiltAeofArchlM:ts:�.t.lA


Substantial Completion, January 27, 2023 

.5 Other milestone dates: 

Note that Bidding Completed, GMP Proposal and Substantial Completion dates are based on the 
"County Permits lssued 11 milestone date. Changes to that date may result in the need to revise the 
balance ofthe dates. 

§ 1.1.8 The Owner requires the Design-Builder to retain the following Architect, Consultants and Contractors at the 
Design-Builder's cost: 
(List name, legal status, address and other information.) 

.1 Architect 

PBK-WLC 
8163 Rochester Avenue, Suite 100 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 

.2 Consultants 

.3 Contractors 

§ 1.1.9 Additional Owner's Criteria upon which the Agreement is based: 
(Identify special characteristics or needs ofthe Project not identified elsewhere, such as historic preservation 
requirements.) 

The Design-Builder is required to comply with California Public Contract Code (Section 22 I 60, et. Seq.) and Labor 
Code (Section 1770, et. Seq.), including all consultants, subconsultants and subcontractors. The required compliance 
includes adhering to skilled and trained workforce provisions of California state law and California State regulations 
and adhering to prevailing wage payment and reporting requirements. 

The Design-Builder is required to post payment and performance bonds in the same amount. 

The Design-Builder is required to comply with Public Contract Code bidding and subcontracting requirements. 

Five percent retention is required and the Design-Builder may not require the retention of more than five percent in 
contracts with its subcontractors. 

§ 1.1.10 The Design-Builder shall confirm that the information included in the Owner's Criteria complies with 
applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders ofpublic authorities applicable to 
the Work and the Contract ("Applicable Laws"). 

§ 1.1.10.1 If the Owner's Criteria conflicts with Applicable Laws the Design-Builder shall notify the Owner of the 
conflict. 

§ 1.1.11 Ifthere is a change in the Owner's Criteria, the Owner and the Design-Builder shall execute a Modification in 
accordance with Article 6. 

§ 1.1.12 If the Owner and Design-Builder intend to transmit Instruments of Service or any other infonnation or 
documentation in digital form, they shall endeavor to establish necessary protocols governing such transmissions. 
Unless otherwise agreed, the parties will use AIA Document E203™-2013 to establish the protocols for the 
development, use, transmission, and exchange of digital data and building information modeling. 

§ 1.2 Project Team 
§ 1.2.1 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 7.1 .1: 
(List name, address and other information.) 

Robin and Joe Biglione 
Biglione Construction Management, Inc. 
5894 Ranch View Road 
Oceanside, CA 92057 

§ 1.2.2 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner's representative, who are required to review the 
Design-Builder's Submittals are as follows: 
(List name, address and other information.) 

NIA 

§ 1.2.3 The Ovvner will retain the fo11owing consultants and separate contractors: 
(List discipline, scope ofwork, and, ifknown. identify by name and address.) 

NIA 

§ 1.2.4 The Design-Builder identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 3.1.2: 
(List name, address and other information.) 

Nathan Complin 
Erickson-Hall Construction Co. 
500 Corporate Drive 
Escondido, CA 92029 

§ 1.2.5 Neither the Owner's nor the Design-Builder's representative shall be changed without ten days' written notice 
to the other party. 

§ 1.3 Binding Dispute Resolutlon 
For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation pursuant to Section 14.3, the method of binding dispute 
resolution shall be the following: 
(Check the appropriate box. Ifthe Owner and Design-Builder do not select a method ofbinding dispute resolution 
below, or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution other than litigation, Claims will be 
resolved by litigation in a court ofcompetent jurisdiction.) 

[ X ] Arbitration pursuantto Section I 4.4 

Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 

Other: (Specify) 

§ 1.4 Definitions 
§ 1.4.1 Design-Build Documents. The Design-Build Documents consist of this Agreement between Owner and 
Design-Builder and its attached Exhibits (hereinafter, the "Agreement"); other documents 1isted in this Agreement; 
and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement. A Modification is (1) a written amendment to the 
Contract signed by both parties, including the Design-Build Amendment, (2) a Change Order, or (3) a Change 
Directive. 

AIA Oocume-nt A141'" - 2014. Copyright O 2004 and 2014 by The American lnstHute of Architects. All rights reserved. Th1; "American Institute of Architects,' "AIA. AJA Document A141 • - 2014. Copyright C 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of ArchHects. All lights reserved. The 'American Institute or Ar~hltecls.· "AIA.-
lnlt. lnlt.the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contracl Document!" are registe~ed traciemarl<.s and may not be used without P9rmlss~n. This document was produced by AIA software at 4 

1-4:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, Is licensed for one-lime use onty, and may only be used In ~4\~~1L~o~~~~;;'~~~~~~~~~~:e~~~;;~;~~~~e;~~hd:;~:: :~~~~:t1~~~~;~t~:1~;:1:~~:~ :~:t=~=~~~!r:1n::~~:~:: ~~ S 
accordance wHh the AIA Contract Documents" Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@ala.org accordance wilh the AIA Conhact Documents«i Terms of Service. To report copyright vlofatlons, e-mail copyrighl@ala.org. 
U■ er Notes: (1365848397) Ut1er Notes: (1365848397) 

mailto:copyrighl@ala.org
mailto:copyright@ala.org


§ 1.4.2 The Contract The Design-Build Documents fonn the Contract. The Contract represents the entire and 
integrated agreement between the parties and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agn,ements, either 
written or oral. The Contract maybe amended or modified only by a Modification. The Design-Build Documents shall 
not be construed to create a contractual relationship ofany kind between any persons or entities other than the Owner 
and the Design-Builder. 

§ 1.4.3 The Work. The tenn 'Work' means the design, construction and related services required to fulfill the 
Design-Builder's obligations under the Design-Build Documents, whether completed or partially completed, and 
includes all labor, materials, equipment and services provided orto be provided by the Design-Builder. The Work may 
constitute the whole or apart of the Project. 

§ U.4 The Pto)ect. The Project is the total design and construction ofwhich the Work performed under the 
Design-Build Documents may be the whole or a part, and may include design and construction by the Owner and by 
separate contractors. 

§ 1.4.5 Instruments of Service. Instruments ofService are representations, in any medium of expression now known or 
later developed. oftlie tangible and intangible creative work performed by the Design-Builder, Contractor(s), 
Architect, and Consultant(s) under their respective agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without 
limitation, sfudies, surve)'s1 models, sketches, drawings, speci_fications, digital models and other similar materials. 

§ 1.4.6 Submittal. A Submittal is any submission to the Owner for review and approval demonstrating how the 
Desigll•Buiiderproposes to conform to the Design.Build Documents for those portions ofthe Work for which the 
Design-Build Documents require Submittals. Submittals include, but are not limited to, shop drawings, product data, 
and samples. Submittals arc not Design-Build Documents unless incorporated into a Modification. 

§ 1.4.7 <>\mer. The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the 
DeSign-Bqild Documents as ifsingular in number. The term "Owner" means the Owner or the Owner~s authorized 
representative. 

§ 1_4,8 Dellgn-Bulder. The Design-Builder is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to 
throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. The term ' Design-Builder' means the 
Design-Builder Of the .Design-Builder's authorized representative. 

§ 1.4.9 Consultant A Consultant is a person or entity providing professional services for the Design-Builder for all or 
a •porti'!" <if the Work, and 'is referred to throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. To the 
extent roquiied by the relevant jurisdiction, the Consultant shall be lawfuDy licensed to provide the required 
professtonal services. · 

§ 1.4.10 Architect. The Architect is a person or entity providing design services for the Design-Builder for all or a 
portion ofthe Work, and is iawfully licensed to practice architecture in the applicable jurisdiction. The Architect is 
referred to throughout the.Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. 

§ 1.4.11 Contractor. A Contractor is a person or entity performing all or a portion ofthe construction, required in 
connection with the Work, for the Design-Builder. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the 
jurisdiction where the Project is located. The Contractor is referred to throughout the Design-Build Documents as if 
singular in number and means a Contractor or an authorized representative ofthe Contractor. 

§ 1.4.12 Confidential lnfonnatlon. Confidential Information is information containing confidential or business 
proprietary infonnation that is clear]y marked as "confidcntiat." 

§.1.4.13 Contract Time. Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized 
adjustments; as set forth in the Design-Build Amendment for Substantial Completion ofthe Work. 

§ 1.4.14 Day. The term "day' as used in the Design-Build Documents shall mean calendar day, including weekdays, 
weekends, and holidays, unless otherwise specifically defmed. 

A1A Document A141•- 2014.CopyrighlC2004and201 ◄ byTheAmera1"1 ln1lllule al Architoc;t8. All rlghll reserved. The "Amorican ln~titute- ofArchl1ects,' "AIA. 
!nit. 

~:2~~;~~~~~~~~:;~;~~~~;:i:=::~~t::::=~~~~===:::i:.:=:~-:a":: 6 
mx:cxdancawnh tt,e AJA.Contract OoclJINll"lts9Term~of ~.To reportc:opyrighl 'iiolationa, e-mail copyright@ala.org . 
User Not.s: (1365848397) 

§ 1.4.15 Contract Sum. The Contract Sum is the amount to be paid to the Design-Builder for performance ofthe Work 
after execution ofthe Design-Build Amendment, as identified in Article A. l of the Design-Build Amendment. 

ARTICLE 2 COMPENSATION AND PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
§ 2.1 Compensation for Work Perfonned Prior To Execution of Design-Build Amendment 
§ 2.1.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for Work performed prior to Execution ofthe Design-Build Amendment 
shall be made monthly. For the Design-Builder's performance of Work prior to the execution ofthe Design-Build 
Amendment, the Owner shall compensate the Design-Builder as follows: 
(Insert amounl of, or basis for, compensation, including compensation for any Sustainability Services, or indicaJe the 
exhibit in which the information is provided. Ifthere will be a limir on the Iota/ amounr ofcompensationfor Work 
performed prior to the execution ofrhe Design-Build Amendment, state the amount ofthe limit.) 

The maximum compensation for Work performed prior to execution ofthe Design-Build Amendment is $502,980. 
Exhibit D includes a breakdown ofthe Compensation for Wotlt Completed Prior to Design-Build Amendment The 
Design-Builder shall submit a monthly invoice detailing the Work progress against the tasks set forth in Exhibit D. 

§ 2.1.2 The hourly billing rates for services ofthe Design-Builder and the Design,Builder's Architect, Consultants and 
Contractors, if any, are set forth below. 
(Ifapplicable, a/loch an exhibit ofhourly bllling rates or insert them below.) 

NIA 

Individual or Position Rate 

§ 2.1.3 Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses Prior To Execution o1 Design-Build Amendnwnt 
§ 2.1.3.1 All compensation forWotlt performed prior to execution ofDesign-Build Amendment is specif"oed in Exhibit 
D. Reimbursable· Expenses are in addition to compensation set forth in Section 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 and include expenses, 
directly related to the Project, incurred by the Design-Builder, and Design-Builder's Architect, Consultant, and 
Contractors, as follows: 
(Paragraphs deleted) 

1 Fee:, paid for securing approval ofauthorities having jurisdiction over the Project; 
(Paragraph deleted) 

2 Printing, reproductions, and plots; 
(Paragraphs deleted) · 

3 Other Project related expenditures, ifauthorized in advance by the Owner. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§2.1.3.2 For Reimbursable Expenses, the compensation shall be the expenses the Design Builder and the Design 
Builder's Architect, Consultants and Contractors incurred with no mark up. 
§ 2.1A Payments 10 Iha Design-Builder Prior To Execution of Design-Build Arnandment 
§ 2.1.4.1 Payments are due and payable upon presentation ofthe Design-Builder's invoice. 
(Paragraphs. deleted) 

§ 2.1.4.2 Records ofReimbursable Expenses and services performed on the basis ofhourly rates shall be available to 
the Owner at fflutually convenient times for a period of two years following execution ofthe Design-Build 
Amendment or tennination ofthis Agreement, whichever occurs first 

§ 2.2 Conlnlct Sum and Payment for Work Performed After Execution of Design-Build Amendment 
For the Design-Builder's performance ofthe Work after execution ofthe Design-Build Amendment, the Owner shall 
pay to the Design-Builder the Contract Sum in current funds as agreed in the Design-Build Amendment. 

ARTICLE 3 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE WORK Of THE DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT 
§ 3.1 General 
§ 3.1.1 The Design-Builder shall comply with any applicable licensing requirements in the State ofCalifornia. 

AIA Docwnent A.141'" - 2014. CopyrightC2004 end 201 ◄ by Thi American lnstiUeof Archilem. All t1gtrts raNrved, The 'American lnailu!e ofArchitect~,· 'AIA,lnlt. the AIA Logo, !.n<I "AJA Contract Documents' are regist.i,red tr~emarh and may llOt bl!! uM!d ¥1ilhout permls~ on. This doc:ument waa pn::iduced by Mt\ software at 
14;24;21 ET on 03/23.'2022 undMOrderNo.2114287171 whlchexpireson02/03l2023, 111 nat tor nnale. illloensedtor one-tine uu onty.andmayont,i be used in 
9CCOfdance with Ile AJA Conn.ct ~ Terms of Serrice. To report copyright violallorg, &-mal capyrighl@ala.org. 
UHr Noles: (1365848397) 

7 

mailto:capyrighl@ala.org
mailto:copyright@ala.org


§ 3.1.2 The Design-Builder shall designate in writing a representative who is authorized to act on the Design-Builder's 
behalf with respect to !be Project. 

§ 3.1.3 The Design-Builder shall pcrfonn the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. The 
Design-Builder shall not be relieved of the obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Design-Build 
Documents by the activities, tests, inspections or approvals of the Owner. All Work shall be performed in a 
professional manner and Design-Builder shall employ methods that are generally accepted and used within the 
industry, and in accordance with industry standards. 

§ 3.1.3.1 The Design-Builder shall perfonn the Work in compliance with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities. Ir the Design-Builder performs Work contrary to 
applicable laws, statutes., ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders ofpublic authorities, the 
Design-Builder shall assume responsibility for such Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction. 

§ 3.1.3.2 Neither the Design-Builder nor any Contractor, Consultant, or Architect shall be obligated to perform any act 
which they believe will violate any applicable Jaws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders 
ofpublic authorities. lfthe Design-Builder determines that implementation of any instruction received from the 
Owner, including those in the Owner' s Criteria, would cause a violation of any applicable Jaws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Design-Builder shall notify the Owner in 
writing. Upon verification by the Owner that a change to the Owner's Criteria is required to remedy the violation, the 
Owner and the Design-Builder shall execute a Modification in accordance with Article 6. 

§ 3.1.4 The Design-Builder shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Design-Builder's 
employees, Architect, Consultants, Contractors, and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities 
performing portions ofthe Work. 

§ 3.1.5 General Consultation. No less than once a month, Design-Builder shall schedule and conduct periodic meetings 
with the Owner to review matters such as procedures, progress, coordinatio"9 and scheduling of the Work. The 
Design-Builder shall prepare and distribute minutes for the meetings to the attendees. 

§ 3.1.6 When applicable law requires that services be performed by licensed professionals, the Design-Builder shall 
provide those services through qunlifie~ licensed professionals. The Owner understands and agrees that the services 
of the Design-Builder's Architect and the Design-Builder's other Consultants are perfonned in the sole interest of, and 
for the exclusive benefit of, the Design-Builder. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, each agreement with 
Design-Builder's Architect, Consultants, and Contractors shall provide that Owner is and shall be a third-party 
beneficiary ofsuch contract or subcontract, and that the Owner shall have the right, but not the obligation, to assert 
claims directly against the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors for breach of contract or warranties, negligence, 
and other claims arising out of, or related to, the Work or the Project. 

§ 3.1.7 The Design-Builder, with the assistance of the Owner, shall prepare and file documents required to obtain 
necessary approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 

§ 3.1.B Progress RepQl1s 
§ 3.1 .B.1 The Design-Buildet shall keep the Owner informed oflhe progress and quality of the Work. On a monthly 
basis, or otherwise as agreed to by the Owner and Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall submit written progress 
reports to the Owner, showing estimated percentages of completion and other infonnation identified below: 

.1 Work completed for the period; 

.2 Project schedule status; 

.3 Submittal schedule and status report, including a summary of outstanding Submittals; 

.4 Responses to requests for information to be provided by the Owner; 

.5 Approved Change Orders and Change Directives; 

.6 Pending Change Order and Change Directive status reports; 

.7 Tests and inspection reports; 

.B Status repon of Work rejected by the Owner; 

.9 Status of Claims previously submitted in accordance with Article 14; 

.10 Cumulative total of the Cost of the Work to date including the Design-Builder's compensation and 
Reimbursable Expenses, if any; 

.11 Curren! Project cash-flow and forecast reports; and 

.12 Additional information as agreed to by the Owner and Design-Builder . 

§ 3.1.B.2 In addition, where the Contract Sum is the Cost of the Work with or without a Guaranteed Maximum Price, 
the Design-Builder shall include the following additional information in its progress reports: 

.1 Design-Builder's work force report; 

.2 Equipment utilization report; and 

.3 Cost summary, comparing actual costs to updated cost estimates . 

§ 3.1.9 Deslgn-Bullde~s Schedules 
§ 3.1.9.1 The Design-Builder, promptly after execution ofthis Agreement, shall prepare and submit for the Owner's 
information a schedule for the Work. The schedule, including the time required for design and construction, shall not 
exceed time limits current under the Design-Build Documents, shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by 
the conditions ofthe Work and Project, shall be related to the entire Project to the extent required by the Design-Build 
Documents, sha11 provide for expeditious and practicab]e execution of the Work, and shall include allowances for 
periods of time required for the Owner's review and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction 
over the Project. 

§ 3.1.9.2 The Design-Builder shall perfonn the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted 
to the Owner. 

§ 3.1.10 Certifications. Upon the Owner's written request, the Design-Builder shall obtain from the Architect, 
Consult.ants, and Contractors, and furnish to the Owner, certifications with respect to the documents and services 
provided by the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors (a) that, to the best oftheir knowledge, information and belief, 
the documents or services to which the certifications relate (i) are consistent with the Design-Build Documents, except 
to the extent specifically identified in the certificate, and (ii) comply with applicable Jaws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, or lawful orders ofpublic authorities governing the design ofthe Project; and (b) that the Owner 
and its consultants shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy ofthe representations and statements contained in the 
certifications. The Design-Builder's Architect, Consultants, and Contractors shall not be required to execute 
certificates or consents that would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of their services. 

§ 3.1.11 Design-Builder's Submlttals 
§ 3.1.11.1 Prior to submission ofany Submittal,, the Design-Builder shall prepare a Submittal schedule, and shall 
submit the schedule for the Owner's approval. The Owner's approval shall not unreasonably be delayed or withheld. 
The Submittal schedule shall (I) be coordinated with the Design-Builder's schedule provided in Section 3.1.9.1, 
(2) allow the Owner reasonable time to review Submittals, and (3) be periodically updated to reflect the progress of 
the Work. Jfthe Design-Builder fails to submit a Submittal schedule, the Design-Builder shall not be entitled to any 
increase in Contract Sum or extensioo of Contract Time based on the time required for review of Submittals. 

§ 3.1.11.2 By providing Submittals the Design-Builder represents to the Owner that it has (l) reviewed and approved 
them, (2) detennined and verified materials, field measurements and field constructioo criteria related thereto, or will 
do so and (3) checked and coordinated the infonnation contained within such Submittals with the requirements ofthe 
Work and of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 3.1.11 .3 The Design-Builder shall pcrfonn no ponion ofthe Work for which the Design-Build Documents require 
Submittal, until the Owner has approved the respective Submittal. 

§ 3.1.11.4 The Work shall be in accordance with approved Submittals except thatthe Design-Builder shall not be 
relieved of its responsibility to pcrfonn the Work consistent with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 
The Work may deviate ftom the Design-Build Documents only ifthe Design-Builder has notified the Owner in writing 
ofa deviation ftom the Design-Build Documents at the time of the Submittal and a Modification is executed 
authorizing the identified deviation. The Design-Builder shall not be relieved ofresponsibility for errors or omissions 
in Submittals by the Owner's approval of the Submittals. 

§ 3.1.11.5 All professional design services or certifications to be provided by the Design-Builder, including all 
drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, shop drawings and other Submittals, shall contain the signature 
and seal of the licensed design professional preparing them. Submittals related to the Work designed or certified by !he 

AIA Docurn■ nt A141"" -2014. Copyright C 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of ArchilM:ts. All rights rt1Hrved. The "American Institute of Architecls." "AIA: AIA Docum11nt A141 • - 2014. Copyright 02004 and 2014 by The American lnltllute of Architect1 . All righla reserved. The •American lnslltute of Architects." "AIA: lnlt. lnllf,t:i1~:~~;;~:e~:1re~~~;;~~;~~~e;::d::,~;:: :~~~~~~I~: ::~:~::11::J~~~:==~ed~:~=f~ 8 r~~:~1L~~~~~~~;~~~~:e:~~~;~;~e;~hd:~:::: ~~~k~t~=:=:~~=-~:::.=.n1u:-~~.u,,~: :~~=~: 
accordance with the AIA Contract Document.8' Tenns of Service. To N!!port copyright violations, e-mail copyrlghl@11la.0fg. aecordaocf!I wi1h the AJA Conlrad Documents• Terms of Service. To report oopyrighl violalfona, Hnail copyrigt,f@aia.DfD. 
U..r NatN: (1385848397) UMr Notn: (1385848397) 

9 

mailto:copyrigt,f@aia.DfD
mailto:copyrlghl@11la.0fg


licensed design professionals, ifprepared by others, shall bear the licensed design professional's written approval. The 
Owner and its consultants shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, 
certifications or approvals perfonned by such design professionals. 

§ 3,1,12 Warranty, The Design-Builder warrants to the Owner that materials and equipment furnished under the 
Contract will be ofgood quality and new unless the Design-Build Documents require or permit otherwise. The Owner 
has requested that the Design-Builder include modulartrailm purchased by Owner, which are in used condition. 
Owner agrees that Design-Builder is not responsible for warranties related to the modular trailers. 

The Design-Builder further warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Design-Build Documents 
and will be free from defects and that all materials selected by Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, and Contractors 
will be suitable for the purposes indicated in the Design-Build Documents. Work, materiaJs, or equipment not 
conforming to.tbese requirements may be considered defective. Ifrequired by Owner, the Design-Builder shall furnish 
satisfactory evidence$ to the kind and quality ofmaterials and equipment sourced for the Project. Design-Builder 
shall prompdy remove from the premises and replace all defective materials and equipment as determined by the 
Owner, whether incorporated in the Work or not. The allocatjon of the cost and expense for the removal or 
replacement ofdefective materials and equipment shall be detennined in good faith by the Owner and Design-Builder 
prior to repairing all Work, including the cost of repairing all Work destroyed or damaged by such removal or 
replacement. 

The Design-Builder's warranty excludes remedy for damage or defect caused by: (I) abuse of or alterations to the 
Work not executed by the Design-Builder or a party under ilS supervision of control; (2) improper or insuffkient 
maintenance and improper operation by Owner; or, (3) normal wear and tear and nonnal usage. 

§ 3.1 .13 Royallle8, Pate,,ts and Copyrights 
§ 3.1.13,1 The Design-Builder shall pay all royalties and license fees. 

§ 3.1.13.2 The Design-Builder shall defend suits or claims for infringement of copyrights and patent rights and shall 
hold the °""'.Jler and its separate contractors and consultants hannlcss from loss on account thereof, but shall not be 
responsible for such defense or loss when a particular design, process or product of a particular manufacturer or 
manufacturers is required by the Owner1 or where the copyright violations are required in the Owner's Criteria. 
Howe,,er, ifihe Design-Builder has season to believe that the design, process or product required in the Owner's 

·Criteria is mi infringement ofa copyrigbfor a patent, the Design-Builder shall be responsible for such Joss unless such 
information. is promptly fumislied to \h• Owner. If the Owner receives notice from a patent or copyright owner of an 
alleged violation of a patent or copyright, attributable to the Design-Builder, the Owner shall give prompt written 
notii;e.to the Design-Builder. 

§ 3.1.14 lndemnlflcatlon 
§ 3.1.14:1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Design-Builder shall indemnify, hold harmless, defend and 
reimburse the Owner and the members, agents, employees, officers, directors, and successors ofany ofthem, from, for 
and against any and all suits, actions, awards, penahies, liabilities, claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but 
not limited to attorneys' fees and expert witness' fees, arising out ofor resulting from performance of the Wortc, 
whether directly incurred or resulting from third-party claims, but only to the extent caused by: (I) the negligent acts 
or omissions ofthe Design-Builder, Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or (2) the failure of Design-Builder, 
Architect, Consultant, Contractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they 
may be liable, to perfonn in accordance with the Contract. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or 
reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this 
Section 3.1.14. 

§ 3.1.14.2 The indemnification obligation under this Section 3.1.14 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or 
type ofdamages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Design-Builder, Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or 
anyone di"rectly or indirect:Jy employed by them, under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other 
employee benefit acts. 

§ 3.1.15 Contingent Assignment of Agreements 
§ 3.1.15.1 Each agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Design-Builder to the Owner, provided that 

MA Ooc:umentA141•-2014.Copvright02004 and201 ◄ by The:Americ:iln fflttlMedArchfted:t.AI righta~ Tht;, •Americao lnatituteofArchltects,; "AIA."!nit. 
~◄et~~~r:~::..~~;~~;~;~;~=:r:::..nd~~t~=:=~~Th,!~~.:~=: 10 
accordance with lhe AJA Conlracl Document, Terma fJf S9Mca. To repo,t copyright violations, e-mail oopyright@ala.org. 
User Notn,: (1385848397) 

, 1 assignment is effective only after tennination of the Contract by the Owner for cause, pursuant to 
Sections 13.1.4 or 13.2.2, and only for those agreements that the Owner accepts by written notification 
to the Design-Builder and the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors whose agreements are accepted 
for assignment; and 

.2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the 
Contract. 

When the Owner accepts the assignment of an agreement, the Owner assumes the Design-Builder's rights and 
obligations under the agreement, except that the assumption of obligations under the agreement does not release 
Design-Builder from liability for damages attributable to breaches of the agreement. 

§ 3.1.15.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the compensation under the 
assigned agreement shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension. 

§ 3.1.15.3 Upon such assi~ent to the Owner under this Section 3.1.15, the Owner may further assign the agreement 
to a successor design-builder or other entity. If the Owner assigns the agreement to a successor design-builder or othec 
entity, the Owner snail nevertheless remain -legally responsible for all of the successor design-builder's or other 
entity's obligations under the agreement. 

§ 3.1.16 Design-Builde~s Insurance and Bonds. The Design-Builder shall purchase and maintain insurance and 
provide bonds as set forth in Exhibit B. 

ARTICLE 4 WORK PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 
§ 4.1 General 
§. 4.1.1 Any information submitted by the Design-Builder, and any interim deeisions made by the Owner, shall be for 
the purpose of facilitating the <,lesign process and shall not modify the Owner'• Criteria unless the Owner and 
Design·-Builder execute a Modification. 

§ 4.1.2 The Design-Builder shall advise the Owner on proposed site use and improvements, selection ofmaterials, and 
building systems and equipment. The Design-Builder shall also provide the Owner with recommendations, consistent 
with the Owner's Criteria, on constructability; availability ofmaterials and labor; time requirements for procurement, 
installation and oonstruction; and factors -related to construction cost including, but not limited to, costs of alternative 
designs or materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and possible cost reductions. 

§ 4.2 Evaluation of tile OWner's Crtteria 
§ 4,2,1 The Design-Builder shall schedule and _conduct meetings with the Owner and any other necessary individuals 
or entities to discuss and review the Owner's Criteria as set forth in Section I .I. The Design-Builder shall thereafter 
againmeet with the Owner to discuss a preliminary evaluation of the Owner's Criteria. The preliminary evaluation 
sball address possible alternative. approaches to design and construction of the Project and include the 
De&ign-Builder's recommendations, if any, with regard to accelerated or fast-track scheduling, procurement, or 
phased construction. The preliminary evaluatioo shall consider cost information, constructability, and procurement 
and construction scheduling iSSues. 

§ 4.2.2 After the Design-Builder meets with the Owner and presents the preliminary evaluation, the Design-Builder 
shall provide a written report to the Owner, summarizing the Design:.BuiJder's evaluation ofthe Owner"s Criteria. The 
report shall also include 

.1 allocations ofprogram functions. detailing each function and their square foot areas; 

.2 a preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work, and, if necessary. recommendations to adjust the 
Owner's Criteria to conform to the Owner's budget; 

.3 a preliminary schedule, which shall include proposed design milestones; dates for receiving additional 
information from, or for work to be completed by, the Owner; anticipated date for the Design-Builder's 
Proposal; end dates ofperiodic design review sessions with the Owner; and 

.4 the following: 
(List additional information, ifany, to be included in the Design-Builder's written report.) 

NIA 

AJA Ooc\rtnertt A1'1 • - 201,. Copyright C2004 and 2014 by The Amartcarl lnlthJte of An:htt.cll. All rights naserved. The "American lmtilute of Archlted~' "AlA."
lni ~t~~~~~~=e~=:.;~~;i~~~=:n~:~r~===:-=~i:==:.au:m:=,:~ 

accordance with the AIA Contract Documents• Terms ol SerYice. To report oopyrtght vlolallons, e-mal copyrtghl@aia.org. 
user Notes: (1365848397) 

11 

mailto:copyrtghl@aia.org
mailto:oopyright@ala.org
https://fflttlMedArchfted:t.AI
https://notii;e.to


§ 4.2.3 The Owner shall review the Design-Builder's written report and, if acceptable, provide the Design-Builder 
with written consent to proceed to the development ofthe Preliminary Design as described in Section 4.3. The consent 
to proceed shall not be understood to modify the Owner's Criteria unless the Owner and Design-Bui]der execute a 
Modification. 

§ 4.3 Preliminary Design 
§ 4.3.1 Upon the Owner's issuance of a written consent to proceed under Section 4.2.3, the Design-Builder shall 
prepare and submit a Preliminary Design to-the Owner. The Preliminary Design shall include a report identifying any 
deviations from the Owner's Criteria, and shall include the fo11owing: 

.1 Confirmation of the allocations of program functions; 

.2 Site plan; 

.3 Building plans, sections and elevations; 

.4 Structural system; 

.5 Selections ofmajor building systems, including but not limited to mechanical, electrical and plumbing 
systems; and 

.6 Outline specifications or sufficient drawing notes describing construction materials. 

The Preliminary Design may include some combination of physical study models. perspective sketches, or digital 
modeling. 

§ 4.3.2 The Owner shall review the Preliminary Design and, if acceptable, provide the Design-Builder with written 
consent to proceed to development of the Construction Drawings. The Preliminary Design shall not modify the 
Owner's Criteria unless the Omier and Design-Builder execute a Modification. 

§ 4.4 Construction Documents 
§ 4.4.1 Upon 
(Paragraphs deleted) 
approval of the Preliminary Design, the Design-Builder shall prepare Construction Documents. The Construction 
Documents shall establish the quality levels of materials and systems required. The Construction Documents shall be 
consistent with the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 4.4.2 The Design-Builder shall provide the Construction Documents to the Owner for the Owner's information. If 
the Owner discovers any deviations between the Construction Documents and the Design-Build Documents, the 
Owner shall promptly notify the Design-Builder of such deviations in writing. The Construction Documents shall not 
modify the Design-Build Documents unless the Owner and Design-Builder execute a Modification. The failure of the 
Owner to discover any such deviations shall not relieve the Design-Builder of the obligation to perform the Work in 
accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 

4.5 Deslgn-BuUder's Proposal 
(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 4.5.1 Upon the Owner's issuance of a written consent to proceed, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit the 
Design-Builder's Proposal to the Owner. The Owner's written consent to proceed with the Design-Builder's Proposal 
may occur prior to the completion ofthe Construction Documents, provided the timing is mutually agreed upon by the 
Owner and the Design-Builder. The Design-Builder's Proposal shall include the following: 

.1 A list of the Preliminary Design documents and other infonnation, including the Design-Builder's 
clarifications, assumptions and deviations from the Owner's Criteria, upon which the Design-Builder's 
Proposal is based; 

.2 The proposed Contract Sum, including the compensation method and, ifbased upon the Cost of the 
Work plus a fee, a written statement of estimated cost organized by trade categories, allowances, 
contingencies, Design-Builder's Fee, and other items that comprise the Contract Sum; 

.3 The proposed date the Design-Builder shall achieve Substantial Completion; 
.4 An enumeration of any qualifications and exclusions, if applicable; 
.5 A list ofthe Design-Builder's key personnel, Contractors and suppliers; and 
.6 The date on which the Design-Builder's Proposal expires. 

§ 4.5.2 Submission of the Design-Builder's Proposal shall constitute a representation by the Design-Builder that it has 
visited the site and become familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be completed. 

§ 4.5.3 If the Owner and Design-Builder agree on a proposal, the Owner and Design-Builder shall execute the 
Design-Build Amendment setting forth the terms oftheir agreement. 

ARTICLE 5 WORK FOLLOWING EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 
(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.1 Construction 
§ 5.1. 1 Commencement. Except as permitted in Section 5.1.2, construction shall not commence prior to execution of 
the Design-Build Amendment and Owner's approval of the Construction Documents. 

§ 5.1.2 lfthe Owner and Design-Builder agree in writing, construction may proceed prior to the execution ofthe 
Design-Build Amendment. However, such authorization sha11 not waive the Owner's right to reject the 
Design-Builder.,s Proposal or otherwise limit Owner's rights and remedies under this Contract. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.1.3 The Design-Builder shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Design-Builder's best skill and attention. 
The Design-Builder shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless the Design-Build 
Docwnents give other specific instructions concerning these matters. 

§ 5.1.4 The Design-Builder shall be responsible for inspection ofportions of Work already performed to determine 
that such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work. Design-Builder shall notify Owner in writing, 
before commencement ofany portion of the Work, of any defect, deficiency, or incompatibility of any portion of the 
Project performed by others, which defect, deficiency, or incompatibility would in any manner affect the performance 
or quality of the Work. The failure to notify Owner shall preclude Design-Builder from any claim, which otherwise 
may have been available tmder this Contract for additional compensation, damages, or extension of time. 

§ 5.2 labor and Materials 
§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall provide and pay for labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other 
facilities and services, necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent, 
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work. 

§ 5.2.2 When a material or system is specified in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder may make 
substitutions only in accordance with Article 6. 

§ 5.2.3 The Design-Builder shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Design-Builder's employees and 
other persons carrying out the Work. The Design-Builder shall not permit employment ofunfit persons OT persons not 
properly skilled in tasks assigned to them. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.3 Taxes 
The Design-Builder shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes, for the Work provided by the Design-Builder, 
that are lega1ly enacted when the Design-Build Amendment is executed, whether or not yet effective OT merely 
schedu1ed to go into effect. 

§ 5.4 Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws 
§ 5.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall secure and the Owner 
shall pay for the building permit as well as any other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies, 
necessary for proper execution of the Work and Substantial Completion of the Project. 

§ 5.4.2 The Design~Builder shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders ofpublic authorities, applicable to performance of the Work. 

AIA Document A1.t1'" - 201.t. Copyright Cl 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Archilects. Al! rights reserved. The ··American Institute of Architects • "AIA. • AIA Document A141'" - 2014. Copyright C 2004 and 2014 by The American lnstll:ule of Architects. All rights reserved. The ~American Institute or Architects,' 'AIA.-
lnlt. lnlt.

the AIA Lo~o, and "AIA Contract Documents" .ire registered trademarks and mc1y not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software et 12 
14:24:21 ET on 0312312022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, Is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may onty be used In ;~~2~~1L~f~~n0d3;:~~;;~~~~~~:e~~;~~~;i~W:!11:,d:;~!:!~~=~~t~=:~1~:r:,;;,~~~~~~~::=::::~~~a~~~:~~=~: 13 
accordance with the AtA Contract Documents• Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@ala.org. accordance with the AIA Contract Documents11 Terms of SelViee. To ,eport copyright vlolellon!!, e-mail copyright@ala.org. 
U ■ er Note■: User Notes: (1365848397)(1365848397) 

mailto:copyright@ala.org
mailto:copyright@ala.org


§ 5.4.3 Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If the Design-Builder encounters conditions at the site that are 
(I) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical cooditions that differ materially from those indicated in the 
Design-Build Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature that differ materially from those 
ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities ofthe character provided for in 
the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall promptly provide notice to the Owner before conditions are 
disturbed and in no event later than 21 days after first observance of the conditions. The Owner shall promptly 
investi@;ate such conditions and, if the Owner determines that they differ materialJy and cause an increase or decrease 
in the Design-Builder's cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, sn'a.11 recommend an 
equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. Ifthe Owner determines that the conditions at the 
site are not materially different from those indicated in the Design-Build Documents and that no change in the terms of 
the Contract is justified, tile Owner shall promptly notify the Design-Builder in writing, stating the reasons. If the 
Design-BuilderdispQt~s·the Owner's determination or recommendation, the Design-Bui]der may proceed as provided 
in Article 14. 

§ 5.4.4 If, in the course ofthe Work, the Design-Builder encounters human remains, or recognizes the existence of 
burial n,arkers, archaeoJogical sites, or wetlands, not indicated in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder 
shall immediately suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner. Upon receipt of such 
notice, ·the Owner shall .promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume 
the operations. The Design-Builder shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner 
but sliall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the 
Contract-Sum and CoiitraetTime arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in 
Article 14. 

§ 5.5 Allowances 
§ 5.5.1 The Design-Builder' shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Design-Build Documents. 
Items covered by illowances shall be supplied for such amounts, and by such persons or entities as the Owner may 
direct, but the Design-Builder shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Design-Builder has 
reasonable objection. 

§ 5.5.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, 
.1 allowances shall cover the cost to the Design-Builder of materials and equipment delivered at the site 

and all requited taxes, less applicable trade discounts; 
.2 the DesiK11•Builder's costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, 

profit, arid other experlses contemplated for stated allowance amounts, shalJ be included in the Contract 
Sum but' not in the alfowances; and 

.3 whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly 
by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (I) the difference between actual costs 
and the all.owances under Section 5.6.2. l and (2) changes in Design-Builder's costs under 
Section.5.6.2.2. 

§ 5.5.3 The Owner shall mill\e selections ofmaterials and equipment with reasonable promptness for allowances 
requiring Owner selection. 

(Paragrpplu deleted) 
§ 5.6 Kiy Pe11orinal, Conlractors and Suppliers 
§ 56..1 TheDesign-Builder shall not employ personnel, or contract with Contractors or suppliers to whom the Owner 
has made reasonable and timely objection. The Design-Builder shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom 
the Design-Builder has made reasooable and timely objection. 

§ 5.6.2 
(Paragraphs deleted) 
Jfthe Design-Builder changes any of the personnel, Contractors or suppliers identified in the Design-Build 
Amendment, .~ Design-Builder shall notify the Owner and provide the name and qualifications ofthe new personnel, 
Contractor or supplier. The Owner may reply within 14 days to the Design-Builder in writing, stating (l) whether the 
Owner has reasonable objection to the proposed personnel, Contractor or supplier or (2) that the Owner requires 
additional time to review. Failure ofthe Owner to reply within the 14-day period shall constitute notice ofno 
reasonable objection. 

AIA Documant A141• - 2014, Copyright C2004 and 2014 by The Amlrlcan Institute of Architects. Alf rigtlts reaerv.d. Tho 'American lrnititute of Arc:hRCts," 'AIA," lnlt. the AIA LOQO, and "AIA COfltracl Oocunienu• al'fJ registered ttademarks and may not be used withOUI pi,r~n. This docl..ment- pruduc;ed by AIA aoltware at 14 
14:24:21 ET on 03l23f2022 underOrdef No211"'287171 whieh~rMon 02/0312023, is not for resale, is ricenuc1 for OM-time use only, and may <1nt;" beur.ed In 
accc,dal'\Cewtth the AIA Contract Docurnenb9Ta""111 d 5fifvice. To report 009Vrlght vlofationt , e-maif copyrigf1l@Ala.org. 
U..r NotN: (1385848397) 

§ 5.6.3 Except for those persons or entities already identified or required in the Design-Build Amendment, the 
Design-Builder, as soon as practicable after execution of the Design-Build Amendment, shall furnish in writing to the 
Owner the names ofpersons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a 
special design) proposed for each principal portion ofthe Work. The Owner may reply within 14 days to the 
Design-Builder in writing stating ( I ) whether the Owner has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or 
entity or (2) that the Owner requires additional time for review. Failure of the Owner to reply within the 14-day period 
shaJI constitute notice of no reasonable objection. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.6.3.1 lftbe Owner has reasonable objection to a pers<>n or entity proposed by the Design-Builder, the 
Design-Builder shall propose another to whom the Owner has no reasonable objection. If the rejected person or entity 
was reasonably capable ofperforming the Work, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be increased or decreased 
by the difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued before 
commencement of.the Sl,lbstitute person or entity's Woric. However, no increase in the Contract Sum or Contract Time 
shall be allowed for such change unless the Design-Builder has acted promptly and responsively in submitting names 
as required. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.7 Documants and .Submlllaf9 at the Site 
The Design-Builder shall maintain at the site for the Owner one copy ofthe Design-Build Documents and a current set 
of the Construction Documents, in good order and marlced currently to indicate field changes and selections made 
during construction, and one copy of approved Submittals. The Design-Builder shall deliver these items to the Owner 
in accordance with Section 9.10.2 as a record ofthe Work as constructed. 

§ 5.8 Use of Site 
The Design-Builder shall confine operations-at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regula!ions; lawful orders ofpublic authorities, and the Design-Build Documents, and shall not 
unreasonably encumber the site with materials or equipment. 

(P.aragraph deleted) 
§ s,11 Cutting and Patching 
The Design-Buildeo shall not cut, patch or otherwise alter fully or partially completed construction by the Owner or a 
separate contractor except with"'Written consent of the Owner and of such separate contractor; such consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. The Design-Builder shall not unreasonably withhold from the Owner or a separate contractor 
the Design-Builder's consent to cutting or otherwise altering the Work. 

§ 5.10 Cleaning Up 
(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.10.1 The Design-Builder shall keep the premises and surrounding area free frem accumulation ofwaste materials 
or rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion ofthe Work, the Design-Builder shall remove 
waste materials, rubbish; the ·Design-Builder's tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials from 
and about lhe Project. 

§ 5.10.2 If the Design-Builder fails to clean up as provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Owner may do so and 
Owner shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Design-Builder. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.11 Access to Worl< 
The Design-Builder shall provide the Owner and its separate contractors and consultants access to the Wori< in 
preparation and progress wherever located. The Design-Builder shall notify the Owner regarding Project safety 
criteria and programs, which the Owner, and its contractors and consultants, shall comply with while at the site. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 

AIA Document A141 .. - 2014. Copyr1gt,t Cl 2004 and 201 ◄ br The American lnstlutt of Architects, All rightl rnen,ed, The "American Institute of Archllecls: "AIA.-
lnlt. 

if::2~~~~~~~~~;:.:,~;~;~~~~;==:~=~=:=:.:,~~r:=~i::,=:: 15 
KCOrdance wi:tl theAIA Conhc:t DocumentsC Tenns of semce. To report copyright violations, e-fflal oopyrlght@aia.org.
U-_, (1365""8397) 

mailto:oopyrlght@aia.org
mailto:copyrigf1l@Ala.org


§ 5.12 Construction by Owner or by Separate Contractors 
§ 5.12.1 Owner's Righi lo Perform Construction and lo Award Separate Contracts 
§ 5.12.1.1 The Owner reserves the rightto perfonn construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner's 
own forces; and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions ofthe Project, or other construction or 
operations on the site, under terms and conditions identical or substantially similar to this Contract, including those 
tenns and conditions related to insurance and waiver ofsubrogation. The Owner shall notify the Design Builder 
promptly after execution ofany separate contract. If the Design-Builder claims that delay or additional cost is involved 
because of such action by the Owner, the Design-Builder shall make a Claim as provided in Article 14. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.12.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations 
on the site. the term "Design-Builder" in the Design-Build Documents in each case shall mean the individual or entity 
that executes each separate agreement with the Owner. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.12.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination ofthe activities of the Owner's own forces, and of each separate 
contractor, with the Work ofthe Design-Builder, who shall cooperate with them. The Design-Builder shall participate 
with other separate contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedu]es. The Design-BuiJder sha11 
make any revisions to the construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The 
construction schedules shall tben constitute the schedules to be used by the Design-Builder, separate contractors and 
the Owner until subsequently revised. 

§ 5.12.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, when the Owner performs construction or 
operations related to the Project with the Owner's own forces or separate contractors, the Owner shall be deemed to be 
subject to the same obligations, and to have the same rights, that apply to the Design-Builder under the Contract. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.13 Mutual Responslblllly 
(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.13.1 The Design-Builder shall afford the Owner and separate contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction 
and storage oftheir materials and equipment and perfonnance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the 
Design-Builder's construction and operations with theirs as required by the Design-Build Documents. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.13.2 Ifpart ofthe Design-Builder's Work depends upon construction or operations by the Owner or a separate 
contractor, the Design-Builder shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, prepare a written report to the 
Owner, identifying apparent discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner Or separate 
contractor that would render it unsuitable for proper execution and results of the Design-Builder's Work. Failure ofthe 
Design-Builder to report shall constitute an acknowledgment that the Owner's or separate contractor~s completed or 
partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the Design-Builder's Work, except as to defects not then 
reasonably discoverable. 

(Paragraphs dele1ed) 
§ 5.13.3 The Design-Builder shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a separate 
contractor because of the Design-Builder's delays, improperly timed activities or defective construction. The Owner 
shall be responsible to the Design-Builder for costs the Design-Builder incurs because of a separate contractor's 
delays, improperly timed activities, damage to the Work or defective construction. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.13.4 The Design-Builder shall promptly remedy damage the Design-Builder wrongfully causes to completed or 
partially completed construction or to property of the Owner or separate contractors as provided in Section I0.2.S. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.13.5 The Owner and each separate contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching the 
Work as the Design-Builder has with respect to the construction ofthe OMler or separate contractors in Section 5. J0. 

§ 5.14 Owner's Right to Clean Up 
If a dispute arises among the Design-Builder, separate contractors and the Owner as to the responsibility under their 
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the 
Owner may clean up and will allocate the cost among those responsible. 

ARTICLE 6 CHANGES IN THE WORK 
§ 6.1 General 
§ 6.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the 
Contract, by Change Order or Change Directive, subject to the limitations stated in this Article 6 and elsewhere in the 
Design-Build Documents. 

§ 6.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement between the Owner and Design-Builder. The Owner may issue 
a Change Directive without agreement by the Design-Builder. 

§ 6.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be perfonned under applicable provisions of the Design-Build Documents, and the 
Design-Builder shall proceed promptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order or Change Directive. 

§ 6.2 Change Orders 
A Change Order is a written instrument signed by the Owner and Design-Builder stating their agreement upon all of 
the following: 

. 1 The change in the Work; 

.2 The amount ofthe adjustment, ifany, in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder's compensation; and 

.3 The extent of the adjustment, ifany, in the Contract Time . 

§ 6.3 Change Directives 
§ 6.3.1 A Change Directive is a written order signed by the Owner directing a change in the Work prior to agreement 
on adjustment, ifany, in the Contract Sum or, ifprior to execution ofthe Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in 
the Design-Builder's compensation, or Contract Time. The Owner may by Change Directive, without invalidating the 
Contract, order cbanges in the Work within the general scope ofthe Con1I11ct consisting ofadditions, deletions or other 
revisions, the Contract Sum or, ifprior to execution ofthe Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the 
Design-Builder's compensation, and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly . 

§ 6,3.2 A Change Directive shall be used in the abseoce of total agreement on the terms of a Change Order. 

§ 6.3.3 lfthe Change Directive provides for an adjustment tu the Contract Sum or, ifprior to execution of the 
Design-Build Amendment, an adjustment in the Design-Builder's compensation, the adjustment shall be based on one 
of the following methods: 

. 1 Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to 
permit evaluation; 

. 2 Unit prices stated in the Design-Build Documents or subsequently agreed upon; 

.3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or 
percentage fee; or 

. 4 As provided in Section 6.3.7. 

§ 6.3.4 If unit prices are stated in the Design-Build Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities 
originally contemplated are materially changed in a proposed Change Order or Change Directive so that application of 
such unit prices to quantities of Work proposed wi11 cause substantial inequity to the Owner or Design-BuBder, the 
applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted . 

§ 6.3.5 Upon receipt of a Change Directive, the Design-Builder shall promptly proceed with the change in the Work 
involved and advise the Owner ofthe Design-Builder's agreement or disagreement with the method, if any, provided 
in the Change Directive for detennining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Swn or, ifprior to execution ofthe 
Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder's compensation, or Contract Time . 

§ 6.3.6 A Change Directive signed by the Design-Builder indicates the Design-Builder's agreement therewith, 
including adjustment in Contract Sum or, ifprior to execution oftbe Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the 

AIA Ooctlment A1it1- - 2014. CopyrightC2004 and2014 by The Ameftcan lnatftufe ofArchltecb. All rtghts rHerved. The ·American lns\illlle of Architects.~ "AtA. • A£A Document A1.C1 .. - 2014. CopyrlghtC2004 and 2014 by The American ln91itute of An:hltecb. All right& n1MIIM!d, The' American lm,titute ol An:hilects,- ·AJA..
Intl. lnH.~4~t~1L~~~~=:,~:,:.;~;~;~f1e:~~=:~2f~~:::::~r:=--~~~~rr:~== 16 ;~ef..~~~o;;~~~;;~;!~c:'1~~~~~;i~i~~=,:::n°"~23~~=:=~~=::.,.:~:-:.a~rn:::Y-=:.:: 17 

accordance with the AIA Connet Oocomenl_. Terms of Service. To repor1 copyright violations, e--mail copyrighl@aia.org. ac.cord~ wl1h the AIA Conlrad 0ocumen1.- Terms of Service. To report copyright vlolaliorrs, •msil CXJpyright@aie.org. 
UNI' Notes: (1365848397) Uur ff(llH: (1365848397} 

mailto:CXJpyright@aie.org
mailto:copyrighl@aia.org


Design-BuiJder•s compensation, and Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agI"CCment shalJ be 
effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order. 

§ 6.3.7 Ifthe Design-Builder does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract 
Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the method for adjustment in the Design-Builder's 
compensation, the Owner shall determine the method and the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditures and 
savings ofthose performing the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase, an amount for 
overhead and profrt as set forth in the Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agreement, a reasonable 
amount. In such case, and also under Section 6.3.3.3, the Design-Builder shall keep and present, in such form as the 
Owner may prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data. Unless otherwise provided in 
the Design-Build Documents, costs for the purposes of this Section 6.3.7 shall be limited to the following: 

.1 Additional costs ofprofessional services; 

.2 Costs oflabor, including social security, unemployment insurance, fringe benefits required by 
agreement or custom, and workers' compensation insurance; 

.3 Costs ofmaterials, supplies and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or 
corisUJJ1ed; 

.4 Rental costs ofinachinery and equipment, exclusive ofhand tools, whether rented from the 
Design-Builder or others; 

.5 Costs ofpremillms for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use or similar taxes related to the 
·work;aild 

.6 Additional costs ofsupervision and tie Id office personnel directly attributable to the change. 

§ 6.3.8 The amouni ofcredit to be allowed by the Design-Builder to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in 
a net deerea~ in the CO!Itract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, in the Design-Builder's 
compensation, shall be '!CN3I net cost. When both additions and credits covering related Work or substitutions are 
involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis ofnet increase, if any, with 
respect to that change. 

§ 6.3.9 Pendi!lg final determination of the total cost of a Change Directive to the Owner, the Design-Builder may 
request .payment for Work completed under the Change Directive in Applications for Payment. The Owner will make 
an interim. determination for purposes of certification for payment for those costs deemed to be reasonably justified. 
Tue Owner's interim de(!:rmination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution ofthe Design-Build 
Amendment, the·Design-Builder's compensation, on the same basis as a Change Order, subject to the right of 
Design-Bwlder to disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Article 14. 

§ 6;3~10 When the Owner and Design-Builder agree with a detennination concerning the adjustments in the Contract 
Sum·or. if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder's compensation 
and Contract T.ime, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such agreement shall be effective 
immediately and the Owner arid Design-Builder shall execute a Change Order. Change Orders may be issued for all or 
any part ofaChange Directive. 

ARTICLE 7 OWNER'S.RESPOHSfflllmEs 
§ 7;1 Gene,al 
§ 7:1.1 ThoO"""er shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express authority to bind the Owner with 
respect to all Pr-oj~ .matters requiring the Owner's approval or authorization. 

§ 7.1.2 The Owner .shall render decisions in a timely manner and in accordance with the Design-Builder's schedule 
agreed to by the Owner. The Owner shall furni.sh to the Design-Builder, within JS days after receipt of a written 
request, information necessary and relevant for the Design-Builder to evaluate, give notice ofor enforce mechanic's 
lien righ.ts, Such information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the 
Project is locaied, usually referred to as the site, and the Owner's interest therein. 

§ 7.2 •ilifonitatlon and Services Required of the Owner 
§ 7.2.1 The Owner shall furnish information or services required ofthe Owner by the Design-Build Documents with 
reasonable promptness. 

AIA Doc::umenl A1,1- -2014. Copyrigh\02<104 and 201-4 by The American lnetiluteofArchmcta. AH righbnrarved. The "American I1'1$titule Qf Art.hltccis." "AIA. ~ 
lnlt. ~:~;~~~:!,~9:.;~~~;~~f,•1r::1=:~~t~==!:,~:!,~~~!=nl=~ma~=,•:=: 18 

aocordance with the AJA Connet Documants'I Tenn& of Service. Tc report copyrig hi vlolalions, e-mail copyrigh1@aia.org. 
U..r Nahl•; (1385B48397) 

§ 7.2.2 The Owner shall provide, to the extent under the Owner's control and if not required by the Design-Build 
Documents to be provided by the Design-Builder, the results and reports of prior tests, inspections or investigations 
conduCted for the Project involving structural or mechanical systems; chemical, air and water pollution; hazardous 
materials; or environmental and subsurface conditions and information regarding the presence ofpollutants at the 
Project site. Upon receipt of a written request ti-om the Design-Builder, the Owner shall also provide surveys 
describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the site ofthe Project, and a legal 
desaiption of the site under the Owner's control. 

§ 7.2.3 The Owner shall promptly obtain easements, zoning variances, and legal authorizations or entitlements 
regarding site utilization where essential to the execution of the Project. 

§ 7.2.4 The Owner shall cooperate with the Design-Builder in securing building and other permits, licenses and 
inspections. 

§ 7.2.5 The services, information, surveys and reports required to be provided by the Owner under this Agreemen~ 
shall be. furnished al the Owner's expense, and except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement or 
elsewhere in the Design-Build Documer,ts or to the extent the Owner advises the Design-Builder to the contrary in 
writing, the Design°Builder sliall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness thereof. In no event shall the 
Desi1111,Builder be relieved ofIts responsibility to exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance ofthe 
Work. 

§ 7.2.6 Ifthe Owner observes or otherwise becomes aware of a fault or defect in the Work or non-conformity with the 
Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall give prompt written notice thereof to the Design-Builder. 

§ 7.2.7 Intentionally deleted. 

§ 7.2.8 Except as otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents or when direct communications have been 
speciaUy authotized, the Owner shall communicate through the Design-Builder with persons or entities employed or 
retained by the Design-Builder. 

§ 7.2.9 Intentionally .deleted. 

§ 7.2.10 Intentionally deleted. 

§ 7.3 Submittals 
§ 7.3.1 The Owner shall review and approve or take other appropriate action on Submittals. Review ofSubmittals is 
not conducted for the purpose ofdetermining the accuracy and comp)et:cness of other details, such as dimensions and 
quantities; or for substantiating instructions for instalJation or performance of equipment or systems; or for 
d.etennining that the Submittals are in conformance with the Design-Build Documents, all ofwhich remain the 
responsibility ofthe Design-Builder as required by the Design-Build Documents. The Owner's action will be taken in 
accordance wit)l the submittal schedule approved by the Owner or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, 
with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Owner's judgment to permit adequate review. The 
0"!1ler's review of Submittals shall not relieve the Design-Builder of the obligations under Sections 3.1.11, 3.1.12, 
and 5.2.3. The Owner's review of Submittals shall not relieve the Design-Builder of tho obligations under the 
Contract. ·n,e Owner's review shall not constitute approva1 ofsafety precautions or, unless otherwise specifically 
stated by the Owner~:ofany construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures. The Owner"s approvaJ 
ofa specific item shall not indicate approval ofan assembly of which the item is a component. 

§ 7.3.2 Upon .review of the Submittals required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall notify the 
Design-Builder of any non-conformance with the Design-Build Docwnents the Owner discovers. 

§ 7.4 Visits to the site by the Owner shall not be construed to create an obligation on the part of the Owner to make 
on-site in.spections to check the quality or quantity ofthe Work. The Owner shall neither have control over or charge 
of, nor be responsible for, the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for the safety 
precautions and programs in connection with the Work, because these are solely the Design-Builder's rights and 
responsibilities under the Design-Build Docwnents. 

AIA 06cumentA1-41'" -2014. Copyrighl02004 and201.. byTheAtnert:an lnsfflute ofArdmld1, Al rlghtsrnerwcl. The 'America(l lnstilote ofArchitacta.' "AJA..tnlt. 
~t~~~~~~OO:,~=~:.;;~~';~~{:':t~r'!::;'~~::==::.n~r:~:a~me~:,,i=:: 19 
accordance with lhe A!A Contract Document.., Terms of Service. To report COP'Jright ~ -e-mafl copyright@aia.org. 
User NotH: (1365648397) 

mailto:copyright@aia.org
mailto:copyrigh1@aia.org
https://furni.sh


§ 7.5 The Owner shall not be responsible for the Design-Builder's failure to perfonn the Work in accordance with the 
requirements ofthe Design-Build Documents. The Owner shall not have control over or charge of, and will not be 
responsible for acts or omissions of the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Contractors, or their agents or 
employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for the Design-Builder. 

§ 7.6 The Owner has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Design-Build Documents. The Owner 
shall have authority to require inspection or testing ofthe Work in accordance with Section 15.5.2, whether or not such 
Work is fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Owner nor a decision made in good 
faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility ofthe Owner to the 
Design-BuiJder, the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, 
or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 

§ 7.7 The Owner shall determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion in accordance with Section 9.8 and the 
date of final completion in accordance with Section 9.10. 

§ 7.8 OWner's Right to stop Work 
lfthe Design-Builder rails to correct Work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build 
Docwnents as required by Section 11.2 or persistently fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Design-Build 
Documents, the Owner may issue a written order to the Design-BuiJder to stop the Work., or any portion thereof, until 
the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, the right ofthe Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a 
duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Design-Builder or any other person or entity, 
exceptto the extent required by Section 5.13.1.3. 

§ 7.9 Owner's Right to Carry Out the Work 
If the Design-Builder defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents and 
fails within a ten-day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of 
such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner 
may have, correct such deficiencies. In such case, an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from 
payments then or thereafter due the Design-Builder the reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies, including, but 
not limited to, the Owner's attorney's fees, related costs, disbursements and expenses. Ifpayments then or thereafter 
due the Design-Builder are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Design-Builder shall pay the difference to the 
Owner. The right of the Owner to correct deficiencies in the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of the 
Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Design-Bui]der or any other person or entity and shall not affect the 
Design-Builder's contractual duties under this Contract, including its warranty obligations. 

ARTICLE 8 TIME 
§ 8.1 Progress and Completion 
§ 8.1.1 Time limits stated in the Design-Build Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the 
Design-Build Amendment the Design-Builder confinns that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing 
the Work. 

§ 8.1.2 The Design-Builder shall not, except by agreement of the Owner in writing, commence the Work prior to the 
effective date of insurance, other than property insurance, required by this Contract. The Contract Time shall not be 
adjusted as a result of the Design-Builder's failure to obtain insurance required under this Contract. Owner shall 
provide Design-Builder with a Notice to Commence Work and Design-Builder shall commence work within 5 
working days ofreceiving the Notice. 

§ 8.1.3 The Design-Builder shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial 
Completion within the Contract Time. 

§ 8.2 Delays and Extensions of Time 
§ 8.2.1 Ifthe Design-Builder is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by an actorneglect 
of the Owner or ofa consultant or separate contractor employed by the Owner; or by changes ordered in the Work by 
the Owner; or by labor disputes, fire~ unusuaJ delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties or other causes beyond the 
Design-Builder's control; or by delay authorized by the Owner pending mediation and binding dispute resolution or 
by other causes that the Owner determines may justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended by Change 
Order for such reasonab]e time as the Owner may determine. 

§ 8.2.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions ofArticle 14. 

§ 8.2.3 This Section 8.2 does not preclude recovery ofdamages for delay by either party under other provisions ofthe 
Design-Build Documents. 

ARTICLE 9 PAYMENT APPLICATIONS AND PROJECT COMPLETION 
§ 9.1 Contract Sum 
The Contract Sum is stated in the Design-Bui]d Amendment. 

§ 9.2 Schedule of Values 
Where the Contract Sum is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Design-Builder, at ]east ten 
days prior to the first Application for Payment after execution of the Design-Build Amendment shall submit to the 
Owner a schedule ofvalues allocating the entire Contract Sum to the various portions of the Work and prepared in 
such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Owner may require. This schedule, unless 
objected to by the Owner, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Design-Builder's Applications for Payment. 

§ 9.3 Applications for Payment 
§ 9.3.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Design-Builder shall submit to the 
Owner an itemized Application for Payment for completed portions ofthe Work. The application shall be notarized, if 
required, and supported by data substantiating the Design-Builder's right to payment as the Owner may require, such 
as copies of requisitions from the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, and material suppliers, and shall reflect 
retainage if provided for in the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 6.3.9, Applications for Payment may include requests for payment on account of 
changes in the Work that have been properly authorized by Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the 
Owner, but not yet included in Change Orders. 

§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the 
Design-Builder does not intend to pay the Architect, Consultant, Contractor, material supplier, or other persons or 
entities providing services or work for the Design-Builder, wiless such Work has been performed by others whom the 
Design-Builder intends to pay. 

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, payments shall be made for services provided as 
well as materials and e.quipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If 
approved in advance by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off 
the site at a location agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be 
conditioned upon compliance by the Design-Builder with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the 
Owner's title to such materia1s and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner's interest, and shall include the costs of 
applicab]e insurance, storage and transportation to the site for such materials and equipment stored offthe site. 

§ 9.3.3 The Design-Builder wammts that title to all Work, other than lnstruments of Service, covered by an 
Application for Payment will pass to the Owner no later than the time of payment. The Design-Builder further 
wanants that, upon submittal ofan Application for Payment, all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been 
previously issued and payments received from the Owner shall, to the best of the Design-Builder's knowledge, 
information and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances in favor of the 
Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Contractors, material suppliers, or other persons or entities entitled to make a 
claim by reason ofhaving provided labor, materials and equipment relating to the Work. 

§ 9.4 Certifica1es for Payment 
The Owner shall, within seven days after receipt of the Design-Builder's Application for Payment, issue to the 
Design-Builder a Certificate for Payment indicating the amount the Owner determines is properly due, and notify the 
Design.-Builder in writing of the Owner's reasons for withholding certification in whole or in part as provided in 
Section 9.5.l. 

AIA DocurnentA141"'-Z014. CopyrlghtC2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. AU rights reserved. The "American Institute of Architects.• "AIA, AIA DocumenlA141"'- 2014. Copyright02004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Archilectli.AII rights reserved. The "American ln::ititute of Architects.• "AIA." lnlt. lnlt.the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contracl Dccuments· are registered ~rademarks and may net be used withoui psrmisa.ion This document was produced by AIA software at 20 
14:24:21 ET on 0312312022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-lime use only, and may only bA used in ~~~2~~1L~\0~~~~;;~~;~~~e~~~~r~~~;;;~~;~;~;:d:;~:: :~~;~~ti~~:~ i~t=~~;:1::~~~::c:=~=~l~a=::~t~8::: 21 
aeeordence with thA AIA Contract Oocumen~ Terms of SeNice. Tc report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. accordance 'Nilh lhe AIA Contract Documents• Terms of SeNica. To rApOrt copyrighl vlolaUons, MTISII eopyrlght@eia.org. 
Uaer Notes: (1365848397) Usar Natu: (1365848397) 

mailto:eopyrlght@eia.org
mailto:copyright@aia.org


§ 9.5 Decisions lo Withhold CtrtlflcaHon 
§ 9.5.1 The Owner may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part to the extent reasonably necessary to 
pro~ the Owner due to the Owner's detennination that the Work has not progressed to the point indicated in the 
Design-Builder's Application for Payment, or the quality ofthe Work is not in accordance with the Design-Build 
Documents. If the Owner is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Owner will notify the 
Design-Builder as provided in Section 9.4. If the Design-Builder and Owner cannot agree on a revised amount, the 
Owner will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount that the Owner deems to be due and owing. The 
Owner may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because ofsubsequently discovcml evidence, may nullify the 
whole or a pan of a C,;rtificate for Payment previously issued to such extent as may be necessary to protect the Owner 
from Joss for which the Design-Builder is responsible because of 

.1 defective Work, including design and construction, not remedied; 

.2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims unless security 
accep!able to the Owner is provided by the Design-Builder; 

.3 failure ofthe .()esign-Builder to make payments properly to the Architect, Consultants, Contractors or 
others, fot services, labor, materials or equipment; 

. 4 reasonable evidence lhat the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance ofthe Contract Sum; 

.5 damage to the Owner or a separate contractor; 

.6 reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid 
balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; or 

.7 repeated failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents . 

§ 9.5.2 When the above reasons fur withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts 
previously withheld. 

§ 9.5.3 lfthe Owner withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.l .3, the Owner may, at its sole option, issue 
joirit ch~ to the Design-BuiJder end to the Architect or any Consultants, Contractor, material or equipment 
· suppliers, or other persons or entities providing services or work for the Design-Builder to whom the Design-Builder 
failedto make payment for Work properly perfonned or material or equipment suitably delivered. 

§ 9.6 Progreu Paymenlll 
§ .9.6.1 After the Owner has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and within 
the time-provided in the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.6.2 The Design;Builder shall pay each Architect, Consultant, Contractor, and other person or entity providing 
services or work for the Design-Builder no later than the time period required by applicable Jaw, but in no event more 
than seveh days· after receipt ofpayment from the Owner the amount to which the Architect, Consultant, Contractor, 
and other person or entity providing .services or work for the Design-Builder is entitled, reflecting percentages actually 
retained from payments to the Design-Builder on account ofthe portion ofthe Work performed by the Architect, 

· Consultan~ Contractor; or oth~ person or entity. The Design-Builder shall, by appropriate agreement with each 
Architect, Consultant, Contractor, and other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder, 
require each Architect, Consultant, Con!nlclor, and other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder to tnake payments to subconsultants and subcontractors in a similar manner. 

§ 9.6.3 The Owner _will, on request and ifpracticable, furnish to the Architect, a Consultant, Contractor, or other 
person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder, infonnation regarding percentages of completion 
or amounts applied for by the Design-Builder and action taken thereon by the Owner on account ofportions of the 
Work done by such Architect, Consultant, Contractor or other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder. 

§ 9.6.4 The; Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Design-Builder that the Design-Builder has 
properly paid the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, or other person or entity providing services or work for the 
i>esign',Builder, amounts paid by the Owner to the Design-Builder for the Work. If the Design-Builder fails to furnish 
such evide:tlcc within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors 
to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. The Owner shall have no obligation to pay or to see to the payment 
of money to a Consultant or Contractor, except as may otherwise be required by Jaw. 

Al.A 0ocumentA1.c1• - 201.C. Copyright 02004 and 2014 by The American lnstttute ofAtdlilect&.AII rlgha, rnerved. The "AfT'lefan Institute of Architects; "AIA.•lnlt. lheAIAlogo, and "AIA COl'ltract Documents• lH6 registered tradem3ffls and may not be~ without pcrmls111on. This documanlwas Pfoduoed by AJA IOftwara at 22 
14:24:21 ET on 0312312022 untSer Order No.2114287171whichexpira0002/03/2023, I ■ nol for resale, 15 llcensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In 
accordance wlh lhe AIA Contract Oocuments9 Terms of Service. To repo,1 c:op)'rigti violalions, e-mail oopyrfght@aia.org. 
User Noln: (1365848397) 

§ 9.6.5 Design-Builder payments to material and equipment suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that 
provided in Sections 9.6.2, 9.6.3 and 9.6.4. 

§ 9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the 
Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 

§9.8.7 Unless the Design-Builder provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum ofthe Contract Sum, 
payments received by the Design-Builder for Work properly perfonned by the Architect, Consultants, Contractors and 
other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder, shall be held by the Design-Builder for the 
Architect and those Consultants, Contractors, or other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder, for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained herein shall require money to be 
placed in a separate account and not commingled with money ofthe Design-Builder, shall create any fiduciary liability 
or tort liability on the part ofthe Design-Builder for breach oftrust or shall entitle any person or entity to an award of 
punitive damages against the Design-Builder for breach of the requirements ofthis provision. 

§ 9.7 Failure of Payment 
If the Owner does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault ofthe Design-Builder, within the time required 
by the Design-Build Documents, then the Design-Builder may, upon seven additional days' written notice to the 
Owner, ·stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended 
appropriately and the 'contract Sum shall be increased by the amount ofthe Design-Builder's reasonable costs of 
shui-down, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.8 Subs1antlal Completion 
§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress ofthe Work when the Work or designated portion thereof is 
sufficiently complete in accordance with the Design-Build Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the 
Work for its intended use. Tho date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Owner in accordance with 
this Section 9.8. 

§ 9.8.2 When the Design-Builder considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept 
separately, is substantially complete, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit to the Owner a compn,hensive list 
of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to incJude an item on such list does not alter the 
responsibility of the Design-Builder to complete all Work in accordance with the Desigo-Build Documents. 

§ 9.U Upon receipt of the Design-Builder's list, the Owner shall make an inspection to determine whether the Work 
or designated portion th')reofis substantially complete. If the Owner's inspection discloses any item, whether ornot 
included on the De5ign-Builder•~ list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Design-Build 
Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the 
Design-Builder shall, before i.ssuance ofthe Certificate ofSubstantial Completion, complete or com:ct such item upon 
notification by the Owner. In such case, the Design-Builder shall then submit a request for another inspection by the 
Owner to determine Substantial Completion. 

§ 9.i.4 Prior to issu.1.ce of the Certif,cate of Substantial Completion under Section 9.8.5, the Owner and 
Design-Builder shall di~uss and then detennine the parties• obligations to obtain and maintain property insurance 
following issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion. 

§ 9.8.5 When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Design-Builder will prepare for the 
Owner's signature a Certificate ofSubstantial Completion that shall, upon the Owner's signature, establish the date of 
Substantial Completion; establish responsibilities of the Owner and Design-Builder for security, maintenance, heat, 
utilities, damage to the Work and insurance; and fix the time within which the Design-Builder shall finish all items on 
the list accornpanying the Certificate. Warranties required by the Design-Build Documents shall commence on the 
date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate 
of Substantial Completion. 

§ 9.8.6 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted by the Design-Builder to the Owner for written 
acceptance of responsibilities assigned to it in the Certificate. Upon the Owner's accoptance, and consent of surety, if 
any, the Owner shall make payment ofretainage applying to the Work or designated portion thereof. Payment shall be 
adjusted for Work that is incomplete ornot in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 

AIA 0ocufflent A.141• - 2014. Copytlght02004 and 2014 bJ The .Amellcan IM1luleof Archllad■ . An rtghta felefVed. The "AIMrican lna1itute of Ardlltecls: "AIA..
lnit: 

f:~~l~~an~~~~=~~;~~~~;<;.,:::~~~=~e:~~~~~=~.:=-y=: 23 
ac.eordance with the AIA Contract Oocuments•Terms of Service. To report oopyngtrt vlolations, e-mall copyJight@aia.org. 
U.er Notes: (13658,48397) 

mailto:copyJight@aia.org
https://issu.1.ce
mailto:oopyrfght@aia.org


§ 9.9 Partial Occupancy or Use 
§ 9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when 
such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Design-Builder, provided such occupancy or use is 
consented to, by endorsement or otherwise, by the insurer providing property insurance and authorized by pubJic 
authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Such partial occupancy or use may commence whether or not the 
portion is substantially complete, provided the Owner and Design-Builder have accepted in writing the responsibilities 
assigned to each ofthem for payments, retainage, ifany, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and 
insurance, and have agreed in writing concerning the period for correction of the Work and commencement of 
warranties required by the Design-Build Documents. When the Design-Builder considers a portion substantially 
complete, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit a list to the Owner as provided under Section 9.8.2. Consent of 
the Design-Builder to partial occupancy or u:se shall not be unreasonably withheld. The stage of the progress ofthe 
Work shall be determined by written agreement between the Owner and Design-Builder. 

§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner and Design-Builder shall jointly inspect the area 
to be occupied or portion ofthe Work to be used in order to detennine and record the condition ofthe Work. 

§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use ofa portion or portions ofthe Work shall not constitute 
acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.10 Final Completion and Flnal Payment 
§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt ofthe Design-Builder's written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance 
and upon receipt ofa final Application for Payment, the Owner will promptly make such inspection. When the Owner 
finds the Work acceptable under the Design-Build Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Owner will, 
subject to Section 9. I 0.2~ promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment. 

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Design-Builder 
submits to the Owner ( l) an affidavit that payrolls, bi11s for materia1s and equipment. and other indebtedness 
connected with the Work, for which the Owner or the Owner's property might be responsible or encumbered, (less 
amounts withheld by Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) a certificate evidencing that insurance required 
by the Design-Build Documents to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect, (3) a written statement 
that the Design-Builder knows ofno substantial reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period 
required by the Design-Build Documents, (4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, (S) as-constructed record 
copy ofthe Construction Documents marked to indicate field changes and selections made during construction, (6) 
manufacturer's warranties, product data, and maintenance and operations manuals, and (7) if required by the Owner, 
other data establishing payment or :satisfaction ofobligations, such as receipts, or releases and waivers of liens, claims, 
security interests, or encumbrances, arising out ofthe Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by 
the Owner. Ifan Architect, a Consultant, or a Contractor, or other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder, refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Design-Builder may furnish a bond 
satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances. If 
such liens, claim:s, security interests, or encumbrances remains unsatisfied after payments are made, the 
Design-Builder shall refund to the Owner all money that the Owner may be compe11ed to pay in discharging such 
liens, claims, security interests, or encwnbrance:s, including all costs and reasonable attorneys' fees. 

§ 9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereofis materially delayed through no fault 
of the Design-Builder or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, the Owner shall, upon application 
by the Design-Builder, and without terminating the Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the 
Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than 
retainage stipulated in the Design-Build Documents, and ifbonds have been furnished, the written consent of surety to 
payment ofthe balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the 
Design-Bui1der to the Owner prior to issuance of payment. Such payment shall be made under terms and conditions 
governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims. 

§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the 
(Paragraphs deleted) 
Owner. 

§ 9.10.5 Acceptance offinal payment by the Design-Builder shall constitute a waiver ofclaims by the Design-Builder 
except those previously made in writing and identified by the Design-Builder as unsettled at the time of final 
Application for Payment. 

ARTICLE 10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
§ 10.1 Safety Precautions and Programs 
The Design-Builder sha11 be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and 
programs in connection with the performance of the Contract. In addition, Design-Builder sha11 be responsible for the 
security and protection of its equipment, supplies and tools used in connection the Work. 

§ 10.2 Safety of Persons and Property 
§ 10.2.1 The Design-Builder shall be responsible for precautions for the safety of, and reasonable protection to prevent 
damage, injury or loss to 

.1 employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby; 

.2 the Work and materials and equipment to be incorpor-ated therein, whether in storage on or offthe site, 
under care, custody or control of the Design-Builder or the Architect, Consultants, or Contractors, or 
other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder; and 

.3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as tree:s, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, 
or structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of 
construction. 

§ 10.2.2 The Design-Builder shall comply with, and give notices required by, Applicable Laws, and lawful orders of 
public authorities, bearing on :safety ofper:sons or property, or their protection from damage, injury or loss. 

§ 10.2.3 The Design-Builder shall implement, erect, and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance 
of the Contract, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings 
against hazards, promulgating safety regulations, and notify owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities of the 
safeguards and protections. 

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods, are 
necessary for execution ofthe Work, the Design-Bui]der shall exercise utmost care, and canyon such activities under 
supervision ofproperly qualified personnel. 

§ 10.2.5 The Design-Builder shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under 
property insurance required by the Design-Build Documents) to property referred to in Sections I 0.2.l .2 and I0.2.1.3, 
caused in whole or in part by the Design-Builder, the Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by any ofthem, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Design-Builder 
is responsible under Sections I 0.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3; except damage or loss attributable to acts or omissions of the 
Owner, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Owner, or by anyone for whose acts the Owner may be liable, 
and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Design-Builder. The foregoing obligations ofthe Design-Builder 
are in addition to the Desigil-Builder's obligations under Section 3 .1.14. 

§ 10.2.6 The Design-Builder shall designate a responsible member of the Design-Builder's organization, at the site, 
whose duty shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Design-Builder's superintendent unless 
otherwise designated by the Design-Builder in writing to the Owner. 

§ 10.2.7 The Design-Builder shall notpennit any part ofthe construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or 
create an unsafe condition. 

§ 10.2.8 lnJury or Damage to Person or Property. lfthe Owner or Design-Builder suffers iajury or damage to person or 
property because of an act or omission of the other, or ofothers for whose acts such party is legally responsible, 
written notice of the injury or damage, whether or not insured, shall be given to the other party within a reasonable 
time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice shall provide sufficient detail to enable the other party to 
investigate the matter. 

AIA DacumentA141"' - 2014. Copyright Cl 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. An rights reserved. The "American Institute of Architects." "AIA AIA Document A.141.,.. - 2014. Copyright= 2004 and 2014 by The American lnslilute of Architects. All rights reaerved. The 'American Institute of Architects."' AIA: 
the AIA logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" arEi registered trademarks an-:1 may not be used v;i!houi permi_s!>ion. This document was produced by AJA software at 24lnlt. lnlt. 
14:24:21 ET on 03123/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In ~4~~~1L~\o~~n0~~~~;;~~~~;1~~;~e:;~;~;~~~~e;:~hd=~~f!: ~~~~~~ti~:o~ ;~~1:a~:.~:lii::;:::~,=~=~~u,:: :~~ys~~~ ~ 25 
accordance with lhe AIA Contract Documents" Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. accordance with the Al A Contract Documenlse TenTIS of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@laill.org. 
U■■r Notes: (1365&48397) U ■er Notn: (1365848397) 

mailto:copyright@laill.org
mailto:copyright@aia.org


§ 10.3 Hazardous Materials 
§ 10.3.1 The Design-Builder is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Design-Build 
Documents regarding hazardous materials. lfthe Design~Builder encounters a hazardous material or substance not 
addressed in the Design-Build Documents and ifreasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable 
bodily iiijury or death to persons resulting from a materiaJ or substance, inc]uding but not 1imited to asbestos or 
polychlorinated biphcnyl (PCB), encountered on the site by the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall, upon 
recognizing the condition, immediately stop Work in the affected area and report the condition to the Owner in 
writing. 

§ 10.3.2 Upon receipt ofthe Design-Builder's written notice, the Owner shall obtain the services ofa licensed 
laboratory to verify the_presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Design-Builder and, in the 
event such material or substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. Unless otherwise required 
by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall furnish in writing to the Design-Builder the names and qualifications 
ofpersons ot eptitics who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of such material or substance or who 
are to perfoin1 the task ofrem.oval or safe containment of such material or substance. The Design-Builder will 
p,omptly reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not the Design-Builder has reasonable objection to the 
persons or entities.proposed by the Owner. Jfthe Design-Builder has an objection to a person or entity proposed by the 
Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom the Design-Builder has no reasonable objection. When the material 
or substanCe has been reridered harmless. Work in the affected area shall resume upon written agreement ofthe Owner 
and Design-Builder. By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall 
be increased in the amount ofthe Design-Builder's reasonable additional costs of shut-down, delay and start-up. 

§ 10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indenmify and hold harmless the Design-Builder, the 
Architect, Consultants, aod Contractors, and employees ofany ofthem, from and against claims, damages, losses and 
expenses, including but not limited to attorneys• fees, arising out ofor resulting from performance ofthe Work in the 
affected area, ifin fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or death as described in 
Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to 
bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to, or destruction of, tangible property ( other than the Work 
itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss or expense is due to the fault or negligence ofthe party seeking 
indemnity. 

§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section I0.3 for materials or substances the Design-Builder 
brings to the sjte.unless-such materials or substances are required by the Owner's Criteria. The Owner shall be 
responsible for inaierials or substances required by the Owner's Criteria, except to the extent of the Design-Builder's 
fault ·orncgligence in the use and handling of such materials or substances. 

§ 10.U The Design-Builder sh_all indemnify the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (I) for remediation 
of a material or substance·the Design-Builder brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the 
Design-Builder fails to perform its obligations under Section 10.3.l, except to the extent that the cost and expense arc 
due to the Owner's fault or negligence. 

§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder is held liable by a government 
agency for the cost ofremediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as 
required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall indemnify the Design-Builder for all cost and expense 
thereby incurred. 

§ 10.4 Emergariclea 
In an emergency affecting safety ofpersons or property, the Design-Builder shall act, at the Design-Builder's 
discretion, ,to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. 

ARTICLE 11 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
§ 11.1 Uncovering of Wortc · 
The Owner may request to examine a portion ofthe Work that the Design-Builder has covered to determine if the 
Work has been performed in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. If such Work is in accordance with the 
Design-Build Documents, the Owner and Design-Builder shall execute a Change Order to adjust the Contract Time 
and Contract Sum, as appropriate. If such Work is not in accordance with the Design-Build Documents, the cosls of 
uncovering and correcting the Work shall be at the Design-Builder' s expense and the Design-l)uilder shall not be 

AIADocuaantA1,1• - 201.-. Copyrleht02004 and201 ◄ by The American lnstitut.otAn:hlteds.Arl rights~. Tba "American IMlitute <JI Archlled!i: "AIA. ' !nit. ~~~~~~'=;~~=~~~~~if1~~:~=r:=:=:.:-~1:='":~:rm.~=,=: 26 
accordance with the AIA Con!ract DocomefltsC Te1m1 of Service. To report copyright W>latlons, e-mail copyriuhl@aia.org. 
U..r Nat.a: (1365848397) 

erititled to a change in the Contract Time unless the c:ondition was caused by the Owner or a separate contractor in 
which event the Owner shall be responsible for payment of such costs and the Contract Time will be adjusted as 
appropriate. 

§ 11.2 Correction of Work 
§ 11.2.1 Before or Aller Subsfantlal Completion. The Design-Builder shall promptly correct Work rejected by the 
Owner or failing to conform to the requirements of the Design-Build Documents, whether discovered before or after 
Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed. Costs ofcorrecting such rejected Work, 
including additional testing and inspections, the cost ofuncovering and replacement, and compensation for any design 
consultant employed by the Owner whose expenses and compensation were made necessary thereby, and the Owner's 
anomeys' fees and relQtcd costs and disbursement, which costs shall be at the Design-Builder's expense. 

§ 11.2.2 After Substantial Completion 
§ ,11.2.2.1 In addition to the Design-Builder's obligations under Section 3.1.12, if, within one year after the date of 
Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencement ofwamurties 
established under Section 9.9. t, or by tams of an applicable special warranty required by the Design-Build 
Documents, any of the Work is found not to be in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents, 
the Design-Build..- shall conect it promptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner 
has previously given the Design-Builder a written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice 
promptly after discovery of-the condition. During the one-year period for correction oftbe Work, ifthc Owner fails to 
notify the Design-Builder and give the Design-Builder an opportunity to make the correction, the Owner waives the 
rights to require cOtTection by the Design-Builder and to make a claim for breach ofwarranty. If the Design-Builder 
fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable time during that period after receipt ofnotice from the 
Owner, the Owner may correct it in accordance with Section 7 .9. 

§ 11.2.2.2 The one-year period for correction of Work shall be extended with respect to portions of Work first 
performed after Substantial Completion by the period oftime between Substantial Completion and the actual 
completion ofthatportion ofthe Work. 

§ 11.2.2.3 The one-year period for correction ofWork shall not be extended by corrective Work performed by the 
Design-Builder pursuant to this Section 11 .2. 

§ 11;2.3 The Design-Builder shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the 
requirements of the Design-Build Docwnents and are neither corrected by the Design-Builder nor accepted by the 
Owner. 

§. 11.2.4 The Design:Buildcr shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction ofthe Owner or 
separate contractors, whether completed or partially completed, caused by the Design-Builder's correction or removal 
of Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 112-5 Nothing contained in this Section 11 .2 shall be construed to establish a period oflimitation with respect to 
other obligations the Design-Builder has underthc Design-Build Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for 
correction of Work as described in Section 11.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation ofthe Design-Builder to 
correct th_e Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Design-Build 
Document! may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish 
the Design-Builder's liability with respect to the Design-Builder's obligations other than specifically to correct the 
Work. 

§ 11.3 Acceptance of Nonconforming Work 
If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 
the Owner may do so instead ofrequiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced 
as aJlllfOPriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been made. 

ARTICLE 12 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 
§ 12.1 Drawings, specifications, and other documents furnished by the Design-Builder, including those in electronic 
form, arc Instruments of Service. The Design-Builder, and the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, and any other 
person or entity providing services or work for any ofthem, shall be deemed the authors and owners oftheir respective 

A1A Dac11mentA141• - 2014. CopyrldTf02<l04and2014 bJ TheAmerlcantnstilulll ofArd'llecb. All tlgt1II rnerved. The "American IM.lil:ute of Architect$," 'AIA.. 
lnlt. 

~4e2~~;~r~=~~~=~~~;~;~;~~~~::~=t;~~:~c:~r:::-=::.::!:~=: 27 
accordance wih lhe A IA Connet Oocufl'IIL'l:nts• TMmS ~ San,tce_To report copyrighl violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
U.ar Natn: (1365848397) 

mailto:copyright@aia.org
mailto:copyriuhl@aia.org


Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and 
other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official 
regulatory requirements, or for similar purposes in connection with the Project, is not to be construed as publication in 
derogation of the reserved rights of the Design-Builder and the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors, and any other 
person ot entity providing services or work for any ofthem. 

§ 12.2 The Design-Builder and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other 
information, the transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information or has permission from the copyright 
owner to transmit such infonnation for its use on the Project. 

§ 12.3 Upon execution of the Agreement, the Design-Builder grants to the Owner a limited, irrevocable and 
non-exclusive license to use the Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using. 
maintaining. altering and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations, 
including prompt payment of all sums when due, under the Design-Build Documents. The license granted under this 
section pennits the Owner to authorize its consultants and separate contractors to reproduce applicable portions of the 
Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. If the 
Design-Builder rightfully tenninates this Agreement for cause as provided in Section I 3. 1.4 or 13.2. I the license 
granted in this Section 12.3 shall terminate. 

§ 12.3.1 The Design-Builder shall obtain non-exclusive licenses from the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors, that 
wiJI allow the Design-Builder to satisfy its obligations to the Owner under this Article 12. The Design-Builder's 
licenses from the Architect and its Consultants and Contractors shall also allow the Owner, in the event this 
Agreement is terminated for any reason other than the default of the Owner or in the event the Design-Builder's 
Architect, Consultants, or Contractors terminate their agreements with the Design-Builder for cause, to obtain a 
limited, irrevocable and non-exclusive license solely and exclusively for purposes ofconstructing, usin~ maintaining, 
altering and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner (I) agrees to pay to the Architect, Consultant or Contractor 
al] amounts due, and (2) provide the Architect, Consultant or Contractor with the Owner's written agreement to 
indemnify and hold hann1ess the Architect, Consultant or Contractor from all costs and expenses, including the cost of 
defense. related to claims and causes of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and 
expenses arise from the Owner's alteration or use of the Instruments of Service. 

§ 12.3.2 In the event the Owner alters the Instruments of Service without the author's written authorization or uses the 
Instruments of Service without retaining the authors of the Instruments of Service, the Owner releases the 
Design~Buildcr, Architect, Consultants, Contractors and any other person or entity providing services or work for any 
of them, from all claims and causes of action arising from or related to such uses. The Owner, to the extent pennitted 
by Jaw, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Contractors and any 
other person or entity providing services or work for any of them, from all costs and expenses. including the cost of 
defense, related to claims and causes of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and 
expenses arise from the Owner's alteration or use ofthe Instruments of Service under this Section 12.3.2. The terms of 
this Section 12.3.2 shall not apply ifthe Owner rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Sections 13 .1.4 or 
13.2.2. 

ARTICLE 13 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§ 13.1 Termination or Suspension Prior to Execution of the lleslgn-Bulld Amendment 
§ 13.1.1 lf the Owner fails to make payments to the Design-Builder for Work prior to execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be considered substantial nonperformance and 
cause for termination or, at the Design-Builder's option, cause for suspension ofperfonnance ofservices under this 
Agreement. Ifthe Design-Builder elects to suspend the Work, the Design-Builder shall give seven days' written notice 
to the Owner before suspending the Work. In the event of a suspension ofthe Work. the Design-Builder shall have no 
liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused by the suspension of the Work. Before resuming the Work, the 
Design-Builder shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses incurred in the interruption and 
resumption of the Design-Builder's Work. The Design-Builder' s compensation for, and time to complete, the 
remaining Wock shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 13.1.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for the Work performed prior to 
notice of such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for expenses 

AIA DocumentA141N - 2014. CopyrlghlC2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Archllects. All righls reserved. Thl!l "American Institute of Arehll<?cl!." "AIA. 
lnlt. 

~~e~~1L~o~:;:~~;;=B~~~~~~;~;~;~~~~;~h~hd::;::~~;~g~fj~= ::=!:~~~~~~~~~~ :~~t=:::~~a=:~:~g=: 28 
accordance with the A1A Contract Document:18 Terms of Service. To report oopyright 'lllolations, e-mail copyrightO ala.orv. 
User Notn: (1385846397} 

incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Design-Builder's Work. The Design-Builder's compensation for, 
and time to complete, the remaining Work shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 13.1.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the 
Design~Builder, the Design-Builder may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days' Ynitten notice. 

§ 13.1.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not Jess than fourteen days' written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party 
initiating the termination. 

§ 13.1.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice to the Design-Builder 
for the Owner's convenience and without cause. 

§ 13.1.6 In the event of termination not the fault of the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for 
Work performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due and any other expenses directly 
attributable to termination for which the Design-Builder is not otherwise compensated. In no event shall the 
Design-Builder's compensation under this Section 13 . J.6 be greater than the compensation set forth in Section 2.1. 

§ 13.2 Termination or Suspension Following Execution of the Deslg11-Bulld Amendment 
§ 13.2.1 Tennlnatlon by th& Design-Builder 
§ 13.2.1.1 The Design-Builder may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of60 consecutive days 
through no act or fault of the Design-Builder, the Architect, a Consultant, or a Contractor, or their agents or 
employees. or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work under direct or indirect contract with the 
Design-Builder, for any ofthe following reasons: 

.1 Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to be 
stopped; 

.2 An act ofgovernment, such as a declaration ofnationa] emergency that requires -all Work to be stopped; 

.3 Because the Owner has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Design-Builder of 
the reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.5.l. or because the Owner has not 
made payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated in the Design-Build Documents; or 

§ 13.2.1.2 Intentionally deleted. 

§ 13.2.1.3 lntentionally deleted. 

§ 13.2.1 .4 lntentionally deleted. 

§ 13.2.2 Tenniria11on by the Owner For Cause 
§ 13.2.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Design-Builder 

.1 fails to submit the Proposal by the date required by this Agreement, or ifno date is indicated, within a 
reasonable time consistent with the date of Substantial Comp)etion; 

.2 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply an Architect, or enough properly skilled Consultants, Contractors, 
or workers or proper materials; 

.3 fails to make payment to the An:hiteet, Consultants, or Contractors for services, materials or labor in 
accordance with their respective agreements with the Design.. Buildcr; 

.4 repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful 
orders of a public authority; or 

.5 is otherwise guilty of substantial breach ofa provision ofthe Design-Build Documents . 

§ 13.2.2.2 When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the 
Owner and after giving the Design-Builder and the Design-Builder's surety, if any, seven days' written notice, 
terminate employment ofthe Design-Builder and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety: 

.1 Exclude the Design-Builder from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and 
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Design-Builder, 

. 2 Accept assignment of the Architect, Consultant and Contractor agreements pursuant to Section 3. I. I 5; 
and 

AIA Docum■ ntA141N - 2D14. Copyrfghl C 2004 and 2014 by The American lnstituleof Architects.All rights reserved. The ' American lnstituteol Architect!..' "AIA.· 
lnlt. ~~~:~,L~o~~~~~~;:~?~:e~:~;;~;i;~,re!~hd:;f:: :~;;~~fi~~~~::~!1!~~;/:~~n;i :t:e"'u:~a~~:~=r:: 29 

accordance with lhe AIA Conlrec:1 Oocuments9 Terms of Service. To repor1 copyright "iolatloms. ••mall eopyrighlfial&.org. 
User Notn: (1365848397) 

https://eopyrighlfial&.org


.3 finish the Work by whatever reasonab]e method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request 
of the Design-Builder, the Owner shall furnish to the Design-Builder a detailed accounting ofthe costs 
incurred by the Owner in finishing the Work. 

§ 13.2.2.3 When the Owner tenninates the Contract for one ofthe reasons stated in Section 13.2.2.1, the 
Design-Builder shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished. 

§ 13ll.4 Jfthe unpaid balance ofthe Cootract Sum e,ceeds costs offlnishing the Work and other damages incurred 
by the Owner and not <Kpressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Design-Builder. If such costs and damages 
exceed the unpaid balance, the Design-Builder shall pay the difference to the Owner. The obligation for such 
payments shall survive tennination ofthe Contract. 

§ 1_3.2.3 Suepen&lotJ by the Owner for Convenience 
§ 13.2.3.1 The Ownc;r may, without cause, order the Design-Builder in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the Work 
in whole or ill part for such_pcriod oftime as the Owner may detonnine. · 

§ 13.2.3.2 The Contract Swn and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by 
suspensi!,n, delay or intcmJption as described in Section 13.2.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include 
profit: No adjustment shall be made to the extent 

.1 that performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another cause for 
which the Design-Builder is responsible; or 

.2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision ofthe Contract. 

§ 13.2.4 Termination by the Owner for Convenience 
§ 13.2.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner' s convenience and without cause. 

§ 13.2.4.2 Upon teceipt ofwrittC:::n notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner's convenience. the 
Design-Builder shall 

.1 cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice; 

.2 take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; 
and, 

.3 CKcept for Work directed to be perfonned prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, 
terminaie all <Kisling Prqject agreements, including agreements with the Architect, Consultants, 
Contrai:t<XS, and purchase orders, and enter into no further Project agreements and purchase orders. 

§ 13.2.4.3 In case ofsuch termination for the Owner's convenience, the Design-Builder shall be entitled to receive 
payment for Work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination, along with reasonable overhead and 
profit on the Work not executed. 

ARTICLE 14 CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUllON 
§ 14.1 Clalms 
§ 14.1.1 Definition. A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter ofright, payment of 
money, or other rcliefwidJ."r~pect to the terms ofthe Contract. The term "Claim" also includes other disputes and 
matters in question between the Owner and Design-Builder arising out ofor relating to the Contract. The 
responsibility to substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim. 

§ 14.1.2 Time UmHs on Clalms. The Owner and Design-Builder shall commence all claims and causes ofaction, 
whether in contract, tort, breach ofwarranty or otherwise, against the other, arising out ofor related to the Contract in 
accorclance. with the requirements of the binding dispute resolution method selected in Section 13, within the time 
period.specified by applicable law, but in any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of 
the Work. The Owner and Design-Builder waive all cJaims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with 
this Section 14.l.2. 

§ 14.1.3 Notice al Claims 
§ 14.1.3.1 Prior Ta Final Payment. Prior to Final Payment, Claims by either the Owner or Design-Builder must be 
initiated by written notice to the other party within 21 days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or 
within 21 days after the claimant first recognizes the condition giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later. 

NA Documen1/4.141.,-2014. CopyrightCl2004 and201~ by The America'\ lnltlhta. ofArchitect&.AI righll r9SefV9d. The "American lnritute of An:hitccts; "AlA.-
lnlt. 

~:.~;?;-onano~:!rOo~rne:.;;~~~;;~~~:,c'=:=~=2r~==r;::~lht!===:.a=~~== 30 
accordance with the IJA Contract Documem" Terms cl Service. To lllpOrtcopyrlght Wllatlons, e-mail copyright@■ i■.org . 

IJMr Notn: (1385&48397) 

§ 14.1.3.2 Claims Arising After Final Payment. After Final Payment, Claims by either the Owner or Design-Builder that 
have not otherwise been waived pursuant to Sections 9.10.4 or 9.10.5, must be initiated by prompt written notice to the 
other party. The notice requirement in Section 14.1.3.1 and the Initial Decision requirement as a condition precedent 
to mediation in Section 14.2.1 shall not apply. 

§ 14.1.4 Continuing ConlraCI Performance. Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing 
or as provided in Section 9.7 and Article 13, the Design-Builder shall proceed diligently with performance of the 
Contract and the Owner shall continue to make payments in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 14.1.5 Claims for AddlUQnal Cost Ifthe Design-Builder intends to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, 
written noti.ce as provided herein shall be given before proceeding to execute the portion of the Work that relates to the 
Claim. Prior notice is not required for Claims relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under 
Section 10.4. 

§ 14.1.6 .Clalms for Addltlonal Time 
§ 14.1.6.1 lfthe Design-Bti.ilder intends to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, written notice as 
provided herein shall be given. The Design-Builder's Claim shall include an estimate ofcost and ofprobable effect of 
del~y on progress of the Work. In the case ofa continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary. 

§ 14.1.6.2 Ifadverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be documented 
by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period oftime, could not have been reasonably 
anticipated, and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction. 

§ 14,1.7 Claims for Consequential Damages 
The Design-Builder and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out ofor relating 
to this Contract. Thi~ mutual waiver includes 

.1 damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses ofuse, income, profit, financing, 
business and reputation, and for loss ofmanagement or employee productivity or ofthe services ofsuch 
persofll!; and 

.2 damages incurred by the Design~Builder for principal office expenses including the compensation of 
personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit except 
anticipated profit arising directly from the Work. 

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to ell consequential damages due to either party's termination in 
accordance with Article 13, Nothing contained in this Section 14.1.7 shall be deemed to preclude an award of 
liquidated damages, when a"l1licable, in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 14.2 lnHlal Decision 
§ 14.2.1 An initial decision shall be required as a condition precedent to mediation of all Claims between the Owner 
and Design-Builder initiated prior to the date final payment is due, excluding those arising under Sections I 0.3 and 
10.4 of the Agreement and Sections B.3.2.9 and B.3.2.10 ofExhibit B to this Agreement, unless 30 days have passed 
after the Claim has been initi~ with no decision having been rendered. Unless otherwise mutually agreed in writing, 
the Owner shall render the initial decision on Claims. 

§ 14.2.2 Procedure 
§ 14.2.2.1 Claims Initiated by the Owner. If the Owner initiates a Claim, the Design-Builder shall provide a written 
response to Owner within ten days after receipt ofthe notice required under Section 14.1.3.1. Thereafter, the Owner 
shall render an initial decision within ten days of receiving the Design-Builder's response: (I) withdrawing the Claim 
in whole or in part, (2) approving the Claim in whole or in part, or (3) suggesting a compromise. 

§ 1'4ll.2 Claims Initiated by the Design-Builder. Iftho Design-Builder initiates a Claim, the Owner will take one or 
more ofthe following actions within ten days after receipt of the notice required under Section 14.1.3.1: (I) request 
additional supporting data, (2) render an initial decision rejecting the Claim in whole or in part, (3) render an initial 
decision approving the Claim, (4) suggest a compromise or (5) indicate that it is unable to render an initial decision 
because the Owner lacks sufficient information to evaluate the merits of the Claim. 

AJA Document A141. - 2014. CopyfVl'l:Cl2004 and2014 tJrTheAm■ricen I~ofAsdtil8dl,AI ~NIMNed. The "ArMric:an lnstitutr: ofArdli\e<:U,,' •A1A." 
lntt. ~:~~;io~~~=~~r::.;~=~~~:~t~==~~~Thr!=:u:~n:~=~ 31 

aocord■nce wilh the AIA Contract Oocumants• Terms of Semco. To report copyright violations, HnBII CDpyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

mailto:CDpyright@aia.org
https://B.3.2.10
https://ofArchitect&.AI


§ 14.2.3 Jn evaluating Claims, the Owner may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek information from 
persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Owner in rendering a decision. The retention of such 
persons shal1 be at the Owner's expense. 

§ 14.2.4 If the Owner requests the Design-Builder to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional supporting 
data, the Design.Builder shall respond, within ten days after receipt of such request, and shal1 either ( 1) provide a 
response on the requested supporting data, (2) advise the Owner when the response or supporting data will be 
furnished or (3) advise the Owner that no supporting data wilJ be furnished. Upon receipt ofthe response or supporting 
data, if any, the Owner will either reject or approve the Claim in whole or in part. 

§ 14.2.5 The Owner's initial decision shall (I) be in writing; (2) state the reasons therefor; and (3) identify any change 
in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be final and binding on the parties but subject 
to mediation and, ifthe parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding dispute resolution. 

§ 14.2.6 Either party may file for mediation ofan initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 14.2.6.1. 

§ 14.2.6.1 Either party may, within 30 days from the date of an initial decision, demand in writing that the other party 
file for mediation within 60 days of the initial decision. Jfsuch a demand is made and the party receiving the demand 
fails to file for mediation within the time required, then both parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue binding 
dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision. 

§ 14.2.7 Jn the eventofa Claim against the Design-Builder, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, if 
any, of the nature and amount of the C1aim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Design-Builder's default, the 
Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety's assistance in resolving the conb"oversy. 

§ 14.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic's lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in 
accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines. 

§ 14.3 Mediation 
§ 14.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract, except those waived 
as provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9. J0.5, and 14.1.7, shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to binding 
dispute resolution. 

§ 14.3.2 The parties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbib"ation Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, 
delivered to the other party to the Contrac4 and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The 
request may be made concurrently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings bu4 in such event, 
mediation shall proceed in advance ofbinding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending 
mediation for a period of60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties 
or court order. If an arbitration proceeding is stayed pursuant to this Section 14.3.2, the parties may nonetheless 
proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings. 

§ 14.3.3 The parties shall share the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place 
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction. 

§ 14.4 ArbHratlon 
§ 14.4.1 lfthe parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in Section 1.3, any Claim 
subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutua11y agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered 
to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration. The party filing a 
notice of demand for arbitration must assert in the demand all Claims then known to that party on which arbitration is 
permitted to be demanded. 

§ 14.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shalJ be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for 
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution oflegal or equitable proceedings based on 
the Claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations or statute ofrepose. For statute oflimitations or 
statute of repose purposes, receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the 
arbitration shalJ constitute the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim. 

§ 14.4.2 The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in 
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction. 

§ 14.4.3 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate, and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity 
duly consented to by parties to the Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable under applicable Jaw in any court 
having jurisdiction thereof. 

§ 14.4.4 Consolidation or Joinder 
§ 14.4.4.1 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any 
other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (I) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration 
pennits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantia11y involve common questions of law or fact, 
and (3) the arbitrations employ materialJy similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 

§ 14.4.4.2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a 
common question oflaw or fact whose presence is required ifcomplete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided 
that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional 
person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not 
described in the written consent. 

§ 14.4.4.3 The Owner and Design-Builder grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under 
this Section 14.4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights ofjoinder and consolidation as the Owner and 
Design-Builder under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 15 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 15.1 Governing Law 
The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located except that, if the parties have 
selected arbitration as the method ofbinding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 14.4. 

§ 15.2 Successors and Assigns 
§ 15.2.1 The Owner and Design-Builder, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to the covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Design~Build Documents. Except as 
provided in Section I5.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of 
the other. If either party attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless 
remain legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract. 

§ 15.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Design-Builder, assign the Contract to a lender providing 
construction financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner's rights and obligations under the Design-Build 
Documents. The Design-Bui1der shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate such assignment. 

§ 15.2.3 If the Owner requests the DesignwBuilder, Architect, Consultants, or Contractors to execute certificates, other 
than those required by Section 3.1.10, the Owner shall submit the proposed language of such certificates for review at 
least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests the Design-Builder, Architec4 
Consultants, or Contractors to execute consents reasonably required to faciHtate assignment to a lender, the 
Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, or Contractors shall execute a]I such consents that are consistent with this 
Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to them for review at least 14 days prior to execution. The 
Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, and Contractors shall not be required to execute certificates or consents that 
would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of their services. 

§ 15.3 Written Notice 
Written notice shalJ be deemed to have been duly served ifdelivered in person to the individual, to a member of the 
firm or entity, or to an officer of the corporation for which it was intended; or if deJivered at, or sent by registered or 

Al.A Document A 141. - 2014. Copyrlght02004 and 2014 by The American Institute ofArehiteds. All rights reserved. The "American lns1ituleof Architects• ·'AIA,· AIA Oocum111ntA1,1• -201,. Copyrighti!:12004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The "American lnstitLite of Architects._· •AiA."lnlt. lnft.
the AIA Logo, and 'AIA Contract Documents" are registered trademarl(s and may not be used withc.>ut permlssion. This document was produced by AIA software at J2 
14:24:21 ET on 03/2312022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used m ~~~;;~1L~~~,~~;;~~;;~::e~~~;re~:;~;~;~~~~re!_~hd:T:i~~~~~~t1~:~ :=:.~/i:~~J~~~t:eMu=~~~a~~=,~~S: ~ 33 
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents~ Terms of Service. To report copyright vlolalions. e-mail copyright@aie.org. accordance with the AIA Contract Documents~ Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, ~mail copyrighl@ala.org. 
UHr Note■: User Notes: (1365848397)(1365848397) 

mailto:copyrighl@ala.org
mailto:copyright@aie.org


.

certified mail or by courier service providing proofof delivery to. the last business address known to the party giving 
notice. 

§ 15.4 Rights and Remedies 
§ 15.4.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Design-Build Documents, and rights and remedies available 
thereunder, shaH be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, ob1igations. rights and remedies otherwise imposed or 
available by law. 

§ 15.4.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner or Design-Builder shall constitute a waiver ofa right or duty afforded 
them under the Contract:, nor sha11 such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach 
thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 

§ 15.5 Tes1s a!l(f ~ns 
§ 15.5.1 Tests, inspections and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Design-Build 
Documents and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations or lawful orders ofpublic 
authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Design-Builder shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections and 
approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public 
authotity, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections and approvals. The Design-Builder shall give the Owner 
timely notice ofwhen and wt,.ere tests aod inspections are to be made so that the Owner may be present for such 
procedures. The Owner shall .bear costs of(I) tests, inspections or approvals that do not become requirements until 
after bids are received or negotiations concluded, and (2) tests, inspections or approvals where building codes or 
applicable I.aw• or regulations prohibit the Owner from delegating their cost to the Design-Builder. 

§ 15.5.2 lfthe Owner determines that portions ofthe Work require additional testing, inspection or approval not 
included under Section 15.S.l, the Owner will instruct the Design-Builder to make arrangements for such additional 
testing, inspection or approval by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Design-Builder shall give timely notice to 
the Owner of when and where tests and inspections are to·be made so that the Owner may be present for such 
procedures. Such rosts, except as provided in Section 15.5.3, shall be at the Owner's expense. 

§ 15.5.3·Ifsuch procedures for testing, inspection or approval under Sections 15.5. I and 15.5.2 reveal failure of the 
portions ofthe Work to comply with requirements established by the Design-Build Documents, all costs made 
neccssacy by sucl, failure shall be a.t the Design-Builder's expense. 

§ 15.5.4 Required certificates oftesting, inspection or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Design-Build 
Documenis, be secured by the Design-Builder and promptly delivered to the Owner. 

§ ·1s.U If the Owner is to observe tests, inspections or approvals required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner 
will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place oftesting. 

§ ·15.5.1 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Design-Build Documents shall be made promptly to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the Work. 

§ 15.6 Confidential Information 
Ifthe Owner or Design-Bu!ldertraosmits Confidential Information, the transmission of such Confidential Information 
constitutes a warranty to the party receiving such Confidential Information that the transmitting party is authorized to 
transmit the Confidential Information. If a party receives Confidential Information, the receiving party shall keep the 
Confidential information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it to aoy other person or entity except as set forth 
in Section 15.6.1. 

§ 15.6.1 A party receiving Confidential Information may disclose the Confidential Information as required by law or 
court ordCr, including a subpoena or other fonn ofcompulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity. 
A party receiViilg Confidential lnfonnation may also disclose the Confidential Information to its employees, 
COnsµl~ts or contractors in order to perform services or work solely and exclusively for the Project, provided those 
employees► consultants and contractors are subject to the restrictions on the disclosure and use of Confidential ' 
Information as set forth in this Contract. 

ALA DocUfMntA1•f•- 201,. Copy,vhl020D4 and 2014 byTheAmelicen lnllltute ofArchllect1.AM rights reUNed. The "American lmstituteor Architects.""AIA."
lnlt. the AIA Logo. and "Al.a. Contr.iid OoctJmenb" a.re regbterod trademark~ and may not be used without poonission. This document wn prcdJc:ed by AJA software 91 34 

14:24:21 ET on03123Q022 undef"OrderNo2114287171 which expiresoo02/03rl023, is oot lor resale, lalcensedtorone-tlme use only, and may only be uaedin 
ecccrdalcewtth the AIA Contract OoctJme,m.Cl Teirms ol Service. To repo,t copyright violations, &mail copyright@aill.org. 
.,.., Nobts: (1365848397) 

§ 15.7 C.aplfallzatlon 
Terms capitali:zcd in the ContracJ: include those lbs:t are (l) specifically defined, /2) the titles ofnumbered articles qr 
(3) the titles ofother docamt:ll!S published bylhe Amencan Jl!ilitutc ofArchileci8. 

§ 15.8 lntarpretaHon 
§ 15.8.1 In the interest ef ~ty the Design,Bui.ld D..:wnents ~entlyomitl!]Odifyingwonlasucb as "all" 8Jld 
"m,y" and arik:les aucb. as "tlu,• and "an;" !rut the f8':I \bal a modi!le,, qr ~ :mti,:k,is ibocn,\ :from Qlle stll~l"!id 
appears in aoother is notintended to affect ti,., interpretation ,,f!'ither$a!ement 

§ 15.8.2 Unless otherwise stallod in iheDesign-Build.Documcnlll, words which bave wefl:kn<JWD ~)m.j~ or 
construction industry meaoings are used in the De&ign-Build Docwnents in accordanc,: ~ "'1Ch recognized 
meanings. 

ARTICLE 16 SCOPE OflllE AGRl:EMElfl' 
§ 1'$.1 This Agreement is comprised ofthe fol~ng doeumem listed below: 

.1 AIA Docutnent Al41 ™--2014, Sbmdnrd Form of:Agreement Between Owner an,U)csign-Builder 
;2 Exhib!t•A, Design-Build Amendment, if e>cecuted 
.3 E•xmbit B;Jnsurancc and Bond. 
.4 Exm'bitC, Owner's Prograot Docummts. Valley Cent=- Fire I'rolectionDistlictl\.eqtrest for 
ProJ>OWS fur Dcsil!"-Build Services F'rre Station ·Projects datod Fcbt;!!uy 2, 202i, iDcl~vc ofAitacbments 
1-8 aid Adilimda 1111242 arui :U¢atetl lmpro,cm..rt.Priority Lists for staiion No. I and 2 · · 
,5 Exhibitb, ColhJ)ellsation fur Wotic Compieted Prior to :Design-Build .Amendment 

.6 O!her: 

NIA 

TTtis Agreement entered into as ofthe day,and yem: first wril1eu above. 

-·---· ~-----
JosefG, Niiiiiet, Fite Chief D&vc Eric:1<.'911; CEO 
(Print#~/iiite'(W{ti!fJi) (Prinwltuilho:rmd.title) 

lnlL 
AJA Docum.ntA141.. - -101<1~-Copyi'lcifii.e •200'4and 20141,!ylbt~~d~All rlghtt1'M9Nilld. Toe·Ameocan lnStilul•·or An.h!wds: •AlA.~

~~;~~~r;;:!.-~f,~~~=.=-=,~=::=~:-~1:=-=:~~~S:.":~ 35 
~v.loiit-.,A~Contr8"'·0ocl.me!iu"t..,,,,<>1Se- To,_.oo~l--A-s, -aop~-"'11- . 
U&&rllotu: . 11.~l 

https://lmpro,cm..rt
https://Design,Bui.ld
mailto:copyright@aill.org
https://OoctJme,m.Cl
https://ofArchllect1.AM


m.. 
:a 
:c 
>< w 



Insurance Requirements for ALL District Contracts 

Table of Contents 

Insurance Requirements 

Page3 Commercial General Liability 

Page4 Workers Compensation 

Page4 Excess or Umbrella Liability 

Page 5 Business Auto 

Page 5 Professional Liability / E&O 

Page6 Pollution Liability 

Page7 Provisions for All Required Insurance for District Contractors 

2 

Prior to the beginning ofand throughout the duration ofthe Services, and for any 
additional period of time as specified below, CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and 
expense, maintain insurance in conformance with the requirements set forth below. 
CONTRACTOR shall submit Certificates of Insurance for the District's review and 
acceptance. The Notice to Proceed shall not be issued, and CONTRACTOR shall not 
commence Services until such insurance has been accepted by the District. 

No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement 
are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR hereunder. 

A. Commercial General Liabilitv 

a. CONTRACTOR shall provide Commercial General Liability insurance covering 
claims for Bodily, Injury, Personal and Advertising In.jury, and Property Damage 
o1 a policy form that provides coverage at least as broad as coverage provided 
under the Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 0 I, and that includes, but 
is not limited to, the coverage limits and coverage provisions outlined below. 

b. The required coverage limits shall be the greater ofthe broader coverage and 
maximum limits ofcoverage ofany insurance policy or proceeds available to the 
Ninned Insured, including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the following: 

$5,000,000 per Occurrence Each Pollution Condition; 
$5,000,000 Aggregate Liability. 
$2,000,000 General Aggregate; 
$2,000,000 Products - Completed Operations 

Aggregate. 

c. Coverage must be on an "occurrence" basis. 

d. Coverage must be included for "products-completed operations" without any 
''prior work" coverage limitation or exclusion applicable to any Services to be 
performed under this Agreement. 

e. Contractual Liability coverage at least as broad as coverage provided by the ISO 
CG 00 01 policy form must be included. 

f. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional 
Insureds on a primary and noncontributory basis The additional insureds must be 
covered for: 

i. Liability arising out of any premises or property utilized for any Services 
performed under this Agreement, and 

ii. Liability arising out ofor related to this Agreement, including any 
Services performed hereunder by or on behalfof CONTRACTOR, and 

3 



iii. Products and completed operations of CONTRACTOR. 

A severability of interests provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, ensuring 
that CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom 
claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer's limits ofliability. 

B. Workers' Compensation and Em plover's Liabilitv 

Workers' Compensation coverage shall be on a state-approved policy form providing 
statutory benefits as required by law and Employer's Liability coverage with limits no 
less than $1,000,000 per accident or disease for all covered losses. IfCONTRACTOR is 
self-insured with respect to Workers' Compensation coverage, CONTRACTOR shall 
provide a Certificate ofConsent to Self-Insure from the California Department of 
Industrial Relations confirming CONTRACTOR's self-insured status. Such self
insurance shall meet the minimum limit requirements and waive subrogation rights in 
favor of the District as stated below. If the CONTRACTOR is a sole proprietorship or 
partnership, with no employees, and is exempt from carrying Workers Compensation 
insurance, CONTRACTOR must submit a letter to the District stating that he/she is either 
the owner of the entity or a partner of the entity performing the Services, and is exempt 
from the State of California's Workers Compensation requirements because he/she has 
no employees. 

CONTRACTOR and its Workers' Compensation insurance must waive any rights of 
subrogation against the District and its directors, officers, officials, agents, volunteers, 
and employees, and CONTRACTOR shall defend and pay any damages as a result of 
failure to provide the waiver of subrogation from the insurance carrier(s ). 

C. Excess or Umbrella Liabililv Insurance 

Ifexcess or umbrella policies are used to meet the insurance requirements of this 
Agreement, they shall provide coverage at least as broad as specified for the underlying 
coverages, and the full limits of the umbrella or excess coverage shall be available to the 
District. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers and employees must be covered as additional insureds and 
such policy or policies shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that coverage 
shall also apply on a primary and noncontributory basis to the District before the 
District's own primary insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a 
Named Insured. A severability of interests provision must apply for all additional 
insureds, ensuring that CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom the claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the 
insurer's limits ofliability. 
1. Business Auto Liabili ty 

4 

a. CONTRACTOR shall provide Business Auto Liability coverage on a policy form 
that provides coverage at least as broad as coverage provided under ISO Business 
Auto Coverage form CA 00 01, and that includes, but is not limited to, the 
coverage limits and coverage provisions outlined below. 

b. Coverage must be provided for "Bodily Injury" and "Property Damage" Liability 
caused by an accident and resulting from the ownership, maintenance or use of 
covered autos. 

c. The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and 
maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the 
Named Insured, including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the minimum 
limits specified below: 

$1,000,000 per Occurrence/Accident for Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage Liability. 

d. Covered "autos" must include all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. 

e. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional 
Insureds with respect to "any auto" owned, leased, hired or borrowed by 
CONTRACTOR. The policy(ies) shall contain or be endorsed to contain a 
provision that coverage shall apply on a primary and noncontributory basis to the 
District before the District's own primary insurance or self-insurance shall be 
called upon to protect it as a Named Insured. 

f. A severability of interests provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, 
ensuring that CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer's 
limits ofliability. 

g. [Where applicahle] The policy shall be endorsed to include Transportation 
Pollution Liability insurance covering materials to be transported by 

CONTRACTOR in any Services to be performed under this Agreement. 

Alternatively, this coverage may be provided on the CONTRACTOR's Pollution 

Liability Policy. 

2. Professional Liabilitv (aka Errors and Omissions) 
*Architects, Engineers, Surveyors and Third-Party Construction Management Entities. 

The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and maximum 
limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the Named Insured, 
including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the following: $1,000,000 per 

5 



occurrence or claim and $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage may be written on a claims
made fonn . If coverage is on a claims-made basis, the coverage must be maintained for 
at least 3 years after all Services under this Agreement are complete and additional 
claims-made coverage requirements apply as described below. 

Pollution Liability 

a. CONTRACTOR shall provide polJution liability coverage that includes, but is not 
limited to, the coverage limits and coverage provisions outlined below. 

b. Coverage must be included for bodily injury and property damage, including 
coverage for loss ofuse and diminution in property value, and for resultant clean
up costs, arising out of the or resulting from: 

(i) any Services performed under this Agreement, including 
(ii) any storage or transportation, including the loading or unloading of, 

hazardous wastes, hazardous materials, or contaminants. 
The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and 
maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the 
Named Insured, including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the following: 

$5,000,000 per Occurrence Each Pollution Condition; 
$5,000,000 Aggregate Liability. 

c. Coverage may be written on a claims-made form. If coverage is on a claims
made basis, the coverage must be maintained for at least 3 years after all Services 
performed under this Agreement are complete and additional claims-made 
coverage requirements apply as described below. 

d. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional 
Insureds by way ofan endorsement to the policy. The policy(ies) shall also 
contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that coverage shall apply on a 
primary and noncontributory basis to the District before the District's own 
primary insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a Named 
Insured. 

e. A severability of interests provision must apply for all the additional insureds, 
ensuring that CON1RACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer's 
limits ofliability. 

Provisions for All Required Insurance for District Contractors 

A. Deductibles, Self-Insurance, Self-Insured Retentions 
Any deductibles, self-insurance, or self-insured retentions (SIRs) applicable to required 
insurance coverage must be declared to and accepted by the District. At the option and 

6 

request of the District, CONTRACTOR shall provide documentation ofits financial 
ability to pay the deductible, self-insurance, or SIR. 

B. Acceptability of Insurers 
Unless otherwise reviewed and accepted by the District, all required insurance must be 
placed with insurers with a current A. M. Best's rating ofno less than A - VII. The 
insurers shall be admitted, or approved by the Surplus Lines Association, to do business 
in California. 

C. Claims-made Coverage 
For any coverage that is provided on a claims-made coverage form (which type of form 
is permitted only where specified in the insurance requirements outlined above): 
(i) The retroactive date must be shown, and must be before the date of this Agreement, 

and before the beginning ofany Services related to this Agreement. 
(ii) Insurance must be maintained and Certificates of Insurance must be provided to the 

District for at least three (3) years after expiration of this Agreement. 
(iii) If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 

policy form with a retroactive date prior to the effective date of this Agreement or the 
start of any Services related to tltis Agreement, CONTRACTOR must purchase an 
extended reporting period for a minimum ofthree (3) years after expiration of the 
Agreement. 

(iv) Ifrequested by the District, a copy of the policy's claims reporting requirement must 
be submitted to the District for review. 

D, Notice of Claims 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide immediate notice to the District ofany loss or claim 
against CONTRACTOR arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, or Services 
performed under this Agreement. The District assumes no obligation or liability by such 
notice, but has the right (but not the duty) to monitor the handling of any such claim or 
claims if they are likely to involve the District. 

E. Proof of Compliance 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide evidence of insurance required herein, satisfactory to 
the District, consisting of Certificates of Insurance, evidencing all of the coyerages 
required. CONTRACTOR agrees, upon request by the District, to provide complete, 
certified copies of any policies witlrin IO days of such request. (Copies ofpolicies may be 
redacted to eliminate premium details.) All Certificates of Insurance must be received 
and accepted by the District before any Services are performed under this Agreement 
commences. Acceptance ofCONTRACTOR's Certificates of Insurance or any other 
evidence of insurance coverage does not constitute any guarantee that CONTRACTOR's 
insurance meets the requirements herein. It is CONTRA.CTOR's responsibility to ensure 
its compliance with these insurance requirements. Any actual or alleged failure on the 
part of the District to obtain proof of insurance required under this Agreement shall not in 
any way be construed to be a waiver of any right or remedy of the District, in this or any 
regard. 

F. Notice of Cancellation/Non-Re■ ewal/Materlal Reduction 

7 



CONTRACTOR agrees to provide written notice to the District thirty (30) days prior to 
cancellation of coverage required under this Agreement, or of any material reduction or 
non-renewal of such coverage, other than for non-payment ofpremium which shall 
require a I 0-day prior written notification. Replacement of coverage with another policy 
or insurer, without any lapse in coverage or any reduction below these requirements does 
not require notice beyond submission to the District of an updated Certificate of 
Insurance. 

EXHIBIT C 

Updated Improvement Priority Lists for Station No. 1 and 2 (3/23/22) 

Improvement Priority List for Fire Station No. 1 
Increase the height of the apparatus bay doors (front side) and automatic openers for rear 
Install a new two-stage compressor and construct a compressor enclosure. Plumb the 
apparatus bay for compressed air 
Design and install a new HVAC system throughout the main fire station building (both sides). 
Reconfigure the living space to provide two dorm spaces and dayroom space for three 
personnel 
Reconfigure crew restroom and kitchen to modernize the kitchen, bathroom and day room 
space and bring the refrigerators out of the apparatus bay into the kitchen. 

Improvement Priority List for Fire Station No. 2 
Increase the height of the apparatus bay doors (both sides) 
Design and install a new HVAC system throughout the fire station. 
Reconfigure dorm space to improve functionality and comfort 
Remodel the kitchen to provide space for three refrigerators (to be relocated from the laundry 
area) 
Provide a screened in area with a half-wall and exercise flooring for the rear patio area where 
the exercise equipment is located 
Replace and expand the concrete area in the rear of the station 

8 



EXHIBIT C 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALVALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
DESIGN/BUILD SERVICES REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR DESIGN-BUILD SERVICES 

FIRE STATION PROJECTS 
1.0 INTRODUCTIONDecember 2. 2021 

1.1 VCFPD, is issuing this Request for Proposal to solicit proposals from DesignValley Center Fire Protection District (VCFPD), is soliciting proposals from three pre-qualified 
Build Entities (D-BEs) to provide pre-construction, design, value engineering, 
constructability review, construction management, construction and operations, 

Design-Build Entities (D-BEs) to design and construct a temporary fire station and fire station 
improvement projects to serve the community ofValley Center. The temporary fire station site 
is located northwest of the intersection of Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane. The fire and startup and commissioning services for a new temporary fire station to be 

located northwest ofthe intersection ofCole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane in 
the community ofValley Center and for fire station improvements at VCFPD 

station improvement projects are located at VCFPD Station Nos. 1 and 2. 

Station Nos. I and 2. This RFP is the second step in the two-step Design-Build process set forth in the design-build 
provisions ofthe Public Contract Code. Proposals shall be accepted from the following three 
Design-Build Entities who were pre-qualified by the VCFPD in step one ofthe process, Request This Request for Proposal (RFP) is the second step in the two-step Design-Build 

process set forth in the design-build provisions of the Public Contract Code. 
Proposals shall only be accepted from the three Design-Build Entities (D-BEs) 
who were pre-qualified by the VCFPD in step one ofthe process, Request for 

for Statements ofQualifications (RFSQ): 

• EC Constructors, Inc./JKA Architecture 
Statements ofQualifications (RFSQ). • Erickson-Hall/PBK-WLC Architects 

• I.E. Pacific, Inc.ffectonics A-E 
The D-BE is to provide a Design-Build Team (DBn that shall consist of the D
BE and all relevant Aichitects/Engineers/Designers. All DBT members shall be Proposals for the VCFPD Flre Station Projects must be received on or before 2:00 p.m. on 
licensed/registered with the State of California under their respective professions. Januarv 10, 2022, at the following address: 
The VCFPD discourages identifying subcontractors in the proposal. The VCFPD 
would like to be involved in decisions regarding subcontractor selection toJoe Napier, Flre Chief 
promote competition and to ensure best value selections. Valley Center Fire Protection District 

28234 Lilac Road 
This RFP describes all the elements of the projects, the required scope of services,Valley Center, CA 92082 
the DB-E selection process, and minimum information that must be included in 
the proposal. Failure to submit information in accordance with the RFP's One hard copy original, four (4) hard copies, and one electronic copy of the proposal shall be 
requirements and procedures may be a cause for d,isqualification. received by the Fire Chief's office, within said time limit, in a sealed envelope identified on the 

outside with the Offeror's Business Name, RFP for the Valley Center Fire Protection District 
1.2 A ward will be based on best value, not on lowest responsible bidder. Fire Station Projects and the Due Date. As the selection of the D-BE will be based on VCFPD's 

determination of"Best Value", there will be no public opening of proposals. 
2.0 BACKGROUND 

Written questions regarding this RFP must be received no later than December 15, 2021. 
The VCFPD obtained County approval of a Lot Line Adjushnent to establish a 10-acreQuestions may then be responded to by written amendment to this document. Oral statements 
parcel for acquisition by the VCFPD. The VCFPD now owns the approximately JO-acre or instructions shall not constitute an amendment to the RFP. All questions shall be in 
parcel shown in Attachment 1 and plans to construct a permanent fire station on the sitewriting and shall be directed to: 
in the future. The portion of the I 0-acre site planned for the temporary fire station is 
located on the most northerly portion of the property to allow the temporary station to Robin Biglione via email at: robinraeputnam(algmail.com. All questions and answers shall be 
remain operational while the permanent facility is under construction. Attachment 2 is distributed to all proposers. 
the conceptual Site Plan for Temporary Fire Station No. 3 . 

Sincerely, 
As part of the Lot Line Adjushnent planning process, County Planning & Development 
Services determined that a Site Plan Exemption would be appropriate for the Temporary 

Joe Napier, Fire Chief Fire Station No. 3 project, so the temporary fire station project has been referred to 
County Building for further processing. In discussions with the County, it appears that a 

2 

https://robinraeputnam(algmail.com


Plot Plan will be required to be processed, which will include review by the Valley 
Center Planning Group. 

Aside from the Plot Plan process, is appears that the processing will include standard 
County commercial building plan and large grading plan submittal requirements. 
Attachment 3 includes the County's applicable building and grading submittal handouts. 
For purposes of the scope of work, DBs should assume that the County will require a 
hydrology study and SWMP to accompany the grading plan submittal and that a NOi and 
SWPPP will be required to meet stormwater compliance requirements. In addition, DB
Es should assume landscape and irrigation plans will be required for the slopes created 
following grading for the temporary fire station. The DB-E will be responsible for 
working with the County to determine the specific submittal requirements. 

3.0 DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

The Project includes design and construction of Temporary Fire Station No. 3 as 
conceptually shown on Attachment 2 and described in Attachment 4. Attachment 5 
includes a preliminary geotechnical study prepared for the entire I 0-acre Fire Station No. 
3 site. The D-BE's work on Temporary Fire Station No. 3 will begin with a though 
review of the conceptual Site Plan. The D-BE will work with the VCFPD to make 
revisions to that Site Plan prior to proceeding with preparation of construction plans and 
required studies for review and approval by the County. The Temporary Fire Station No. 
3 project will require architectural, structural, mechanical, plumbing, electrical 
engineering, on-site wastewater treatment design and landscape and irrigation design. 

The Temporary Fire Station No. 3 project includes relocation of the temporary fire station 
facilities from a temporary fire station site located at 2604 Overlook Point Drive, 
Escondido, CA, 92029, and extending permanent water and electrical utilities from Cole 
Grade Road to the project site. The D-BE will be responsible for coordinating with 
Valley Center Municipal Water District and San Diego Gas & Electric and preparing the 
necessary plans for utility extension. The budget for Temporary Fire Station No. 3 is $1 
million. 

In addition, the project includes approximately $500,000 in improvements to Fire 
Stations No. 1 and 2, with approximately one-half of the $500,000 budget to be allocated 
to each station. The selected DB-E will work with VCFPD to accomplish as many of the 
projects from each station's priority list as possible. Attachment 6 includes priority lists 
for the stations. 

The Project will include all design, engineering, permits, grading, construction, material, 
labor, special observation, inspection, testing, and verification. D-BE will be responsible 
for obtaining all required permits, including federal, state, and local governance as well 
as coordination with all utilities and other regulatory agencies, start up and 
commissioning required for occupancy and operations. The VCFPD will pay the actual 
cost of all permits and fees, including County and agency plan check and inspection fees. 

4.0 DESIGN BUILD SERVICES 
The services sought by this RFP include all services necessary to design and construct 
the Project. The design and construction must comply with the requirements of all 
applicable Federal, State, County, and local agencies having jurisdiction over the 
Project. The D-BE shall work to obtain approvals in increments that will facilitate the 
schedule. The completed Project is to be a fully functioning temporary fire station and 
fully functioning fire station improvements as described in this RFP. 

4.1 The Scope of Work includes, but is not limited to, the following services during 
design, approvals, construction, and closeout: 

I . Architectural and engineering design services, including structural, civil, 
stormwater, on-site wastewater, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, 
landscape, fire sprinkler, and fire alarm systems. 

2. Geotechnical Engineering, testing, investigation, and observation. 

3. Material testing and special inspection services. 

4. Survey, layout, and staking. 

5. Submittals and approvals from all agencies having jurisdiction, 

6. Project engineering and project management. 

7. Supervision, safety program, quality assurance/quality control, and site 
security. 

8. Abatement, demolition (ifrequired), material recycling/diversion 
program, and removal. 

9. Construction, materials, equipment, labor and supplies. 

10. Site clearing, soil import/export, on-site grading, and off-site grading as 
required. Construction and coordination with utilities regarding 
communication loops and connections, for complete and operating 
systems. 

11. Startup of systems and equipment and commissioning. 

12. Coordination and scheduling of work. 

13. Insurance and bonding. 

14. Temporary facilities and services required for construction ofthe Project 
including, but not limited to: temporary office facilities, signage, fencing 
for site control, etc. 

15. Design and installation of communications, alerting, and alarm, including 
both backbone and secondary distribution to equipment. The D-BE will 
coordinate with the VCFPD's IT Manager who will specify, purchase and 
install computer systems in coordination with the D-B. The trailers to be 
relocated to the site include sprinklers and smoke detectors. These 
systems will have to be connected to electrical and water facilities and 

3 4 



wired to a local alann bell. The D-BE will be responsible for designing with the requirements ofLabor Code Sections 1770, et seq. Nothing in this RFP is 
the alerting system and providing the alerting system equipment for the intended nor should it be interpreted as contravening the provisions ofthat code. 
Temporary Fire Station. The alerting system used by VCFPD is US 
Digital Designs Phoenix G2. 5.3 The D-BE shall be fully knowledgeable of and shall comply with the provisions of 

Public Contract Code Section 1770, et seq., including the general prevailing wage rates 16. Meetings, reporting, and documentation including preparation and proper 
and reporting requirements. Further, the D-BE shall be fully knowledgeable and submittal of certified payroll . 
comply with the provisions ofPublic Contract Code Section 22160, et seq. which 

17. Coordination, scheduling and conducting ofprogress meetings with include provisions related to the design-build delivery method. 
VCFPD representatives and the Architect as required and directed by the 
VCFPD. 6.0 RFP SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

18. Compliance of the design and construction with all applicable codes, 
ordinances, regulations, and requirements of agencies having jurisdiction 6.1 General RFP Requirements: 

over the Project. All D-BEs are required to follow the format specified below. The content of the 
proposal must be clear, concise, and complete. Each section ofthe proposal shall be 

4.2 The selected D-BE shall be responsible for completion of the design and presented according to the outline shown below to aid in expedient information 

construction of the Project in accordance with: retrieval. 

One (I) original and four (4) copies and one electronic copy ofthe sealed proposal 
shall be delivered no later than 2:00 P.M. on Monday. Januarv 10. 2022. to: 

I. TheRFP. 

2. The Contract. 

3. The D-BE's Proposal. Joe Napier, Fire Chief 
Valley Center Fire Protection District 

4. The approved design and construction documents. 
28234 Lilac Road 

5. The required agency approvals. Valley Center, CA 92082 

6. The agreed Project Schedule. 
Please note that faxed copies will not be accepted. Also note that incomplete 

7. The Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP). Please note that this project proposals, incorrect information, or late submittals may be cause for immediate 
will use the "Progressive" design-build delivery method . The project will disqualification. The VCFPD reserves the rightto amend the RFP prior to the date 
be delivered in two distinct phases, pre-construction and construction. that proposals are due. Amendments to the RFP shall be emailed to all potential D
The GMP and schedule will be established after the project has been BEs. The VCFPD reserves the right to extend the date by which the proposals are due. 
sufficiently designed, working in collaboration with the VCFPD, to meet 
the project' s goals. The VCFPD shall maintain control over design 6 .1.1 The proposal should be concise, well organized and demonstrate the D-BE's 
definition. The contract will be established on a cost plus fee basis, with qualifications and experience applicable to the Project. The proposal shall be 
a Guaranteed Maximum Pri.ce. The contract will require full inclusive of resumes, graphics, forms, pictures, photographs, dividers, front 
transparency into the D-BE's cost, including an ability to be involved in and back cover, cover letter, etc. 
subcontractor procurement and best value selection of subcontractors. 
The contract will be structured so that all savings are returned to the 6.2 Contents 
VCFPD. Sealed proposals submitted in response to this RFP shall be in the following order and 

shall include: 
5.0 PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS 

6.2. l General Information: 
5.1 The undertaking and accomplishment of this Project is required by State law to comply 1. Executive Summary. 

with the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 22160, et seq. Nothing in this 2. Provide a narrative (maximum 4 pages) that highlights D-BE's 
RFP is intended nor should be interpreted as contravening the provisions ofthat Code approach to this project and D-BE's commitment to meet or exceed the 
as it relates to design build and best value. VCFPD's objectives and ensure a successful project built on time and 

within budget. 
5.2 The undertaking and accomplishment ofthis project is required by State law to comply 

6 



3. If a trade contractor is listed in the RFP for preconstruction 3. Describe how the Design-Build team will participate together in 
services, provide all qualifications as well as a narrative describing design review, constructability review, estimating, value 
their added value in the preconstruction process. engineering, scheduling and phasing, and construction methods. 

4. The VCFPD's evaluation ofD-BE will consider its entire team; 4. Identify each DBT member. Provide a description ofany design
therefore, no changes in team composition will be allowed without build fire station projects that the team has completed together and 
prior written approval of the VCFPD. The VCFPD reserves theprovide contact information for references for those projects. 
right to review and approve subconsultants not listed in the5. Legal name and address. 
proposal. Describe DBT's capacity to perform the work within the 6. Name, title, address and telephone number ofperson(s) to be 
time limitations, considering DBT's current and planned workload assigned to Project. 
and DBT's workforce.7. Name, title, address and telephone number ofperson to contact 

concerning the proposal. 
6.2.6 Exceptions to this RFP and Contract Form 

The D-BE shall certify that it takes no exceptions to this RFP or the6.2.2 Lifecycle Cost Analysis 
anticipated use ofAIA Owner-Design-Builder Agreement Al41-2014. IfProvide a narrative and spreadsheet including a 15 year lifecycle cost 
the D-BE does take exception(s) to any portion of the RFP or the use ofanalysis for Temporary Fire Station No.3, which should include, but not 
AIA Owner-Design-Builder Agreement Al41-2014, the specific portion be limited to energy consumption costs, operation and maintenance costs, 

life expectancy, replacement costs, and total cost of ownership over fifteen of the RFP or Agreement to which exception is taken shall be identified 
and explained. (15) years. 

6.2.7 Addenda to this RFP 

Provide a schedule that that includes major tasks from Notice of Award to 
6.2.3 Project Schedule 

DB-E shall confirm in its proposal the receipt of all addenda issued to this 

Final Completion. Also, confirm that DBT can meet the VCFPD's Final RFP. D-BE is not required to include copies of the actual addenda in its 

Completion date of October 27, 2022. proposal. 

6.2.4 Preliminary Costs 6.2.8 Additional Information 

Complete Preliminary Cost Worksheet in format detailed in Attachment 7. This section shall contain all the other pertinent information that is 

The Preliminary Cost Worksheet requests costs for design and pre required to be submitted with the proposal in the following order: 

construction. The DB-E's fee percentage for construction and costs for I . Confirmation that DBT can meet the insurance requirements 

General Conditions/General Requirements are also requested. In addition, specified in this RFP. 

percentages for payment and performance bonds, liability insurance and 2. Indicate whether D-BE proposes to self-perform construction work 

builder's risk insurance are requested. and, if so, what trades. The VCFPD discourages identifying work 
to be self-performed in the proposal . The VCFPD would like to be 

6.2.5 Project Organization and Key Personnel involved in decisions regarding subcontractor selection and work 

I . Describe proposed Project organization and provide an to be self-performed to promote competition and to ensure best 

organizational chart, including identification and responsibilities of value selections. 
key personnel. 3. Provide the following information: 

2. Describe the D-BE's staffing plan during preconstruction and a) List of fire station and other municipal design-build 
construction. Identify which staffmembers will be on-site. projects completed in the last year. 
Provide the percentage of each staffmember's time that will be b) Provide references for the work of the D-BE on the projects 
devoted to the project during both design and construction. listed in a). 
Indicate the role and responsibilities of the D-BE and all 
subconsu)tants. Indicate how local firms are being utilized to 7.0 PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA 
ensure a strong understanding of local laws, ordinances, 
regulations, policies, requirements, permitting, etc. Indicate extent 7. I Selection of the DB will be based on best value, not on lowest responsible bidder. 
of commitment of key personnel for duration ofProject (through Proposals shall be evaluated and ranked based on best value as determined by the 
building occupation) and furnish resumes ofkey personnel. following factors and relative weights of importance: 

7 8 



I. 15% - Overall experience and technical competence of the teams(s) 
(including principal firms and sub-consultants) and demonstrated specific 
experience and technical competence on projects with similar design, 
coordination and construction complexity. Experience as a team is an 
important consideration in this factor. 

2. I0% - Appropriateness of Staffing Levels as indicated on the DB Cost for 
Preconstruction Services and General Conditions/General Requirements 
breakdowns required as attachments to the Preliminary Cost Worksheet 
(Attachment 7). 

3. 15% - The experience ofkey DB-E and Architect pttsonnel working on 
fire station and other municipal projects together. Projects with a design
build delivery method will be evaluated most positively. 

4. 10% - Rates and Fees including Preconstruction Costs, D-BE Fees, 
General Conditions/General Requirements, payment anif performance 
bond rates, and insurance rates. 

5. 5% - Life cycle costs over 15 years for Temporary Fire Station No. 3. 

6. 20% - Project approach, including proposed methods and overall strategic 
plan to accomplish the work in a timely and competent manner, including 
Preliminary Schedule. Demonstration ofunderstanding of the role of 
teamwork for a successful Progressive Design-Build project. 

7. I0% - Combination ofthe following factors: 
a. Conformance to the specified RFP requirements and format. 
b. Organization, presentation, and content of the submittal. 
c. Knowledge and understanding of the State and local environment 

and a local presence for interfacing with the VCFPD. 

8. 15% - Proposal Interview - Optional at Discretion of VCFPD 

7.2 The VCFPD reserves the right to discuss and negotiate scope, costs, and schedule 
as needed starting with the top rated D-BE, followed by next highest rated, and so 
forth. At any time prior to the VCFPD executing a Design-Build contract with 
the selected firm, ifthat D-BE cannot meet any of the RFP conditions, the 
VCFPD has the option of opening negotiations with the next highest rated D-BE. 

7.3 The VCFPD may conduct interviews as part of the evaluation process. lfthe 
VCFPD does conduct interviews, information provided during the interviews will 
be taken into consideration when evaluating the stated criteria. The VCFPD will 
not reimburse the D-BEfor the costs associated with the interview process. 
Interviews will be held at a time and place specified by the VCFPD. The DBTs 
key project team members will be invited to attend the interview. At the 
interview, the DBTs should be prepared to discuss their specific experience 

9 

providing services similar to those described in the RFP, project approach, 
estimated work effort, available resources, and other pertinent things that 
distinguish your team from others. 

7.4 The VCFPD reserves the right to make such additional investigations as it deems 
necessary to establish the competence and financial stability of any D-BE 
submitting a proposal. 

7.5 The VCFPD may take previous experiences with the proposer into consideration 
when evaluating qualifications and experience. 

8.0 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

8.1 The D-BE shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract, insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, which may arise 
from or in connection with-the performance of the work hereunder by the DBT, 
his/her agents, representatives, employees or sub-consultants. All sub-contractors 
and sub-consultants shall be required to comply with the applicable insurance 
provisions. The maintenance ofproper coverage is a material element of the 
Design-Build Contract and that failure to maintain or renew coverage or to 
provide evidence ofrenewal may be treated by the VCFPD as a material breach of 
contract. 

8.2 Minimum Insurance Requirements 

See Attachment 8 for insurance requirements. Before an exposure to loss may 
occur, the D-BE shall file with the VCFPD certificates of insurance and 
additional insured endorsements on forms specified by the VCFPD, 
providing evidence ofthe required insurance. Each policy shall contain a 
provision that the policy will not be canceled or allowed to expire until at least 
thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the VCFPD. 

9.0 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

9.1 All response documents become the property of VCFPD and subject to Public 
Records Act requirements of California Government Code section 6250, et seq. 
D-BE is encouraged to mark any documents "CONFIDENTIAL" that they deem 
to be confidential before submission to VCFPD. Information provided will be 
kept confidential to the extent permitted by law. The proprietary or confidential 
data shall be readily separable from the Proposal in order to facilitate eventual 
public inspection of the non-confidential portion ofthe Proposal. 

VCFPD assumes no responsibility for disclosure or use of unmarked data for any 
purpose. 

10 



10.0 PROPOSAL SCHEDULE 

I0.1 The solicitation receipt and evaluation ofproposals and the selection of the D-BE 
will conform to the following schedule (Note: Dates are subject to change): 

Distribution of RFP - December 2, 2021 

• Deadline for Questions on RFP-December 15, 2021 

Submittal of Proposals Deadline - January I0, 2022, by 2:00 p.m. 

Interviews with Selected Respondents - January 2022 

Approval ofDesign/Build Contract(s) -February 17, 2022 

Final Completion Date - October 27, 2022 

11.0 CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

11.1 Selection is dependent upon the negotiation of a mutually acceptable contract 
with the successful D-BE. 

11.2 Each submittal shall be valid for not less than one hundred and twenty ( 120) 
calendar days from the date ofreceipt. 

11.3 All insurance shall be provided at the sole cost and expense of the D-BE selected, 
and shall be reimbursable in accordance with contract terms, unless the 
requirement is modified or waived by the VCFPD. The VCFPD reserves the right 
to modify the insurance limits or to substitute project insurance during contract 
negotiations. 

11.4 The selected D-BE will enter into a contract in substantially the same form as 
AIA A141-2014 Owner-Design-Builder Agreement. 

11.5 The VCFPD is under no obligation to award a contract under this RFP, and 
reserves the right to terminate the RFP process at any time, reject any or all 
Proposals received and/or to withdraw from discussions with all or any of the D
B Es who have responded. 

11.6 The VCFPD in its sole discretion, reserves the right to terminate the RFP process 
and re-advertise with either the identical or revised terms, if it is deemed by the 
VCFPD in its sole discretion to be in the best interest of the VCFPD to do so. 

11.7 In the event of rejection of any or all responses, or the termination of the RFP 
process, the VCFPD shall not be liable for any loss, damage, cost or expense 
incurred or suffered by any offerer as a result of said rejection or cancellation. 

II 

11.8 D-BEs warrant and covenant that no official or employee of the VCFPD, nor any 
business entity in which an official or employee of the VCFPD has an interest, 
has been employed or retained to solicit or aid in the RFP process nor have any 
such persons divulged any information to a D-BE not made available to all D
BEs. Further no official or employee of the VCFPD, nor any business entity in 
which an official or employee of the VCFPD has an interest, shall have any 
interest in any contract awarded to a D-BE. 

12.0 QUESTIONS 

All contacts from a D-BE related to this RFP or its Proposal must be directed by email to the 
VCFPD's construction manager at the email address below. D-BEs should not attempt to 
contact other VCFPD personnel. 

Robin Biglione 
Biglione Construction Management, Inc. 
Email: robinraeputnam ra1cmail.com 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Site Location Map 
2. Site Plan for Temporary Fire Station No. 3 
3. County of San Diego Building and Grading Handouts 
4. Temporary Fire Station No. 3 Scope of Work 
5. Preliminary Geotechnical Study for Temporary Fire Station No. 3 Site 
6. Improvement Priority Lists for Station No. 1 and 2 
7. Preliminary Cost Worksheet 
8. Insurance Requirements 

Note: The plans and reports provided in the Attachments are for reference only. The D-BE is 
responsible for verifying all information provided. 

12 

https://robinraeputnamra1cmail.com


-'r;. \ \ 

AYA!N ') 
' 

. ' ;··. ·1 " . ._J', Valley Center 

.~- ~. 
a, 

.. ~-i: 

:···.,,""' ,) .r 7( ~~ ..--•.-.::<"' 

'• 

,:: 
..., 
-~ 

·" 

s /,i 1sirnt;v ,c,yYr·-, '.' 
I ,. (•··~ ~, '.

\, ,j,J.,fc'?'> j f!.!lf,_!JA~--~---~g 
"·:.:;:;;:;:( ~:\ :· 

·\.' ('-.,. ,.,,;-- •,., 

.i \ "(: .. .,..:_ -f~Y.1:9·.c...----,~~·:·?::._l -_-:·y L_,.·. 
l COOL VAr'tU ii'D ·, ·x \ 'rrovi VAil[/fio

·~t',::&e+~i/···_ t;:· 
':--·--

• ''\._' • .'•. C • ""--' .•·-,•-•••·· ',.'" _.,..,,, 

SITE .~ · ,~. 
\ 

~~0~xt1t. 
'<.,.~. 

. '\ ?1_/j., Ff,.~_~,(Y 

' .

~1£
,~(t~: 

~ofb~l' ! 

),
VIA FN!.:A'N.TA'{)(I,,, .. •· ·-·· ,., 

·-.\1 

-) \'_' ( 't''' ~-- _J::.. ·,. \,·a,u;,~~},:I/J''!•,.•~t• _~---
□. 

. 
•• :.,~ .......,r:.,. ·. 

1-:: 

j~---
;::::' 
•!1=: _, 

r.:,,. 
~;. 
0.:' 
<.:;; 

~!

,.,,.,.-~i 
~--:\,··, . 

~.~fl~l"CO "tN .; 

•· 

/~ ~-'. 

~ .. 
;z.,·7 

·t· 
~ _.:-. 

P.J.B 

•'< 
. --~ :r 

'·•1'" 

1&\,•• 
NOVA 

Att"achm.ent 1 

Site Location Map t 
Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane 

Valley Center, California 
North 

(LJ' / 
) (y/ 

,f:: .[ 
,,j,\~·•·''/.·{ .-,\) 

"' r9,.~\i~~!,r:..... i_ "'li /
'-J~~t~-,; •' '{ 

-...-c-f!Jl_\:· ,,, 1 ) 

...e:i 
~""I 
C"'I • 

.. ~~ .... ~~ 
~~'> 111 
r~, 15-. ,I, ,
i;: Q1••1,~ ~ I'~~~ ii! 
u ~ e':S ill 
- ""' 1'•.... ~ ~ ,I

'I·•, ,,,.,,, . 
1, ;.!1 ·' i \' ,,:;,, .' ,>::•,:·,:.,l/"',•;-"i,\!-i.,.1i).;;,,!L'_,\'.\,:•:\'''.;''1,i \H,, -,t:~ I. 1: ·1:,I( \·' ,-,', •,:::,:,:,: :'r,::,;,,('),,,,~ ,• , ;••,•'.'' ·,·>' ,, ~., 11 . \~ Ui.. ri '?V: I}f,!J]!!j\if!\)SJfa~~~\\,\i~\,\()&' ¼Ill\ ' 

I 
::; 

gl Il:!~~.j'
~~~li!f!"ii! 
d~3~!

••ti 1;lih 
la< !: 

I• 

z fll .' II 
. "I' •1 

Id!! . 111 
~ 111!!1 jl!ii 

r l 

* . I 
I I'~I1i iI
hh 

(. . ,, . ' .. . ' . ' ... ' ••· '¾ "" ' "' (. .i . ,, ' ' J. ',, .ii!/ ll:' , ,• :, '.,, 1n: u,'.'.~;.:}·•:"' ,;,,:,. ·.... ) .. .'i· ·:•,i11./:•;)'~ 

..:i.. 

, fl ,., l • ,:], ~:•'141'/x'.~r ::,!:;C"~' 
111,!·1l 
'1•i•-'' 

\ 'i'.b::,.,,::.::·•,.1~:t: i<·/·t ,.. ,,,,,, .,, .. ·: ,· ,:111•:: :,.:f:•
1:_., ,/···,: ',', ·: :: ·: / ., ,' . , 1 

'' ::: -'~:I'';,,,'/,:•,• .,,,J:'.', ,',.,, ,,.1/r;'' " , , ,:,,:'\:,,, ,' ; :,.,,,, / ,:,: ' 
1·-•,<ft:,'.' ,, ... ,1 .. 1 .. ,'·.,·,;,,','"'':"• , ,, ''''II,' 1''~· ,,. !/"•'-, ,',"',:!•:;; '•,,/' (,:,,· (, 1·,.,,.:i1J,,,':1:, 
\l~··"r' -,'·::,!i'\'"\',\',,,:::i!i:,::/:,':','',,,\, ,', :•'J.', J°1::'i'
1I,"I ,1,, , , , , , , , , , , . , , , , : , , : J , : ' , , , , , ,, , ,, ~I°'" J 
I 'f· ',' :: ,::::•\',',,,, ,·,: ,, 1,:';I• :,•1' ,1 1t1 /,
I ,,: ',"''' ::,:,:·:·•\' ::•,':• ;,. : ,, •,( ,,

·,.r,:)1,_· · :,:•,u, ::,: u,:,,::, .·:, ',: .. "•: < ,'i(::i 1i[~- _\,
j/.'. t) : -. , .'::: \:'.'·.\.:::\\',;/L:'.\, \:':'::·.. \•: :::. 

1

/(i.", '·it~· i_ --
I',-.· -. ,,,,,:1::::::::,,::\l',::,:"•:•·:•,•::::-..: ,llll----k , ::!,,• ,:, ,,,,,::"' •,:· "' ,,;,,''!:,,:•, \ • '•!1' ,~-

' . ,', t -. : ' :: ' '''': '' '·,\:': ,,, '" l :: ':::I:: ' ' '::.' ,, ' . ,, ,-,, - ·_ -'I' ,", '' •t'':,, :/,,,,,,,,;;,,," :•,' '• ,'1 1,•I·,· -



= -= 
c:.,..-· -· (JC! = n 

0 

= = >= = ~c:.,.. ~ 
n~ 0 = 

~ 

= ~ 
r.,;. =-ac:.,.. = ('D-· (JC! = = = ~ """" c.u=;·= (JC!= 0c:.,.. 

0 

= i::,}"""" 

New Commercial Shell Structure Plan Submittal: 
Date 

Form Name MMIYY Number 

Commercial Building Permit Application (Interactive_} 3120 PDS#293 

stormwater Intake Form (Interactive) 02/19 INTAKE FORM 

Standard Project Stormwater Quality Management Plan 09120 STANDARD SWQMP 

Best Management Practices for Stormwater (file size 22MB) 04/10 PDS #143 

Best Management Practices for Stormwater Design Manual 09120 BMP DESIGN MANUAL 
BMP Installation Verification Form for Priority Development Projects 09/20 BMP VERIFY 

Category I Structural BMP Maintenance Notification Agreement 10/19 BMP MAINT&NANCE 
Customer Acl<nowtedgment of Uabllitles & Risks 05/20 PDS #001 

Optlonal Pre-Intake Assistance conference 07/20 PDS #001b 

Guards and Handrails 09/12 PDSIJ075 

Plot Plan Minimum Requirements 05/17 PDS #090 
Valuation Multiplier 06/17 PDS #1119 

Sample Presentation for Stormwater BMPs 09/12 PDS #272 

Green Building Incentive Program 09/12 PDS #273 

Checkllst for COmmerclal Bulldlngs 07/18 PDSM92 

Building Permit Fee Schedule 07121 PDS #813 ' 

Hazardous Materials Questionnaire DEH:HM-8171 

Wildland Urban Interface Code Requirements 01/20 PDS 11664 

Fire Clearing FAQ Sheet 05117 PDS#800 
State Dlsablllty Access Notice for Commercial Building Applicants ' 07/19 Access Notk:e 



County of San Diego, Planning & Development Services 
PRE-SCREENING CHECKLIST 
LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 

GRADING AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN PRE-SCREENING CHECKLIST 
Grading and Improvement plans are subject to pre-screening by Planning & Development Services 
(PDS) Land Development Division prior to initial submittal. Plans must meet the following format 
requirements at a minimum. If plans do not meet any of the following, the submittal is subject to 
rejection. The pre--screened submittal will be returned within twenty (10) business days. 

Applications and plans shall be submitted to the Land Development Counter at: 
ISIS10 OVertand Ave Suite 110 San Diego, CA 92123. 

Private: County: 

□ Grading plans placed on 24" x 36"sheets with 1" bor:der on all edges □ 
□ North arrow and scale on all sheets 

□ 
Vicinity map (distance shown to nearest street intersection, page, and section of 
Thomas Guida) □ 

□ PEm11ltlee's name, address and telephone number n 
□ 

Owner's name, address and telephone number (if same as Pennittee, indicate on 
olanl □ 

□ 
Civil Engineer's name, address, telephone number, signature In title block, and 
stamo □ 

~ 

-r l Short legal description 

□ Assessor's Parcel Number 

□ Site address -

□ 
Bench mark: show location on plan and describe In space provided (if datum is 
assumed so notel □ 

□ L, CG, TM, or TPM-Number in the block ~ 

n ca&fomia Coorcinate In title block ~ 

-□ Purpose of grading shown in the tllle block 

□ 
Show spacial uaa peimit, rezone, TM, or TPM number, and dates of their approval 
next to title block where aoollcable □ 

□ Required General Notes □ 
□ Key map for projects covering several sheets □ 
□ 

Show existing contours (max. 5') to cover at least 50' beyond the property line or 
sufficient for showlno dralnaoe basin □ 

□ 
Best Management Practices Items proposed during construction and Post 
construction □ 

□ Drainage study □ 
□ 

Plans are related to a project with a previously approved discretionary pennlt 
(include a oopy of the conditionally approved plot plan with the adopted Resolutions 
or Final Notice of AoDl'Oval\ □ 

□ Structurat calculation for proposed designed retaining wall, If required □ 
□ Project Schedule 

□ Review Initial Deposit and Cost Estimate (If recommended by County Staff) □ 
□ Complete Application (County staff confirmed complete submittal) □ 

55100VERLANDAVE, SurTE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA 92123 • (858)694.20!56 
SDCPDS.ORG 

PDS-S20 (Rev. 10/31/2019) PAGE 1 of5 

e County of San Diego, PDS, Land Development Division 
Con8nuod 

If any of the followlng boxes are checked, an extra set of the project plan set with supporting 
documentation, studies, and/or other Information wlll be sent to the respective speclallst 

POS Envlronmentali All discretionary proJects/appllcatlons require PDS Environmental review. 
(Except for Agrlcultural Grading plans and Grading plans for restoration which wlll be 
reviewed by PDS Project Planning) 

Project has previous Discretionary approval: 

D If Yes, please provide project name and permit number(s): _ ____ 

D If No, (PDS Environmental win determine environmental slal\.1$ upon Initial review) 

Project received a Site Plan Waiver? D Yes D No 

If Yes. please provide Site Plan Record ID#:__________ _ 

Planning & Development Services (PPS): 

D Project Is for agricultural grading 
D Grading Plans required as restoration for grading violation as determined by the PDS 

Code Compliance Division or the DPW Watercourse Enforcement Division. 
D Project proposes grading into an open space easement 

DPW Private Development Construction Inspection (ppcn: 
D Project proposes grading under an L-Greding Permit Application 
D Project Is the result of a Watercourse Violation under the County Grading Ordinance 

DPW Capital Improvement Program (CIPl: 
D Project Is located within, along, or adjacent to a listed Public Road on the current 

County five (5) year CIP Plan 
D Sidewalk and pedestrian ramp improvements deviate from ADA requirements 
D Project proposes public pathways 

5510 OVERLAND AVE, SUITE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA 92123 • (858) 694"2055 
SDCPDS.ORO 

PDS-820 (Rav. 10/31/2019) PAGE2of5 

https://SDCPDS.ORG


County of San Diego, PDS, Land Development Division (I) Continued 

DPW Flood Control: 

Project Is subject with National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) □ 
Project is subject with County Flood Protection Ordinance, Resource Protection □ 
ordinance 
Project subject to County Flood Plain mapping□ 
Project Impacts or required to construct master planned drainage facility □ 
Project is subject with County Hydrology Manual, Drainage Design Manual for major □ 
drainage course or master facility 
Easement dedication to San Diego County Flood Control District (SDCFCD) □ 

DPW Field Operations: 

Project will violate the County 3-year Pavement Cut Policy □ 
Project will make improvements to existing or future publicly maintained road for the □ 

B 
purpose of acceptance into the County Maintained road system 
Project connects or intersects a private road to a County publicly maintained road 
Project proposes modifications or eliminates pedestrian access to curb ramps or 
sidewalks 
Project proposes raised medians (landscaped and/or hardscaped) within a County□ 
maintained road 
Project proposes landscaping within or along a County maintained road 

B
□ 

Project proposes connection to an existing or proposed County drainage system 
Project proposes improvement or installation of drainage facilities to be County 
maintained 
Project proposes Improvements that do not meet minimum County Drainage Standards □ 
within the County maintained road system 
Project proposes permanent stormwater BMPs to be publicly maintained by the County □ 

of San Diego 
Project proposes a publicly maintained detention or retention basin and/or those which □ 
will drain directly into a County maintained drainage system or roadway 
Project proposes a Regional Standard Drawing D-25, Curb Outlet, or RSD D-27,□ 
sidewalk under drain within the County maintained road system (note: copy of the 
drainage study required to verify runoff will be contained within the gutter). 

DPW Materials Lab: 

D Project proposes paving under the Private or Public Road Standards, conditions of 
approval, or permit requirements 

D Project has Geotechnical/Geology issues (seismic, slope stability, potential rock fall, 
etc.) Including specialized retaining or slope stability structures 

D Project requires "Geologic Hazard" memo 
D Project proposes designs employing non-standard methods and materials 

Note: If a geotechnical report ts available, for the project, a copy of the report should be routed with 
the plans. A copy of conditions of approval or permit requirements must be provided with plans. 

151510 OVERLAND AVE. SUITE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA 92123 • (858) 894 2055 
SDCPDS,ORG 

PDS-820 (Rev. 10/31/2019) PAGE3of5 

County of San Diego, PDS, Land Development Division 
c«,t/nued ~ 

DPW Special Districts: 

Project Is In a Permanent Road Division, PRD Number _ ____-,,----,-----□ 
Project proposes Improvements that will connect or Intersect a PRO road. □ PRD Number _________ 

DPW Traffic Engineering: 

Striping and pavement markings □ 
Traffic signs 

§ 
Traffic signals and flashers 
Guardrail installations 
Traffic Control Plans 

B 
Traffic calming 

DPW Wastewater Engineering: 

D Project is located in a County Sanitation District 

Department of Environmental Health (DEHi: 

8 Project site has existing water wells on the property 
Water wells are shown on the grading plan 
Water wells located within the area of proposed grading 

§
□ 

Water wells located on adjacent property near proposed grading 
Project site has existing monitoring wells on the property 
Properties adjacent to the project are currently using, or will use on-site sewage 
disposal systems 
5:1 grading setbacks are shown from the top of cut to primary and/or reserve area□ disposal fields to adjacent properties that have or are approved for onslte sewage 
disposal systems 
Grading plan shows existing or proposed on-site sewage disposal system for project □ 
site 
Proposed earthen fill located over or near components of on-site sewage disposal□ systems 

Department of Parks and Recreation: 

8 Project Is located adjacent to existing or proposed County park or preserve 
Project is conditioned to construct a public or private park 
Project is conditioned to construct public or private trails and/or pathways □ 
Project proposes an LLD/CFO which requires operations and/or management by DPR□ 

Note: A copy of conditions of approval or permit requirements must be provided with plans under 
Park and Recreation review. 

5510 OVERIANO AVE. SurTE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA 92123 • (858) 80/II 2055 
SDCPDS.ORG 

PDS-820 (Rev. 10/3112019) PAGE4of5 

https://SDCPDS.ORG


~-Items to be re-checked 

PDS20 -LDGR 
Grading Plan Check List 

l0/2014PDSLD 
By. __ 

A. GENERAL FORMAT 
1. Grading plans to be placed on 24" X36"sheets with a I" border on all edges. 

(Note that std. Mylar of first sheet is available for reproduction) 
2. Show North arrow and scale on all sheets. 
3. Vicinity map (show distance to nearest street intersection, page and section of 

Thomas Brothers). 
4. Pcrmittee's name, address and telephone number. 
5. Owner's name, address and telephone number (if same as permittee, indicate on 

plan). 
6. Civil engineer's name, address, telephone number, signature in title block. 
7. Short legal description. 
8. Site address. 
9. Bench mark; show location on plan and describe in space provided (if datum is 

assumed, so note). · 
10. L-number in the block. 
11. California coordinate in title block. 
12. Purpose of grading shown in the title block. 
13. Show special use permit, rezone, TM, or TPM number, and dates oftheir approval 

next to title block where applicable. 
14. Required General Notes (see page 3, 4). 
15. Key map for projects covering several sheets. 
16. NOi# - if disturbed area> 1 acre. 

B. GRADING TECHNICAL INSTRUCTION 
1. Show proper set back from property line (STD Drawings DS-11 ). 
2. Identify property and easement lines. 
3. Show amolUlts ofexcavation, fill & waste/import (cubic yards). 
4. Show cut and fill ratios on the plans, if other than standards. 
5. Show existing contours (max. 5'), to cover at least 50' beyond property line or 

sufficient for showing drainage basin. 
6. Show final grades by contours, and /or spot elevations. 
7. Show location ofcut and placement of fill ("Daylight'' and limit lines). 
8. Show typical lot drainage (see note 16 below). 
9. Show typical of berm or swale at top of fill (see note 16 below). 
10. Show typical of brow ditch (see note 16 below). 
11. Show percent of grade of streets and driveways, length ofvertical curve, B.V. C., 

&E.V. C. 
12. Horizontal and vertical sight distance; cross-check improvement plans. 
13. Conditions of resolution of approval ofM.U.P., Rezone, Tentative Map, TPM, etc., 

fulfilled. (If applicable). 
14. Grading plan compared with grading shown on T.M. (New E. 1. R. or Resolution 

change possible). (Ifapplicable). 
15. Grading plan compared with improvement plans prior to signature. (If applicable). 

(=:)- Items to be re-checked 

16. Details may be omitted if the following statement is placed on plans: "All grading 
details will be in accordance with the San Diego County Standard Drawings DS-8, 
DS-10, DS-11 , D75.n 

17. If grading encroaches on adjacent property, submit letter ofpermission (see H.S) 
and place appropriate note at location of encroachment including date of letter. 

18. Submit estimate 
(I) Plans>S,000 cy include all items to be constructed per the Grading permit 

-- (2) Plans<S,000 cy include those items requiring structure inspection such as 
drainage, retaining walls, irrigation systems, etc. 

C. DRAINAGE 
I. If diversion or concentration ofexisting drainage courses occurs, a signed waiver and 

release from the affected downstream owners must be submitted. Attach standard 
form to plans for execution. 

2. Indicate on the plans waiver and release for discharge ofdrainage onto adjacent 
property and date waiver signed. 

3. Drainage Map ofall drainage areas affecting site. (200 scale county topo plus any 
other updated topo prepared by engineer/ surveyor) 

4. Hydrology and hydraulic calculations required. 
5. Check for non-erosive velocities at point ofdischarge, or adequate energy dissipater. 
6. Check for point ofadequate discharge downstream (provide photos and calcs.). 
7. Show direction of street drainage and percent of slope plans. Give elevations at 

intersections and where required for clarity. 
8. Show size, length, gauge and profile ofpipes, where drainage is to be installed with 

the grading plan. Show elevations and grades. Include details of all structures or 
give standard drawing number. 

9. Show width of all drainage easements. Show recording documentation and date ofall 
off-site drainage easements. 

10. Check for existing or proposed levee or dam. 
11. DPW Flood Control Section review required for any ofthe following: 

a. Drainage system or facility proposed fur Flood Control ownership/mainteoance 
(e.g. detention basins and/or pipes/culverts greater than 42" in diameter outside tbe 
public road right-of-way) 
b. Proposed work or encroachment within an existing Flood Control District (FCD) 
Easement. 
c. FEMA and/or County-mapped Floodway/Fioodplain on project site. 

D. LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION 
__ I. Show LD number on title sheet, Check with Dave Kahler on status. (Landscaping 

and irrigation plans required on slopes > 3 feet high and < I5' high) 

E. RETAININGWALLS 
1. One of the following: 

(1) Not a part ofthis plan (Building Inspection Permit) but show temporary 
slopes (same ratios as above). 

(2) County standard drawing number. 
(3) Designed wall- show details on plan-submit calculations and soil repoit 

for data backup. 

2 



0 

c:=)- Items to be re-checked 

2. Show elevations at top and bottom ofwall (B.W.=T.F. top of footing). 
3. Profile is required for keystone retaining wall with special inspection notes. 

F. REFERRAL TO ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW BOARD (PDS Environmental) 
__ I. CEQA Compliance 

G. SWMP 
I. Start from INTAKE Form. 
2. Show Construction BMPs on Erosion Control plans. 
3. Show Permanent TCBMPs on separate sheets. 
4. Input RECORD data to Excel: "Z:\PCCommon\LAND DEVELOPMENT 

TEAMS\PL-JURMP Annual Report FY 13-14 Susan.xlsx" 
Create new "LDSWTR" Account on ACCELA (on hold tiU further notice.) 

H. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS AFFECTING THE GRADING PLAN 
1. Legal lot-proofthat site is a legal lot (always applicable). 
2. San Diego Coastal Commission permit: __Required _Not Required 
3. 11.) If more than 500 C.Y. are to be removed from the site, see borrow pit permit, 

Ordinance 3792, amending Section 34 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
b.) Q> 1,000 CY add import/export note. 
c.) When Q>l0,000 CY or plan changes, it should bring to PM for public review 

notification requirement decision) 
4. Ifproject is on land zoned for multi-residential development, commercial, industrial, 

manufacturing, or other more intensive use, the grading plan will have to be 
compared with the street improvements required by the Centerline Ordinance if any. 

5. Submit notification mailing package if major grading permit is not related to any other 
discretionary permit per Grading Ordinance Section 87.208 

6. Public Notification is required for all Major Grading (See Sec. 87 .208) 

IN-HOUSE REQUIREMENTS (NOT REQUIRED TO BE CHECKED BY ENGINEER OF 
WORK) 

J. Check for illegal grading. 
2. Required account balance, agreements have been submitted and/ or paid. 
3. Health Department clearance obtained (DEH DPW). 
4. Easement documents recorded and /or shown on record map. 
5. Other resources' review. 

ATTACHMENT 4 

Temporary Fire Station No. 3 Scope of Work 

Valley Center Fire Protection District is planning a temporary fire station west of Cole 
Grade Road and north of Cole Grade Lane in the northwest corner of the property 
identified as Parcel B of Lot Line Adjustment No. B/C-20-0079. The proposed site plan 
is shown in more detail on the exhibit titled Site Plan for Valley Center Fire Station 
Phase 1 . The temporary facilities will be located at least 150 feet west of the ultimate 
right-of-way for Cole Grade Road and will be enclosed with chain link fencing, with slats 
to minimize the visibility of the temporary station. Access is proposed via a gravel 
driveway located near the northerly property line. 

The temporary fire station is proposed to include two 864 square foot modular buildings, 
which are 15 feet tall; a metal carport for one Type 1 Fire Engine, which is 19 feet tall; 
and, two small storage sheds. The site is proposed to include 14 parking spaces. 

Site improvements, including parking, the areas surrounding the modular buildings, 
carport, storage sheds and utilities, are proposed to be gravel. Pavement is only 
proposed in areas necessary to facilitate accessibility. Storm drain facilities and a 
biofiltration basin are also proposed. 

Three to five crew members will be on-site per shift. Similar to a permanent station. 
these crew members will eat, sleep and perform administrative functions related to 
emergency calls at the temporary station. Limited public access is anticipated for the 
site. Only handouts with educational material and public postings are anticipated. All 
other administrative functions will be referred to Fire Station 1. 

The site will be served by electrical facilities, water from Valley Center Municipal Water 
District and an on-site septic system. A propane tank and emergency generator will 
also be located on the site. 

Project Components: 

Site grading for temporary site 
Move and set two trailers with ramps and a canopy for engines from Rancho Santa Fe 
Harmony Grove site 
Emergency Generator, including automatic transfer switch 
Propane tank pad and bollards 
Propane piping and connections to trailers 

3 



Coordinate and provide electrical service to the site and site electrical to generator/ATS, 
gate and trailers 
Water connections from facility in Cole Grade Road to site and connections to trailers 
Stormwater basin and drainage facility to discharge under access road to property to 
the north, including headwall for drainage discharge into existing drainage ditch 
Septic System for trailers, including tank and leach field 
Cable TV and Data Connections from existing infrastructure to site and connections to 
trailers 
Alerting system (US Digital Designs Phoenix G2) connections to trailers and equipment 
Covered trash enclosure, if required by the County 
AC paving 
DG for access road and majority of site (if allowed by County) 
Concrete where necessary for handicap access 
Handicap parking with signage 
Handicap restroom (outside of trailers), if required by the County 
Any other required accessibility•improvements 
Striping 
Fencing with slats to screen the temporary station 
Motorized access gate that operates with both keypad and remote 

. Re. _p, -ort,'• ,.. ,' 
Geotech.nical lt11te$tlSJ•tlc}n_:-

Proposed Fire Station #3 
Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 
28234 Lilac Road 
Valley Center, CA 92082 • 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Sutte B 
San Diego, California 92123 
858.292.7575,Ji\., 944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Clemente, CA 92673 
949.388.7710 

NOVA Project 2020074 NOVA 
August20, 2020 www.usa-nova.com 

www.usa-nova.com


Valley Center Fire Protection District 
28234 Lilac Road 
Valley Center, CA 92082 

August 20, 2020 
NOVA Project 2020074 

Attention: Joe Napier, Fire Chief 

Subject: Report 
Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3 
Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 92082 

Dear Mr. Napier: 

NOVA Services, Inc. (NOVA) is pleased to forward herewith the above-referenced report. Work
related to this report was completed by NOVA for Valley Center Fire Protection District (VCFPD) 
in accordance with the scope of work identified in NOVA's revised proposal dated October 25, 
2019, as authorized by you on April 29, 2020. 

NOVA appreciates the opportunity to be of service to VCFPD on this most interesting project. 
Should you have any questions regarding this report or other matters, please contact the 
undersigned at 858.292.7575. 

Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 92082 

~~~~ 
Melissa Stayner PG, CEG 
Senk ineering Geologist 

I .. 
'/tCP: 

Hillary A. Price 
Senior Staff Geologist 

Table of Contents 

1.0 INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................. 1 

1.1 Terms of Reference ....................................................................................................... 1 
1.1.1 General. .....................................................................................................................................1 
1.1 .2 Related Reporting 

1.2 Objectives, Scope, and Limitations of This Work ....................................................... 2 
1.2.1 Objectives..................................................................................................................................2 
1.2.2 Scope ..... .. 
1.2.3 Limitations 

1.3 Understood Use of This Report .................................................................................... 3 

1.4 Report Organization ...................................................................................................... 4 

2.0 PROJECT INFORMATION ............................................................................................. 5 

2.1 Site Description ............................................................................................................. 5 
2.1.1 Location .....................................................................................................................................5 
2.1.2 Current Site Use ........................................................................................................................5 
2.1.3 Historic Site Use .................. .. ...... .. ............................................................................................ 6 

2.2 Planned Fire Station ...................................................................................................... 7 
2.2.1 General ................................................................................................ ...................................... 7 
2.2.2 Structures ..................................................................................................................................8 
2.2.3 Floors, Pavements, and Parking ...............................................................................................8 
2.2.4 Potential for Earthwork ..............................................................................................................8 
2.2.5 Stormwater BMPs .....................................................................................................................8 
2.2.6 OWTS ........................................................................................................................................ 8 
2.2.7 Miscellaneous............................................................................................................................ 8 

3.0 SUBSURFACE EXPLORATION AND LABORATORY TESTING .................................. 9 

3.1 General ........................................................................................................................... 9 

3.2 Engineering Borings ....................................................................................................10 
3.2.1 Excavation ...............................................................................................................................10 
3.2.2 Logging and Sampling ............................................................................................................ 10 

Ji\ 
1■i 

NOVA 

GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

SPECIAL INSPECTION DVBE• SBE• SDVOSB• SLBE 

J&\fill 
NOVA 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Report 
Geotechnical Investigation 

Proposed Fire Station #3 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B www.usa~nova.com 944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Diego, CA 92123 San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 858.292.7575 P: 949.388.7710 i of vi 



Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3. Cole Grade Road. Valley Center. California 

NOVA Project 2020074Ji\ 
NOVA August 20. 2020 

3.2.3 Closure ....................... .......................................... ................................................. ... ......... ...... 11 

3.3 Percolation Testing ...... .. ......................................................................................... ..... 11 
3.3.1 General .................................................................................................................. ..... ...... ....... 11 
3.3.2 Drilling .....................................................................................................................................11 
3.3.3 Conversion to Percolation Well ................................................. .. ............................................ 12 
3.3.4 Percolation Testing .. ................................................................................................................ 12 

3.4 Laboratory Testing .... ................................................................................................... 13 
3.4.1 General ....................................................................................................................................13 
3.4.2 R•Value ................................. ... ............................................ ................................................... 13 
3.4.3 Compaction ........................................................................................................................... .. 14 
3.4.4 Expansion Potential and Plasticity .......................................................................................... 15 
3.4.5 ln•Place Soil Density ............................................................................................................... 15 
3.4.6 Gradalion .................................................................. ............................................................... 15 
3.4.7 Corrosion Potential ....................................... .................... ....... ...... ................................. ......... 15 

4.0 SITE CONDmONS ........................................................................................................16 

4.1 Geologic Setting ...........................................................................................................16 
4.1.1 Regional ... :.. ......................................................... ........................................................... ........ 16 
4.1.2 SiteSpecific....... : ...................................... : .............................................................................. 16 

4.2 Surface, Subsurface, and Groundwater ......................................................................17 
4.2.1 Surface ....................................................................................................................................17 
4.2.2 Subsurface ............. .... ....................... ..................................... ................................................. 1 B 
4.2.3 Groundwater...................................................................................................................... ...... 19 
4.2.4 Surface Water .... .. ........................ .. ....... .................................................................................. 19 

4.3 Subsurface Profile ........................................................................................................ 19 

5.0 REVIEW OF GEOLOGIC, SOIL, AND SITING HAZARDS ............................................21 

5.1 Overview .......................................................................................................................21 

5.2 Geologic Hazards ......................................... ................................................................ 21 
5.2.1 Strong Ground Molion .............................................................................................................21 
5.2.2 Fault Rupture ............................................................ .. ............................................................. 21 
5.2.3 Landslide ........................................... .. ............ ......... .. .................... .......................... ............... 22 

5.3 Soll Hazards .................................................................................................................. 23 
5.3.1 Embankment Stabillty ........................................................................................................ ..... 23 
5.3.2 Seismic ......................................................... ........................................................................... 23 
5.3.3 Expensive Soil .........................................................................................................................23 
5.3.4 Hydro.Collapsible Solis ........................................................................................................... 24 
5.3.5 Alluvial Soils .................... .................................... .................................................................... 24 
5.3.6 Corrosivlty 

5.4 Siting Hazards ..............................................................................................................24 
5.4.1 Effect on Adjacent Properties .................................................................................................. 24 
5.4.2 lnundation .................. ....................................... ....................................................................... 24 

ii of vi 

Jl Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3. Cole Grade Road, Valley Center. California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20. 2020 

6.0 EARTHWORK AND FOUNDATIONS ..................................... , ...................................... 26 

6.1 Overview .......................................................................................................................26 
6.1.1 Review of Site Hazards ........................................................................................................... 26 
6.1.2 Site Suitabillty ............................................................... ............................ ............................... 26 
6.1.3 Review and Surveillance ......................................................................................................... 26 

6.2 Seismic Design Parameters .........................................................................................26 
6.2.1 Site Class .... ...................................................................... ...................................................... 26 
6.2.2 Seismic Design Parameters .................................................................................................... 26 

6.3 Corrosivity and Sulfates ........... , .................................................................................. 27 
6.3.1 General ....................................................................................................................................27 
6.3.2 Metals ......................................................................................................................................27 
6.3.3 Sulfates 
6.3.4 Limitations 

6.4 Earthwork......................................................................................................................29 
6.4.1 General ..... .. ......................... .......................................................................... ...... .................... 29 
6.4.2 Site Preparation ..................................................................................................... .................. 29 
6.4.3 Select Fill ....................................... , ............................... .......................................................... 29 
6.4.4 Excavation Characteristics .................................... , ...................................... , .......................... 30 
6.4.5 Remedial Grading at Structures ................................................................................... ........... 30 
6.4.6 Maintenance of Moisture in Soils During Construction ........................................................... 31 
6.4.7 Trenching and Backfilling forUtillties .......................................................... : ........................... 31 
6.4.B Slope Construction ..................................................................................................................31 
6.4.9 Flatwork ....... ......................................................................... ..... .... .......................................... 32 

6.5 Shallow Foundations ................................................................................................... 32 
6.5.1 General ....... ............................................................................................................................. 32 
6.5.2 Shallow Foundations Supported on Compacted Fill ...............................................................33 
6.5.3 Shallow Foundations Supported on Unit 2 Tonalite Bedrock ................................................. 33 
6.5.4 General Slab Design ..................... .. 
6.5.5 Slab Design to Support Fire Trucks 

6.6 Underslab Vapor Retarder ...........................................................................................35 
6.6.1 General ................. ............................................ ............... .. .............................. ........................ 35 
6.6.2 Guidance Documentation ....................................................................................... ................. 35 
6.6.3 Design ..... 
6.6.4 Installation 

6.7 Control of Moisture Around Foundatlons .................... ............................................... 36 
6.7.1 Genera!................. ........................................................ ............................. .............................. 36 
6.7 .2 Erosion' and Moisture Control During Construction ........................................... ...................... 36 
6.7.3 Design :.............................................................................. ...................................................... 37 
6.7.4 Utilities .... ........................................................................................ ......................................... 37 

6.8 Retaining Walls .............................................................................................................37 
6.8.1 Wall Loads...............................................................................................................................37 
6.8.2 Retaining Wall Foundations .............................................. .............................. : ....................... 37 
6.8.3 Seismic Increment. ............................... ............................ ....................................................... 38 
6.8.4 Foundation Uplift ..................................................................................................... ................ 38 
6.8.5 Resistance to Lateral Loads ............................................ ..... ................................................... 39 

iii ofvi 



Report of Geotechnical Investigation ,a, 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road. Valley Center, California,., NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20. 2020 

6.8.6 Wall Drainage .........................................................................................................................39 

6.9 Temporary Slopes ........................................................................................................39 

7.0 STORMWATER INFILTRATION ....................................................................................40 

7.1 Overview .......................................................................................................................40 

7.2 Public Health and Safety Considerations ...................................................................40 

7.3 Borehole Percolation Testing ......................................................................................41 

7.4 Infiltration Rate .............................................................................................................41 

7.5 Recommendation for Infiltration .................................................................................41 

8.0 PAVEMENT DESIGN ................................................. .............................. ...................... 42 

8.1 General ..........................................................................................................................42 

8.2 Design for Drainage and Maintenance ........................................................................42 
8.2.1 Drainage ..................................................................................................................................42 
8.2.2 Maintenance ............................................................................................................................42 

8.3 Subgrade Preparation ..................................................................................................43 
8.3.1 Subgrade Preparation .............................................................................................................43 
8.3.1 Proof Rolling ............................................................................................................................43 
8.3.2 Timely Pavement Construction ...............................................................................................43 
8.3.3 Surveillance .............................................................................................................................43 

8.4 Flexible Pavements ......................................................................................................43 

8.5 Rigid Pavements for Fire Response Vehicles ............................................................44 
8.5.1 Design Loading ... 
8.5.2 Pavement Section 
8.5.3 Concrete Properties 
8.5.1 Jointing 

9.0 CONSTRUCTION REVIEW, OBSERVATION AND TESTING .......................................46 

9.1 Overview .......................................................................................................................46 

9.2 Design Phase Review ...................................................................................................46 

9.3 Construction Observation and Testing.......................................................................46 
9.3.1 General....................................................................................................................................46 
9.3.2 Continuous Soils Special Inspection .......................................................................................46 
9.3.3 Periodic Soils Special Inspection ............................................................................................47 
9.3.4 Testing During Inspections......................................................................................................47 

iv ofvi 

Jil~-NOVA 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3. Cole Grade Road. Valley Center. California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20. 2020 

10.0 REFERENCES ............................................................................................................... 48 

10.1 Site Specific ..................................................................................................................48 

10.2 Design ...........................................................................................................................48 

10.3 Geologic and Site Setting ............................................................................................48 

List of Plates 

Plate 1 Subsurface Investigation Map 

Plate 2 Geologic Cross Sections 

List of Appendices 

Appendix A Use of the Geotechnical Report 

Appendix B Logs of Borings 

Appendix C Records of Laboratory Testing 

List of Figures 

Figure 1-1. Vicinity Map 

Figure 2-1. Site Location and Limits 

Figure 2-2. 1946 Aerial View of the Site Area 

Figure 2-3. Conceptual Planning 

Figure 3-1. Location of the Engineering Borings and Percolation Tests 

Figure 3-2. Drilling Operations, B-2. July 1. 2020 

Figure 3-3. Percolation Test Well, P-2. July 2, 2020 

Figure 3-4. Tire Rutting of a Test Subgrade with Low R-Value 

Figure 4-1. Geologic Mapping of the Site Vicinity 

Figure 4-2. Surface Conditions 

Figure 4-3. Unit 1 Alluvium 

Figure 4-4. Unit 2 Weathered Tonalite 

Figure 4-5. Unit 2 Weathered Tonalite 

Figure 4-6. South to North Profile Beneath the Planned Fire Station and Leach Field 

Figure 4-7. South to North Profile Beneath the Planned Maintenance and Admin Buildings 

v ofvi 



Report of Geotechnical lnv&stigation Report of Geotechnlcal Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California ,a~ 4&\Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 NOVA Project 2020074 ,■i ~-~ NOVA August 20, 2020NOVA August 20, 2020 

1.0 INTRODUCTIONList of Figures (continued) 
Figure 5-1. Active Faulting in the Site Vicinity 

1.1 Terms of Reference 
Figure 5-2. Flood Mapping of the Site Area 

Figure 6-1 . Benching Detail 1.1.1 General 

This report provides recommendations for the design of foundations and pavements for the 
construction of a new fire station on the eastern 4. 75 acres of a 9. 75-acre parcel with APN 133-

Figure 6-2. Sawed Contraction Joint 

Figure 6-3. Ground Supported Slab with Thickened Edge 220-38-00. This geotechnical investigation only addresses the eastern half of the parcel 
Figure 6-4. Infiltration Restriction Considerations (hereinafter, 'the site'). This new fire station is known to NOVA as 'Fire Station #3'. 

Figure 7-1. Conceptual Design for Wall Drainage Work-related to this report was completed by NOVA Services, Inc. (NOVA) for Valley Center 
Fire Protection District (VCFPD) in accordance with the scope of work identified in NOVA's 
October 25, 2019 revised proposal, as authorized by VCFPD on April 29, 2020. 

List of Tables Figure 1-1 depicts the vicinity of the new fire station. 

Table 3-1. Abstract of the Engineering Borings 

Table 3-2. Abstract of the Percolation Testing 

Table 3-3. Typical R-Value for Soils In the San Diego Area 

Table 3-4. Abstract of the Compaction Testing, ASTM D1557 

Table 3-5. Moisture Content and Dry Unit Weight, ASTM D2937 

Table 3-6. Abstract of the Soil Gradation Testing, ASTM 06913 

Table 6-1. Seismic Design Parameters, ASCE 7-16 

Table 6-2. Summary of Corrosivity Testing of the Near Surface Soil 

Table 6-3. Soil Resistivity and Corrosion Potential 

Table 6-4. Exposure Categories and Requirements for Water-Soluble Sulfates 

Table 6-5. Lateral Earth Pressures to Retaining Walls 

Table 7-1 . Infiltration Rates Determined by Percolation Testing 

Table 8-1 . Preliminary Recommendations for Flexible Pavements 

Table 8-2. Recommendations for Concrete Pavements 

vi ofvi 

·v1:,mr;4, \.,~:....,.,~~~ .. f 
\: fl-

l 
~ 
0 

.,,, ., .. .. 'a.J• • 

-\,;_~,
"-,.,, ;: 

-~ - J
t 
i 
11 

,., I 

'\ ' 
' 

t 
u••-:~ •-. ~ ~ 

\ " 
~ 

·•'
\... .~,_u.P(l ntlfll~ . 0\_, . 

"~lL£'P.Cl(~fEll:•IID___.A _,.,.,,l1·1tti._~_ 

Figure 1-1. Vicinity Map 



,a~
1111 

NOVA 

Report of Geotech n ical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cale Grade Raad, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

1.1.2 Related Reporting 

Associated with this same authorization, NOVA has completed field testing and developed 
design-basis percolation rates for use in design of an on-site wastewater treatment system 
(OWTS). The findings of that work will be provided under separate cover. 

1.2 Objectives, Scope, and Limitations of This Work 

1.2.1 Objectives 

The objectives of the work reported herein are twofold, as described below. 

1. Objective 1, Geotechnical. Characterize the occurrence of subsurface soil and 
formational rock in a manner sufficient to provide recommendations for geotechnical
related site development. 

2. Objective 2, Stormwater. Assess soil percolation rates in a manner sufficient to provide 
guidance for design of permanent stormwater infiltration Best Management Practices 
('stormwater BMPs'). 

1.2.2 Scope 

In order to accomplish the above objectives, NOVA undertook the task-based scope of work 
described below. 

1. Task 1, Background Review. NOVA reviewed readily available background data 
regarding the site area, including geotechnical reports, topographic maps, geologic 
data, fault maps, and reports. Conceptual planning was reviewed. No architectural or 
structural information was available. 

2. Task 2. Subsurface Exploration. A NOVA geologist directed a subsurface exploration 
comprised of the subtasks listed below. 

• Subtask 2-1. Reconnaissance. Prior to undertaking any exploratory work, 
NOVA conducted a site reconnaissance, including layout of borings and 
percolation test wells. Underground Service Alert and a private utility location 
contractor was notified for underground utility mark-out services. 

• Subtask 2-2, Coordination. A specialty subcontractor was retained to conduct 
engineering borings. NOVA coordinated with you regarding access for 
fieldwork. 

• Subtask 2-3, Engineering Borings. The geologist logged and sampled six (6) 
engineering borings. 

• Subtask 2-4, Percolation Testing. NOVA constructed and tested two (2) 
percolation wells at a proposed stormwater BMP. Percolation testing was 
performed in accordance with the San Diego County requirements. 

• Subtask 2-5, Closure. On completion, each boring and percolation test well 
was backfilled. 

2 

1&,
lilll 

NOVA 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

3. Task 3 . Laboratory Testing. Laboratory testing was undertaken to address soil index 
characteristics. Chemical testing addresses the potential that soils may be corrosive 
to embedded concrete or metals. 

4. Task 4. Engineering Evaluations. The findings of Tasks 1-3 were utilized to support 
evaluations directed toward recommendations for qeotechnical-related development, 
including foundations, earthwork, pavements, and design for stormwater infiltration. 

5. Task 5, Reporting. Submittal of this report completes NOVA's scope of work for this 
geotechnical investigation. The report provides a record of all work and geotechnical
related recommendations for foundations, earthwork, and stormwater. 

1.2.3 Limitations 

The recommendations for design and construction included in this report are not final. These 
recommendations are developed by NOVA using judgment and opinion and based on the 
information available at the time of the report. NOVA can finalize its recommendations only by 
observing actual subsurface conditions revealed during construction. NOVA cannot assume 
responsibility or liability for the report's recommendations if NOVA does not perform construction 
observation. 

This report does not address any environmental assessment or investigation for the presence or 
absence of hazardous, toxic or regulated materials in the soil, groundwater, or surface water 
within or beyond the site. 

1.3 Understood Use of This Report 

Assessment of the subsurface in geological and geotechnical engineering is characterized by 
uncertainty. Opinions relating to environmental, geologic, and geotechnical conditions are based 
on limited data, such that actual conditions may vary from those encountered at the times and 
locations where the data are obtained, despite the use of due professional care. 

The judgments provided in this report are based upon NOVA's understanding of the planned 
construction, its experience with similar work, and its judgments regarding subsurface 
conditions indicated by the methods of subsurface exploration described in the report. 

Conditions exposed by construction may vary from those disclosed by the borings. NOVA 
should be retained for design review and for surveillance to observe subsurface conditions 
revealed during construction. NOVA cannot assume responsibility for the recommendations of 
this report if NOVA does not perform construction observation. Section 9 of this report 
addresses this consideration in more detail. 

This report addresses geotechnical considerations only. The report does not provide any 
environmental assessment or investigation of the presence or absence of hazardous or toxic 
materials in the soil, soil gas, groundwater, or surface water within or beyond the site. 
Appendix A to this report provides important additional guidance regarding the use and 
limitations of this report. This information should be reviewed by all users of the report. 

3 



: 

il Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

1.4 Report Organization 

The remainder of this report is organized as abstracted below. (. 

• Section 2 reviews available project information. 
• Section 3 describes subsurface exploration. 
• Section 4 describes the surface and subsurface conditions. 
• Section 5 reviews geologic, soil, and siting-related hazards common to this area of San 

Diego, considering each for its potential to affect the planned fire station. 
• Section 6 provides recommendations for earthwork and foundation design. 
• Section 7 provides recommendations for design of stormwater infiltration BMPs. 
• Section 8 provides recommendations for development of pavements. 
• Section 9 addresses design review and geotechnical observation/testing during 

construction. 
• Section 1Oprovides a list of the principal references utilized in the development of the 

report. 

Figures and tables that directly support discussion in the text are embedded therein. Larger
scale plots of the subsurface exploration and subsurface profiles are provided as Plates 
immediately following the text of the report. 

The report is supported by three appendices. 

• Appendix A provides guidance regarding the use and·limitations of this report. 
• Appendix 8 presents logs of the engineering and percolation test borings. 
• Appendix C provides records of laboratory testing. 

4 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation,a~ Proposed Fire Station #3 , Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California,., NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

2.0 PROJECT INFORMATION 

2.1 Site Description 

2.1.1 Location 

VCFPD plans to construct a new fire station on the eastern half (4. 75 acres) of an approximately 
10-acre parcel with APN 133-220-38-00 (hereinafter, 'the site'). 

The site is located on the western side of Cole Grade Road. in Valley Center. The site Is 
bounded on the north and the west by agricultural land, to the east by Cole Grade Road, and to 
the south by Cole Grade Lane. Figure 2-1 depicts the location and limits of the site on a recent 
aerial view. 

~ :~:. ;~:r:::;: 
I : : C • ~ - •,•,_.:: "-
'r, 1:. j.p1· · i.· ·1 .... _1: ':·· ;'j ls.; ;1 y:;;• .. ,._._ -· 
i/ ;:: . . ':I . •- .' 
i: •: :, 'j . l ,·:1 ""' 
11, ,1, :- , .: I ·,, -· -~· , .•'I' ,. . . . Ii,I, ·;}'· -i :~ •__;:_:~; 

I•" ., ' : ,:, -,.ri.:r 
';.J>·

di · -: :i ,· :---1·':' :: ::,f ..::di. . . I :.c- ":> , . •,; ri ... !I ~. ·-··r,.- : ·r , , •• ~- at 
. J ! -::..: ~ ....... ~ 

'QI,:'.-·· ::: :.. l ... 

~r·· u•~--~ ,; . .i,> •: •.' ·., If, 7( •J . • .O•.-C• .,, ••~f "¼ .,,,;" ~...,;: i H . -1•· ·,-:~----.J.----
:.: ·•····•I.,_~ i -~. .,•,;,•.~:;•:·• «:ar ·· ~ -· ;,~ '"' I ·' 

...,_-....~:,·~':'.-. ·1t<i;~;.- \:': ,, _·: , 

.. 

•' -~. . ~t· ~ - __ ', (~-r .. .. .. . ,.,,.·, ~-·i,r -'" ,, If :" ' 'I 19 , . 

~ 
·- , ;.,.g.• - - ,~~- - -=-j~ '- (f) 

2.1.2 Current Site Use 

The approximately 330-foot x 670-foot site of the future firehouse and associated improvements 
is currently vacant, open land with a bare soil surface and scattered shrubs and grasses. 

5 



il Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

The site slopes gradually down to the northwest and northeast. On-site elevations range from 
+1,603 feel mean sea level (msl) at the southwest corner, lo +1,550 feet msl at the northwest 
corner. This elevation differential occurs over a distance of about 670 feet, a surface gradient of 
about 8%. 

2.1.3 Historic Site Use 

Review of aerial photography, which started as early as 1939, indicates the site was unused 
until the 1960's, when an orchard was developed on the site. The subject site was cultivated as 
a citrus orchard until approximately 2016. 

Figure 2-2 provides an aerial photograph depicting the site area in 1946. This photograph 
depicts the presence of a north-northwest trending drainage feature that was filled by the 
1960's, 

Figure 2-2. 1946 Aerial View of the 10-Acro Parcel 

6 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation ~~ 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California~~, NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

2.2 Planned Fire Station 

2.2. 1 General 

Planning and design is still preliminary. NOVA's understanding of the current planning for Fire 
Station #3 is based upon review VCFPD - Fire Station #3, Preliminary Site Plan (Buccola 
Engineering, Inc., undated, hereinafter 'Buccola 2020'). Figure 2-3 reproduces Buccola 2020, 
depicting the layout of structures and infrastructure planned for the new fire station. 

.,. 

1------- -

UNDEVELOPED 
5 AC. 

-

DEVELOPE1) 
4.75 
N:;, 

!EACH 
FIELD .. 

i 
"' 

I 
~ 
.J-:-,. 

.. 
,fl' 

.. 

Figure 2-3. Preliminary Site Plan 
(source: Buccola 2020) 

As may be seen by review of Figure 2-3, the planned development will include three principal 
structures: a 10,000 square foot (SF) fire station, a 5,000 SF maintenance building, and a 5,000 SF 
administration building. These structures will be set around parking and driveway access. Storrnwater 
management and an on-site waste treatment system (OWTS) will be developed on the northern 
portion of the 4. 75-acre site. 

7 



Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 
Jl\ 
1■1 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

2.2.2 Structures 

The three structures planned for Fire Station #3 maybe one or two levels. No below-grade 
construction is planned. 

The fire station will enclose 10,000 SF, the administration building and the maintenance building 
will each enclose about 5,000 SF. The planned structures will each Include relatively light loads 
to foundations. However, the Interior floor slab for both the fire station and the maintenance 
building will be required to support fire trucks. Some of the buildings may require retaining walls 
to adapt the structures to grades at the site. 

2.2.3 Floors, Pavements, and Parking 

Design of pavements outside the fire station and floors within the fire stations will be controlled 
by the need to support the fire trucks. Though the design basis vehicle Is not known, NOVA 
expects that the typical vehicle could weigh up to 80,000 pounds and apply H-20 axle loads to 
floors and pavements. The typical firefighting vehicle will be about 33 feet long. 

The garage area within the fire station and the maintenance building may each require an 
interior trench drain connected to an oil-water separator. 

2.2.4 Potential for Earthwork 

No below-grade construction is anticipated beyond that required for utilities. NOVA expects that 
design will adapt the new structure to existing site grades. Based upon review of the planning 
described In Buccola 2020, it is expected that significant earthwork operations will be required to 
achieve pad grades. The site will be developed with cuts and fills that may be up to 15 feet. 

Based on conversations with.our client, it is NOVA's understanding that cut slopes may be 
constructed in the southwest comer of the site surrounding the entrance drive. 

2.2.5 Stonnwater BMPs 

Planning for permanent storrnwater BMPs is indicated on Figure 2-3. Permanent stormwater 
BMPs will be located in a Drainage Management Area (DMA) encompassing about 6,000 SF, 
sited north of the fire station. 

2.2.6 OWTS 

Design for the OWTS is only conceptual at this point. As is noted in Section 1, 
recommendations for development an OWTS will be provided under separate cover. 

2. 2. 7 Miscellaneous 

It is expected that the new fire station will include a variety of miscellaneous structures, such as 
signage, equipment pads, traffic bollards, and a flag pole. 

8 

Report of Geotechnlcal Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California ••~, NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

3.0 SUBSURFACE EXPLORATION AND LABORATORY TESTING 

3.1 General 

The subsurface exploration was completed on July 1-2, 2020. A NOVA geologist directed 
excavation, in situ testing, and sampling of a series of six (6) engineering borings across the 
site. Two (2) percolation tests were completed in the vicinity planned for the stormwater BMP. 

Figure 3-1 depicts the locations of the separate elements of the subsurface exploration. Plate 1, 
provided immediately following the text of this report, depicts this information in larger scale. 
Appendix B presents the boring logs. 

Figure 3•1. Locations of the Borings and Percolation Testing 

9 



Report of Geotechnlcal Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California Ji\ 

NOVA Projecl 2020074 ,■1 
NOVA August 20, 2020 

3.2 Engineering Borings 

3.2.1 Excavation 

The geologist directed drilling and sampling of six (6) engineering borings ('B-1' through 'B 6') to 
depths between 10.5 feet and 16.5 feet below ground surface (bgs) on July 1, 2020. Samples 
recovered from the borings were delivered to NOVA's materials laboratory for review and 
analysis. The engineering borings were advanced by a truck-mounted drilling rig utilizing hollow
stem auger drilling techniques. Prior to beginning fieldwork, boring locations were determined by 
a geologist based on the proposed building configuration. 

Table 3-1 provides an abstract of the engineering borings. 

-- . . "" /QI •- ---·· · 
Approx.Approx. Total Depth Elevation at ApPFOJC. DepthBeJow Depth toBoring Ground COmptetton to GroundwaterFormationSurface Elev. GroundReference (feet, msl) • (feet)(feet, msl)' Surface (feet) (feet)2 

+1584.5 Not encountered 15.5B-1 +1600.0 1.5 
+1595.0 10.5 +1584.5 Not encountered B-2 0.5 
+1584.0 +1568.5 Not encountered B-3 15.5 5.0 

+1 552.0 +1568.0 Not encountered B-4 16.0 2.0 
+1570.0 +1554.515.5 Not encountered B-5 4.0 
+1553.0 +1536.5 Not encountered B-6 16.5 3.5 

Notes: 1. Elevations are approximate and should be reviewed 
2. The referenced geologic unit is Cretaceous-aged Cole Grade Tonalite (Keg) 

Figure 3-2 (following page) depicts drilling operations. 

3. 2. 2 Logging and Sampling 

The geologist directed sampling and maintained a log of the soils that were encountered . Both 
disturbed and relatively undisturbed samples were recovered from the borings. Samples were 
delivered to NOVA's materials laboratory for analysis. Sampling of and in situ testing are 
described below. 

1. The Modified California sampler ('ring sampler', after ASTM D 3550) was driven using a 
140-pound hammer failing for 30 inches with a total penetration of 18 inches, recording 
blow counts for each 6 inches of penetration. 

2. The Standard Penetration Test sampler ('SPT', after ASTM D 1586) was driven in the 
same manner as the ring sampler, recording blow counts in the same fashion. SPT blow 
counts for the final 12 inches of penetration comprise the SPT 'N' value, an index of soil 
strength and compressibility. 

3. Bulk samples representative of the subsurface materials encountered during the 
investigation were collected for testing. 

10 

~1 
Report of Geotechnlcal Investigation ia~ Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

Soil samples recovered from the engineering borings were transferred to NOVA's geotechnical 
laboratory where a geotechnicai engineer reviewed the soil samples and the field logs. 

3.2.3 Closure 

On completion, the borings were backfilled with cuttings. The area was cleaned and left as close 
to the original condition as practical. 

3.3 Percolation Testing 

3.3.1 General 

NOVA directed the advancement and construction of two (2) percolation test wells following the 
recommendations for percolation testing presented in the County of San Diego County BMP 
Design Manual, January 2019 edition, and the County of San Diego Department of Health 
Services guidelines. The percolation test locations are shown on Figure 3-1 . 

3.3.2 Drilling 

The borings for the wells were each drilled with an 8-inch hollow-stem auger to depths of 5 feet 
below ground surface (bgs). Field measurements were taken to confirm that the borings were 

11 



Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 
Ji\~-INOVA August 20, 2020 

excavated to approximately 8 Inches in diameter. The borings were logged by a NOVA 
geologist, who observed and recorded exposed soil cuttings and the boring conditions. 

3.3.3 Conversion to Percolation Well 

Once the borings were drilled to the desired depths, the borings were converted to percolation 
test wells by placing an approximately 2-inch layer of ¾-inch gravel on the bottom, then 
extending 3-inch diameter schedule 40 perforated PVC pipe to the ground surface. The ¾-inch 
gravel was used to partially fill the annular space around the perforated pipe below the existing 
finish grade to minimize the potential of soil caving. 

3. 3. 4 Percolation Testing 

The percolation test wells were pre-soaked by fining the holes with water to the ground surface 
level and testing commenced within a 26-hour window. 

On the day of testing, two 25-minute trials were conducted in each well. In the test wells the pre
soak water did.n ot percolate at least 6 inches into the soil unit within 25 minutes. 

Based on the results of the trials , water levels were recorded every 30 minutes for six hours. At 
the beginning of each test interval, the water level was raised to approximately the same level 
as the previous tests, in order to maintain a near-constant head during all test periods. 

Table 3-2 abstracts the percolation test conditions and related percolation rates. 

Table 3-2. Abstract of the Percolation Testi~ 

., .. _ ~ ,• , .. . .'...::. Penioidon , ~ lntlllratl9n ~on 

~,~ =,• -m!4::~ <~~ ~ r:!.i -- ~ ="1~- I 
·· {fee..!, mall 1 -

P-1 I +1563 5 +1560 10 Keg 0.39 0.20 I 
P-2 I +1568 5 +1563 1.81 Keg 3.37 1.69 

Note 1: Elevations are approximate and should be reviewed. 
Note 2: Percolati<>n rate is not infiltration rate. Infiltration rates are discussed in detail in Section 7. 
Note 3: The referenced geologic subsurface unit tested is Tonalite of Cole Grade (Keg). 
Note 4: 'FS' indicates 'Factor of Safety'. Discussed further In Section 7. 

Figure 3-3 (following page) depicts percolation testing at well P-2. 

12 

4\ Report of Geotechnlcal Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

3.4 Laboratory Testing 

3.4.1 General 

Soil samples recovered from the engineering borings were transferred to NOVA's geotechnical 
laboratory where a geotechnical engineer reviewed the soil samples and the field logs. 
Representative soil samples were selected and tested in NOVA's materials laboratory to check 
visual classifications and to determine pertinent engineering properties. The laboratory program 
included visual classifications of all soil samples as well as index and expansivity testing in 
general accordance with ASTM standards. 

Records of the geotechnical laboratory testing are provided In Appendix C. 

3.4.2 R-Va/ue 

As used for this report, the purpose of this test is to determine the suitability of prospective 
subgrade soils for use in the pavement sections. Of particular concern in development of Fire 
Station #3 will be the high axle loads applied to pavements by the firefighting vehicles. 

Developed and used by Caltrans for flexible pavement design, R-Value replaces the California 
Bearing Ratio (CBR) test. Samples used to determine R-value are prepared at a moisture and 
density condition representative of the expected in situ condition of a compacted subgrade 
(often, conditions of saturation and lower relative compaction). 

13 



Ji\,., 
NOVA 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

The R-value is calculated from the ratio of the applied vertical pressure to the developed lateral 
pressure, essentially a measure of the material's resistance to plastic flow. Figure 3-4 depicts 
lateral flow in soil rutted by tires of a test soil section. 

The R-value thus reflects the ability of a soil to resist lateral spreading due to an applied vertical 
load (such as the tire loads depicted above). A range of values are established from Oto 100, 
where 0 is the resistance of water and 100 is the resistance of steel. Typical R-values based on 
NOVA's local experience are presented below. 

Table 3-3. Typical R-Val, - for Soils In ..tile S, .. - Area 
... .$oflT'ypa typical R•Val111111 

Plastic clays/silty clays 5-15 
Clayey silts 12-25 
Silty sands 15-55 

Sands 50 - 75 
Sandy gravels > 60 
Crushed rock > 70 

A sample representative of the subgrade soils in the planned paved areas was selected for R
Value testing after ASTM D2844, indicating R = 17, characteristic of R-values for sands with silt. 

3.4.3 Compaction 

A single composite sample of the sandy fraction of near-surface soil was tested to determine the 
moisture-density characteristics during compaction after ASTM D1557 (the 'modified Proctor'). 
Table 3-4 summarizes the results of this testing. 

Table 3-4. Abstract of the Compaction Testing, ASTM D1557 

I I Maximum OptimumI 
Location I Depth(;.::: SOIi Description Dry Density Moisture Wilt. 

,....., fib/ft") (% 
Con 

B-2 I 0-4 I Oranoe brown clavev sand I 133.5 I 9.8 

14 

i&~~-,
NOVA 

Report of Geotechnlcal Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

3.4.4 Expansion Potential and Plasticity 

The field visual classification of the soils by the geologist and reviewed in the laboratory by the 
geotechnical engineer indicates that the near-surface soils are characteristically sandy with 
varying amounts of silt. As such, these soils would be expected to be of low plasticity and low 
expansion potential. 

The foregoing judgments were checked by testing of a single representative sample of the near
surface alluvium after ASTM D4829 to determine Expansion Index. This testing showed the soil 
to have 'Low' expansion potential (El = 40) after ASTM D4829. 

3.4.5 In-Place Soil Density 

The dry unit weight and moisture content of representative, relatively undisturbed samples were 
determined as a basis for comparison with the optimum density and moisture. Table 3-5 depicts 
these results. 

Table 3-5. M,·' c, d Dry Unit Weight, ASTM D2937 
DryUilltMolabnDepthBoring Soff Description Weight(pcf)Content.(feet) 

124.4 
B-3 

Orange-brown clayey sand B-2 12.22.5 
119.3Oranoe-brown siitv sand 6 10.6 

3.4.6 Gradation 

Table 3-5 summarizes the results of gradation testing of soils recovered from the borings. 

1 ao1e .s-o. Aosuacr or me .::,011 uraoauon I esung, 
Depth Perc.n.t Anet Tha.n ~ U.S.

Location No. 200 Sieve (0.074 mm)(feet} 
B-1 1 30 SM 
B-2 1 33 SC 
B-2 6 21 SM 
B-4 2.5 35 SM 
B-4 5 27 SM 
B-4 8 23 SM 
B-6 2 59 CL 
B-6 3.5 27 SM 
B-6 5.5 9 SP-SM 

A.:,Imuo111.s 

Sol 
Clealllcatlon 

3.4. 7 Corrosion Potential 

Resistivity, sulfate content, and chloride contents were determined to estimate the potential of 
on-site soils to be corrosive to unprotected, embedded metals or to attack embedded concrete. 
The testing indicated a slightly basic pH and low levels of soluble sulfates and chlorides. Section 
6 discusses the indications of the chemical testing. 

15 



Report of Geotechnical Investigation ,a, 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 i■i 
NOVA August 20, 2020 

4.0 SITE CONDITIONS 

4.1 Geologic Setting 

4.1.1 Regional 

The project area is located in the Peninsular Ranges Geomorphic Province. This geomorphic 
province encompasses an area that extends approximately 900 miles from the Transverse 
Ranges and the Los Angeles Basin south to the southern tip of Baja California (Norris and 
Webb, 1990). The province varies in width from approximately 30 to 100 miles. In general, the 
province consists of rugged mountains underlain mostly by Jurassic metavolcanic and 
metasedimentary rocks, intruded by Cretaceous igneous rocks of the southern California 
batholith. 

Ihe site is in the Foothills Physiographic Province of San Diego County. Geologic units Include 
granitic rocKs such as gabbro, granodiorite, and tonalite; and hard metasedlmentary and 
metavolcanlcs rock. Alluvial soils in this area are generally derived of the granitic rocks, and can 
occur in basins, drainages, and alluvial fans . 

4.1.2 Site Specific 

The site is generally underlain by a layer of alluvium overlying Cretaceous-age Tonalite of Cole 
Grade (Keg), a granitic-type bedrock. 

In its unweathered state, tonallte provides excellent, high-capacity foundation support. However, 
unweathered tonalite may have the strength of low-grade concrete and present excavation 
difficulties. The upper portion of the tonalite at this site is variably weathered (sometimes called 
'decomposed'). Weathered tonalite will still provide excellent foundation conditions and often 
can be favorable for infiltration and percolation. 

Figure 4-1 (following page) reproduces geologic mapping of the site area. 

There are no known, mapped active faults underlying the site. The nearest mapped fault zone is 
the Elsinore Fault Zone, with the nearest active fault located in the Temecula Section, about 5.5 
miles north of the site. 

16 

,, 
Report of Geotechnical Investigation 

Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 
NOVA Project 2020074 r.,A\ 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

................ 
~ -1.!NOMa!D IIII -T1'lll'Wffll::ROCICII................ 

Figure 4-1. Geologic Mapping of the Site Vicinity 

4.2 Surface, Subsurface, and Groundwater 

4. 2. 1 Surface 

The site is characterized by gently rolling topography. Surface drainage is generally from south 
to north. The site slopes gradually down to the northwest and northeast. On-site elevations 
range from +1,603 feet mean sea level (msl) at the southwest corner, to +1,550 feet msl at the 
northwest corner. This elevation differential occurs over a distance of about 670 feet, a surface 
gradient of about 8%. 

Cole Grade Road, which borders the site to the east, is elevated.almost 10 feet relative to the 
site levels in the northeast corner of the site, but is 2 feet lower than the site in the southeast 
corner. 

Figure 4-2 (following page) depicts surface conditions at the site. As may be seen by review of 
this figure, the site is covered by a dense cover of native grasses, weeds, and brush. 

17 



.

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074Ii\ 
NOVA August 20, 2020 

~r.:· '•:f.• 
,1, ', 

p~~~,.~~\ ::i,~.. ~-~-~: .• ..,_.., 
'',,/ , .. ,;,• P: 

ir. ...... ,..►,--,i>·· )
, 

.,~:
\. 

. .·~:· 
• b.:. -~,•.-, 

J, 
~ :!~,·:~);~fiti,t . .~-.'.\,'

(a) Looking south along east boundary (b) Looking south from north property line 
Figure 4-2. Surface Conditions -

4.2.2 Subsurface 

The sequence of soils and rock encountered by the borings may be generalized to occur as 
described below. 

1. Unit 1. Alluvium (Qal). The site is covered by a veneer of alluvium. As encountered in 
the explorations, this material ranges from Oto 5 feet in thickness but maybe thicker in 
other areas of the site. The alluvial soils encountered is comprised of medium dense 
clayey sand, but is subject to wide variation in quality and consistency. Figure 4-3 
depicts the soil from this unit. 

ir,!lj 

, 
.:·-.:!'. 

.·••' ,'•• ,J• 

. ~~-.-_.:.;_ :•.-;;.:i-l\, ':-~ : 
• , •· 11 ~~ .• • ,-,,. . . ~ . 

· -· -;;,..-.-:.-ii_- ~-<~.:::.tr.:~ ..-. 
•·---... ......,~.ai-- ""t' . .. , . ' 

-· .--. ~-~"-- _,,,. ,-. ,,_ ·-· •<) ~ 

;'.''.\:~;?\~t>1\··:'·~-\., -~.
: .. :;:\_,~~'.t"',;·: ....:}.-:.,_)J.
~--~f:._~··;:_)ttf::~·:, :--. 

2. Unit 2, Weathered Tonalite of Cole Grade (Keg). Beneath the alluviual soils, the site is 
underlain by granitics of this Cretaceous-aged unit. The upper several feet are 
characteristically weathered and decomposed to a medium to coarse, orange to gray 
sand with silt. A one-foot clay layer of weathered tonalite was encountered within boring 

18 

\\
~, Report of Geotechnical Investigation 

Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 
NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

B-6. As characterized by Standard Penetration Test blowcounts ('N', after ASTM D 
1586), the weathered tonalite is of dense to very dense consistency, with N > 50. Rock 
floaters may be encountered during earthwork operations. 

Figure 4-4 and Figure 4-5 depict variations in the degree of weathering of this unit. 

Figure 4-4. Unit 2 Weathered Tonallte Figure 4-5. Unit 2 Weathered Tonallte 

4.2.3 Groundwater 

No groundwater was encountered in the borings. Information provided on the Water Well 
Drillers Report for a groundwater well installed in 1986 at a property located approximately 
2,000 feet west of Cole Grade Road on Cole Grade Lane (approximately 1,300 feet west of the 
site) indicates groundwater first occurs in fractured bedrock at a depth of approximately 30 feet 
below ground surface (bgs). 

Infiltrating storm water from prolonged wet periods can 'perch' atop localized zones of lower 
permeability soil that exist above the static groundwater level. Localized perched groundwater 
conditions may also develop post-construction, once landscape irrigation commences. 

No perched groundwater was observed in the work by NOVA. 

4.2.4 Surface Water 

No surface water was evident within the limits of the planned fire station at the time of NOVA's 
subsurface exploration. NOVA did not observe any visual evidence of seeps, springs, erosion, 
staining, discoloration, etc. that would indicate recent problems with surface water. 

The closest surface water is Keys Creek, located approximately a half-mile north of the site. 

4.3 Subsurface Profile 
As is tabulated in Section 3 and discussed previously in this section, beneath a veneer of 
alluvium, the site is underlain by weathered granitics. Figure 4-6 and Figure 4-7 provide two 
south to north subsurface profiles beneath the planned structures. Locations of cross-section 

19 

https://ii_-~-<~.:::.tr


~_

,

4\ Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA Avgust 20, 2020 

lines are located on Plate 1 following the text of the report, and cross-section figures are 
provides in larger scale as Plate 2. 

GEDL.OC11C' CflOSS-SEoC'JJOtl ..... 

,L_~ 

A',1111 

PROPOSED :ARE STATION 

PROPOSED ~ -==~- ,ElOSllNGG!Wl£ I- ··[';"' I~--:::: 7 _..•- ~--~ _____'. __..,__"--< -==+c_,'<___.,~r•---~----•----,- ·s ..., "'~ L°"' 

l(tp .... 
KqJ .... 

...~..~~..~..~,.,,.~,.,- - ..~,.,,,...,,,.,,.....,,.,;.,....,,.,.,.....,..,;.,...c,,..,.....,,..;.,....,."="""-..,'c-,..=-~-- ----,,_.,...,...~....,_-,,,,___.,_,..=-~,,.- ...,..,...,...,,--,..- -.,.- ...- -...~.....__-........,,,.;,-
Figure 4-6. South to North Profile Beneath the Planned Fire Station 

(Qal indicates alluvium; Keg indicates granitic tonalite) 

8EO'ffi1?:tlflOR:B£llPPfU" 

PROP06ED 
""'18 " " 

RIJI.DING IMlDl<G 
1MOf'- PROPD6ED PROPOSEDd ~TIDNl 

.._ 
PARKING PAAIONG . - EXISTING GRADE 

WT 8-2 LOT -5 ,l- .. r~1.r-l:-r -~---~--=-r--.... ~ -- ~ - __,. .,. 
KqJ 

Keg 

""" 
' -•••••--•----m-•••-•*-----•B••-------Figure 4-7. South to North Profile Beneath the Planned Maintenance and Admin Bulldlnga 

(Qal indicates alluvium; Keg indicates granitic tonalite) 

As is discussed in Section 2, site design is not complete. However, based upon review of 
Figure 4-6 and Figure 4-7 it is likely that the structures will largely be founded in the Unit 2 
tonalite. Some low retaining walls may be employed to adapt development to the site. 

20 

Report of Geotechnlcal Investigation,a~ Proposed Fire Station #'3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 
NOVA Project 2020074~-,

NOVA August 20, 2020 

5.0 REVIEW OF GEOLOGIC, SOIL, AND SITING HAZARDS 

5.1 Overview 

This section provides a review of geologic, soil, and siting-related hazards common to this 
region of California, considering each for its potential to affect the planned development. The 
primary hazard identified by this review is the risk for moderate-to-severe ground shaking in 
response to a large-magnitude earthquake during the lifetime of the planned development, a 
circumstance is common to all civil works in this area of California. 

While strong ground motion could affect the site there is no risk of liquefaction or related seismic 
phenomena. 

The following subsections describe NOVA'S review of soil and geologic hazards. 

5.2 Geologic Hazards 

5.2.1 Strong Ground Motion 

The seismicity of the site was evaluated utilizing a web-based analytical tool provided by The 
American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE). This evaluation shows the site may be subjected 
to a Magnitude 7.7 seismic event, with a corresponding risk-based Peak Ground Acceleration 
(PG.AM) of PGAM - 0.63 g. 

5.2.2 Fault Rupture 

No evidence offaulting was observed during NOVA's geologic reconnaissance of the site. The 
site does not lie within a state-designated active Earthquake Fault Zone (Alquist-Priolo Zone). 

The nearest mapped major fault zone is the Elsinore fault zone, with the closest active fault 
(Holocene- active) located about 5.5 miles north within the Temecula Section, and nearest 
potentially active faults (late Quaternary) of the Julian Section located 5.0 miles northeast from 
the site. Figure 5-1 (following page) reproduces published mapping of active faulting in the site 
vicinity. 

Because of the lack of known active faults on the site, the potential for surface rupture at the site 
is considered low. Shallow ground rupture due to shaking from distant seismic events is not 
considered a significant hazard, although it is a possibility at any site. 

21 



Report of Geotechnical InvestigationJl\ Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 
NOVA Project 20200741111 

NOVA August 20. 2020 

KEY TO SYMBOLS 

ACTIVE WITHIN 150YEAAS 

ACTIVE <15,000 YEARS 

LATE QUATERNARY <130,000YEARS 

5. 2. 3 Landslide 

As used herein, 'landslide' describes downslope displacement of a mass of rock, soil, and/or 
debris by sliding, flowing, or falling. Such mass earth movements are greater than about 10 feet 
thick and larger than 300 feet across. Landslides typically include cohesive block glides and 
disrupted slumps that are formed by translation or rotation of the slope materials along one or 
more slip/failure surfaces. These mass displacements can also include more narrowly confined 
modes of mass wasting such as rock topples, 'mud flows' and 'debris flows'. 

The causes of classic landslides start with a preexisting condition - characteristically, a plane of 
weak soil or rock - inherent within the rock or soil mass. Thereafter, movement may be 
precipitated by earthquakes, wet weather, and changes to the structure or loading conditions on 
a slope (e.g., by erosion, cutting, filling, release of water from broken pipes, etc.). 

Associated with this assessment, NOVA completed a review of published information regarding 
historical landslides and the risk of landsliding in the site vicinity. That review indicates no 
mapped historic landslides in the immediate site area. 

22 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 
Ii\
fill 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

In consideration of the gently sloping topography at and around the site, review of published 
information, and geologic reconnaissance of the site area, NOVA considers the landslide hazard 
at the site to be 'negligible' for the site and the area immediately surrounding it. 

5.3 Soil Hazards 

5.3.1 Embankment Stability 

As used herein, 'embankment stability' is intended to mean the safety of localized natural or 
man-made embankments against failure. Unlike landslides described above, embankment 
stability can include smaller scale slope failures such as erosion-related washouts and more 
subtle, less evident processes such as soil creep. 

At the time of this report, grading plans are not available. It is NOVA's understanding that there 
may be cut slopes designed as part of the future construction. The dense to very dense nature 
of the tonalite bedrock is expected to provide sound cut slopes. Any loose alluvium in the cut 
slope should be removed and replaced with engineered fill, per recommendations in Section 6. 
Embankment stability is not considered a hazard to development. 

5.3.2 Seismic 

Liquefaction 
'Liquefaction' refers to the loss of soil strength during a seismic event. The phenomenon 
is observed in areas that include geologically 'younger' soils (i.e., soils of Holocene age), 
shallow water table (less than about 60 feet depth), and cohesionless (i.e., sandy and 
silty) soils of looser consistency. The seismic ground motions increase soil water 
pressures, decreasing grain-to-grain contact among the soil particles, which causes the 
soils to lose strength. 

The subsurface exploration did not encounter saturated soils. The Unit 2 tonalite is 
known to extend to great depth at this site. This Cretaceous-aged rock is not at risk for 
liquefaction ( or related 'lateral spreading). 

Seismically Induced Settlement 
Apart from liquefaction, a strong seismic event can induce settlement within loose to 
moderately dense, unsaturated granular soils. Unit 2 tonalite is sufficiently dense that 
seismic settlement will not occur. Unit 1 alluvium will be improved by remedial grading to 
be a soil of very dense consistency. 

5.3.3 Expansive Soil 

Expansive soils are characterized by their ability to undergo significant volume changes 
(shrinking or swelling) due to variations in moisture content, the magnitude of which is related to 
both clay content and plasticity index. These volume changes can be damaging to structures. 
Nationally, the annual value of real estate damage caused by expansive soils is exceeded only 
by that caused by termites. 

As is discussed in Section 3, the soils have been characterized by testing to determine 
Expansion Index ('El' after ASTM D 4829). Originally developed in Orange County in the 1960s, 
El is a basic soil index property, comparable to indices such as the Atterberg limits of soils. 

23 



Report of Geotechnical Investigationrl\ Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 
NOVA Project 2020074la'l 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

El is adopted by the 2019 California Building Code ('CBC', Section 1803.5.3) for 
characterization of expansive soils. Testing of the Unit 1 alluvium, as well as visual inspection 
of samples recovered by NOVA, indicates that this soil has 'Low' expansion potential. 

5.3.4 Hydro-Collapsible Soils 

Hydro-collapsible soils are common in the arid climates of the western United States in specific 
depositional environments - principally, in areas of young alluvial fans, debris flow sediments, 
and loess (wind-blown sediment) deposits. These soils are characterized by low in situ density, 
low moisture contents, and relatively high unwetted strength. 

The Unit 1 alluvium will be improved by remedial grading and will not be collapsible. The 
consistency, geomorphogeny, and geologic age of the Unit 2 tonalite is such that these soils are 
at risk for hydro-collapse. 

5.3.5 Alluvial Soils 

Alluviual soils should be considered at risk for wide variations in quality and consistency. This 
unit in its natural state has the potential to affect structures and infrastructure, unless mitigated 
per recommendations in Section 6. 

5.3.6 Corrosivity 

Chemical testing of the near-surface soils indicates the soils contain low concentrations of 
soluble sulfates and chlorides, but may be considered 'severely corrosive" to buried metal 
based on resistivity testing. Section 6 addresses this consideration In more detail. 

5.4 Siting Hazards 

5.4.1 Effect on Adjacent Properties 

The proposed project will not affect the structural Integrity of adjacent properties or existing 
public improvements and street right-of-ways located adjacent to the site If the 
recommendations of this report are incorporated into project design. 

5.4.2 Inundation 

Flood 
The site is located within an area designated by FEMA as "Zone X," an area of minimal 
flood hazard Figure 5-2 (following page) reproduces flood mapping by FEMA of the site 
area. 

Surface Water Structures 
The site is not located near any surface water bodies (e.g., lakes, reservoirs, canals, 
etc.) whose failure would have the potential to inundate the site. 

24 

Report of Geotechnlcal Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074,.,al\ 
NOVA August 20, 2020 

Figure 5-2. Flood Mapping of the Site Area 
(source: FEMA 2019, found at https·//msc.fema.go~lportal/) 

Tsunami and Seiche 
Tsunami describes a series of fast-moving, long-period ocean waves caused by 
earthquakes or volcanic eruptions. The distance of the site from the ocean precludes this 
threat 

Seiches are standing waves that develop in an enclosed or partially enclosed body of 
water such as lakes or reservoirs. Harbors or inlets can also develop seiches. The site is 
not located near a body of water that could generate a seiche. 

25 



Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California ~-Jlll NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

6.0 EARTHWORK AND FOUNDATIONS 

6.1 Overview 

6. 1. 1 Review of Site Hazards 

Section 5 provides review of geologic, soil, and siting-related hazards that may affect the 
planned development. The primary hazard identified by that review is that the site is at risk for 
moderate-to-severe ground shaking in response to large-magnitude earthquakes during the 
lifetime of the planned development. This circumstance is common to all civil works in this area 
of California. 

While strong ground motion could affect the site, there is no risk of liquefaction or related 
seismic phenomena. Section 6.2 provides seismic design parameters. 

6.1.2 Site SUitability 

The site is suitable for development of the planned structures on shallow foundations provided 
the geotechnical recommendations described herein are followed. Founded as such, the 
project will not affect the structural integrity of adjacent properties or existing public 
improvements and street right-of-ways located adjacent to the site. 

6. 1.3 Review and Surveillance 

The subsections following provide geotechnical recommendations for the planned development 
as it is now understood. It is intended that these recommendations provide sufficient 
geotechnical information to develop the project in general accordance with 2019 California 
Building Code (CBC) requirements. 

NOVA should be given the opportunity to review the grading plan, foundation plan, and 
geotechnical-related specifications as they become available to confirm that the 
recommendations presented in this report have been incorporated into the plans prepared for 
the project. 

All earthwork related to site and foundation preparation should be completed under the 
observation of NOVA. 

6.2 Seismic Design Parameters 

6.2.1 Site Class 

The Site Class was determined using site-specific boring data and geologic knowledge. Based 
on this information, the site is classified as Site Class C per ASCE 7-16, Table 20.3-1. The 
planned fire station is considered Risk Category IV. 

6.2.2 Seismic Design Parameters 

Table 6-1 provides seismic design parameters for the site in accordance with 2019 CBC and 
mapped spectral acceleration parameters. 

26 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation t&~ Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California,., 
NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

Parameter Value 

Site Soil Class C 

Site Latitude (decimal degrees) 33.260506 

Site Longitude (decimal degrees) -117.024095 

Site Coefficient, F • 1.2 

Site Coefficient, F, 1.5 

Mapped Short Period Spectral Acceleration, S5 1.19 

Mapped One-Second Period Spectral Acceleration, s, 0.429 

Short Period Spectral Acceleration Adjusted For Site Class, SMS 1.428 

One-Second Period Spectral Acceleration Adjusted For Site Class, SM, 0.643 

Design Short Period Spectral Acceleration, S05 0.952 

Design One-Second Period Spectral Acceleration, S01 0.429 
Source: SEAOC and OSHPD Seismic Design Maps www seismicmaps.orq 

6.3 Corrosivity and Sulfates 

6.3.1 General 

Electrical resistivity, chloride content, and pH level are all indicators of the soil's tendency to 
corrode ferrous metals. Levels of water-soluble sulfates are correlated with the potential for 
sulfate attack to embedded concrete. Chemical testing for these parameters was performed on 
a representative sample of the near-surface soils. These results are tabulated in Table 6-2. 

Sample Ref SulfatAls ChkriteilResistivity
DepthBoring 

pH (ikm) ppm ppm(feet) " I " B-2 0-4 7.8 1200 66 0.007 230 I 0.023 

6.3.2 Metals 

Caltrans considers a soil to be corrosive if one or more of the following conditions exist for 
representative soil and/or water samples taken at the site: 

• chloride concentration is 500 parts per million (ppm) or greater, 
• sulfate concentration is 2,000 ppm (0.2%) or greater, or 
• the pH is 5.5 or less. 

Based on the Caltrans criteria, the on-site soils would not be considered 'corrosive' to burled 
metals. 

27 



Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, Californiafl,.~\ NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

In addition to the above parameters, the risk of soil corrosivity buried metals may considered by 
determination of electrical resistivity (p ). Soil resistivity may be used to express the corrosivlty of 
soil only in unsaturated soils. Corrosion of buried metal is an electrochemical process in which 
the amount of metal loss due to corrosion is directly proportional to the flow of DC electrical 
current from the metal into the soil. As the resistivity of the soil decreases, the corrosivity 
generally increases. A common qualitative correlation (cited in Romanoff 1989, NACE 2007) 
between soil resistivity and corrosivity to ferrous metals is tabulated below. 

and Corrosion Potential 
auantattve ~ 

Potentiat . . 
0 to 2,000 I Severe 

2,000 to 10,000 I Moderate 
10,000 to 30,000 I Mild 

Over 30,000 I Not Likely. 

Despite the relatively benign environment for corrosivity indicated by pH and water-soluble 
chlorides, the resistivity testing suggests that design should consider that the soils may be 
Severely Corrosive to embedded ferrous metals. Ferrous metals include steel and pig iron (with 
a carbon content of a few percent) and alloys of iron with other metals (such as stainless steel). 

Typical recommendations for mitigation of such corrosion potential in embedded ferrous metals 
include: 

• a high-quality protective coating such as an 18-mil plastic tape, extruded polyethylene, 
coal tar enamel, or Portland cement mortar; 

• electrical isolation from above grade ferrous metals and other dissimilar metals by 
means of dielectric fittings in utilities and exposed metal structures breaking grade; and 

• steel and wire reinforcement within concrete having contact with the site soils should 
have at least 2 inches of concrete cover. 

If extremely sensitive ferrous metals are expected to be placed in contact with the site soils, it 
may be desirable to consult a corrosion specialist regarding choosing the construction materials 
and/or protection design for the objects of concern. 

6. 3. 3 Sulfates 

As shown in Table 6-2, the soil sample indicated water-soluble sulfate (SO•) content of 66 parts 
per million ('ppm,' 0.007% by weight). With so. < 0.10 percent by weight, the American 
Concrete Institute (ACI) 318-08 considers a soil to have no potential (SO) for sulfate attack. 
Table 6-4 (following page) reproduces the Exposure categories considered by ACI. 

6.3.4 Limitations 

Testing to determine several chemical parameters that indicate a potential for soils to be 
corrosive to construction materials are traditionally completed by the Geotechnical Engineer, 
comparing testing results with a variety of indices regarding corrosion potential. Like most 
geotechnical consultants, NOVA does not practice In the field of corrosion protection, since this 
is not specifically a geotechnical issue. Should you require more information, a specialty 
corrosion consultant should be retained to address these issues. 

28 

Report of Geotechnlcal lnvestigatlon I&\ Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 
NOVA Project 2020074,■i 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

Exposure · 
Category . Class . 

~◄olubl• <'
Sulfate (80,\J bl . 

. Soll · 

,...... 
8-dlWi~ ' 

Mat'., 
. 'Jpsl) 

Not Aoolicable so so.< 0.10 - - -
Moderate S1 0.10 :s so. < 0.20 II 0.50 4,000 
Severe S2 0.20 :s so. :s 2.00 V 0.45 4,500 
Verv severe S3 so.> 2.0 V+ oozzolan 0.45 4500 

Table 6-4. Exoosure Cateaories and Rei 1uirements tor water-sotuble Sulfates =~;, 
Adapted from: ACI 318-08, Building Code Requirements for Structural Concrete 

6.4 Earthwork 

6.4. 1 General 

As Is noted in Section 2, no detailed structural or civil-related design information Is available at 
this time. However, based upon the known condition of the site and the design concept that is 
currently considered, NOVA expects that earthwork will be limited to preparation of building 
pads, grading for roads and parking lots, and excavations for foundations and utilities. 

Earthwork should be perfonmed in accordance with Section 300 of the most recent approved 
edition of the "Standard Specifications for Public Worl<s Construction" and "Regional 
Supplement Amendments.• 

6.4.2 Site Preparation 

Prior to the start of earthwork, the site should be cleared of vegetation, including the root zone. 
The deleterious materials should be disposed of in approved off-site locations. 

At the outset of site work, the Contractor should establish Construction BMPs to prevent erosio_n 
of graded/excavated areas until such time as permanent drainage and erosion control measures 
have been installed. Any existing utilities which are to be abandoned should either be (I) 
excavated and the trenches backfilled, or (ii) the lines completely filled with sand-cement slurry. 

6.4.3 Select Fill 

Material Requirements 
Any lill used to support structures should be 'select.' Select Fill should be a mineral soil 
free of organics and any regulated constituents with the characteristics listed below: 

I 

• free of organics, with at least 40% by weight finer than ¼ inches in size; 
• maximum particle size of 4 inches; 
• classified as GM, GW, SW or SM after ASTM D 2488; and, 
• expansion index (El) less than 40 (i.e., El< 40, after ASTM D 4829). 

Much of the Unit 1 alluvium will conform to the above criteria. In certain cases mixing of 
the Unit 1 and Unit 2 soils may be required to meet the above criteria. The upper 
portions of the Unit 2 weathered tonalite should also conform to the above criteria. 

29 



Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 Ji\ 
NOVA August 20, 2020 

Compaction Requirements 
All fill should be compacted to a minimum of 90% relative compaction after ASTM D1557 
(the 'modified Proctor') following moisture conditioning to 2% above the optimum 
moisture content. 
The cohesionless (i.e., sandy and gravelly) Select Fill must be densified by vibratory 
means, using compaction equipment intended for the densification of cohesionless soils. 
The equipment must be in good working order. 

Fill should be placed in loose lifts no thicker than the ability of the compaction equipment 
to thoroughly density the lift. For most self-propelled construction equipment, this will 
limit loose lifts to on the order of 8 inches or less. Lift thickness for hand-operated 
equipment (tampers, walk-behind compactors, etc.) will be limited to on the order of 4 
inches or less. 

6.4.4 Excavation Characteristics 

The Unit 1 alluvium will be readily excavated by earthwork equipment usual for construction of 
this nature. 

Engineering borings excavated by means of hollow stem auger drilling were able to be extended 
to depths of 16 feet below surrounding ground, penetrating at least 10 feet of the Unit 2 
weathered tonalite. SPT blow counts ('N', blows per foot) in this interval were commonly N > 50. 
The weathered tonalite encountered over this interval was characteristically a coarse-grained 
sand with varying amounts of silt. 

NOVA expects that the Unit 2 weathered tonalite should be able to be excavated by medium to 
heavy earthmoving equipment, including larger dozers and appropriately equipped backhoes. 
Despite this expectation, the prospective contractor should recognize that this unit commonly 
includes near-surface zones of sound rock known as 'core stones' or 'floaters' that may require 
ripping, breaking, or other special means to loosen the material prior to handling, though none 
of these were encountered during the investigation. 

6.4.5 Remedial Grading at Structures 

General 
The Unit 1 alluvium is unsuitable for support of structures. Foundation preparation for 
floor slabs and foundations should provide for complete removal of the Unit 1 alluvium to 
the level of the Unit 2 weathered tonalite, extending this excavation to at least 5 feet 
outside the building limits. The resultant excavation should be backfilled to finish pad 
grades with Select Fill meets the criteria of Section 6.4.3. 

The project GEOR should approve the bottom of removals. Soils loosened by excavation 
should be redensified to a minimum of 90% relative compaction after ASTM D 1557. 

Transition Conditions 
A "transition condition" occurs when a portion of the structure is bearing on new 
engineered fill and a portion of the structure is bearing on the Unit 2 weathered tonalite. 

30 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, CaliforniaJil 

NOVA Project 2020074 ,ai 
NOVA August 20, 2020 

If a transition condition occurs within the limits of a structure, the Unit 2 tonalite should 
be over excavated to a depth of 2 feet below the bottom of footings and floor slab, to 
ensure the structure is bearing entirely on at least 2 feet of compacted fill. 

These over excavations should extend 5 feet beyond the building footprint. Removal 
bottoms should be observed and documented by the GEOR. 

6.4. 6 Maintenance of Moisture in Soils During Construction 

The subgrade moisture condition of the building pad and foundation soils must be maintained at 
least 2% above optimum moisture content up to the time of concrete placement. 

6.4. 7 Trenching and Backfilling for Utilities 

Excavation for utility trenches must be performed in conformance with OSHA regulations 
contained in 29 CFR Part 1926. 

Utility trench excavations have the potential to degrade the properties of the adjacent soils. 
Utility trench walls that are allowed to move laterally will reduce the bearing capacity and 
increase settlement of adjacent footings and overlying slabs. 

Backfill for utility trenches is as important as the original subgrade preparation or engineered fill 
placed to support either a foundation or slab. Backfill for utility trenches must be placed to meet 
the project specifications for the engineered fill of this project. Unless otherwise specified, the 
backfill for the utility trenches should be placed in 4-inch to 6-inch loose lifts and compacted to a 
minimum of 90% relative compaction after ASTM D 1557 (the 'modified Proctor') at soil moisture 
at least +2% of the optimum moisture content. Up to 4 inches of bedding material placed directly 
under the pipes or conduits placed in the utility trench can be compacted to 90% relative 
compaction with respect to the Modified Proctor. 

6.4.B Slope Construction 

Adaptation of the planned fire station to the sloping site may include engineered fills. 

Select Fill (Section 6.4.3) should be used in the construction of engineered fill slopes. Cut and 
fill slopes should be constructed at an inclination of 2: 1 (horizontal:vertical) or flatter. Keyways 
should be constructed at the toe of all fill slopes taller than four feet. 

Where the slope of the original ground is steeper than 5:1 (horizontal:vertical), or where 
recommended by the Geotechnical Engineer of Record (GEOR), the original ground should be 
benched in accordance with the Figure 6-1. 

31 



,a~ ,., 
NOVA 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Finish Grado ~ Origlnol G10und 

2 

"]1 
Finish Slope Surface 

Remove AH ____. 
UnsuttabJeMaterial 
As Recommended By 
Consultant Slope To Be Such That 

Sloughing Or Sliding 
Does Not Occu- Vories 

I6 

Figure 6-1 . Benching Detail 

~~-· I 5eeNote2 

Notes: 
(1) Key width "B" should be a minimum of 5 feet, or sufficiently wide to permit complete coverage 
with the compaction equipment used. The base of the key should be graded horizontal, 
inclined slightly Into the natural slope. 

(2) The outside of the key should be below the topsoil or unsultable surficial material 
and at least 2 feet Into dense Tonalite material (Unit 2). The bottom of the key, the depth and 
configuration of the key may be modified as approved by the GEOR. 

6.4. 9 Flatwork 

Prior to casting exterior flatworik, the upper 12 inches of subgrade soils should be removed and 
replaced with compacted fill that meets the requirments of Select Fill. The exposed bottom of 
removals should be scarified, moisture conditioned, and compacted to a minimum of 90% 
relative compaction after ASTM D 1557 (the 'modified Proctor'). 

Exterior concrete slabs for pedestrian traffic or landscape should be at least 4 inches thick. 
Weakened plane joints should be located at intervals of about 6 feet. Control of the 
water/cement ratio can limit shrinkage cracking due to excess water or poor concrete finishing 
or curing. Exterior slabs may be reinforced with No. 3 bars on 18-inches centers, each way. 

6.5 Shallow Foundations 

6.5.1 General 

Structures can be supported on shallow foundations embedded in either compacted Select Fill 
or the Unit 2 weathered tonalite. The following subsections provide recommendations for 
shallow foundations. It is recommerided that all foundation elements, including any grade 
beams, be reinforced top and bottom. The actual reinforcement should be designed by the 
Structural Engineer. 

32 

,,~ 
,■i 

NOVA 

6.5.2 

6.5.3 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Shallow Foundations Supported on Compacted Fill 

Minimum Dimensions 
Continuous footings should be at least 18 inches wide and have a minimum 
embedment of 18 inches below lowest adjacent finish grade. Isolated square or 
rectangular footings should be a minimum of 24 inches wide, embedded at least 18 
inches below surrounding finish grade. 

Allowable Contact Stress 
Continuous and isolated footings constructed as described in the preceding sections 
and supported on compacted fill may be designed using an allowable (net) contact 
stress of 3,000 pounds per square foot (psf). An allowable increase of 500 psf for 
each additional 12 inches in depth may be utilized, if desired. 

In no case should the maximum allowable contact stress should be greater than 
3,500 psf. The maximum bearing value applies to combined dead and sustained live 
loads (DL + LL). The allowable bearing pressure may be increased by one-third 
when considering transient live loads, including seismic and wind forces. 

Lateral Resistance 
Resistance to lateral loads will be provided by a combination of (i) friction between 
the soils and foundation interface; and, (II) passive pressure acting against the 
vertical portion of the footings. Passive pressure may be calculated at 350 psf per 
foot of depth. A frictional coefficient of 0.35 may be used. No reduction is necessary 
when combining frictional and passive resistance. 

Settlement 
Structure supported on shallow foundations as recommended above will settle on the 
order of 0.5 inch or less, with about 70% of this settlement occurring during the 
construction period. Angular distortion due to differential settlement of adjacent, 
unevenly loaded footings should be less than 1 inch in 40 feet (i.e. , f)JL less than 
1:480). 

Shallo_w Foundations Supported on Unit 2 Tonalite Bedrock 

The Unit 2 tonalite bedrock will provide high-capacity foundation support for shallow 
foundations. NOVA recommends use of conventional foundations, consisting of isolated and 
continuous footings, as described below. 

Isolated Foundations 
Isolated foundations for interior columns may be designed for an allowable contact 
stress of 6,500 psf for dead and commonly applied live loads (DL +LL). These 
foundation units should have a minimum width of 24 inches, extended through any fill 
and embedded a minimum of 12 inches into sound Unit 2 tonalite bedrock. This 
bearing value may be increased by one-third for transient loads such as wind and" 
seismic. 

Continuous Foundations 
Continuous foundations may be designed for an allowable contact stress of 4,000 psf 
for dead and commonly applied live loads (DL +LL). These footings must be a 
minimum of 18 inches in width and embedded a minimum of 12 inches into the Unit 2 
tonalite bedrock. 

33 



Report of Geotechnical InvestigationJi\ Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 
NOVA Project 2020074 ~■1 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

This bearing value may be increased by one-third for transient loads such as wind 
and seismic. 

Resistance to Lateral Loads 
Lateral loads to shallow foundations cast 'neat' against Unit 2 tonalite bedrock may 
be resisted by passive earth pressure against the face of the footing, calculated as a 
fluid density of 300 psf per foot of depth, neglecting the upper 1 foot of soil below 
surrounding grade in this calculation. Additionally, a coefficient of friction of 0.35 
between soil and the concrete base of th~ footing may be used with dead loads. 

Settlement 
Structure supported on shallow foundations as recommended above will settle on the 
order of 0.5 inch or less, with about 70% of this settlement occurring during the 
construction period. Angular distortion due to differential settlement of adjacent, 
unevenly loaded footings should be less than 1 inch in 40 feet (i.e., LVL less than 
1 :480). 

6. 5.4 General Slab Design 

Ground supported slabs for the adminstrative building should be designed by the Structural 
Engineer using a modulus of subgrade reaction (k) of 180 pounds per cubic inch (i.e., k = 180 
pci). NOVA recommends the slab be a minimum 5 inches thick, reinforced by at least #3 bars 
placed at 16 inches on center each way within the middle third of the slabs by supporting the 
steel on chairs or concrete blocks ("dobies"). 

Minor cracking of concrete after curing due to drying and shrinkage is normal. Cracking is 
aggravated by a variety of factors, including high water/cement ratio, high concrete temperature 
at the time of placement, small nominal aggregate size, and rapid moisture loss due during 
curing. The use of low-slump concrete or low water/cement ratios can reduce the potential for 
shrinkage cracking. 

To reduce the potential for excessive cracking, concrete slabs-on-grade should be provided with 
construction or 'weakened plane' joints at frequent intervals. Joints should be laid out to fonm 
approximately square panels and never exceeding a length to width ratio of 1.5 to 1. Proper joint 
spacing and depth are essential to effective control of random cracking. Joints are commonly 
spaced at distances equal to 24 to 30 times the slab thickness. Joint spacing that is greater than 
15 feet should include the use of load transfer devices (dowels or diamond plates). Contraction/ 
control joints should be established to a depth of¼ the slab thickness as depicted in Figure 6-2 
(following page). 

I
Sawed contraction joint 

Figure 6-2. Sawed Contraction Joint 

34 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation Jj\ Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 
NOVA Project 2020074 ~-,

NOVA August 20, 2020 

A ground supported slab may be developed with a thickened edge to support wall loads. A 
thickened edge extending to a minimum of 12 inches below surrounding ground and bearing at 
3,500 psf. Figure 6-3 depicts these foundations conceptually. 

CCINCRE:g__~ 

·::i~;:,-:· 
-;'\;.•,, -. 

SAND l'INO VAPOR 
RETARDER IN 

ACCORDANCI: WITH ACI 

·.• ., ·.·,_.. c.·_ .. i!i.•.,•·. ·__1_ 

;;.:-.'" ..'''. 

~ 
-~ -,,,,., 8~ 

I-~~-~ 
Figure 6-3. Ground Supported Slab with Thickened Edge 

6.5.5 Slab Design to Support Fire Trucks 

Ground supported slabs within both the fire station and the maintenance building that will be 
used for longer-term or repeated parking of firetrucks should be designed using k = 180 pci. 

These slabs be a minimum 6 inches thick, reinforced by at least #3 bars placed at 16 inches on 
center each way within the middle third of the slabs. The modulus of rupture (MR) of concrete 
used for these slabs should be a minimum of 650 psi. 

6.6 Underslab Vapor Retarder 

6. 6. 1 General 

Soil moisture vapor that penetrates ground-supported concrete slabs can result in damage to 
moisture-sensitive floors, some floor sealers, or sensitive equipment in direct contact with the 
floor. It is not the responsibility of the geotechnical consultant to provide recommendations for 
vapor retarders to address this concern. This responsibility usually falls to the Architect. 
Decisions regarding the appropriate vapor retarder are principally driven by the nature of the 
building space above the slab, floor coverings, anticipated penetrations, concerns for mold or 
soil gas and a variety of other environmental, aesthetic, and materials factors known only to the 
Architect. 

A variety of specialty polyethylene (polyolefin)-based vapor retarding products are available to 
retard moisture transmission into and through concrete slabs. This remainder of this section 
provides an overview of design and installation guidance, and considers the use of vapor 
retarders in the building construction in the San Diego area. 

6.6.2 Guidance Documentation 

Detail to support selection of vapor retarders and to address the issue of moisture transmission 
into and through concrete slabs is provided in a variety of publications by the American Society 
for Testing and Materials (ASTM) and the American Concrete Institute (ACI). A partial listing of 
those publications is provided below. 

35 



Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 
Jl1 
1■1 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

• ASTM E1745-97 (2009). Standard Specification for Plastic Water Vapor Retarders Used 
in C-Ontact with Soil or Granular Fill under Concrete Slabs 

• ASTM E154-88 (2005). Standard Test Methods for Water Vapor Retarders Used in 
Contact with Earth Under Concrete Slabs, on Walls, or as Ground Cover 

• ASTM E96-95 (2005). Standard Test Methods for Water Vapor Transmission of 
Materials 

• ASTM E1643-98 (2009). Standard Practice for Installation of Water Vapor Retarders 
Used in Contact with Earth or Granular Fill Under Concrete Slabs 

• ACI 302.2R-06. Guide for Concrete Slabs that Receive Moisture-Sensitive Flooring 
Materials 

6.6.3 Design 

Vapor retarders employed for ground supported slabs in the San Diego are commonly specified 
as minimum 10 mil polyolefin plastic that conforms to the requirements of ASTM E1745 as a 
Class A vapor retarder (i.e., a maximum vapor permeance of 0.1 perms, minimum 45 lb/in 
tensile strength and 2,200 grams puncture resistance). Among the commercial products that 
meet this requirement are the series of Yellow Guard® vapor retarders vended by Poly
America, LP.; the Perminator® products by W.R. Meadows; and, Stego®Wrap products by 
Stego Industries, LLC. 

The person responsible for design of the vapor barrier should consult with product vendors to 
ensure selection of the vapor retarder that best meets the project requirements. For example, 
concrete slabs with particularly sensitive floor coverings may require lower permeance or other 
performance-related factors than are specified by the ASTM E1745 class rating. 

6. 6.4 Installation 

The performance of vapor retarders is particularly sensitive to the quallty of installation. 
Installation should be performed lri accordance with the vendor's recommendations under full
time surveillance. 

6.7 Control of Moisture Around Foundations 

6. 7. 1 General 

Design for the structure should Include care to control accumulations of moisture around and 
below foundations. Such design will require coordination among the Design Team. 

6. 7. 2 Erosion and Moisture Control During Construction 

Surface water should be controlled during construction, via berms, gravel/sandbags, silt fences, 
straw wattles, siltation basins, positive surface grades, or other methods to avoid damage to the 
finish work or adjoining properties. The Contractor should take measures to prevent erosion of 
graded areas until such time as pennanent drainage and erosion control measures have been 
installed. After grading, all excavated surfaces should exhibit positive drainage and eliminate 
areas where water might pond. 

36 

Report of Geotechnlcal Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 
Ji\ 
d■i 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

6. 7. 3 Design 

Design for the areas around foundations should be undertaken with a view to the maintenance 
of an environment that encourages constant moisture conditions In the foundation soils following 
construction. Drainage should be designed to rimlt the potential for infiltration and/or releases of 
moisture beneath structures. In particular, rainfall to roofs should be collected in gutters and 
discharged in a controlled manner away from foundations. 

Proper surface drainage will be required to minimize the potential of water seeking the level of 
the bearing soils under foundations and pavements. In areas where sidewalks or paving do not 
Immediately adjoin a structure, protective slopes should be provided with a minimum grade 
(away from the structure) of approximately 3% for at least 5 feet from perimeter walls. A 
minimum gradient of 1% is recommended in hardscape areas. Drainage should be directed to 
approved drainage facilities. 

6. 7.4 Utilities 

Design for Differential Movement 
Underground piping within or near structures should be designed with flexible couplings 
to accommodate both ground and slab movement so that minor deviations in alignment 
do not result in breakage or distress. Utility knockouts should be oversized to 
accommodate the potential for differential movement between foundations and the 
surrounding soil. 

Backfill Above Utilities. 
Excavations for utility lines, which extend under or near structural areas should be 
properly backfilled and compacted. Utilities should be bedded and backfilled with 
approved granular soil to a depth of at least 1-foot over the pipe. This backfill should be 
uniformly vyatered and compacted to a firm condition for pipe support. Backfill above the 
pipe zone should meet the requirements for Select Fill , placed to at least 90% relative 
compaction at 2% above optimum. 

6.8 Retaining Walls 

6. 8. 1 Wall Loads 

As of the time of this report, it is not known If the site will be designed with retaining walls. 
However, as design progresses, walls may be developed; for example, retaining walls for 
buildings and/or perimeter site walls. Static lateral earth pressures are provided for these walls 
on Table 6-5 (following page) as equivalent fluid weights, in psf/foot of wall height or pounds per 
cubic foot (pcf). 

6.8.2 Retaining Walt Foundations 

Retaining wall may be supported on continuous foundations designed as described In Section 
6.5. Wall foundations are not permitted to have transition conditions as described in Section 
6.4.5. If transition conditions exist, the tonalite bedrock should be over excavated a minimum of 
2 feet below footing depth such that the walls are entirely bearing on engineered flll. Transition 
condition recommendations found in Section 6.4.5 should be followed. 

37 



-

Report of Geotechnical Investigation,a~ Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 
NOVA Project 2020074~■I 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

Tab - -- --· . ----- - - -- - ------ - --- --

'. ~Condfflon 

Eqtilvalent Fluid Density (~ . 
Aj)ptovec:1 'NatWe' BackflUNo1as· A. a,i; 

Lewi 
Baekffll 

2:1 SacldiJJ 
stopln9 Upwards 

Active /wall movement allowed) 35 50 
"At Rest" (no wall movement) 55 80 

'Passive" (wall movement toward the soils) 350 350 
Note A: 'approved' means Select Fill with El < 20 after ASTM D4B29 and approved 
by the Geotechnical Engineer. 
Note B: assumes level backfill and appropriate wall drainage. 
Note C: The values on Table 6-5 do not contain a factor of safety (F). 

If footings or other surcharge loads are located a short distance outside the wall, these 
influences should be added to the lateral stress considered in the design of the wall. Surcharge 
loading should consider wall loads that may develop from adjacent roads and sidewalks. To 
account for such potential loads, a surcharge pressure of 75 psf can be applied uniformly over 
the wall to a depth of about 12 feet. 

6.8.3 Seismic Increment 

Non-Yielding Walls 
Lateral seismic thrust acting on non-yielding below-grade walls can be estimated by the 
dynamic (seismic) thrust, ilPE. Dynamic thrust is approximated as: 

ilPE = k,H2y where, 
k, , pseudostatic horizontal earthquake coefficient, equal to Sos/2.5 
H is the height of the wall in feet from the footing to the point of fixity 
yisthe unit weight of the backfill material (about 125 pcf) 

The resultant dynamic thrust acts at a distance of 0.6H above the base of the wall. 

Cantilevered Walls 
Walls less than 6 feet in height need not include a seismic load. Cantilevered walls taller 
than 6 feet should consider an incremental lateral seismic thrust, APE, expressed as: 

ti.PE = 0.4 k,H2y where, 

APE is the incremental seismic thrust 
k, is the pseudostatic horizontal earthquake coefficient, is equal to Sos/2.5 
H is the height of the wall in feet from the footing 
y is the unit weight of the backfill material (about 125 pcf) 

The resultant dynamic thrust acts at a distance of 0.3H above the base of the wall. 

6. 8.4 Foundation Uplift 

A soil unit weight of 125 pcf may be assumed for calculating the weight of soil over the wall 
footing. 

38 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation,,~ 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 ~-,
NOVA August 20, 2020 

6.8.5 Resistance to Lateral Loads 

Lateral loads to wall foundations will be resisted by a combination of frictional and passive 
resistance as described in Section 6.5. 

6. 8. 6 Wall Drainage 

The recommended equivalent fluid pressures provided in the preceding subsection assume that 
constantly functioning drainage systems are installed between walls and soil backfill to prevent 
the uncontrolled buildup of hydrostatic pressures and lateral stresses in excess of those stated. 

Design for wall drainage may include the use of pre-engineered wall drainage panels or a 
properly compacted granular free-draining backfill material (El < 40). 

The use of drainage openings through the base of the wall (weep holes) is not recommended 
where the seepage could be a nuisance or otherwise adversely affect the property adjacent to 
the base of the wall. Figure 6-4 provides a conceptual design for wall drainage. Numerous 
alternatives are available for collection of water behind retaining walls. The intent of Figure 6-4 
is to depict the concepts described in the preceding paragraph. 

&$)}"A$») i p--':,;;_:::·1 ~4"W..8CHEDULE40 
FDOTIMG 

7 (<Cm.M.) 

,!"V"'":',....... u,··.-;; ~ .----!._TEAFRIRIC 
~·- mr =TOR 

FLTER F.ABRIC£NVELOPE 
!MIRAl'I 1.oN DA APPROVEG 
EQUIVALENT) ..."'"""""""' 

PERFORATmF'YCPIPE 
OR TOTAi.DRAiN 
£Xm00£DTO 
APPROVEDOLITl.ET 

OONPETENT BEOROCK 
O'IWriTERIM. "'8 
EVALUATEOBYTHI: 
OE<nEO<N""'
CONSULTANT 

Figure 6-4. Conceptual Design for Wall Drainage 

6.9 Temporary Slopes 

Temporary slopes may be required for excavations during grading. All temporary excavations 
should comply with local safety ordinances. The safety of all excavations is solely the 
responsibility of the Contractor and should be evaluated during construction as the excavation 
progresses. 

Based on the data interpreted from the borings, the design of temporary slopes may assume 
California Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Cal/OSHA) Soil Type B for planning 
purposes. Temporary slopes may be excavated no steeper than 1:1 (horizontal:vertical). 

39 

https://APPROVEDOLITl.ET


Report of Geotechnical Investigation 4&\ Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California ,., NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

7.0 STORMWATER INFILTRATION 

7.1 Overview 

One permanent stormwater biofiltration basin, encompassing about 6,000 SF, is proposed north 
of the fire station. As the project plans are conceptual, stormwater best management practice 
(BMP) design and depths are not identified. NOVA assumes that any such stormwater 
structures would be developed utilizing an underdrain, and is unrestricted by the elements listed 
in Table D.1-1 (presented below) of the County of San Diego BMP Design Manual, January 
2019 edition (hereafter, 'the BMP Manual'). 

7.2 Public Health and Safety Considerations 

It is NOVA's judgment that the site Is not restricted by elements that may pose a significant risk 
to human health anasafety which cannot be reasonably resolved th-rough sife design changes. 
As such, infiltration may be feasible. Figure 7-1 outlines the consideration for geotechnical 
analysis of infiltration restrictions for the proposed BMP. 

Table D.t.t: Con ■iden,iou• for Geotec:hnical Aftalylis oflnfiltr,111,tion Reslncrions~.3i'i:-. 1"t.i,,,, .. ,, 
,~J;ilii~htr:liD§Uiill·ltt;ee/ -7.Jjii:lr

'Ju; ,J ..(\"t•t1'Nr.l 

BMP is wicbin 100' ofCoo.taminated Saik I 

- ~~~50• dSeptie TUW/LcachPields No• 
SMP i1 mistalu 10" of Stmt'hUe!I/Ta.nks/W..ns No 
BD.f.P i1- tritbln 10' ofSewtt UtilitiC5 No 
BMP is within 1<rof~Table No 
m.1P ;, withm. Hydnc So,l, NO 
BMP ;. widun Highly Liquefiable Soil, """1,., Cono.ctivity ., Sl<Uctmeo No 
BMP is urithia. 1.5 Tunes the Height oC Adia,ccnt Sb:cp S1.apc:s (.t:'..25¼) No 
County swri,., A,,lgo<d "R,suicr,,d" Wil1nbon C•"R"<T No 
!WP r! within Pndomiruwdr Type D Soil No 
BMl';, wilhin 10· or l',cpcrtf Linc No 

011ri{_111~1 BMl';. ..;dun Pill Depth• or2:5' (En,ong "'Pmpo•ed) No 
C.;<1111 ·,, !iv.,1~ :· 111 BMP.i!'lridiinlO~ofUn~Utilibe, N O 

8MP is "ll'ithin 250• ofB_fhemcral Stteun •• 

Otbtt (P..,..., <>euw,,i gcotcciuual wppo,t) No 

---orma...~~ Ill 
u .... !11!1~-~~-.~ 

lk r:11] 1 

a.-too.~o[dlo!,at~.~ C. . 

l, t~k!h1tfflrf·•~tJJ'r!2Jli·esmit;rrkmt.~ ~: 
Table D.1-1 js divided into Manda.toiy Consideatious and Optional Cowidtntious. M•ndato.:y 

•: Design should confirm that the planned BMP is not within 50' of the proposed Leech Field 
..: To be reviewed by the SWQMP Preparer 

Figure 7-1. lnflltratlon Restriction Considerations 

40 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation ,,~ 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California ,.~ NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

7.3 Borehole Percolation Testing 

On July 1, 2020, NOVA directed the excavation and construction of two (2) percolation test 
borings ('P-1' and 'P-2') and one (1) engineering boring ('~') within the proposed BMP 
footprint, following the recommendations for borehole percolation testing presented in the BMP 
Manual. The percolation test borings were drilled to approximately 5 feet bgs, a typical depth for 
BMP designs, Into the underlying tonallte bedrock. The engineering boring was drilled to 
approximately 16.5 feet bgs to evaluate the soil strata below the bottom of the proposed BMP. 

7.4 Infiltration Rate 

The percolation rate of a soil profile is not the same as its infiltration rate ('I'). Therefore, the field 
percolation rate was converted to an estimated infiltration rate utilizing the Porche! Method In 
accordance w~h guidance contained in the BMP Manual. Table 7-1 provides a summary of the 
infiltration rates determined by the percolation testing. 

Table 7-1. Infiltration Rates Determined by Percolation Testing 

-: lnffltratlon• Test wen, IApi:,roxtmate I Total 1 · . ~P~.. 1 -1;1~11· 
Referani;e El.evatl.oi, Depth' __ Pe~_.Test · . tWe~ I~ ~:';,,.,· (feet, msl), ff.a"'' · Elevation (fiiet; • , • , i · ,,-., . msl) ·' · 

P-1 +1565.0 5.0 0.39+1560.0 0.20 
P-2 +1568.0 5.0 +1563.0 3.37 1.69 

Note 1: Elevations are approximate and should be reviewed 
Note 2: 'F' indicates 'Factor of Safety' 

As may be seen by review of Table 7-1, a factor of safety (F) has been applied to the infiltration 
rate (I) determined by the percolation testing. This factor of safety, at least FS = 2 in local 
practice, considers the nature and variability of subsurface materials, as well as the natural 
tendency of infiltration structures to become less efficient with lime. A default factor of safety of 
2 Is applied for BMPs utilizing an underdrain. 

The calculated infiltration rates at locations P-1 and P-2 after applying FS = 2 are 0.20 and 1.69 
inches per hour, respectively. It is the judgment of NOVA that the lower infiltration rate (P-1 = 
0.20 inches per hour) should be utilized for design calculations. In addition, the site is classified 
by NRCS Soil Survey maps as soil type 'C'. The default infiltration rate for soil type 'C' is 0.1 O 
inches per hour. As such, the infiltration rate at P-2 is anomalously high for the bedrock 
conditions at the site, and should not be considered for design purposes. 

7.5 Recommendation for Infiltration 

In consideration of the foregoing, it is NOVA's judgment that the site is not restricted by 
elements that may pose a significant risk to human health and safety which cannot be 
reasonably resolved through site design changes. Design for the proposed BMP may utilize an 
Infiltration rate of 0.20 inches per hour. 

41 



Report of Geotechnical InvestigationJl\ Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 
NOVA Project 2020074 ,ai 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

8.0 PAVEMENT DESIGN 

8.1 General 

The structural design of pavement sections depends primarily on anticipated traffic conditions, 
subgrade soils, and construction materials. For the purposes of the preliminary evaluation 
provided in this section, NOVA has assumed a Traffic Index (Tl) of 7.0. These traffic indices 
should be confirmed by the project civil engineer prior to final design. 

8.2 Design for Drainage and Maintenance 

8.2.1 Drainage 

Control of surface drainage is important to the design and construction of pavements. Standing 
water that develops either on the pavement surface or within the base course can soften the 
subgrade and create other problems related to the deterioration of the pavement. Good 
drainage should minimize the risk of the subgrade materials becoming saturated and weakened 
over a long period of time. 

The following recommendations should be considered to limit the amount of excess moisture, 
which can reach the subgrade soils: 

• maintain surface gradients at a minimum 2% grade away from the pavements; 
• compact utility trenches for landscaped areas to the same criteria as the pavement 

subgrade; 
• seal all landscaped areas in or adjacent to pavements to minimize or prevent moisture 

migration to subgrade soils; 
• planters should not be located next to pavements (otherwise, subdrains should be used to 

drain the planter to appropriate outlets); 
• place compacted backfill against the exterior side of curb and gutter; and, 
• concrete curbs bordering landscaped areas should have a deepened edge to provide a 

cutoff for moisture flow beneath pavements (generally, the edge of the curb can be 
extended an additional twelve inches below the base of the curb). 

8.2.2 Maintenance 

Preventative maintenance should be planned and provided for in the ownership of all 
pavements. Preventative maintenance activities are intended to slow the rate of pavement 
deterioration and to preserve the pavement investment. Preventative maintenance consists of 
both localized maintenance (e.g. crack sealing and patching) and global maintenance (e.g. 
surface sealing). Preventative maintenance is usually the first priority when implementing a 
planned pavement maintenance program and provides the highest return on investment for 
pavements. 

42 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation Ji\ Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 
NOVA Project 2020074,■i 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

8.3 Subgrade Preparation 

8.3.1 Subgrade Preparation 

Grading for paved areas should consist of removing and replacing the upper 2 feet below the 
finished subgrade level. The bottom of removals should be scarified 6-inches, moisture 
conditioned to at least 2% above the optimum moisture content, then densified/compacted to a 
minimum 90% relative compaction after ASTM D 1557 (the 'modified Proctor'). Thereafter, the 
removed soils should be replaced as engineered fill moisture conditioned to at least 2% above 
the optimum moisture content, then densified/compacted to a minimum 95% relative 
compaction after ASTM D 1557 (the 'modified Proctor'). 

8.3. 1 Proof Rolling 

After the completion of subgrade preparation, areas to receive pavements should be proof
rolled. A loaded dump truck or similar should be used to aid in identifying localized soft or 
unsuitable material. 

Any soft or unsuitable materials encountered during this proof-rolling should be removed, 
replaced with an approved backfill, and compacted. 

8.3.2 Timely Pavement Construction 

Construction should be managed such that preparation of the subgrade immediately precedes 
placement of the base course. Proper drainage of the paved areas should be provided to 
reduce moisture infiltration to the subgrade. 

8.3.3 Surveillance 

The preparation of roadway and parking area subgrades should be observed on a full-time 
basis by a representative of NOVA to confirm that any unsuitable materials have been removed 
and that the subgrade· is suitable for support of the proposed driveways and parking areas after 
ASTM D1557. 

8.4 Flexible Pavements 

The structural design of flexible pavement depends primarily on anticipated traffic conditions, 
subgrade soils, and construction materials. Table 8-1 provides preliminary flexible pavement 
sections using an assumed R-value of 17. The final pavement sections should be determined 
after performing R-Value testing of the prepared subgrade soils. 

T, --- - -------- .. - --- - -- - -

Area 
~ Traftic Alpbldt B•seCoune 

Sllbf!nde .R-Va1ae lndn Tbklmes, (1n) Thfckn.CIII O•> 
Parking Areas/ 

17 7.0 4.0 13.0 
Driveways/Roadways 

The above sections assume properly prepared subgrade consisting of at least 12 inches of 
subgrade compacted to a minimum of 95% relative compaction. The aggregate base, Caltrans 
Class II aggregate base or similar, should also be placed at a minimum 95% relative 

43 



,
ill 

Report of Geotechnlcal Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 
~·~ 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

compaction. Construction materials {asphalt and aggregate base) should conform to the current 
Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (Green Book). 

Note that the recommended pavement sections are for planning purposes only. Additional R
value testing should be performed on actual soils at the design subgrade levels to confirm the 
pavement design. 

8.5 Rigid Pavements for Fire Response Vehicles 

8.5.1 Design Loading 

No information is known regarding the design basis fire response vehicles that will be kept at 
Fire Station #3. For the purposes of this report, NOVA assumes that the vehicles would apply 
American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO) H-20 loads to 
pavements. H-20 loads provide for truck axle loading of 32,000 lbs, or wheel loading of 16,000 
lbs. - -· . 

8.5.2 Pavement Section 

The rigid pavement section for driveways used by the fire response vehicles should consist of 7 
inches of concrete over a 6-inch base course. The aggregate base materials should be placed 
at a minimum 95% relative compaction over a 12-inch thick section of subgrade prepared as 
described in Section 8.3. 

Of particular consequence to pavement performance in the recommended section design 
analyses is consideration of the edge loading condition of the pavement. The critical load 
condition on a concrete pavement Is at an unsupported edge. The recommended pavement 
section assumes full edge support by means of either a lied concrete shoulder or a widened 
lane. A widened lane would consist of a lane edge stripe that is placed a minimum of 1-foot from 
the pavement edge. 

8.5.3 Concrete Properties 

The concrete should be obtained from a mix design that conforms with the minimum properties 
shown on Table 8-2. 

Table 8-2. Recommendations for Co11crete Pavements 

~ Recommended Rl!q~ 
Compressive Strength @ 28 days 3,250 psi minimum 

Strength Requirements ASTM C94 

Minimum Cement Content 5.5 sacks/cu. yd. 

Cement Type Type Ill Portland 

Concrete Aggregate ASTMC33 

Aggregate Size 1-inch maximum 

Maximum Water Content 0.5 lb/lb of cement 

Maximum Allowable Slump 4inches 

, 
Report of Geotechnicat Investigation 

Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 
NOVA Project 2020074 ~-,

NOVA August 20, 2020 

8.5. 1 Jointing 

Longitudinal and transverse joints should be provided In concrete pavements for expansion/ 
contraction and isolation spaced at a maximum of 12 feet on center. Sawed Joints should be cut 
within 24 hours of concrete placement. and should be a minimum of 25% of slab thickness plus 
¼-inch. All joints should be sealed to prevent entry of foreign material and doweled where 
necessary for load transfer. No doweling is necessary. 

44 45 



Report of Geotechnical Investigation ,.,,,~ 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

9.0 CONSTRUCTION REVIEW, OBSERVATION AND TESTING 

9.1 Overview 

As is discussed in Section 1, the recommendations contained in this report are based upon a 
limited number of borings and an assumption of general continuity of subsurface conditions 
between borings. 

The recommendations provided in both NOVA's proposal for this work and this report assume 
that NOVA will be retained to provide consultation and review during the design phase, to 
interpret this report during construction, and to provide construction monitoring in the form of 
testing and observation. 

9.2 Design Phase Review 

The recommendations of this report are based upon NOVA's current understanding and 
assumptions regarding planning for project development. 

As is provided for in its proposal for this work, NOVA should review the final design. Such 
review is important for both (i) conformance with the recommendations provided herein, and (ii) 
consistency with NOVA's understanding of the planned development. 

9.3 Construction Observation and Testing 

9.3.1 General 

Special inspections should be provided per Section 1705 of the California Building Code. The 
soils special inspector should be a representative of NOVA as the Geotechnical Engineer-of
Record (GEOR). 

NOVA should be retained to provide construction-related services abstracted below. 

• Surveillance during site preparation, grading, and foundation excavation. 

• Inspection of the ground improvement described in Section 6. 

• Soil special inspection during grading. 

A program of quality control should be developed prior to the beginning of earthwork. It is the 
responsibility of the Owner, the Contractor and/or the Construction Manager to determine any 
additional inspection items required by the Architect/Engineer or the governing jurisdiction. 

9.3.2 Continuous Soils Special Inspection 

The earthwork operations listed below should be the object of continuous soils special 
inspection. 

• Site grading, including scarification and engineered fill placement. 

• Ground preparation as described in Section 6. 

46 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California L~\ NOVA Project 2020074 ~-~ NOVA August 20, 2020 

• Pavement subgrade preparation and base course compaction. 

9.3.3 Periodic Soils Special Inspection 

The earthwork operations listed below should be the object of periodic soils special inspection, 
subject to approval by the Building Official. 

• Site preparation and removal of existing development features. 

• Placement and compaction of utility trench backfill. 

• Observation of foundation excavations. 

9.3.4 Testing During Inspections 

A preconstruction conference among representatives of the Owner, Contractor and/or 
Construction Manager, and Geotechnical Engineer is recommended to discuss the planned 
construction procedures and quality control requirements. 

The locations and frequencies of compaction test should be determined by the geotechnical 
engineer at the time of construction. Test locations and frequencies may be subject to 
modification by the geotechnical engineer based upon soil and moisture conditions 
encountered, the size and type of compaction equipment used by the Contractor, the general 
trend of compaction test results, and other factors. 

Of particular concern to NOVA during earthwork operations will be good practices in moisture 
conditioning, loose soil placement, and soil compaction. In particular, NOVA will be vigilant with 
regard to the use of compaction equipment appropriate to the full lift thickness of the type of soil 
being compacted. Reliance on construction traffic (for example, loaders or dump trucks) to 
achieve compaction will not be approved. 

47 







. 

GJ!'OLQGIC CRCJSS.sECT10N AA' 

t A A'1_, 

PROPOSED FIRE STATION ,... 
PROPOSED ,..,PARKINO 

LOT ,..,.____,____,____,____,____,__ _ .., 
,...

B-6 

"'' "'"'" .. 1540 

,. 
,... KCfl ... 
.... 
'""• 

EXISTliG GRADE PR0f'OSm 
PARKING 

LOT 

,,..e 8'1eeo
PROPOSED PROPOSEDr =~CE -AD~~~~TlONl -

PROPOSED 
PARKINGI 1 ,... "" 

a., - ... EXISTING GRACIE1580 ,...r~-:~:'i:;;;--.L:•c·2:-----..l__~~LOT~~~-7-l======~-5~""'~==~=~====-~- 1'"" 
1560 Kev ---,:,.7-----------,_ ""' ,... - ... 
'"" ,... "" 

,..,
""' ,..., 

"' 
,..

20 40 eo ao 1001201401 1ao20022024Cl2902SD 520 540 560 580 IIOO 620 840 

KCI TO SVll80l.S 
0.1 MUNIUM 

?-2
l PERCC,U.TIONTESTIIQIIING 

Keg 
/-\../ GEOU)GICCONT,ct"... /"J Elam«IBAADEl 

N•1==-OVA--~ 
.,,, ........... .-....!uii.1 
s.,,01egro.c...•1zs 
P,1151.aa.1171 

9'MC.....,_,WIIF 
S...C:.._.,CAl:N73 
P:SMUU,1710 

z 
0 

~ 

GEOtclGIC 
CROSS-SECTION 

PLATE NO. 2 OF 2 



,.,Jl\ 
NOVA 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

APPENDIX A 
USE OF THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT 

Im ortant Information About Your 

Geotechnical Engineering Report1 

Geotechnical Services Are Performed for 
Specific Purposes, Persons, and Projects 
Gectechnical engineers structure lheir services to meet the specific needs ct 
lror dient,. Ageotechnical engineering slu(ly conducted for acivil engi
neer may not lulfill the needs ct aconstructioo contractor or even another 
clvll engineer. Because each geotechnical engineering stu:fy is unique,each 
geolechnical engineering repo-t is unique. prepared so/€/yfor the dient.No 
one except you should rely on your geotechnlcal engineering repo1 "Mth0ul 
frst conferring with the geotechnlcal engineer who prepared It. And no one 
- not even yoo - should apply the report for any purpose or project 
except the one originally contemplated. 

Read the Full Report 
Serious problems have occurred because those relying on ageotechnical 
engineering report did not read it all. Do not rely on an executive summary. 
Do nol read selected element, only. 

AGeotechnical Engineeri!IQ Re.Port Is Based on 
AUnique Set of Project-Specific Factors 
Geotechnical engineers consider anunilef of unique. project-specific fac
tors v.tle!l establishing the scope of a slucly. Typical factors include: lhe 
dient's goals. objectives, and risk management pnelereoces: the general 
nature of lhe structure involved, its sire, and configuration: the location ct 
Ille slructt.re on the site: and other planned or existing sile improvements, 
such as access roads, parking lols, and underground utilities. Unless the 
geotechnical engineer who conducted the study specifically indicates oth
erwise, do nol rely on ageolechnlcal engineering report that was: 

ncl prepared for you, 
ncl prepared for your project, 

• nol prepared for the specific site explored, or 
• completed before importanl project changes were made. 

Typical changes that can erode lhe reliability of an existing geotechnlcal 
engineering repo-t Include lhose thal affecl: 

the functioo of the proposed struclt.re, as WOOl it's changed from a 
parking garage lo an office building, oc from a lighl Industrial planl 
to a refrigeraled wareoouse. 

di4Mi«WR 

elevation, configuration, locallon, orientation, or v.e~hl ct lhe 
proposed slruclure, 
COfrlJDSlllon ct lhe design learn, or 
project ownership. 

As ageneral rule. always inform your geotechnical engineer of project 
changes-even mirrr ones-and request an assessmerJ of their impact. 
Geotechn/cal engineers cannot accep/ responsibility or l/abilily for problems 
that occur beatuse their reports do not consider develqments of 'Mlich 
they wera not Informed 

Subsurface Conditions Can Change 
Ageolechnlcal engineering report is based on conditions lhal existed at 
tte time lhe study was performed. Do no/ rely on ageotechnical engine«
ing report whose adequacy may have been affected by: the passage of 
lln-e:by man-made. events, such as conslrucllon on or adjacent lo lhe site: 
or by nalural evenls, such as Hoods. earthquakes. or grournt.valer nuclua• 
lions.Always conlact lhe geolechnical engineer before applying the repo1 
lo determine if ii Is sllll reliable. Aminor amount ct addlllonat lesllng oc 
analysis could prevenl major problems. 

Most Geotechnical Findings Are Professional 
Opinions 
SIie exploration identifies subsurface conditions only at those polnr.; where 
subSllface !€sis are conducled or samples are taken. Geolechnical eogi• 
neers review Held and laboratory data and then apply their professional 
judglT'Elll to render an opinion aboul subsurface conditions throughout the 
slle.Actual subsurface conditions may differ-sometimes slgnificantly
fmm those Indicated In your report. Relalnlng the geotechnlcal engineer 
whO developed your report lo provide construction observation Is the 
most effective melhod of managing the risks associated with unanticipaled 
condlllons. 

AReport's Recommendations Are Not Final 
Do not overrely on the construction l'OCOIMlelldatlons lnduded In your 
report. Those recrxnmendations ate not final, because geolechnlcal eogi• 
neer, develop them principally from Judgment and opinion. Geolechnical 
engineers can finalize their recommeroatlons only by observing actual 

https://struclt.re
https://slructt.re


subsurface cooditions revealed di.rirg cooslrudion. The geotedmiall 
engineer wflo developedyror report cannot a=me responsibility or 
liability far the report's recommendEtlons if lhat engineer does oo/ perform 
cons/met/on observal/on. 

AGeotechnical Engineering Report Is Subject to 
Misinterpretation 
Otter desigl learn nenbers' mlslnlerprelatloo c:l geotechnk:al engineering 
reports ras resulted in cosffy jlOOlems. LC1,',W lhat risk by having \m geo
technic:al engineer rorter with appropriate membe!s of the des9n team after 
submitting the rep!Jt.Also retain )IJUr geotechnic:al engineer to review perti
nent elements of the design team's plans and specifications. Contractors c:an 
also misinterpret ageotechnical engineering report. Reduce that risk by 
having your geotechnlc:al engineer participate In irebld and preconstructlon 
coolerences, and by JI(Mdlng construcllon ooservaHon. 

Do Not Redraw the Engineer's Logs 
Geotechnlc:al engineers prepNe flnaf boring and testing I~ based upon 
their lnte!J)retatlon offield logs and laboratory dala. To prevent errors or 
omissions, the logs included in ageotechnical engineering report should 
never be redrawn for inclusion In architectural or other design drawings. 
Only photographic er electronic reproduction Is acceptable, but recvgnize 
that sepafiJ/lng logs from the report can elevate risk. 

Give Contractors aComplete Report and 
Guidance 
Saine Ol',ll!!rs ard design professionals mistakenly believe they c:ari make 
contractors liable for unanticipated subsurface conditions by limiting what 
they provide for bid preparation. To help prevent costly problems, give con
tractors the complete geotechnic:al engineering report, but preface ii with a 
dearly written letter ri transmittal. In that letter, advise contractors that the 
report was rot prepiled for p,.rposes rJ bid dewlopment lr1lf that the 
report's accuracy is limited: eR:Olfige ten to confer with the geotectmical 
engineer who prepared lhe report (a modest fee may be required) and/or to 
conduct additional study lo obtain the specific types of Information they 
need or prefer. Aprebld conference can also be valuable. Be sure contrac
tors have sufficient time to perform additional study. Only then might you 
be in aposition to give contractors the best trtormatlon available to you, 
while requiri1g the_m to at leas! shire some ri the finarclal responsibilities 
stemming from Lrlllllicipaled conditions. 

Read Responsibility Provisions Closely 
Some clients, design professionals, and contractcrs do not recognize that 
geotechnlcal engineering Is far less exact than other engineering disci
plines. This lack of understanding has created unrealistic expectations that 

,,~
have led to disappointments, claims. and disputes. To help reduce lhe risk 
of su:h outcomes, geotechnical engineers COITITlOnly Include avariely of 
explanatory provisions in their reports. Sometimes labeled "limitations· ~-INOVA many of these provisions indicate where geotechnical engineers· responsi
bilities begin and end, to help others recognize their own responsibilities 
and risks. Read these provisions closely. A'!J< questions. Your geolechnical 
engineer should respord fully and frankly. 

Geoenvironmental Concerns Are Not Covered 
The equipment, techniques, and persoonel used to perform ageoenvirm
mental study differ signlfic:anlly from those used to perfurm ageotechnir.at 
study. For that reason, ageotechnlc:al engineering report does not usually 
relate any geoenvlronmental findings, conclusions, or recommendations: 
e.g., aboul the likefihood of encountering underground storage tanks or 
regulated cootaminants. Unan//clpated environmental problems have led 
to numerous profet:I failures If you have not yet obtained YfM own geoen
vironmental Information, ask 'fW geotechnical consultant for risk man
agement guidance. Do not rely on an environmental repo,t prepared lrY 
someone else. 

Obtain Professional Assistance To Deal with Mold 
Diverse strategies c:an be applied during building design, construction, 
operatloo, ard maintenance to prevent slgnlfic:ant amounts of mold from 
gr()\l,1ng on indoor sufaces.To be effective, all such strategies should be 
devised for the express purpose of mold prevention, integrated Into acom
prehenshle plan, and executed v.ith diligent oversight by aprofessional 
mold prevention consultant. Because just asmall amount of water or 
moisture c:an lead lo the development of severe mold lnfestallons, anum
ber of mold prevention strategies focus on keeping building surfaces dry. 
While groundwater, water infiltration, and similar issues may have been 
addressed a,; part of the \Pl(Jtechnic:al engineering study whose findings 
are conveyed in this report. the geotechnical engineer in charge ct this 
pmjed Is not amold prevention consuita,t; none of the services per
formed in connection with the geotechnlcal engineer's study 
were designed or conducted for the purpose ofmold preven
t/on. Proper implementation ofthe recommendations conveyed 
In this report w/11 not ofItselfbe sufficient to prevent mold 
from growing in or on /he structure involved. 

Rely, on Your ASFE-Member Geotechncial 
Engmeer for Additional Assistance 
Membership In ASFE/The Best Peqile on Earth exposes geotechnical 
engineers lo awide array of risk management techniques that can be of 
genuine benefit for everyone involved witli aconstruction project. Confer 
with you ASFE-member geotechnical engineer for more information. 

ASFE 
fll IUI P• •·I ■ U IHII 

8811 Colesville Road/Suile G106, Sliver Spring, MD 20910 
Telephone: 301/565-2733 Facsimile: 3011589-2017 

e-mail: lnfo@asfe.org www.aste.org 

c,,py//1>12004 by ASff, Inc. Dt,p/la!lkltl, r,produc/kltl. or copying al /his-..,,,,,_ ;,, """1e or., p,,t. by any means wtut-. Is strldty prohibited. excep/ "'1111 ASFEs 
spedlklWlltMpe,mlsslon. ~ quoting, orO!hetw/seexnctlng~ from tNs doclltnetrl ts pe,ml/ll!dCll/y"1th lhee,p,rss wrtnen perm/ss/onot ASF£. mmyror 

/UPO,SeS at schol8rly ~ rrboot review. Only membtls ofA5'£ may use this document as acomplement lo or as an etement of II gtO,'echnJctl engineering repo,1. Any olllet 
llmr. lndMdual, or other entlly that sa uses this document wlthotll being an ASFE member could be rommltlng negl/genl ar tntenlfanBf {fraudulent) misrepresentation. 

IIGER06045.0M 

Report of Geotechnicaf Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road , Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

APPENDIX B 
LOGS OF BORINGS 

https://IIGER06045.0M
www.aste.org
mailto:lnfo@asfe.org
https://geotechnir.at


BORING LOG B-1 BORING LOG B-2 
LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 

DATE EXCAVATED: JlH..Y 1, 20.20 EQUIPMENT: CME95 CR CORROSIVITY 
MD MAXIMUW DENSITY 
DS DIRECT SHEAR 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 8-INCH DIAMETER AUGER DORING GPSCOORD.: NIA El EXPANSION INDEX 
AL ATTERSERG LIMITS 
SA SEVE ANALYSIS 
RV RES'-STANCE VALUE 

GROUNDWATER DEPrn: GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION : t. 1600 FT MSL CN CONSOLIDATION 
SE SANO EQUIVALENT 

LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 
DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1. 2020 EQUIPMENT, CME95 CR CORROSIVITY-- .., 

1.4AXIMUM DENSITY 
OS DIRECT SHEAR 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: B•INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPSCOORD.: NIA 
El EXPANSION INOEX 
AL ATTERBERG LIMITS 
SA SIEVE ANAl.YS,S 
RV RESISTAMCE VALUE 

GROUNDWATER DEPTH, GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION: ~ 1595FTMSl CN CONSOUOATK>N 
SE SANO EQUIVALENT 

w 

~ ~ U) 
w >-

§ Q. :i oi I SOIL DESCRIPTION a: 
!; UJ (.) 

~::,; UJ 

~iii" 
z SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

:,: Q ~ t: ~~ (USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) a: 
Ii: I :'i ~ -''-' 9ffi g
w ::, <( @2 s0 "' m u a,c. REMARKS

1-
0 

I)( :f SC 38 ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, MEDIUM DENSE, 
SAFINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

- SM 30 TONALITE (Keg): SIL TY SAND; ORANGE BROWN WITH BLACK MICAS, MOIST, MEDIUM HIGHLY WEATHERED 
DENSE, FINE TO COARSE GRAINED 

w 
-' UJ w C. w >-

§ 
-' ::e oi 6 SOIL DESCRIPTION a: 

[ Q. <( U) 0::e U) s_ z SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS leQ <( f-

~~:i: U) CL '.;i'.l (USCS; COLOR. MOISTURE. DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) a: 
f- I :'l 3 0
C. ~2 oa: a, 
w ::, < -' w s0 "' a,(.) "'"- REMARKS 
~ 

1----~ 
ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, MEDIUM DENSE, FINE TO SA 

-

IX 
~ 

SC MEDIUM GRAINED 12.2% 124.4pcl 
CR- 41 TONALITE (Keg): Cl.A YEY SAND; ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, MED/UM DENSE, MD 

HIGHLY WEATHERED 

- - FINE TO MED/UM GRAINED RV 
CN 

- - 44 LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN WITH Bl.ACK MICAS, DAMP TO MOIST, DENSE LESS WEATHERED 

·1~ 
- - --SM- -- SIL TY SAND; LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN, DRY TO DAMP. DENSE, FINE TO COARSE -------------

5-

~ 
GRAINED 

5015 DAMP TO MOIST, VERY DENSE SA LESS WEATHERED 
-
-

-
10 - ._IZ 5015 VERY DENSE 

-
-

10- 17 <M 

_J BORING TERMINATED AT 10.5 FT. NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED. NO CAVING. 

~ 
-

- -
15 b 50/1 15-· 

- BORING TERMINATED AT 15.5 FT. NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED. NO CAVING. -
-

I 
-

20 - 20-

- -

- -

- -

- -

25 - 25-

- -
-

-

-
30 30 

KEY TO SYMBOLS 
COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION ' r~---Y / 'SZ GROUNDWATER I STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT VALLEY CENTER. CALIFORN IA & ::;;.,~~~ 

181 BUUC SAMPLE " NO S-'MFLE RECOVERY APPENDIX B.1 

NOVA __.., ____ 
.......... .,... ,,,.....~ 

KEY TO SYMBOLS COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION a 1-~<••~·IIM Tt-...u 

Y / "SZ- GROUNDWATER ! STABILIZED I # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT VALLEY CENTER. CALI FORNIA •l"tiCIIII~ 

181 BULK S"MFLE " NO SAMPLE RECOVERY APPENDIX B.2 
NOV A ,___ _,.,_,. .,. 

-·····--- ,.1 
(Z) SPT SAMPLE I ASTM DI5B6t GAN IDATE: 

4373VlaM1'}a>.AV.i,_ , Soa!fl t -- GEOLOGIC CONTACT LOGGE D BY : AUG 2020 San Oil,ga, CA i ?.t:>;!i 
f>; Sst.202.75 75 

(Z) SPT SAMPLE ( ASN 01 586} GAN )oATE: 
4313V.-:,ge ~.Slltla e -- GEOLOGIC CONTACT LOGGED BY: AUG 2020 Sar,Piioo).C.-,o:l:i 23 
P: 1156.2112.1'$7$ 

11!1 MS IPROJECT NO.: 2020074 
5'1~ W~Am.,,r.~a,. &l~ F 

CAL. MOO. SAMPLE (ASTM D3550) --- SOI L TYPE CHANGE REVIEWED BY : 5-r1 ~ .CA L"6,:'l 
f>: g.i!;,:!82.'.'710 

C MS IPROJECT NO.: 2020074 
_(,,,.~.,.. ':IW , $ui\SI I' 

CAL. MOO. SM.APLE iASTM 0:'1550) --- SOIL TYPE CHANGE RE VIEWE D BY: ~o"""•~tt. ,;,o~n 
Plll-1"'•1!-



BORING LOG B-3 BORING LOG B-4 

LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONSDATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 2020 EQUIPMENT: CME95 CR COAROSIVITY
MD MAXIMUM DENSITY 

U.B TEST ABBREVIATIONS
DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 2020 EQUIPMENT: CME95 CR CORROSIVITY

MO MAXIMUM DENSITY 
OS DIRECT SHEAR 

OS DIRECT SHEAR 
EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 8,INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPSCOORD.: NIA El EXPANSION INDEX

AL ATTERBERG LIMITS
SA SIEVE ANALYSIS 
RV RESISTANCE VALUEGROUNDWATER DEPTH: GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION: :t 1584FT MSL CN CONSOLIDATION 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 8-INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPSCOORD.: NIA El EXPANSION INDEX 
AL ATTEABERG LIMITS 
SA SIEVE ANALYSIS 
RV RESISTANCE VALUE

GROUNDWATER DEPTH: GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION: ± 1568FT MSL CN CONSOLIDATION 
SE SAND EQUIVALENT 

SE SAND EQUIVALENT 

~ ,,, 
w 0. w >-

§ 
...J:. gi :,: SOIL DESCRIPTION a:[ 0. < ll 

~ 
:. ., 

ct;;;-
z SUMMARY OFSUBSURFACE CONDITIONS0 rli Ii: ~~:x: 

I (USCS; COLOR. MOISTURE. DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER} a:Ii: a ; ~~ oa: 2w ...JW 
:5C <!) a,o. 

REMARKS"""o 
~ 

SC 31 ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; ORANGE BROWN. DAMP TO MOIST, MEDIUM DENSE, 
-

I~ 
FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

-

El 40 LOW 
- l2 29 
-

5 -

1 SM 62 TONALITE (Keg): SIL TY SAND; ORANGE BROWN, DAMP, VERY DENSE, FINE TO 10.6" 119.3pcf .... COARSE GRAINED HIGHLY WEATHERED 

-
LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN, DAMP, VERY DENSE, FINE TO COARSE GRAINED LESS WEATHERED 

~ ,,, 
w 0. w 1i:§ 
...J:. ui :,: SOIL DESCRIPTIONf 0. < ,,, ll s::; ., 

ct;;;- Cl)~ 
SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS

i" 0 rli Ii: < 

~ ;;:~ (USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DE/VS/TY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER} a:
Ii: :5 3 ...JC., 

9ffi @
w a: ::, < ~2 sC Cl ., (.l IIIO. REMARKS 
~ 

~ 
SC ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; BROWN TO ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, 

- 18 MEDIUM DENSE, f'IIVE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 
SA-

I 
57 TONALITE (Keg): SILTY SAND; LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, VERY DENSE,SM HIGHLY WEATHERED- FINE TO COARSE GRAINED 

- 5015 
GRAYISH BROWN, DRY SA LESS WEATHEREDs - 5011 

50/2 

5012 SA 

--

10 -

2- 82 
GRAYISH BROWN 

10 - 12 50/3
-
--

--
-

17 5011
15 

BORING TERMINATED AT 15 FT. NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED. NO CAVING. 

15 -
17- 50/2- BORING TERMINATED AT 16 FT. NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED. NO CAVING. --

--
--

20 - 20 -

--
--
--
--

25 - 25 -

--
--
--
--

30 30 

KEY TO SYMBOLS 
COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION • r-"'~"'""""' Y/'SZ GROUNDWATER I STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA SPECIALINSP'ECTION 

181 BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY APPENDIX B.3 NOVA.,.,..........,,.,.., 

KEY TO SYMBOLS 
COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION • r~-,- - ...._. 

Y/'SZ GROUNDWATER f STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA P'l'CWI.I~ 

181 BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY APPENDIX B.4 NOVA ·-·-·-·-..... ,.... 'IN,.~ 
www.11u-now1..com 

l2l SPT SAMPLE ( ASTM 01586) 
GAN l □ ATE: 4373Vlawr;e171A.-enu1.,Suhe!l-- GEOLOGIC CONTACT LOGGED BY: AUG 2020 &,n0iltgo.CA!J212.'.i 

D:858.292,757S 

9 MS IPROJECT NO.: 202007<-
9" Calk! AmaPl!!-:e•. SU"' F CAL. MOD. SAMPLE" (ASTM D3550) --- SOIL TYPE CHANGE REVIEWED BY: s~nCl.!1111K11&.CA9S7.;; 
P:S-10~6.7710 

l2l SPT SAMPLE ( ASTM D1586) GAN ioATE: 
4372V"-OOllf,ATimll ,SIJiIDB -- GEOLOGIC CONTACT LOGGED BY: AUG 2020 SanDii,go,CA92123 
P:ll!i!l,2112.7576 

■ MS IPROJECT NO.: 2020074 
,..,,_t--~&1.SU11!JF 

CAL. MOD. SAMPLE {ASTM D3550) --- SOIL TYPE CliANGE REVIEWED BY: blli:a,,"""1llo.~ li2673 
• JOl.)l'd,jl'RI 



___________ _ 

BORING LOG B-5 
DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 20.20 EQUIPMENT: CME95 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: B·INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPSCOORD.: NIA 

GROUNDWATER DEPTH: GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION: :I: 1570FTMSL 

~ <I)w Q. w >-
§ 

-'::; gi :i: SOIL DESCRIPTION a: 
[ Q. c1i 0 

~;! f-- ~ in 
z SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

" m""
ii: 'i: ; 3 ~~ (USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) a: 

!1;: -'" 0 

g~ 
.,

w a: ::, < ->W '.'i0 "' "'(.) mo. 

"'"a SC ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; BROWN TO ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, 
- MEDIUM DENSE, FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

-

-

- SM TONALITE (Keg): SILTY SAND; LIGHTGRA YISH BROWN, ORY TO DAMP, MEDIUM 
5 -

~ 
DENSE, FINE TO COARSE GRAINED 

- 5012 GRAYISH BROWN. VERY DENSE 

-
-

10- [Z 50/3 
-

-

-
15 - 7 50/2 

- BORING TERMINATED AT 15.5 FT. NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED. NO CAVING. 

-
-

-
20-

-

-
-

25 -

-
-
-

-
30 

KEY TO SYMBOLS 
COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

Y/SZ GROUNDWATER I STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT VALLEY CENTER. CALIFORNIA 

~ BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY APPENDIX B.5 

l2J SPT SAMPLE ( ASTM D15B6) -- GEOLOGIC CONTACT LOGGED BYc GAN IDATEc AUG 2020 

a CAL. MOD. SAMPLE (ASTM D3550J --- SOIL TYPE CHANGE REVIEWED BY: MS IPROJECT NO.: 202007< 

LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 
CR CORROSIVITY 
MD MAXIMUM DENSITY 
DS DIRECT SHEAF! 
El EXPANSION INDEX 
AL ATTERBERG LIMITS 
SA SIEVE ANALYSIS 
RV RESISTANCE VALUE 
CN CONSOLIDATION 
SE SAND EQUIVALENT 

REMARKS 

HIGHt. Y WEATHERED 

LESS WEATHERED 

•r~-· ,..... ffluolli.,

NOVA=:=.... 
-~............n 

4372VIM.~r.Avellli•,5'J~eB 
-S11n0ia'1(l,CAil123 
P:8S9.~Z.7&1& 

~J C311e '°'m,1n,;~111. Su~~ I-
s,"c..,m4!~llo.CA92o7:'l 
P:949.3&.7710 

BORING LOG B-6 
DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1.2020 ______ EQUIPMENT: -'C"'M""E""95'------------

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: B•INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPS COORD.: ~ Nl~A__________ 

GROUNDWATER DEPTH: GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVA110N: -'±'-1,_,,5,o53ccFT.!..!!!M,eSL'----------

LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 
CR CORROSIVITY 
MD MAXIMUM DENSITY 
OS DIRECT SHEAR 
El EXPANSION INDEX 
AL ATTER8ERG LIMITS 
SA SIEVE ANALYSIS 
RV RESISTANCE VALUE 
CN CONSOLIDATION 
SE SAND EQUIVALENT 

0 

~ 
5 -

-v 

10 

-I 
I 

15-

j 
20-j 

-

-~ 

u, 
w 

gi I ~ ~in ~ ~ 
~~ ~~ 
SC i 

25 

70 

1-----' SC 

0sP-SM ! 5011 

SM 

5014~ 

[7 5012 

SOIL DESCRIPTION 
SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

(USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY. GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) 

-- ---····. --u-- -.. ·-IALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; BROWN TO ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, 
MEDIUM DENSE, FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

TONALITE (Keg): SANDY CLAY; ORANGE BROWN TO DARK GRAYISH BROWN, MOIST, 
HARD 

CLAYEY SAND; LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN. MOIST, VERY DENSE, FINE TO COARSE 
GRAINED 

tPOORLY-GRADED SAND-SILTY SAND; GRAYISH BROWN, DAMP TO MOIST. VERY 
DENSE, FINE TO COARSE GRAINED 

SILTY SAND; GRAYISH BROWN, DAMP TO MOIST, VERY DENSE, FINE TO COARSE 
GRAINED 

BORING TERMINATED AT 15.5 FT. NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED. NO CAVING. 

ii: 
~ 
a: 
fil 
'.11 REMARKS 

ISA 

HIGHLY WEATHERED 
SA 

1 
LESS WEATHERED 

tsA' 

30_ 

.1...........KEY TO SYMBOLS COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 
-.i.JIIIIO.i.l 

- fll'tC.U,1111P m1C1,,VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA GROUNDWATER i STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNTY/"£ 
NOVA ...................BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY APPENDIX B.6~ 

I-------~-------, -43?!lV~Aw,r •~.Si,i\1,8 

IZl SPT SAMPLE ( ASTM D15861 1 GEOLOGIC CONTACT LOGGED BY: GAN DATE: AUG 2020 ~~~--~~:2123 

....., ICU,, -,.,:;,., , -~,. Sud~F 
r;:,.,,r:.-..-.,1:A~2?73CAL. MOD. SAMPLE iASTM D3550) SOIL TYPE CHANGE I REVIEWED BY: MS PROJECT NO.: 2020074 
~ lilJj&r-10 



PERCOLATION BORING LOG P-1 
LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 

DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 2020 EQUIPMENT: CME95 CR COAROSIVITY 
MD MAXIMUM DENSITY 
OS DIRECT SHEAR 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 8-INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPSCOORD.: NIA El EXPANSION INDEX 
AL ATTERBERG LIMITS 
SA SIEVE #W..YSIS 
RV RESISTANCE VALUE 

GROUNDWATER DEPTH: GAOUNOWAJER NOT ENOOONWED ELEVATION: t 1563 FT MSL CN CONSOLIDATION 
SE SAND ECllVALENT 

UJ 
..J U) 

UJ~ n. ►a:J: SOIL DESCRIPTION§ i gj zt; ~ l.) 

SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS ~ ~ t: ~fii en~ (USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) a: 
~ :5 ~ oa:I 

~ ~-..Jl.) g 
w ::, < ;2 a!~0 "'l.) 

:5 REMARKS 
~ SC ALLUVIUM (Qol) : CLAYEY SAND; BROWN TO ORANGE 8ROWN, DRY TO DAMP, MEDIUA 

- DENSE, FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

- SM TONALITE (Kog): SIL TY SAND; LIGHT GRAYISH 8ROWN, DRY TO DAMP, VERY DENSE, HIGHLY WEATHERED 
FINE TO COARSE GRAINED-

-
GRAYISH BROWN, DRY LESS WEATHERED 

5 -

BORING TERM/NA TED AT5 FT AND CONVERTED TO A PERCOLA T/ON WELL.-
-
-
-

10 -

-
-
-

15 -

-
-
-
-

20-

-
-
-

25-

-
-
-
-

30 

KEY TO SYMBOLS a l~m•~-~ 
:r/'SZ GROUNDWATER tSTABIU2ED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

--
W,Tl"l..U ...,_......,.... 

181 BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY APPENDIX 8.7 NOV A •-·-·---;,, ; ,.,..____ 
lZl 

11!1 

S?T SAMPLE ( ASTM 01586) 

CAL. MOO. SAMPLE (ASTM D3550) 

--

---
GEOLOGIC CONTACT 

SOIL TVPE CHANGE 

LOGGEDBV: 

REVIEWED BY: 

GAN 

MS 

IDATE : AUG 2020 

IPROJECT NO.: 2020074• 

~373~1WCtV ,S.... 8 
S.V,o..tr,: , CAi2l:l 
P;IJSe,ffi.1'$75 

D-14Cao~• -•.n,n1~r.Sui1•f 
s1nc1~~n1u,cAnen 
P,II.ISl.38&7710 

PERCOLATION BORING LOG P-2 
DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 2020 EQUIPMENT: ~CM~E~95~ ---------

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 8-INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPSCOORD.: _Nlc,Ac...._________ 

GROUNDWATIER DEPTH: 

~ 
UJ D. 

[;~ ~!:z 
t ~ ~ ~ ~en 
l!l a? i ~ ..J~ 

D C!l o ~2. 
SC -

5 

-
10 -

-

" ~ 
20 -

_, 
25 

~ 

GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTEREC ELEVATION: ~•c....c1568= FT'-'-'M&.= -------

8l 
::c 
0 

Cl)~ 

~~ 
oa: 
..J w 
"'n. 

SOIL DESCRIPTION 
SUMMARY OFSUBSURFACE CONDTTIONS 

(USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) 

AUUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; BROWN TO ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, 
MEDIUM DENSE, FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

TONALITE (Kog): SIL TY SAND; LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, VERY DENSE, 
FINE TO COARSE GRAINED 

BORING TERM/NA TED AT 5 FTAND CONVERTED TO A PERCOLATION WE"LL. 

KEY TO SYMBOLS 
COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

~ 

I 

~/'SZ GROUNDWATER I STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

-181 BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY APPENDIX 8.8 

IZI SPT SAMPLE ( ASlM 0 1586t -- GEOLOGJC CONTACT LOGGEDBV; GAN !DATE: AUG 2020 

~ CAL. MOD. $MAPLE [ASlM D3550) --- SOIL TYPE CHANGE REVIEWED BY: MS IPROJECT NO. : 2020074 

LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 
CR CORROSIVITY 
MD MAXIMUM DENSITY 
OS DIRECT SHEAR 
El EXPANSION INDEX 
AL ATTEABERG LIMITS 
SA SIEVE ANALYSIS 
RV RESISTANCE VALUE 
CN CONSOLIOATION 
~ SAND EQUIVA1£NT 

REMARKS 

HIGHLY WEATHERED 

• GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIAUI 

SPECU.LIPm'lC:ltol'II 

NOVA DV8l:•Slf.•~11• MJ1111i 
>JW-IIOll~m 

un~Aw-.Suillla 
S.,.Dilgg.C>.12\2:) 
P:ISa.292.:'!>7$ 

....... _,L.••-.S-Jll•f 
\,W,(l,.-"-[A. ii26"1'l, 

1" ;4' ~nt'1 



Report of Geotechnical InvestigationJl\ Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California,.~ NOVA Project 2020074 

NOVA August 20, 2020 

APPENDIX C 
RECORDS OF LABORATORY TESTING 

Laboratory tests ware performed In accordance with the generally accepted American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) test methods or suggest9d 

procedures. Briel descriptions of the tests perform8d are pressnt9d below: 

• CLASSIFICATION: Fiflld dassificatioos were verified in the laboratory by visual examination. The final soil cfassfflcations are in BCCOldsnoB with rh8 

Unifl8d Sons Classificatton System and ate pres917ted on th9 exploration loQs in Appendix 8. 

, MAXIMUM DENSITY AND OPTIMUM MOlsnJRE CONTENT (ASTM 01557 METHOD A,B,C): The maximum dry density and oplimum moislure 

cont6nt of typical soils were determined in the laboratory in accortlat1C8 with ASTM Standard Test D1557, Method A, Method B, Method C, 

• DENSrTY OF SOIL IN PLACE (ASTM 02937): In-place moisture contents and dry densities were determined for representative soil samples. This 

information was an aid to classification and permitted recognition of variations In material consistency with depth. The dry unit weight Is determined in 

pounds f16r cubic foot, and the in-place moisture content is determinBd as a percentage of the soil's dry weight. The results are summarized in the 

explaration logs presented In Appendix B. 

• EXPANSION INDEX (ASTM 04829): The expansion index ofselected materials wes evaluated in general accorcJana, with ASTM D4829, Specimsns 

W8f'6 molded under a specifl8d compecdvB energy at approximately 50 percent s.aturabon (plus or minus t percent). The prppared 1 ·inch thick by 4-inch 

diameter speci'"6ns were loaded with a surcharge of 144 pounds per sql.hlre loot and WBf'B inundated with tap wstsr. Readings of volumetric swell were 

made tor a period ol24 hours. 

CORROSNITY TEST (CAL. TEST METHOD 417, 422, 643): Soil PH, and mirn'mum res;stlvfty tests wsrs perlormed on a representative soil sample fn 

gsneral accardance w;th test method CT 643. The sulfate and chloride content of the selected sample were eva/uat9d in general tJCetJrdsnce wffh CT 417 

and CT 422, respective1Jy. 

A-VALUE (ASTM 02844): The resistance Value, or R-Value, for near-surface sitB soils were evaluated in general accordanc8 with California Test (CT) 

301 and ASTM D2844. Samples were prepared and evaluated for exudation pr8SSure and expansion pr9ssurs. The equi/;brlum R-value Is reported as 

the lesser or mor& conservative of the two cafculat6d results. 

• GRADATION ANALYSIS (ASTM C 136 and/or ASTM D422): Tests w919 perlormed on select9d rspressntatfve soil samples- in Q9fl8raf acctJrdance with 

ASTM 0422. The grain size dfstributfons of S61ected samples were determined in accordancs with ASTM C 136 and/or ASTM 0422. The results of the 

tests are summariztJd on Appendix C.S through~ C.11. 

CONSOLIDATION PROPERTIES (ASTM 02435): Tests wsre psrlormed on sele<;tod relatively undisturbed soil samples in general accordance with 

ASTM D2435. The samples were inundat6d during testing to reprssent adverse lield condftfons. The percent of consofidation for each load cycJe was 

recorded as a ratio ol the amount of verticaf compression to the original hel(}ht of the sample. The rssufts of the tests are summarized on Appendix C. 12. 

,~ GEOT!'CMNICAl 

MA~LS 

SPE~ MN!(;TIONdill 
NO \/ A IOYBE•68E•&D\IOM•lLUIE 

~.1;-::, Y~.,,r·,Avel"IL ,, !,,...,:.f ·.•~c, >; Al'IIII ... ,.:( ,Sui'.-.F 
Sai,Ee ,x,.CA~l~:< :;· ,c,i-:itroe,,..CA!'2?73 
f'·6~.7~i'~ P: f.4i.M,Er,1(1 

LAB TEST SUMMARY 

COLE GRADE RDAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

BY: CLS I DATE: AUG 2020 I PROJECT: 2020074 I APPENDIX: C.1 



Maximum D!)'. Densl~ and O11timum Moisture Content jASTM D1557) 

Sample Maximum Optimum MoistureSample Depth Dry Density ContentLocation (ft) Soll Description (pcf) (%) 
B-2 0 - 4 Orange Brown Clayey Sand 133.5 9.8 

Densl~ of Soil In Place {ASTM D293I.) 

Sample
Sample Depth Moisture Dry Density
Location (ft) Soll Description (%) (pcf) 

B-2 
8-3 

1.5 - 3 
5-6.5 

Orange Brown Clayey Sand 
Orange Brown SIity Sand 

12.2 
10.6 

124.4 
119.3 

Ex11ansion Index (ASTM D4829) 

Sample Sample Depth Expansion Expansion
Location (ft) Index Potential 

B-3 0-5 40 Low 

Resistance Value (Cal. Test Method 301 & ASTM D2844) 

Sample 
Location 

Sample 
Depth 

(ft) Soll Description R-Value 
B-2 0-4 Orange Brown Silty Sand 17 

Corroslvl~ !Cal. Test Method 417,422,643) 

Sample Sample Depth Resistivity Sulfate Content Chloride Content 
Location (ft) pH (Ohm-cm) (ppm) (%) (ppm) (%) 

8 -2 0 - 4 7.8 1200 66.0 0.007 230 0.023 

GEO'l1:CHN ICAL 

MATERIALS 

IIPEC:IAL INlltl!enoN 

NOVA DYBE • SIii. • ID"°88 • SlBE-• -·--·~C.:loAl!wlc.tr.Sllltl f.t373'i'~- 4"no..Suil:- B 
s.i,o•c-.1:21:r.. Sat! C~.C"- 92673 
P: tl~..w2.757~ P; a.&8.3M.7;1(1 

BY: CLS I 

LAB TEST RESULTS 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATIOII 

VALLEY CENTER. CALIFORNIA 

DATE: AUG 2020 l PROJECT: 2020074 l APPENDIX: C.2 

--- "---~ ~ U.S. SlandBrd S...Sas ~ 

~ - ~ s s ; - ~ :! ~ ~ !! 
! i ! i i i

100.0 

--- ' ' Iii I ._ J_Ii i ' '~ : ' ' ' ' ,, I ,, I 
90.0 . -

I ·111 
' ' ' 

_J1_ L_ L__ t-- f.--
' ' ' ' ' ' ' . ' ' I ' ' I~ 

1·, ' 'BO.O 
I ,, ,, 

' ' ' 
,, 

I 

: I ' ' ' \ ' ' I ' ' ' ' ' "' 70.0 ' ' ' ·i 
. 

C I ,,;; ' ' ' ~ I ' ' \ ' 1: Im ' ' \ '.. 60.0 
1: ' ' ' ' \J I:'J_'~:i,, . 

111 : :~ \' ' ' '. 50.0 .fU ~.. ' •"-1--.---.. 
,\ 1:
'\ . I

40.0 

·1 
r--: - ~~\ : -· 1 ~~I-' ' ' I. ' ' ' I 

1! ' ' ~ ! '30.0 
I . ' 1, I' ' 
~ I ' I II ' I ......20.0 - •ri-: ~1---,- " 

' : ; ' ' I' ' ' I 

' ' ' 10.0 H- '-'- ' ' ' 
' ' ' ' ' . 1, I' ' ' ' ' . ' I' ' ' ' ' ' ' i0.0 

100 10 1 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 

Gravel Sand 

I =,Medium l Silt or Clay 
Coarse Fine Fine 

Sample Location : B-1 

Depth (tt): 1 - 1.5 

uses Soil Type: SC 

Passing No. 200 (%}: 30 

l'l CEOTECMNICAL GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS

ilQ MoliTERIALS 

$PCC IAL INSPETION 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

NOVA VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 
O','fl[ • :Ill[ • SDYDSS • 8 L8E 

W'll!W.-...,..,,_corn 

I I•J13Viwll'idg,iA..,.....,,,,SU~: 8 Q.z!C;illoiAma!MJC!,r.&rleF 
BY: CLSs~r10il!ro.CAll:12J S.ll11Cl&m1tnlY.CAll2tl73 DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074 APPENDIX: C.3 

P:l!U,282.757~ f'.~-19.388.H10 



:

.

I 

1

.

._.. ...,,..._,.
~ Slz.e (lndte-, --+<'---- U.S. Standard SlaYe Slt8I 

~ § ~ 

90 

80 µ. -j--'-----..1,il..~J_L.L~ 

7..1"' C ·-
·: 

I:. 60 Htt-'-r+ --H-l-4-.µ._µ-1_;J1L
I
Q. 50 17'.iir-+-f-1'---+cJ.-l-l...U__j_.!..L_ ! 11:l : :11:: i :1 I :\ 11 : ' .. l ,t !·_;-!~- 1- -~- 1+ : :I _I~_._-~ ~~~: I 

I j• 1 I I I' ,J ! , \ . , ' · I : ,: : '1: 
30 • I 'i , 

: : ~ 
20 I I I 

10 

o ~~~-~ 

100 10 1 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 

Gravel Sand 
Silt or Clay 

Coarse Fine Coarse! Medium Fine 

Sample Location: B-2 

Depth (ft): 0 - 1.5 

uses Soil Type: sc 

Passing No. 200 (%): 33 

GEOTECHNICAL ............ 
~AL INSPECTION'\Ill 

NOVA,.,.. ..... ""°"•. """ 
-.V"l:-ncwll--'Offl 

..r-:;v.....i6Jc·A.,.__ s.i~ . e ~ea11ot....-..._, 5-111i.F 
~'.\Jl~.-=--021:z:., Si111Ch!l"""""' .C:"P281S 
P : t511.2U2.r.i7S P:~.369.7rl() 

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

BY: CLS DATE , AUG 2020 PROJECT, 2020074 I APPENDIX: C.4 

"llf--- Sb:a {lnc:hssJ -'""c----- U.S. S18ndam Sieve Sias ---+E--- H)'dRlmeler Analpb ~ 

'-~!nl .• ! ,! ~ ~ ~ 
O 

100 rr.rrITI \' i r.----rl~ ~ : r-:r I I 
1: I : : , .. : :1 l : 

90 l' t-H Il - --"I' - J' I I ' •I -17-•I - I -I 
Ih ,II I,- II II :II ' I . 

I 
l• I I I I I ~ ' I I I 

ao j-' 111 I I r, 1 
1 

1: i11 i : : 1': 1 i I1 1 I I I I I I ,

"'C 
.; 70 I I -I f- 1-- r---·, T1'-: --,- :11 -:~ -rr . ---1 In ;1- l----1 

I I· j ! I ' I I ~ I != Q. 

¥ BO 11 i 1: I I I : : : : I : : i : 11 ' 
• I ! j t I I ' \ I I I 

~ 
~ 50 I J I, !I _ : _ : : _I, : ,I i • I I I I I 
0. 

! 1: ii ! : : : : t: ' 
I 1 I ! I' I I '1 I I ! IC I I I f I I I.. --r-~1- --,-,- --,- I r ,- - \--· .J_ - •- ~\ 
I '~ Ij I II 'I 1· 1 1I I •1\ I Ii I 
: :• , ~ • '. I I __: \ ! j I , 

30 ~ --<;--, • o I :1 ;-\I ~ : : : ii : I II I ~ I l I I I l 

1 

: II ~ L_i 1!1 I i -r-i Ii 1 
'11 I I: I :I : : I: I : I I I 

0 I I• :i I I _! 11 I ! 
~ ffi 1 ~ = 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 

Gravel Sand 
Silt or Clay 

Coarse Fine lcoarsel Medium I Fine 

Sampte Location: B·Z 

Depth (fl): 5 - 6.5 

uses Soil Type: SM 

Passing No. 200 (%): 21 

01:0TEC:HNICAL 

MATERIALSi\ $PEC:lA L fNSPECtlON~-·NOVA ,DVR,..... .,,..... ,u, 
,,__.,,.,,.nc.-,;. ..'l,fl> 

•'.• ,"JV,c-»"cl Av""""· M · E' .,.~tCJ ,.Am<l,w- &uiwf 
s,nl.iit-,,~.C.t!l21z:; ~nC~ia..CA.12&1) 
P: ~.292.757:, F'. ~.;v,:JNi.T7!C 

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

BY: CLS DATE : AUG 2020 I PROJECT, 2020074 I APPENDIX, C.5 



; , 
: 1

11

1

1

~ Sim (lncJrss} ----i-- U.S. Standard S!eve Sizes Hydmmeter Analysis ~ 

~; g ~ !! ~ ~ - ~ ,; ~ 100 

90 

80 

a, 10C 
ii.. 
l. 60 c 
"e.. 50A. 

40 

30 

20 

10 

10 1 0., 0.01 0.001 

11 1- 11 
I 

j 

-L-....i 
:11: 
I- 11 :tt1 11 i lllt-1 
I I 11'i : :1 

lllll 
t.-....+-----, 

II ~ 
• 

11 ~l1··-m- n·, .111· 
: . I : : I :1 \ I : : 

1 1 l 11 - ·i I ! -1 i - ! -\it- ! I- ,---,n-n-1 I I -,--

I 

' 
;.-+-+-.;-1---ic< l:1~i i, ""~="I~ ' ·r'-1 +-+ ,,

1 !:l. .o Ifill 
100 

:l'f' t 
I 

,I.' ' . •- -

~ 
~ I 
I 

' 

~ L.J........:... -. 

~,~ 
w 
' 

'-1.--U 

I· 

Grain Size (mm) 

Gravel 

Coarse J Fine 

Sand 
Silt or Clay 

Coarse! Medium Fine 

Sample Location: 

Depth (fl): 

uses Soil Type: 

Passing No. 200 (%): 

B-4 

1.5 • 3 

SM 

35 

,~.,
NOVA I DVBE•SBE•SDVOSB•SLBE 

•373VitWfidg,-! ...'<'DnUe.Suit<-8 
SanD~90,Cli92123 
P;U!;,;,l.29:i!,7575 

MATERIALS 
GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS 

SPECl.1.1.INSPcCTION 

~C!lloAm11n.,e,,r.S.llltf 
S311Cleme1Mf1.CJ,1!2o73 
P:!MO..!IM.7110 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

BY: CLS DATE AUG 2020 I PROJECT; 2020074 j APPENDIX: C.6 

"'C 

I 
c 
j 

,~ 

-<E---- Size (lnchiJa) _ _,,...c___ U.S. Slandim::I Sieve Sizes ~~ Hydrometer Anetysis ~ 

§~ ... ~ ~ ! ~ ~ !:~ . ,;-~ , • I , ~I : 11 "1 111 I I --.., : : ' l 
: , : II;!! I ,11 ; , ,i+w- 1-H++++ -l-

' ' : : ': ,.11 , 1 I : :
11 1 1 

+-+++--+-+-~-+++++.._.,: -+-....._: - ~~tlt:l-l-+:-tH:111 I I 1111I t I I
lll'Hl l,111:· ·I ·11 i rt ' 

70 _:, -i · : i:\+ R-.ot- 1-1-r-tt"M i-r " I tll l l l I i--i--!lnTTf. --1 
60 1 ' 111 

1 I ' I ii !11111' tI' Ill I Ill: I I I I I 
+-+++++--:0----1 ·· !1-r !

J 

1-·· i--7 ·1mn- --:1 1r111 ,-
1' ' ' 
Ii I i : 1:I 1-Hl~II I I I 'I I11 II 17--J 
: I ' ;ttttl"t:rl--r:-tf r. , I I I I I 111 I I I I 

-!:-~ 1 r -+t-- f-rtitttti---H + -!+Iii I I I I I 111 1I t-t I 

.111 11.1 :l1~ 111: 1 1 1 11 1m 111 111 1 
W 1 ~ = ~ 

Grain Size (mm) 

Gravel Sand 
Silt or Clay 

Coarse l Fine Coarse! Medium Fine 

Sample Location: B-4 

Depth (fl): 4.5 • 5.5 

uses SoilTypo: SM 

Passing No. 200 (%): 'Z7 

.,
NOV A 

~37" Vi11Wridg- A11enlH!. s(· S 
Stt1.!Jie{ltl,CAll2123 
P:65Z.292.757& 

GEOTE:CHNIC"-L 

s-~,i. C. 't Am•ri- ccr. SU;J,;- F 
!, 11 Cl!!mam,i,, CA 92673 
P:'149.US.7710 

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

BY; CLS DATE: AUG 2020 I PROJECT: 2020074 I APPENDIX: C. 7 



I

-E--- Slze(lncflflsJ -,><E'--- U.S.St11nclerdSl1Y1Sizfl ~"E-- Hydrometerl\nelysb ~ 

g ~ § ~ ~ - ~ $ ~ Ji. ,j_ _ j f _ .! 

I 
11 

80 

!!' 70 H-t----

::. 60 t-++rl--.-'!--+i+t+~- H -1-~-H!l+t~H--{--lrtll<-t-1-t-+--t---+'++H-+-~+---i 
C 

e
:. 

40 r n - r •---

30 H-t-t-~-'--i!---'-+t-H'·+-t-

H-J 
I 

(1111-i H I 
I 

0 µ..LL-L-'-_..__...J.J.U..L.."-..L...'--'-..l....-'-"'-"-'-'-..._..-'--~-'-'-"'-'-"-'---'---'-W..,-'-'--'-'----J 
100 10 1 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 

Gravel Sand 
Silt or Clay 

Coarse Fine ICoarsel Medium J Fine 

Se~le location: B-6 

Depth (HJ: 1 - 2.5 

uses SoH Type: CL 

Passing No. 200 1%): 59 

OJOTECl1"'11!4L ......... 
■ p,k.W.,llf:il'IEt=n0N'i\ 

NOVA 1WH • .IIU: ~--,J Y0:!11 ' SL.Bf---•-1•:J'l'~YlF.wdo]-.-A"""""· Su,i.· 8 il.\,ICLl'A,J,ilf'K •.SolW ' 
Sa.,~CA!':•.2· S....•~nl~,CAll:!ti; .l 
P . ffi!.292.151$ P'; 9413M.1'fll'l 

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

BY: CLS DATE: AUG 2020 I PROJECT: 2020074 I APPENDIX: C.9l 

~ Slttl (lnchesJ --;>-,E--- U.S. S1arldard Sieve Sizes ~"E--

•co;::~ljil~~~ - ~ s,;
100 ,,..,-CT4,._._.....___ 1 ..1.___1 !J J t ~ 

00 

80 -Htt---t----r-~~---"--tttt~-t---t-~·-tt-n1T'rl-

J 
g> 

ti)odmrnlllerAr'IBlysls ---? 

so -H-H-tt--.~ --tttr+rr--7"1- -!+~t--Hrr.-----1-t :rrr--r---r---'.tnrn-,--r-""!""--i

I
m.. so t'-l-tt+-1-+-~---,--t-1rr-1-++->-,-----t-,i------t--,-.l-":r-~t1 t•H-H------r--Httrr-i-t-+--

1 I tt f-l · ·t 

t-+-cti'rHH---t--t---ttrtt-tt--t-t-+-, 

·t- 1--+--

10 0.1 0.01 O.CXl1 

Grain Size (mm) 

Gravel Sand 
Silt or Clay 

FineCoarse I Fine ICoars~ Medium I 

Sample Location: B-4 

Depth (fl): 7 - 8.5 

uses Soil Type: SM 

Passing No. 200 (%): 23 

GEOm:tNCAL GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS
MATERIM.S 

SPliCIAL ~PIECTlON 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

Ii\ 
NOVA I ovaE • aee •SDY0:511 • 3LBE 

~3"'3 V-tidy<, A.,.nu,11, Su~,. 8 !l.w~"""°nr:H. Sui!eF 
S.n~CAA:212J S11!~•.CAl121i7J BY: CLS DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074 APPENDIX: C.8I IP:.8~.;s,75, P.11~.w .n,o l 



:

<iE--- Size(lnchN) _ U.S. StandatdSleoteSizes ~-E,--- HydrometerAnetysis --;,. 

., ~•q; • m :" II II § !:! 
100 .. .. .. Ii R a .. 

- ...._., -~;--- U.S. St.anclard SleftSlzes ---+E--- Hydrometer Analysls ~ 

!q .m:"IIS§ !:! 
100 TTI.,...,....,........._.. • -rl-i-M-. --+~-~------- I 

' 1111 I"' 1: 7I 

"' i-H--,-J-+-+_J_--,_---+1-4tt-t-t-' 

:!' 1111111 I i -r
l "' Iii 111 I ,;
I
m 
D. oo Hfr.H-f-7 7 

: 
40 f ' 

,.......f.+-,_._,__,..._t-t-i'-1--+-_ _ _
30 

10 .,.._._.._._._~r--++t-H ,-.-;-t--i-+-i+-H- He-- 1· 

-'-.L.l-~'---=~~--'W " ---''-'-"~~~ 
ro 1 ~ = ~ 

Grain Size (mm) 

Gravel Sand 
Silt or Clay 

Coar,;e I Fine lcoarsel Medium I Fine 

Sample Location: B--6 

Depth IH): 2.5 - 4 

USCS Soil Type: SM 

Passing No. 200 (%): 27 

GE'CTECHNICAL .......... 
SPEC1AI.INSP£CTl0trll 

NOVA .......... ...,.,.. ..UIE 

,l.J"nV~-t,,r.,ii,._Sul 8 W"-4eat.~. &n,F 
Sr,r,Ciot(,o.CAA2123 §ariCle1_..CA02613 
P:868.202.;!'ffi P:Ull.)CS.7'710 

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALJFORNIA 

BV: CLS DATE: AUG 2020 I PROJECT: 2020074 APPENDIX: C.10l 

1I , : I ~ !I : : 1: I ] : J 

•o · .. n-rr ·'l i i :l • - --•-1--+J..H-f-+-- ~ ,_ 

80 : I : , : : I 
I: : : : :i 70 I ' ... r1-:- -f r1 I+-\~, •-~:.--H':'"·,......,......-1- - • -

l BO l I I I I 1 I I 

~i I ' I I"\ 'II' I ' I I 

l 50 I I : : I :~ t·,t1~•1++-~+--+--I +-ttt+r+-"-1~-i--+H-H++--+--+---t 

: :I :1.40 ·. .__ ___ I,--· -r -, ~ ,-r----1--, .. -
: : : : ~I: :I 

I I I I I It\ 
30 : ~ : : : l : I 

I I I I I I I ' j I 
j I I I I I I I I 

20 II II : :•r-: - : : l'-lI I :, I I I 
:1 
I , , 

10 

1 i,- ; ; ;i :11: ~ 1-1+.11+1......~1......,--·Htr - --
0 

100 10 1 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 

Gravel Sand 
Silt or Clay 

Coarse I Fine Coarse! Medium Fine 

Sample Location: B-6 

Depth (tt): 5 -6 

uses Soi!Type: SP-SM 

Passing No. 200 (%): 9 

~l :::~:CAL GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS .1.. SPECIAL INSPECTIONJ~ COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

NOVA CY9e • !Bf:• IDV038. ala VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

•Jn'IIK...,, idg--/lr,•......:!. SU~~- P. ~Ce. - Anwiu, . Sull+ F I I
S!t11Dle9').CA~21n s,11ciem~.c,-n5n BY: CLS DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074 APPENDIX. C.11 
~ll~.ffi.7575 P:!l~!l.3EB.TT10 



:::: ~□aJ-r~hEIW1~~r~- - . - - ---:=__ - - .;f::--~-=- --

~J =-=1fflffl~IR
r- - · - --

t-
--<- ~ f= 

f." 

0 I i-4= ffH - t=-+- t-

·• .. 

F 1-:l=LIJiJt_:'. c~ 

t:::_ 
r- ---- l=t= 1--=t - .,~F----=t~:~t=•t----1- 1-

l - ~ a. 

=:=·r-';:1= 1==1=1-

+-1-+---=-=-=~ :::1- .:: 

.::1-l-i===:=-J::::C:-::!_:::: t...1-::ru:..t..l 

~ 

"'a · 1--

STRESS IN KIPS PER SQUARE FEET, (ksf) 

0.1 1.0 10.0 100.0 

:: 
0.0 

1.0 

[fl 
~ 

z 
15 

i 
~ 

4 

· 5.0 

! 
ls 

6.0 

w 7.0 • 
0. 
;:; 

8.0~ 

~ 9.0 
El 
§ 10.0 

11 .0 

12.0 

13.0 

-a-Ullldilg Prior 10 H20 
Sample Location: 8-2 

Depth (ft): 1.5 3
--Loadilg Aft..- H20 

uses SonType: SM 

-+-Reboond 

GECTECHNICN. CONSOLIDATION TEST RESULTS 
MATERIAL! 

SPECIAL IN9PCCTION 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER. CALIFORNIA 

•::i73v~...,-. Sur.-8 ~ClM.<,m,ioc:.r. !iuil<,f 
SIWl~.C.1,t:!"!Z3 SVl~.CAmn BY: CLS DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074 APPENDIX: C.12 
P· &5£.M.15Ni f-; liUil.M.i7ll' 

Attachment 6 - Improvement Priority Lists for Station No. 1 and 2 

Improvement Priority List for Fire Station No. 1 
Increase the height of the apparatus bay doors from approximately 10 feet 7 inches to 12 feet. 
New apparatus bay doors will be required in addition to modifications to the structure to 
achieve the increased height. 
Install a new two-stage compressor and construct a compressor enclosure. Plumb the 
apparatus bay for compressed air 
Design and install a new HVAC system throughout the main fire station building. This task will 
include consolidating the computer and telecommunications equipment in one location so that 
it can be effectively cooled. Ductless mini-splits are the preferred HVAC technology, if feasible 
Reconfigure the living space to provide dorm and dayroom space for four persons and to 
accommodate three refrigerators in the kitchen area 
Modernize the kitchen with updated appliances and countertops 
Upgrade the water heaters 
Provide a covered porch area at the main public entrance 
Reconfigure the front office to include a public counter with security measures and a plan 
layout counter area 
Behind the public counter, reconfigure the office space to provide several workstations on the 
perimeter and a centrally located conference table for small meetings 
Reconfigure the workout area to accommodate interior and exterior space 

Improvement Priority List for Fire Station No. 2 
- Increase the height of the apparatus bay doors from approximately 10 feet to 12 feet. New 

apparatus bay doors will be required in addition to modifications to the structure to achieve the 
increased height. 
Design and install a new HVAC system throughout the fire station. Ductless mini-splits are the 
preferred HVAC technology, if feasible 
Add a urinal to the Men's restroom 
Reconfigure dorm space to improve functionality and comfort 
Upgrade the vanity in the Captain's restroom 
Remodel the kitchen to provide space for three refrigerators (to be relocated from the laundry 
area), update the appliances and countertops 
Provide a screened in area with a half-wall and exercise flooring for the rear patio area where 
the exercise equipment is located 
Remodel the laundry area to provide storage and an area to fold clothes 
Relocate storage from the area adjacent to the dayroom to the laundry room to free up space 
to expand the adjacent office to provide three workstations 
Replace and expand the concrete area in the rear of the station 
Provide a "roof' for the existing metal framework to provide a partial enclosure for an antique 
fire engine 



--

--

ATTACHMENT 7 

Preliminary Cost Worksheet 

Preconstructlon Services 

Design Team (Architect and Subconsultants) 

Schematic Design 

Design Development 

Construction Documents 

Subtotal 

Note: Do not include design team construction administration services 

in the preconstruction services budget 

Subtotals 

I 

Totals 

---

Design Builder (DB) 

DB Cost for Preconstruction Services (provide breakdown on separate 

sheet! 

Proposed DB Design Contingency 

Proposed DB Fee for All Pre.Construction Services 

Subtotal 
-

■ 
VALLEY CENTER 

FIRE PROTECTION 

DISTRICT 

INSURANCE 

REQUIREMENTS 

INSURANCE TYPES AND LIMITS, 

INDEMNIFICATION AND BEST 

PRACTICES FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 

TO THE V ALLEY C ENTER Fl IU:Total Preconstruction Services Budget 

Construction Services 

General Conditions/General Requirements (provide monthly 

breakdown on separate sheet, Identify staffing levels and hours) 

Proposed DB Contingency (percentage) 

Proposed OB Fee for Construction (percentage) 

Bonds and Insurance 

Performance/Payment Bonds L%) 
Liability Insurance L%) I 
Builder's Risk ( %) I I 



Table of Contents 

Insurance Requirements 

Page3 Commercial General Liability 

Page4 Workers Compensation 

Page 4 Excess or Umbrella Liability 

Page 5 Business Auto 

Page 5 Professional Liability / E&O 

Page6 Pollution Liability 

Page7 Provisions for All Required Insurance for District Contractors 

2 

Insurance Requirements for ALL District Contracts 

Prior to the beginning of and throughout the duration of the Services, and for any 
additional period of time as specified below, CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and 
expense, maintain insurance in conformance with the requirements set forth below. 
CONTRACTOR shall submit Certificates of Insurance for the District's review and 
acceptance. The Notice to Proceed shall not be issued, and CONTRACTOR shall not 
commence Services until such insurance has been accepted by the District. 

No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement 
are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR hereunder. 

A. Commercial General Liabilih· 

a. CONTRACTOR shall provide Commercial General Liability insurance covering 
claims for Bodily, Injury, Personal and Advertising Injury, and Property Damage 
on a policy form that provides coverage at least as broad as coverage provided 
under the Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01, and that includes, but 
is not limited to, the coverage limits and coverage provisions outlined below. 

b. The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and 
maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the 
Named Insured, including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the following: 

$5,000,000 per Occurrence Each Pollution Condition; 
$5,000,000 Aggregate Liability. 
$2,000,000 General Aggregate; 
$2,000,000 Products - Completed Operations 

Aggregate. 

c. Coverage must be on an "occurrence" basis. 

d. Coverage must be included for "products-completed operations" without any 
"prior work" coverage limitation or exclusion applicable to any Services to be 
performed under this Agreement. 

e. Contractual Liability coverage at least as broad as coverage provided by the ISO 
CG 00 01 policy form must be included. 

f. To the fuJlest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional 
Insureds on a primary and noncontributory basis The additional insureds must be 
covered for: 

i. Liability arising out of any premises or property utilized for any Services 
performed under this Agreement, and 

ii. Liability arising out ofor related to this Agreement, including any 
Services performed hereunder by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, and 

3 



iii. Products and completed operations of CONTRACTOR. 

A severability of interests provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, ensuring 
that CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom 
claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer's limits of liability. 

B. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability 

Workers' Compensation coverage shall be on a state-approved policy form providing 
statutory benefits as required by law and Employer's Liability coverage with limits no 
less than $1,000,000 per accident or disease for all covered losses. IfCONTRACTOR is 
self-insured with respect to Workers' Compensation coverage, CONTRACTOR shall 
provide a Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure from the California Department of 
Industrial Relations confirming CONTRACTOR's self-insured status. Such self
insurance shall meet the minimum limit requirements and waive subrogation rights in 
favor of the District as stated below. Ifthe CONTRACTOR is a sole proprietorship or 
partnership, with no employees, and is exempt from carrying Workers Compensation 
insurance, CONTRACTOR must submit a letter to the District stating that he/she is either 
the owner ofthe entity or a partner of the entity performing the Services, and is exempt 
from the State of California's Workers Compensation requirements because he/she has 
no employees. 

CONTRACTOR and its Workers' Compensation insurance must waive any rights of 
subrogation against the District and its directors, officers, officials, agents, volunteers, 
and employees, and CONTRACTOR shall defend and pay any damages as a result of 
failure to provide the waiver of subrogation from the insurance carrier(s). 

C. Excess or Umbrella Liability Insurance 

Ifexcess or umbrella policies are used to meet the insurance requirements of this 
Agreement, they shall provide coverage at least as broad as specified for the underlying 
coverages, and the full limits of the umbrella or excess coverage shall be available to the 
District. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers and employees must be covered as additional insureds and 
such policy or policies shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that coverage 
shall also apply on a primary and noncontributory basis to the District before the 
District's own primary insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a 
Named Insured. A severability of interests provision must apply for all additional 
insureds, ensuring that CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom the claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the 
insurer's limits ofliability. 
1. Business Auto Liability 

2. 

4 

a. CONTRACTOR shall provide Business Auto Liability coverage on a policy form 
that provides coverage at least as broad as coverage provided under ISO Business 
Auto Coverage form CA 00 01, and that includes, but is not limited to, the 
coverage limits and coverage provisions outlined below. 

b. Coverage must be provided for "Bodily Injury" and "Property Damage" Liability 
caused by an accident and resulting from the ownership, maintenance or use of 
covered autos. 

c. The required coverage limits shall be the greater ofthe broader coverage and 
maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the 
Named Insured, including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the minimum 
limits specified below: 

$1,000,000 per Occurrence/ Accident for Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage Liability. 

d. Covered "autos" must include all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. 

e. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional 
Insureds with respect to "any auto" owned. leased, hired or borrowed by 
CONTRACTOR. The policy(ies) shall contain or be endorsed to contain a 
provision that coverage shall apply on a primary and noncontributory basis to the 
District before the District's own primary insurance or self-insurance shall be 
called upon to protect it as a Named Insured. 

f. A severability of interests provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, 
ensuring that CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer's 
limits ofliability. 

g. [Where applicable] The policy shall be endorsed to include Transportation 
Pollution Liability insurance covering materials to be transported by 
CONTRACTOR in any Services to be performed under this Agreement. 
Alternatively, this coverage may be provided on the CONTRACTOR's Pollution 
Liability Policy. 

Professional Liability (aka Errors and Omissions) 
*Architects, Engineers, Surveyors and Third-Party Construction Management Entities. 

The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and maximum 
limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the Named Insured, 
including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the following: $1,000,000 per 

5 



occurrence or claim and $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage may be written on a claims
made form. Ifcoverage is on a claims-made basis, the coverage must be maintained for 
at least 3 years after all Services under this Agreement are complete and additional 
claims-made coverage requirements apply as described below. 

Pollution Liabilih' 

a. CONTRACTOR shall provide pollution liability coverage that includes, but is not 
limited to, the coverage limits and coverage provisions outlined below. 

b. Coverage must be included for bodily injury and property damage, including 
coverage for loss ofuse and diminution in property value, and for resultant clean
up costs, arising out of the or resulting from: 

(i) any Services performed under this Agreement, including 
(ii) any storage or transportation, including the loading or unloading of, 

hazardous wastes, haz.ardous materials, or contaminants. 
The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and 
maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the 
Named Insured, including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the following: 

$5,000,000 per Occurrence Each Pollution Condition; 
$5,000,000 Aggregate Liability. 

c. Coverage may be written on a claims-made form. Ifcoverage is on a claims
made basis, the coverage must be maintained for at least 3 years after all Services 
performed under this Agreement are complete and additional claims-made 
coverage requirements apply as described below. 

d. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional 
Insureds by way ofan endorsement to the policy. The policy(ies) shall also 
contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that coverage shall apply on a 
primary and noncontributory basis to the District before the District's own 
primary insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a Named 
Insured. 

e. A severability of interests provision must apply for all the additional insureds, 
ensuring that CONTRACTOR's insurance shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer's 
limits ofliability. 

Provisions for All Required Insurance for District Contractors 

A. Deductibles, Self-Insurance, Self-Insured Retentions 
Any deductibles, self-insurance, or self-insured retentions (SIRs) applicable to required 
insurance coverage must be declared to and accepted by the District. At the option and 

6 

request of the District, CONTRACTOR shall provide documentation of its financial 
ability to pay the deductible, self-insurance, or SIR. 

B. Acceptability of Insurers 
Unless otherwise reviewed and accepted by the District, all required insurance.must be 
placed with insurers with a current A. M. Best's rating ofno less than A- VII. The 
insurers shall be admitted, or approved by the Surplus Lines Association, to do business 
in California. 

C. Claims-made Coverage 
For any coverage that is provided on a claims-made coverage form (which type of form 
is permitted only where specified in the insurance requirements outlined above): 
(i) The retroactive date must be shown, and must be before the date of this Agreement, 

and before the beginning of any Services related to this Agreement. 
(ii) Insurance must be maintained and Certificates of Insurance must be provided to the 

District for at least three (3) years after expiration of this Agreement. 
(iii) If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 

policy form with a retroactive date prior to the effective date of this Agreement or the 
start of any Services related to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR must purchase an 
extended reporting period for a minimum of three (3) years after expiration of the 
Agreement. 

(iv) lfrequested by the District, a copy of the policy's claims reporting requirement must 
be submitted to the District for review. 

D. Notice of Claims 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide immediate notice to the District of any loss or claim 
against CONTRACTOR arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, or Services 
performed under this Agreement. The District assumes no obligation or liability by such 
notice, but has the right (but not the duty) to monitor the handling of any such claim or 
claims if they are likely to involve the District. 

E. Proof of Compliance 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide evidence of insurance required herein, satisfactory to 
the District, consisting of Certificates oflnsurance, evidencing all of the coverages 
required. CONTRACTOR agrees, upon request by the District, to provide complete, 
certified copies of any policies within 10 days of such request. (Copies ofpolicies may be 
redacted to eliminate premium details.) All Certificates oflnsurance must be received 
and accepted by the District before any Services are performed under this Agreement 
commences. Acceptance ofCONTRACTOR's Certificates of Insurance or any other 
evidence of insurance coverage does not constitute any guarantee that CONTRACTOR's 
insurance meets the requirements herein. It is CONTRACTOR'S responsibility to ensure 
its compliance with these insurance requirements. Any actual or alleged failure on the 
part of the District to obtain proof of insurance required under this Agreement shall not in 
any way be construed to be a waiver of any right or remedy of the District, in this or any 
regard. 

F. Notice of Cancellation/Non-Renewal/Material Reduction 

7 







EXHIBITD 
ATTACHMENT 07 Rvsd. 3/ 10/2022 

Preliminary Cost Work,heet 
# Subtotals TotaIs 

1 PreconstructI0n Services 
2 Design Team (Arcnltect and SubeonsuItants1 
3 Temporary Fire Station #3 • Cole Grade Rd. 
4 Schematic Design $73,166 
5 Design Development $80,667 
6 Construction Documents $80,667 
7 Subtotal $234,SOO 
8 Fire Station #1 Remodel - LIiac Ra . 
9 App Bay Doors (tront only) and Auto Opener tor Hear - BASE BID '43,000 

10 Air Compressor and Enclosure - ALTERNATE $10,000 
11 HVAC Replacement (both sides) - ALTERNATE S10,000 
12 Dormitory and Day Room Remodel -ALTERNATE $12,000 
13 Kitchen and Restroom Remodel - ALTERNATE $15,000 
14 Subtotal $90,000 
15 Fire Station #:Z Remo0eI • N. Lake Wohlford Rd. 
16 App Bay Doors (front and rear) - BASE BID 527,000 
17 HVAC Replacement (both sides) • ALTERNATE $12,000 
18 Dormitory Remodel • ALTERNATE $12,000 
19 Kitchen Remodel for Refrigerator Relocation - ALTERNATE S10,000 
20 Screened Porch at Rear Patio Area - ALTERNATE $7,500 
21 Concrete Replacement at Rear or Station· ALTERNATE $3,000 
22 •Subtotal $71,500 

Note: Do not incl ude design team construction admIn1stratIon services on tne 
23 preconstructlon services budget TBD 
24 
25 Design Bu ilder 1un1 

26 DB Cost for Preconstructlon Services (provide breakdown on sepa rate sheet) $47,000 
27 Proposed DB Design Contingency S25,000 
28 Proposed DB Fee for All Pre-Construction Services $30,000 
29 Subtotal s 102,000 
l~U 

31 Subtotal Preconstructlon Services BUdget ~ 98,000 

32 1% Liability Insurance on Preconstruction Services $4,980 ,, ,O1aI ~reconstrucnon ,ervIces o,uoget ~ "'JL,!1111] 

34 
35 Construction Services 

General Condit ions/General Requirements (provide monthly breakdown on 
36 separate sheet, Identify staffing levels and hours). To be confirmed at creation of $144,105 
37 Proposed DB Contingency (percentage) 10% 
38 Proposea DB Fee tor Construction (percentage) 6.00% ,,,, 
40 Bonas ana Insurance 
41 COC (All-Riso< , Coverage to be quoted at creation or GMP TBD 
42 LIallility Insurance {l.0%J 1.0% 

•......-:"'1.,., 
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE(Mllll>M"YVV) 

3128/2022 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(SJ, AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORT4NT: If the cartlflcate holder 11 an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(lesJ must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endoreed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to tho tenns and condition• of tho policy, certain policies may raquln, an endon,ement A statement on 
this certificate does not confer rlahts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endon,;ementfel. 

PAODUCEfl •~>.!.'."' Susan Koelle 
Alfiant Insurance Services, Inc. m,,...,.819-541-4851 l ff.l! ..,701 B Street, 6th floor 
San Diego CA 92101 ADDRESS· Susan.Koe!!!@allianl.com 

I i~ ·~• 
INSURED ERICCON-01 
Erickson-Hall Construction Company 
500 Corporate Drive 
Escondido CA 92029-1353 

COVERAGES 
THIS IS TO ClRTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ~.BOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWrTHSTANOING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 770480141 REVISION NU~~R· 

EXCLUSIONS ANOCONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY H"VE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
~,: TYPE OF INSURANCE =~1:::-::: POLICY NUMBER l,~::.Xllf!, 1.!8~ LIMITS 

A O MERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
V IV 

5856940 9/112021 9/112022 'EAtH otcUAA.f-,Nt;E S 1,000,000 
1 

ClANs-MADE 0 OCCUR ~lli.....i"~- $500,000 

H MED EXP lAmr one M1St1n) $25,000 

C-J PERS arw. &NNl4JURY 11000000 

GENl.AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENEFtAL AOOREGATE S2,000,000 =l-POLICY 0 jff"J □ LOC PRODUCTS· COMP/OP AGG $2,000 000 

OTH!;R; • 
A AUTOMOBILELIAIILrJY y y 5717908 91112021 9/112022 ~~i:;I,.._ .,,m,_, $1,000,000 

X ANYALITO BODILY INJURY (Pet panon) •x CMNEll ~ SCH EDUl.ED 8001.V INJURY (Per aoclclenl) SAUTOS ON LY AUTOS x =ONLV X ~~~ 'l'Jl .. •
• 

8 X UMBRELLA UAI M OCCUR 0311-4829 91112021 9/1/2022 EACH OCCURRENCE S 10,000000 
EXCEHLlt.9 CLAIMS•MADE AGGREGATE S 10,000,000 

OED I X I RETENTION s ........... PRODUCTS COMP. OP AGG $10,000,000 
A WORKERS COMPENSATION V 014195849 9/1/2021 9/1'2022 X I ~i~rur< I !,,;· I 

AND EMPLOYERS' UAIIIUTY YIN 

~~g~~~CUTh'E □ NIA 
EL EACH ACCIDENT $1 000000 

coo,......, .. NHJ E.1..DISEASE ~EABFLnvca::i 11,000000 

~r.:=a:~ RATIOHS belDw E.LDJSEASE - POUCY UMIT I 11,000000 

C Comn>don 

I 
CPP101 1121 91 1'2021 91112022 ....,_,. $2,000,000 

Profes~ & Po ~ulion ~·'" $4 ,000,000 
liability $25,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OP!RATIONS I LOC• ?IONS/ VEHICL.2S (ACORD 101, Addltlonal Remlrb Schedule, m•y be attached ffmo,. •pace la r9qulredl

:~::~i~ ~e~:ile~ec:;t!r~~g~=:.i~f ~:,~;:~re~~'b~~:ia:! R~!~ :nedng:=~~d~er:nC:~~:1Stai~~i#~1e::ru1::~:i~~~r,:1~~~~~CA 
92082; Fire Stelion #2, 28205 N. Wohlfonl Lake Road, Valley Center,CA 92082. 

~~~~~:~~~~~~~•:,~~:::~=.' 3=i~ x~ ~t>?:; :i:,i;~=~~.ployees are Included es Additional Insureds on primary end 

INSU RERrSI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICI 

INSURER A : N&tional Union Fire Insurance 19445 
INSURER a: Allied World Assurance ComtJanv 19488 
'""UREA c, Uo-ro's of London 10200 
INSURERD : 

INSlllERE : 

INSURERF : 

CERTIFICATE HQLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DA'TE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 
28234 Lilac Road 

AUTt«>RSZEDREPRDENJATIYE
Valley Center CA 92082 

~P- ~ 
' Cl 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



POLICY NUMBER: 5856940 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 20 JO 1219 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR 
CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR 

ORGANIZATION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

C. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following is acded to Section 
Ill - Limits Of Insurance: 

If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the most we 
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the 
amount of insurance: 

I. Required by the contract or agreement; or 

2. Available under the applicable limits of 
insurance; 

whichever is less. 

This endorsement shall not increase the 
applicable limits of insurance. 

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) 
Or Organlzation(s) Location(s) Of Covered Operations 

A ny person or organization whom you become 

o bligated to include as an additional insured as a 

result of any contract or agreement you have 

e ntered into. 

Per the contract or agreement. 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

A. Section II -Who Is An Insured Is amended to 
include as an additional insured the person(s) or 
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only 
with respect to liability for "bodily injury11 

, 

"property damage" or "perSonal and advertising 
injury" caused, In whole or in part, by: 

1. Your acts or omissions; or 

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on 
your beha If; 

in the performance of your ongoing operations 
for the additional insured(s) at the location(s) 
designated above. 

However: 

I. The insurance afforded to such additional 
Insured only applies to the extent permitted by 
law;and 

2. If coverage provided to the additional 
insured Is required by a contract or 
agreement, the insurance afforded to such 
additional insured will not be broader than 
that which you are required by the contract 
or agreement to provide for such additional 
insured. 

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following · additional 
exclusions apply: 

This Insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" occurring after: 

1. All work, including materials, parts or 
equipment furnished in connection with such 
work, on the project (other than service, 
maintenance or repairs) to be performed by 
or on behalf of the additional insured(s) at 
the location of the covered operations has 
been completed; or 

2. That portion of "your work" out of which 
the injury or damage arises has been put to 
its intended use by any person or 
organization other than another contractor or 
subcontractor engaged in performing 
operations for a 
same project. 

CG20I01219 c Insurance Services Office, lnc.,2018 

principal as a part of the 

Page I of2 Page 2 of2 C Insurance Services Office, lnc.,2018 CG 20 10 1219 



POLICY NUMBER: 5856940 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG ZO 371219 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED-OWNERS, LESSEES OR 
CONTRACTORS- COMPLETED OPERATIONS 

This endorsement modifies Insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s)
Or Organlzatlon(s) Location And Description Of Completed Operations 

Any person or organization whom you become 
obligated to include as an additional insured as a 
result of any contract or agreement you have 

entered into. 

Per the contract or agreement. 

Information required to complete th is Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

A. Section II - Who Is An Insured Is amended to 
Include as an additional insured the person(s) or 
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only 
with respect to llablllty for "bodily Injury" or 
"property damage" caused, in whole or in part, 
by 11 your work" at the location designated and 
described In the Schedule of this endorsement 
performed for that additional Insured and 
included In the "products-completed operations 
hazard". 

However: 

1. The insurance afforded to such additional 
insured only applies to the extent permitted by 
law;and 

2. If coverage provided to the additional 
insured Is required by a contract or 
agreement, the insurance afforded to .such 
additional insured will not be broader than 
that which you are required by the contract 
or agreement to provide for such additional 
insured. 

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following Is added to Section 
Ill - Limits Of Insurance: 
If coverage provided to the additional Insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the most we 
will pay on behalf of the additional Insured Is the 
amount ofinsurance: 

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or 

2. Available under the applicable limits of 
insurance; 

whichever is less. 

This endorsement shall not Increase the 
applicable limits of Insurance. 

TitlS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement, effective 12:01 A.M. 09/01/2021 forms a part of 

Policy No. 5856940 issued to ERICKSON-HAU CONSTRUCTION INC. 

By NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF PITTSBURGH, PA 

AMENDMENT OF LIMITS OF INSURANCE 
(Per Project or Per Location Aggregate Umit) 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

I. Your policy is amended to include either a Per Project General Aggregate Limit, a Per Location 
General Aggregate Limit or a Per Project and Per Location General Aggregate Limit. Please select only 
Qru! of the following: 

[ X] Per Project General Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
$____I I Per Location General Aggregate Limit 
$,_ ___[ ] Per Project and Per Location General Aggregate Limit 

IF NEITHER OF THESE BOXES ARE CHECKED, THIS ENDORSEMENT IS VOID. IF MORE THAN 
ONE OF THE THESE BOXES ARE CHECKED, THIS ENDORSEMENT IS VOID. 

II. SECTION Ill - LIMITS OF INSURANCE, is amended to include the following: 

1. The Limits of Insurance and the rules below fix the most we will pay regardless of the number 
of: 

a. Insureds; 

b. Claims made or ·suits" brought; or 

c. Persons or organizations making claims or bringing "suits". 

2. The General Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for the sum of : 

a. Medical expenses under Coverage C; 

b. .Damages under Coverage A, except damages because of "bodily injury" or "property 
: damage" includeo in the products-completed operations hazard"; and 

c. Damages under Coverage B. 

3. The Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay under Coverage 
A for damages because of "bodily Injury" and "property damage" included In the "products
completed operations hazard". 

4. Subject to 2. above, the Personal and Advertising Injury Limit is the most we will pay under 

86681 (9/04) 

CCiZ0371219 0 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of I 



Coverage B for the sum of all damages because of all "personal and advertising injury" 
sustained by any one person or organization. 

5. Subject to 2. or 3. above, whichever applies, the Each Occurrence Limit is the most we will 
pay for the sum of: 

a. Damages under Coverage A; and 

b. Medical expenses under Coverage C 

because of all "bodily injury" and "property damage" arising out of any one "occurrence". 

6. Subject to 5. above, the Damage to Premises Rented To You Limit is the most we will pay 
under Coverage A because of "property damage" to any one premises, while rented to you, 
or in the case of damage by fire, while rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with 
permission of the owner. 

7. Subject to 5. above, the Medical Expense Limit is the most we will pay under Coverage C for 
all medical expenses because of "bodily injury" sustained by any one person. 

8. Subjectto 2., 4., 5., 6., and/or 7. above, the Per Project Aggregate Limit is the most we will 
pay under Coverages A, B, and C combined for the sum of: 

a. Damages under Coverage A; 

b. Damages under Coverage B; and 

c. Medical Expenses under Coverage C 

arising out of any single Project described above. 

9. Subject to 2., 4., 5., 6., and/or 7. above, the Per Location Aggregate Limit is the most we will 
pay under Coverages A, B, and C combined for the sum of: 

a. Damages under Coverage A; 

b. Damages under Coverage B; and 

c. Medical expenses under Coverage C 

arising out of the any single Location described above. 

The Limits of Insurance of this Coverage Part apply separately to each consecutive annual period 
and to any remaining period of less than 12 months, starting with the beginning of the policy 
period shown in the Declarations. 

Ill. The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations are deleted in their entirety and replaced by 
the Limits of Insurance set forth below. 

Limits of Insurance 
General Aggregate Limit $ 15,000,000 
Each Occurrence Limit $ 1.000,000 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $ 2 000 000 
Personal & Advertising Injury Limit $ 1000000 
Damage to Premises Rented to You $ 500.000 
Medical Expense Limit $ 25,000 
Per Project General Aggregate Limit, Per Location $ 2,000,000 

General Aggregate Limit or Per 
Project and Per Location General Aggregate Limit 

86681 (9/04) 

IV. SECTION V - DEFINITIONS, is amended to include the following: 

23. "Location" means premises involving the same or connecting lots, or premises whose connection 
is interrupted only by a street, roadway, waterway, or right-of-way railroad. 

All other terms and conditions of this policy remain the same. 

,,fln 
~ 

· ~ mm ~iit~ 

86681 (9/04) 

L t>. 11 fl fj, 



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG2001 1219 

POLICY NUMBER: 5856940 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY· 
OTHER INSURANCE CONDITION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

The following Is added to the Other Insurance (2) You have agreed in writing in a contract or 
Condition and supersedes any provision to the agreement that this Insurance would be 
contrary: primary and would not seek contribution from 

any other insurance available to the additionalPrimary And Noncontributory Insurance 
insured. 

This Insurance Is primary to and will not seek 
contribution from any other insurance available to 
an additional insured under your policy provided 
that: 

(I) The additional Insured is a Named Insured 
under such other insurance; and 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 24 04 I 2 19 

POLICY NUMBER: 5856940 

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY 
AGAINST OTHERS TO US (WAIVER OF SUBROGATION) 

This endorsement modifies Insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
ELECTRONIC DATA LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DESIGNATED SITES 
POLLUTION LIABILITY LIMITED COVERAGE PART DESIGNATED SITES 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY DESIGNATED TANKS 

SCHEDULE 

Name OfPerson(s) OrOrganization(s): 

·Pursuant to applicable written contract or agreement you enter into. 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

The following is added to Paragraph 8. Transfer Of 
Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us of 
Section IV - Conditions: 
We waive any right of recovery against the 
person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Schedule 
above because of payments we make under this 
Coverage Part. Such waiver by us applies only to 
the extent that the Insured has waived Its right of 
recovery against such I person(s) or organization(s) 
prior to loss. This endorsement applies only to the 
person(s) or organlzation(s) shown in the Schedule 
above. 

CG 24 0412 19 e Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 ofl 

CG 20 01 12 19 0 Insurance Services Office. Inc .. 2018 Paae I ofl 



ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement, effective 12:01 A.M. 09/01/2021 forms a part of 

Policy No. 5717908 issued to ERICKSON-HALL CONSTRUCTION INC. 

By NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF PITTSBURGH, PA 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED - WHERE REQUIRED UNDER CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT 

This endorsement modifies lnsvronce provided under the following: 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 

SCHEDULE 

ADDmONAL INSURED: 

ANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION FOR WHOM YOU ARE CONTRACTUALLY BOUND TO PROVIDE 
ADDillONAL INSURED STATUS BUT ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH PERSON OR ORGANIZATIONS 
LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF A COVERED "AUTO". 

I. SECTION II - COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE, A. Coverage, 1. - Who ls Insured, is amended to 
add: 

d. Any person or organization, shown in the schedule above, to whom you become obligated to Include as 
an additional Insured under this policy, as a result of any contract or agreement you enter Into which 
requires you to furnish insurance to that person or organization of the type provided by this policy, but 
only with respect to liability arising out of use of a covered "auto" . However, the insurance provided will 
not exceed the lesser of: 

(1) The coverage and/or limits of this policy, or 

(2) The coverage and/or limits required by said contract oragreement. 

#;J--
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

87950 19/14) Page 1 of 1 

ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement, effective 12:01 A.M. 09/01/2021 forms a part of 

Policy No. 5717908 issued to ERICKSON-HALL CONSTRUCTION INC. 

By NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF PITTSBURGH, PA 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

INSURANCE PRIMARY AS TO CERTAIN ADDITIONAL INSUREDS 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided vnder the following: 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 

Section IV - Business Auto Conditions, B., General Conditions, 5., Dther Insurance, c., is 
amended by the addition of the following sentence: 

The insurance afforded under this policy to an additional insured will apply as primary insurance for such additional 
insured where so required under an agreement executed prior to the date of accident. We will not -ask any insurer that 
has issued other insurance to such additional insured to contribute to the settlement of loss arising out of such 
accident. 

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. 

74445 (10/99) 

L~~:Y.:L:;__ 



ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement, effective 12:01 A.M. 09/01/2021 forms a part of 

Policy No. 5717908 issued to ERICKSON-HALL CONSTRUCTION INC. 

By NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF PITTSBURGH, PA 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US 

This endorsement modifies Insurance provided under the following: 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 

Section IV• Business Auto Conditions, A. • Loss Conditions, 5. • Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others 
to Us, is amended to add: 

However, we will waive any right of recover we have against any person or organization with whom you have entered into 
a contract or agreement because of payments we make under this Coverage Form arising out of an "accident" or "loss" if: 

(1) The "accident" or "loss" is due to operations undertaken in accordance with the contract existing between you and 
such person or organization; and 

(2) The contract or agreement was entered into prior to any "accident" or "loss". 

No waiver of the right of recovery will directly or indirectly apply to your employees or employees of the person or 
organization, and we reserve our rights or lien to be reimbursed from any recovery funds obtained PY any injured 
employee. 

62897 (6/95) 

1?~ 
AUTHORIZED 

REPRESENTATIVE 

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement changes the policy to which it is attached effective on inception date of the policy unless a different 
date is indicated below. 

(The following • attaching clause" need be completed only when this endorsement Is Issued subsequent to preparation of the policy). 

This endorsement. effective 12:01 AM 09/01/2021 fonms a part of 

Policy No. 014195849 Issued to ERICKSON-HALL CONSTRUCTION INC. 

By NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF PITTSBURGH, PA 

We have the right to recover our·payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not enforce our 
right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. This agreement applies only to the extent that you perform 
work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement fnom us. 

This agreement shall not operate directly or indirectly to benefit any one not named in the Schedule. 

Schedule 

ANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION TO WHOM YOU BECOME OBLIGATED TO WAIVE YOUR RIGHTS OF 
RECOVERY AGAINST, UNDER ANY CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT YOU ENTER INTO PRIOR TO THE 
OCCURRENCE OF LOSS. 

This form is not applicable in California, Kentucky, New Hampshire, New Jersey, North Dakota, Ohio, Tennessee, 
Texas, Utah, or Washington. This form is not applicable in Missouri when there is a construction code on the policy and 
there is Missouri premium or exposure. 

WC000313 
(Ed. 04/84) Countersigned by Jfil~·-·-

Authorized Representative 





RESOLUTION 2022-22 

CFD 2008-1 ANNEXATION 

PARK LILAC LN 

APNS: 128-510-25-00, 128-510-26-00, 128-510-27-00 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-22 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
TO ANNEX TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2008·1 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 

WHEREAS, under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, ,:amended (the "Act"), 
Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing at secti_...,,...... "2.11 of the California 
Government Code, the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the V .iy. .enter Fire Protection District 
(the "District") has conducted proceedings to establish Comrt]!(n!, ·es District No. 2008-1 
(the "CFD"), and ,· " ,../'-

\w_. ) 

/' - ~ 
WHEREAS, the Board is the legislative body for the . 'D~hd is empowere ·· ·,_the authority to 
annex territory to the CFD and now desires to und ... ke proceedings to anne · eititory to the 
CFD and ,-:v "\:;\,.

' ~'\ \,_, . / / ,/o, c. ·.;..:::,. 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting institution proceedin98-,:t<;ti6ne,x'territory to Community Facilities 
District No.2008-1 District has been rec ·ved from landowners 6wning not less than 10% of the 

~'>':- ~-., ..... _, [ 

proposed land to be annexed to the C ,.~nd ··~- ' , _ 
•\\" .....~~_:· .--~~~>-~ ·. •,, N• -"• 

WHEREAS, the petition dated April 11, 2 '':2. h~beeitfound to'-njeet the requirements of 
Government Code section 53319, and ~ \ ) ,,..,,: .... ,. "',,), 

1 1;~nd:P~~!:! ~~s.~~=~ii~~"1!iir~~=:~~::i::\;: ~oet~~e~~g 
order to finance th ~a·nce of the sesfs of certa --~~blic services and facilities necessary or 
incident to developm 

NOW, THEa4;f~R£;, BE'--.,:. 
Protecti¢f~WP.:ta~}WJlows. "· 
L~✓ • ··-~ , • 

1. T~1~i;rd hereby fimt!\nd de~!r:_les that public convenience and necessity require that 
terri~o~b~. -~.dd~d to the ~ , :Jb.~.e formte:.l§end that the Board is authorized to conduct proceedings 
for the an~~Ion of temto to~ the CFO pursuant to the Act. 

2. The name~j{xisting ;r} is "Community Facilities District No. 2008-1." 
1 

3. The territory in6fli\~a.•.1R:;jA~ existing CFD is as shown on the map thereof filed in Book 42 of 
Maps of Assessment'l!i~tCommunity Facilities Districts at Page 27 in the office of the County 
Recorder, County of San Diego, State of California to which map reference is hereby made for 
further particulars. The territory now proposed to be annexed to the CFD is as shown on 
Annexation Map No.2 to the CFD on file with the Clerk of the Board, the boundaries of which 
territory are hereby preliminarily approved and which map is incorporated in full herein by 
reference. The Clerk of the Board is hereby directed to record, or cause to be recorded, said map 
showing the territory to be annexed to the CFD in the office of the County Recorder of the County 
of San Diego within fifteen days of the date of adoption of this Resolution. 

f in the CS · ,, 

- · LVED o}71~d of Directors of the Valley Center Fire 

1 of 3 



.

4. The types of services financed by the CFD and pursuant to the Act consist of those services 
(the "Services") described in Exhibit A to Resolution 2008-09, adopted by the Board on May 29, 
2008 (the "Resolution of Formation"). It is presently intended that the Services will be shared, 
without preference or priority, by the existing territory in the CFD and the territory proposed to be 
annexed to the CFD. 

5. Except to the extent that the funds are otherwise available to the CFD to pay for the Services, a 
special tax sufficient to pay the costs thereof is intended to be levied annually within the CFD and 
collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad valon m property taxes. The 
proposed rate and method of apportionment of the special tax amonY<l!!M'J.Parcels of real property 
within the CFD, as now in existence and following the annexation ~~,sed herein, in sufficient 
detail to allow each landowner within the territory proposed to b . .. naxed to the CFD to estimate 
the maximum amount such owner will have to pay are descri -~Jrl'a .;..,i~ Exhibit A attached to 
the Resolution of Formation, which by this reference is in;f{pwated he ij~.;~. 
6. The Board shall hold a public hearing (the "He~rin.'f<ip··f~e annexation o ;?•~ory to the CFD 
and the proposed Rate and Method of Apportionm . ta'Y6 p.m., or as soon the ~a.Tt~r as 
practicable, on May 19, 2022, at_the yauey Cent •◄o/lR!1icipal Wat1r~pistric!, at 29 ··,O:'(,~lley 
Center Road, Valley Center, Cahfom1a. At the heanng~.tt,e Boartf\!,n consider and ly 
determine whether the public interest, convenience ~q}1eg.~iJy'require the annexation of 
territory to the CFD. Should the Board ~t~rmine to annex _t.er-ritory to the CFO, a special election 
will be held to authoriz~ the levy of the1~~Ja9:: in acco~_nc;itwith the procedure~ co~tained in 
Government Code section 53326. I: hel<\J'?e'~f:>,?Sed voting'{>rqp~dure at the election 1s . 
expected to be a landowner vote with eac~'t~,ndow-0~f record'~'"Of,,the close of the Hearing 
having one vote for each acre of I.an.. ~ or pd~ia_· pt~e~_/ f ?WJ:l~d~it.h_if:!Jhe territory to be_ annexed to 
the CFD. Ballots for the sppc1,irei~ct1on may-1p'.~,d1,~b)JfecM5¥ma!!,or by personal service. At the 
time and pla_ce set forth~B,~e-:rn:~rie.:1.~earing\ ~~¥jn'terested person, including all persons owning 
lands or registered to . ~,w1th1~th~~~posed 1:lf2_, may appear and be heard. 

. - , .~ . 

7. The District may a ··· t advanc :0ffunds orw ·· in-kind from any source, including, but not 
limited to, private perso -~~- _.,, lf!:eoli!l~,; 'fn6 a~ Jjthorized purpose, including, but not limited 
to, paying.. -~-_{; st~~.. rr -· ~:oy~tge.·, Districti'i,-t.~exation o! territory to the CFD. _Th~ District.. -~u 
may ent_. ,m10-a111~·-·· . •. ·.. en tta the person or entity advancing the funds or work-in-kind, to 
repa~ Qt~ portion "\ fun .< )lanced, or to reimburse the person or entity for the value, or 
cos ·~:.ever is less, ~~ln,d, as determined by this Board, with or without interest. 

8. The rns.tr!c.l_S.· ec. retary is ~£~PY dire'cted to cause notice of the public hearing to be given by 
publication'Q{iet>time in a ne_1lj:>$per published in the area of the CFO. The publication shall be 
completed at1~~\'t~.even d~~ef?re the dat_e of the public hearing in Sect~o~ 6. The Secretary 
shall als~ cause~!t~~ o.~t.~~'.e,Jl"eanng to be given to each propert_y owner within the CFO by first 
class mail, post~g_e~~~iSH/to each such owne(s addresses as 1t appears on the most recent tax 
records of the District'~,a·s otherwise known to the Secretary to be correct. Such mailed notice 
shall be completed not less than fifteen days before the date of the public hearing. Each of the 
notices shall be substantially in the form specified in section 53322 of the Act, with the form 
summarizing the provisions hereof hereby specifically approved. 

9. Except as may otherwise be provided by law or by the rate and method of apportionment of the 
special tax for the CFO, all lands owned by any public entity, including the United States, the State 
of California and/or the District, or any departments or political subdivisions thereof, shall be 
omitted from the levy of the Special Tax to be made to cover the costs and expenses of the 

2 of 3 



Services and the CFO. In the event that a portion of the property within the CFD shall become for 
any reason exempt, wholly or in part, from the levy of the special tax, this Board will, on behalf of 
the CFO, increase the levy to the extent necessary upon the remaining property within the CFD 
that is not exempt in order to yield the required revenues to pay for the Services and other annual 
expenses of the CFO, if any, subject to the provisions of the rate and method of apportionment of 
the special tax. 

10. The officers, employees and agents of the District are hereby authorized and directed to do 
any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents wl)!ph they may deem 
necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and comp~i{~ the terms and intent of 
this resolution. -

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Val ey Ce · tee Fire Protection District on 
the 21 st day of April, 2022 by the following vote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 

ATTEST: 

3 of 3 



RESOLUTION 2022-23 

CFD 2008-1 ANNEXATION 

RIDGE RANCH 

APNS: 189-121-45-00 



-

.

·

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-23 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
TO ANNEX TERRITORY TO COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2008· 1 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF SPECIAL TAXES THEREIN 

WHEREAS, under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, ended (the "Act"), 
Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing at secti 11 of the California 
Government Code, the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the \l fjY enter Fire Protection District 
(the "District") has conducted proceedings to establish Com .. i\Y~ities District No. 2008-1 

(the "CFO"), and /"'·, '/ . ~~}.~ .• 
WHEREAS, the Board is the legislative body for the ,-s ~shd is empowere~,the authority to 
annex territory to the CFO and now desires to und . ,~t-rfproceedings to anne~rHJpry to the

:~::s. a petitio_n requesting institution proceei1\?,l~;~itory to Com:u: ~;Y Facilities 
District No.2008-1 District has been received from landown'ets,ownmg not less than 10% of the 

/ -• ~...._ ' -

proposed land to be annexed to the CRD.,~'d~,.,_,,,,__ ___ "\· . 

WHEREAS, the petition dated April 14,~.h~4Qund ~-- ~et the requirements of 

Government Code section ~~~-~nd \ ,'\\ ,,./ .~,: ;~- .~ -

WHEREAS, this Bo~ad,;~X1ti~h·~~...~·'.. d indi~i_~tft.. dfinterest~r-otn the owner_of the areas of _land 
proposed to be anne .;.._·,;J<l'the CFO·.f'PW desir~~J~ proceed with the annexation to the CFO rn 
order to finance th . •·. l~rnce of the s~s of certal :p~blic services and facilities necessary or 
incident to developm : ~ the CS · 

' ~ 
NOW,;;.Jijfi~~.l;,.BE1~),'.: S@iVEDb}M~~atd of Directors of the Valley Center FireH 
Protect! . -E)j~trief!~J-,Jow~ ·. J',-

• r· ,- C• ,y·1 , ' ",, 
~ _.,... r;' l;"... ~ . ~ ":-..._ 

1. T~ ij6ard hereby fin'i:l~·aQ.d det~i!_les that public convenience and necessity require that 
territdry~.~dd~d to the ~ o,e forrrt~d.;,.and that the Board is authorized to conduct proceedings 
for the a~~~~~n of ternto ;t9l_the CFO pursuant to the Act. 

2. The name1,~~.~xistin?~ is "Communtty Facilities District No. 2008--1." 

3. The territory in~g~~f~•:th"e exist~ng CF~ !s as _sh~wn on the map_ thereof ~iled in Book 42 of 
Maps of Assessment'a~,-communrty Fac1ht1es Districts at Page 27 m the office of the County 
Recorder, County of San Diego, State of California to which map reference is hereby made for 
further particulars. The territory now proposed to be annexed to the CFD is as shown on 
Annexation Map No.2 to the CFO on file with the Clerk of the Board, the boundaries of which 
territory are hereby preliminarily approved and which map is incorporated in full herein by 
reference. The Clerk of the Board is hereby directed to record, or cause to be recorded, said map 
showing the territory to be annexed to the CFO in the office of the County Recorder of the County 
of San Diego within fifteen days of the date of adoption of this Resolution. 

1 of 3 



_

-

4. The types of services financed by the CFO and pursuant to the Act consist of those services 
(the "Services") described in Exhibit A to Resolution 2008-09, adopted by the Board on May 29, 
2008 (the "Resolution of Formation"). It is presently intended that the Services will be shared, 
without preference or priority, by the existing territory in the CFO and the territory proposed to be 
annexed to the CFO. 

5. Except to the extent that the funds are otherwise available to the CFO to pay for the Services, a 
special tax sufficient to pay the costs thereof is intended to be levied annually within the CFO and 
collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad valor:. m property taxes. The 
proposed rate and method of apportionment of the special tax amon......,n:ao,,.,,arcels of real property 
within the CFO, as now in existence and following the annexation Dt.C>llCltSed herein, in sufficient 
detail to allow each landowner within the territory proposed to bJi__-:ann _ed to the CFO to estimate 
the maximum amount such owner will have to pay are descr!;Ped}jlf~!,Jn Exhibit A attached to 
the Resolution of Formation, which by this reference is in~~Qrated her~~~~-

16. The Board shall hold a public hearing (the ''.Hearin✓ithe annexation ~- ;~1to._ry- to the CFO 
and the proposed Rate and Method of Apportion~;,~~ p.m., or as soon the -irt~r as 
practicable, on May 19, 2022, at the Valley Cente(!vJUhicipal Wat~r:,._District, at 29 -.0-'Valley 
Center Road, Valley Center, California. At the hean~~U1e Bo~~Jtl consider and Rally 
determine whether the public interest, convenience arig~g~~iJy require the annexation of 
territory to the CFO. Should the Board qet~rmine to ann'exJerj:ifory to the CFO, a special election 
will be held to authorize the levy of the~p-~_:~1-J!:1_ x in acco~ri~--~---- w_ith the procedures contained in 
Government Code section 53326. If helc\:lqe~po~~d voting~roq_edure at the election is 
expected to be a landowner vote with eac,J,~downer.:~ir,~cord,s ~f the close of the Hearing 
having one vote for each ac_re o_! 1-a· _-n~ or po!!~_-l.1 t~er.~-et1pwn_~d---~-_,~htQ;fhe territory to be_ annexed to 
the CFO. Ballots for the sp~_1aleleg_t1on ma -,$,dts~ ute'a~.y,01a1J,or by personal service. At the 
time and place set forth ,.J ~ye ·fbr{_he-,Hearin , \¥"Inlerestedp-erson, including all persons owning 
lands or registered to ~within thyplpposed'G,lfP, may appear and be heard. 

1 

7. The District may a~: '.~t advanges :~ funds or~~i~1n-kind from any source, including, but not 
limited to, pr-·i.vate perso .,bt:_p9e~~'fidtlli~~h ~r~n-~JJthorized purpose, including, but not limited 
to, paying ~t'e.tJ~tJ~curre~-- -~ft_1Je-' District 1r'r't~'ijhexation of territory to the CFO. The District 
may ent~n~'"Sfi~~en '{@._the person or entity advancing the funds or work-in-kind, to 
repa~4f~a portion"& :~ .fun ~a),tvanced, or to reimburse the person or entity for the value, or 
cost~l1iphe_ver is less, bf~ work~n\k.J,_nd, as determined by this Board, with or without interest. 

'\ .'\. ,\ "'.;, 
8. T~e ~i4f1gt_S~cre~ary is H'}~:PY direct~d to c~use notice of the public hearing_ to ~e given by 
publication"'Qt1':·1___t':11__ e in a ne~-~:per published in the area_ of the _CF~. The pubhcat1on shall be 
completed at ~~t;:~even d~f$ Before the date of the public hearing in Section 6. The Secretary 
shall als~ cau~~-~tic~ ~tie':htaring to be given to each property owner within the CFO by first 
class mail, post~ge:-W~l?~J9.t(o ea~h such owner's addresses as 1t appears on the m~st rece_nt tax 
records of the 01stricfbi,as otherwise known to the Secretary to be correct. Such mailed notice 
shall be completed not less than fifteen days before the date of the public hearing. Each of the 
notices shall be substantially in the form specified in section 53322 of the Act, with the form 
summarizing the provisions hereof hereby specifically approved. 

9. Except as may otherwise be provided by law or by the rate and method of apportionment of the 
special tax for the CFO, all lands owned by any public entity, including the United States, the State 
of California and/or the District, or any departments or political subdivisions thereof, shall be 
omitted from the levy of the Special Tax to be made to cover the costs and expenses of the 

2 of 3 



Services and the CFO. In the event that a portion of the property within the CFO shall become for 
any reason exempt, wholly or in part, from the levy of the special tax, this Board will, on behalf of 
the CFO, increase the levy to the extent necessary upon the remaining property within the CFO 
that is not exempt in order to yield the required revenues to pay for the Services and other annual 
expenses of the CFO, if any, subject to the provisions of the rate and method of apportionment of 
the special tax. 

10. The officers, employees and agents of the District are hereby authorized and directed to do 
any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all document~ wJ8!1 they may deem 

1 necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and com~~}" the terms and intent of 
this resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Val ey Ce teri Fire Protection District on 
the 21 st day of April, 2022 by the following vote: A 
Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
Abstain: 

,,., 
ATTEST: 

President, Board of Directors 

,/ 

3 of 3 



STAFF REPORT,S 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' PACKET 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 



VA LEY CENTER 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

28234 Lilac Road , Valley Center, CA 92082 
(760) 751-7600 Fax (760) 749-3892 

Website: vcfpd.org 
April 21 , 2022 

Fire Chief's Report 
Valley Center Fire Protection District Board 

1. The Valley Center Fire Department had another busy month with Emergency Incidents, Station 
Tours, Community Events, Training, Facilities Projects. 

2. ALS Program: New Zoll Monitors Arrived 
3. Operational Area Update: County Wildland Drill Preparation Meetings 
4. Local and Regional Training: Company Performance Reviews, SDG&E Haz Mat, Policy 

Review, Wildland Wednesdays, Medic CE on Target Solutions 
5. Cal Fire Valley Center Battalion: Station 71 is staffed with 1 Type 6 Patrol 2 personnel. 
6. Law Enforcement I Fire /Tribal lnteragency Operations: Pump Pod, Emergency Preparedness 
7. Fire Station 3 Development: Erickson-Hall Contract for Design Review and Acceptance 
8. Spartan Type 1 Wildland Urban Interface Fire Apparatus: Bids on Financing in Process 
9. ISO Update: Everything has been turned over to ISO for Review 
10. Board of Supervisor Educational Meetings: Supervisor Nathan Fletcher has been contacted 

for the next educational meeting. 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 

https://vcfpd.org


VCFPD OPERATIONAL REPORT: March 2022 

M th/ l ·a tD ton rv nc, en a a: 
VCFPDSt VCFPD VCFPD VCFPD 

ation 1 Station2 Statlon2 Statlon2 
E161 E162 OESWT RS162 

TotalTotal Total Total 
Incidents Incidents Incidents Incidents 

JAN 99 45 3 71 

FEB 94 50 2 83 

MAR 112 80 2 89 

APR 
MAY 
JUN 
JUL 
AUG 
SEP 

OCT 
NOV 
DEC 
Last Month 
incidents 94 50 2 83 
2021 Year 
End Total 1209 535 41 801 
2022 
Year to Date 305 175 7 243 
YTD% 
Change 

Total Two Three Four 
Concurrent Incidents Concurrent Concurrent Concurrent 
Incidents Incidents Incidents Incidents 

202 55 6 2 

Mercy USA Mercy Mercy Mercy Medic Mercy 
Medic 11 Medic 52 70 Medic 71 

Ambulance 
Responses 27 0 10 72 

VCFPD 
Admin 

Command 

Total 
Incidents 

7 

6 

14 

6 

86 

27 

Five 
Concurrent 
Incidents 

0 

Mercy 
Medic 75 

5 

VCFPD Auto Aid Auto Aid 
Admln Received Given 

Prevention 

Total TotalTotal 
Incidents Incidents Incidents 

1 44 35 

2 31 32 

2 42 36 

2 31 32 

25 604 358 

5 117 103 

Two Three Four 
Concurrent Concurrent Concurrent 
Incidents Incidents incidents 

27.23% 2.97% 0.99% 

Total Unit 
Responses 

188 

Total Turnout 
Incidents Time 

Total 90"'VCFPD 
Incidents Percentile 

174 0:02:14 

177 0:02:02 

202 0:02:14 

\ 

177 0:02:02 

2138 0:02:19 

553 0:02:12 

Five 
Concurrent 
Incidents 

0.00% 
90th 

Total Unit Percentile 
Transports Turnout 

114 0:02:49 

Travel Response 
Time Time 

so"' so"' 
Percentile Percentile 

0:09:42 0:11:18 

0:14:10 0:15:07 

0:11:52 0:13:31 

0:14:10 0:15:07 

0:14:08 0:15:56 

0:14:10 0:15:07 

90th 90th 
Percentile Percentile 

Travel Response 

0:17:21 0:18:50 

Firefighters in the program: 28 
• Firefighter Driver Operators: 0 
• Firefighter Paramedics: 14 
• Firefighter EMTs: 14 
• Fire Explorers: 1 O 

Apparatus and Equipment: 

Station 1: 
• E-161 - In Service 
• C-1601 - In Service 
• C-1602 - In Service 
• P-1650 - In Service 

Station 2: 
• E-162- In Service 
• RS-162- In Service 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 
28234 Lilac Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 

E-169- In Reserve 

C-1603 - In Reserve 
CP-1616- In Service 

E-168- In Reserve 
OES WT62 - In Service 

Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 



Special Training and Future Community Events: 

• Valley Center Fire Safe Council / Urban Corps Vegetation Management Project 
• April 2022: ISO Under Review 
• April 21, 2022: Design Agreement Review 
• April 25, 26, 27, 2022: County Wildland Drill 
• Planning Group Evacuation Sub-Committee Meeting: April 28, 2022 on Zoom 6:30pm 
• April 30, 2022: Firefighter's Sweetheart's Ball and Charity Gala Escondido Center for the Perfonning 

Arts 
• May 27, 28, 2022: Western Days Rodeo 
• June 3,4 2022: Western Days Chili Cookoff, Parade and Festival 
• June 11, 2022: Wildland Symposium at the Library 
• August 2,3,4,5 2022: Community Based Strategic Plan Meetings: Location TBD 
• September 11, 2022: Patriot Day Celebration and Reading of the Names 

Legislative I Political Updates: 

Tax Apportionment Education Meetings: Supervisor Nathan Fletcher 

Grants/Awards FY-20-21: 

• Safer Grant Application 2022: in process 
• Health and Safety Grant 2022: in process 
• SHSGP: 2021 Grant Application: $14,150 Awarded: 3/01/2022 
• State COVID Funds Awarded: $67,412 
• County COVID Funds Awarded: $179,000 
• FEMA COVID Funds Awarded: TBD 

Significant Incidents/Station Activities: 

• Vehicle vs Motor Cycle: Mesa Verde Road and Lilac Road 
• Child Birth: Canal Road 
• Rescue TC: 15954 Woods Valley Road 
• Rescue TC: 14720 Woods Valley Road 
• Residential Structure Fire: Cool Valley Road and Callejo Feliz Trail 

Trauma Intervention Program (TIP}: 

• 0 TIP responses for the month of March 2022 to Valley Center. 

Josef G. Napier 
Fire Chief, Valley Center Fire Protection District 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 
28234 Lilac Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 

Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 



Community Risk Reduction Division 
Fire Marshal's Report 
March 2022 
Significant Events since last report: 

• Battery Energy Storage System incident 
• Caufield property 
• Guejito Dairy condemnation complete 

Business of Prevention in March: 

Item Name Units 

3.3.8 Commercial Solar Plan Review 1 

4.13 Overtime Plan Review/Inspection (Per Hour) 3 

4.14 Service Availability Letter 1 

4.16 Other Services Not Listed (Per Hour) 9 

2.1.1 New Residential or Remodel Plan Review (Any type, includes inspections) 52 

2.1.3 Residential Fire Sprinklers NFPA 13-D or NFPA 13-R (includes 2 inspections} 60 

2.3.1 Room Addition or < 50% Remodel w/o Sprinklers Plan Review 1 

2.3.2 Accessory Dwelling Unit Plan Review (Includes 2 Inspections} 1 

2.3.4 Barns and Outbuildings (500 sq ft and over and under 4,000 sq ft) 1 



Total Lots In Project 632 

Lots Sold to Developers 632 

Lots Unsold 0 

Lots In Progress 250 

lots Remaining 168 

lots Finalized 214 

Mitigation Total $1,040,621.50 

Mitigation Remainlna $283,908.26 

Mitigation Complete $756,713.24 

Plan Check Total $376,040.00 

Plan Check Remaining $99,960.00 

Plan Check Complete $276,080.00 

Park Circle/Orchard Run Lots 

m 

__J 
I 

L___ _ -

Park Circle/Orchard Run Lots in Development 

lots In Progress 

Plan 
Month Olk 

December 2020 11 

January 2021 3 

February 2021 H 

March2021 45 

April 2021 0 - - --
May2021 11 

Park. Circle/Orchard Rur> Mitigation l otals 
June 2021 111 

July 2021 21 

August 2021 6J 
Mlt1ptionhmalnin1 

ZT. 
September 2021 21 

October 2021 Iii 

November 2021 0 

December 2021 .. 
January 2022 2,4 

February 2022 21 Mitigation Complete 

March2022 49 
n~ 

April2022 10 

May2022 0 

June 2022, 0 Park Circle/Orchard Run Plan Check Fees 

July 2022 0 0 

Au1ust2022 fl 0 Plan Oled Remaining 

5eptember 2022 0 0 JU 

October 2022 0 0 

November 202.2 0 0 

December 2022 0 0 

January 2023 

Totah 451 245 Pion O,eck Complete 

' ' 



Park Circle Development - Summer (Shea Homes) 
Mirar De Valle/ VC Road 

Date: 04/14/2022 

Total Lots: 88 

Plan Check Complete: 15 

Lots Remaining 0 

Finated 73 

Mitigation Total: $120,778.62 

Mitigation Remaining: $0.00 

Mitigation Complete: $120,778.62 

Plan Check Total: $52,360.00 

Plan Check Remaining: $0.00 

Plan Check Complete: $52,360.00 

/ Shea Lots 

Plan Check 

170% 

Fina led 

830% 

Inspections Remaining 

Hydros Remaining: 19 

Finals Remaining: 15 

Total : 34 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 
Plan 

Month Chk Hydro ..... 
December 2020 0 0 ti 

January 2021 0 3 • 
February 2021 16 0 •

Man:h2021 31 0 0 
April2021 0 0 I 
May2021 0 2 'o 
June2021 0 8 

July2021 0 11 l ' 
August2021 33 10 i 

September 2021 s 7 1 
October 2021 0 9 0 

November 2021 0 9 I 
December W21 0 7 2l 

January 2022 0 0 J 
February 2022 0 0 

March 2022 0 3 '1S 
April 2022 0 0 • 

Totals 85 69 n 

... --··=···------
Shea Mitigation Totals 

Shea Plan Check Fees 



Park Circle Development - Porches (Beazer) 
Mirar De Valle / VC Road 

Beazer- Porches Lots 

Date: 04/14/2022 

64Total Lots: 

22Lots in progress: 

0lots Remaining 

42Lots Finalized: 

$124,202.36Mitigation Total: 

$0.00Mitigation Remaining: 
Lots Fina Ii zed$124,202.36Mitigation complete: 
65.6% 

$38,080.00Plan Check Total: 

$0.00Plan Check Remaining: 

Plan Check Complete: $38,oso.oo I 

Lots in progress : 

34.4% 

Beazer - Porches Mitigation Totals 
Inspections Remaining 

7 

Finals Remaining: 

Hydros Remaining: 

22 

29Total: 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Plan 
HydroMonth Chk 

11 3December 2020 

0 0January 2021 

0 0February 2021 

14 5March 2021 
Beazer - Porches Plan Check Fees:1 60April 2021 

023May 2021 5 
00June 2021 

50July2021 

40August2021 

0 5 sSeptember 2021 

60 4October 2021 ,00November 2021 

86 0December 2021 

4January 2022 0 6 
57 3February 2022 

60 sMarch 2022 

00April2022 0 
5761 42Totals 

0 

https://38,oso.oo
https://38,080.00
https://124,202.36
https://124,202.36


- --

Park Circle Development - Trailside (Beazer) 
Mirar De Valle / VC Road 

Date: 04/14/2022 

Total Lots: 79 

49Lots in progress: 

Lots Remaining 30 

0Lots Finalized: 

$127,892.32Mitigation Total: 

$48,529.18Mitigation Remaining: 

Mitigation Complete: $79,363.14 

$47,005.00Plan Check Total: 

$17,850.00Plan Check Remaining: 

$29,155.00Plan Check Complete: 

Inspections Remaining 

Hydros Remaining: 64 

Finals Remaining: 79 

Total: 143 

Beazer - Trailside Lots 

Lots Remaining 

38.0% 

Lots in progress: 

62,0% 

L 
I 

Beazer Trailside Mitigation Totals 

Mitigation Remaining: 

37,9% 

Mitigation Complete: 

62.1% 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Month 
Plan 
Chk Hydro -December 2020 0 0 0 

January 2021 0 0 0 

February 2021 0 0 0 

March2021 0 0 0 

April 2021 0 0 0 

May2021 0 0 D 
June 2021 0 0 0 

July 2021 0 0 D 

August 2021 0 0 D 

September 2021 0 0 0 

October 2021 5 0 0 

November 2021 0 5 D 

December 2021 10 0 0 

January 2022 14 0 0 
February 2022 0 10 0 

March 2022 10 0 0 

April 2022 10 0 0 

Totals 49 15 0 

Beazer Trailside Plan Check Fees 

-------------- ------

Plan Check 

38.0% 

Plan CheckL~ 

https://29,155.00
https://17,850.00
https://47,005.00
https://79,363.14
https://48,529.18
https://127,892.32


Park Circle Development - Kyra (Meritage) 
Lilac Rd / Betsworth 

Meritage (Kyra) Lots 

Date: 04/14/2022 Lots Finalized: 

Total Lots: 120 26.7% Lots in progress:1---------......--------I 
37Lots In progress: 

30.8% 

Lots Remaining 51 

Lots Finalized: 32 

Mitigation Total: $203,004.06 

Mitigation Remaining: $84,035.04 

Mitigation Complete: $118,969.02 

Plan Check Total: $71,400.00 Lots Remaining 

Plan Check Remaining: $30,345.00 42.5% 

Plan Check Complete: $41,055.00 '----------------------------.....J.______;....___...._________. 

Inspections Remaining 

Hydros Remaining: 

Finals Remaining: 

Total: 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Plan 
Month Chk Hydro 

December 2020 0 0 

88 I 
88 

176 

0 

Meritage (Kyra) Mitigation Totals 

Mitigation Complete : 

58 6% 

Mitigation Remaining: 

41 4% 

January 2021 0 0 
. ~------------- -----------...J1-------..;...._,.__---1~----

February 2021 0 01-----____:.--1---+---I-...__D-I Meritage (Kyra) Plan Check Fees 
March 2021 0 0 • 

April 2021 0 0 0 

May2021 3 0 0 
June 2021 0 0 D 
July 2021 0 0 • Plan Check 

August 2021 30 0 D 42 5% 

September 2021 0 2 0 
Plan Check 

October 2021 0 0t------------1------' ~=•7c-,.s,.,-%,------
November 2021 0 15 o 
December ;!021 22 10 

January 2022 0 5 

February 2022 14 0 

March 2022 0 0 

April 2022 0 0 0 

Totals 69 32 S2 



Orchard Run Development - Sundance (KB Homes) 
Mirar De Valle 

KB Lots 

Date: 04/14/2022 

Total Lots: 128 

Lots in progress: 73 

Lots Remaining 1 

Lots Finalized: 54 

Mitigation Total: $218,544.00 

Mitigation Remaining: $1,597.32 

Mitigation Complete: $216,946.68 

Plan Check Total: $76,160.00 

Plan Check Remaining: $595.00 

Plan Check Complete: $75,565.00 

Lots Finalized: 

42.2% 

Lots in progress: 

57.0% 

Lots Remaining 

08% 

Inspections Remaining 

Hydros Remaining: 77 

Finals Remaining: 74 

Total: 151 

KB Mitigation Totals 

Mitigation Remaining: 

07% 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Month 
Plan 
Chk Hydro Fl"-' 

December 2020 0 0 0 
January 2021 3 0 0 

February 2021 0 0 _O 
March 2021 0 0 0 

April 2021 0 3 0 

May2021 32 0 I 

June2021 19 0 0 
July2021 1S 14 0 

August 2021 0 1 8 

September 2021 0 4 7 
October 2021 1S 13 0 

November 2021 0 0 so 
December 2021 17 0 1 

January 2022 0 12 0 

February 2022 0 4 9 

March 2022 26 0 JO 

April 2022 0 0 0 

Totals 127 51 54 

Mitigation Complete: 

99.3% 

KB Pla n Check Fees 

Plan Check 

0.8% 

lPlan Check 

99.2% 



Orchard Run Development - Wildflower Multifamily (Infill Development) 
Mirar De Valle 

Date: 04/14/2022 

Total Lots: 52 

Lots In progress: 16 

Lots Remaining 36 

Lots Finalized: 0 

Mitigation Total: $56,791.28 

Mitigation Remaining: $56,791.28 

Mitigation Complete: $0.00 

Plan Check Total: $30,940.00 

Plan Check Remaining: $21,420.00 

Plan Check Complete: $9,520.00 

Inspections Remaining 

Hydros Remaining: 52 

Finals Remaining: 52 

Total: 104 

Infill Lots 

69.2% 

Infill Mitigation Totals 

Lots in progress: 

308°,,. 

Lots Remaining 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Month 
Plan 
a,11 Hydro Alllll 

December 2020 0 0 I 
January 2021 0 0 ~ 0 

February 2021 0 0 .o 
March 2021 0 0 0 

April2021 0 0 0 
May2021 0 0 • I 

June2021 0 0 0 
July 2021 0 0 0 

August2021 0 0 - 0 
September 2021 0 0 0 

October 2021 16 0 0 
November 2021 0 0 • 
December 2021 0 0 0 

January 2022 0 0 0 
February 2022 0 0 0 

March 2022 0 0 0 
April2022 0 0 0 

Totals 16 0 0 

Infill Plan Check Fees 

Plan Check 

30.8% 

Plan Check 

69.2% 



·

Orchard Run Development- Seasons (Richmond-American Homes) 

Date: 04/14/2022 

Total Lots: 101 

Lots in progress: 38 

Lots Remaining 50 

Lots Finalized: 13 

Mitigation Total: $189,408.86 

Mitigation Remaining: $92,955.44 

Mitigation Complete: $96,453.42 

Plan Check Total: $60,095.00 

Plan Check Remaining: $29,750.00 

Plan Check Complete: $30,345.00 

Inspections Remaining 

Hydros Remaining: 80 

Finals Remaining: 88 

Total: 168 

Plan Reviews and Inspections 

Plan 
Month Chk Hydro ... 
December 2020 0 0 0 

January 2021 0 0 a 
-

February 2021 0 0 a 
March2021 0 0 0 

April2021 0 0 D 

May2021 3 0 D 

June 2021 0 0 0 
July2021 6 0 D 

August2021 0 0 'September 2021 16 3 0 
October 2021 0 0 0 

November 2021 0 3 a 
December 2021 13 0 0 

January 2022 0 3 0 

February 2022 0 4 s 
March2022 13 8 4 

April 2022 0 0 D 
Totals 51 21 u 

Mitigation Complete: 

50.9% 

Richmond American Plan Check Fees 

Plan Check 

50.5% 

Mirar De Valle 

Richmond American Lots 

Lots Finalized: 

12.9% 

. 

•.. -

. . 

') 
~-a ~. ~ 

Lots in progress: 

37 6\, 

'· ' ' ··<\•·. . j .·• 
"\.-:•:t~· 

Lots Remaining 

49.5% 

Richmond American Mitigation Totals 

Mitigation Remaining: 

49.1% 

Plan Check 

49.5% 



OLD BUSINESS 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' PACKET 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 



''1)
'T:. , Valley Center Fire Protection District 

Staff Report 

Prepared by: Josef G. Napier General Meeting Date: 04/21/2022 
Fire Chief, VCFPD 

Approved by: Pending Board Action Agenda: Action Item 
Location: General Board Meeting 

SUBJECT: Design Agreement for Temporary Fire Station 3 and Fire Station Upgrades 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the recommendation of the Valley Center Fire Protection District Fire Chief to enter into the design 
agreement portion of the design build contract with Erickson-Hall Construction Company utilizing California 
State appropriated general capital funds. 

PRIOR BOARD ACTION: 
On March 15, 2017, a Standards of Cover Report and Deployment Study was presented and adopted by 
the Valley Center Fire Protection District Board of Directors. In that Study, it was identified that a third Fire 
Station should be located at Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane, equipped with a Type 1 Apparatus 
and staffed with a Captain, Engineer and Firefighter-Paramedic to provide better Fire Protection and ALS 
EMS Services to the community. 

On August 27, 2021 the District purchased the property for $330,000 utilizing District mitigation funds to 
place Fire Station 3 on Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane. On August 19, 2021 by Resolution 2021-
14, the District committed $350,000 from District mitigation funds to construct Temporary Fire Station 3 
and provide Fire Facility Upgrades to Fire Station 1 and 2. On September 16, 2021, Assembly Member 
Marie Waldron presented a California State budget allocation award to the Valley Center Fire Protection 
District of $1,060,000.00 which was depostted into the general operating fund. A portion of the total 
award for the Temporary Fire Station 3 and Fire Facility Upgrades was set at $680,000 which will be 
drafted from the general operating fund. 

https://1,060,000.00


STATEMENT ON THE SUBJECT: 
It is the recommendation of Fire Chief Napier that the Valley Center Fire Protection District Board of 
Directors should authorize the capital budget be adjusted for FY2021-2022 and capital funds allocated for 
FY2021-2022 to enter into a Design Agreement with Erickson-Hall Construction Company for 
$502,980.00 dollars utilizing a portion of the $680,000 from the California State Allocated funds for 
Temporary Fire Station 3 and Fire Station Upgrades. 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The total fiscal impact of the Erickson-Hall Construction Company Design Agreement for Temporary Fire 
Station 3 and Fire Facility Upgrades is $502,980.00. The total accessible funding for this portion Desjgn 
Build Contract is $680,000 from the general capital fund to design Temporary Fire Station 3 and Fire 
Facility Upgrades to Fire Station 1 and 2. Reference Exhibit D for a detailed analysis of preliminary design 
costs. 

CONCLUSION: 
The positive outcome from the successful relationship that will be built between the Valley Center Fire 
Protection District and Erickson-Hall Construction Company will result in the long awaited operational third 
fire station which will provide the enhanced Fire Protection and ALS EMS services needed to an 
underserved response area and increased reliability to our community. This initial Design Agreement will 
provide architectural design for Temporary Fire Station 3, the Fire Station Upgrades and provide a 
construction cost analysis for the overall projected capital expense to develop the land, install the 
Temporary Fire Station 3 and complete the upgrades and improvements to Fire Stations 1 and 2. 

https://502,980.00
https://502,980.00


EXHIBITD 
ATTACHMENT 07 Rvsd. 3/ 10/2022 

Preliminary Cost Worksheet 
# Subtotals Totals 

l Preconstruction Services 
2 Design Team {Architect and Subconsultants) 
3 Temporary Fire Station #3 • Core Grade Rd. 
4 Schematic Design $73,166 
s Design Development $80,667 
6 Construction Dowments $80,667 
7 Su11totaI 5234,500 
8 Fire Station #1 Remodel - LIiac Rd. 
9 App Bay Doors (front onlyJ and Auto Opener ror Rear - BASE BID $43,000 

10 Air compressor and Enclosure• ALTERNATE S10,000 
11 HVAC Replacement (Dot n siaesJ - ALI ERNATE $10,000 
12 Dormitory and Day Room Remodel • ALTERNATE s 12,ooo 
13 Kitchen ana Restroom Remodel -ALTERNATE S15,000 
14 Sulltotal S90,000 
15 Fire Station #Z Remodel - N. Lake Won1rord Rd. 
16 IAPP Bay Doors (tront and rear) • BASE BID S27,000 
17 HVAC Replacement 100t h Sides) · ALTERNATE 512,000 
18 Dormitory Kemodel -All tRNATt: S12,000 
19 Kitchen Remodel lor Refrigerator Relocation - ALTERNATE 510,000 
20 Screened Porcn at Rear Patio Area - ALTERNATE $7,500 
21 Concrete Replacement at Rear of Station - ALTERNATE 53,000 
22 Subtotal $71,500 

23 
1Note: uo not mcIuae aesIgn team construction aammIstratIon services m t ne 

preconstruction services budget TBD 
l4 

25 Design Builder (OBJ 

26 DB Cost lor Preconstruction Services (provide breakdown on separate sheet) $47,000 
27 Proposed DB Design Contingency $25,000 
28 Proposed DB Fee for All Pre-Construction Services $30,000 
29 Subtotal $102,000 

130 
31 :.u11totaI Preconstructlon Services Budget $498,000 

32 1% liability Insurance on Preconstruction Services $4,980 ,.,., o~aI neconsuucuon ::.erv1ces isuoget S50 Z,:,11u 

34 
35 Construction Services 

36 
General Conditions/General Requirements (provide monthly breakdown on 

separate sheet, identify staffing levels and hours). To be confirmed at creation of $144,105 
37 Proposed DB Contingency (percentage) 10% 
38 Proposea DB Fee ror Construction (percentage) 6.00% 
~:, 

4 Bonas ana insurance0 I 
41 COC {All-Risk) Coverage to be quoted at creation of GMP TBD 
42 liability Insurance (1.0%) 1.0% 



VALLEY CENTER 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

28234 Lilac Road, Valley Center, CA 92082 
(760) 751-7600 Fax (760) 749-3892 

Website: vcfpd.org 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-24 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT TO 
APPROVE THE DESIGN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND 

DESIGN BUILDER - ERICKSON-HALL CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 

WHEREAS, The Valley Center Fire Protection District has received a response to the request 
for proposal from Erickson-Hall Construction Company for a Design Build Contract with the District for 
Temporary Fire Station 3 and Fire Station Construction Projects, and 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the District the Design Agreement between Valley 
Center Fire Protection District and Erickson-Hall Construction Company to provide Architectural Design 
to determine the overall scope of work and construction cost analysis for Temporary Fire Station 3 and 
Fire Station Construction Projects in the form and content attached hereto, and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Valley Center Fire Protection District that said 
Design Agreement be approved, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of Valley Center Fire Protection District does hereby 
adopt and approve the Design A.greement as modified by the amended schedule: 

Notice of Award, April 21, 2022 
Design Development Completed, May 19, 2022 
Construction Documents Completed, June 10, 2022 
County Permits Issued, September 2, 2022 
Bidding Completed, September 22, 2022 
GMP Proposal, September 29, 2022 
Substantial Completion, February 10, 2023; and 

It is FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Fire Chief is hereby authorized and directed to execute the 
Agreement on behalf of the District. 

Adopted this 21st day of April 2022 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
RECUSED: 

Phil Bell, President 

ATTEST: 

Gina Roberts, Secretary 

Valley Center Fire Station 1 Valley Center Fire Station 2 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 

https://vcfpd.org


   

         
          

            

 

 

  
   

 

  
 

   

 

 
   

  

  

   

       
 

  
 

 

 
   

Document A141™ – 2014 
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Design-Builder 

AGREEMENT made as of the day of in the year 
(In words, indicate day, month and year.) 

BETWEEN the Owner: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

Valley Center Fire Protection District  
28234 Lilac Road  
Valley Center, CA 92082  

and the Design-Builder: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

Erickson-Hall Construction Co.    
500 Corporate Drive 
Escondido, CA 92029 

for the following Project: 
(Name, location and detailed description) 

Valley Center Temporary Fire Station No. 3 and Fire Station No. 1 and 2 Renovations 
Temporary Fire Station No. 3 
APN 133-220-38, located in the community of Valley Center, northwest of the intersection 
of Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane 

Fire Station No. 1 
28234 Lilac Road 
Valley Center, CA 92082 

Fire Station No. 2 
28205 N. Wohlford Lake Road 
Valley Center, CA 92082  

Design and build a temporary fire station to serve the community of Valley Center.  In 
addition, design and build agreed upon renovations to Fire Station No. 1 and 2. The Project 
will include all design, engineering, permits, grading, construction, materials, labor, 
observation, inspection and testing.  Design-Builder will be responsible for obtaining all 
required permits, including federal, state and local governance as well as coordination with 
all utilities and other regulatory agencies, start-up commissioning required for occupancy 
and operations.  All permits, fees and utility fees shall be paid by the Owner.  Costs for 
reimbursable expenses, such as paper sets of plans requested by agencies or the Owner, 
shall be paid by the Owner. Design-Builder shall perform all work and provide all 
documents described in the Owner’s Program Documents, which are attached as Exhibit C. 

The Owner and Design-Builder agree as follows. 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to the 
standard form text is available from 
the author and should be reviewed. A 
vertical line in the left margin of this 
document indicates where the author 
has added necessary information 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text. 

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification. 

Consultation with an attorney is also 
encouraged with respect to 
professional licensing requirements 
in the jurisdiction where the Project is 
located. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

1 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

    

 
 

TABLE OF ARTICLES 

1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 

2 COMPENSATION AND PROGRESS PAYMENTS 

3 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE WORK OF THE DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT 

4 WORK PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 

5 WORK FOLLOWING EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 

6 CHANGES IN THE WORK 

7 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

8 TIME 

9 PAYMENT APPLICATIONS AND PROJECT COMPLETION 

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 

11 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 

12 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 

13 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 

14 CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

15 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

16 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 

TABLE OF EXHIBITS 

A DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 

B INSURANCE AND BONDS 

C OWNER’S PROGRAM DOCUMENTS 

D COMPENSATION FOR WORK COMPLETED PRIOR TO DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 

ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
§ 1.1 Owner’s Criteria 
This Agreement is based on the Owner’s Criteria set forth in this Section 1.1. 
(Note the disposition for the following items by inserting the requested information or a statement such as "not 
applicable" or "unknown at time of execution." If the Owner intends to provide a set of design documents, and the 
requested information is contained in the design documents, identify the design documents and insert "see Owner’s 
design documents" where appropriate.) 

§ 1.1.1 The Owner’s program for the Project: 
(Set forth the program, identify documentation in which the program is set forth, or state the manner in which the 
program will be developed.) 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

2 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

 
 

  
  

    

  

 
   

     

 

 

 

  

are set forth in the Owner’s Program Documents, Exhibit C  

§ 1.1.2 The Owner’s design requirements for the Project and related documentation: 
(Identify below, or in an attached exhibit, the documentation that contains the Owner’s design requirements, 
including any performance specifications for the Project.) 

are set forth in the Owner’s Program Documents, Exhibit C  

§ 1.1.3 The Project’s physical characteristics: 
(Identify or describe, if appropriate, size, location, dimensions, or other pertinent information, such as geotechnical 
reports; site, boundary and topographic surveys; traffic and utility studies; availability of public and private utilities 
and services; legal description of the site; etc.) 

are set forth in the Owner’s Program Documents, Exhibit C  

§ 1.1.4 The Owner’s anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any: 
(Identify the Owner’s Sustainable Objective for the Project such as Sustainability Certification, benefit to the 
environment, enhancement to the health and well-being of building occupants, or improvement of energy efficiency. If 
the Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, incorporate AIA Document A141™–2014, Exhibit C, Sustainable 
Projects, into this Agreement to define the terms, conditions and Work related to the Owner’s Sustainable Objective.) 

Not applicable 

§ 1.1.5 Incentive programs the Owner intends to pursue for the Project, including those related to the Sustainable 
Objective, and any deadlines for receiving the incentives that are dependent on, or related to, the Design-Builder’s 
services, are as follows: 
(Identify incentive programs the Owner intends to pursue for the Project and deadlines for submitting or applying for 
the incentive programs.)

 Not applicable 

§ 1.1.6 The Owner’s budget for the Work to be provided by the Design-Builder is set forth below: 
(Provide total for Owner’s budget, and if known, a line item breakdown of costs.) 

The Owner’s budget for design and construction costs, including, but not limited to design fees, construction, 
supervisions, labor, materials, bonds and insurance is $1,880,000. This budget does not include permit costs, fees and 
utility fees.  

§ 1.1.7 The Owner’s design and construction milestone dates: 

.1 Design phase milestone dates: 

Notice of Award, April 8, 2022 
Design Development Completed, May 5, 2022 
Construction Documents Completed, June 2, 2022 
County Permits Issued, August 19, 2022 
Bidding Completed, September 8, 2022   

.2 Submission of Design-Builder Proposal: 

GMP Proposal, September 15, 2022  

.3 Phased completion dates: 

.4 Substantial Completion date: 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

3 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


§ 1.1.8 The Owner requires the Design-Builder to retain the following Architect, Consultants and Contractors at the 
Design-Builder’s cost: 
(List name, legal status, address and other information.) 

.1 Architect 

PBK-WLC 
8163 Rochester Avenue, Suite 100 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730  

.2 Consultants 

.3 Contractors 

Substantial Completion, January 27, 2023  

.5 Other milestone dates: 

Note that Bidding Completed, GMP Proposal and Substantial Completion dates are based on the 
"County Permits Issued" milestone date.  Changes to that date may result in the need to revise the 
balance of the dates.  

       
          

            

 

    

  

  

  
    

  
  

  

 

 

     

 

  

§ 1.1.9 Additional Owner’s Criteria upon which the Agreement is based: 
(Identify special characteristics or needs of the Project not identified elsewhere, such as historic preservation 
requirements.) 

The Design-Builder is required to comply with California Public Contract Code (Section 22160, et. Seq.) and Labor 

includes adhering to skilled and trained workforce provisions of California state law and California State regulations 
and adhering to prevailing wage payment and reporting requirements. 

The Design-Builder is required to post payment and performance bonds in the same amount. 

The Design-Builder is required to comply with Public Contract Code bidding and subcontracting requirements. 

Five percent retention is required and the Design-Builder may not require the retention of more than five percent in 
contracts with its subcontractors. 

Code (Section 1770, et. Seq.), including all consultants, subconsultants and subcontractors. The required compliance 

§ 

the Work and the Contract ("Applicable Laws"). 

1.1.10 The Design-Builder shall confirm that the information included in the Owner’s Criteria complies with 
applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities applicable to 

§ 1.1.10.1 If the Owner’s Criteria conflicts with Applicable Laws the Design-Builder shall notify the Owner of the 
conflict. 

§ 1.1.11 If there is a change in the Owner’s Criteria, the Owner and the Design-Builder shall execute a Modification in 
accordance with Article 6. 

§ 1.1.12 If the Owner and Design-Builder intend to transmit Instruments of Service or any other information or 
documentation in digital form, they shall endeavor to establish necessary protocols governing such transmissions. 
Unless otherwise agreed, the parties will use AIA Document E203™–2013 to establish the protocols for the 
development, use, transmission, and exchange of digital data and building information modeling. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

4 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

  

  
  

  

  

  
  

       

 

  

  

  

 

   
 

§ 1.2 Project Team 
§ 1.2.1 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 7.1.1: 
(List name, address and other information.) 

Robin and Joe Biglione 
Biglione Construction Management, Inc. 
5894 Ranch View Road 

N/A 

Oceanside, CA 92057 

§ 1.2.2 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner’s representative, who are required to review the 
Design-Builder’s Submittals are as follows: 
(List name, address and other information.) 

§ 1.2.3 The Owner will retain the following consultants and separate contractors: 
(List discipline, scope of work, and, if known, identify by name and address.) 

Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 

N/A 

§ 1.2.4 The Design-Builder identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 3.1.2: 
(List name, address and other information.) 

Nathan Complin 
Erickson-Hall Construction Co.  
500 Corporate Drive 
Escondido, CA 92029 

§ 1.2.5 Neither the Owner’s nor the Design-Builder’s representative shall be changed without ten days’ written notice 
to the other party. 

§ 1.3 Binding Dispute Resolution 
For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation pursuant to Section 14.3, the method of binding dispute 
resolution shall be the following: 
(Check the appropriate box. If the Owner and Design-Builder do not select a method of binding dispute resolution 
below, or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution other than litigation, Claims will be 
resolved by litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction.) 

[ X ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 14.4 

[ ] 

[ ] Other: (Specify) 

§ 1.4 Definitions 
§ 1.4.1 Design-Build Documents. The Design-Build Documents consist of this Agreement between Owner and 
Design-Builder and its attached Exhibits (hereinafter, the "Agreement"); other documents listed in this Agreement; 
and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement. A Modification is (1) a written amendment to the 
Contract signed by both parties, including the Design-Build Amendment, (2) a Change Order, or (3) a Change 
Directive. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

5 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

   
      

   

  
   

 

     

   

     
      

     

     

   
  

 

 

 

Design-Builder’s obligations under the Design-Build Documents, whether completed or partially completed, and 
includes all labor, materials, equipment and services provided or to be provided by the Design-Builder. The Work may 
constitute the whole or a part of the Project. 

§ 1.4.4 The Project. The Project is the total design and construction of which the Work performed under the 
Design-Build Documents may be the whole or a part, and may include design and construction by the Owner and by 
separate contractors. 

§ 1.4.5 Instruments of Service. Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or 
later developed, of the tangible and intangible creative work performed by the Design-Builder, Contractor(s), 
Architect, and Consultant(s) under their respective agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without 
limitation, studies, surveys, models, sketches, drawings, specifications, digital models and other similar materials. 

§ 1.4.6 Submittal. A Submittal is any submission to the Owner for review and approval demonstrating how the 
Design-Builder proposes to conform to the Design-Build Documents for those portions of the Work for which the 
Design-Build Documents require Submittals. Submittals include, but are not limited to, shop drawings, product data, 
and samples. Submittals are not Design-Build Documents unless incorporated into a Modification. 

§ 1.4.7 Owner. The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the 
Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. The term "Owner" means the Owner or the Owner’s authorized 
representative. 

§ 1.4.8 Design-Builder. The Design-Builder is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to 
throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. The term "Design-Builder" means the 
Design-Builder or the Design-Builder’s authorized representative. 

§ 1.4.9 Consultant. A Consultant is a person or entity providing professional services for the Design-Builder for all or 
a portion of the Work, and is referred to throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. To the 
extent required by the relevant jurisdiction, the Consultant shall be lawfully licensed to provide the required 
professional services. 

§ 1.4.2 The Contract. The Design-Build Documents form the Contract. The Contract represents the entire and 
integrated agreement between the parties and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either 
written or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Design-Build Documents shall 
not be construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind between any persons or entities other than the Owner 
and the Design-Builder. 

§ 1.4.3 The Work. The term "Work" means the design, construction and related services required to fulfill the 

§ 1.4.10 Architect. The Architect is a person or entity providing design services for the Design-Builder for all or a 
portion of the Work, and is lawfully licensed to practice architecture in the applicable jurisdiction. The Architect is 
referred to throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. 

§ 1.4.11 Contractor. A Contractor is a person or entity performing all or a portion of the construction, required in 
connection with the Work, for the Design-Builder. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the 
jurisdiction where the Project is located. The Contractor is referred to throughout the Design-Build Documents as if 
singular in number and means a Contractor or an authorized representative of the Contractor. 

§ 1.4.12 Confidential Information. Confidential Information is information containing confidential or business 
proprietary information that is clearly marked as "confidential." 

§ 1.4.13 Contract Time. Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized 
adjustments, as set forth in the Design-Build Amendment for Substantial Completion of the Work. 

§ 1.4.14 Day. The term "day" as used in the Design-Build Documents shall mean calendar day, including weekdays, 
weekends, and holidays, unless otherwise specifically defined. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

6 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

     
 

    

  

   
    

     

  
  

     

  

 
     

     

   

   

   

 

(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation, including compensation for any Sustainability Services, or indicate the 
exhibit in which the information is provided. If there will be a limit on the total amount of compensation for Work 
performed prior to the execution of the Design-Build Amendment, state the amount of the limit.) 

The maximum compensation for Work performed prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment is $502,980.    
Exhibit D includes a breakdown of the Compensation for Work Completed Prior to Design-Build Amendment.  The 
Design-Builder shall submit a monthly invoice detailing the Work progress against the tasks set forth in Exhibit D.  

§ 2.1.2 The hourly billing rates for services of the Design-Builder and the Design-Builder’s Architect, Consultants and 
Contractors, if any, are set forth below. 
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.) 

N/A 

Individual or Position Rate 

§ 2.1.3 Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses Prior To Execution of Design-Build Amendment 
§ 2.1.3.1 All compensation for Work performed prior to execution of Design-Build Amendment is specified in Exhibit 
D. Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation set forth in Section 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 and include expenses, 
directly related to the Project, incurred by the Design-Builder, and Design-Builder’s Architect, Consultant, and 
Contractors, as follows: 
(Paragraphs deleted) 

1 Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project; 
(Paragraph deleted) 

2 Printing, reproductions, and plots; 
(Paragraphs deleted) 

3 Other Project related expenditures, if authorized in advance by the Owner. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§2.1.3.2 For Reimbursable Expenses, the compensation shall be the expenses the Design Builder and the Design 
Builder’s Architect, Consultants and Contractors incurred with no mark up. 
§ 2.1.4 Payments to the Design-Builder Prior To Execution of Design-Build Amendment 
§ 2.1.4.1 Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Design-Builder’s invoice. 
(Paragraphs deleted) 

§ 2.1.4.2 Records of Reimbursable Expenses and services performed on the basis of hourly rates shall be available to 
the Owner at mutually convenient times for a period of two years following execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment or termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs first. 

§ 1.4.15 Contract Sum. The Contract Sum is the amount to be paid to the Design-Builder for performance of the Work 
after execution of the Design-Build Amendment, as identified in Article A.1 of the Design-Build Amendment. 

ARTICLE 2  COMPENSATION AND PROGRESS PAYMENTS 
§ 2.1 Compensation for Work Performed Prior To Execution of Design-Build Amendment 
§ 2.1.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for Work performed prior to Execution of the Design-Build Amendment 
shall be made monthly. For the Design-Builder’s performance of Work prior to the execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment, the Owner shall compensate the Design-Builder as follows: 

§ 2.2 Contract Sum and Payment for Work Performed After Execution of Design-Build Amendment 
For the Design-Builder’s performance of the Work after execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Owner shall 
pay to the Design-Builder the Contract Sum in current funds as agreed in the Design-Build Amendment. 

ARTICLE 3  GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE WORK OF THE DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT 
§ 3.1 General 
§ 3.1.1 The Design-Builder shall comply with any applicable licensing requirements in the State of California. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

7 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

     
 

    

    

     
   

  
 

    

 

     
  

     
     

  

 
 

  

 

  

§ 3.1.2 The Design-Builder shall designate in writing a representative who is authorized to act on the Design-Builder’s 
behalf with respect to the Project. 

§ 3.1.3.1 The Design-Builder shall perform the Work in compliance with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities. If the Design-Builder performs Work contrary to 
applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, the 
Design-Builder shall assume responsibility for such Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction. 

§ 3.1.3.2 Neither the Design-Builder nor any Contractor, Consultant, or Architect shall be obligated to perform any act 
which they believe will violate any applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders 
of public authorities. If the Design-Builder determines that implementation of any instruction received from the 
Owner, including those in the Owner’s Criteria, would cause a violation of any applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Design-Builder shall notify the Owner in 
writing. Upon verification by the Owner that a change to the Owner’s Criteria is required to remedy the violation, the 
Owner and the Design-Builder shall execute a Modification in accordance with Article 6. 

§ 3.1.4 The Design-Builder shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Design-Builder’s 
employees, Architect, Consultants, Contractors, and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities 
performing portions of the Work. 

§ 3.1.5 General Consultation. No less than once a month, Design-Builder shall schedule and conduct periodic meetings 
with the Owner to review matters such as procedures, progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work. The 
Design-Builder shall prepare and distribute minutes for the meetings to the attendees. 

§ 3.1.6 When applicable law requires that services be performed by licensed professionals, the Design-Builder shall 
provide those services through qualified, licensed professionals. The Owner understands and agrees that the services 
of the Design-Builder’s Architect and the Design-Builder’s other Consultants are performed in the sole interest of, and 
for the exclusive benefit of, the Design-Builder. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, each agreement with 
Design-Builder’s Architect, Consultants, and Contractors shall provide that Owner is and shall be a third-party 
beneficiary of such contract or subcontract, and that the Owner shall have the right, but not the obligation, to assert 
claims directly against the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors for breach of contract or warranties, negligence, 
and other claims arising out of, or related to, the Work or the Project. 

§ 3.1.7 The Design-Builder, with the assistance of the Owner, shall prepare and file documents required to obtain 
necessary approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 

§ 3.1.8 Progress Reports 
§ 3.1.8.1 The Design-Builder shall keep the Owner informed of the progress and quality of the Work. On a monthly 
basis, or otherwise as agreed to by the Owner and Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall submit written progress 
reports to the Owner, showing estimated percentages of completion and other information identified below: 

.1 Work completed for the period; 

.2 Project schedule status; 

§ 3.1.3 The Design-Builder shall perform the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. The 
Design-Builder shall not be relieved of the obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Design-Build 
Documents by the activities, tests, inspections or approvals of the Owner. All Work shall be performed in a 
professional manner and Design-Builder shall employ methods that are generally accepted and used within the 
industry, and in accordance with industry standards. 

.3 Submittal schedule and status report, including a summary of outstanding Submittals; 

.4 Responses to requests for information to be provided by the Owner; 

.5 Approved Change Orders and Change Directives; 

.6 Pending Change Order and Change Directive status reports; 

.7 Tests and inspection reports; 

.8 Status report of Work rejected by the Owner; 

.9 Status of Claims previously submitted in accordance with Article 14; 

.10 Cumulative total of the Cost of the Work to date including the Design-Builder’s compensation and 
Reimbursable Expenses, if any; 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

8 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

 

     
      

    
 

 

     

 

     
      

    
     

  
 

 

   
  

 
  

     
      

    
 

    

     

.11 Current Project cash-flow and forecast reports; and 

.12 Additional information as agreed to by the Owner and Design-Builder. 

§ 3.1.8.2 In addition, where the Contract Sum is the Cost of the Work with or without a Guaranteed Maximum Price, 
the Design-Builder shall include the following additional information in its progress reports: 

.1 Design-Builder’s work force report; 

.2 Equipment utilization report; and 

.3 Cost summary, comparing actual costs to updated cost estimates. 

§ 3.1.9 Design-Builder’s Schedules 
§ 3.1.9.1 The Design-Builder, promptly after execution of this Agreement, shall prepare and submit for the Owner’s 
information a schedule for the Work. The schedule, including the time required for design and construction, shall not 
exceed time limits current under the Design-Build Documents, shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by 
the conditions of the Work and Project, shall be related to the entire Project to the extent required by the Design-Build 
Documents, shall provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work, and shall include allowances for 
periods of time required for the Owner’s review and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction 
over the Project. 

§ 3.1.9.2 The Design-Builder shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted 
to the Owner. 

§ 3.1.10 Certifications. Upon the Owner’s written request, the Design-Builder shall obtain from the Architect, 
Consultants, and Contractors, and furnish to the Owner, certifications with respect to the documents and services 
provided by the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors (a) that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, 
the documents or services to which the certifications relate (i) are consistent with the Design-Build Documents, except 
to the extent specifically identified in the certificate, and (ii) comply with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, 
rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities governing the design of the Project; and (b) that the Owner 
and its consultants shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy of the representations and statements contained in the 
certifications. The Design-Builder’s Architect, Consultants, and Contractors shall not be required to execute 
certificates or consents that would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of their services. 

§ 3.1.11 Design-Builder’s Submittals 
§ 3.1.11.1 Prior to submission of any Submittals, the Design-Builder shall prepare a Submittal schedule, and shall 
submit the schedule for the Owner’s approval. The Owner’s approval shall not unreasonably be delayed or withheld. 
The Submittal schedule shall (1) be coordinated with the Design-Builder’s schedule provided in Section 3.1.9.1, 
(2) allow the Owner reasonable time to review Submittals, and (3) be periodically updated to reflect the progress of 
the Work. If the Design-Builder fails to submit a Submittal schedule, the Design-Builder shall not be entitled to any 
increase in Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time required for review of Submittals. 

§ 3.1.11.2 By providing Submittals the Design-Builder represents to the Owner that it has (1) reviewed and approved 
them, (2) determined and verified materials, field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will 
do so and (3) checked and coordinated the information contained within such Submittals with the requirements of the 
Work and of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 3.1.11.3 The Design-Builder shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Design-Build Documents require 
Submittals until the Owner has approved the respective Submittal. 

§ 3.1.11.4 The Work shall be in accordance with approved Submittals except that the Design-Builder shall not be 
relieved of its responsibility to perform the Work consistent with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 
The Work may deviate from the Design-Build Documents only if the Design-Builder has notified the Owner in writing 
of a deviation from the Design-Build Documents at the time of the Submittal and a Modification is executed 
authorizing the identified deviation. The Design-Builder shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions 
in Submittals by the Owner’s approval of the Submittals. 

§ 3.1.11.5 All professional design services or certifications to be provided by the Design-Builder, including all 
drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, shop drawings and other Submittals, shall contain the signature 
and seal of the licensed design professional preparing them. Submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

9 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


licensed design professionals, if prepared by others, shall bear the licensed design professional’s written approval. The 
Owner and its consultants shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, 
certifications or approvals performed by such design professionals. 

§ 3.1.12 Warranty. The Design-Builder warrants to the Owner that materials and equipment furnished under the 
Contract will be of good quality and new unless the Design-Build Documents require or permit otherwise. The Owner 
has requested that the Design-Builder include modular trailers purchased by Owner, which are in used condition. 
Owner agrees that Design-Builder is not responsible for warranties related to the modular trailers. 

The Design-Builder further warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Design-Build Documents 
and will be free from defects and that all materials selected by Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, and Contractors 
will be suitable for the purposes indicated in the Design-Build Documents. Work, materials, or equipment not 
conforming to these requirements may be considered defective. If required by Owner, the Design-Builder shall furnish 
satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment sourced for the Project. Design-Builder 
shall promptly remove from the premises and replace all defective materials and equipment as determined by the 
Owner, whether incorporated in the Work or not. The allocation of the cost and expense for the removal or 
replacement of defective materials and equipment shall be determined in good faith by the Owner and Design-Builder 
prior to repairing all Work, including the cost of repairing all Work destroyed or damaged by such removal or 
replacement. 

The Design-Builder’s warranty excludes remedy for damage or defect caused by: (1) abuse of or alterations to the 
Work not executed by the Design-Builder or a party under its supervision of control; (2) improper or insufficient 
maintenance and improper operation by Owner; or, (3) normal wear and tear and normal usage. 

§ 3.1.13 Royalties, Patents and Copyrights 
§ 3.1.13.1 The Design-Builder shall pay all royalties and license fees. 

§ 3.1.13.2 The Design-Builder shall defend suits or claims for infringement of copyrights and patent rights and shall 
hold the Owner and its separate contractors and consultants harmless from loss on account thereof, but shall not be 

       
          

            

 

  

   
       

 

   
  

      
 

     
    

   

    

     
    

 

   
    

       
 

 

responsible for such defense or loss when a particular design, process or product of a particular manufacturer or 
manufacturers is required by the Owner, or where the copyright violations are required in the Owner’s Criteria. 
However, if the Design-Builder has reason to believe that the design, process or product required in the Owner’s 
Criteria is an infringement of a copyright or a patent, the Design-Builder shall be responsible for such loss unless such 
information is promptly furnished to the Owner. If the Owner receives notice from a patent or copyright owner of an 
alleged violation of a patent or copyright, attributable to the Design-Builder, the Owner shall give prompt written 
notice to the Design-Builder. 

§ 3.1.14 Indemnification 
§ 3.1.14.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Design-Builder shall indemnify, hold harmless, defend and 
reimburse the Owner and the members, agents, employees, officers, directors, and successors of any of them, from, for 
and against any and all suits, actions, awards, penalties, liabilities, claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but 
not limited to attorneys’ fees and expert witness’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, 
whether directly incurred or resulting from third-party claims, but only to the extent caused by: (1) the negligent acts 
or omissions of the Design-Builder, Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or (2) the failure of Design-Builder, 
Architect, Consultant, Contractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they 
may be liable, to perform in accordance with the Contract. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or 
reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this 
Section 3.1.14. 

§ 3.1.14.2 The indemnification obligation under this Section 3.1.14 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or 
type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Design-Builder, Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other 
employee benefit acts. 

§ 3.1.15 Contingent Assignment of Agreements 
§ 3.1.15.1 Each agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Design-Builder to the Owner, provided that 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

10 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

  
   

 

 

    
  

        
 

     
    

       
    

    
 

  
 

     
 

  

      
     

.1 assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause, pursuant to 
Sections 13.1.4 or 13.2.2, and only for those agreements that the Owner accepts by written notification 
to the Design-Builder and the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors whose agreements are accepted 
for assignment; and 

.2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the 
Contract. 

When the Owner accepts the assignment of an agreement, the Owner assumes the Design-Builder’s rights and 

Design-Builder from liability for damages attributable to breaches of the agreement. 

assigned agreement shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension. 

obligations under the agreement, except that the assumption of obligations under the agreement does not release 

§ 3.1.15.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the compensation under the 

allocations of program functions, detailing each function and their square foot areas; 

§ 3.1.15.3 Upon such assignment to the Owner under this Section 3.1.15, the Owner may further assign the agreement 
to a successor design-builder or other entity. If the Owner assigns the agreement to a successor design-builder or other 
entity, the Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor design-builder’s or other 
entity’s obligations under the agreement. 

§ 3.1.16 Design-Builder’s Insurance and Bonds. The Design-Builder shall purchase and maintain insurance and 
provide bonds as set forth in Exhibit B. 

ARTICLE 4  WORK PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 
§ 4.1 General 
§ 4.1.1 Any information submitted by the Design-Builder, and any interim decisions made by the Owner, shall be for 
the purpose of facilitating the design process and shall not modify the Owner’s Criteria unless the Owner and 
Design-Builder execute a Modification. 

§ 4.1.2 The Design-Builder shall advise the Owner on proposed site use and improvements, selection of materials, and 
building systems and equipment. The Design-Builder shall also provide the Owner with recommendations, consistent 
with the Owner’s Criteria, on constructability; availability of materials and labor; time requirements for procurement, 
installation and construction; and factors related to construction cost including, but not limited to, costs of alternative 
designs or materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and possible cost reductions. 

§ 4.2 Evaluation of the Owner’s Criteria 
§ 4.2.1 The Design-Builder shall schedule and conduct meetings with the Owner and any other necessary individuals 
or entities to discuss and review the Owner’s Criteria as set forth in Section 1.1. The Design-Builder shall thereafter 
again meet with the Owner to discuss a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s Criteria. The preliminary evaluation 
shall address possible alternative approaches to design and construction of the Project and include the 
Design-Builder’s recommendations, if any, with regard to accelerated or fast-track scheduling, procurement, or 
phased construction. The preliminary evaluation shall consider cost information, constructability, and procurement 
and construction scheduling issues. 

§ 4.2.2 After the Design-Builder meets with the Owner and presents the preliminary evaluation, the Design-Builder 
shall provide a written report to the Owner, summarizing the Design-Builder’s evaluation of the Owner’s Criteria. The 
report shall also include 

.1 

.2 a preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work, and, if necessary, recommendations to adjust the 
Owner’s Criteria to conform to the Owner’s budget; 

.3 a preliminary schedule, which shall include proposed design milestones; dates for receiving additional 
information from, or for work to be completed by, the Owner; anticipated date for the Design-Builder’s 
Proposal; and dates of periodic design review sessions with the Owner; and 

.4 the following: 
(List additional information, if any, to be included in the Design-Builder’s written report.) 

N/A 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

11 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

   
 

   

 

 

       

  
  

 

 
  

    

    
   

   

 

   
     

 
 

   

 
  

 
 

§ 4.2.3 The Owner shall review the Design-Builder’s written report and, if acceptable, provide the Design-Builder 
with written consent to proceed to the development of the Preliminary Design as described in Section 4.3. The consent 
to proceed shall not be understood to modify the Owner’s Criteria unless the Owner and Design-Builder execute a 
Modification. 

§ 4.3 Preliminary Design 
§ 4.3.1 Upon the Owner’s issuance of a written consent to proceed under Section 4.2.3, the Design-Builder shall 
prepare and submit a Preliminary Design to the Owner. The Preliminary Design shall include a report identifying any 
deviations from the Owner’s Criteria, and shall include the following: 

.1 Confirmation of the allocations of program functions; 

.2 Site plan; 

.3 Building plans, sections and elevations; 

.4 Structural system; 

.5 Selections of major building systems, including but not limited to mechanical, electrical and plumbing 
systems; and 

.6 Outline specifications or sufficient drawing notes describing construction materials. 

The Preliminary Design may include some combination of physical study models, perspective sketches, or digital 
modeling. 

§ 4.3.2 The Owner shall review the Preliminary Design and, if acceptable, provide the Design-Builder with written 
consent to proceed to development of the Construction Drawings. The Preliminary Design shall not modify the 
Owner’s Criteria unless the Owner and Design-Builder execute a Modification. 

§ 4.4 Construction Documents 
§ 4.4.1 Upon 
(Paragraphs deleted) 
approval of the Preliminary Design, the Design-Builder shall prepare Construction Documents. The Construction 
Documents shall establish the quality levels of materials and systems required. The Construction Documents shall be 
consistent with the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 4.4.2 The Design-Builder shall provide the Construction Documents to the Owner for the Owner’s information. If 
the Owner discovers any deviations between the Construction Documents and the Design-Build Documents, the 
Owner shall promptly notify the Design-Builder of such deviations in writing. The Construction Documents shall not 
modify the Design-Build Documents unless the Owner and Design-Builder execute a Modification. The failure of the 
Owner to discover any such deviations shall not relieve the Design-Builder of the obligation to perform the Work in 
accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 

4.5 Design-Builder’s Proposal 
(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 4.5.1 Upon the Owner’s issuance of a written consent to proceed, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit the 
Design-Builder’s Proposal to the Owner. The Owner’s written consent to proceed with the Design-Builder’s Proposal 
may occur prior to the completion of the Construction Documents, provided the timing is mutually agreed upon by the 
Owner and the Design-Builder. The Design-Builder’s Proposal shall include the following: 

.1 A list of the Preliminary Design documents and other information, including the Design-Builder’s 
clarifications, assumptions and deviations from the Owner’s Criteria, upon which the Design-Builder’s 
Proposal is based; 

.2 The proposed Contract Sum, including the compensation method and, if based upon the Cost of the 
Work plus a fee, a written statement of estimated cost organized by trade categories, allowances, 
contingencies, Design-Builder’s Fee, and other items that comprise the Contract Sum; 

.3 The proposed date the Design-Builder shall achieve Substantial Completion; 

.4 An enumeration of any qualifications and exclusions, if applicable; 

.5 A list of the Design-Builder’s key personnel, Contractors and suppliers; and 

.6 The date on which the Design-Builder’s Proposal expires. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

12 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

     
    

 

  

 

 
  

  
 

    

    

      

 

  
 

  

   
 

§ 4.5.2 Submission of the Design-Builder’s Proposal shall constitute a representation by the Design-Builder that it has 
visited the site and become familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be completed. 

§ 4.5.3 If the Owner and Design-Builder agree on a proposal, the Owner and Design-Builder shall execute the 
Design-Build Amendment setting forth the terms of their agreement. 

ARTICLE 5  WORK FOLLOWING EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT 
(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.1 Construction 
§ 5.1.1 Commencement. Except as permitted in Section 5.1.2, construction shall not commence prior to execution of 
the Design-Build Amendment and Owner’s approval of the Construction Documents. 

§ 5.1.2 If the Owner and Design-Builder agree in writing, construction may proceed prior to the execution of the 
Design-Build Amendment. However, such authorization shall not waive the Owner’s right to reject the 
Design-Builder’s Proposal or otherwise limit Owner’s rights and remedies under this Contract. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.1.3 The Design-Builder shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Design-Builder’s best skill and attention. 
The Design-Builder shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract, unless the Design-Build 
Documents give other specific instructions concerning these matters. 

§ 5.1.4 The Design-Builder shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine 
that such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work. Design-Builder shall notify Owner in writing, 
before commencement of any portion of the Work, of any defect, deficiency, or incompatibility of any portion of the 
Project performed by others, which defect, deficiency, or incompatibility would in any manner affect the performance 
or quality of the Work. The failure to notify Owner shall preclude Design-Builder from any claim, which otherwise 
may have been available under this Contract for additional compensation, damages, or extension of time. 

§ 5.2 Labor and Materials 
§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall provide and pay for labor, 
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other 
facilities and services, necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent, 
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work. 

§ 5.2.2 When a material or system is specified in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder may make 
substitutions only in accordance with Article 6. 

§ 5.2.3 The Design-Builder shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Design-Builder’s employees and 
other persons carrying out the Work. The Design-Builder shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not 
properly skilled in tasks assigned to them. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.3 Taxes 
The Design-Builder shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes, for the Work provided by the Design-Builder, 
that are legally enacted when the Design-Build Amendment is executed, whether or not yet effective or merely 
scheduled to go into effect. 

§ 5.4 Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws 
§ 5.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall secure and the Owner 
shall pay for the building permit as well as any other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies, 
necessary for proper execution of the Work and Substantial Completion of the Project. 

§ 5.4.2 The Design-Builder shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, applicable to performance of the Work. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

13 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

      

        
    

        
      

  

   
       

  

    
 

 
   

    

 

   
     

  

 
 

equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. If the Owner determines that the conditions at the 
site are not materially different from those indicated in the Design-Build Documents and that no change in the terms of 
the Contract is justified, the Owner shall promptly notify the Design-Builder in writing, stating the reasons. If the 
Design-Builder disputes the Owner’s determination or recommendation, the Design-Builder may proceed as provided 
in Article 14. 

§ 5.4.4 If, in the course of the Work, the Design-Builder encounters human remains, or recognizes the existence of 
burial markers, archaeological sites, or wetlands, not indicated in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder 
shall immediately suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner. Upon receipt of such 
notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume 
the operations. The Design-Builder shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner 
but shall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the 
Contract Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in 
Article 14. 

§ 5.5 Allowances 
§ 5.5.1 The Design-Builder shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Design-Build Documents. 
Items covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts, and by such persons or entities as the Owner may 
direct, but the Design-Builder shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Design-Builder has 
reasonable objection. 

and all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts; 
the Design-Builder’s costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, 
profit, and other expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts, shall be included in the Contract 

§ 5.5.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, 
.1 

.2 

Sum but not in the allowances; and 
.3 

Section 5.6.2.2. 

requiring Owner selection. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.6 Key Personnel, Contractors and Suppliers 

the Design-Builder has made reasonable and timely objection. 

§ 5.6.2 
(Paragraphs deleted) 

reasonable objection. 

§ 5.4.3 Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If the Design-Builder encounters conditions at the site that are 
(1) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from those indicated in the 
Design-Build Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature that differ materially from those 
ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in 
the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall promptly provide notice to the Owner before conditions are 
disturbed and in no event later than 21 days after first observance of the conditions. The Owner shall promptly 
investigate such conditions and, if the Owner determines that they differ materially and cause an increase or decrease 
in the Design-Builder’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, shall recommend an 

allowances shall cover the cost to the Design-Builder of materials and equipment delivered at the site 

whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly 
by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual costs 
and the allowances under Section 5.6.2.1 and (2) changes in Design-Builder’s costs under 

§ 5.5.3 The Owner shall make selections of materials and equipment with reasonable promptness for allowances 

§ 56..1 The Design-Builder shall not employ personnel, or contract with Contractors or suppliers to whom the Owner 
has made reasonable and timely objection. The Design-Builder shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom 

If the Design-Builder changes any of the personnel, Contractors or suppliers identified in the Design-Build 
Amendment, the Design-Builder shall notify the Owner and provide the name and qualifications of the new personnel, 
Contractor or supplier. The Owner may reply within 14 days to the Design-Builder in writing, stating (1) whether the 
Owner has reasonable objection to the proposed personnel, Contractor or supplier or (2) that the Owner requires 
additional time to review. Failure of the Owner to reply within the 14-day period shall constitute notice of no 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

14 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

     

  

   

  
       

    
 

     
      

   
 

   

  
 

    
   

  
 

      

 

     

§ 5.6.3 Except for those persons or entities already identified or required in the Design-Build Amendment, the 
Design-Builder, as soon as practicable after execution of the Design-Build Amendment, shall furnish in writing to the 
Owner the names of persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a 
special design) proposed for each principal portion of the Work. The Owner may reply within 14 days to the 
Design-Builder in writing stating (1) whether the Owner has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or 
entity or (2) that the Owner requires additional time for review. Failure of the Owner to reply within the 14-day period 
shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.6.3.1 If the Owner has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Design-Builder, the 
Design-Builder shall propose another to whom the Owner has no reasonable objection. If the rejected person or entity 
was reasonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be increased or decreased 
by the difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued before 
commencement of the substitute person or entity’s Work. However, no increase in the Contract Sum or Contract Time 
shall be allowed for such change unless the Design-Builder has acted promptly and responsively in submitting names 
as required. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.7 Documents and Submittals at the Site 
The Design-Builder shall maintain at the site for the Owner one copy of the Design-Build Documents and a current set 
of the Construction Documents, in good order and marked currently to indicate field changes and selections made 
during construction, and one copy of approved Submittals. The Design-Builder shall deliver these items to the Owner 
in accordance with Section 9.10.2 as a record of the Work as constructed. 

§ 5.8 Use of Site 
The Design-Builder shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations, lawful orders of public authorities, and the Design-Build Documents, and shall not 
unreasonably encumber the site with materials or equipment. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.9 Cutting and Patching
The Design-Builder shall not cut, patch or otherwise alter fully or partially completed construction by the Owner or a 
separate contractor except with written consent of the Owner and of such separate contractor; such consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. The Design-Builder shall not unreasonably withhold from the Owner or a separate contractor 
the Design-Builder’s consent to cutting or otherwise altering the Work. 

§ 5.10 Cleaning Up
(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.10.1 The Design-Builder shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials 
or rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Design-Builder shall remove 
waste materials, rubbish, the Design-Builder’s tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials from 
and about the Project. 

§ 5.10.2 If the Design-Builder fails to clean up as provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Owner may do so and 
Owner shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Design-Builder. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.11 Access to Work 
The Design-Builder shall provide the Owner and its separate contractors and consultants access to the Work in 
preparation and progress wherever located. The Design-Builder shall notify the Owner regarding Project safety 
criteria and programs, which the Owner, and its contractors and consultants, shall comply with while at the site. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

15 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

  
 

 

       

      
   

    

     

  
   

  
     

 
       

  

 

 
 

    

§ 5.12 Construction by Owner or by Separate Contractors 
§ 5.12.1 Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts 
§ 5.12.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner’s 
own forces; and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project, or other construction or 
operations on the site, under terms and conditions identical or substantially similar to this Contract, including those 
terms and conditions related to insurance and waiver of subrogation. The Owner shall notify the Design Builder 
promptly after execution of any separate contract. If the Design-Builder claims that delay or additional cost is involved 
because of such action by the Owner, the Design-Builder shall make a Claim as provided in Article 14. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.12.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations 
on the site, the term "Design-Builder" in the Design-Build Documents in each case shall mean the individual or entity 
that executes each separate agreement with the Owner. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.12.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination of the activities of the Owner’s own forces, and of each separate 
contractor, with the Work of the Design-Builder, who shall cooperate with them. The Design-Builder shall participate 
with other separate contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules. The Design-Builder shall 
make any revisions to the construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The 
construction schedules shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the Design-Builder, separate contractors and 
the Owner until subsequently revised. 

§ 5.12.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, when the Owner performs construction or 
operations related to the Project with the Owner’s own forces or separate contractors, the Owner shall be deemed to be 
subject to the same obligations, and to have the same rights, that apply to the Design-Builder under the Contract. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.13 Mutual Responsibility
(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.13.1 The Design-Builder shall afford the Owner and separate contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction 
and storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the 
Design-Builder’s construction and operations with theirs as required by the Design-Build Documents. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.13.2 If part of the Design-Builder’s Work depends upon construction or operations by the Owner or a separate 
contractor, the Design-Builder shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, prepare a written report to the 
Owner, identifying apparent discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or separate 
contractor that would render it unsuitable for proper execution and results of the Design-Builder’s Work. Failure of the 
Design-Builder to report shall constitute an acknowledgment that the Owner’s or separate contractor’s completed or 
partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the Design-Builder’s Work, except as to defects not then 
reasonably discoverable. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.13.3 The Design-Builder shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a separate 
contractor because of the Design-Builder’s delays, improperly timed activities or defective construction. The Owner 
shall be responsible to the Design-Builder for costs the Design-Builder incurs because of a separate contractor’s 
delays, improperly timed activities, damage to the Work or defective construction. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 5.13.4 The Design-Builder shall promptly remedy damage the Design-Builder wrongfully causes to completed or 
partially completed construction or to property of the Owner or separate contractors as provided in Section 10.2.5. 

(Paragraphs deleted) 
§ 5.13.5 The Owner and each separate contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching the 
Work as the Design-Builder has with respect to the construction of the Owner or separate contractors in Section 5.10. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

16 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

  
 

    

    

    

 

    
 

    
    

    
      

   

  
    

  

  
      

    

     

 

      

§ 5.14 Owner’s Right to Clean Up
If a dispute arises among the Design-Builder, separate contractors and the Owner as to the responsibility under their 
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the 
Owner may clean up and will allocate the cost among those responsible. 

Contract, by Change Order or Change Directive, subject to the limitations stated in this Article 6 and elsewhere in the 
Design-Build Documents. 

§ 6.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement between the Owner and Design-Builder. The Owner may issue 
a Change Directive without agreement by the Design-Builder. 

§ 6.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Design-Build Documents, and the 
Design-Builder shall proceed promptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order or Change Directive. 

§ 6.2 Change Orders 
A Change Order is a written instrument signed by the Owner and Design-Builder stating their agreement upon all of 
the following: 

.1 The change in the Work; 

.2 The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder’s compensation; and 

.3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time. 

§ 6.3 Change Directives 
§ 6.3.1 A Change Directive is a written order signed by the Owner directing a change in the Work prior to agreement 
on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in 
the Design-Builder’s compensation, or Contract Time. The Owner may by Change Directive, without invalidating the 
Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other 
revisions, the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the 
Design-Builder’s compensation, and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly. 

§ 6.3.2 A Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a Change Order. 

§ 6.3.3 If the Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the 
Design-Build Amendment, an adjustment in the Design-Builder’s compensation, the adjustment shall be based on one 
of the following methods: 

.1 Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to 
permit evaluation; 

.2 Unit prices stated in the Design-Build Documents or subsequently agreed upon; 

.3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or 
percentage fee; or 

.4 As provided in Section 6.3.7. 

§ 6.3.4 If unit prices are stated in the Design-Build Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities 
originally contemplated are materially changed in a proposed Change Order or Change Directive so that application of 
such unit prices to quantities of Work proposed will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or Design-Builder, the 
applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted. 

ARTICLE 6  CHANGES IN THE WORK 
§ 6.1 General 
§ 6.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the 

§ 6.3.5 Upon receipt of a Change Directive, the Design-Builder shall promptly proceed with the change in the Work 
involved and advise the Owner of the Design-Builder’s agreement or disagreement with the method, if any, provided 
in the Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the 
Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder’s compensation, or Contract Time. 

§ 6.3.6 A Change Directive signed by the Design-Builder indicates the Design-Builder’s agreement therewith, 
including adjustment in Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

17 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

 

   

  

   

  

     

       

   
    

  
     

 

    

     
 

 
   

amount. In such case, and also under Section 6.3.3.3, the Design-Builder shall keep and present, in such form as the 
Owner may prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data. Unless otherwise provided in 
the Design-Build Documents, costs for the purposes of this Section 6.3.7 shall be limited to the following: 

.1 Additional costs of professional services; 

.2 Costs of labor, including social security, unemployment insurance, fringe benefits required by 
agreement or custom, and workers’ compensation insurance; 

.3 Costs of materials, supplies and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or 
consumed; 

.4 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the 
Design-Builder or others; 

.5 Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use or similar taxes related to the 
Work; and 

.6 Additional costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change. 

§ 6.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Design-Builder to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in 
a net decrease in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, in the Design-Builder’s 
compensation, shall be actual net cost. When both additions and credits covering related Work or substitutions are 
involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis of net increase, if any, with 
respect to that change. 

§ 6.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Change Directive to the Owner, the Design-Builder may 
request payment for Work completed under the Change Directive in Applications for Payment. The Owner will make 
an interim determination for purposes of certification for payment for those costs deemed to be reasonably justified. 
The Owner’s interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment, the Design-Builder’s compensation, on the same basis as a Change Order, subject to the right of 
Design-Builder to disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Article 14. 

§ 6.3.10 When the Owner and Design-Builder agree with a determination concerning the adjustments in the Contract 
Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder’s compensation 
and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such agreement shall be effective 
immediately and the Owner and Design-Builder shall execute a Change Order. Change Orders may be issued for all or 
any part of a Change Directive. 

ARTICLE 7  OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 7.1 General 
§ 7.1.1 The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express authority to bind the Owner with 
respect to all Project matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization. 

§ 7.1.2 The Owner shall render decisions in a timely manner and in accordance with the Design-Builder’s schedule 
agreed to by the Owner. The Owner shall furnish to the Design-Builder, within 15 days after receipt of a written 
request, information necessary and relevant for the Design-Builder to evaluate, give notice of or enforce mechanic’s 

Design-Builder’s compensation, and Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall be 
effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order. 

§ 6.3.7 If the Design-Builder does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract 
Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the method for adjustment in the Design-Builder’s 
compensation, the Owner shall determine the method and the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditures and 
savings of those performing the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase, an amount for 
overhead and profit as set forth in the Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agreement, a reasonable 

lien rights. Such information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the 
Project is located, usually referred to as the site, and the Owner’s interest therein. 

§ 7.2 Information and Services Required of the Owner 
§ 7.2.1 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Design-Build Documents with 
reasonable promptness. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

18 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

  
 

 
 

 

 

      

      

      

   

     

 
    

 

 
   

  

 
  

§ 7.2.2 The Owner shall provide, to the extent under the Owner’s control and if not required by the Design-Build 
Documents to be provided by the Design-Builder, the results and reports of prior tests, inspections or investigations 
conducted for the Project involving structural or mechanical systems; chemical, air and water pollution; hazardous 
materials; or environmental and subsurface conditions and information regarding the presence of pollutants at the 
Project site. Upon receipt of a written request from the Design-Builder, the Owner shall also provide surveys 
describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the site of the Project, and a legal 
description of the site under the Owner’s control. 

§ 7.2.3 The Owner shall promptly obtain easements, zoning variances, and legal authorizations or entitlements 
regarding site utilization where essential to the execution of the Project. 

§ 7.2.4 The Owner shall cooperate with the Design-Builder in securing building and other permits, licenses and 
inspections. 

§ 7.2.5 The services, information, surveys and reports required to be provided by the Owner under this Agreement, 
shall be furnished at the Owner’s expense, and except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement or 
elsewhere in the Design-Build Documents or to the extent the Owner advises the Design-Builder to the contrary in 
writing, the Design-Builder shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness thereof. In no event shall the 
Design-Builder be relieved of its responsibility to exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the 
Work. 

§ 7.2.6 If the Owner observes or otherwise becomes aware of a fault or defect in the Work or non-conformity with the 
Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall give prompt written notice thereof to the Design-Builder. 

§ 7.2.7 Intentionally deleted. 

§ 7.2.8 Except as otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents or when direct communications have been 
specially authorized, the Owner shall communicate through the Design-Builder with persons or entities employed or 
retained by the Design-Builder. 

§ 7.2.9 Intentionally deleted. 

§ 7.2.10 Intentionally deleted. 

§ 7.3 Submittals 
§ 7.3.1 The Owner shall review and approve or take other appropriate action on Submittals. Review of Submittals is 
not conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other details, such as dimensions and 
quantities; or for substantiating instructions for installation or performance of equipment or systems; or for 
determining that the Submittals are in conformance with the Design-Build Documents, all of which remain the 
responsibility of the Design-Builder as required by the Design-Build Documents. The Owner’s action will be taken in 
accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Owner or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, 
with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Owner’s judgment to permit adequate review. The 
Owner’s review of Submittals shall not relieve the Design-Builder of the obligations under Sections 3.1.11, 3.1.12, 
and 5.2.3. The Owner’s review of Submittals shall not relieve the Design-Builder of the obligations under the 
Contract. The Owner’s review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions or, unless otherwise specifically 
stated by the Owner, of any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures. The Owner’s approval 
of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component. 

§ 7.3.2 Upon review of the Submittals required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall notify the 
Design-Builder of any non-conformance with the Design-Build Documents the Owner discovers. 

§ 7.4 Visits to the site by the Owner shall not be construed to create an obligation on the part of the Owner to make 
on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Owner shall neither have control over or charge 
of, nor be responsible for, the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for the safety 
precautions and programs in connection with the Work, because these are solely the Design-Builder’s rights and 
responsibilities under the Design-Build Documents. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

19 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

 
   

 

  
   
    

    

 
   

  
    

   
   

 
      

        
 

    
 

   
  

   

 

 
  

  
     

  

    
 

§ 7.5 The Owner shall not be responsible for the Design-Builder’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the 
requirements of the Design-Build Documents. The Owner shall not have control over or charge of, and will not be 
responsible for acts or omissions of the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Contractors, or their agents or 
employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for the Design-Builder. 

§ 7.6 The Owner has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Design-Build Documents. The Owner 
shall have authority to require inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with Section 15.5.2, whether or not such 
Work is fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Owner nor a decision made in good 

or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 

date of final completion in accordance with Section 9.10. 

§ 7.8 Owner’s Right to Stop Work 
If the Design-Builder fails to correct Work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build 
Documents as required by Section 11.2 or persistently fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Design-Build 
Documents, the Owner may issue a written order to the Design-Builder to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until 
the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a 

faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Owner to the 
Design-Builder, the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, 

§ 7.7 The Owner shall determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion in accordance with Section 9.8 and the 

§ 8.1.3 The Design-Builder shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial 
Completion within the Contract Time. 

duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Design-Builder or any other person or entity, 
except to the extent required by Section 5.13.1.3. 

§ 7.9 Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work 
If the Design-Builder defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents and 
fails within a ten-day period after receipt of written notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of 
such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner 
may have, correct such deficiencies. In such case, an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from 
payments then or thereafter due the Design-Builder the reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies, including, but 
not limited to, the Owner’s attorney’s fees, related costs, disbursements and expenses. If payments then or thereafter 
due the Design-Builder are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Design-Builder shall pay the difference to the 
Owner. The right of the Owner to correct deficiencies in the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of the 
Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Design-Builder or any other person or entity and shall not affect the 
Design-Builder’s contractual duties under this Contract, including its warranty obligations. 

ARTICLE 8 TIME 
§ 8.1 Progress and Completion 
§ 8.1.1 Time limits stated in the Design-Build Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the 
Design-Build Amendment the Design-Builder confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing 
the Work. 

§ 8.1.2 The Design-Builder shall not, except by agreement of the Owner in writing, commence the Work prior to the 
effective date of insurance, other than property insurance, required by this Contract. The Contract Time shall not be 
adjusted as a result of the Design-Builder’s failure to obtain insurance required under this Contract.  Owner shall 
provide Design-Builder with a Notice to Commence Work and Design-Builder shall commence work within 5 
working days of receiving the Notice. 

§ 8.2 Delays and Extensions of Time 
§ 8.2.1 If the Design-Builder is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by an act or neglect 
of the Owner or of a consultant or separate contractor employed by the Owner; or by changes ordered in the Work by 
the Owner; or by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties or other causes beyond the 
Design-Builder’s control; or by delay authorized by the Owner pending mediation and binding dispute resolution or 
by other causes that the Owner determines may justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended by Change 
Order for such reasonable time as the Owner may determine. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

20 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

      

      

    
  

     
        

   
  

 

   

     

  
  

      

    

§ 9.1 Contract Sum 
The Contract Sum is stated in the Design-Build Amendment. 

§ 9.2 Schedule of Values 
Where the Contract Sum is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Design-Builder, at least ten 
days prior to the first Application for Payment after execution of the Design-Build Amendment shall submit to the 
Owner a schedule of values allocating the entire Contract Sum to the various portions of the Work and prepared in 
such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Owner may require. This schedule, unless 
objected to by the Owner, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Design-Builder’s Applications for Payment. 

§ 9.3 Applications for Payment 
§ 9.3.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Design-Builder shall submit to the 
Owner an itemized Application for Payment for completed portions of the Work. The application shall be notarized, if 
required, and supported by data substantiating the Design-Builder’s right to payment as the Owner may require, such 
as copies of requisitions from the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, and material suppliers, and shall reflect 
retainage if provided for in the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 6.3.9, Applications for Payment may include requests for payment on account of 
changes in the Work that have been properly authorized by Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the 
Owner, but not yet included in Change Orders. 

§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the 
Design-Builder does not intend to pay the Architect, Consultant, Contractor, material supplier, or other persons or 
entities providing services or work for the Design-Builder, unless such Work has been performed by others whom the 
Design-Builder intends to pay. 

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, payments shall be made for services provided as 
well as materials and equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If 
approved in advance by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off 
the site at a location agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be 
conditioned upon compliance by the Design-Builder with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the 
Owner’s title to such materials and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shall include the costs of 
applicable insurance, storage and transportation to the site for such materials and equipment stored off the site. 

§ 9.3.3 The Design-Builder warrants that title to all Work, other than Instruments of Service, covered by an 
Application for Payment will pass to the Owner no later than the time of payment. The Design-Builder further 
warrants that, upon submittal of an Application for Payment, all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been 
previously issued and payments received from the Owner shall, to the best of the Design-Builder’s knowledge, 
information and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances in favor of the 
Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Contractors, material suppliers, or other persons or entities entitled to make a 
claim by reason of having provided labor, materials and equipment relating to the Work. 

§ 8.2.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 14. 

§ 8.2.3 This Section 8.2 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of the 
Design-Build Documents. 

ARTICLE 9  PAYMENT APPLICATIONS AND PROJECT COMPLETION 

§ 9.4 Certificates for Payment
The Owner shall, within seven days after receipt of the Design-Builder’s Application for Payment, issue to the 
Design-Builder a Certificate for Payment indicating the amount the Owner determines is properly due, and notify the 
Design-Builder in writing of the Owner’s reasons for withholding certification in whole or in part as provided in 
Section 9.5.1. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

21 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

     

    

 

     
  

      

 

       

    

    
 

       

      

     
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 

  
   

      
  

whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued to such extent as may be necessary to protect the Owner 
from loss for which the Design-Builder is responsible because of 

.1 defective Work, including design and construction, not remedied; 

.2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims unless security 
acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Design-Builder; 

.3 failure of the Design-Builder to make payments properly to the Architect, Consultants, Contractors or 
others, for services, labor, materials or equipment; 

.4 reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum; 

.5 damage to the Owner or a separate contractor; 

.6 reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid 
balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; or 

.7 repeated failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.5.2 When the above reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts 
previously withheld. 

§ 9.5.3 If the Owner withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option, issue 
joint checks to the Design-Builder and to the Architect or any Consultants, Contractor, material or equipment 
suppliers, or other persons or entities providing services or work for the Design-Builder to whom the Design-Builder 
failed to make payment for Work properly performed or material or equipment suitably delivered. 

§ 9.6 Progress Payments 
§ 9.6.1 After the Owner has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and within 
the time provided in the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.6.2 The Design-Builder shall pay each Architect, Consultant, Contractor, and other person or entity providing 
services or work for the Design-Builder no later than the time period required by applicable law, but in no event more 
than seven days after receipt of payment from the Owner the amount to which the Architect, Consultant, Contractor, 
and other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder is entitled, reflecting percentages actually 
retained from payments to the Design-Builder on account of the portion of the Work performed by the Architect, 
Consultant, Contractor, or other person or entity. The Design-Builder shall, by appropriate agreement with each 
Architect, Consultant, Contractor, and other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder, 
require each Architect, Consultant, Contractor, and other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder to make payments to subconsultants and subcontractors in a similar manner. 

§ 9.6.3 The Owner will, on request and if practicable, furnish to the Architect, a Consultant, Contractor, or other 
person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder, information regarding percentages of completion 
or amounts applied for by the Design-Builder and action taken thereon by the Owner on account of portions of the 
Work done by such Architect, Consultant, Contractor or other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder. 

§ 9.5 Decisions to Withhold Certification 
§ 9.5.1 The Owner may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part to the extent reasonably necessary to 
protect the Owner due to the Owner’s determination that the Work has not progressed to the point indicated in the 
Design-Builder’s Application for Payment, or the quality of the Work is not in accordance with the Design-Build 
Documents. If the Owner is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Owner will notify the 
Design-Builder as provided in Section 9.4. If the Design-Builder and Owner cannot agree on a revised amount, the 
Owner will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount that the Owner deems to be due and owing. The 
Owner may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of subsequently discovered evidence, may nullify the 

§ 9.6.4 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Design-Builder that the Design-Builder has 
properly paid the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, or other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder, amounts paid by the Owner to the Design-Builder for the Work. If the Design-Builder fails to furnish 
such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors 
to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. The Owner shall have no obligation to pay or to see to the payment 
of money to a Consultant or Contractor, except as may otherwise be required by law. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

22 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

    
     

     
 

    
     

   
 

   
 

     

  

 

       

 
      

  

    
    

 
        

     

      
     

other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder, shall be held by the Design-Builder for the 
Architect and those Consultants, Contractors, or other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder, for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained herein shall require money to be 
placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Design-Builder, shall create any fiduciary liability 
or tort liability on the part of the Design-Builder for breach of trust or shall entitle any person or entity to an award of 
punitive damages against the Design-Builder for breach of the requirements of this provision. 

§ 9.7 Failure of Payment
If the Owner does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Design-Builder, within the time required 
by the Design-Build Documents, then the Design-Builder may, upon seven additional days’ written notice to the 
Owner, stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended 
appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Design-Builder’s reasonable costs of 
shut-down, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.8 Substantial Completion 
§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof is 
sufficiently complete in accordance with the Design-Build Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the 
Work for its intended use. The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Owner in accordance with 
this Section 9.8. 

§ 9.8.2 When the Design-Builder considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept 
separately, is substantially complete, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit to the Owner a comprehensive list 
of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the 
responsibility of the Design-Builder to complete all Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Design-Builder’s list, the Owner shall make an inspection to determine whether the Work 
or designated portion thereof is substantially complete. If the Owner’s inspection discloses any item, whether or not 
included on the Design-Builder’s list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Design-Build 
Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the 
Design-Builder shall, before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon 
notification by the Owner. In such case, the Design-Builder shall then submit a request for another inspection by the 
Owner to determine Substantial Completion. 

§ 9.8.4 Prior to issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion under Section 9.8.5, the Owner and 
Design-Builder shall discuss and then determine the parties’ obligations to obtain and maintain property insurance 
following issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion. 

§ 9.8.5 When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Design-Builder will prepare for the 
Owner’s signature a Certificate of Substantial Completion that shall, upon the Owner’s signature, establish the date of 
Substantial Completion; establish responsibilities of the Owner and Design-Builder for security, maintenance, heat, 

§ 9.6.5 Design-Builder payments to material and equipment suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that 
provided in Sections 9.6.2, 9.6.3 and 9.6.4. 

§ 9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the 
Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.6.7 Unless the Design-Builder provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum, 
payments received by the Design-Builder for Work properly performed by the Architect, Consultants, Contractors and 

utilities, damage to the Work and insurance; and fix the time within which the Design-Builder shall finish all items on 
the list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by the Design-Build Documents shall commence on the 
date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate 
of Substantial Completion. 

§ 9.8.6 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted by the Design-Builder to the Owner for written 
acceptance of responsibilities assigned to it in the Certificate. Upon the Owner’s acceptance, and consent of surety, if 
any, the Owner shall make payment of retainage applying to the Work or designated portion thereof. Payment shall be 
adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

23 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

     
    

 

      
      

  
  

 

    

     

  
       

    
 

   
 

     
 

  
     

    

 
     

 
    

 

§ 9.9 Partial Occupancy or Use 
§ 9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when 
such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Design-Builder, provided such occupancy or use is 
consented to, by endorsement or otherwise, by the insurer providing property insurance and authorized by public 
authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Such partial occupancy or use may commence whether or not the 
portion is substantially complete, provided the Owner and Design-Builder have accepted in writing the responsibilities 
assigned to each of them for payments, retainage, if any, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and 

payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the 
Design-Builder to the Owner prior to issuance of payment. Such payment shall be made under terms and conditions 
governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims. 

§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the 
(Paragraphs deleted) 
Owner. 

insurance, and have agreed in writing concerning the period for correction of the Work and commencement of 
warranties required by the Design-Build Documents. When the Design-Builder considers a portion substantially 
complete, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit a list to the Owner as provided under Section 9.8.2. Consent of 
the Design-Builder to partial occupancy or use shall not be unreasonably withheld. The stage of the progress of the 
Work shall be determined by written agreement between the Owner and Design-Builder. 

§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner and Design-Builder shall jointly inspect the area 
to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work. 

§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not constitute 
acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 9.10 Final Completion and Final Payment 
§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Design-Builder’s written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance 
and upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Owner will promptly make such inspection. When the Owner 
finds the Work acceptable under the Design-Build Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Owner will, 
subject to Section 9.10.2, promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment. 

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Design-Builder 
submits to the Owner (1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness 
connected with the Work, for which the Owner or the Owner’s property might be responsible or encumbered, (less 
amounts withheld by Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) a certificate evidencing that insurance required 
by the Design-Build Documents to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect, (3) a written statement 
that the Design-Builder knows of no substantial reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period 
required by the Design-Build Documents, (4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, (5) as-constructed record 
copy of the Construction Documents marked to indicate field changes and selections made during construction, (6) 
manufacturer’s warranties, product data, and maintenance and operations manuals, and (7) if required by the Owner, 
other data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, or releases and waivers of liens, claims, 
security interests, or encumbrances, arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by 
the Owner. If an Architect, a Consultant, or a Contractor, or other person or entity providing services or work for the 
Design-Builder, refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Design-Builder may furnish a bond 
satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances. If 
such liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances remains unsatisfied after payments are made, the 
Design-Builder shall refund to the Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in discharging such 
liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, including all costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

§ 9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault 
of the Design-Builder or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, the Owner shall, upon application 
by the Design-Builder, and without terminating the Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the 
Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than 
retainage stipulated in the Design-Build Documents, and if bonds have been furnished, the written consent of surety to 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

24 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

       

     

     

    

 
   

 

      

   

  
    

  
 

      
 

    
     

     

   

 

§ 9.10.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Design-Builder shall constitute a waiver of claims by the Design-Builder 
except those previously made in writing and identified by the Design-Builder as unsettled at the time of final 
Application for Payment. 

ARTICLE 10  PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 
§ 10.1 Safety Precautions and Programs
The Design-Builder shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and 
programs in connection with the performance of the Contract. In addition, Design-Builder shall be responsible for the 

§ 10.2.3 The Design-Builder shall implement, erect, and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance 
of the Contract, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings 
against hazards, promulgating safety regulations, and notify owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities of the 
safeguards and protections. 

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods, are 
necessary for execution of the Work, the Design-Builder shall exercise utmost care, and carry on such activities under 
supervision of properly qualified personnel. 

§ 10.2.5 The Design-Builder shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under 
property insurance required by the Design-Build Documents) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, 
caused in whole or in part by the Design-Builder, the Architect, a Consultant, a Contractor, or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Design-Builder 
is responsible under Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3; except damage or loss attributable to acts or omissions of the 
Owner, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Owner, or by anyone for whose acts the Owner may be liable, 
and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Design-Builder. The foregoing obligations of the Design-Builder 
are in addition to the Design-Builder’s obligations under Section 3.1.14. 

security and protection of its equipment, supplies and tools used in connection the Work. 

§ 10.2 Safety of Persons and Property 

damage, injury or loss to 
.1
.2

.3 

construction. 

§ 10.2.2 The Design-Builder shall comply with, and give notices required by, Applicable Laws,  and lawful orders of 
public authorities, bearing on safety of persons or property, or their protection from damage, injury or loss. 

§ 10.2.1 The Design-Builder shall be responsible for precautions for the safety of, and reasonable protection to prevent 

employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby; 
the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, 
under care, custody or control of the Design-Builder or the Architect, Consultants, or Contractors, or 
other person or entity providing services or work for the Design-Builder; and 
other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, 
or structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the course of 

§ 10.2.6 The Design-Builder shall designate a responsible member of the Design-Builder’s organization, at the site, 
whose duty shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Design-Builder’s superintendent unless 
otherwise designated by the Design-Builder in writing to the Owner. 

§ 10.2.7 The Design-Builder shall not permit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or 
create an unsafe condition. 

§ 10.2.8 Injury or Damage to Person or Property. If the Owner or Design-Builder suffers injury or damage to person or 
property because of an act or omission of the other, or of others for whose acts such party is legally responsible, 
written notice of the injury or damage, whether or not insured, shall be given to the other party within a reasonable 
time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice shall provide sufficient detail to enable the other party to 
investigate the matter. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

25 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

 

  

 
     
      

    
      

    
   

 

       
    

   

     
  

 

 
 

          
    

    

   
  

   

§ 10.3 Hazardous Materials 
§ 10.3.1 The Design-Builder is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Design-Build 
Documents regarding hazardous materials. If the Design-Builder encounters a hazardous material or substance not 
addressed in the Design-Build Documents and if reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable 
bodily injury or death to persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or 
polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), encountered on the site by the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall, upon 
recognizing the condition, immediately stop Work in the affected area and report the condition to the Owner in 
writing. 

ARTICLE 11  UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 
§ 11.1 Uncovering of Work 
The Owner may request to examine a portion of the Work that the Design-Builder has covered to determine if the 
Work has been performed in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. If such Work is in accordance with the 
Design-Build Documents, the Owner and Design-Builder shall execute a Change Order to adjust the Contract Time 
and Contract Sum, as appropriate. If such Work is not in accordance with the Design-Build Documents, the costs of 
uncovering and correcting the Work shall be at the Design-Builder’s expense and the Design-Builder shall not be 

§ 10.3.2 Upon receipt of the Design-Builder’s written notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed 
laboratory to verify the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Design-Builder and, in the 
event such material or substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. Unless otherwise required 
by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall furnish in writing to the Design-Builder the names and qualifications 
of persons or entities who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of such material or substance or who 
are to perform the task of removal or safe containment of such material or substance. The Design-Builder will 
promptly reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not the Design-Builder has reasonable objection to the 
persons or entities proposed by the Owner. If the Design-Builder has an objection to a person or entity proposed by the 
Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom the Design-Builder has no reasonable objection. When the material 
or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall resume upon written agreement of the Owner 
and Design-Builder. By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall 
be increased in the amount of the Design-Builder’s reasonable additional costs of shut-down, delay and start-up. 

§ 10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Design-Builder, the 
Architect, Consultants, and Contractors, and employees of any of them, from and against claims, damages, losses and 
expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work in the 
affected area, if in fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or death as described in 
Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to 
bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to, or destruction of, tangible property (other than the Work 
itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss or expense is due to the fault or negligence of the party seeking 
indemnity. 

§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for materials or substances the Design-Builder 
brings to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Owner’s Criteria. The Owner shall be 
responsible for materials or substances required by the Owner’s Criteria, except to the extent of the Design-Builder’s 
fault or negligence in the use and handling of such materials or substances. 

§ 10.3.5 The Design-Builder shall indemnify the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation 
of a material or substance the Design-Builder brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the 
Design-Builder fails to perform its obligations under Section 10.3.1, except to the extent that the cost and expense are 
due to the Owner’s fault or negligence. 

§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder is held liable by a government 
agency for the cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as 
required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall indemnify the Design-Builder for all cost and expense 
thereby incurred. 

§ 10.4 Emergencies
In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Design-Builder shall act, at the Design-Builder’s 
discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

26 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

      
     

        

 
 

  

  
    

    
 

 

 
     

   

     
   

 

    

 

    

entitled to a change in the Contract Time unless the condition was caused by the Owner or a separate contractor in 
which event the Owner shall be responsible for payment of such costs and the Contract Time will be adjusted as 
appropriate. 

§ 11.2 Correction of Work 
§ 11.2.1 Before or After Substantial Completion. The Design-Builder shall promptly correct Work rejected by the 
Owner or failing to conform to the requirements of the Design-Build Documents, whether discovered before or after 
Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed. Costs of correcting such rejected Work, 
including additional testing and inspections, the cost of uncovering and replacement, and compensation for any design 
consultant employed by the Owner whose expenses and compensation were made necessary thereby, and the Owner’s 
attorneys’ fees and related costs and disbursement, which costs shall be at the Design-Builder’s expense. 

§ 11.2.2 After Substantial Completion 
§ 11.2.2.1 In addition to the Design-Builder’s obligations under Section 3.1.12, if, within one year after the date of 
Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencement of warranties 
established under Section 9.9.1, or by terms of an applicable special warranty required by the Design-Build 
Documents, any of the Work is found not to be in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents, 
the Design-Builder shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner 
has previously given the Design-Builder a written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice 
promptly after discovery of the condition. During the one-year period for correction of the Work, if the Owner fails to 
notify the Design-Builder and give the Design-Builder an opportunity to make the correction, the Owner waives the 
rights to require correction by the Design-Builder and to make a claim for breach of warranty. If the Design-Builder 
fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable time during that period after receipt of notice from the 
Owner, the Owner may correct it in accordance with Section 7.9. 

§ 11.2.2.2 The one-year period for correction of Work shall be extended with respect to portions of Work first 
performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual 
completion of that portion of the Work. 

§ 11.2.2.3 The one-year period for correction of Work shall not be extended by corrective Work performed by the 
Design-Builder pursuant to this Section 11.2. 

§ 11.2.3 The Design-Builder shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the 
requirements of the Design-Build Documents and are neither corrected by the Design-Builder nor accepted by the 
Owner. 

§ 11.2.4 The Design-Builder shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction of the Owner or 
separate contractors, whether completed or partially completed, caused by the Design-Builder’s correction or removal 
of Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 11.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 11.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to 
other obligations the Design-Builder has under the Design-Build Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for 
correction of Work as described in Section 11.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Design-Builder to 
correct the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Design-Build 
Documents may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish 
the Design-Builder’s liability with respect to the Design-Builder’s obligations other than specifically to correct the 
Work. 

§ 11.3 Acceptance of Nonconforming Work 
If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents, 
the Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced 
as appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been made. 

ARTICLE 12  COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 
§ 12.1 Drawings, specifications, and other documents furnished by the Design-Builder, including those in electronic 
form, are Instruments of Service. The Design-Builder, and the Architect, Consultants, Contractors, and any other 
person or entity providing services or work for any of them, shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

27 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

 
     
   

 

 

 
 

        

  
 

      

 

     
      

    
 

      

    
       

     

 
     

   

 
    
     

 

   
 

owner to transmit such information for its use on the Project. 

§ 12.3 Upon execution of the Agreement, the Design-Builder grants to the Owner a limited, irrevocable and 
non-exclusive license to use the Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, 
maintaining, altering and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations, 

section permits the Owner to authorize its consultants and separate contractors to reproduce applicable portions of the 
Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. If the 
Design-Builder rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 13.1.4 or 13.2.1 the license 
granted in this Section 12.3 shall terminate. 

§ 12.3.1 The Design-Builder shall obtain non-exclusive licenses from the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors, that 
will allow the Design-Builder to satisfy its obligations to the Owner under this Article 12. The Design-Builder’s 
licenses from the Architect and its Consultants and Contractors shall also allow the Owner, in the event this 
Agreement is terminated for any reason other than the default of the Owner or in the event the Design-Builder’s 
Architect, Consultants, or Contractors terminate their agreements with the Design-Builder for cause, to obtain a 
limited, irrevocable and non-exclusive license solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, 
altering and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner (1) agrees to pay to the Architect, Consultant or Contractor 
all amounts due, and (2) provide the Architect, Consultant or Contractor with the Owner’s written agreement to 
indemnify and hold harmless the Architect, Consultant or Contractor from all costs and expenses, including the cost of 
defense, related to claims and causes of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and 
expenses arise from the Owner’s alteration or use of the Instruments of Service. 

§ 12.3.2 In the event the Owner alters the Instruments of Service without the author’s written authorization or uses the 
Instruments of Service without retaining the authors of the Instruments of Service, the Owner releases the 
Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Contractors and any other person or entity providing services or work for any 
of them, from all claims and causes of action arising from or related to such uses. The Owner, to the extent permitted 
by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Contractors and any 
other person or entity providing services or work for any of them, from all costs and expenses, including the cost of 
defense, related to claims and causes of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and 
expenses arise from the Owner’s alteration or use of the Instruments of Service under this Section 12.3.2. The terms of 
this Section 12.3.2 shall not apply if the Owner rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Sections 13.1.4 or 
13.2.2. 

ARTICLE 13  TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§ 13.1 Termination or Suspension Prior to Execution of the Design-Build Amendment 
§ 13.1.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Design-Builder for Work prior to execution of the Design-Build 
Amendment in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be considered substantial nonperformance and 
cause for termination or, at the Design-Builder’s option, cause for suspension of performance of services under this 

Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and 
other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official 
regulatory requirements, or for similar purposes in connection with the Project, is not to be construed as publication in 
derogation of the reserved rights of the Design-Builder and the Architect, Consultants, and Contractors, and any other 
person or entity providing services or work for any of them. 

§ 12.2 The Design-Builder and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other 
information, the transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information or has permission from the copyright 

including prompt payment of all sums when due, under the Design-Build Documents. The license granted under this 

Agreement. If the Design-Builder elects to suspend the Work, the Design-Builder shall give seven days’ written notice 
to the Owner before suspending the Work. In the event of a suspension of the Work, the Design-Builder shall have no 
liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused by the suspension of the Work. Before resuming the Work, the 
Design-Builder shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses incurred in the interruption and 
resumption of the Design-Builder’s Work. The Design-Builder’s compensation for, and time to complete, the 
remaining Work shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 13.1.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for the Work performed prior to 
notice of such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for expenses 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

28 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

  

 
    

 

    

 
   

   

 

     

     

    

     
  

     

 

      
   

 

  

incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Design-Builder’s Work. The Design-Builder’s compensation for, 
and time to complete, the remaining Work shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 13.1.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the 
Design-Builder, the Design-Builder may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days’ written notice. 

§ 13.1.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than fourteen days’ written notice should the other 
party fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party 

§ 13.2.1.1 The Design-Builder may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of 60 consecutive days 
through no act or fault of the Design-Builder, the Architect, a Consultant, or a Contractor, or their agents or 
employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work under direct or indirect contract with the 
Design-Builder, for any of the following reasons: 

.1 Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to be 
stopped; 

.2 An act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency that requires all Work to be stopped; 

.3 Because the Owner has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Design-Builder of 
the reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.5.1, or because the Owner has not 
made payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated in the Design-Build Documents; or 

§ 13.2.1.2 Intentionally deleted. 

§ 13.2.1.3 Intentionally deleted. 

§ 13.2.1.4 Intentionally deleted. 

§ 13.2.2 Termination by the Owner For Cause 
§ 13.2.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Design-Builder 

.1 fails to submit the Proposal by the date required by this Agreement, or if no date is indicated, within a 
reasonable time consistent with the date of Substantial Completion; 

.2 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply an Architect, or enough properly skilled Consultants, Contractors, 
or workers or proper materials; 

.3 fails to make payment to the Architect, Consultants, or Contractors for services, materials or labor in 
accordance with their respective agreements with the Design-Builder; 

.4 

initiating the termination. 

for the Owner’s convenience and without cause. 

§ 13.1.6 In the event of termination not the fault of the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for 
Work performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due and any other expenses directly 
attributable to termination for which the Design-Builder is not otherwise compensated. In no event shall the 
Design-Builder’s compensation under this Section 13.1.6 be greater than the compensation set forth in Section 2.1. 

§ 13.2 Termination or Suspension Following Execution of the Design-Build Amendment
§ 13.2.1 Termination by the Design-Builder 

§ 13.1.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Design-Builder 

repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful 
orders of a public authority; or 

.5 is otherwise guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 13.2.2.2 When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the 
Owner and after giving the Design-Builder and the Design-Builder’s surety, if any, seven days’ written notice, 
terminate employment of the Design-Builder and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety: 

.1 Exclude the Design-Builder from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and 
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Design-Builder; 

.2 Accept assignment of the Architect, Consultant and Contractor agreements pursuant to Section 3.1.15; 
and 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

29 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

    
      

 
 

    

   

  

 

  

    

 

    

     

 
 

by the Owner and not expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Design-Builder. If such costs and damages 
exceed the unpaid balance, the Design-Builder shall pay the difference to the Owner. The obligation for such 
payments shall survive termination of the Contract. 

§ 13.2.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience 
§ 13.2.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Design-Builder in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the Work 
in whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine. 

§ 13.2.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by 
suspension, delay or interruption as described in Section 13.2.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include 
profit. No adjustment shall be made to the extent 

.1 that performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another cause for 
which the Design-Builder is responsible; or 

.2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract. 

§ 13.2.4 Termination by the Owner for Convenience 
§ 13.2.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause. 

§ 13.2.4.2 Upon receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the 
Design-Builder shall 

.1 cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice; 

.2 take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; 
and, 

.3 except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, 
terminate all existing Project agreements, including agreements with the Architect, Consultants, 
Contractors, and purchase orders, and enter into no further Project agreements and purchase orders. 

§ 13.2.4.3 In case of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Design-Builder shall be entitled to receive 
payment for Work executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination, along with reasonable overhead and 
profit on the Work not executed. 

ARTICLE 14  CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
§ 14.1 Claims 
§ 14.1.1 Definition. A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of 
money, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term "Claim" also includes other disputes and 
matters in question between the Owner and Design-Builder arising out of or relating to the Contract. The 
responsibility to substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim. 

§ 14.1.2 Time Limits on Claims. The Owner and Design-Builder shall commence all claims and causes of action, 
whether in contract, tort, breach of warranty or otherwise, against the other, arising out of or related to the Contract in 

.3 Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request 
of the Design-Builder, the Owner shall furnish to the Design-Builder a detailed accounting of the costs 
incurred by the Owner in finishing the Work. 

§ 13.2.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 13.2.2.1, the 
Design-Builder shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished. 

§ 13.2.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work and other damages incurred 

accordance with the requirements of the binding dispute resolution method selected in Section 1.3, within the time 
period specified by applicable law, but in any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of 
the Work. The Owner and Design-Builder waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with 
this Section 14.1.2. 

§ 14.1.3 Notice of Claims 
§ 14.1.3.1 Prior To Final Payment. Prior to Final Payment, Claims by either the Owner or Design-Builder must be 
initiated by written notice to the other party within 21 days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or 
within 21 days after the claimant first recognizes the condition giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

30 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

        
     

 

   
        

    

    

 

    

 

      

 
   

         
 

  
 

     

 
 

 

Contract and the Owner shall continue to make payments in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 14.1.5 Claims for Additional Cost. If the Design-Builder intends to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, 
written notice as provided herein shall be given before proceeding to execute the portion of the Work that relates to the 
Claim. Prior notice is not required for Claims relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under 
Section 10.4. 

§ 14.1.6 Claims for Additional Time 
§ 14.1.6.1 If the Design-Builder intends to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, written notice as 
provided herein shall be given. The Design-Builder’s Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of 
delay on progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary. 

§ 14.1.6.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be documented 
by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could not have been reasonably 
anticipated, and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction. 

§ 14.1.7 Claims for Consequential Damages
The Design-Builder and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating 
to this Contract. This mutual waiver includes 

.1 damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, 
business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of such 
persons; and 

.2 damages incurred by the Design-Builder for principal office expenses including the compensation of 
personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit except 
anticipated profit arising directly from the Work. 

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination in 
accordance with Article 13. Nothing contained in this Section 14.1.7 shall be deemed to preclude an award of 
liquidated damages, when applicable, in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents. 

§ 14.2 Initial Decision 
§ 14.2.1 An initial decision shall be required as a condition precedent to mediation of all Claims between the Owner 
and Design-Builder initiated prior to the date final payment is due, excluding those arising under Sections 10.3 and 
10.4 of the Agreement and Sections B.3.2.9 and B.3.2.10 of Exhibit B to this Agreement, unless 30 days have passed 
after the Claim has been initiated with no decision having been rendered. Unless otherwise mutually agreed in writing, 
the Owner shall render the initial decision on Claims. 

§ 14.2.2 Procedure 
§ 14.2.2.1 Claims Initiated by the Owner. If the Owner initiates a Claim, the Design-Builder shall provide a written 
response to Owner within ten days after receipt of the notice required under Section 14.1.3.1. Thereafter, the Owner 
shall render an initial decision within ten days of receiving the Design-Builder’s response: (1) withdrawing the Claim 

§ 14.1.3.2 Claims Arising After Final Payment. After Final Payment, Claims by either the Owner or Design-Builder that 
have not otherwise been waived pursuant to Sections 9.10.4 or 9.10.5, must be initiated by prompt written notice to the 
other party. The notice requirement in Section 14.1.3.1 and the Initial Decision requirement as a condition precedent 
to mediation in Section 14.2.1 shall not apply. 

§ 14.1.4 Continuing Contract Performance. Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing 
or as provided in Section 9.7 and Article 13, the Design-Builder shall proceed diligently with performance of the 

in whole or in part, (2) approving the Claim in whole or in part, or (3) suggesting a compromise. 

§ 14.2.2.2 Claims Initiated by the Design-Builder. If the Design-Builder initiates a Claim, the Owner will take one or 
more of the following actions within ten days after receipt of the notice required under Section 14.1.3.1: (1) request 
additional supporting data, (2) render an initial decision rejecting the Claim in whole or in part, (3) render an initial 
decision approving the Claim, (4) suggest a compromise or (5) indicate that it is unable to render an initial decision 
because the Owner lacks sufficient information to evaluate the merits of the Claim. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

31 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

  
     

    
   

  

      
    

     

      
    

      

 

 

         
       

 

    
 

 

       

      
   

    

    
    

      
 

§ 14.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Owner may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek information from 
persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Owner in rendering a decision. The retention of such 
persons shall be at the Owner’s expense. 

§ 14.2.4 If the Owner requests the Design-Builder to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional supporting 
data, the Design-Builder shall respond, within ten days after receipt of such request, and shall either (1) provide a 
response on the requested supporting data, (2) advise the Owner when the response or supporting data will be 
furnished or (3) advise the Owner that no supporting data will be furnished. Upon receipt of the response or supporting 
data, if any, the Owner will either reject or approve the Claim in whole or in part. 

§ 14.2.5 The Owner’s initial decision shall (1) be in writing; (2) state the reasons therefor; and (3) identify any change 
in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be final and binding on the parties but subject 
to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding dispute resolution. 

§ 14.2.6 Either party may file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 14.2.6.1. 

§ 14.2.6.1 Either party may, within 30 days from the date of an initial decision, demand in writing that the other party 
file for mediation within 60 days of the initial decision. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demand 
fails to file for mediation within the time required, then both parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue binding 
dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision. 

§ 14.2.7 In the event of a Claim against the Design-Builder, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, if 
any, of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Design-Builder’s default, the 
Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy. 

§ 14.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in 
accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines. 

§ 14.3 Mediation 
§ 14.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract, except those waived 
as provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 14.1.7, shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to binding 
dispute resolution. 

§ 14.3.2 The parties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, 
delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The 
request may be made concurrently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in such event, 
mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending 
mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties 
or court order. If an arbitration proceeding is stayed pursuant to this Section 14.3.2, the parties may nonetheless 
proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings. 

§ 14.3.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place 
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction. 

§ 14.4 Arbitration 
§ 14.4.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in Section 1.3, any Claim 
subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree 
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry 
Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered 
to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration. The party filing a 
notice of demand for arbitration must assert in the demand all Claims then known to that party on which arbitration is 
permitted to be demanded. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

32 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

    

 

      
 

      
 

     

       

 
    

 
    

    
     

  

 

  

§ 14.4.3 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate, and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity 
duly consented to by parties to the Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court 
having jurisdiction thereof. 

§ 14.4.4 Consolidation or Joinder 
§ 14.4.4.1 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any 
other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration 
permits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact, 
and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 

§ 14.4.4.2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a 
common question of law or fact whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided 
that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional 
person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not 
described in the written consent. 

§ 14.4.4.3 The Owner and Design-Builder grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under 
this Section 14.4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and 
Design-Builder under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 15  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 15.1 Governing Law 
The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located except that, if the parties have 
selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 14.4. 

§ 15.2 Successors and Assigns 
§ 15.2.1 The Owner and Design-Builder, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to the covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Design-Build Documents. Except as 
provided in Section 15.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of 
the other. If either party attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless 
remain legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract. 

§ 15.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Design-Builder, assign the Contract to a lender providing 
construction financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner’s rights and obligations under the Design-Build 
Documents. The Design-Builder shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate such assignment. 

§ 15.2.3 If the Owner requests the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, or Contractors to execute certificates, other 
than those required by Section 3.1.10, the Owner shall submit the proposed language of such certificates for review at 
least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests the Design-Builder, Architect, 

§ 14.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for 
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on 
the Claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations or statute of repose. For statute of limitations or 
statute of repose purposes, receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the 
arbitration shall constitute the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim. 

§ 14.4.2 The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in 
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction. 

Consultants, or Contractors to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the 
Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, or Contractors shall execute all such consents that are consistent with this 
Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to them for review at least 14 days prior to execution. The 
Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, and Contractors shall not be required to execute certificates or consents that 
would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of their services. 

§ 15.3 Written Notice 
Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual, to a member of the 
firm or entity, or to an officer of the corporation for which it was intended; or if delivered at, or sent by registered or 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

33 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


       
          

            

 

     
 

 
       

    
 

  
  

    
  

     
  

 

     

    

 

     
          

    
 

 
 

certified mail or by courier service providing proof of delivery to, the last business address known to the party giving 
notice. 

§ 15.4 Rights and Remedies 
§ 15.4.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Design-Build Documents, and rights and remedies available 
thereunder, shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or 
available by law. 

§ 15.5.2 If the Owner determines that portions of the Work require additional testing, inspection or approval not 
included under Section 15.5.1, the Owner will instruct the Design-Builder to make arrangements for such additional 
testing, inspection or approval by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Design-Builder shall give timely notice to 
the Owner of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Owner may be present for such 
procedures. Such costs, except as provided in Section 15.5.3, shall be at the Owner’s expense. 

§ 15.5.3 If such procedures for testing, inspection or approval under Sections 15.5.1 and 15.5.2 reveal failure of the 
portions of the Work to comply with requirements established by the Design-Build Documents, all costs made 
necessary by such failure shall be at the Design-Builder’s expense. 

§ 15.5.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Design-Build 
Documents, be secured by the Design-Builder and promptly delivered to the Owner. 

§ 15.5.5 If the Owner is to observe tests, inspections or approvals required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner 
will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing. 

§ 15.5.6 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Design-Build Documents shall be made promptly to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the Work. 

§ 15.6 Confidential Information 

thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 

§ 15.5 Tests and Inspections 

applicable laws or regulations prohibit the Owner from delegating their cost to the Design-Builder. 

§ 15.4.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner or Design-Builder shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty afforded 
them under the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach 

§ 15.5.1 Tests, inspections and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Design-Build 
Documents and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations or lawful orders of public 
authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Design-Builder shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections and 
approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public 
authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections and approvals. The Design-Builder shall give the Owner 
timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Owner may be present for such 
procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of (1) tests, inspections or approvals that do not become requirements until 
after bids are received or negotiations concluded, and (2) tests, inspections or approvals where building codes or 

If the Owner or Design-Builder transmits Confidential Information, the transmission of such Confidential Information 
constitutes a warranty to the party receiving such Confidential Information that the transmitting party is authorized to 
transmit the Confidential Information. If a party receives Confidential Information, the receiving party shall keep the 
Confidential Information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it to any other person or entity except as set forth 
in Section 15.6.1. 

§ 15.6.1 A party receiving Confidential Information may disclose the Confidential Information as required by law or 
court order, including a subpoena or other form of compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity. 
A party receiving Confidential Information may also disclose the Confidential Information to its employees, 
consultants or contractors in order to perform services or work solely and exclusively for the Project, provided those 
employees, consultants and contractors are subject to the restrictions on the disclosure and use of Confidential 
Information as set forth in this Contract. 

AIA Document A141™ – 2014. Copyright © 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” Init. the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software at 
14:24:21 ET on 03/23/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in 

/ accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

34 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


§ 15.7 Capitalization 
Tenns capitalized in the Contract include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles ofnumbcred articles or 
(3) the titles ofother documents published by the American Institute ofArchitects. 

§ 15.8 Interpretation 
§ 15.8.1 In the interest of brevity the Design-Build Documents frequently omit modifying words such as "all" and 
"any" and articles such as "the" and "an," but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and 
appears in another is not intended to affect the interpretation ofeither statement. 

§ 15.8.2 Unless otherwise stated in the Design-Build Documents, words which have well-known technical or 
construction industry meanings are used in the Design-Build Documents in accordance with such recognized 
meanings. 

ARTICLE 16 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
§ 16.1 This Agreement is comprised ofthe following documents listed below: 

.1 AIA Document A 141n-L2Q14, Standard Form ofAgreement Between Owner and Design-Bui Ider 

.2 Exhibit A, Design-Build Amendment, if executed 

.3 Exhibit B, Insurance and Bonds 

.4 Exhibit C, Owner's Program Documents, Valley Center Fire Protection District Request for 
Proposals for Design-Build Services Fire Station Projects dated February 2, 2021, inclusive ofAttachments 
1-8 and Addenda 1 and 2 and Updated Improvement Priority Lists for Station No. 1 and 2 
.5 Exhibit D, Compensation for Work Completed Prior to Design-Build Amendment 

.6 Other: 

NIA 

OWNER (Signature) 

JosefG. Napier, Fire Chief Dave Erickson, CEO 
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title) 

AIA Document A141w - 2014. Copyright© 2004 and 2014 by The American Institute ofArchitects. All rights reserved. The "Amencan Institute ofArchitects: "AIA," 
lnlt. the AIA Logo, and 'AIA Contract Documents" are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced by AIA software al 35 

14:24:21 ET on 03123/2022 under Order No.2114287171 which expires on 02/03/2023, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only. and may only be used in 
accordance wilh the AIAContract Documents®Terms of Service. To report copyright violaoons, e-mail copyright@aia.org. 
User Notes: (1365848397) 

mailto:copyright@aia.org


 

  

  

 

Exhibit B 

Payment and Performance Bonds, each in the amount of the Guaranteed Maximum 

Price, agreed upon in the Design-Build Amendment, will be posted when the Design-

Build Amendment is executed. 



 

     
   

 
  

   

VALLEY CENTER 
FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT 
INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS 

INSURANCE TYPES AND LIMITS, 
INDEMNIFICATION AND BEST 
PRACTICES FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 
TO THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE 

1 



   

 

  

  

  

  

   

  

  

Table of Contents 

Insurance Requirements 

Page 3 Commercial General Liability 

Page 4 Workers Compensation 

Page 4 Excess or Umbrella Liability 

Page 5 Business Auto 

Page 5 Professional Liability / E&O 

Page 6 Pollution Liability 

Page 7 Provisions for All Required Insurance for District Contractors 

2 



  
 

  

 

  

 
 

 

  

   
 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 

Insurance Requirements for ALL District Contracts 

Prior to the beginning of and throughout the duration of the Services, and for any 
additional period of time as specified below, CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and 
expense, maintain insurance in conformance with the requirements set forth below.  
CONTRACTOR shall submit Certificates of Insurance for the District’s review and 
acceptance. The Notice to Proceed shall not be issued, and CONTRACTOR shall not 
commence Services until such insurance has been accepted by the District. 

No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement 
are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR hereunder.  

A. Commercial General Liability 

a. CONTRACTOR shall provide Commercial General Liability insurance covering 
claims for Bodily, Injury, Personal and Advertising Injury, and Property Damage 
on a policy form that provides coverage at least as broad as coverage provided 
under the Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01, and that includes, but 
is not limited to, the coverage limits and coverage provisions outlined below. 

b. The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and 
maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the 
Named Insured, including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the following: 

$5,000,000 per Occurrence Each Pollution Condition; 
$5,000,000 Aggregate Liability. 
$2,000,000 General Aggregate; 
$2,000,000 Products - Completed Operations 

Aggregate. 

c. Coverage must be on an “occurrence” basis. 

d. Coverage must be included for “products-completed operations” without any 
“prior work” coverage limitation or exclusion applicable to any Services to be 
performed under this Agreement. 

e. Contractual Liability coverage at least as broad as coverage provided by the ISO 
CG 00 01 policy form must be included. 

f. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional 
Insureds on a primary and noncontributory basis The additional insureds must be 
covered for: 

i. Liability arising out of any premises or property utilized for any Services 
performed under this Agreement, and 

ii. Liability arising out of or related to this Agreement, including any 
Services performed hereunder by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, and 

3 



 
 
 

 
   
  

  

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
  

 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
      

iii. Products and completed operations of CONTRACTOR.

   A severability of interests provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, ensuring 
that CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom 
claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s limits of liability. 

B. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be on a state-approved policy form providing 
statutory benefits as required by law and Employer’s Liability coverage with limits no 
less than $1,000,000 per accident or disease for all covered losses.  If CONTRACTOR is 
self-insured with respect to Workers’ Compensation coverage, CONTRACTOR shall 
provide a Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure from the California Department of 
Industrial Relations confirming CONTRACTOR’s self-insured status.  Such self-
insurance shall meet the minimum limit requirements and waive subrogation rights in 
favor of the District as stated below.  If the CONTRACTOR is a sole proprietorship or 
partnership, with no employees, and is exempt from carrying Workers Compensation 
insurance, CONTRACTOR must submit a letter to the District stating that he/she is either 
the owner of the entity or a partner of the entity performing the Services, and is exempt 
from the State of California’s Workers Compensation requirements because he/she has 
no employees.  

CONTRACTOR and its Workers’ Compensation insurance must waive any rights of 
subrogation against the District and its directors, officers, officials, agents, volunteers, 
and employees, and CONTRACTOR shall defend and pay any damages as a result of 
failure to provide the waiver of subrogation from the insurance carrier(s). 

C. Excess or Umbrella Liability Insurance 

If excess or umbrella policies are used to meet the insurance requirements of this 
Agreement, they shall provide coverage at least as broad as specified for the underlying 
coverages, and the full limits of the umbrella or excess coverage shall be available to the 
District.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers and employees must be covered as additional insureds and 
such policy or policies shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that coverage 
shall also apply on a primary and noncontributory basis to the District before the 
District’s own primary insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a 
Named Insured.  A severability of interests provision must apply for all additional 
insureds, ensuring that CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom the claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the 
insurer’s limits of liability. 
1. Business Auto Liability 

4 



 
  

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 

a. CONTRACTOR shall provide Business Auto Liability coverage on a policy form 
that provides coverage at least as broad as coverage provided under ISO Business 
Auto Coverage form CA 00 01, and that includes, but is not limited to, the 
coverage limits and coverage provisions outlined below. 

b. Coverage must be provided for “Bodily Injury” and “Property Damage” Liability 
caused by an accident and resulting from the ownership, maintenance or use of 
covered autos. 

c. The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and 
maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the 
Named Insured, including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the minimum 
limits specified below: 

$1,000,000 per Occurrence/Accident for Bodily Injury and Property      
Damage Liability. 

d. Covered “autos” must include all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. 

e. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional 
Insureds with respect to “any auto” owned, leased, hired or borrowed by 
CONTRACTOR. The policy(ies) shall contain or be endorsed to contain a 
provision that coverage shall apply on a primary and noncontributory basis to the 
District before the District’s own primary insurance or self-insurance shall be 
called upon to protect it as a Named Insured. 

f. A severability of interests provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, 
ensuring that CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s 
limits of liability. 

g. [Where applicable] The policy shall be endorsed to include Transportation 
Pollution Liability insurance covering materials to be transported by 
CONTRACTOR in any Services to be performed under this Agreement. 
Alternatively, this coverage may be provided on the CONTRACTOR’s Pollution 
Liability Policy. 

2. Professional Liability (aka Errors and Omissions) 
*Architects, Engineers, Surveyors and Third-Party Construction Management Entities. 

The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and maximum 
limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the Named Insured, 
including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the following: $1,000,000 per 

5 



 
     

 
  

          

 

 
  

 
  

  
 

  
 

  

 
 
 
  

 

  

  

occurrence or claim and $2,000,000 aggregate.  Coverage may be written on a claims-
made form.  If coverage is on a claims-made basis, the coverage must be maintained for 
at least 3 years after all Services under this Agreement are complete and additional 
claims-made coverage requirements apply as described below. 

Pollution Liability 

a. CONTRACTOR shall provide pollution liability coverage that includes, but is not 
limited to, the coverage limits and coverage provisions outlined below. 

b. Coverage must be included for bodily injury and property damage, including 
coverage for loss of use and diminution in property value, and for resultant clean-
up costs, arising out of the or resulting from: 

(i) any Services performed under this Agreement, including 
(ii) any storage or transportation, including the loading or unloading of, 

hazardous wastes, hazardous materials, or contaminants. 
The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and 
maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the 
Named Insured, including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the following: 

$5,000,000 per Occurrence Each Pollution Condition; 
$5,000,000 Aggregate Liability. 

c. Coverage may be written on a claims-made form.  If coverage is on a claims-
made basis, the coverage must be maintained for at least 3 years after all Services 
performed under this Agreement are complete and additional claims-made 
coverage requirements apply as described below. 

d. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional 
Insureds by way of an endorsement to the policy. The policy(ies) shall also 
contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that coverage shall apply on a 
primary and noncontributory basis to the District before the District’s own 
primary insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a Named 
Insured. 

e. A severability of interests provision must apply for all the additional insureds, 
ensuring that CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s 
limits of liability. 

Provisions for All Required Insurance for District Contractors 

A. Deductibles, Self-Insurance, Self-Insured Retentions 
Any deductibles, self-insurance, or self-insured retentions (SIRs) applicable to required 
insurance coverage must be declared to and accepted by the District. At the option and 

6 



  

 

   
 

 
 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

  

 
 

  

request of the District, CONTRACTOR shall provide documentation of its financial 
ability to pay the deductible, self-insurance, or SIR.   

B. Acceptability of Insurers 
Unless otherwise reviewed and accepted by the District, all required insurance must be 
placed with insurers with a current A. M. Best's rating of no less than A – VII. The 
insurers shall be admitted, or approved by the Surplus Lines Association, to do business 
in California. 

C. Claims-made Coverage 
For any coverage that is provided on a claims-made coverage form (which type of form 
is permitted only where specified in the insurance requirements outlined above): 
(i) The retroactive date must be shown, and must be before the date of this Agreement, 

and before the beginning of any Services related to this Agreement. 
(ii) Insurance must be maintained and Certificates of Insurance must be provided to the 

District for at least three (3) years after expiration of this Agreement. 
(iii) If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 

policy form with a retroactive date prior to the effective date of this Agreement or the 
start of any Services related to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR must purchase an 
extended reporting period for a minimum of three (3) years after expiration of the 
Agreement. 

(iv) If requested by the District, a copy of the policy’s claims reporting requirement must 
be submitted to the District for review. 

D. Notice of Claims 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide immediate notice to the District of any loss or claim 
against CONTRACTOR arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, or Services 
performed under this Agreement.  The District assumes no obligation or liability by such 
notice, but has the right (but not the duty) to monitor the handling of any such claim or 
claims if they are likely to involve the District. 

E. Proof of Compliance 
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide evidence of insurance required herein, satisfactory to 
the District, consisting of Certificates of Insurance, evidencing all of the coverages 
required.  CONTRACTOR agrees, upon request by the District, to provide complete, 
certified copies of any policies within 10 days of such request. (Copies of policies may be 
redacted to eliminate premium details.)  All Certificates of Insurance must be received 
and accepted by the District before any Services are performed under this Agreement 
commences.  Acceptance of CONTRACTOR’s Certificates of Insurance or any other 
evidence of insurance coverage does not constitute any guarantee that CONTRACTOR’s 
insurance meets the requirements herein.  It is CONTRACTOR’s responsibility to ensure 
its compliance with these insurance requirements.  Any actual or alleged failure on the 
part of the District to obtain proof of insurance required under this Agreement shall not in 
any way be construed to be a waiver of any right or remedy of the District, in this or any 
regard. 

F. Notice of Cancellation/Non-Renewal/Material Reduction 

7 



  
 

 
  

 

CONTRACTOR agrees to provide written notice to the District thirty (30) days prior to 
cancellation of coverage required under this Agreement, or of any material reduction or 
non-renewal of such coverage, other than for non-payment of premium which shall 
require a 10-day prior written notification.  Replacement of coverage with another policy 
or insurer, without any lapse in coverage or any reduction below these requirements does 
not require notice beyond submission to the District of an updated Certificate of 
Insurance. 

8 



 

  

 

        
 

 

    

   

   

      

         

 

     

  

 

 

 

    

    

   

     

 

    

  

     

 

EXHIBIT C 

Updated Improvement Priority Lists for Station No. 1 and 2 (3/23/22) 

Improvement Priority List for Fire Station No. 1 

- Increase the height of the apparatus bay doors (front side) and automatic openers for rear 

- Install a new two-stage compressor and construct a compressor enclosure. Plumb the 

apparatus bay for compressed air 

- Design and install a new HVAC system throughout the main fire station building (both sides). 

- Reconfigure the living space to provide two dorm spaces and dayroom space for three 

personnel 

- Reconfigure crew restroom and kitchen to modernize the kitchen, bathroom and day room 

space and bring the refrigerators out of the apparatus bay into the kitchen. 

Improvement Priority List for Fire Station No. 2 

- Increase the height of the apparatus bay doors (both sides) 

- Design and install a new HVAC system throughout the fire station. 

- Reconfigure dorm space to improve functionality and comfort 

- Remodel the kitchen to provide space for three refrigerators (to be relocated from the laundry 

area) 

- Provide a screened in area with a half-wall and exercise flooring for the rear patio area where 

the exercise equipment is located 

- Replace and expand the concrete area in the rear of the station 



 

 

 

 

 

 

  

    

     

 

 

    

       

   

  

 

  

  

  

 

         

  

 

  

   

 

 

 

     

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

  

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT C

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR DESIGN-BUILD SERVICES 

FIRE STATION PROJECTS 

December 2, 2021 

Valley Center Fire Protection District (VCFPD), is soliciting proposals from three pre-qualified 

Design-Build Entities (D-BEs) to design and construct a temporary fire station and fire station 

improvement projects to serve the community of Valley Center.  The temporary fire station site 

is located northwest of the intersection of Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane. The fire 

station improvement projects are located at VCFPD Station Nos. 1 and 2. 

This RFP is the second step in the two-step Design-Build process set forth in the design-build 

provisions of the Public Contract Code. Proposals shall be accepted from the following three 

Design-Build Entities who were pre-qualified by the VCFPD in step one of the process, Request 

for Statements of Qualifications (RFSQ): 

 EC Constructors, Inc./JKA Architecture 

 Erickson-Hall/PBK-WLC Architects 

 I.E. Pacific, Inc./Tectonics A-E 

Proposals for the VCFPD Fire Station Projects must be received on or before 2:00 p.m. on 

January 10, 2022, at the following address: 

Joe Napier, Fire Chief 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 

28234 Lilac Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 

One hard copy original, four (4) hard copies, and one electronic copy of the proposal shall be 

received by the Fire Chief’s office, within said time limit, in a sealed envelope identified on the 

outside with the Offeror’s Business Name, RFP for the Valley Center Fire Protection District 

Fire Station Projects and the Due Date.  As the selection of the D-BE will be based on VCFPD’s 
determination of “Best Value”, there will be no public opening of proposals. 

Written questions regarding this RFP must be received no later than December 15, 2021.  

Questions may then be responded to by written amendment to this document.  Oral statements 

or instructions shall not constitute an amendment to the RFP.  All questions shall be in 

writing and shall be directed to: 

Robin Biglione via email at: robinraeputnam@gmail.com. All questions and answers shall be 

distributed to all proposers. 

Sincerely, 

Joe Napier, Fire Chief 

1 

mailto:robinraeputnam@gmail.com


 

 

 

 

  

  

 

    

  

 

 

    

  

    

  

 

 

  

    

  

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

   

 

  

 

  

  

 

  

 

 

   

 

  

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

DESIGN/BUILD SERVICES 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 VCFPD, is issuing this Request for Proposal to solicit proposals from Design-

Build Entities (D-BEs) to provide pre-construction, design, value engineering, 

constructability review, construction management, construction and operations, 

and startup and commissioning services for a new temporary fire station to be 

located northwest of the intersection of Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane in 

the community of Valley Center and for fire station improvements at VCFPD 

Station Nos. 1 and 2. 

This Request for Proposal (RFP) is the second step in the two-step Design-Build 

process set forth in the design-build provisions of the Public Contract Code. 

Proposals shall only be accepted from the three Design-Build Entities (D-BEs) 

who were pre-qualified by the VCFPD in step one of the process, Request for 

Statements of Qualifications (RFSQ). 

The D-BE is to provide a Design-Build Team (DBT) that shall consist of the D-

BE and all relevant Architects/Engineers/Designers. All DBT members shall be 

licensed/registered with the State of California under their respective professions.  

The VCFPD discourages identifying subcontractors in the proposal.  The VCFPD 

would like to be involved in decisions regarding subcontractor selection to 

promote competition and to ensure best value selections. 

This RFP describes all the elements of the projects, the required scope of services, 

the DB-E selection process, and minimum information that must be included in 

the proposal.  Failure to submit information in accordance with the RFP's 

requirements and procedures may be a cause for disqualification. 

1.2 Award will be based on best value, not on lowest responsible bidder. 

2.0 BACKGROUND 

The VCFPD obtained County approval of a Lot Line Adjustment to establish a 10-acre 

parcel for acquisition by the VCFPD.  The VCFPD now owns the approximately 10-acre 

parcel shown in Attachment 1 and plans to construct a permanent fire station on the site 

in the future.  The portion of the 10-acre site planned for the temporary fire station is 

located on the most northerly portion of the property to allow the temporary station to 

remain operational while the permanent facility is under construction. Attachment 2 is 

the conceptual Site Plan for Temporary Fire Station No. 3. 

As part of the Lot Line Adjustment planning process, County Planning & Development 

Services determined that a Site Plan Exemption would be appropriate for the Temporary 

Fire Station No. 3 project, so the temporary fire station project has been referred to 

County Building for further processing.  In discussions with the County, it appears that a 

2 



 

 

 

 

 

 

   

       

  

 

   

 

  

  

  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

    

  

 

    

 

 

  

  

   

  

   

 

    

   

 

  

   

 

Plot Plan will be required to be processed, which will include review by the Valley 

Center Planning Group. 

Aside from the Plot Plan process, is appears that the processing will include standard 

County commercial building plan and large grading plan submittal requirements.  

Attachment 3 includes the County’s applicable building and grading submittal handouts.  

For purposes of the scope of work, DBs should assume that the County will require a 

hydrology study and SWMP to accompany the grading plan submittal and that a NOI and 

SWPPP will be required to meet stormwater compliance requirements.  In addition, DB-

Es should assume landscape and irrigation plans will be required for the slopes created 

following grading for the temporary fire station. The DB-E will be responsible for 

working with the County to determine the specific submittal requirements. 

3.0 DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

The Project includes design and construction of Temporary Fire Station No. 3 as 

conceptually shown on Attachment 2 and described in Attachment 4. Attachment 5 

includes a preliminary geotechnical study prepared for the entire 10-acre Fire Station No. 

3 site. The D-BE’s work on Temporary Fire Station No. 3 will begin with a though 

review of the conceptual Site Plan.  The D-BE will work with the VCFPD to make 

revisions to that Site Plan prior to proceeding with preparation of construction plans and 

required studies for review and approval by the County.  The Temporary Fire Station No. 

3 project will require architectural, structural, mechanical, plumbing, electrical 

engineering, on-site wastewater treatment design and landscape and irrigation design. 

The Temporary Fire Station No. 3 project includes relocation of the temporary fire station 

facilities from a temporary fire station site located at 2604 Overlook Point Drive, 

Escondido, CA, 92029, and extending permanent water and electrical utilities from Cole 

Grade Road to the project site.  The D-BE will be responsible for coordinating with 

Valley Center Municipal Water District and San Diego Gas & Electric and preparing the 

necessary plans for utility extension. The budget for Temporary Fire Station No. 3 is $1 

million. 

In addition, the project includes approximately $500,000 in improvements to Fire 

Stations No. 1 and 2, with approximately one-half of the $500,000 budget to be allocated 

to each station.  The selected DB-E will work with VCFPD to accomplish as many of the 

projects from each station’s priority list as possible.  Attachment 6 includes priority lists 

for the stations. 

The Project will include all design, engineering, permits, grading, construction, material, 

labor, special observation, inspection, testing, and verification. D-BE will be responsible 

for obtaining all required permits, including federal, state, and local governance as well 

as coordination with all utilities and other regulatory agencies, start up and 

commissioning required for occupancy and operations.  The VCFPD will pay the actual 

cost of all permits and fees, including County and agency plan check and inspection fees. 

3 



 

  

  

 

   

  

      

  

 

    

  

 

   

 

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

   

 

  

  

   

    

 

  

  

  

    

   

  

        

    

  

     

   

 

4.0 DESIGN BUILD SERVICES 

The services sought by this RFP include all services necessary to design and construct 

the Project.  The design and construction must comply with the requirements of all 

applicable Federal, State, County, and local agencies having jurisdiction over the 

Project. The D-BE shall work to obtain approvals in increments that will facilitate the 

schedule. The completed Project is to be a fully functioning temporary fire station and 

fully functioning fire station improvements as described in this RFP. 

4.1 The Scope of Work includes, but is not limited to, the following services during 

design, approvals, construction, and closeout: 

1. Architectural and engineering design services, including structural, civil, 

stormwater, on-site wastewater, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, 

landscape, fire sprinkler, and fire alarm systems. 

2. Geotechnical Engineering, testing, investigation, and observation. 

3. Material testing and special inspection services. 

4. Survey, layout, and staking. 

5. Submittals and approvals from all agencies having jurisdiction, 

6. Project engineering and project management. 

7. Supervision, safety program, quality assurance/quality control, and site 

security. 

8. Abatement, demolition (if required), material recycling/diversion 

program, and removal. 

9. Construction, materials, equipment, labor and supplies. 

10. Site clearing, soil import/export, on-site grading, and off-site grading as 

required. Construction and coordination with utilities regarding 

communication loops and connections, for complete and operating 

systems. 

11. Startup of systems and equipment and commissioning. 

12. Coordination and scheduling of work. 

13. Insurance and bonding. 

14. Temporary facilities and services required for construction of the Project 

including, but not limited to: temporary office facilities, signage, fencing 

for site control, etc. 

15. Design and installation of communications, alerting, and alarm, including 

both backbone and secondary distribution to equipment. The D-BE will 

coordinate with the VCFPD’s IT Manager who will specify, purchase and 

install computer systems in coordination with the D-B.  The trailers to be 

relocated to the site include sprinklers and smoke detectors.  These 

systems will have to be connected to electrical and water facilities and 

4 



 

  

 

   

 

   

  

  

    

 

  

  

   

 

  

   

 

   

   

  

  

  

   

      

    

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

    

 

   

  

  

 

 

   

wired to a local alarm bell.  The D-BE will be responsible for designing 

the alerting system and providing the alerting system equipment for the 

Temporary Fire Station. The alerting system used by VCFPD is US 

Digital Designs Phoenix G2. 

16. Meetings, reporting, and documentation including preparation and proper 

submittal of certified payroll. 

17. Coordination, scheduling and conducting of progress meetings with 

VCFPD representatives and the Architect as required and directed by the 

VCFPD. 

18. Compliance of the design and construction with all applicable codes, 

ordinances, regulations, and requirements of agencies having jurisdiction 

over the Project. 

4.2 The selected D-BE shall be responsible for completion of the design and 

construction of the Project in accordance with: 

1. The RFP. 

2. The Contract. 

3. The D-BE’s Proposal. 

4. The approved design and construction documents. 

5. The required agency approvals. 

6. The agreed Project Schedule. 

7. The Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP). Please note that this project 

will use the “Progressive” design-build delivery method. The project will 

be delivered in two distinct phases, pre-construction and construction. 

The GMP and schedule will be established after the project has been 

sufficiently designed, working in collaboration with the VCFPD, to meet 

the project’s goals.  The VCFPD shall maintain control over design 

definition. The contract will be established on a cost plus fee basis, with 

a Guaranteed Maximum Price.  The contract will require full 

transparency into the D-BE’s cost, including an ability to be involved in 

subcontractor procurement and best value selection of subcontractors. 

The contract will be structured so that all savings are returned to the 

VCFPD. 

5.0 PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS 

5.1 The undertaking and accomplishment of this Project is required by State law to comply 

with the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 22160, et seq. Nothing in this 

RFP is intended nor should be interpreted as contravening the provisions of that Code 

as it relates to design build and best value. 

5.2 The undertaking and accomplishment of this project is required by State law to comply 

5 



 

   

   

 

    

    

   

 

  

 

  
 

   

  

 

 

 

   

   

 

    

     

    

   

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

  

      

 

with the requirements of Labor Code Sections 1770, et seq. Nothing in this RFP is 

intended nor should it be interpreted as contravening the provisions of that code. 

5.3 The D-BE shall be fully knowledgeable of and shall comply with the provisions of 

Public Contract Code Section 1770, et seq., including the general prevailing wage rates 

and reporting requirements. Further, the D-BE shall be fully knowledgeable and 

comply with the provisions of Public Contract Code Section 22160, et seq. which 

include provisions related to the design-build delivery method. 

6.0 RFP SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

6.1 General RFP Requirements: 

All D-BEs are required to follow the format specified below. The content of the 

proposal must be clear, concise, and complete. Each section of the proposal shall be 

presented according to the outline shown below to aid in expedient information 

retrieval. 

One (1) original and four (4) copies and one electronic copy of the sealed proposal 

shall be delivered no later than 2:00 P.M. on Monday, January 10, 2022, to: 

Joe Napier, Fire Chief 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 

28234 Lilac Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 

Please note that faxed copies will not be accepted.  Also note that incomplete 

proposals, incorrect information, or late submittals may be cause for immediate 

disqualification.  The VCFPD reserves the right to amend the RFP prior to the date 

that proposals are due.  Amendments to the RFP shall be emailed to all potential D-

BEs.  The VCFPD reserves the right to extend the date by which the proposals are due. 

6.1.1 The proposal should be concise, well organized and demonstrate the D-BE’s 

qualifications and experience applicable to the Project.  The proposal shall be 

inclusive of resumes, graphics, forms, pictures, photographs, dividers, front 

and back cover, cover letter, etc. 

6.2 Contents 

Sealed proposals submitted in response to this RFP shall be in the following order and 

shall include: 

6.2.1 General Information: 

1. Executive Summary. 

2. Provide a narrative (maximum 4 pages) that highlights D-BE’s 
approach to this project and D-BE’s commitment to meet or exceed the 

VCFPD’s objectives and ensure a successful project built on time and 

within budget. 

6 



 

 

  

  

 

  

   

 

 

 

 

 

  

    

   

 

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

  

     

  

    

  

 

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

3. Describe how the Design-Build team will participate together in 

design review, constructability review, estimating, value 

engineering, scheduling and phasing, and construction methods. 

4. Identify each DBT member.  Provide a description of any design-

build fire station projects that the team has completed together and 

provide contact information for references for those projects. 

5. Legal name and address. 

6. Name, title, address and telephone number of person(s) to be 

assigned to Project. 

7. Name, title, address and telephone number of person to contact 

concerning the proposal. 

6.2.2 Lifecycle Cost Analysis 

Provide a narrative and spreadsheet including a 15 year lifecycle cost 

analysis for Temporary Fire Station No.3, which should include, but not 

be limited to energy consumption costs, operation and maintenance costs, 

life expectancy, replacement costs, and total cost of ownership over fifteen 

(15) years. 

6.2.3 Project Schedule 

Provide a schedule that that includes major tasks from Notice of Award to 

Final Completion.  Also, confirm that DBT can meet the VCFPD’s Final 

Completion date of October 27, 2022. 

6.2.4 Preliminary Costs 

Complete Preliminary Cost Worksheet in format detailed in Attachment 7. 

The Preliminary Cost Worksheet requests costs for design and pre-

construction.  The DB-E’s fee percentage for construction and costs for 

General Conditions/General Requirements are also requested.  In addition, 

percentages for payment and performance bonds, liability insurance and 

builder’s risk insurance are requested. 

6.2.5 Project Organization and Key Personnel 

1. Describe proposed Project organization and provide an 

organizational chart, including identification and responsibilities of 

key personnel. 

2. Describe the D-BE’s staffing plan during preconstruction and 

construction.  Identify which staff members will be on-site. 

Provide the percentage of each staff member’s time that will be 

devoted to the project during both design and construction.  

Indicate the role and responsibilities of the D-BE and all 

subconsultants. Indicate how local firms are being utilized to 

ensure a strong understanding of local laws, ordinances, 

regulations, policies, requirements, permitting, etc. Indicate extent 

of commitment of key personnel for duration of Project (through 

building occupation) and furnish resumes of key personnel. 

7 



 

  

 

 

     

 

   

  

 

 

   

  

  

   

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

  

    

  

 

 

  

 
  

  

  

 

  

 

 

  

----

3. If a trade contractor is listed in the RFP for preconstruction 

services, provide all qualifications as well as a narrative describing 

their added value in the preconstruction process. 

4. The VCFPD’s evaluation of D-BE will consider its entire team; 

therefore, no changes in team composition will be allowed without 

prior written approval of the VCFPD. The VCFPD reserves the 

right to review and approve subconsultants not listed in the 

proposal.  Describe DBT’s capacity to perform the work within the 

time limitations, considering DBT’s current and planned workload 

and DBT’s workforce. 

6.2.6 Exceptions to this RFP and Contract Form 

The D-BE shall certify that it takes no exceptions to this RFP or the 

anticipated use of AIA Owner-Design-Builder Agreement A141-2014.  If 

the D-BE does take exception(s) to any portion of the RFP or the use of 

AIA Owner-Design-Builder Agreement A141-2014, the specific portion 

of the RFP or Agreement to which exception is taken shall be identified 

and explained. 

6.2.7 Addenda to this RFP 

DB-E shall confirm in its proposal the receipt of all addenda issued to this 

RFP. D-BE is not required to include copies of the actual addenda in its 

proposal. 

6.2.8 Additional Information 

This section shall contain all the other pertinent information that is 

required to be submitted with the proposal in the following order: 

1. Confirmation that DBT can meet the insurance requirements 

specified in this RFP. 

2. Indicate whether D-BE proposes to self-perform construction work 

and, if so, what trades. The VCFPD discourages identifying work 

to be self-performed in the proposal.  The VCFPD would like to be 

involved in decisions regarding subcontractor selection and work 

to be self-performed to promote competition and to ensure best 

value selections. 

3. Provide the following information: 

a) List of fire station and other municipal design-build 

projects completed in the last year. 

b) Provide references for the work of the D-BE on the projects 

listed in a). 

7.0 PROPOSAL EVALUATION CRITERIA 

7.1 Selection of the DB will be based on best value, not on lowest responsible bidder.  

Proposals shall be evaluated and ranked based on best value as determined by the 

following factors and relative weights of importance: 

8 



 

   

 

 

 

 

 

    

  

 

 

    

  

 

 

   

 

 
 

       

 

  

 

   

   

 

     

  

  

  

   

 

    

 

  

 

  

     

 

    

   

 

  

1. 15% - Overall experience and technical competence of the teams(s) 

(including principal firms and sub-consultants) and demonstrated specific 

experience and technical competence on projects with similar design, 

coordination and construction complexity.  Experience as a team is an 

important consideration in this factor. 

2. 10% - Appropriateness of Staffing Levels as indicated on the DB Cost for 

Preconstruction Services and General Conditions/General Requirements 

breakdowns required as attachments to the Preliminary Cost Worksheet 

(Attachment 7). 

3. 15% - The experience of key DB-E and Architect personnel working on 

fire station and other municipal projects together.  Projects with a design-

build delivery method will be evaluated most positively. 

4. 10% - Rates and Fees including Preconstruction Costs, D-BE Fees, 

General Conditions/General Requirements, payment and performance 

bond rates, and insurance rates. 

5. 5% - Life cycle costs over 15 years for Temporary Fire Station No. 3. 

6. 20% - Project approach, including proposed methods and overall strategic 

plan to accomplish the work in a timely and competent manner, including 

Preliminary Schedule. Demonstration of understanding of the role of 

teamwork for a successful Progressive Design-Build project. 

7. 10% - Combination of the following factors: 

a. Conformance to the specified RFP requirements and format. 

b. Organization, presentation, and content of the submittal. 

c. Knowledge and understanding of the State and local environment 

and a local presence for interfacing with the VCFPD. 

8. 15% - Proposal Interview – Optional at Discretion of VCFPD 

7.2 The VCFPD reserves the right to discuss and negotiate scope, costs, and schedule 

as needed starting with the top rated D-BE, followed by next highest rated, and so 

forth.  At any time prior to the VCFPD executing a Design-Build contract with 

the selected firm, if that D-BE cannot meet any of the RFP conditions, the 

VCFPD has the option of opening negotiations with the next highest rated D-BE. 

7.3 The VCFPD may conduct interviews as part of the evaluation process.  If the 

VCFPD does conduct interviews, information provided during the interviews will 

be taken into consideration when evaluating the stated criteria.  The VCFPD will 

not reimburse the D-BE for the costs associated with the interview process. 

Interviews will be held at a time and place specified by the VCFPD.  The DBTs 

key project team members will be invited to attend the interview.  At the 

interview, the DBTs should be prepared to discuss their specific experience 

9 



 

 

 

   

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

    

 

 

  

   

  

 

  

 

 

  

 

    

    

 

     

 

  

 

  

 

   

  

 

 

 

        

 

 

providing services similar to those described in the RFP, project approach, 

estimated work effort, available resources, and other pertinent things that 

distinguish your team from others. 

7.4 The VCFPD reserves the right to make such additional investigations as it deems 

necessary to establish the competence and financial stability of any D-BE 

submitting a proposal. 

7.5 The VCFPD may take previous experiences with the proposer into consideration 

when evaluating qualifications and experience. 

8.0 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

8.1 The D-BE shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract, insurance 

against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property, which may arise 

from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the DBT, 

his/her agents, representatives, employees or sub-consultants.  All sub-contractors 

and sub-consultants shall be required to comply with the applicable insurance 

provisions.  The maintenance of proper coverage is a material element of the 

Design-Build Contract and that failure to maintain or renew coverage or to 

provide evidence of renewal may be treated by the VCFPD as a material breach of 

contract. 

8.2 Minimum Insurance Requirements 

See Attachment 8 for insurance requirements.  Before an exposure to loss may 

occur, the D-BE shall file with the VCFPD certificates of insurance and 

additional insured endorsements on forms specified by the VCFPD, 

providing evidence of the required insurance. Each policy shall contain a 

provision that the policy will not be canceled or allowed to expire until at least 

thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the VCFPD. 

9.0 PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

9.1 All response documents become the property of VCFPD and subject to Public 

Records Act requirements of California Government Code section 6250, et seq. 

D-BE is encouraged to mark any documents “CONFIDENTIAL” that they deem 

to be confidential before submission to VCFPD. Information provided will be 

kept confidential to the extent permitted by law.  The proprietary or confidential 

data shall be readily separable from the Proposal in order to facilitate eventual 

public inspection of the non-confidential portion of the Proposal. 

VCFPD assumes no responsibility for disclosure or use of unmarked data for any 

purpose. 

10 



 

  

 

  

 

 

    

 

    

 

     

 

   

 

   
 

   

 

  

 

   

 

 

    

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

   

  

    

 

  

   

    

10.0 PROPOSAL SCHEDULE 

10.1 The solicitation receipt and evaluation of proposals and the selection of the D-BE 

will conform to the following schedule (Note: Dates are subject to change): 

 Distribution of RFP – December 2, 2021 

 Deadline for Questions on RFP – December 15, 2021 

 Submittal of Proposals Deadline – January 10, 2022, by 2:00 p.m. 

 Interviews with Selected Respondents – January 2022 

 Approval of Design/Build Contract(s)  –February 17, 2022 

 Final Completion Date – October 27, 2022 

11.0 CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

11.1 Selection is dependent upon the negotiation of a mutually acceptable contract 

with the successful D-BE. 

11.2 Each submittal shall be valid for not less than one hundred and twenty (120) 

calendar days from the date of receipt. 

11.3 All insurance shall be provided at the sole cost and expense of the D-BE selected, 

and shall be reimbursable in accordance with contract terms, unless the 

requirement is modified or waived by the VCFPD. The VCFPD reserves the right 

to modify the insurance limits or to substitute project insurance during contract 

negotiations. 

11.4 The selected D-BE will enter into a contract in substantially the same form as 

AIA A141-2014 Owner-Design-Builder Agreement. 

11.5 The VCFPD is under no obligation to award a contract under this RFP, and 

reserves the right to terminate the RFP process at any time, reject any or all 

Proposals received and/or to withdraw from discussions with all or any of the D-

BEs who have responded. 

11.6 The VCFPD in its sole discretion, reserves the right to terminate the RFP process 

and re-advertise with either the identical or revised terms, if it is deemed by the 

VCFPD in its sole discretion to be in the best interest of the VCFPD to do so. 

11.7 In the event of rejection of any or all responses, or the termination of the RFP 

process, the VCFPD shall not be liable for any loss, damage, cost or expense 

incurred or suffered by any offeror as a result of said rejection or cancellation. 

11 



 

 

   

  

  

  

 

   

 

 

  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

  

  

    

    

  

  

 

 

   

  

11.8 D-BEs warrant and covenant that no official or employee of the VCFPD, nor any 

business entity in which an official or employee of the VCFPD has an interest, 

has been employed or retained to solicit or aid in the RFP process nor have any 

such persons divulged any information to a D-BE not made available to all D-

BEs.  Further no official or employee of the VCFPD, nor any business entity in 

which an official or employee of the VCFPD has an interest, shall have any 

interest in any contract awarded to a D-BE. 

12.0 QUESTIONS 

All contacts from a D-BE related to this RFP or its Proposal must be directed by email to the 

VCFPD’s construction manager at the email address below.  D-BEs should not attempt to 

contact other VCFPD personnel. 

Robin Biglione 

Biglione Construction Management, Inc. 

Email:  robinraeputnam@gmail.com 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Site Location Map 

2. Site Plan for Temporary Fire Station No. 3 

3. County of San Diego Building and Grading Handouts 

4. Temporary Fire Station No. 3 Scope of Work 

5. Preliminary Geotechnical Study for Temporary Fire Station No. 3 Site 

6. Improvement Priority Lists for Station No. 1 and 2 

7. Preliminary Cost Worksheet 

8. Insurance Requirements 

Note:  The plans and reports provided in the Attachments are for reference only.  The D-BE is 

responsible for verifying all information provided. 

12 

mailto:robinraeputnam@gmail.com


_

. ' 
fi l l I ~TJ\!I ii\' 

,/ ·1 

/ 
✓ 

{., '"· . {_) 

• i t-_: 
--~) l ~ 

"' '\ 

,_.,,r '·· 

\ 
,-
) 

. I 
\'\._,,/ 

'"-._. 

,- ··-- · ,_ /.

\/J (1 \ ~ 
'· o, 

\ ' I'-) '\\ 
\ 

(' __ \ 1V./ I ! F/?_J'\/ AY/\ \ 
I\\ \ 

\ \,,; ' \ 
0 ' ' ..:' -·· \._ 

\ I 
/cu 

' 
\ ! i, ) ()/ 

__,/(~. 
/ 

,(( , /
., / ., 

I ) 

! 11/Ll:JAiE flD_ . 

~ . ..,. . i__~ ~Y!i.. C - ,. · ,.----'-•---.- ·.. _;;, . . 
• ., • • --- • "' ____, I 

.. .'"\,,__ . .1 COOL VAUEl'RD :cool VAil.ti' RD_ ·.,- ,. .. . :' ....._,...,. . 
., ... 

. / . . "'- . SITE 
' J 

) \{'-. I . >-' g \ 
\, 1"' I\ - C()Lt . (i/J.40r. ,rv . "/'AiiA(·\! ,4\'Pl ·~ RAB 

> ' , ' '( I • 
. I I 

_,.J 

\t\l, ~. AVA LN ·;w \'- .._r i -_, 
('' ---· '\ Valley Center 

. ·== ·1v~-'1, ) 
_) .·cc, ,.,_ 

,,.·1_; ,, 
··,,,. -'<~ .•··-

/,'.. .. 
... :.":l · ( <! ' ..., / -l_jr7 

I ... , ' - ~( (__)
I ...-, .... 
'--"' •\ 

(' . .... ,~ ·- ~ / '/' :x:.·- •• \' ·, " 
.,_/ ../ ·( :..::~ \ 1'·-. ""· _.,,,,,.,\- 1·_; -, \ 1 • "'•-.. •- - •- ·,,r....,• 

VIA VA ! FNC IA OR 

/ \ 
....._.l 

·,{':(! ,') ... ' '" "' "' '-Cl( ·' L : .:i:: 
' i •i'\~ 

-- ~ "i 
.. 7 

~ . "· 

Attachment 1 

Site Location Map t 
NorthCole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane 

Valley Center, California 



-------

ATTACHMENT 2 
SITE PLAN FOR TEMPORARY 

FIRE STATION NO. 3 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

N PARCEL 8 OF CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE B/C-20-0079 OESCRIBEO AS THE FAST 10.00 ACRES OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QLIARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 10 SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST. SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN, IN THE COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE 

OFFICIAL PLAT THEREOF. WHERE THE WEST LINE OF SA/0 FAST 10.00 ACRES IS PARAUEL WITH THE FAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QLIARTER OF SECTION 31. 

JE 

SCALE J" = 50' 

50 0 60 100 

EARTHWORK QUANTITIES 
CUT: 9,035 C.Y. 

FILL· 9,0JS C. Y. 

IMPORT: 0 C.Y. 

EARTHWORK QUANTITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE ANO ARE SUBJECT 
TO REVISIONS DURING FINAL DESIGN. AOJIJSTl,IENTS HAVE NOT BEEN 
MAO[ FOR REMEDIAL GRADING. 

PBBPMIBDINTBB OPFICB OP: PREPARED FOR 
BUCCOLA JOE NAPIER, FIRE CHIEF 

• VAUEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICTENGINEERING, inc 
28234 LILAC ROAD 
VAUEY CENTER, CA. 92082 

DATE PREPARED: Nov. 15, 2021 TELE: {760) 751-7600 
~ 
~ 
"' 1ii ... 

'-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------..:~ 
C 



Attachment 3 

County of San Diego 

Building and Grading Handouts 



New Commercial Shell Structure Plan Submittal: 

Form Name 

Commercial Building Permit Application (Interactive) 

Stormwater Intake Form (Interactive) 

Standard Project Stormwater Quality Management Plan 

Best Management Practices for Stormwater (file size 22MB) 

Best Management Practices for Stormwater Design Manual 

BMP Installation Verification Forni for Priority Development Projects 

Category I Structural BMP Maintenance Notification Agreement 

Customer Acknowledgment of Liabilities & Risks 

Optional Pre-Intake Assistance Conference 

Guards and Handrails 

Plot Plan Minimum Requirements 

Valuation Multiplier 

Sample Presentation for Stormwater BMPs 

Green Building Incentive Program 

Checklist for Commercial Buildings 

Building Permit Fee Schedule 

Hazardous Materials Questionnaire 

Wildland Urban Interface Code Requirements 

Fire Clearing FAQ Sheet 

State Disability Access Notice for Commercial Building Applicants 

Date 
MM/YY Number 

3/20 

02/19 

09/20 

04/10 

09/20 

09/20 

10/19 

05/20 

07/20 

09/12 

05/17 

06/17 

09/12 

09/12 

07/18 

07/21 

01/20 

05/17 

07/19 

PDS#293 

INTAKE FORM 

STANDARD SWQMP 

PDS #143 

BMP DESIGN MANUAL 

BMPVERIFY 

BMP MAINTENANCE 

PDS#001 

PDS #001b 

PDS#075 

FDS#090 

PDS#169 

PDS #2.72 

PDS #2.73 

PDS#492 

PDS#613 

DEH:HM-9171 

PDS#664 

PDS#800 

Access Notice 



GRADING AND IMPROVEMENT PLAN PRE-SCREENING CHECKLIST 
Grading and Improvement plans are subject to pre-screening by Planning & Development Services 
(PDS) Land Development Division prior to initial submittal. Plans must meet the following format 
requirements at a minimum. If plans do not meet any of the following, the submittal is subject to 
rejection. The pre-screened submittal will be returned within twenty (10) business days. 

Applications and plans shall be submitted to the Land Development Counter at: 
5510 Overland Ave Suite 110 San Diego, CA 92123. 

Private: Countv: 

□ Grading plans placed on 24" x 36"sheets with 1" border on all edges □ 
□ North arrow and scale on all sheets □ 
□ 

Vicinity map (distance shown to nearest street intersection, page, and section of 
Thomas Guide) □ 

□ Permittee's name, address and telephone number □ 
□□ 

Owner's name, address and telephone number (if same as Permittee, indicate on 
plan) 

□ 
Civil Engineer's name, address, telephone number, signature in title block, and 
stamp □ 

□ Short legal description □ 
□ Assessor's Parcel Number □ 
□ Site address □ 
□ 

Bench mark: show location on plan and describe in space provided (if datum is 
assumed, so note) □ 

□□ L, CG, TM, or TPM-Number in the block 

□ California Coordinate in title block □ 
□ Purpose of grading shown in the title block □ 
□ 

Show special use permit, rezone, TM, or TPM number, and dates of their approval 
next to title block where applicable □ 

□ Required General Notes □ 
□ Key map for projects covering several sheets □ 
□ 

Show existing contours (max. 5') to cover at least 50' beyond the property line or 
sufficient for showinQ drainage basin □ 

□ 
Best Management Practices Items proposed during construction and Post 
construction □ 

□ Drainage study □ 
□ 

Plans are related to a project with a previously approved discretionary permit 
(include a copy of the conditionally approved plot plan with the adopted Resolutions 
or Final Notice of Aooroval) □ 

□ Structural calculation for proposed designed retaining wall, if required □ 
□ Project Schedule □ 
□ Review Initial Deposit and Cost Estimate (if recommended by County Staff) □ 
□ Complete Application (County staff confirmed complete submittal) □ 

5510 OVERLAND AVE, SUITE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA 92123 • (858) 694-2055 
SDCPDS.ORG 

PDS-820 (Rev. 10/31/2019) PAGE 1 of5 

https://SDCPDS.ORG


County of San Diego, PDS, Land Development Division 
Continued 

If any of the following boxes are checked, an extra set of the project plan set with supporting 
documentation, studies, and/or other information will be sent to the respective specialist. 

PDS Environmental: All discretionary projects/applications require PDS Environmental review. 
(Except for Agricultural Grading plans and Grading plans for restoration which will be 
reviewed by PDS Project Planning) 

Project has previous Discretionary approval: 

D If Yes, please provide project name and permit number(s): ______ 

D If No, (PDS Environmental will determine environmental status upon initial review) 

Project received a Site Plan Waiver? D Yes D No 

If Yes. please provide Site Plan Record ID#:.____________ 

Planning & Development Services (PDS): 

D Project is for agricultural grading 
D Grading Plans required as restoration for grading violation as determined by the PDS 

Code Compliance Division or the DPW Watercourse Enforcement Division. 
D Project proposes grading into an open space easement 

DPW Private Development Construction Inspection (PDCI}: 

Project proposes grading under an L-Grading Permit Application □ 
Project is the result of a Watercourse Violation under the County Grading Ordinance □ 

DPW Capital Improvement Program (CIP): 

Project is located within, along, or adjacent to a listed Public Road on the current□ 
County five (5) year CIP Plan 
Sidewalk and pedestrian ramp improvements deviate from ADA requirements□ 
Project proposes public pathways □ 

5510 OVERLAND AVE, SUITE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA 92123 • (858) 694-2055 
SDCPDS.ORG 

PDS-820 (Rev. 10/31/2019) PAGE 2 of 5 

https://SDCPDS.ORG


County of San Diego, PDS, Land Development Division 
Continued 

DPW Flood Control: 

Project is subject with National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) □ 
Project is subject with County Flood Protection Ordinance, Resource Protection□ 
ordinance 
Project subject to County Flood Plain mapping □ 
Project impacts or required to construct master planned drainage facility □ 
Project is subject with County Hydrology Manual, Drainage Design Manual for major □ 
drainage course or master facility 
Easement dedication to San Diego County Flood Control District (SDCFCD) □ 

DPW Field Operations: 

D Project will violate the County 3-year Pavement Cut Policy 
D Project will make improvements to existing or future publicly maintained road for the 

purpose of acceptance into the County Maintained road system
D Project connects or intersects a private road to a County publicly maintained road 
D Project proposes modifications or eliminates pedestrian access to curb ramps or 

sidewalks 
D Project proposes raised medians (landscaped and/or hardscaped) within a County 

maintained road 
D Project proposes landscaping within or along a County maintained road 
D Project proposes connection to an existing or proposed County drainage system 
D Project proposes improvement or installation of drainage facilities to be County 

maintained 
D Project proposes improvements that do not meet minimum County Drainage Standards 

within the County maintained road system
D Project proposes permanent stormwater BMPs to be publicly maintained by the County 

of San Diego
D Project proposes a publicly maintained detention or retention basin and/or those which 

will drain directly into a County maintained drainage system or roadway
D Project proposes a Regional Standard Drawing D-25, Curb Outlet, or RSD D-27, 

sidewalk under drain within the County maintained road system (note: copy of the 
drainage study required to verify runoff will be contained within the gutter). 

DPW Materials Lab: 

D Project proposes paving under the Private or Public Road Standards, conditions of 
approval, or permit requirements 

D Project has Geotechnical/Geology issues (seismic, slope stability, potential rock fall, 
etc.) including specialized retaining or slope stability structures 

D Project requires "Geologic Hazard" memo 
D Project proposes designs employing non-standard methods and materials 

Note: If a geotechnical report is available, for the project, a copy of the report should be routed with 
the plans. A copy of conditions of approval or permit requirements must be provided with plans. 

5510 OVERLAND AVE, SUITE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA 92123 • (858) 694-2055 
SDCPDS.ORG 

PDS-820 (Rev. 10/31/2019) PAGE 3 of5 

https://SDCPDS.ORG


County of San Diego, PDS, Land Development Division 
Continued 

DPW Special Districts: 

D Project is in a Permanent Road Division, PRD Number___________ 
D Project proposes improvements that will connect or intersect a PRO road. 

PRO Number__________ 

DPW Traffic Engineering: 

Striping and pavement markings □ 
Traffic signs □ 
Traffic signals and flashers □ 
Guardrail installations □ 
Traffic Control Plans□ 
Traffic calming □ 

DPW Wastewater Engineering: 

D Project is located in a County Sanitation District 

Department of Environmental Health (DEH): 

Project site has existing water wells on the property □ 
Water wells are shown on the grading plan □ 
Water wells located within the area of proposed grading □ 
Water wells located on adjacent property near proposed grading □ 
Project site has existing monitoring wells on the property□ 
Properties adjacent to the project are currently using, or will use on-site sewage □ 
disposal systems 
5: 1 grading setbacks are shown from the top of cut to primary and/or reserve area□ 
disposal fields to adjacent properties that have or are approved for onsite sewage 
disposal systems 
Grading plan shows existing or proposed on-site sewage disposal system for project □ 
site 
Proposed earthen fill located over or near components of on-site sewage disposal □ 
systems 

Department of Parks and Recreation: 

Project is located adjacent to existing or proposed County park or preserve□ 
Project is conditioned to construct a public or private park □ 
Project is conditioned to construct public or private trails and/or pathways □ 
Project proposes an LLD/CFO which requires operations and/or management by DPR □ 

Note: A copy of conditions of approval or permit requirements must be provided with plans under 
Park and Recreation review. 

5510 OVERLAND AVE, SUITE 110, SAN DIEGO, CA 92123 • (858) 694-2055 
SDCPDS.ORG 

PDS-820 (Rev. 10/31/2019) PAGE 4 of 5 

https://SDCPDS.ORG


0-Items to be re-checked 

PDS20 -LDGR 
Grading Plan Check List 

10/2014 PDS LD 
By: ___ 

A. GENERAL FORMAT 
1. Grading plans to be placed on 24" X36"sheets withal" border on all edges. 

(Note that std. Mylar of first sheet is available for reproduction) 
2. Show North arrow and scale on all sheets. 
3. Vicinity map (show distance to nearest street intersection, page and section of 

Thomas Brothers). 
4. Permittee's name, address and telephone number. 
5. Owner's name, address and telephone number (if same as permittee, indicate on 

plan). 
6. Civil engineer's name, address, telephone number, signature in title block. 
7. Short legal description. 
8. Site address. 
9. Bench mark: show location on plan and describe in space provided (if datum is 

assumed, so note). 
10. L-number in the block. 
11. California coordinate in title block. 
12. Purpose of grading shown in the title block. 
13. Show special use permit, rezone, TM, or TPM number, and dates of their approval 

next to title block where applicable. 
14. Required General Notes (see page 3, 4). 
15. Key map for projects covering several sheets. 
16. NOI# - if disturbed area> 1 acre. 

B. GRADING TECHNICAL INSTRUCTION 
1. Show proper set back from property line (STD Drawings DS-11). 
2. Identify property and easement lines. 
3. Show amounts of excavation, fill & waste/import (cubic yards). 
4. Show cut and fill ratios on the plans, if other than standards. 
5. Show existing contours (max. 5'), to cover at least 50' beyond property line or 

sufficient for showing drainage basin. 
6. Show final grades by contours, and /or spot elevations. 
7. Show location of cut and placement of fill ("Daylight" and limit lines). 
8. Show typical lot drainage (see note 16 below). 
9. Show typical of berm or swale at top of fill (see note 16 below). 
10. Show typical of brow ditch (see note 16 below). 
11. Show percent of grade of streets and driveways, length of vertical curve, B.V. C., 

&E.V.C. 
12. Horizontal and vertical sight distance; cross-check improvement plans. 
13. Conditions ofresolution of approval ofM.U.P., Rezone, Tentative Map, TPM, etc., 

fulfilled. (If applicable). 
14. Grading plan compared with grading shown on T.M. (New E. I. R. or Resolution 

change possible). (If applicable). 
15. Grading plan compared with improvement plans prior to signature. (If applicable). 



0-Items to be re-checked 

16. Details may be omitted if the following statement is placed on plans: "All grading 
details will be in accordance with the San Diego County Standard Drawings DS-8, 
DS-10, DS-11, D75." 

17. If grading encroaches on adjacent property, submit letter of permission ( see H.5) 
and place appropriate note at location of encroachment including date of letter. 

18. Submit estimate 
(1) Plans>S,000 cy include all items to be constructed per the Grading permit 
(2) Plans<5,000 cy include those items requiring structure inspection such as 

drainage, retaining walls, irrigation systems, etc. 

C. DRAINAGE 
1. If diversion or concentration of existing drainage courses occurs, a signed waiver and 

release from the affected downstream owners must be submitted. Attach standard 
form to plans for execution. 

2. Indicate on the plans waiver and release for discharge of drainage onto adjacent 
property and date waiver signed. 

3. Drainage Map of all drainage areas affecting site. (200 scale county topo plus any 
other updated topo prepared by engineer/ surveyor) 

4. Hydrology and hydraulic calculations required. 
5. Check for non-erosive velocities at point of discharge, or adequate energy dissipater. 
6. Check for point of adequate discharge downstream (provide photos and calcs.). 
7. Show direction of street drainage and percent of slope plans. Give elevations at 

intersections and where required for clarity. 
8. Show size, length, gauge and profile of pipes, where drainage is to be installed with 

the grading plan. Show elevations and grades. Include details of all structures or 
give standard drawing number. 

9. Show width of all drainage easements. Show recording documentation and date of all 
off-site drainage easements. 

10. Check for existing or proposed levee or dam. 
11. DPW Flood Control Section review required for any of the following: 

a. Drainage system or facility proposed for Flood Control ownership/maintenance 
(e.g. detention basins and/or pipes/culverts greater than 42" in diameter outside the 
public road right-of-way) 
b. Proposed work or encroachment within an existing Flood Control District (FCD) 
Easement. 
c. FEMA and/or County-mapped Floodway/Floodplain on project site. 

D. LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION 
1. Show LD number on title sheet, Check with Dave Kahler on status. (Landscaping 

and irrigation plans required on slopes > 3 feet high and < 15' high) 

E. RETAINING WALLS 
1. One of the following: 

(1) Not a part of this plan (Building Inspection Permit) but show temporary 
slopes (same ratios as above). 

(2) County standard drawing number. 
(3) Designed wall- show details on plan-submit calculations and soil report 

for data backup. 

2 



0-Items to be re-checked 

2. Show elevations at top and bottom of wall (B.W.=T.F. top of footing). 
3. Profile is required for keystone retaining wall with special inspection notes. 

F. REFERRAL TO ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW BOARD (PDS Environmental) 
__ 1. CEQA Compliance 

G. SWMP 
1. Start from INTAKE Form. 
2. Show Construction BMPs on Erosion Control plans. 
3. Show Permanent TCBMPs on separate sheets. 
4. Input RECORD data to Excel: "Z:\PCCommon\LAND DEVELOPMENT 

TEAMS\PL-JURMP Annual Report FY 13-14 Susan.xlsx" 
** Create new "LDSWTR" Account on ACCELA (on hold till further notice.) 

H. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS AFFECTING THE GRADING PLAN 
1. Legal lot-proof that site is a legal lot ( always applicable). 
2. San Diego Coastal Commission permit: __Required _Not Required 
3. a.) If more than 500 C. Y. are to be removed from the site, see borrow pit permit, 

Ordinance 3792, amending Section 34 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
b.) Q>1,000 CY add import/export note. 
c.) When Q>10,000 CY or plan changes, it should bring to PM for public review 

notification requirement decision) 
4. If project is on land zoned for multi-residential development, commercial, industrial, 

manufacturing, or other more intensive use, the grading plan will have to be 
compared with the street improvements required by the Centerline Ordinance if any. 

5. Submit notification mailing package if major grading permit is not related to any other 
discretionary permit per Grading Ordinance Section 87 .208 

6. Public Notification is required for all Major Grading (See Sec. 87.208) 

IN-HOUSE REQUIREMENTS (NOT REQUIRED TO BE CHECKED BY ENGINEER OF 
WORK) 

1. Check for illegal grading. 
2. Required account balance, agreements have been submitted and/ or paid. 
3. Health Department clearance obtained (DEH DPW). 
4. Easement documents recorded and /or shown on record map. 
5. Other resources' review. 

3 



 
 

 

   

 

        

     

       

     

 

   

   

 

  

   

     

 

 

  

       

 

 

  

   

    

 

  

 

  

      

    

 

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

ATTACHMENT 4 

Temporary Fire Station No. 3 Scope of Work 

Valley Center Fire Protection District is planning a temporary fire station west of Cole 

Grade Road and north of Cole Grade Lane in the northwest corner of the property 

identified as Parcel B of Lot Line Adjustment No. B/C-20-0079. The proposed site plan 

is shown in more detail on the exhibit titled Site Plan for Valley Center Fire Station 

Phase 1. The temporary facilities will be located at least 150 feet west of the ultimate 

right-of-way for Cole Grade Road and will be enclosed with chain link fencing, with slats 

to minimize the visibility of the temporary station. Access is proposed via a gravel 

driveway located near the northerly property line. 

The temporary fire station is proposed to include two 864 square foot modular buildings, 

which are 15 feet tall; a metal carport for one Type 1 Fire Engine, which is 19 feet tall; 

and, two small storage sheds. The site is proposed to include 14 parking spaces. 

Site improvements, including parking, the areas surrounding the modular buildings, 

carport, storage sheds and utilities, are proposed to be gravel.  Pavement is only 

proposed in areas necessary to facilitate accessibility. Storm drain facilities and a 

biofiltration basin are also proposed. 

Three to five crew members will be on-site per shift.  Similar to a permanent station, 

these crew members will eat, sleep and perform administrative functions related to 

emergency calls at the temporary station. Limited public access is anticipated for the 

site.  Only handouts with educational material and public postings are anticipated.  All 

other administrative functions will be referred to Fire Station 1. 

The site will be served by electrical facilities, water from Valley Center Municipal Water 

District and an on-site septic system. A propane tank and emergency generator will 

also be located on the site. 

Project Components: 

Site grading for temporary site 

Move and set two trailers with ramps and a canopy for engines from Rancho Santa Fe 

Harmony Grove site 

Emergency Generator, including automatic transfer switch 

Propane tank pad and bollards 

Propane piping and connections to trailers 



  

 

   

   

    

   

    

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

Coordinate and provide electrical service to the site and site electrical to generator/ATS, 

gate and trailers 

Water connections from facility in Cole Grade Road to site and connections to trailers 

Stormwater basin and drainage facility to discharge under access road to property to 

the north, including headwall for drainage discharge into existing drainage ditch 

Septic System for trailers, including tank and leach field 

Cable TV and Data Connections from existing infrastructure to site and connections to 

trailers 

Alerting system (US Digital Designs Phoenix G2) connections to trailers and equipment 

Covered trash enclosure, if required by the County 

AC paving 

DG for access road and majority of site (if allowed by County) 

Concrete where necessary for handicap access 

Handicap parking with signage 

Handicap restroom (outside of trailers), if required by the County 

Any other required accessibility improvements 

Striping 

Fencing with slats to screen the temporary station 

Motorized access gate that operates with both keypad and remote 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
 

    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

   

Report
Geotechnical Investigation 

Proposed Fire Station #3
Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

Valley Center Fire Protection District 
28234 Lilac Road 
Valley Center, CA 92082 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B 
San Diego, California 92123 
858.292.7575 

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Clemente, CA 92673 
949.388.7710 

www.usa-nova.com 
NOVA Project 2020074 
August 20, 2020 



         

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
   
  

 
    

 
          

                       
                        
                         
 

  
 

   
    

  
   

 
       

     
  

 
  

 
 
        

    
        

       
 

        
    

      
      

   

GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

SPECIAL INSPECTION DVBE  SBE  SDVOSB  SLBE 

Valley Center Fire Protection District August 20, 2020 
28234 Lilac Road NOVA Project 2020074 
Valley Center, CA 92082 

Attention: Joe Napier, Fire Chief 

Subject: Report 
Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3 
Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 92082 

Dear Mr. Napier: 

NOVA Services, Inc. (NOVA) is pleased to forward herewith the above-referenced report. Work-
related to this report was completed by NOVA for Valley Center Fire Protection District (VCFPD) 
in accordance with the scope of work identified in NOVA’s revised proposal dated October 25, 
2019, as authorized by you on April 29, 2020. 

NOVA appreciates the opportunity to be of service to VCFPD on this most interesting project. 
Should you have any questions regarding this report or other matters, please contact the 
undersigned at 858.292.7575. 

Sincerely, 
NOVA Services, Inc. 

_________________________ 
Wail Mokhtar 
Senior Project Manager 

_________________________ 
John F. O’Brien, PE, GE 
Principal Geotechnical Engineer 

________________________ 
Melissa Stayner PG, CEG 
Senior Engineering Geologist 

_________________________ 
Hillary A. Price 
Senior Staff Geologist 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B www.usa-nova.com 944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Diego, CA 92123 San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 858.292.7575 P: 949.388.7710 

www.usa-nova.com


 
 
 

  
 

   
  

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
   

    

    
    
    

     
    
    
    

     

    

    

    
    
     
     

    
    
    
    
     
    
    
    

     

    

   
    
    

____________________________________________________________ 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Report
Geotechnical Investigation 

Proposed Fire Station #3 
Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 92082 

Table of Contents 

1.0 INTRODUCTION............................................................................................................. 1 

1.1 Terms of Reference....................................................................................................... 1 
1.1.1 General...................................................................................................................................... 1 
1.1.2 Related Reporting ..................................................................................................................... 2 

1.2 Objectives, Scope, and Limitations of This Work ....................................................... 2 
1.2.1 Objectives.................................................................................................................................. 2 
1.2.2 Scope ........................................................................................................................................ 2 
1.2.3 Limitations ................................................................................................................................. 3 

1.3 Understood Use of This Report.................................................................................... 3 

1.4 Report Organization...................................................................................................... 4 

2.0 PROJECT INFORMATION ............................................................................................. 5 

2.1 Site Description ............................................................................................................. 5 
2.1.1 Location..................................................................................................................................... 5 
2.1.2 Current Site Use........................................................................................................................ 5 
2.1.3 Historic Site Use........................................................................................................................ 6 

2.2 Planned Fire Station...................................................................................................... 7 
2.2.1 General...................................................................................................................................... 7 
2.2.2 Structures .................................................................................................................................. 8 
2.2.3 Floors, Pavements, and Parking ............................................................................................... 8 
2.2.4 Potential for Earthwork.............................................................................................................. 8 
2.2.5 Stormwater BMPs ..................................................................................................................... 8 
2.2.6 OWTS........................................................................................................................................ 8 
2.2.7 Miscellaneous............................................................................................................................ 8 

3.0 SUBSURFACE EXPLORATION AND LABORATORY TESTING .................................. 9 

3.1 General........................................................................................................................... 9 

3.2 Engineering Borings ....................................................................................................10
3.2.1 Excavation............................................................................................................................... 10 
3.2.2 Logging and Sampling ............................................................................................................ 10 

i of vi 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

  
 

   
  

 
 

  

    

   
    
    
    
   

   
    
    
    
     
    
    
    

   

   
    
    

   
    
    
    
    

   

      

   

   
    
    
    

   
    
    
    
    
    
    

   
     
    

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

3.2.3 Closure .................................................................................................................................... 11 

3.3 Percolation Testing ......................................................................................................11
3.3.1 General.................................................................................................................................... 11 
3.3.2 Drilling ..................................................................................................................................... 11 
3.3.3 Conversion to Percolation Well ............................................................................................... 12 
3.3.4 Percolation Testing.................................................................................................................. 12 

3.4 Laboratory Testing.......................................................................................................13
3.4.1 General.................................................................................................................................... 13 
3.4.2 R-Value ................................................................................................................................... 13 
3.4.3 Compaction ............................................................................................................................. 14 
3.4.4 Expansion Potential and Plasticity .......................................................................................... 15 
3.4.5 In-Place Soil Density ............................................................................................................... 15 
3.4.6 Gradation................................................................................................................................. 15 
3.4.7 Corrosion Potential.................................................................................................................. 15 

4.0 SITE CONDITIONS........................................................................................................16 

4.1 Geologic Setting...........................................................................................................16
4.1.1 Regional .................................................................................................................................. 16 
4.1.2 Site Specific............................................................................................................................. 16 

4.2 Surface, Subsurface, and Groundwater......................................................................17 
4.2.1 Surface .................................................................................................................................... 17 
4.2.2 Subsurface .............................................................................................................................. 18 
4.2.3 Groundwater............................................................................................................................ 19 
4.2.4 Surface Water ......................................................................................................................... 19 

4.3 Subsurface Profile........................................................................................................19 

5.0 REVIEW OF GEOLOGIC, SOIL, AND SITING HAZARDS ............................................21 

5.1 Overview .......................................................................................................................21 

5.2 Geologic Hazards .........................................................................................................21
5.2.1 Strong Ground Motion............................................................................................................. 21 
5.2.2 Fault Rupture........................................................................................................................... 21 
5.2.3 Landslide ................................................................................................................................. 22 

5.3 Soil Hazards..................................................................................................................23 
5.3.1 Embankment Stability ............................................................................................................. 23 
5.3.2 Seismic.................................................................................................................................... 23 
5.3.3 Expansive Soil......................................................................................................................... 23 
5.3.4 Hydro-Collapsible Soils ........................................................................................................... 24 
5.3.5 Alluvial Soils ............................................................................................................................ 24 
5.3.6 Corrosivity ............................................................................................................................... 24 

5.4 Siting Hazards ..............................................................................................................24 
5.4.1 Effect on Adjacent Properties.................................................................................................. 24 
5.4.2 Inundation................................................................................................................................ 24 

ii of vi 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

  
 

   
  

 
 

  

   

   
    
    
     

    
    
    

   
    
    
    
    

   
    
   
    
    
     
    
    
    
    

   
    
     
     
    
    

   
    
    
    
    

   
    
    
    
    

   
    
    
    
    
    

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

6.0 EARTHWORK AND FOUNDATIONS ............................................................................26 

6.1 Overview .......................................................................................................................26 
6.1.1 Review of Site Hazards........................................................................................................... 26 
6.1.2 Site Suitability.......................................................................................................................... 26 
6.1.3 Review and Surveillance......................................................................................................... 26 

6.2 Seismic Design Parameters.........................................................................................26
6.2.1 Site Class ................................................................................................................................ 26 
6.2.2 Seismic Design Parameters.................................................................................................... 26 

6.3 Corrosivity and Sulfates ..............................................................................................27 
6.3.1 General.................................................................................................................................... 27 
6.3.2 Metals...................................................................................................................................... 27 
6.3.3 Sulfates ................................................................................................................................... 28 
6.3.4 Limitations ............................................................................................................................... 28 

6.4 Earthwork......................................................................................................................29 
6.4.1 General.................................................................................................................................... 29 
6.4.2 Site Preparation....................................................................................................................... 29 
6.4.3 Select Fill ................................................................................................................................. 29 
6.4.4 Excavation Characteristics...................................................................................................... 30 
6.4.5 Remedial Grading at Structures.............................................................................................. 30 
6.4.6 Maintenance of Moisture in Soils During Construction ........................................................... 31 
6.4.7 Trenching and Backfilling for Utilities ...................................................................................... 31 
6.4.8 Slope Construction .................................................................................................................. 31 
6.4.9 Flatwork................................................................................................................................... 32 

6.5 Shallow Foundations ...................................................................................................32 
6.5.1 General.................................................................................................................................... 32 
6.5.2 Shallow Foundations Supported on Compacted Fill ............................................................... 33 
6.5.3 Shallow Foundations Supported on Unit 2 Tonalite Bedrock .................................................33 
6.5.4 General Slab Design ............................................................................................................... 34 
6.5.5 Slab Design to Support Fire Trucks ........................................................................................ 35 

6.6 Underslab Vapor Retarder ...........................................................................................35
6.6.1 General.................................................................................................................................... 35 
6.6.2 Guidance Documentation........................................................................................................ 35 
6.6.3 Design ..................................................................................................................................... 36 
6.6.4 Installation ............................................................................................................................... 36 

6.7 Control of Moisture Around Foundations...................................................................36 
6.7.1 General.................................................................................................................................... 36 
6.7.2 Erosion and Moisture Control During Construction................................................................. 36 
6.7.3 Design ..................................................................................................................................... 37 
6.7.4 Utilities..................................................................................................................................... 37 

6.8 Retaining Walls.............................................................................................................37
6.8.1 Wall Loads............................................................................................................................... 37 
6.8.2 Retaining Wall Foundations .................................................................................................... 37 
6.8.3 Seismic Increment................................................................................................................... 38 
6.8.4 Foundation Uplift ..................................................................................................................... 38 
6.8.5 Resistance to Lateral Loads.................................................................................................... 39 

iii of vi 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

  
 

   
  

 
 

  

    

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

   

   

    
    
    

   
    
    
    
    

   

   
    
    
    
    

    

   

   

   
    
    
     
    

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

6.8.6 Wall Drainage.......................................................................................................................... 39 

6.9 Temporary Slopes ........................................................................................................39 

7.0 STORMWATER INFILTRATION....................................................................................40 

7.1 Overview .......................................................................................................................40 

7.2 Public Health and Safety Considerations ...................................................................40 

7.3 Borehole Percolation Testing......................................................................................41 

7.4 Infiltration Rate .............................................................................................................41 

7.5 Recommendation for Infiltration .................................................................................41 

8.0 PAVEMENT DESIGN.....................................................................................................42 

8.1 General..........................................................................................................................42 

8.2 Design for Drainage and Maintenance........................................................................42 
8.2.1 Drainage.................................................................................................................................. 42 
8.2.2 Maintenance............................................................................................................................ 42 

8.3 Subgrade Preparation ..................................................................................................43
8.3.1 Subgrade Preparation ............................................................................................................. 43 
8.3.1 Proof Rolling............................................................................................................................ 43 
8.3.2 Timely Pavement Construction ............................................................................................... 43 
8.3.3 Surveillance............................................................................................................................. 43 

8.4 Flexible Pavements ......................................................................................................43 

8.5 Rigid Pavements for Fire Response Vehicles ............................................................44 
8.5.1 Design Loading ....................................................................................................................... 44 
8.5.2 Pavement Section ................................................................................................................... 44 
8.5.3 Concrete Properties ................................................................................................................ 44 
8.5.1 Jointing .................................................................................................................................... 45 

9.0 CONSTRUCTION REVIEW, OBSERVATION AND TESTING.......................................46 

9.1 Overview .......................................................................................................................46 

9.2 Design Phase Review...................................................................................................46 

9.3 Construction Observation and Testing.......................................................................46 
9.3.1 General.................................................................................................................................... 46 
9.3.2 Continuous Soils Special Inspection ....................................................................................... 46 
9.3.3 Periodic Soils Special Inspection ............................................................................................ 47 
9.3.4 Testing During Inspections...................................................................................................... 47 

iv of vi 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

  
 

   
  

 
 

  

   

   

   

   
 

   
 

   
   

 
    

 
       
     

     
 

   
 

    
     
     

  
    
     
     

  
   

 
  

 
   
  

 
 
 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

10.0 REFERENCES...............................................................................................................48 

10.1 Site Specific..................................................................................................................48 

10.2 Design ...........................................................................................................................48 

10.3 Geologic and Site Setting ............................................................................................48 

List of Plates 

Plate 1 Subsurface Investigation Map 
Plate 2 Geologic Cross Sections 

List of Appendices 

Appendix A Use of the Geotechnical Report 
Appendix B Logs of Borings 
Appendix C Records of Laboratory Testing 

List of Figures 

Figure 1-1. Vicinity Map 
Figure 2-1. Site Location and Limits 
Figure 2-2. 1946 Aerial View of the Site Area 
Figure 2-3.  Conceptual Planning 
Figure 3-1.  Location of the Engineering Borings and Percolation Tests 
Figure 3-2. Drilling Operations, B-2, July 1, 2020 
Figure 3-3. Percolation Test Well, P-2, July 2, 2020 
Figure 3-4.  Tire Rutting of a Test Subgrade with Low R-Value 
Figure 4-1.  Geologic Mapping of the Site Vicinity 
Figure 4-2.  Surface Conditions 
Figure 4-3.  Unit 1 Alluvium 
Figure 4-4.  Unit 2 Weathered Tonalite 
Figure 4-5.  Unit 2 Weathered Tonalite 
Figure 4-6. South to North Profile Beneath the Planned Fire Station and Leach Field 
Figure 4-7. South to North Profile Beneath the Planned Maintenance and Admin Buildings 

v of vi 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

  
 

   
  

 
 

  

    

 
 

  
  

  
  
  

 

   
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

     
  

     
   

 
 
 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

List of Figures (continued) 
Figure 5-1.  Active Faulting in the Site Vicinity 
Figure 5-2.  Flood Mapping of the Site Area 
Figure 6-1.  Benching Detail 
Figure 6-2.  Sawed Contraction Joint 
Figure 6-3.  Ground Supported Slab with Thickened Edge 
Figure 6-4.  Infiltration Restriction Considerations 
Figure 7-1. Conceptual Design for Wall Drainage 

List of Tables 

Table 3-1.  Abstract of the Engineering Borings 
Table 3-2.  Abstract of the Percolation Testing 
Table 3-3.  Typical R-Value for Soils in the San Diego Area 
Table 3-4.  Abstract of the Compaction Testing, ASTM D1557 
Table 3-5.  Moisture Content and Dry Unit Weight, ASTM D2937 
Table 3-6.  Abstract of the Soil Gradation Testing, ASTM D6913 
Table 6-1.  Seismic Design Parameters, ASCE 7-16 
Table 6-2.  Summary of Corrosivity Testing of the Near Surface Soil 
Table 6-3.  Soil Resistivity and Corrosion Potential 
Table 6-4.  Exposure Categories and Requirements for Water-Soluble Sulfates 
Table 6-5. Lateral Earth Pressures to Retaining Walls 
Table 7-1. Infiltration Rates Determined by Percolation Testing 
Table 8-1. Preliminary Recommendations for Flexible Pavements 
Table 8-2. Recommendations for Concrete Pavements 

vi of vi 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

  

  

  

     
 

   
   

   
 

   
   

 

 
 

 
 

COO .. VALLEY lt0 

Jf',U TVAU: fl:0 

siu:101,ROJO Jto 

( -,.~LEY CENTER RD 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Terms of Reference 

1.1.1 General 

This report provides recommendations for the design of foundations and pavements for the 
construction of a new fire station on the eastern 4.75 acres of a 9.75-acre parcel with APN 133-
220-38-00. This geotechnical investigation only addresses the eastern half of the parcel 
(hereinafter, ‘the site’). This new fire station is known to NOVA as ‘Fire Station #3’. 
Work-related to this report was completed by NOVA Services, Inc. (NOVA) for Valley Center 
Fire Protection District (VCFPD) in accordance with the scope of work identified in NOVA’s 
October 25, 2019 revised proposal, as authorized by VCFPD on April 29, 2020. 
Figure 1-1 depicts the vicinity of the new fire station. 

Figure 1-1. Vicinity Map 

1 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  

  
 

   

    

  

 
 

  
 

   
  

 
  

  
 

 
    

  
    

 
 

 
  

    
   

 
  

 
    

    
 

 
    

 
 

  
  

   
 

    
  

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

1.1.2 Related Reporting 

Associated with this same authorization, NOVA has completed field testing and developed 
design-basis percolation rates for use in design of an on-site wastewater treatment system 
(OWTS). The findings of that work will be provided under separate cover. 

1.2 Objectives, Scope, and Limitations of This Work 

1.2.1 Objectives 

The objectives of the work reported herein are twofold, as described below. 
1. Objective 1, Geotechnical. Characterize the occurrence of subsurface soil and 

formational rock in a manner sufficient to provide recommendations for geotechnical-
related site development. 

2. Objective 2, Stormwater. Assess soil percolation rates in a manner sufficient to provide 
guidance for design of permanent stormwater infiltration Best Management Practices 
(‘stormwater BMPs’). 

1.2.2 Scope 

In order to accomplish the above objectives, NOVA undertook the task-based scope of work 
described below. 

1. Task 1, Background Review. NOVA reviewed readily available background data 
regarding the site area, including geotechnical reports, topographic maps, geologic 
data, fault maps, and reports. Conceptual planning was reviewed. No architectural or 
structural information was available. 

2. Task 2, Subsurface Exploration. A NOVA geologist directed a subsurface exploration 
comprised of the subtasks listed below. 

• Subtask 2-1, Reconnaissance. Prior to undertaking any exploratory work, 
NOVA conducted a site reconnaissance, including layout of borings and 
percolation test wells. Underground Service Alert and a private utility location 
contractor was notified for underground utility mark-out services. 

• Subtask 2-2, Coordination. A specialty subcontractor was retained to conduct 
engineering borings. NOVA coordinated with you regarding access for 
fieldwork. 

• Subtask 2-3, Engineering Borings. The geologist logged and sampled six (6) 
engineering borings. 

• Subtask 2-4, Percolation Testing. NOVA constructed and tested two (2) 
percolation wells at a proposed stormwater BMP. Percolation testing was 
performed in accordance with the San Diego County requirements. 

• Subtask 2-5, Closure. On completion, each boring and percolation test well 
was backfilled. 

2 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   
 

 
 

    
 

    
 

      
  

    
  

     
   

   
   

   
  

 
     

  
 

   

  
   

      
     

 
 

 
   

 
    

 
  

    
  

 
  

    
      

 
      

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

3. Task 3, Laboratory Testing. Laboratory testing was undertaken to address soil index 
characteristics. Chemical testing addresses the potential that soils may be corrosive 
to embedded concrete or metals. 

4. Task 4, Engineering Evaluations. The findings of Tasks 1-3 were utilized to support 
evaluations directed toward recommendations for geotechnical-related development, 
including foundations, earthwork, pavements, and design for stormwater infiltration. 

5. Task 5, Reporting. Submittal of this report completes NOVA’s scope of work for this 
geotechnical investigation. The report provides a record of all work and geotechnical-
related recommendations for foundations, earthwork, and stormwater. 

1.2.3 Limitations 

The recommendations for design and construction included in this report are not final. These 
recommendations are developed by NOVA using judgment and opinion and based on the 
information available at the time of the report. NOVA can finalize its recommendations only by 
observing actual subsurface conditions revealed during construction. NOVA cannot assume 
responsibility or liability for the report's recommendations if NOVA does not perform construction 
observation. 

This report does not address any environmental assessment or investigation for the presence or 
absence of hazardous, toxic or regulated materials in the soil, groundwater, or surface water 
within or beyond the site. 

1.3 Understood Use of This Report 

Assessment of the subsurface in geological and geotechnical engineering is characterized by 
uncertainty. Opinions relating to environmental, geologic, and geotechnical conditions are based 
on limited data, such that actual conditions may vary from those encountered at the times and 
locations where the data are obtained, despite the use of due professional care. 

The judgments provided in this report are based upon NOVA’s understanding of the planned 
construction, its experience with similar work, and its judgments regarding subsurface 
conditions indicated by the methods of subsurface exploration described in the report. 

Conditions exposed by construction may vary from those disclosed by the borings. NOVA 
should be retained for design review and for surveillance to observe subsurface conditions 
revealed during construction. NOVA cannot assume responsibility for the recommendations of 
this report if NOVA does not perform construction observation. Section 9 of this report 
addresses this consideration in more detail. 

This report addresses geotechnical considerations only. The report does not provide any 
environmental assessment or investigation of the presence or absence of hazardous or toxic 
materials in the soil, soil gas, groundwater, or surface water within or beyond the site. 
Appendix A to this report provides important additional guidance regarding the use and 
limitations of this report. This information should be reviewed by all users of the report. 

3 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  

     
 

  
   
   
      

  
   
     
    
  

 
  

 
  

   
    

  
 

    
 

     
     
    

  
 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

1.4 Report Organization 

The remainder of this report is organized as abstracted below. 

• Section 2 reviews available project information. 
• Section 3 describes subsurface exploration. 
• Section 4 describes the surface and subsurface conditions. 
• Section 5 reviews geologic, soil, and siting-related hazards common to this area of San 

Diego, considering each for its potential to affect the planned fire station. 
• Section 6 provides recommendations for earthwork and foundation design. 
• Section 7 provides recommendations for design of stormwater infiltration BMPs. 
• Section 8 provides recommendations for development of pavements. 
• Section 9 addresses design review and geotechnical observation/testing during 

construction. 
• Section 10 provides a list of the principal references utilized in the development of the 

report. 

Figures and tables that directly support discussion in the text are embedded therein. Larger-
scale plots of the subsurface exploration and subsurface profiles are provided as Plates 
immediately following the text of the report. 

The report is supported by three appendices. 

• Appendix A provides guidance regarding the use and limitations of this report. 
• Appendix B presents logs of the engineering and percolation test borings. 
• Appendix C provides records of laboratory testing. 

4 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

  

  

  

   
    

 
 

   
      

  
 

 
  

 

   

    
   

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

2.0 PROJECT INFORMATION 

2.1 Site Description 

2.1.1 Location 

VCFPD plans to construct a new fire station on the eastern half (4.75 acres) of an approximately 
10-acre parcel with APN 133-220-38-00 (hereinafter, ‘the site’). 

The site is located on the western side of Cole Grade Road, in Valley Center. The site is 
bounded on the north and the west by agricultural land, to the east by Cole Grade Road, and to 
the south by Cole Grade Lane. Figure 2-1 depicts the location and limits of the site on a recent 
aerial view. 

Figure 2-1. Site Location and Limits 

2.1.2 Current Site Use 

The approximately 330-foot x 670-foot site of the future firehouse and associated improvements 
is currently vacant, open land with a bare soil surface and scattered shrubs and grasses. 

5 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   
        

   
  
  

  
   

    
 

 
    
  

 
 

 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

The site slopes gradually down to the northwest and northeast. On-site elevations range from 
+1,603 feet mean sea level (msl) at the southwest corner, to +1,550 feet msl at the northwest 
corner. This elevation differential occurs over a distance of about 670 feet, a surface gradient of 
about 8%. 
2.1.3 Historic Site Use 

Review of aerial photography, which started as early as 1939, indicates the site was unused 
until the 1960’s, when an orchard was developed on the site. The subject site was cultivated as 
a citrus orchard until approximately 2016. 

Figure 2-2 provides an aerial photograph depicting the site area in 1946. This photograph 
depicts the presence of a north-northwest trending drainage feature that was filled by the 
1960’s. 

Figure 2-2. 1946 Aerial View of the 10-Acre Parcel 

6 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

  

  

  
  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  
       

   
   

   
  

I I 
lt-------a, -----i-1----- -

UNDEVELOPED 
5 AC. 

I 

' 

' 

' 

DEVELOPED 
4.75 
AC. 

LEACH 
FIELD 

- ., "" 

-
ADMIN. 
BLDG. - - - BMP 

..._.. 
~ 

------

~ ------+~--~' I 
~ ..... -.- ... 

~NT. i-- FIRE 
~ BLOG. II' - STATION 

( (I) 

< 

C ~ 
0 

- ~ -.__ -
-

- -.__ - -
.__ - -.__ - -

- ., - i -

Cl 
c§ 
a:: 
LL.I 
Cl 

~ 
c:., 

~ 
0 
(_) 

...J 

' (_) 

117' 

-___ .L...._i======:•====::tv=·-:'.::::-=~--~~~~~·=.::;:i-~M'~'§:2 ==4-~ 1- ----., · 1 • • ------1---' - +----'--
coLE GRADE LANE I 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

2.2 Planned Fire Station 

2.2.1 General 

Planning and design is still preliminary.  NOVA’s understanding of the current planning for Fire 
Station #3 is based upon review VCFPD - Fire Station #3, Preliminary Site Plan (Buccola 
Engineering, Inc., undated, hereinafter ‘Buccola 2020’). Figure 2-3 reproduces Buccola 2020, 
depicting the layout of structures and infrastructure planned for the new fire station. 

Figure 2-3. Preliminary Site Plan
(source: Buccola 2020) 

As may be seen by review of Figure 2-3, the planned development will include three principal 
structures: a 10,000 square foot (SF) fire station, a 5,000 SF maintenance building, and a 5,000 SF 
administration building. These structures will be set around parking and driveway access. Stormwater 
management and an on-site waste treatment system (OWTS) will be developed on the northern 
portion of the 4.75-acre site. 

7 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  

 
   

  
 

   
   

  

    
   

     
 

 
  

  

   
  

   
         

 
  

  
  

   
   

 
  

   
  

  

       
   

 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

2.2.2 Structures 

The three structures planned for Fire Station #3 maybe one or two levels. No below-grade 
construction is planned. 

The fire station will enclose 10,000 SF, the administration building and the maintenance building 
will each enclose about 5,000 SF. The planned structures will each include relatively light loads 
to foundations. However, the interior floor slab for both the fire station and the maintenance 
building will be required to support fire trucks. Some of the buildings may require retaining walls 
to adapt the structures to grades at the site. 
2.2.3 Floors, Pavements, and Parking 

Design of pavements outside the fire station and floors within the fire stations will be controlled 
by the need to support the fire trucks. Though the design basis vehicle is not known, NOVA 
expects that the typical vehicle could weigh up to 80,000 pounds and apply H-20 axle loads to 
floors and pavements. The typical firefighting vehicle will be about 33 feet long. 

The garage area within the fire station and the maintenance building may each require an 
interior trench drain connected to an oil-water separator. 
2.2.4 Potential for Earthwork 

No below-grade construction is anticipated beyond that required for utilities. NOVA expects that 
design will adapt the new structure to existing site grades. Based upon review of the planning 
described in Buccola 2020, it is expected that significant earthwork operations will be required to 
achieve pad grades. The site will be developed with cuts and fills that may be up to 15 feet. 

Based on conversations with our client, it is NOVA’s understanding that cut slopes may be 
constructed in the southwest corner of the site surrounding the entrance drive. 
2.2.5 Stormwater BMPs 

Planning for permanent stormwater BMPs is indicated on Figure 2-3. Permanent stormwater 
BMPs will be located in a Drainage Management Area (DMA) encompassing about 6,000 SF, 
sited north of the fire station. 
2.2.6 OWTS 

Design for the OWTS is only conceptual at this point.  As is noted in Section 1, 
recommendations for development an OWTS will be provided under separate cover. 
2.2.7 Miscellaneous 

It is expected that the new fire station will include a variety of miscellaneous structures, such as 
signage, equipment pads, traffic bollards, and a flag pole. 

8 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

     

   

   
     

  
 

   
   

 
 

   
   

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

3.0 SUBSURFACE EXPLORATION AND LABORATORY TESTING 

3.1 General 

The subsurface exploration was completed on July 1-2, 2020. A NOVA geologist directed 
excavation, in situ testing, and sampling of a series of six (6) engineering borings across the 
site. Two (2) percolation tests were completed in the vicinity planned for the stormwater BMP. 

Figure 3-1 depicts the locations of the separate elements of the subsurface exploration. Plate 1, 
provided immediately following the text of this report, depicts this information in larger scale. 
Appendix B presents the boring logs. 

Figure 3-1. Locations of the Borings and Percolation Testing 

9 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   

  

    
 

   
 

  
   

 
  

 
   

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 

  

 
 

  

 
  

 

      

      
       
      
      
      

    
  

 
 

 
  

  
 

   
 

 
   

    
  

 
  

 
   

 
 

   
  

 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

3.2 Engineering Borings 

3.2.1 Excavation 

The geologist directed drilling and sampling of six (6) engineering borings (‘B-1’ through ‘B 6’) to 
depths between 10.5 feet and 16.5 feet below ground surface (bgs) on July 1, 2020. Samples 
recovered from the borings were delivered to NOVA’s materials laboratory for review and 
analysis. The engineering borings were advanced by a truck-mounted drilling rig utilizing hollow-
stem auger drilling techniques. Prior to beginning fieldwork, boring locations were determined by 
a geologist based on the proposed building configuration. 

Table 3-1 provides an abstract of the engineering borings. 

Table 3-1. Abstract of the Engineering Borings by NOVA 

Boring 
Reference 

Approx.
Ground 

Surface Elev. 
(feet, msl)1 

Total Depth 
Below 

Ground 
Surface (feet) 

Elevation at 
Completion 
(feet, msl) 1 

Approx.
Depth to

Formation 
(feet) 2 

Approx. Depth
to Groundwater 

(feet) 

B-1 +1600.0 15.5 +1584.5 1.5 Not encountered 
B-2 +1595.0 10.5 +1584.5 0.5 Not encountered 
B-3 +1584.0 15.5 +1568.5 5.0 Not encountered 
B-4 +1568.0 16.0 +1552.0 2.0 Not encountered 
B-5 +1570.0 15.5 +1554.5 4.0 Not encountered 
B-6 +1553.0 16.5 +1536.5 3.5 Not encountered 

Notes:  1. Elevations are approximate and should be reviewed 
2. The referenced geologic unit is Cretaceous-aged Cole Grade Tonalite (Kcg) 

Figure 3-2 (following page) depicts drilling operations. 

3.2.2 Logging and Sampling 

The geologist directed sampling and maintained a log of the soils that were encountered. Both 
disturbed and relatively undisturbed samples were recovered from the borings. Samples were 
delivered to NOVA’s materials laboratory for analysis. Sampling of and in situ testing are 
described below. 

1. The Modified California sampler (‘ring sampler’, after ASTM D 3550) was driven using a 
140-pound hammer falling for 30 inches with a total penetration of 18 inches, recording 
blow counts for each 6 inches of penetration. 

2. The Standard Penetration Test sampler (‘SPT’, after ASTM D 1586) was driven in the 
same manner as the ring sampler, recording blow counts in the same fashion. SPT blow 
counts for the final 12 inches of penetration comprise the SPT ‘N’ value, an index of soil 
strength and compressibility. 

3. Bulk samples representative of the subsurface materials encountered during the 
investigation were collected for testing. 

10 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  
 

 

 
    

 
  

  
 

  

  

  
  

    
 

  

     
  

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Soil samples recovered from the engineering borings were transferred to NOVA’s geotechnical 
laboratory where a geotechnical engineer reviewed the soil samples and the field logs. 

Figure 3-2. Drilling Operations, B-2, July 1, 2020 

3.2.3 Closure 

On completion, the borings were backfilled with cuttings. The area was cleaned and left as close 
to the original condition as practical. 

3.3 Percolation Testing 

3.3.1 General 

NOVA directed the advancement and construction of two (2) percolation test wells following the 
recommendations for percolation testing presented in the County of San Diego County BMP 
Design Manual, January 2019 edition, and the County of San Diego Department of Health 
Services guidelines. The percolation test locations are shown on Figure 3-1. 
3.3.2 Drilling 

The borings for the wells were each drilled with an 8-inch hollow-stem auger to depths of 5 feet 
below ground surface (bgs). Field measurements were taken to confirm that the borings were 

11 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   
   

  

 
 

 
  
  

  
  

 
   

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  

  
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

        
        

 
   

       
      

 
  

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

excavated to approximately 8 inches in diameter. The borings were logged by a NOVA 
geologist, who observed and recorded exposed soil cuttings and the boring conditions. 
3.3.3 Conversion to Percolation Well 

Once the borings were drilled to the desired depths, the borings were converted to percolation 
test wells by placing an approximately 2-inch layer of ¾-inch gravel on the bottom, then 
extending 3-inch diameter schedule 40 perforated PVC pipe to the ground surface. The ¾-inch 
gravel was used to partially fill the annular space around the perforated pipe below the existing 
finish grade to minimize the potential of soil caving. 
3.3.4 Percolation Testing 

The percolation test wells were pre-soaked by filling the holes with water to the ground surface 
level and testing commenced within a 26-hour window. 

On the day of testing, two 25-minute trials were conducted in each well. In the test wells the pre-
soak water did not percolate at least 6 inches into the soil unit within 25 minutes. 

Based on the results of the trials, water levels were recorded every 30 minutes for six hours. At 
the beginning of each test interval, the water level was raised to approximately the same level 
as the previous tests, in order to maintain a near-constant head during all test periods. 

Table 3-2 abstracts the percolation test conditions and related percolation rates. 

Table 3-2. Abstract of the Percolation Testing 

Test Well 
Reference 

Approx.
Elevation 
(feet, msl) 

1 

Total 
Depth 
(feet) 

Approx. 
Percolation 

Test 
Elevation 

(feet, msl) 1 

Percolation 
Rate 

(min/in)2 

Subsurface 
Unit 

Tested3 

Infiltration 
Rate 

(in/hr)2 

Infiltration 
Rate 

(in/hr,
FS=2)4 

P-1 +1563 5 +1560 10 Kcg 0.39 0.20 
P-2 +1568 5 +1563 1.81 Kcg 3.37 1.69 

Note 1:  Elevations are approximate and should be reviewed. 
Note 2:  Percolation rate is not infiltration rate. Infiltration rates are discussed in detail in Section 7. 
Note 3: The referenced geologic subsurface unit tested is Tonalite of Cole Grade (Kcg). 
Note 4: ‘FS’ indicates ‘Factor of Safety’. Discussed further in Section 7. 

Figure 3-3 (following page) depicts percolation testing at well P-2. 

12 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

 
  

  

  

  
    

  
 

   
   

 
      

  

  
   

  
 

        
    

   
   

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Figure 3-3. Percolation Testing at Well P-2, July 2, 2020 

3.4 Laboratory Testing 

3.4.1 General 

Soil samples recovered from the engineering borings were transferred to NOVA’s geotechnical 
laboratory where a geotechnical engineer reviewed the soil samples and the field logs. 
Representative soil samples were selected and tested in NOVA’s materials laboratory to check 
visual classifications and to determine pertinent engineering properties. The laboratory program 
included visual classifications of all soil samples as well as index and expansivity testing in 
general accordance with ASTM standards. 

Records of the geotechnical laboratory testing are provided in Appendix C. 
3.4.2 R-Value 

As used for this report, the purpose of this test is to determine the suitability of prospective 
subgrade soils for use in the pavement sections. Of particular concern in development of Fire 
Station #3 will be the high axle loads applied to pavements by the firefighting vehicles. 

Developed and used by Caltrans for flexible pavement design, R-Value replaces the California 
Bearing Ratio (CBR) test. Samples used to determine R-value are prepared at a moisture and 
density condition representative of the expected in situ condition of a compacted subgrade 
(often, conditions of saturation and lower relative compaction). 

13 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

    
   

   
 

 
 

 
  

      
   

  
 

 
  
    
   
   

   
  
  

 
  

   
  

     
  

   
 

  

    
 

 
 

 
       I I 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

The R-value is calculated from the ratio of the applied vertical pressure to the developed lateral 
pressure, essentially a measure of the material’s resistance to plastic flow. Figure 3-4 depicts 
lateral flow in soil rutted by tires of a test soil section. 

Figure 3-4. Tire Rutting of a Test Subgrade with Low R-Value 

The R-value thus reflects the ability of a soil to resist lateral spreading due to an applied vertical 
load (such as the tire loads depicted above). A range of values are established from 0 to 100, 
where 0 is the resistance of water and 100 is the resistance of steel. Typical R-values based on 
NOVA’s local experience are presented below. 

Table 3-3. Typical R-Values for Soils in the San Diego Area 
Soil Type Typical R-Values 

Plastic clays/silty clays 5 – 15 
Clayey silts 12 - 25 
Silty sands 15 - 55 

Sands 50 - 75 
Sandy gravels > 60 
Crushed rock > 70 

A sample representative of the subgrade soils in the planned paved areas was selected for R-
Value testing after ASTM D2844, indicating R = 17, characteristic of R-values for sands with silt. 
3.4.3 Compaction 

A single composite sample of the sandy fraction of near-surface soil was tested to determine the 
moisture-density characteristics during compaction after ASTM D1557 (the ‘modified Proctor’). 
Table 3-4 summarizes the results of this testing. 

Table 3-4. Abstract of the Compaction Testing, ASTM D1557 

Location Depth 
(feet) Soil Description 

Maximum 
Dry Density 

(lb/ft3) 

Optimum 
Moisture Content 

(%) 
B-2 0-4 Orange brown clayey sand 133.5 9.8 

14 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

   

 

  
 

 
 

    
  

  

      
  

  
 

   

    
 

 
       
     

 
  

  
 

    

  
  

  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 
  

   
     

  
  

 

I I I 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

3.4.4 Expansion Potential and Plasticity 

The field visual classification of the soils by the geologist and reviewed in the laboratory by the 
geotechnical engineer indicates that the near-surface soils are characteristically sandy with 
varying amounts of silt. As such, these soils would be expected to be of low plasticity and low 
expansion potential.  

The foregoing judgments were checked by testing of a single representative sample of the near-
surface alluvium after ASTM D4829 to determine Expansion Index. This testing showed the soil 
to have ‘Low’ expansion potential (EI = 40) after ASTM D4829. 
3.4.5 In-Place Soil Density 

The dry unit weight and moisture content of representative, relatively undisturbed samples were 
determined as a basis for comparison with the optimum density and moisture.  Table 3-5 depicts 
these results. 

Table 3-5. Moisture Content and Dry Unit Weight, ASTM D2937 

Boring Depth 
(feet) Soil Description Moisture 

Content 
Dry Unit

Weight (pcf) 
B-2 2.5 Orange-brown clayey sand (%) 12.2 124.4 
B-3 6 Orange-brown silty sand 10.6 119.3 

3.4.6 Gradation 

Table 3-5 summarizes the results of gradation testing of soils recovered from the borings. 

Table 3-6. Abstract of the Soil Gradation Testing, ASTM D6913 

Location Depth 
(feet) 

Percent Finer Than the U.S. 
No. 200 Sieve (0.074 mm) 

Soil 
Classification 

B-1 1 30 SM 
B-2 1 33 SC 
B-2 6 21 SM 
B-4 2.5 35 SM 
B-4 5 27 SM 
B-4 8 23 SM 
B-6 2 59 CL 
B-6 3.5 27 SM 
B-6 5.5 9 SP-SM 

3.4.7 Corrosion Potential 

Resistivity, sulfate content, and chloride contents were determined to estimate the potential of 
on-site soils to be corrosive to unprotected, embedded metals or to attack embedded concrete.  
The testing indicated a slightly basic pH and low levels of soluble sulfates and chlorides. Section 
6 discusses the indications of the chemical testing. 

15 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   

  

   

 
  

 
   

   
  

  
 

    
  

  
 

   

   
 

 
   

 
      

  
   

 
  

 
  

     
   

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

4.0 SITE CONDITIONS 

4.1 Geologic Setting 

4.1.1 Regional 

The project area is located in the Peninsular Ranges Geomorphic Province. This geomorphic 
province encompasses an area that extends approximately 900 miles from the Transverse 
Ranges and the Los Angeles Basin south to the southern tip of Baja California (Norris and 
Webb, 1990). The province varies in width from approximately 30 to 100 miles. In general, the 
province consists of rugged mountains underlain mostly by Jurassic metavolcanic and 
metasedimentary rocks, intruded by Cretaceous igneous rocks of the southern California 
batholith. 

The site is in the Foothills Physiographic Province of San Diego County. Geologic units include 
granitic rocks such as gabbro, granodiorite, and tonalite; and hard metasedimentary and 
metavolcanics rock. Alluvial soils in this area are generally derived of the granitic rocks, and can 
occur in basins, drainages, and alluvial fans. 
4.1.2 Site Specific 

The site is generally underlain by a layer of alluvium overlying Cretaceous-age Tonalite of Cole 
Grade (Kcg), a granitic-type bedrock. 

In its unweathered state, tonalite provides excellent, high-capacity foundation support. However, 
unweathered tonalite may have the strength of low-grade concrete and present excavation 
difficulties. The upper portion of the tonalite at this site is variably weathered (sometimes called 
‘decomposed’). Weathered tonalite will still provide excellent foundation conditions and often 
can be favorable for infiltration and percolation. 

Figure 4-1 (following page) reproduces geologic mapping of the site area. 

There are no known, mapped active faults underlying the site. The nearest mapped fault zone is 
the Elsinore Fault Zone, with the nearest active fault located in the Temecula Section, about 5.5 
miles north of the site. 

16 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

   

  

  
   

     

 
 

  
     

 
 

 
  

KEY TO SYMBOLS 

~ TONIJ.ITEOFCOI.EGRAOE 

UONZOGR,une OF 
MERRIAM MOUNT Al< 

GRN~rTE.. UNDIVIDED 

GRANODIORITE. UNOIVICEO 

PAETAMORPHOSE)HlO 
UNt,4ET AtAO:tPl-tOSEO VOLc.A.NtC 
ANO SE.OIME,.,-ARY ROCK3, 
UNOMOEO 

l'AETAGRANmc ROCKS 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Figure 4-1. Geologic Mapping of the Site Vicinity 

4.2 Surface, Subsurface, and Groundwater 

4.2.1 Surface 

The site is characterized by gently rolling topography. Surface drainage is generally from south 
to north. The site slopes gradually down to the northwest and northeast. On-site elevations 
range from +1,603 feet mean sea level (msl) at the southwest corner, to +1,550 feet msl at the 
northwest corner. This elevation differential occurs over a distance of about 670 feet, a surface 
gradient of about 8%. 

Cole Grade Road, which borders the site to the east, is elevated almost 10 feet relative to the 
site levels in the northeast corner of the site, but is 2 feet lower than the site in the southeast 
corner. 

Figure 4-2 (following page) depicts surface conditions at the site. As may be seen by review of 
this figure, the site is covered by a dense cover of native grasses, weeds, and brush. 

17 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

                                              
                                                            
 

  

   
 

 
       

    
     

    
 

 

 
 

 
   

   
    

    

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

(a)  Looking south along east boundary (b)  Looking south from north property line 
Figure 4-2. Surface Conditions 

4.2.2 Subsurface 

The sequence of soils and rock encountered by the borings may be generalized to occur as 
described below. 

1. Unit 1, Alluvium (Qal). The site is covered by a veneer of alluvium. As encountered in 
the explorations, this material ranges from 0 to 5 feet in thickness but maybe thicker in 
other areas of the site. The alluvial soils encountered is comprised of medium dense 
clayey sand, but is subject to wide variation in quality and consistency.  Figure 4-3 
depicts the soil from this unit. 

Figure 4-3. Unit 1 Alluvium 

2. Unit 2, Weathered Tonalite of Cole Grade (Kcg). Beneath the alluviual soils, the site is 
underlain by granitics of this Cretaceous-aged unit. The upper several feet are 
characteristically weathered and decomposed to a medium to coarse, orange to gray 
sand with silt. A one-foot clay layer of weathered tonalite was encountered within boring 

18 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

    
  
   

 
     

           

  

    

    
   

 
 

   
    

    
 

  
  

   
  

  
 

      

  
  

    
 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

B-6. As characterized by Standard Penetration Test blowcounts (‘N’, after ASTM D 
1586), the weathered tonalite is of dense to very dense consistency, with N > 50. Rock 
floaters may be encountered during earthwork operations. 

Figure 4-4 and Figure 4-5 depict variations in the degree of weathering of this unit. 

Figure 4-4. Unit 2 Weathered Tonalite Figure 4-5. Unit 2 Weathered Tonalite 

4.2.3 Groundwater 

No groundwater was encountered in the borings. Information provided on the Water Well 
Drillers Report for a groundwater well installed in 1986 at a property located approximately 
2,000 feet west of Cole Grade Road on Cole Grade Lane (approximately 1,300 feet west of the 
site) indicates groundwater first occurs in fractured bedrock at a depth of approximately 30 feet 
below ground surface (bgs). 

Infiltrating storm water from prolonged wet periods can ‘perch’ atop localized zones of lower 
permeability soil that exist above the static groundwater level. Localized perched groundwater 
conditions may also develop post-construction, once landscape irrigation commences. 

No perched groundwater was observed in the work by NOVA. 
4.2.4 Surface Water 

No surface water was evident within the limits of the planned fire station at the time of NOVA’s 
subsurface exploration. NOVA did not observe any visual evidence of seeps, springs, erosion, 
staining, discoloration, etc. that would indicate recent problems with surface water. 

The closest surface water is Keys Creek, located approximately a half-mile north of the site. 

4.3 Subsurface Profile 
As is tabulated in Section 3 and discussed previously in this section, beneath a veneer of 
alluvium, the site is underlain by weathered granitics. Figure 4-6 and Figure 4-7 provide two 
south to north subsurface profiles beneath the planned structures.  Locations of cross-section 

19 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

   
  

 
 

 
                                                
                                                               
 
 

 

 
   

 
 

   
  

      

1640 

1620 
PROPOSED 

PARKING 
LOT 

PROPOSED FIRE STATION 

EXISTING GRADE 

GEOL OGIC CROSS-SEC TTON A A' 

PROPOSED PROPOSED 

A' 
1660 

1640 

1620 

1600 

1580 

1560 

16001'::::;:::-:::--:::-;::--:-::;-::-::-!:-::-::::::---:--.JL __ PARKING BMP 63 LOT 

--•--__ , ____ ,_ )~~c~~~::::::::::::-=--::-::::-:!-:J~~;C:•~:OE~EP~F~R:OM~~;-'=, ===~--------=--~~==-:::=J _ __ , _ _ _ ~-- FIN15HEDPAO) 1580 

- --------- P2 B4 
TD-I S' Qa/ --- - m-s, : : ----- 8 6 1560 

Tl>-16' 

1540 Qal 1540 
T0-1S.S' 

1520 Keg Keg 1520 

1400 Keg 1400 
Keg 

1420 1420 

1440o'~~:!0 ...... __,40 __ 60..___eo,_~100--1~20--1~ao--1eo,_~1a~o- :!00_.__=,__2.~ ...... - =~-2a~ o--3~00- =--3~40--3&0..___38~o- ,~oo ...... _420~--~, --,eo'--,a- o_ soo ...... _ S2~20--s.:o'--560~-sa~ o--600'--620'--6~40--660-'--68~o-~1rio440 

1640 

16:?0 
PROPOSED 

PROPOSED 
MAINTENANCE 

BUILDING 

GEOLOGIC CROSS-SECTTON BB' 

PROPOSED 

PARKING PROPOSrn 

ADM~~11~;:,;0N l 
B t LOT PARKING --- -1 

l600r J :~;,;;-~ Br.;2 __ .J.... _ _::LOT~ ~ L ===~ =!-c==:=-
•sao ro.,..- Qa/ n,.ios EXISTING GRADE 

0~7 ------------------5 
1560 Keg ro-,s..s.· ---------7 ---- ---

Qal _/ ----, ___ _ 
1540 Keg 

1520 Keg Keg 

1400 

14:20 

1640 

1620 

1600 
1580 

1560 

1540 

1520 

1400 

1420 

1"~..._.__,20__,-,~.--60 ...... __,ao__,_1~00--120'-~,.~o ...... 1~60--1•Lo- 200~~220-'-..__2<~0-~"60..._._280_.__._3~00--=..._._,,.~ o..__350..__._380..._.~.~oo--•~,,.--.,Lo- ,~60__,_480_._..__soo..._.~s~co__,_s,~ o--560'-~sao-~600-'--620..__~,..- o~ 660-'-..__680..__.__,,~440 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

lines are located on Plate 1 following the text of the report, and cross-section figures are 
provides in larger scale as Plate 2. 

Figure 4-6. South to North Profile Beneath the Planned Fire Station 
(Qal indicates alluvium; Kcg indicates granitic tonalite) 

Figure 4-7. South to North Profile Beneath the Planned Maintenance and Admin Buildings 
(Qal indicates alluvium; Kcg indicates granitic tonalite) 

As is discussed in Section 2, site design is not complete.  However, based upon review of 
Figure 4-6 and Figure 4-7 it is likely that the structures will largely be founded in the Unit 2 
tonalite.  Some low retaining walls may be employed to adapt development to the site. 

20 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

       

  

  
 

  

    
 

 
   

 
   

  

  

  
   

  
    

   

  
   

 
       

     
       

  
   

 

  
   

 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

5.0 REVIEW OF GEOLOGIC, SOIL, AND SITING HAZARDS 

5.1 Overview 

This section provides a review of geologic, soil, and siting-related hazards common to this 
region of California, considering each for its potential to affect the planned development. The 
primary hazard identified by this review is the risk for moderate-to-severe ground shaking in 
response to a large-magnitude earthquake during the lifetime of the planned development, a 
circumstance is common to all civil works in this area of California. 

While strong ground motion could affect the site there is no risk of liquefaction or related seismic 
phenomena. 

The following subsections describe NOVA’s review of soil and geologic hazards. 

5.2 Geologic Hazards 

5.2.1 Strong Ground Motion 

The seismicity of the site was evaluated utilizing a web-based analytical tool provided by The 
American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE). This evaluation shows the site may be subjected 
to a Magnitude 7.7 seismic event, with a corresponding risk-based Peak Ground Acceleration 
(PGAM) of PGAM ~ 0.63 g. 
5.2.2 Fault Rupture 

No evidence of faulting was observed during NOVA’s geologic reconnaissance of the site. The 
site does not lie within a state-designated active Earthquake Fault Zone (Alquist-Priolo Zone). 

The nearest mapped major fault zone is the Elsinore fault zone, with the closest active fault 
(Holocene- active) located about 5.5 miles north within the Temecula Section, and nearest 
potentially active faults (late Quaternary) of the Julian Section located 5.0 miles northeast from 
the site. Figure 5-1 (following page) reproduces published mapping of active faulting in the site 
vicinity. 

Because of the lack of known active faults on the site, the potential for surface rupture at the site 
is considered low. Shallow ground rupture due to shaking from distant seismic events is not 
considered a significant hazard, although it is a possibility at any site. 

21 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

 
   

  

     
  

  
  

  
     

 
  

     
 

       
 

 
   

TO SYMBOLS 

i)e R Or 
<i 

Ar:TIVr WITI IIN 1!i0 YrAR8 

AC I IVI- <1h.1Xl0 YI-AHS 

LATE QUATERNARY< 130,000 YEARS 

UNUll-1- t l ltN I IAI tU OUAI tllNAIIY s1.6 ML LION Yt AIIS 

.Pala 
~ p~!J, 

~ 
Pala Indian 

,Reservation 

Pala Ind.., 
Ruerv1tion 

H SINOHI- 1-AIII I /ONI-

R1 

', P,um•lndi,n 
"', es,rvat,on Mission Indian 

, .Reserve 

~ ...... 

Pauma Indian 
,Reservation 

PaumaValley. 

MO/I.GAN 
Hilt 

BOUCHER 
HIH 

Yuima Indian 
.,Re5ervation 

~ 

Rincon Indian 
,Reservation 

Rin<oo 

Va ley Center Rd 

Palomar 
Mountain" 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Figure 5-1. Active Faulting in the Site Vicinity 

5.2.3 Landslide 

As used herein, ‘landslide’ describes downslope displacement of a mass of rock, soil, and/or 
debris by sliding, flowing, or falling. Such mass earth movements are greater than about 10 feet 
thick and larger than 300 feet across. Landslides typically include cohesive block glides and 
disrupted slumps that are formed by translation or rotation of the slope materials along one or 
more slip/failure surfaces. These mass displacements can also include more narrowly confined 
modes of mass wasting such as rock topples, ‘mud flows’ and ‘debris flows’. 

The causes of classic landslides start with a preexisting condition - characteristically, a plane of 
weak soil or rock - inherent within the rock or soil mass. Thereafter, movement may be 
precipitated by earthquakes, wet weather, and changes to the structure or loading conditions on 
a slope (e.g., by erosion, cutting, filling, release of water from broken pipes, etc.). 

Associated with this assessment, NOVA completed a review of published information regarding 
historical landslides and the risk of landsliding in the site vicinity. That review indicates no 
mapped historic landslides in the immediate site area. 

22 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   
    

    

  

  

 
 

   
  

 
      

   
     

 
    

  

 
 

    
      

     
   

   

 
    

   

 
    

   
   

  

  

   
    

 
  

   
 

 
    

         

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

In consideration of the gently sloping topography at and around the site, review of published 
information, and geologic reconnaissance of the site area, NOVA considers the landslide hazard 
at the site to be ‘negligible’ for the site and the area immediately surrounding it. 

5.3 Soil Hazards 

5.3.1 Embankment Stability 

As used herein, ‘embankment stability’ is intended to mean the safety of localized natural or 
man-made embankments against failure. Unlike landslides described above, embankment 
stability can include smaller scale slope failures such as erosion-related washouts and more 
subtle, less evident processes such as soil creep. 

At the time of this report, grading plans are not available. It is NOVA’s understanding that there 
may be cut slopes designed as part of the future construction. The dense to very dense nature 
of the tonalite bedrock is expected to provide sound cut slopes. Any loose alluvium in the cut 
slope should be removed and replaced with engineered fill, per recommendations in Section 6. 
Embankment stability is not considered a hazard to development. 
5.3.2 Seismic 

Liquefaction 
‘Liquefaction’ refers to the loss of soil strength during a seismic event. The phenomenon 
is observed in areas that include geologically ‘younger’ soils (i.e., soils of Holocene age), 
shallow water table (less than about 60 feet depth), and cohesionless (i.e., sandy and 
silty) soils of looser consistency. The seismic ground motions increase soil water 
pressures, decreasing grain-to-grain contact among the soil particles, which causes the 
soils to lose strength. 

The subsurface exploration did not encounter saturated soils. The Unit 2 tonalite is 
known to extend to great depth at this site. This Cretaceous-aged rock is not at risk for 
liquefaction (or related ‘lateral spreading). 

Seismically Induced Settlement 
Apart from liquefaction, a strong seismic event can induce settlement within loose to 
moderately dense, unsaturated granular soils. Unit 2 tonalite is sufficiently dense that 
seismic settlement will not occur. Unit 1 alluvium will be improved by remedial grading to 
be a soil of very dense consistency. 

5.3.3 Expansive Soil 

Expansive soils are characterized by their ability to undergo significant volume changes 
(shrinking or swelling) due to variations in moisture content, the magnitude of which is related to 
both clay content and plasticity index. These volume changes can be damaging to structures. 
Nationally, the annual value of real estate damage caused by expansive soils is exceeded only 
by that caused by termites. 

As is discussed in Section 3, the soils have been characterized by testing to determine 
Expansion Index (‘EI’ after ASTM D 4829). Originally developed in Orange County in the 1960s, 
EI is a basic soil index property, comparable to indices such as the Atterberg limits of soils. 

23 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   
   

    
   

    
    

       
     

 
   

     
  

  

   
  

  
  

   
  

   

  

   

 
  

 
  

 
    

     
 

 
 

  

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

EI is adopted by the 2019 California Building Code (‘CBC’, Section 1803.5.3) for 
characterization of expansive soils.  Testing of the Unit 1 alluvium, as well as visual inspection 
of samples recovered by NOVA, indicates that this soil has ‘Low’ expansion potential. 
5.3.4 Hydro-Collapsible Soils 

Hydro-collapsible soils are common in the arid climates of the western United States in specific 
depositional environments - principally, in areas of young alluvial fans, debris flow sediments, 
and loess (wind-blown sediment) deposits. These soils are characterized by low in situ density, 
low moisture contents, and relatively high unwetted strength. 

The Unit 1 alluvium will be improved by remedial grading and will not be collapsible. The 
consistency, geomorphogeny, and geologic age of the Unit 2 tonalite is such that these soils are 
at risk for hydro-collapse. 
5.3.5 Alluvial Soils 

Alluviual soils should be considered at risk for wide variations in quality and consistency.  This 
unit in its natural state has the potential to affect structures and infrastructure, unless mitigated 
per recommendations in Section 6. 
5.3.6 Corrosivity 

Chemical testing of the near-surface soils indicates the soils contain low concentrations of 
soluble sulfates and chlorides, but may be considered ‘severely corrosive” to buried metal 
based on resistivity testing. Section 6 addresses this consideration in more detail. 

5.4 Siting Hazards 

5.4.1 Effect on Adjacent Properties 

The proposed project will not affect the structural integrity of adjacent properties or existing 
public improvements and street right-of-ways located adjacent to the site if the 
recommendations of this report are incorporated into project design. 
5.4.2 Inundation 

Flood 
The site is located within an area designated by FEMA as “Zone X,” an area of minimal 
flood hazard Figure 5-2 (following page) reproduces flood mapping by FEMA of the site 
area. 

Surface Water Structures 
The site is not located near any surface water bodies (e.g., lakes, reservoirs, canals, 
etc.) whose failure would have the potential to inundate the site. 

24 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

 
 

  

  
      

    
 

  
  

   

 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Figure 5-2. Flood Mapping of the Site Area
(source: FEMA 2019, found at https://msc.fema.gov/portal/) 

Tsunami and Seiche 
Tsunami describes a series of fast-moving, long-period ocean waves caused by 
earthquakes or volcanic eruptions. The distance of the site from the ocean precludes this 
threat. 

Seiches are standing waves that develop in an enclosed or partially enclosed body of 
water such as lakes or reservoirs. Harbors or inlets can also develop seiches. The site is 
not located near a body of water that could generate a seiche. 

25 

https://msc.fema.gov/portal


 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   

  

  

    
       

  
    

   
 

   
      

  

   
   

  
  

  

    
  

   
 

 
    

  
   

   
 

 
  

  

  

   
 

  

    
 

  

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

6.0 EARTHWORK AND FOUNDATIONS 

6.1 Overview 

6.1.1 Review of Site Hazards 

Section 5 provides review of geologic, soil, and siting-related hazards that may affect the 
planned development. The primary hazard identified by that review is that the site is at risk for 
moderate-to-severe ground shaking in response to large-magnitude earthquakes during the 
lifetime of the planned development. This circumstance is common to all civil works in this area 
of California. 

While strong ground motion could affect the site, there is no risk of liquefaction or related 
seismic phenomena. Section 6.2 provides seismic design parameters. 
6.1.2 Site Suitability 

The site is suitable for development of the planned structures on shallow foundations provided 
the geotechnical recommendations described herein are followed. Founded as such, the 
project will not affect the structural integrity of adjacent properties or existing public 
improvements and street right-of-ways located adjacent to the site. 
6.1.3 Review and Surveillance 

The subsections following provide geotechnical recommendations for the planned development 
as it is now understood. It is intended that these recommendations provide sufficient 
geotechnical information to develop the project in general accordance with 2019 California 
Building Code (CBC) requirements. 

NOVA should be given the opportunity to review the grading plan, foundation plan, and 
geotechnical-related specifications as they become available to confirm that the 
recommendations presented in this report have been incorporated into the plans prepared for 
the project. 

All earthwork related to site and foundation preparation should be completed under the 
observation of NOVA. 

6.2 Seismic Design Parameters 

6.2.1 Site Class 

The Site Class was determined using site-specific boring data and geologic knowledge. Based 
on this information, the site is classified as Site Class C per ASCE 7-16, Table 20.3-1. The 
planned fire station is considered Risk Category IV. 
6.2.2 Seismic Design Parameters 

Table 6-1 provides seismic design parameters for the site in accordance with 2019 CBC and 
mapped spectral acceleration parameters. 

26 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

 
  

  
  

  
  
  

   
   

   
   
   

  
                   

  

  

  
  

     
     

 
   

 
  

 
  

      

        

  

   
    

 
    
    
  

 
 

 
  

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Table 6-1. Seismic Design Parameters, ASCE 7-16 
Parameter Value 

Site Soil Class C 
Site Latitude (decimal degrees) 33.260506 
Site Longitude (decimal degrees) -117.024095 
Site Coefficient, Fa 1.2 
Site Coefficient, Fv 1.5 
Mapped Short Period Spectral Acceleration, SS 1.19 
Mapped One-Second Period Spectral Acceleration, S1 0.429 
Short Period Spectral Acceleration Adjusted For Site Class, SMS 1.428 
One-Second Period Spectral Acceleration Adjusted For Site Class, SM1 0.643 
Design Short Period Spectral Acceleration, SDS 0.952 
Design One-Second Period Spectral Acceleration, SD1 0.429 

Source: SEAOC and OSHPD Seismic Design Maps www.seismicmaps.org 

6.3 Corrosivity and Sulfates 

6.3.1 General 

Electrical resistivity, chloride content, and pH level are all indicators of the soil’s tendency to 
corrode ferrous metals. Levels of water-soluble sulfates are correlated with the potential for 
sulfate attack to embedded concrete. Chemical testing for these parameters was performed on 
a representative sample of the near-surface soils. These results are tabulated in Table 6-2. 

Table 6-2. Summary of Corrosivity Testing of the Near Surface Soil 
Sample Ref 

pH Resistivity
(Ω-cm) 

Sulfates Chlorides 

Boring Depth 
(feet) ppm % ppm % 

B-2 0-4 7.8 1200 66 0.007 230 0.023 

6.3.2 Metals 

Caltrans considers a soil to be corrosive if one or more of the following conditions exist for 
representative soil and/or water samples taken at the site: 

• chloride concentration is 500 parts per million (ppm) or greater, 
• sulfate concentration is 2,000 ppm (0.2%) or greater, or 
• the pH is 5.5 or less. 

Based on the Caltrans criteria, the on-site soils would not be considered ‘corrosive’ to buried 
metals. 

27 

www.seismicmaps.org


 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  
           

   
     

  
    
 

 
  

   
  

  
  

  
 

 
    

   
   

 
  

 
 

   
  

    
    

   
  

 
   

  
 

  

      
   

   
 

  

    
  

       
  

   
 

 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

In addition to the above parameters, the risk of soil corrosivity buried metals may considered by 
determination of electrical resistivity (ρ). Soil resistivity may be used to express the corrosivity of 
soil only in unsaturated soils. Corrosion of buried metal is an electrochemical process in which 
the amount of metal loss due to corrosion is directly proportional to the flow of DC electrical 
current from the metal into the soil. As the resistivity of the soil decreases, the corrosivity 
generally increases. A common qualitative correlation (cited in Romanoff 1989, NACE 2007) 
between soil resistivity and corrosivity to ferrous metals is tabulated below. 

Table 6-3. Soil Resistivity and Corrosion Potential 
Minimum Soil 

Resistivity (Ω-cm) 
Qualitative Corrosion 

Potential 
0 to 2,000 Severe 

2,000 to 10,000 Moderate 
10,000 to 30,000 Mild 

Over 30,000 Not Likely 

Despite the relatively benign environment for corrosivity indicated by pH and water-soluble 
chlorides, the resistivity testing suggests that design should consider that the soils may be 
Severely Corrosive to embedded ferrous metals. Ferrous metals include steel and pig iron (with 
a carbon content of a few percent) and alloys of iron with other metals (such as stainless steel). 

Typical recommendations for mitigation of such corrosion potential in embedded ferrous metals 
include: 

• a high-quality protective coating such as an 18-mil plastic tape, extruded polyethylene, 
coal tar enamel, or Portland cement mortar; 

• electrical isolation from above grade ferrous metals and other dissimilar metals by 
means of dielectric fittings in utilities and exposed metal structures breaking grade; and 

• steel and wire reinforcement within concrete having contact with the site soils should 
have at least 2 inches of concrete cover. 

If extremely sensitive ferrous metals are expected to be placed in contact with the site soils, it 
may be desirable to consult a corrosion specialist regarding choosing the construction materials 
and/or protection design for the objects of concern. 
6.3.3 Sulfates 

As shown in Table 6-2, the soil sample indicated water-soluble sulfate (SO4) content of 66 parts 
per million (‘ppm,’ 0.007% by weight). With SO4 < 0.10 percent by weight, the American 
Concrete Institute (ACI) 318-08 considers a soil to have no potential (S0) for sulfate attack. 
Table 6-4 (following page) reproduces the Exposure Categories considered by ACI. 
6.3.4 Limitations 

Testing to determine several chemical parameters that indicate a potential for soils to be 
corrosive to construction materials are traditionally completed by the Geotechnical Engineer, 
comparing testing results with a variety of indices regarding corrosion potential. Like most 
geotechnical consultants, NOVA does not practice in the field of corrosion protection, since this 
is not specifically a geotechnical issue. Should you require more information, a specialty 
corrosion consultant should be retained to address these issues. 

28 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

 

  
 

 
  

  

 

       
        

        
       

             

   

  

   
 

    
  

   
 

  

   
   

 
    

  
  

      
  

  
    

    

      
      
    
        

  
      

   
  

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Table 6-4. Exposure Categories and Requirements for Water-Soluble Sulfates 

Exposure 
Category Class 

Water-Soluble 
Sulfate (SO4) In 

Soil 
Cement Type
(ASTM C150) 

Max Water-
Cement Ratio 

Min. f’c 
(psi) 

Not Applicable S0 SO4 < 0.10 - - -
Moderate S1 0.10 ≤ SO4 < 0.20 II 0.50 4,000 
Severe S2 0.20 ≤ SO4 ≤ 2.00 V 0.45 4,500 
Very severe S3 SO4 > 2.0 V + pozzolan 0.45 4,500 

Adapted from: ACI 318-08, Building Code Requirements for Structural Concrete 

6.4 Earthwork 

6.4.1 General 

As is noted in Section 2, no detailed structural or civil-related design information is available at 
this time. However, based upon the known condition of the site and the design concept that is 
currently considered, NOVA expects that earthwork will be limited to preparation of building 
pads, grading for roads and parking lots, and excavations for foundations and utilities. 
Earthwork should be performed in accordance with Section 300 of the most recent approved 
edition of the “Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction” and “Regional 
Supplement Amendments.” 
6.4.2 Site Preparation 

Prior to the start of earthwork, the site should be cleared of vegetation, including the root zone.  
The deleterious materials should be disposed of in approved off-site locations. 

At the outset of site work, the Contractor should establish Construction BMPs to prevent erosion 
of graded/excavated areas until such time as permanent drainage and erosion control measures 
have been installed. Any existing utilities which are to be abandoned should either be (i) 
excavated and the trenches backfilled, or (ii) the lines completely filled with sand-cement slurry. 
6.4.3 Select Fill 

Material Requirements 
Any fill used to support structures should be ‘select.’ Select Fill should be a mineral soil 
free of organics and any regulated constituents with the characteristics listed below: 

• free of organics, with at least 40% by weight finer than ¼ inches in size; 
• maximum particle size of 4 inches; 
• classified as GM, GW, SW or SM after ASTM D 2488; and, 
• expansion index (EI) less than 40 (i.e., EI < 40, after ASTM D 4829). 

Much of the Unit 1 alluvium will conform to the above criteria. In certain cases mixing of 
the Unit 1 and Unit 2 soils may be required to meet the above criteria. The upper 
portions of the Unit 2 weathered tonalite should also conform to the above criteria. 

29 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  
  

  
 

     
 

  
 

   
   
     

  
 

  

     
  

 
  

  
     

  
  

 
   

   
     

      
   

  
 

  

 
      

  
    

  
     

 
    

    
 

    
   

 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Compaction Requirements 
All fill should be compacted to a minimum of 90% relative compaction after ASTM D1557 
(the ‘modified Proctor’) following moisture conditioning to 2% above the optimum 
moisture content.  
The cohesionless (i.e., sandy and gravelly) Select Fill must be densified by vibratory 
means, using compaction equipment intended for the densification of cohesionless soils. 
The equipment must be in good working order. 

Fill should be placed in loose lifts no thicker than the ability of the compaction equipment 
to thoroughly densify the lift. For most self-propelled construction equipment, this will 
limit loose lifts to on the order of 8 inches or less. Lift thickness for hand-operated 
equipment (tampers, walk-behind compactors, etc.) will be limited to on the order of 4 
inches or less. 

6.4.4 Excavation Characteristics 

The Unit 1 alluvium will be readily excavated by earthwork equipment usual for construction of 
this nature. 

Engineering borings excavated by means of hollow stem auger drilling were able to be extended 
to depths of 16 feet below surrounding ground, penetrating at least 10 feet of the Unit 2 
weathered tonalite. SPT blow counts (‘N’, blows per foot) in this interval were commonly N > 50. 
The weathered tonalite encountered over this interval was characteristically a coarse-grained 
sand with varying amounts of silt. 

NOVA expects that the Unit 2 weathered tonalite should be able to be excavated by medium to 
heavy earthmoving equipment, including larger dozers and appropriately equipped backhoes. 
Despite this expectation, the prospective contractor should recognize that this unit commonly 
includes near-surface zones of sound rock known as ‘core stones’ or ‘floaters’ that may require 
ripping, breaking, or other special means to loosen the material prior to handling, though none 
of these were encountered during the investigation. 

6.4.5 Remedial Grading at Structures 

General 
The Unit 1 alluvium is unsuitable for support of structures. Foundation preparation for 
floor slabs and foundations should provide for complete removal of the Unit 1 alluvium to 
the level of the Unit 2 weathered tonalite, extending this excavation to at least 5 feet 
outside the building limits. The resultant excavation should be backfilled to finish pad 
grades with Select Fill meets the criteria of Section 6.4.3. 

The project GEOR should approve the bottom of removals. Soils loosened by excavation 
should be redensified to a minimum of 90% relative compaction after ASTM D 1557. 
Transition Conditions 
A “transition condition” occurs when a portion of the structure is bearing on new 
engineered fill and a portion of the structure is bearing on the Unit 2 weathered tonalite. 

30 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  
   

  
 

    
   

  

   
   

  

    
  

 
    

   
 

  
     

    
   

    
   

    
  

  

    

     
  

  

    
   

   

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

If a transition condition occurs within the limits of a structure, the Unit 2 tonalite should 
be over excavated to a depth of 2 feet below the bottom of footings and floor slab, to 
ensure the structure is bearing entirely on at least 2 feet of compacted fill. 

These over excavations should extend 5 feet beyond the building footprint. Removal 
bottoms should be observed and documented by the GEOR. 

6.4.6 Maintenance of Moisture in Soils During Construction 

The subgrade moisture condition of the building pad and foundation soils must be maintained at 
least 2% above optimum moisture content up to the time of concrete placement. 
6.4.7 Trenching and Backfilling for Utilities 

Excavation for utility trenches must be performed in conformance with OSHA regulations 
contained in 29 CFR Part 1926. 

Utility trench excavations have the potential to degrade the properties of the adjacent soils. 
Utility trench walls that are allowed to move laterally will reduce the bearing capacity and 
increase settlement of adjacent footings and overlying slabs. 

Backfill for utility trenches is as important as the original subgrade preparation or engineered fill 
placed to support either a foundation or slab. Backfill for utility trenches must be placed to meet 
the project specifications for the engineered fill of this project. Unless otherwise specified, the 
backfill for the utility trenches should be placed in 4-inch to 6-inch loose lifts and compacted to a 
minimum of 90% relative compaction after ASTM D 1557 (the ‘modified Proctor’) at soil moisture 
at least +2% of the optimum moisture content. Up to 4 inches of bedding material placed directly 
under the pipes or conduits placed in the utility trench can be compacted to 90% relative 
compaction with respect to the Modified Proctor. 
6.4.8 Slope Construction 

Adaptation of the planned fire station to the sloping site may include engineered fills. 

Select Fill (Section 6.4.3) should be used in the construction of engineered fill slopes. Cut and 
fill slopes should be constructed at an inclination of 2:1 (horizontal:vertical) or flatter. Keyways 
should be constructed at the toe of all fill slopes taller than four feet. 

Where the slope of the original ground is steeper than 5:1 (horizontal:vertical), or where 
recommended by the Geotechnical Engineer of Record (GEOR), the original ground should be 
benched in accordance with the Figure 6-1. 

31 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

   
 

 
  

   
 

  

  
     

   
  

 
   

 
 

   

  

  

  
    

 
   

    

inish Grade 

Remove All 
Unsuitable Material 
As Recommended By 
Consultant 

I 

I 

/v----------Original Ground 

2 

~1 r- Finish Slope Surface 

I 

I "B" 
·see Note 1 See Note 2 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Figure 6-1.  Benching Detail 
Notes: 
(1) Key width "B" should be a minimum of 5 feet, or sufficiently wide to permit complete coverage 
with the compaction equipment used. The base of the key should be graded horizontal, 
inclined slightly into the natural slope. 

(2) The outside of the key should be below the topsoil or unsuitable surficial material 
and at least 2 feet into dense Tonalite material (Unit 2). The bottom of the key, the depth and 
configuration of the key may be modified as approved by the GEOR. 

6.4.9 Flatwork 

Prior to casting exterior flatwork, the upper 12 inches of subgrade soils should be removed and 
replaced with compacted fill that meets the requirments of Select Fill. The exposed bottom of 
removals should be scarified, moisture conditioned, and compacted to a minimum of 90% 
relative compaction after ASTM D 1557 (the ‘modified Proctor’). 

Exterior concrete slabs for pedestrian traffic or landscape should be at least 4 inches thick. 
Weakened plane joints should be located at intervals of about 6 feet. Control of the 
water/cement ratio can limit shrinkage cracking due to excess water or poor concrete finishing 
or curing. Exterior slabs may be reinforced with No. 3 bars on 18-inches centers, each way. 

6.5 Shallow Foundations 

6.5.1 General 

Structures can be supported on shallow foundations embedded in either compacted Select Fill 
or the Unit 2 weathered tonalite.  The following subsections provide recommendations for 
shallow foundations. It is recommended that all foundation elements, including any grade 
beams, be reinforced top and bottom. The actual reinforcement should be designed by the 
Structural Engineer. 

32 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   

  
 

     
  

  
 

   
 

  
    

 
  

 
 

 
 

   
 

    
    

 
 

 
  

  
        

 
 

    

  
  

    
 

   
   

   
  

  
 

 
   
   

  
   

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

6.5.2 Shallow Foundations Supported on Compacted Fill 

Minimum Dimensions 
Continuous footings should be at least 18 inches wide and have a minimum 
embedment of 18 inches below lowest adjacent finish grade. Isolated square or 
rectangular footings should be a minimum of 24 inches wide, embedded at least 18 
inches below surrounding finish grade. 
Allowable Contact Stress 
Continuous and isolated footings constructed as described in the preceding sections 
and supported on compacted fill may be designed using an allowable (net) contact 
stress of 3,000 pounds per square foot (psf).  An allowable increase of 500 psf for 
each additional 12 inches in depth may be utilized, if desired. 

In no case should the maximum allowable contact stress should be greater than 
3,500 psf. The maximum bearing value applies to combined dead and sustained live 
loads (DL + LL). The allowable bearing pressure may be increased by one-third 
when considering transient live loads, including seismic and wind forces. 
Lateral Resistance 
Resistance to lateral loads will be provided by a combination of (i) friction between 
the soils and foundation interface; and, (ii) passive pressure acting against the 
vertical portion of the footings. Passive pressure may be calculated at 350 psf per 
foot of depth.  A frictional coefficient of 0.35 may be used. No reduction is necessary 
when combining frictional and passive resistance. 
Settlement 
Structure supported on shallow foundations as recommended above will settle on the 
order of 0.5 inch or less, with about 70% of this settlement occurring during the 
construction period.  Angular distortion due to differential settlement of adjacent, 
unevenly loaded footings should be less than 1 inch in 40 feet (i.e., Δ/L less than 
1:480). 

6.5.3 Shallow Foundations Supported on Unit 2 Tonalite Bedrock 

The Unit 2 tonalite bedrock will provide high-capacity foundation support for shallow 
foundations. NOVA recommends use of conventional foundations, consisting of isolated and 
continuous footings, as described below. 

Isolated Foundations 
Isolated foundations for interior columns may be designed for an allowable contact 
stress of 6,500 psf for dead and commonly applied live loads (DL+LL).  These 
foundation units should have a minimum width of 24 inches, extended through any fill 
and embedded a minimum of 12 inches into sound Unit 2 tonalite bedrock.  This 
bearing value may be increased by one-third for transient loads such as wind and 
seismic. 
Continuous Foundations 
Continuous foundations may be designed for an allowable contact stress of 4,000 psf 
for dead and commonly applied live loads (DL+LL).  These footings must be a 
minimum of 18 inches in width and embedded a minimum of 12 inches into the Unit 2 
tonalite bedrock. 

33 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

 
   

 
 

  
  

   
   

   
 

 
  

  
        

 
 

  

    
 

    
    

    
 

 
     

 
 

   
 

      
  

  
    

  
     

 
 

 
 

. ·.-. ·. . 
1°14 D min-1 l J \ ~ -.. -:-: .. :: 

·} -. • C, ... • • •• • 0 -~> • • • Induced crack > • ... ; 
; 0 •• • , 

~ 
•. • ... 4! 

••• •• 0 : · • : . .. o.• . o . o ..... 

Sawed contraction joint 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

This bearing value may be increased by one-third for transient loads such as wind 
and seismic. 
Resistance to Lateral Loads 
Lateral loads to shallow foundations cast ‘neat’ against Unit 2 tonalite bedrock may 
be resisted by passive earth pressure against the face of the footing, calculated as a 
fluid density of 300 psf per foot of depth, neglecting the upper 1 foot of soil below 
surrounding grade in this calculation.  Additionally, a coefficient of friction of 0.35 
between soil and the concrete base of the footing may be used with dead loads. 
Settlement 
Structure supported on shallow foundations as recommended above will settle on the 
order of 0.5 inch or less, with about 70% of this settlement occurring during the 
construction period.  Angular distortion due to differential settlement of adjacent, 
unevenly loaded footings should be less than 1 inch in 40 feet (i.e., Δ/L less than 
1:480). 

6.5.4 General Slab Design 

Ground supported slabs for the adminstrative building should be designed by the Structural 
Engineer using a modulus of subgrade reaction (k) of 180 pounds per cubic inch (i.e., k = 180 
pci). NOVA recommends the slab be a minimum 5 inches thick, reinforced by at least #3 bars 
placed at 16 inches on center each way within the middle third of the slabs by supporting the 
steel on chairs or concrete blocks ("dobies"). 

Minor cracking of concrete after curing due to drying and shrinkage is normal. Cracking is 
aggravated by a variety of factors, including high water/cement ratio, high concrete temperature 
at the time of placement, small nominal aggregate size, and rapid moisture loss due during 
curing. The use of low-slump concrete or low water/cement ratios can reduce the potential for 
shrinkage cracking. 

To reduce the potential for excessive cracking, concrete slabs-on-grade should be provided with 
construction or ‘weakened plane’ joints at frequent intervals. Joints should be laid out to form 
approximately square panels and never exceeding a length to width ratio of 1.5 to 1. Proper joint 
spacing and depth are essential to effective control of random cracking. Joints are commonly 
spaced at distances equal to 24 to 30 times the slab thickness. Joint spacing that is greater than 
15 feet should include the use of load transfer devices (dowels or diamond plates). Contraction/ 
control joints should be established to a depth of ¼ the slab thickness as depicted in Figure 6-2 
(following page). 

Figure 6-2. Sawed Contraction Joint 

34 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

 
 

   
 

 
  

   

 
    

 
    

  
  

  

  

 
 

  
  

  
    

   
   

 

  
   

 
  

   
 

  
 

SLAB . ,; . • .. . . . . 
,; ,, .~ ... .._ ,. ·· .. .. 

PAD GRADE 
'/, / 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

A ground supported slab may be developed with a thickened edge to support wall loads. A 
thickened edge extending to a minimum of 12 inches below surrounding ground and bearing at 
3,500 psf. Figure 6-3 depicts these foundations conceptually. 

Figure 6-3. Ground Supported Slab with Thickened Edge 

6.5.5 Slab Design to Support Fire Trucks 

Ground supported slabs within both the fire station and the maintenance building that will be 
used for longer-term or repeated parking of firetrucks should be designed using k = 180 pci. 

These slabs be a minimum 6 inches thick, reinforced by at least #3 bars placed at 16 inches on 
center each way within the middle third of the slabs. The modulus of rupture (MR) of concrete 
used for these slabs should be a minimum of 650 psi. 

6.6 Underslab Vapor Retarder 

6.6.1 General 

Soil moisture vapor that penetrates ground-supported concrete slabs can result in damage to 
moisture-sensitive floors, some floor sealers, or sensitive equipment in direct contact with the 
floor. It is not the responsibility of the geotechnical consultant to provide recommendations for 
vapor retarders to address this concern. This responsibility usually falls to the Architect. 
Decisions regarding the appropriate vapor retarder are principally driven by the nature of the 
building space above the slab, floor coverings, anticipated penetrations, concerns for mold or 
soil gas and a variety of other environmental, aesthetic, and materials factors known only to the 
Architect. 

A variety of specialty polyethylene (polyolefin)-based vapor retarding products are available to 
retard moisture transmission into and through concrete slabs. This remainder of this section 
provides an overview of design and installation guidance, and considers the use of vapor 
retarders in the building construction in the San Diego area. 
6.6.2 Guidance Documentation 

Detail to support selection of vapor retarders and to address the issue of moisture transmission 
into and through concrete slabs is provided in a variety of publications by the American Society 
for Testing and Materials (ASTM) and the American Concrete Institute (ACI). A partial listing of 
those publications is provided below. 

35 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   
  

 
  

  
 

     
 

 
     

    
 

  
 

  

 
    

   
  

   
   

  
 

   
       

   
   

  

  
  

 

  

  

   
   

  

    
  

   
  

  
   

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

• ASTM E1745-97 (2009). Standard Specification for Plastic Water Vapor Retarders Used 
in Contact with Soil or Granular Fill under Concrete Slabs 

• ASTM E154-88 (2005). Standard Test Methods for Water Vapor Retarders Used in 
Contact with Earth Under Concrete Slabs, on Walls, or as Ground Cover 

• ASTM E96-95 (2005). Standard Test Methods for Water Vapor Transmission of 
Materials 

• ASTM E1643-98 (2009). Standard Practice for Installation of Water Vapor Retarders 
Used in Contact with Earth or Granular Fill Under Concrete Slabs 

• ACI 302.2R-06. Guide for Concrete Slabs that Receive Moisture-Sensitive Flooring 
Materials 

6.6.3 Design 

Vapor retarders employed for ground supported slabs in the San Diego are commonly specified 
as minimum 10 mil polyolefin plastic that conforms to the requirements of ASTM E1745 as a 
Class A vapor retarder (i.e., a maximum vapor permeance of 0.1 perms, minimum 45 lb/in 
tensile strength and 2,200 grams puncture resistance). Among the commercial products that 
meet this requirement are the series of Yellow Guard® vapor retarders vended by Poly-
America, L.P.; the Perminator® products by W. R. Meadows; and, Stego®Wrap products by 
Stego Industries, LLC. 

The person responsible for design of the vapor barrier should consult with product vendors to 
ensure selection of the vapor retarder that best meets the project requirements. For example, 
concrete slabs with particularly sensitive floor coverings may require lower permeance or other 
performance-related factors than are specified by the ASTM E1745 class rating. 
6.6.4 Installation 

The performance of vapor retarders is particularly sensitive to the quality of installation. 
Installation should be performed in accordance with the vendor’s recommendations under full-
time surveillance. 

6.7 Control of Moisture Around Foundations 

6.7.1 General 

Design for the structure should include care to control accumulations of moisture around and 
below foundations. Such design will require coordination among the Design Team. 
6.7.2 Erosion and Moisture Control During Construction 

Surface water should be controlled during construction, via berms, gravel/sandbags, silt fences, 
straw wattles, siltation basins, positive surface grades, or other methods to avoid damage to the 
finish work or adjoining properties. The Contractor should take measures to prevent erosion of 
graded areas until such time as permanent drainage and erosion control measures have been 
installed. After grading, all excavated surfaces should exhibit positive drainage and eliminate 
areas where water might pond. 

36 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  

 
  

      
   

      
 

   
   

    
     

  
   

    

  
 

    
 

   
 

   
  

  
    

    
 

  

  

    
   

   
     

  
  

  
 

    
    

  
 
 
 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

6.7.3 Design 

Design for the areas around foundations should be undertaken with a view to the maintenance 
of an environment that encourages constant moisture conditions in the foundation soils following 
construction. Drainage should be designed to limit the potential for infiltration and/or releases of 
moisture beneath structures. In particular, rainfall to roofs should be collected in gutters and 
discharged in a controlled manner away from foundations. 

Proper surface drainage will be required to minimize the potential of water seeking the level of 
the bearing soils under foundations and pavements. In areas where sidewalks or paving do not 
immediately adjoin a structure, protective slopes should be provided with a minimum grade 
(away from the structure) of approximately 3% for at least 5 feet from perimeter walls. A 
minimum gradient of 1% is recommended in hardscape areas. Drainage should be directed to 
approved drainage facilities. 
6.7.4 Utilities 

Design for Differential Movement 
Underground piping within or near structures should be designed with flexible couplings 
to accommodate both ground and slab movement so that minor deviations in alignment 
do not result in breakage or distress. Utility knockouts should be oversized to 
accommodate the potential for differential movement between foundations and the 
surrounding soil. 

Backfill Above Utilities. 
Excavations for utility lines, which extend under or near structural areas should be 
properly backfilled and compacted. Utilities should be bedded and backfilled with 
approved granular soil to a depth of at least 1-foot over the pipe. This backfill should be 
uniformly watered and compacted to a firm condition for pipe support. Backfill above the 
pipe zone should meet the requirements for Select Fill, placed to at least 90% relative 
compaction at 2% above optimum. 

6.8 Retaining Walls 

6.8.1 Wall Loads 

As of the time of this report, it is not known if the site will be designed with retaining walls. 
However, as design progresses, walls may be developed; for example, retaining walls for 
buildings and/or perimeter site walls.  Static lateral earth pressures are provided for these walls 
on Table 6-5 (following page) as equivalent fluid weights, in psf/foot of wall height or pounds per 
cubic foot (pcf).  
6.8.2 Retaining Wall Foundations 

Retaining wall may be supported on continuous foundations designed as described in Section 
6.5. Wall foundations are not permitted to have transition conditions as described in Section 
6.4.5. If transition conditions exist, the tonalite bedrock should be over excavated a minimum of 
2 feet below footing depth such that the walls are entirely bearing on engineered fill. Transition 
condition recommendations found in Section 6.4.5 should be followed. 

37 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

 

 

 
  

 
 

  
 

    
   

    
     

 
    

    
 

  
    

     
     

 
  

 
 

     

                             
  

    
   

   

 
  

           

                   
 

 
  

    
    

 
  

  

     
 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

Table 6-5. Lateral Earth Pressures to Retaining Walls 

Loading Condition 

Equivalent Fluid Density (pcf) for
Approved ‘Native’ Backfill Notes Notes A, B,C 

Level 
Backfill 

2:1 Backfill 
Sloping Upwards 

Active (wall movement allowed) 35 50 
“At Rest” (no wall movement) 55 80 

‘Passive” (wall movement toward the soils) 350 350 
Note A: ‘approved’ means Select Fill with EI < 20 after ASTM D4829 and approved 
by the Geotechnical Engineer. 
Note B: assumes level backfill and appropriate wall drainage. 
Note C: The values on Table 6-5 do not contain a factor of safety (F). 

If footings or other surcharge loads are located a short distance outside the wall, these 
influences should be added to the lateral stress considered in the design of the wall. Surcharge 
loading should consider wall loads that may develop from adjacent roads and sidewalks. To 
account for such potential loads, a surcharge pressure of 75 psf can be applied uniformly over 
the wall to a depth of about 12 feet. 
6.8.3 Seismic Increment 

Non-Yielding Walls 
Lateral seismic thrust acting on non-yielding below-grade walls can be estimated by the 
dynamic (seismic) thrust, ΔPE. Dynamic thrust is approximated as: 

ΔPE = khH2γ   where, 
kh , pseudostatic horizontal earthquake coefficient, equal to SDS/2.5 
H is the height of the wall in feet from the footing to the point of fixity 
γ is the unit weight of the backfill material (about 125 pcf) 

The resultant dynamic thrust acts at a distance of 0.6H above the base of the wall. 

Cantilevered Walls 
Walls less than 6 feet in height need not include a seismic load. Cantilevered walls taller 
than 6 feet should consider an incremental lateral seismic thrust, ΔPE, expressed as: 

ΔPE = 0.4 khH2γ   where, 

ΔPE is the incremental seismic thrust 
kh is the pseudostatic horizontal earthquake coefficient, is equal to SDS/2.5 
H is the height of the wall in feet from the footing 
γ is the unit weight of the backfill material (about 125 pcf) 

The resultant dynamic thrust acts at a distance of 0.3H above the base of the wall. 

6.8.4 Foundation Uplift 

A soil unit weight of 125 pcf may be assumed for calculating the weight of soil over the wall 
footing. 

38 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

  

  
  

 
 

      
 

 
    

 
  

 
    

   
   

 

 
   

   

  
  

    
   

 
  

  
  

WALL 

IL------ -~~~~:.~:~~~~~vio 
EQUIVALENT) 

12" I / ~~i.~~~ ROCK 

t :::.-:-_x~ __.IL TER FABRIC 
: ~ . ~ . ,. ENVELOPE 

. MIRAFI 140N OR 
~ EQUIVALENT 

-,.,,,.,,,...,.,'"-""'.,....----,-_;.---c.... ◄" DIA. SCHEDULE ◄O 
PERFORATED PVC PIPE 
OR TOTAL DRAIN 

,~/j. ~...._ ... ,y~~ EXTENDED TO 
APPROVED OUTLET 

COMPETENT BEDROCK 
OR MA TERlAL AS 
EVALUATED BY THE 
GEOTECHNtCAL. 
CONSULTANT 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

6.8.5 Resistance to Lateral Loads 

Lateral loads to wall foundations will be resisted by a combination of frictional and passive 
resistance as described in Section 6.5. 
6.8.6 Wall Drainage 

The recommended equivalent fluid pressures provided in the preceding subsection assume that 
constantly functioning drainage systems are installed between walls and soil backfill to prevent 
the uncontrolled buildup of hydrostatic pressures and lateral stresses in excess of those stated. 

Design for wall drainage may include the use of pre-engineered wall drainage panels or a 
properly compacted granular free-draining backfill material (EI < 40). 

The use of drainage openings through the base of the wall (weep holes) is not recommended 
where the seepage could be a nuisance or otherwise adversely affect the property adjacent to 
the base of the wall. Figure 6-4 provides a conceptual design for wall drainage. Numerous 
alternatives are available for collection of water behind retaining walls. The intent of Figure 6-4 
is to depict the concepts described in the preceding paragraph. 

Figure 6-4. Conceptual Design for Wall Drainage 

6.9 Temporary Slopes 

Temporary slopes may be required for excavations during grading. All temporary excavations 
should comply with local safety ordinances. The safety of all excavations is solely the 
responsibility of the Contractor and should be evaluated during construction as the excavation 
progresses. 

Based on the data interpreted from the borings, the design of temporary slopes may assume 
California Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Cal/OSHA) Soil Type B for planning 
purposes. Temporary slopes may be excavated no steeper than 1:1 (horizontal:vertical). 

39 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 
 

  

  

 
  

    
   

   
  

  

     
  

  
  

 

 
   

 
 

 
 
 

D.1-1: Considerations for Geotechnical Analysis of Infiltration Rest rictions 

Mandatory 
Considerations 

Optional 

Considerations 

Result 

Restriction Element 

B.t-.1P 1s w1thm 100' of Contaminated Soils 

BMP is within 100' of Industrial Activities Lacking Source Control 

B.t-.1P is within 100' of \Vell/ Groundwater Basin 

B.t-.1P is within SO' of Septic Tanks/ Leach Fields 

B.t-.1P is within 10' ofStrucnires/ Tanks/ Walls 

B.t-.1P is within 10' of Sewer Utilities 

B11P is within 10' of Groundwater Table 

B.t-.1P is within Highly Liquefiable Soils and has Connectivity to Strucnues 

BMP is within 1.5 Times the H eight of Adjacent Steep Slopes (;:::25%) 

Cotmty Staff has Assigned ''Restricted" Infiltration Category 

BMP is within Predominantly Type D Soil 

B.t-.1P is witllin 10' of Property Line 

B11P is witllin Fill Depths of ;:,:5' (Existing or Proposed) 

B11P is witllin 10' of Underground Utilities 

B11P is witllin 250' of Ephemeral Stream 

Otl1er (Provide detailed geotechnical support) 

Based o n examination of tl1e best available information, 

Is Element 

Applicable? 

(Yes/ No) 

No 
No 
No* 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 
No 

No 

I have not identified any restric tions above. Unrestricted 

Based on examination of me best available information, 0 
I haYe identified one or more restrictions above. Restricted 

Table D.1-1 1s di,·ided into 1fondatory Considerations and Optional Considerations. ~fondatory 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

7.0 STORMWATER INFILTRATION 

7.1 Overview 

One permanent stormwater biofiltration basin, encompassing about 6,000 SF, is proposed north 
of the fire station. As the project plans are conceptual, stormwater best management practice 
(BMP) design and depths are not identified. NOVA assumes that any such stormwater 
structures would be developed utilizing an underdrain, and is unrestricted by the elements listed 
in Table D.1-1 (presented below) of the County of San Diego BMP Design Manual, January 
2019 edition (hereafter, ‘the BMP Manual’). 

7.2 Public Health and Safety Considerations 

It is NOVA’s judgment that the site is not restricted by elements that may pose a significant risk 
to human health and safety which cannot be reasonably resolved through site design changes. 
As such, infiltration may be feasible. Figure 7-1 outlines the consideration for geotechnical 
analysis of infiltration restrictions for the proposed BMP. 

*: Design should confirm that the planned BMP is not within 50’ of the proposed Leech Field 
**: To be reviewed by the SWQMP Preparer 

Figure 7-1. Infiltration Restriction Considerations 

40 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  

  
  

  
 

 
       

  

     
  

 
   

 
 

  
  

  

 

 
 

 
  

  
 

 

      
      

  
    

 
   

  
   

  
 

 
 

    
    
   

   
   

  

   
   

   
 

 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

7.3 Borehole Percolation Testing 

On July 1, 2020, NOVA directed the excavation and construction of two (2) percolation test 
borings (‘P-1’ and ‘P-2’) and one (1) engineering boring (‘B-4’) within the proposed BMP 
footprint, following the recommendations for borehole percolation testing presented in the BMP 
Manual. The percolation test borings were drilled to approximately 5 feet bgs, a typical depth for 
BMP designs, into the underlying tonalite bedrock. The engineering boring was drilled to 
approximately 16.5 feet bgs to evaluate the soil strata below the bottom of the proposed BMP. 

7.4 Infiltration Rate 

The percolation rate of a soil profile is not the same as its infiltration rate (‘I’). Therefore, the field 
percolation rate was converted to an estimated infiltration rate utilizing the Porchet Method in 
accordance with guidance contained in the BMP Manual. Table 7-1 provides a summary of the 
infiltration rates determined by the percolation testing. 

Table 7-1. Infiltration Rates Determined by Percolation Testing 

Test Well 
Reference 

Approximate 
Elevation 

(feet, msl) 1 

Total 
Depth 
(feet) 

Approximate 
Percolation Test 
Elevation (feet,

msl) 1 

Infiltration 
Rate (in/hr) Infiltration 

Rate (in/hr)2 

FS = 2 

P-1 +1565.0 5.0 +1560.0 0.39 0.20 
P-2 +1568.0 5.0 +1563.0 3.37 1.69 

Note 1: Elevations are approximate and should be reviewed 
Note 2: ‘F’ indicates ‘Factor of Safety’ 

As may be seen by review of Table 7-1, a factor of safety (F) has been applied to the infiltration 
rate (I) determined by the percolation testing. This factor of safety, at least FS = 2 in local 
practice, considers the nature and variability of subsurface materials, as well as the natural 
tendency of infiltration structures to become less efficient with time. A default factor of safety of 
2 is applied for BMPs utilizing an underdrain. 

The calculated infiltration rates at locations P-1 and P-2 after applying FS = 2 are 0.20 and 1.69 
inches per hour, respectively. It is the judgment of NOVA that the lower infiltration rate (P-1 = 
0.20 inches per hour) should be utilized for design calculations. In addition, the site is classified 
by NRCS Soil Survey maps as soil type ‘C’. The default infiltration rate for soil type ‘C’ is 0.10 
inches per hour. As such, the infiltration rate at P-2 is anomalously high for the bedrock 
conditions at the site, and should not be considered for design purposes. 

7.5 Recommendation for Infiltration 

In consideration of the foregoing, it is NOVA’s judgment that the site is not restricted by 
elements that may pose a significant risk to human health and safety which cannot be 
reasonably resolved through site design changes. Design for the proposed BMP may utilize an 
infiltration rate of 0.20 inches per hour. 
. 

41 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   

  

  
  

     
    

   

  

     
    
    

  
  

 
   

 
 

   
    

 
 

  
   

 
  
 

  
 

  

 
   

 
  

  
 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

8.0 PAVEMENT DESIGN 

8.1 General 

The structural design of pavement sections depends primarily on anticipated traffic conditions, 
subgrade soils, and construction materials. For the purposes of the preliminary evaluation 
provided in this section, NOVA has assumed a Traffic Index (TI) of 7.0. These traffic indices 
should be confirmed by the project civil engineer prior to final design. 

8.2 Design for Drainage and Maintenance 

8.2.1 Drainage 

Control of surface drainage is important to the design and construction of pavements. Standing 
water that develops either on the pavement surface or within the base course can soften the 
subgrade and create other problems related to the deterioration of the pavement. Good 
drainage should minimize the risk of the subgrade materials becoming saturated and weakened 
over a long period of time. 

The following recommendations should be considered to limit the amount of excess moisture, 
which can reach the subgrade soils: 

• maintain surface gradients at a minimum 2% grade away from the pavements; 
• compact utility trenches for landscaped areas to the same criteria as the pavement 

subgrade; 
• seal all landscaped areas in or adjacent to pavements to minimize or prevent moisture 

migration to subgrade soils; 
• planters should not be located next to pavements (otherwise, subdrains should be used to 

drain the planter to appropriate outlets); 
• place compacted backfill against the exterior side of curb and gutter; and, 
• concrete curbs bordering landscaped areas should have a deepened edge to provide a 

cutoff for moisture flow beneath pavements (generally, the edge of the curb can be 
extended an additional twelve inches below the base of the curb). 

8.2.2 Maintenance 

Preventative maintenance should be planned and provided for in the ownership of all 
pavements. Preventative maintenance activities are intended to slow the rate of pavement 
deterioration and to preserve the pavement investment. Preventative maintenance consists of 
both localized maintenance (e.g. crack sealing and patching) and global maintenance (e.g. 
surface sealing). Preventative maintenance is usually the first priority when implementing a 
planned pavement maintenance program and provides the highest return on investment for 
pavements. 

42 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  

  

  
   

  
 

    
   

   
  

 
  

  
 

 
  

  

   
 

 
  

   
      

   
 

  

 
  

   
   

 
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
     

     
   

 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

8.3 Subgrade Preparation 

8.3.1 Subgrade Preparation 

Grading for paved areas should consist of removing and replacing the upper 2 feet below the 
finished subgrade level. The bottom of removals should be scarified 6-inches, moisture 
conditioned to at least 2% above the optimum moisture content, then densified/compacted to a 
minimum 90% relative compaction after ASTM D 1557 (the ‘modified Proctor’). Thereafter, the 
removed soils should be replaced as engineered fill moisture conditioned to at least 2% above 
the optimum moisture content, then densified/compacted to a minimum 95% relative 
compaction after ASTM D 1557 (the ‘modified Proctor’). 
8.3.1 Proof Rolling 

After the completion of subgrade preparation, areas to receive pavements should be proof-
rolled. A loaded dump truck or similar should be used to aid in identifying localized soft or 
unsuitable material. 

Any soft or unsuitable materials encountered during this proof-rolling should be removed, 
replaced with an approved backfill, and compacted. 
8.3.2 Timely Pavement Construction 

Construction should be managed such that preparation of the subgrade immediately precedes 
placement of the base course. Proper drainage of the paved areas should be provided to 
reduce moisture infiltration to the subgrade. 
8.3.3 Surveillance 

The preparation of roadway and parking area subgrades should be observed on a full-time 
basis by a representative of NOVA to confirm that any unsuitable materials have been removed 
and that the subgrade is suitable for support of the proposed driveways and parking areas after 
ASTM D1557. 

8.4 Flexible Pavements 

The structural design of flexible pavement depends primarily on anticipated traffic conditions, 
subgrade soils, and construction materials. Table 8-1 provides preliminary flexible pavement 
sections using an assumed R-value of 17. The final pavement sections should be determined 
after performing R-Value testing of the prepared subgrade soils. 

Table 8-1. Preliminary Recommendations for Flexible Pavements 

Area Estimated 
Subgrade R-Value 

Traffic 
Index 

Asphalt 
Thickness (in) 

Base Course 
Thickness (in) 

Parking Areas/ 
Driveways/Roadways 17 7.0 4.0 13.0 

The above sections assume properly prepared subgrade consisting of at least 12 inches of 
subgrade compacted to a minimum of 95% relative compaction. The aggregate base, Caltrans 
Class II aggregate base or similar, should also be placed at a minimum 95% relative 

43 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   
   

   
    

 

   

  

  
    

     
      

 
  

  
    

   
 

 

  
   

 
  

  
  

     
  

 
 

  
      

  
  

   
  

   
  
  

 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

compaction. Construction materials (asphalt and aggregate base) should conform to the current 
Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (Green Book). 

Note that the recommended pavement sections are for planning purposes only. Additional R-
value testing should be performed on actual soils at the design subgrade levels to confirm the 
pavement design. 

8.5 Rigid Pavements for Fire Response Vehicles 

8.5.1 Design Loading 

No information is known regarding the design basis fire response vehicles that will be kept at 
Fire Station #3. For the purposes of this report, NOVA assumes that the vehicles would apply 
American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO) H-20 loads to 
pavements. H-20 loads provide for truck axle loading of 32,000 lbs, or wheel loading of 16,000 
lbs. 
8.5.2 Pavement Section 

The rigid pavement section for driveways used by the fire response vehicles should consist of 7 
inches of concrete over a 6-inch base course. The aggregate base materials should be placed 
at a minimum 95% relative compaction over a 12-inch thick section of subgrade prepared as 
described in Section 8.3. 

Of particular consequence to pavement performance in the recommended section design 
analyses is consideration of the edge loading condition of the pavement. The critical load 
condition on a concrete pavement is at an unsupported edge. The recommended pavement 
section assumes full edge support by means of either a tied concrete shoulder or a widened 
lane. A widened lane would consist of a lane edge stripe that is placed a minimum of 1-foot from 
the pavement edge. 
8.5.3 Concrete Properties 

The concrete should be obtained from a mix design that conforms with the minimum properties 
shown on Table 8-2. 

Table 8-2. Recommendations for Concrete Pavements 
Property Recommended Requirement 

Compressive Strength @ 28 days 3,250 psi minimum 
Strength Requirements ASTM C94 

Minimum Cement Content 5.5 sacks/cu. yd. 
Cement Type Type III Portland 

Concrete Aggregate ASTM C33 
Aggregate Size 1-inch maximum 

Maximum Water Content 0.5 lb/lb of cement 
Maximum Allowable Slump 4 inches 

44 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  

   
  

     
 

  
 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

8.5.1 Jointing 

Longitudinal and transverse joints should be provided in concrete pavements for expansion/ 
contraction and isolation spaced at a maximum of 12 feet on center. Sawed joints should be cut 
within 24 hours of concrete placement, and should be a minimum of 25% of slab thickness plus 
¼-inch. All joints should be sealed to prevent entry of foreign material and doweled where 
necessary for load transfer. No doweling is necessary. 

45 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   

  

 
  

   
 

    
   

   
 

   

      
  

 
    

  
  

  

  

  

   
 

 
 

   

   

  

     
  

   

  

  
 

 

  

    

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

9.0 CONSTRUCTION REVIEW, OBSERVATION AND TESTING 

9.1 Overview 

As is discussed in Section 1, the recommendations contained in this report are based upon a 
limited number of borings and an assumption of general continuity of subsurface conditions 
between borings. 

The recommendations provided in both NOVA’s proposal for this work and this report assume 
that NOVA will be retained to provide consultation and review during the design phase, to 
interpret this report during construction, and to provide construction monitoring in the form of 
testing and observation. 

9.2 Design Phase Review 

The recommendations of this report are based upon NOVA’s current understanding and 
assumptions regarding planning for project development. 

As is provided for in its proposal for this work, NOVA should review the final design. Such 
review is important for both (i) conformance with the recommendations provided herein, and (ii) 
consistency with NOVA’s understanding of the planned development. 

9.3 Construction Observation and Testing 

9.3.1 General 

Special inspections should be provided per Section 1705 of the California Building Code. The 
soils special inspector should be a representative of NOVA as the Geotechnical Engineer-of-
Record (GEOR). 

NOVA should be retained to provide construction-related services abstracted below. 

• Surveillance during site preparation, grading, and foundation excavation. 

• Inspection of the ground improvement described in Section 6. 

• Soil special inspection during grading. 

A program of quality control should be developed prior to the beginning of earthwork. It is the 
responsibility of the Owner, the Contractor and/or the Construction Manager to determine any 
additional inspection items required by the Architect/Engineer or the governing jurisdiction. 

9.3.2 Continuous Soils Special Inspection 

The earthwork operations listed below should be the object of continuous soils special 
inspection. 

• Site grading, including scarification and engineered fill placement. 

• Ground preparation as described in Section 6. 

46 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  

   

 
  

 
  

   

   

  

 
   

    
 

  
 

  
   

   
 

   
 

   
    

  
 
  

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

• Pavement subgrade preparation and base course compaction. 

9.3.3 Periodic Soils Special Inspection 

The earthwork operations listed below should be the object of periodic soils special inspection, 
subject to approval by the Building Official. 

• Site preparation and removal of existing development features. 

• Placement and compaction of utility trench backfill. 

• Observation of foundation excavations. 

9.3.4 Testing During Inspections 

A preconstruction conference among representatives of the Owner, Contractor and/or 
Construction Manager, and Geotechnical Engineer is recommended to discuss the planned 
construction procedures and quality control requirements. 

The locations and frequencies of compaction test should be determined by the geotechnical 
engineer at the time of construction. Test locations and frequencies may be subject to 
modification by the geotechnical engineer based upon soil and moisture conditions 
encountered, the size and type of compaction equipment used by the Contractor, the general 
trend of compaction test results, and other factors. 

Of particular concern to NOVA during earthwork operations will be good practices in moisture 
conditioning, loose soil placement, and soil compaction. In particular, NOVA will be vigilant with 
regard to the use of compaction equipment appropriate to the full lift thickness of the type of soil 
being compacted. Reliance on construction traffic (for example, loaders or dump trucks) to 
achieve compaction will not be approved. 

47 



 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

  

  

   

  

  
  

  
  

  
 

   
 

  
  

  
     

 
 

   
     

  
 

   
   

  
 

   
  

 
    

   
   

  

   
 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

10.0 REFERENCES 

10.1 Site Specific 

VCFPD - Fire Station #3, Preliminary Site Plan, Buccola Engineering, Inc., undated. 

10.2 Design 

American Concrete Institute, 1993, Suggested Analysis and Design Procedures for Combined 
Footings and Mats. ACI 336.2R-88 (Reapproved 1993). 
American Concrete Institute, Guide for Concrete Floor and Slab Construction, ACI Publication 
302.1R-04 (latest edition). 
American Concrete Institute, Building Code Requirements for Structural Concrete and 
Commentary, ACI Publication 318-08. 
American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE), ASCE 7 Hazard Tool, found at 
https://asce7hazardtool.online/. 
American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE), 2016, Minimum Design Loads for Buildings and 
Other Structures, SEI/ASCE 7-16. 
American Society of Testing and Materials, Standard Practice for Installation of Water Vapor 
Retarders Used in Contact with Earth or Granular Fill under Concrete Slabs, ASTM D 1643. 
California Building Standards Commission, 2019, California Building Code, Title 24, Part 2, Vol. 
1 & 2. 
California Occupational Safety and Health Administration (Cal/OSHA), description of soil types 
relative to excavation safety, found at: https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/1541_1d.html. 
County of San Diego, 2019, County of San Diego BMP Design Manual, Effective Date January 
1, 2019. 
NAVFAC DM-7.01, 1986, Naval Facilities Engineering Command. Department of the Navy, Soil 
Mechanics, Washington DC, September 1986. 
OSHA Technical Manual, Excavations: Hazard Recognition in Trenching and Shoring, OSHA 
Instruction TED 01-00-015, Section V, Chapter 2.  Found at: 
https://www.osha.gov/dts/osta/otm/otm_v/ otm_v_2.html#1. 
Public Works Standards, Inc., Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (Green 
Book). 
SEAOC/OSHPD, Seismic Design Maps, found at: https://seismicmaps.org/. 
Terzaghi, Karl, Evaluating Coefficients of Subgrade Reaction, Geotechnique, Vol 5, 1955, pp 
297-326. 

10.3 Geologic and Site Setting 

California Department of Water Resources, Water Data Library: found at 
http://www.water.ca.gov/waterdatalibrary/. 

48 

http://www.water.ca.gov/waterdatalibrary
https://seismicmaps.org
https://www.osha.gov/dts/osta/otm/otm_v
https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/1541_1d.html
https://asce7hazardtool.online


 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

  

   
  

  
   

              
     

     
    

 
                  

    
  

 
           

      
    

 
   

    
 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

California Division of Mines and Geology (CDMG), 2008, Guidelines for Evaluating and 
Mitigating Seismic Hazards in California, Special Publication 117A. 
GeoTracker Groundwater Ambient Monitoring and Assessment (GAMA) Program website, 
2020, https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public/, accessed May 5. 
Jennings, C. W. and Bryant, W. A., 2010, Fault Activity Map of California, California 
Geological Survey, Geologic Data Map No. 6. 
Kennedy, M. P., 2000, Geologic Map of the Pala 7.5’ Quadrangle, San Diego County, 
California: A Digital Database, United States Geological Survey and California Division of Mines 
and Geology. 
Norris, R. M. and Webb, R. W., 1990, Geology of California, Second Edition: John Wiley & Sons, Inc. 
Tan, S.S., 1995, Landslide Hazards in the Southern Part Of the San Diego Metropolitan Area, 
San Diego County, California, Landslide Hazard Identification Map No. 33, California Division of 
Mines and Geology. 
United States Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), 2012, Flood Insurance Rate 
Map (FIRM), Flood Map 06073C1610G, Revised May 16, 2012. 
United States Geological Survey (USGS), 2012, Pala Quadrangle, 7.5-Minute Series 
Topographic Map. 

United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service, Custom Soil 
Resource Report for San Diego County Area, California, August 15, 2017. 

49 

https://gamagroundwater.waterboards.ca.gov/gama/gamamap/public


 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 

   
  

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

PLATE 
SUBSURFACE EXPLORATION MAP 



50'

92'

50'

95'

30'

30'

24'

x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

COLE GRADE LANE

C
O

L
E

 
G

R
A

D
E

 
R

O
A

D

x

x

x
x

x

x

RESAVA LANE

AVA LANE

60'
70'

B-6

B-5

P-1

P-2

B-2

B-3

B-1

Qal
Kcg

Kcg

Kcg

B-4

B

B'

A

A'

00 100' 200'

NW E

N

S

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B
San Diego, CA 92123
P: 858.292.7575

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F
San Clemente, CA 92673
P: 949.388.7710

NOVA

C
O

L
E

 
G

R
A

D
E

 
R

O
A

D
 
F

I
R

E
 
S

T
A

T
I
O

N

C
O

L
E

 
G

R
A

D
E

 
R

O
A

D
,

V
A

L
L

E
Y

 
C

E
N

T
E

R
 
9

2
0

8
2

GEOTECHNICAL

MATERIALS

SPECIAL INSPECTION

SBEDVBE

www.usa-nova.com

PROJECT NO.:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

REVIEWED BY:

2020074

AUG 2020

DTJ

WM

SUBSURFACE

INVESTIGATION MAP

DRAWING TITLE:

SCALE:
1"=100'

PLATE NO. 1 OF 2

SDVOSB SLBE

KEY TO SYMBOLS

Qal

Kcg

ALLUVIUM

COLE GRADE TONALITE

GEOTECHNICAL BORING

PERCOLATION TEST BORING

B-6

P-2

GEOLOGIC CONTACT

LIMITS OF SITE

LIMITS OF REMEDIAL REMOVAL FOR BUILDING

LIMITS OF REMEDIAL REMOVALS FOR DRIVEWAY/ PARKING LOT

GEOLOGIC CROSS-SECTIONB B'

. 

" 
, __ 

. . . 
-

-

-

- -
- -
- -

-

0 
I -



---- ---- ---- ---- --- \.._ 

---- --~-------------------

----~------

---- -7----------------- --------- -r---------- -
__/ __/ - ---

l 

l 

PROPOSED FIRE STATION 

PROPOSED 
PARKING 

LOT EXISTING GRADE PROPOSED 
PARKING 

LOT 

PROPOSED 
BMP 

(~5' DEEP FROM 
FINISHED PAD) 

A A'
1660 1660 

1640 1640 

1620 1620 

1600 1600 

1580 1580 

1560 1560 

1540 1540 

1520 1520 

1400 1400 

1420 1420 

14401440
0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200 220 240 260 280 300 320 340 360 380 400 420 440 460 480 500 520 540 560 580 600 620 640 660 680 700 

GEOLOGIC CROSS-SECTION AA' 

? 

? 

? 
? 

? ? ? 

? 

? 
? 

B-3 

TD=15' 
B-4 

TD=16' 

Qal 

Qal 

Kcg Kcg 

Kcg 
Kcg 

TD=15.5' 

B-1 

TD=15.5' Qal 

Qal
Kcg 

Qal
Kcg 

Kcg Kcg 

GEOLOGIC CROSS-SECTION BB' 

KEY TO SYMBOLS 

Qal 

Kcg 

ALLUVIUM 

COLE GRADE TONALITE 

PERCOLATION TEST BORING 

GEOLOGIC CONTACT 

GEOTECHNICAL BORING EXISTING GRADE 

B B'
1660 1660 

1640 1640 

1620 1620 

1600 1600 

1580 1580 

1560 1560 

1540 1540 

1520 1520 

1400 1400 

1420 1420 

14401440
0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200 220 240 260 280 300 320 340 360 380 400 420 440 460 480 500 520 540 560 580 600 620 640 660 680 700 

B-6 

P-2 
TD=5' 

TD=15.5' 

P-1 

TD=5' 

PROPOSED 
PARKING 

LOT 

PROPOSED 
PARKING 

LOT 

PROPOSED 
ADMINISTRATION 

BUILDING 

PROPOSED 
MAINTENANCE 

BUILDING 

B-2 

TD=10.5' 
B-5 

EXISTING GRADE 

B-6 

GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

SPECIAL INSPECTION 

DVBE SBE 
SDVOSB SLBE 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B 
San Diego, CA 92123 
P: 858.292.7575 

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 949.388.7710 

www.usa-nova.com 

NOVA 

C
O

L
E

 
G

R
A

D
E

 
R

O
A

D
 
F

I
R

E
 
S

T
A

T
I
O

N

C
O

L
E

 
G

R
A

D
E

 
R

O
A

D
,

V
A

L
L

E
Y

 
C

E
N

T
E

R
 
9

2
0

8
2

 

PROJECT NO.: 
2020074 

DATE: 
AUG 2020 

DRAWN BY: DTJ 

REVIEWED BY: WM 

SCALE: 1"=100' 

DRAWING TITLE: 

GEOLOGIC 
CROSS-SECTION 

?

 

PLATE NO. 2 OF 2 

P-2 

www.usa-nova.com


 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 

   
  

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

APPENDIX A 
USE OF THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT 



Im ortant Information About Your 

Geotechnical Engineering Report 
Subsurface problems are aprincipal cause of construction delays, cost overruns, claims, and disputes. 

The following information is provided to help you manage your risks. 

Geotechnical Services Are Performed for 
Specific Purposes, Persons, and Projects 
Geotechnical engineers structure their services to meet the specific needs of 
their clients. Ageotechnical engineering study conducted for acivil engi
neer may not fulfill the needs of aconstruction contractor or even another 
civil engineer. Because each geotechnical engineering study is unique, each 
geotechnical engineering report is unique, prepared solelyfor the client. No 
one except you should rely on your geotechnical engineering report without 
first conferring with the geotechnical engineer who prepared it. And no one 
- not even you - should apply the report for any purpose or project 
except the one originally contemplated. 

Read the Full Report 
Serious problems have occurred because those relying on ageotechnical 
engineering report did not read it all. Do not rely on an executive summary. 
Do not read selected elements only. 

AGeotechnical Engineering R~port Is Based on 
AUnique Set of Project-Specific Factors 
Geotechnical engineers consider anumber of unique, project-specific fac
tors when establishing the scope of astudy. Typical factors include: the 
client's goals, objectives, and risk management preferences: the general 
nature of the structure involved, its size, and configuration: the location of 
the structure on the site: and other planned or existing site improvements, 
such as access roads, parking lots, and underground utilities. Unless the 
geotechnical engineer who conducted the study specifically indicates oth
erwise, do not rely on ageotechnical engineering report that was: 
• not prepared for you, 
• not prepared for your project. 
• not prepared for the specific site explored, or 
• completed before important project changes were made. 

Typical changes that can erode the reliability of an existing geotechnical 
engineering report include those that affect: 
• the function of the proposed structure, as when it's changed from a 

parking garage to an office building,or from alight industrial plant 
to arefrigerated warehouse, 

• elevation, configuration, location, orientation, or weight of the 
proposed structure, 

• composition of the design team, or 
• project ownership. 

As ageneral rule, always inform your geotechnical engineer of project 
changes-even minor ones-and request an assessment of their impact. 
Geotechnical engineers cannot accept responsibility or liability for problems 
that occur because their reports do not consider developments ofwhich 
they were not informed 

Subsurface Conditions Can Change 
Ageotechnical engineering report is based on conditions that existed at 
the time the study was performed. Do not rely on ageotechnical engineer
ing reportwhose adequacy may have been affected by: the passage of 
time; by man-made events, such as construction on or adjacent to the site; 
or by natural events, such as floods, earthquakes, or groundwater fluctua
tions. Always contact the geotechnical engineer before applying the report 
to determine if it is still reliable. Aminor amount of additional testing or 
analysis could prevent major problems. 

Most Geotechnical Findings Are Professional 
Opinions 
Site exploration identifies subsurface conditions only at those points where 
subsurface tests are conducted or samples are taken. Geotechnical engi
neers review field and laboratory data and then apply their professional 
judgment to render an opinion about subsurface conditions throughout the 
site.Actual subsurface conditions may differ-sometimes significantly
from those indicated in your report. Retaining the geotechnical engineer 
who developed your report to provide construction observation is the 
most effective method of managing the risks associated with unanticipated 
conditions. 

AReport's Recommendations Are Not Final 
Do not overrely on the construction recommendations included in your 
report. Those recommendations are not final, because geotechnical engi
neers develop them principally from judgment and opinion. Geotechnical 
engineers can finalize their recommendations only by observing actual 



subsurface conditions revealed during construction. The geotechnical 
engineer who developed your report cannot assume responsibility or 
liability for the report's recommendations if that engineer does not perform 
construction observation. 

AGeotechnical Engineering Report Is Subject to 
Misinterpretation 
Other design team members' misinterpretation of geotechnical engineering 
reports has resulted in costly problems. Lower that risk by having your geo
technical engineer confer with appropriate members of the design team after 
submitting the report. Also retain your geotechnical engineer to review perti
nent elements of the design team's plans and specifications. Contractors can 
also misinterpret ageotechnical engineering report. Reduce that risk by 
having your geotechnical engineer participate in prebid and preconstruction 
conferences, and by providing construction observation. 

Do Not Redraw the Engineer's Logs 
Geotechnical engineers prepare final boring and testing logs based upon 
their interpretation of field logs and laboratory data. To prevent errors or 
omissions, the logs included in ageotechnical engineering report should 
never be redrawn for inclusion in architectural or other design drawings. 
Only photographic or electronic reproduction is acceptable, but recognize 
that separating logs from the report can elevate risk. 

Give Contractors a Complete Report and 
Guidance 
Some owners and design professionals mistakenly believe they can make 
contractors liable for unanticipated subsurface conditions by limiting what 
they provide for bid preparation. To help prevent costly problems, give con
tractors the complete geotechnical engineering report, but preface it with a 
clearly written letter of transmittal. In that letter, advise contractors that the 
report was not prepared for purposes of bid development and that the 
report's accuracy is limited; encourage them to confer with the geotechnical 
engineer who prepared the report (a modest fee may be required) and/or to 
conduct additional study to obtain the specific types of information they 
need or prefer. Aprebid conference can also be valuable. Be sure contrac
tors have sufficient time to perform additional study. Only then might you 
be in aposition to give contractors the best information available to you, 
while requiring them to at least share some of the financial responsibilities 
stemming from unanticipated conditions. 

Read Responsibility Provisions Closely 
Some clients, design professionals, and contractors do not recognize that 
geotechnical engineering is far less exact than other engineering disci
plines. This lack of understanding has created unrealistic expectations that 

have led to disappointments, claims, and disputes. To help reduce the risk 
of such outcomes, geotechnical engineers commonly include avariety of 
explanatory provisions in their reports. Sometimes labeled "limitations" 
many of these provisions indicate where geotechnical engineers' responsi
bilities begin and end, to help others recognize their own responsibilities 
and risks. Read these provisions closely Ask questions. Your geotechnical 
engineer should respond fully and frankly. 

Geoenvironmental Concerns Are Not Covered 
The equipment. techniques, and personnel used to perform ageoenviron
mental study differ significantly from those used to perform ageotechnical 
study. For that reason, ageotechnical engineering report does not usually 
relate any geoenvironmental findings, conclusions, or recommendations; 
e.g., about the likelihood of encountering underground storage tanks or 
regulated contaminants. Unanticipated environmental problems have led 
to numerous project failures. If you have not yet obtained your own geoen
vironmental information, ask your geotechnical consultant for risk man
agement guidance. Do not rely on an environmental report prepared for 
someone else. 

Obtain Professional Assistance To Deal with Mold 
Diverse strategies can be applied during building design, construction, 
operation, and maintenance to prevent significant amounts of mold from 
growing on indoor surfaces. To be effective, all such strategies should be 
devised for the express purpose of mold prevention, integrated into acom
prehensive plan, and executed with diligent oversight by aprofessional 
mold prevention consultant. Because just asmall amount of water or 
moisture can lead to the development of severe mold infestations, anum
ber of mold prevention strategies focus on keeping building surfaces dry. 
While groundwater, water infiltration, and similar issues may have been 
addressed as part of the geotechnical engineering study whose findings 
are conveyed in this report, the geotechnical engineer in charge of this 
project is not amold prevention consultant; none of the services per
formed in connection with the geotechnical engineer's study 
were designed or conducted for the purpose ofmold preven
tion. Proper implementation of the recommendations conveyed 
in this report will not of itself be sufficient to prevent mold 
from growing in or on the structure involved. 

Rely, on Your ASFE-Member Geotechncial 
Engineer for Additional Assistance 
Membership in ASFE/The Best People on Earth exposes geotechnical 
engineers to awide array of risk management techniques that can be of 
genuine benefit for everyone involved with aconstruction project. Confer 
with you ASFE-member geotechnical engineer for more information. 

ASFE 
The Best People an Earth 

8811 Colesville Road/Suite G106, Silver Spring, MD 20910 
Telephone: 301/565-2733 Facsimile: 301/589-2017 

e-mail: info@asfe.org www.asfe.org 

Copyright 2004 by ASFE, Inc. Duplication, reproduction, or copying of this document, in whole or in part, by any means whatsoever, is strictly prohibited, except with ASFE'S 
specific written permission. Excerpting, quoting, or otherwise extracting wording from this document is permitted only with the express written permission ofASFE, and only for 

purposes ofscholarly research or book review. Only members ofASFE may use this document as a complement to or as an element ofa geotechnical engineering report. Any other 
firm, individual, or other entity that so uses this document without being an ASFE member could be commiting negligent or intentional (fraudulent) misrepresentation. 

IIGER06045.0M 

https://IIGER06045.0M
www.asfe.org
mailto:info@asfe.org


 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 

   
  

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

APPENDIX B 
LOGS OF BORINGS 



- ~ 
-

-

- Jv 
i;.... 

-

-
I 

-

-

~ -

-

-

-

- r7 
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

"'111"' / "SZ "' IZI . . . 
IZI -

□ -

BORING LOG B-1 

CR 
MD 
DS 
EI 
AL 
SA 
RV 
CN 
SE 

CORROSIVITY 
MAXIMUM DENSITY 

DIRECT SHEAR 
EXPANSION INDEX 

ATTERBERG LIMITS 
SIEVE ANALYSIS 

RESISTANCE VALUE 
CONSOLIDATION 

SAND EQUIVALENT 

GROUNDWATER / STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT 

BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY 

SPT SAMPLE ( ASTM D1586) GEOLOGIC CONTACT 

CAL. MOD. SAMPLE (ASTM D3550) SOIL TYPE CHANGE 

LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 
DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 2020 EQUIPMENT: CME 95 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 8-INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPS COORD.: N/A 

GROUNDWATER DEPTH: GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION: ± 1600 FT MSL 

D
E

P
T

H
 (

F
T

)

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 L
O

G

B
U

LK
 S

A
M

P
LE

C
A

L/
S

P
T

 S
A

M
P

LE

S
O

IL
 C

LA
S

S
.

(U
S

C
S

)

B
LO

W
S

P
E

R
 1

2-
IN

C
H

E
S

SOIL DESCRIPTION 
SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

(USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) 

0 SC 38 ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, MEDIUM DENSE, 
FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

SA 

SM 30 TONALITE (Kcg): SILTY SAND; ORANGE BROWN WITH BLACK MICAS, MOIST, MEDIUM 
DENSE, FINE TO COARSE GRAINED 

44 LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN WITH BLACK MICAS, DAMP TO MOIST, DENSE 
5 

10 
50/5 VERY DENSE 

15 50/1 

BORING TERMINATED AT 15.5 FT. NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED. NO CAVING. 

20 

25 

30 

KEY TO SYMBOLS COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

APPENDIX B.1 

LOGGED BY: GAN DATE:  AUG 2020 

REVIEWED BY: MS PROJECT NO.: 2020074 

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y

REMARKS 

HIGHLY WEATHERED 

LESS WEATHERED 

GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

SPECIAL INSPECTION 

DVBE SBE SDVOSB SLBE 

www.usa-nova.com 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B 
San Diego, CA 92123 
P: 858.292.7575 

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 949.388.7710 

NOVA 

www.usa-nova.com


,~ ~r-----------++---_J 
==-------- ------ -------- -------- ------------~--------------

[7 ..... 

-=~TT171H-----------+-t----_J 

"'111"'/"SZ 

IZI 

IZI 

□ 

"' 

BORING LOG B-2 
LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 

DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 2020 EQUIPMENT: CME 95 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 8-INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPS COORD.: N/A 

GROUNDWATER DEPTH: GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION: ±  1595 FT MSL 

D
E

P
T

H
 (

F
T

)

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 L
O

G

B
U

LK
 S

A
M

P
LE

C
A

L/
S

P
T

 S
A

M
P

LE

S
O

IL
 C

LA
S

S
.

(U
S

C
S

)

B
LO

W
S

P
E

R
 1

2-
IN

C
H

E
S

SOIL DESCRIPTION 
SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

(USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) 

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
 

CR 
MD 
DS 
EI 
AL 
SA 
RV 
CN 
SE 

CORROSIVITY 
MAXIMUM DENSITY 

DIRECT SHEAR 
EXPANSION INDEX 

ATTERBERG LIMITS 
SIEVE ANALYSIS 

RESISTANCE VALUE 
CONSOLIDATION 

SAND EQUIVALENT 

GROUNDWATER / STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT 

BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY 

SPT SAMPLE ( ASTM D1586) GEOLOGIC CONTACT 

CAL. MOD. SAMPLE (ASTM D3550) SOIL TYPE CHANGE 

REMARKS 

0 SC 
SC 

26 ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, MEDIUM DENSE, FINE TO 
MEDIUM GRAINED 

SA 

12.2% 124.4pcf 

41 TONALITE (Kcg): CLAYEY SAND; ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, MEDIUM DENSE, CR 
MD 

HIGHLY WEATHERED 

FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED RV 
CN 

SM SILTY SAND; LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, DENSE, FINE TO COARSE 
5 GRAINED 

50/5 DAMP TO MOIST, VERY DENSE SA LESS WEATHERED 

10 50/3 
BORING TERMINATED AT 10.5 FT. NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED. NO CAVING. 

15 

20 

25 

30 

KEY TO SYMBOLS COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 
GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA SPECIAL INSPECTION 

APPENDIX B.2 
DVBE SBE SDVOSB SLBE 

www.usa-nova.com 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B 

NOVA 
San Diego, CA 92123LOGGED BY: GAN DATE:  AUG 2020 
P: 858.292.7575 

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 949.388.7710 

REVIEWED BY: MS PROJECT NO.: 2020074 



111. 

~ 
-

-
~ 

-

-

-

- ~ 

~ -

-

-

-

t7 
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

"'111"' / "SZ "' IZI . . . 
IZI -

□ -

BORING LOG B-3 
LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 

DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 2020 EQUIPMENT: CME 95 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 8-INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPS COORD.: N/A 

GROUNDWATER DEPTH: GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION: ±  1584 FT MSL 

D
E

P
T

H
 (

F
T

)

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 L
O

G

B
U

LK
 S

A
M

P
LE

C
A

L/
S

P
T

 S
A

M
P

LE

S
O

IL
 C

LA
S

S
.

(U
S

C
S

)

B
LO

W
S

P
E

R
 1

2-
IN

C
H

E
S

SOIL DESCRIPTION 
SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

(USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) 

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
 

CR 
MD 
DS 
EI 
AL 
SA 
RV 
CN 
SE 

CORROSIVITY 
MAXIMUM DENSITY 

DIRECT SHEAR 
EXPANSION INDEX 

ATTERBERG LIMITS 
SIEVE ANALYSIS 

RESISTANCE VALUE 
CONSOLIDATION 

SAND EQUIVALENT 

GROUNDWATER / STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT 

BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY 

SPT SAMPLE ( ASTM D1586) GEOLOGIC CONTACT 

CAL. MOD. SAMPLE (ASTM D3550) SOIL TYPE CHANGE 

REMARKS 

0 SC 31 ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; ORANGE BROWN, DAMP TO MOIST, MEDIUM DENSE, 
FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

EI 

29 

5 
SM 62 TONALITE (Kcg): SILTY SAND; ORANGE BROWN, DAMP, VERY DENSE, FINE TO 

COARSE GRAINED 

LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN, DAMP, VERY DENSE, FINE TO COARSE GRAINED 

10 

82 

GRAYISH BROWN 

15 
50/1 

BORING TERMINATED AT 15 FT. NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED. NO CAVING. 

20 

25 

30 

KEY TO SYMBOLS COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

APPENDIX B.3 

LOGGED BY: GAN DATE:  AUG 2020 

REVIEWED BY: MS PROJECT NO.: 2020074 

40 LOW 

10.6% 119.3pcf 
HIGHLY WEATHERED 

LESS WEATHERED 

GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

SPECIAL INSPECTION 

DVBE SBE SDVOSB SLBE 

www.usa-nova.com 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B 
San Diego, CA 92123 
P: 858.292.7575 

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 949.388.7710 

NOVA 

www.usa-nova.com


-
- ~ -

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- ~ rz -

-

-

-

-

r7 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

"'111"' / "SZ "' IZI . . . 
IZI -

□ -

BORING LOG B-4 

CR 
MD 
DS 
EI 
AL 
SA 
RV 
CN 
SE 

CORROSIVITY 
MAXIMUM DENSITY 

DIRECT SHEAR 
EXPANSION INDEX 

ATTERBERG LIMITS 
SIEVE ANALYSIS 

RESISTANCE VALUE 
CONSOLIDATION 

SAND EQUIVALENT 

GROUNDWATER / STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT 

BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY 

SPT SAMPLE ( ASTM D1586) GEOLOGIC CONTACT 

CAL. MOD. SAMPLE (ASTM D3550) SOIL TYPE CHANGE 

LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 
DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 2020 EQUIPMENT: CME 95 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 8-INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPS COORD.: N/A 

GROUNDWATER DEPTH: GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION: ± 1568 FT MSL 

D
E

P
T

H
 (

F
T

)

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 L
O

G

B
U

LK
 S

A
M

P
LE

C
A

L/
S

P
T

 S
A

M
P

LE

S
O

IL
 C

LA
S

S
.

(U
S

C
S

)

B
LO

W
S

P
E

R
 1

2-
IN

C
H

E
S

SOIL DESCRIPTION 
SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

(USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) 

0 SC 
18 

ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; BROWN TO ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, 
MEDIUM DENSE, FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

SA 

SM 57 TONALITE (Kcg): SILTY SAND; LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, VERY DENSE, HIGHLY WEATHERED 

FINE TO COARSE GRAINED 
50/5 

5 50/1 
GRAYISH BROWN, DRY 

SA LESS WEATHERED 

50/2 

50/2 SA 

10 
50/3 

15 
50/2 

BORING TERMINATED AT 16 FT. NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED. NO CAVING. 

20 

25 

30 

KEY TO SYMBOLS COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

APPENDIX B.4 

LOGGED BY: GAN DATE:  AUG 2020 

REVIEWED BY: MS PROJECT NO.: 2020074 

GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

SPECIAL INSPECTION 

DVBE SBE SDVOSB SLBE 

www.usa-nova.com 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B 
San Diego, CA 92123 
P: 858.292.7575 

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 949.388.7710 

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y

REMARKS 

NOVA 



I 
-

~ -

-

-

-

- ~ rz -

-

-

-

- r7 
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

"'111"' / "SZ "' IZI . . . 
IZI -

□ -

BORING LOG B-5 
LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 

DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 2020 EQUIPMENT: CME 95 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 8-INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPS COORD.: N/A 

GROUNDWATER DEPTH: GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION: ±  1570 FT MSL 

D
E

P
T

H
 (

F
T

)

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 L
O

G

B
U

LK
 S

A
M

P
LE

C
A

L/
S

P
T

 S
A

M
P

LE

S
O

IL
 C

LA
S

S
.

(U
S

C
S

)

B
LO

W
S

P
E

R
 1

2-
IN

C
H

E
S

SOIL DESCRIPTION 
SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

(USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) 

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
 

CR 
MD 
DS 
EI 
AL 
SA 
RV 
CN 
SE 

CORROSIVITY 
MAXIMUM DENSITY 

DIRECT SHEAR 
EXPANSION INDEX 

ATTERBERG LIMITS 
SIEVE ANALYSIS 

RESISTANCE VALUE 
CONSOLIDATION 

SAND EQUIVALENT 

GROUNDWATER / STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT 

BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY 

SPT SAMPLE ( ASTM D1586) GEOLOGIC CONTACT 

CAL. MOD. SAMPLE (ASTM D3550) SOIL TYPE CHANGE 

REMARKS 

0 SC ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; BROWN TO ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, 
MEDIUM DENSE, FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

SM TONALITE (Kcg): SILTY SAND; LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, MEDIUM 
5 DENSE, FINE TO COARSE GRAINED 

50/2 GRAYISH BROWN, VERY DENSE 

10 
50/3 

15 50/2 

BORING TERMINATED AT 15.5 FT. NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED. NO CAVING. 

20 

25 

30 

KEY TO SYMBOLS COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

APPENDIX B.5 

LOGGED BY: GAN DATE:  AUG 2020 

REVIEWED BY: MS PROJECT NO.: 2020074 

HIGHLY WEATHERED 

LESS WEATHERED 

GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

SPECIAL INSPECTION 

DVBE SBE SDVOSB SLBE 

www.usa-nova.com 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B 
San Diego, CA 92123 
P: 858.292.7575 

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 949.388.7710 

NOVA 

www.usa-nova.com


- ~ 

"'111"' / "SZ 

IZI 

IZI 

□ 

----r1-----------+-i---_J 

~--- --- 1--------------

------- -------- -------- -----------1--------------

"' 

BORING LOG B-6 
LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 

DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 2020 EQUIPMENT: CME 95 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 8-INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GPS COORD.: N/A 

GROUNDWATER DEPTH: GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION: ±  1553 FT MSL 

D
E

P
T

H
 (

F
T

)

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 L
O

G

B
U

LK
 S

A
M

P
LE

C
A

L/
S

P
T

 S
A

M
P

LE

S
O

IL
 C

LA
S

S
.

(U
S

C
S

)

B
LO

W
S

P
E

R
 1

2-
IN

C
H

E
S

SOIL DESCRIPTION 
SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

(USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) 

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
 

CR 
MD 
DS 
EI 
AL 
SA 
RV 
CN 
SE 

CORROSIVITY 
MAXIMUM DENSITY 

DIRECT SHEAR 
EXPANSION INDEX 

ATTERBERG LIMITS 
SIEVE ANALYSIS 

RESISTANCE VALUE 
CONSOLIDATION 

SAND EQUIVALENT 

GROUNDWATER / STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT 

BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY 

SPT SAMPLE ( ASTM D1586) GEOLOGIC CONTACT 

CAL. MOD. SAMPLE (ASTM D3550) SOIL TYPE CHANGE 

REMARKS 

0 

5 

SC 

CL 

SC 

SP-SM 

25 

70 

50/1 

ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; BROWN TO ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, 
MEDIUM DENSE, FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

TONALITE (Kcg): SANDY CLAY; ORANGE BROWN TO DARK GRAYISH BROWN, MOIST, 
HARD 

CLAYEY SAND; LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN, MOIST, VERY DENSE, FINE TO COARSE 
GRAINED 

POORLY-GRADED SAND-SILTY SAND; GRAYISH BROWN, DAMP TO MOIST, VERY 
DENSE, FINE TO COARSE GRAINED 

SA 

SA 

SA 

HIGHLY WEATHERED 

LESS WEATHERED 

10 
SM 

50/4 

SILTY SAND; GRAYISH BROWN, DAMP TO MOIST, VERY DENSE, FINE TO COARSE 
GRAINED 

15 50/2 

BORING TERMINATED AT 15.5 FT. NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED. NO CAVING. 

20 

25 

30 

KEY TO SYMBOLS COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

APPENDIX B.6 

LOGGED BY: GAN DATE:  AUG 2020 

REVIEWED BY: MS PROJECT NO.: 2020074 

GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

SPECIAL INSPECTION 

DVBE SBE SDVOSB SLBE 

www.usa-nova.com 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B 
San Diego, CA 92123 
P: 858.292.7575 

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 949.388.7710 

NOVA 



PERCOLATION BORING LOG P-1 

D
E

P
T

H
 (

F
T

)

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 L
O

G

B
U

LK
 S

A
M

P
LE

C
A

L/
S

P
T

 S
A

M
P

LE

S
O

IL
 C

LA
S

S
.

(U
S

C
S

)

B
LO

W
S

P
E

R
 1

2-
IN

C
H

E
S

 

0 

5 

SC 

SM 

ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; BROWN TO ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, MEDIUM 
DENSE, FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

TONALITE (Kcg): SILTY SAND; LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, VERY DENSE, 
FINE TO COARSE GRAINED 

GRAYISH BROWN, DRY 

BORING TERMINATED AT 5 FT AND CONVERTED TO A PERCOLATION WELL. 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

KEY TO SYMBOLS COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

APPENDIX B.7 

DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 2020 EQUIPMENT: CME 95 
LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 

GROUNDWATER DEPTH: 

8-INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING 

GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED 

GPS COORD.: 

ELEVATION: 

N/A 

± 1563 FT MSL 

CR 
MD 
DS 
EI 
AL 
SA 
RV 
CN 
SE 

CORROSIVITY 
MAXIMUM DENSITY 

DIRECT SHEAR 
EXPANSION INDEX 

ATTERBERG LIMITS 
SIEVE ANALYSIS 

RESISTANCE VALUE 
CONSOLIDATION 

SAND EQUIVALENT 

GROUNDWATER / STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT 

BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY 

SPT SAMPLE ( ASTM D1586) GEOLOGIC CONTACT 

CAL. MOD. SAMPLE (ASTM D3550) SOIL TYPE CHANGE 

~ 
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

"'111"'/"SZ a 
IZI . . . 
IZI --

□ -

SOIL DESCRIPTION 
SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

(USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) 

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y

REMARKS 

LOGGED BY: GAN DATE:  AUG 2020 

PROJECT NO.: 2020074REVIEWED BY: MS 

HIGHLY WEATHERED 

LESS WEATHERED 

GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

SPECIAL INSPECTION 

DVBE SBE SDVOSB SLBE 

www.usa-nova.com 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B 
San Diego, CA 92123 
P: 858.292.7575 

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 949.388.7710 

NOVA 

www.usa-nova.com


PERCOLATION BORING LOG P-2 

CR 
MD 
DS 
EI 
AL 
SA 
RV 
CN 
SE 

CORROSIVITY 
MAXIMUM DENSITY 

DIRECT SHEAR 
EXPANSION INDEX 

ATTERBERG LIMITS 
SIEVE ANALYSIS 

RESISTANCE VALUE 
CONSOLIDATION 

SAND EQUIVALENT 

DATE EXCAVATED: JULY 1, 2020 EQUIPMENT: CME 95 
LAB TEST ABBREVIATIONS 

EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION: 

GROUNDWATER DEPTH: 

8-INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING 

GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED 

GPS COORD.: 

ELEVATION: 

N/A 

± 1568 FT MSL 

D
E

P
T

H
 (

F
T

)

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 L
O

G

B
U

LK
 S

A
M

P
LE

C
A

L/
S

P
T

 S
A

M
P

LE

S
O

IL
 C

LA
S

S
.

(U
S

C
S

)

B
LO

W
S

P
E

R
 1

2-
IN

C
H

E
S

 

0 SC ALLUVIUM (Qal): CLAYEY SAND; BROWN TO ORANGE BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, 
MEDIUM DENSE, FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED 

5 SM TONALITE (Kcg): SILTY SAND; LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN, DRY TO DAMP, VERY DENSE, 
FINE TO COARSE GRAINED 

BORING TERMINATED AT 5 FT AND CONVERTED TO A PERCOLATION WELL. 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

KEY TO SYMBOLS COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

APPENDIX B.8 

-

IHH 

'------.. 
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

"'111"' / "SZ a 
IZI . . . 
IZI --

□ -

GROUNDWATER / STABILIZED # ERRONEOUS BLOWCOUNT 

BULK SAMPLE * NO SAMPLE RECOVERY 

SPT SAMPLE ( ASTM D1586) GEOLOGIC CONTACT 

CAL. MOD. SAMPLE (ASTM D3550) SOIL TYPE CHANGE 

SOIL DESCRIPTION 
SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS 

(USCS; COLOR, MOISTURE, DENSITY, GRAIN SIZE, OTHER) 

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y

REMARKS 

LOGGED BY: GAN DATE:  AUG 2020 

PROJECT NO.: 2020074REVIEWED BY: MS 

HIGHLY WEATHERED 

GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

SPECIAL INSPECTION 

DVBE SBE SDVOSB SLBE 

www.usa-nova.com 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B 
San Diego, CA 92123 
P: 858.292.7575 

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 949.388.7710 

NOVA 

www.usa-nova.com


 
 

 
   
 
 
 

 

   
  

 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 

Report of Geotechnical Investigation 
Proposed Fire Station #3, Cole Grade Road, Valley Center, California 

NOVA Project 2020074 

August 20, 2020 

APPENDIX C 
RECORDS OF LABORATORY TESTING 



 

A ~-- . . • 

Laboratory tests were performed in accordance with the generally accepted American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) test methods or suggested 

procedures. Brief descriptions of the tests performed are presented below: 

· CLASSIFICATION: Field classifications were verified in the laboratory by visual examination. The final soil classifications are in accordance with the 

Unified Soils Classification System and are presented on the exploration logs in Appendix B. 

· MAXIMUM DENSITY AND OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT (ASTM D1557 METHOD A,B,C): The maximum dry density and optimum moisture 

content of typical soils were determined in the laboratory in accordance with ASTM Standard Test D1557, Method A, Method B, Method C. 

· DENSITY OF SOIL IN PLACE (ASTM D2937): In-place moisture contents and dry densities were determined for representative soil samples. This 

information was an aid to classification and permitted recognition of variations in material consistency with depth. The dry unit weight is determined in 

pounds per cubic foot, and the in-place moisture content is determined as a percentage of the soil's dry weight. The results are summarized in the 

exploration logs presented in Appendix B. 

· EXPANSION INDEX (ASTM D4829): The expansion index of selected materials was evaluated in general accordance with ASTM D4829. Specimens 

were molded under a specified compactive energy at approximately 50 percent saturation (plus or minus 1 percent). The prepared 1-inch thick by 4-inch 

diameter specimens were loaded with a surcharge of 144 pounds per square foot and were inundated with tap water. Readings of volumetric swell were 

made for a period of 24 hours. 

· CORROSIVITY TEST (CAL. TEST METHOD 417, 422, 643): Soil PH, and minimum resistivity tests were performed on a representative soil sample in 

general accordance with test method CT 643. The sulfate and chloride content of the selected sample were evaluated in general accordance with CT 417 

and CT 422, respectively. 

·  R-VALUE (ASTM D2844): The resistance Value, or R-Value, for near-surface site soils were evaluated in general accordance with California Test (CT) 

301 and ASTM D2844. Samples were prepared and evaluated for exudation pressure and expansion pressure. The equilibrium R-value is reported as 

the lesser or more conservative of the two calculated results. 

· GRADATION ANALYSIS (ASTM C 136 and/or ASTM D422): Tests were performed on selected representative soil samples in general accordance with 

ASTM D422. The grain size distributions of selected samples were determined in accordance with ASTM C 136 and/or ASTM D422. The results of the 

tests are summarized on Appendix C.3 through Appendix C.11. 

· CONSOLIDATION PROPERTIES (ASTM D2435): Tests were performed on selected relatively undisturbed soil samples in general accordance with 

ASTM D2435. The samples were inundated during testing to represent adverse field conditions. The percent of consolidation for each load cycle was 

recorded as a ratio of the amount of vertical compression to the original height of the sample. The results of the tests are summarized on Appendix C.12. 

BY: CLS 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA 

DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074 

LAB TEST SUMMARY 

APPENDIX: C.1 

GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

SPECIAL INSPECTION 

NOVA DVBE SBE SDVOSB SLBE 

www.usa-nova.com 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B 944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Diego, CA 92123 San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 858.292.7575 P: 949.388.7710 

www.usa-nova.com


,, ~-- . . . 

Maximum Dry Density and Optimum Moisture Content (ASTM D1557) 

Sample Maximum Optimum Moisture 
Sample Depth Dry Density Content 

Location (ft) Soil Description (pcf)  (%) 

B-2 0 - 4 Orange Brown Clayey Sand 133.5 9.8 

Density of Soil in Place (ASTM D2937) 

Sample 
Sample Moisture Dry DensityDepth 

Location (%) (pcf)(ft) Soil Description 

B-2 1.5 - 3 Orange Brown Clayey Sand 12.2 124.4 
B-3 5 - 6.5 Orange Brown Silty Sand 10.6 119.3 

Expansion Index (ASTM D4829) 

Sample Sample Depth Expansion Expansion 
Location (ft) Index Potential 

B-3 0 - 5 40  Low 

Resistance Value (Cal. Test Method 301 & ASTM D2844) 

Sample 
Sample Depth 

Location (ft) Soil Description R-Value 
B-2 0 - 4 Orange Brown Silty Sand 17 

Corrosivity (Cal. Test Method 417,422,643) 

Resistivity Sulfate Content Chloride ContentSample Sample Depth 
Location (ft) pH (Ohm-cm) (ppm) (%) (ppm) (%) 

B-2 0 - 4 7.8 1200 66.0 0.007 230 0.023 

LAB TEST RESULTS 

BY: CLS 
APPENDIX: C.2

DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074 

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION 

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIANOVA 

GEOTECHNICAL 

MATERIALS 

SPECIAL INSPECTION 

SDVOSBDVBE SBE SLBE 

www.usa-nova.com 

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B 944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F 
San Diego, CA 92123 San Clemente, CA 92673 
P: 858.292.7575 P: 949.388.7710 

www.usa-nova.com


Gravel

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS

Sand

Coarse FineMediumCoarseFine

Silt or Clay

Sample Location:

Depth (ft):

USCS Soil Type:

Passing No. 200 (%):

B-1

1 - 1.5

SC

30

BY: CLS
APPENDIX: C.3

NOVA

GEOTECHNICAL

MATERIALS

SPECIAL INSPECTION

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B
San Diego, CA 92123
P: 858.292.7575

www.usa-nova.com

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F
San Clemente, CA 92673
P: 949.388.7710

SBEDVBE SDVOSB SLBE

DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA

C) 
C: 

'in 
1/) 
n, 
a. -C: 
Cl) 
(.) ... 
Cl) 
a. 

~ Size (Inches) ~+::'.:---- U.S. Standard Sieve Sizes Hydrometer Analysis / 

0 0 
-st co ;e g ~ 0 ~ 
~ ci ci ci ci ci ci 

100 .0 TTTT,---,--,--,------,.--, - ~h-.,......,..--iii-=---,-=z=r--.----=z;:.,..n,.-.z:::;-,........,,,---:z~---.---=~~---.~z:;:;,~~~---.----~~-------~ 
• --, .. ....._ ; I I 

~ : : 
90. 0 +++++-t-t-t-----t'----+++++-+'-l---+-'--+----'--++r-,-'hl---+-+--'1+--+---+--''------+-11--+.!..i-l--l---l--l-----l-----l-l-l-l-l---1---l----1---1---_j 

I ~ I 
I ◄~ I 
I • I 
I I\ ~ 

80.0 +++-++-+-+-+-#---+l-+i-+---11---l------l----l-+----+--l-W--1---t---l--ll------+-----l---lf-----l-l---l-l+-+--i------1-------1-- -l--- ------l-_J_)__j___j____J___j___j___J_ _ __J 

I 1\ 

I \ 

: ◄~ 70 .0 -t-t--t-t--t-t-t-+---t1-.-1 - -t-+++-+--h-1,-t--+--.1-t---r-+1 -h1+-+-t--1-T1l---+ ~, -+--~1 -+++.+-+-l--+--+---+-----l-l-+-+-l-+-f--l------i---_j 

: \ 

60 .0 +++-++-+-+-+---t'-----l+++-t---t'--+--+--'--l---'--++-'-:l-+--l--+---'+--+-' 4---'---l--l---1'4-+--1---1----l--- 1--- ---l-l-l--l--l--+-_)___J_ _ ___J 

\ 
\ , 

50. 0 tt-t-+-t-+-+--+----tt------++t-+t--tf-+-+-+-1c---+-+l-it+-++-+---t+--+- l------}i.---++--l+l---J.--1.----t-----t---l------l-+--1-l---+--il----!------I---I--_J : ,, 
I \ 

40 .0 ++-+++-+-t--+---t.------++++-+-+.--+--+----.--l------.-++.:+-++-l---al----l---+-~~ \,--1-l--h-l---l-l------je--l------l------l--l--l--l-l---1---1----l---l--__J 

I 
I 
I 

\ 

\ 

30 .0 ++++-+-+-t--+--+-'-' --++++-+---+1-1-+--+-_J_' +---1'-++':+-+-I-J---l.111----1-------l--''--+-.J.-11:W-+--1---1----l---l----U--l--l--l--l-l-L---+--__J 

20. 0 +++-++-+-+--t---tt---t-+-t+-t--tt-+--+-+-t---t-++t+-+-+-+-t+-+--+---1--++-+++-+-+-1-l----+----l---l--l-l--l---l----+-----l---l------l 
I 
I 
I 

10.0 +++++-+-+--+---t.---++++-+-+.-+--+-;.--1---;.....++::+-+-+-+-;.i--+---+-:__-1--1--++-+-l---1--+---+-----l-l-+-+-l-L-L--1----+--_j 

I 
I 
I 

0. 0 -t-"--'--'---'---.J__J._...J..____jl.,__ ' --f-_l_j_...l.......l__JJ_I • ___1____l__J_' _J_ __ 4' _J..J'LL.L+-L...J.'L___J_____l_L__'-I-J_[J'-1.....J.__j___L___L _ _j__ __ -l-1-LL-l--l__L_J__j_ __ _J 

100 10 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 

www.usa-nova.com


Gravel

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS

Sand

Coarse FineMediumCoarseFine

Silt or Clay

Sample Location:

Depth (ft):

USCS Soil Type:

Passing No. 200 (%):

B-2

0 - 1.5

SC

33

BY: CLS
APPENDIX: C.4

NOVA

GEOTECHNICAL

MATERIALS

SPECIAL INSPECTION

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B
San Diego, CA 92123
P: 858.292.7575

www.usa-nova.com

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F
San Clemente, CA 92673
P: 949.388.7710

SBEDVBE SDVOSB SLBE

DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA

C) 
C: 
·;;; 
(/) 
('ti 

a. 
c 
(1) 
0 
"
(1) 
a. 

~ Size (Inches) ~~~---- U.S. Standard Sieve Sizes 

0 0 

~ :::!: ~ ~ "Q" co g ~ 0 ~ 

Hydrometer Analysis 

:. """"- M- """" - M g _g _g ~ ~ _g Q 100 ,-,---,--,---,--1-•,_t--r-11_9-1,...--------.,......,....,.._•.,.-.-----,------,---r------<,..----r-r,,cr,'",-.---,-,r-',.---------._____...,..----------,---,..,.,,-.--.---,----.-----,-------.----,---,,,-----,---,-------,-~---.-------, 
r- ~ ... -- I I I 

...__ I I I 
,.._ I I 

90 ++++-+-+---l-+-----t~--++++-+---+'--+--+~-+--~~ l-t--1--+-+------'-ll-+----+-~-++--+-'+-+-+--+--+--+---++-t--1-+-t-1-+----+------, 
l ...._ I 

: h : 
I \ I 

80 +-+-+-+--+--+-+--+----++----++-+-+-+--++--+---+--+-+-- --+-+-+-1l+-+--+-~\.-tt---+--+----+--++-+++--+--+-----<1-+---+----++-+-+-+--+--+---+---+---------< 

r,. 
\ 

I 70 +-+-+-+--+--+-+--+----+1-, --++-+-+-+---+r, --+---+- , -+---,.------+~ .-t--1--+-+-------, f-------<----+-,---++-+--,+-+--+--+---+--+----++--t--1--+--+-----<-+---+------, 

I \ 

\ 
I 

60 +-+-+-+--+--+-+--+----+----++-+-+-+---+"--+---+--+---1-+rl+-+--+-+----1-+--\➔, ----++---r+-+--+--+---+--+---++-+-+--+-+-----<-+---+------, 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 

\ 
\_ 50 ++-+-+-+--+--+--+------+<----+-+-+-+~f<-----+----+----+-----,>------+-l--+-+-t,lf---+----<--+->+--+---+-_.~ ~ -++-f-f-+----4--+--+--+----+----++-+-l--+-+-+---+--+-------l 

I I \ 

: : \ 
40 ++++-+-+---l-+-----+~--++++-+---t-.-+--+~-+----1.-----+n1++-+--+-----.-1-+----+-~----+~++.+-+-+--+--+--+---++-t--1-+-t-1-+----+------, 

: ,, 
30 +-+-+-+--+--+-+--+----+1_1 _--++-+-+-+--+'-l --+---+- l -+---"-+-l ~ l+-+--+-+--"-l l-+---+-l- --++-+'I+-+--+--+---+--+----++-+-+--+--+-----<-+---+-------< 

I 
I 
I 
I 

20 +-+-+-+--+--+-+--+----+f-----++-+-+-+--++--+---+--f--+-- --+-+-+i+-+--+-+-1-l--l----t-0---+++1+-+--+--+---+---+----++-+-+--+-+-----<-+---+------, 

I 
I 
I 

10 +-+-+-+--+--+-+--+----+----++-+-+-+---+,---+---+--+---++.:+-+--+-+---cl-+---+----++---r.+-+--+--+---+---+---++-+-+--+-+-----<-+---+------, 

I 
I 
I 

0 +-'-+-+-~--~~1_, _--+_~~·~--· -+---"-t-' ~ '+-+--+-~·-+-~-·~--+~'~~~--~--+--'-+-+-~---~------, 

100 10 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 



Gravel

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS

Sand

Coarse FineMediumCoarseFine

Silt or Clay

Sample Location:

Depth (ft):

USCS Soil Type:

Passing No. 200 (%):

B-2

5 - 6.5

SM

21

BY: CLS
APPENDIX: C.5

NOVA

GEOTECHNICAL

MATERIALS

SPECIAL INSPECTION

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B
San Diego, CA 92123
P: 858.292.7575

www.usa-nova.com

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F
San Clemente, CA 92673
P: 949.388.7710

SBEDVBE SDVOSB SLBE

DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA

C) 
C: 
·;;; 
(/) 
('ti 

a. 
c 
(1) 
0 
"
(1) 
a. 

~ Size (Inches) ~~~---- U.S. Standard Sieve Sizes Hydrometer Analysis 

0 0 

~ :::!: ~ ~ "Q" co ~ g ~ 0 ~ 
:. """"- M- """" - M g_ _g _g ~ ~ _g Q 

100 ,--,-,--,---,--1-•,_t--r-11_9-1,...--------.,----,------,---•-....... ~-=-c-' ... ,.-----,-------<,,--,---r,,cr,'",-.---,-,r-',.---------._____...,..-----------.,..,.,,-.--.---,----.------.----.-----,---,,,-----,---,-------,-~---.-------, 
T-....._ I I I 

'-. I .. I I 

90 ++++-+-+---l-+-----t~--++++-+---+'--+--+~-+--~- :+-+-+-+------'-:l-+----+-~-++--+-'+-+-+--+--+--+---++-t--1--+--t-1-+----+------, 

I ' I 
I \ I 

I ◄ t I 
80 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+----++----++-+-+-+--++--+---+--+-+-- --+-+-+-11+-+---+-->,,+-+l >--+---+-t----++-+t+-+--+---+---+--+---++-+-+--+--+-----<-+---+-------< 

I \ 1 

I ' I 1, 70 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+----+1-, ---++-+-+-+---+r, --+---+- , -+---,.------+~ .-t--1--+-+-------, ~, ----1----+--,---++-+--,+-+--+---+---+---+---++-+-+--+--+-----<-+---+-------< 

I \ 
I I 

I It 
60 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+----+----++-+-+-+---+"--+---+--+---1-+rl+-+--+-+---->--~\1;---+---+-+-+-'+-+--+-----<1-+---+----++-+-+-+--+--+---+--+--------, 

: : \ 
I I \ 

50 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+---++---++-+-+-+-++-+---+--+-+---+-I +-+il+-+--+-+-+>--+--\<+---+--++-+H--+--+-----<1-+---+----+++-+-+--+--+---+--+-------, 

I I 
I I ~ 
I I \ 

40 ++++-+-+---l-+-----+~--++++-+---t-.-+--+~-+-----,---
1 

++.l+-+-+--+-----.-l-+----+-\--'-.--++-h-t--+--t-11-t----t---++++-+-+--+--+--+--------, 
I : • 

I 1\ 

II I I I : I I \ I 30 ++-<---+---,--+--+--+----+"--->-+-+--+-+---+'-+--+-----'-1---"-+-+--l+-+-1-----+----"+--+----+-~~ \ +++'+-+--+--+-+---+-----+-+-+-+-+---+-------,-----,--+--------< 

I I\ 
I 
I '. 20 +-+-+-+---+-+-+--+----+f-----++-+-+-+--++--+---+--f--+-- --+-+-+i+-+--+-+-+l-+---+-t----+-l-l'l+-!---+---+---+---+---++--t--1--+-+-----<-+---+-------< 

I I 
I I 
I I 

10 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+----+----++-+-+-+---+,---+---+--+---++.:+-+--+-+---cl-+---+----++---r.:+-+--+--+---+--+---+-+-+-+--+--+-----<-+---+-------< 

I I 
I I 
I I 

0 +-'-~~-~~~l~• ---+-~~•--~• -+---------+-' ~ '--+-~•~~~-'~--+~'~----~--+--'--~~--~-------a 

100 10 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 



Gravel

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS

Sand

Coarse FineMediumCoarseFine

Silt or Clay

Sample Location:

Depth (ft):

USCS Soil Type:

Passing No. 200 (%):

B-4

1.5 - 3

SM

35

BY: CLS
APPENDIX: C.6

NOVA

GEOTECHNICAL

MATERIALS

SPECIAL INSPECTION

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B
San Diego, CA 92123
P: 858.292.7575

www.usa-nova.com

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F
San Clemente, CA 92673
P: 949.388.7710

SBEDVBE SDVOSB SLBE

DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA

C) 
C: 
·;;; 
(/) 
('ti 

a. 
c 
(1) 
0 
"
(1) 
a. 

~ Size (Inches) ~~~----- U.S. Standard Sieve Sizes 

0 0 

~ :::!: ~ ~ "Q" co ~ 0 ~ 0 
C') 

Hydrometer Analysis 

:. """"- M- """" - M g _g _g ~ ~ _g Q 100 ,--,,--,--,---,---11,_--,--a ___ .. ,..._--< ______ .,......,...,.._,..,.-.,_- ~--.~~ .. -r-----4',:-,-,--.:,,-.,_ ... :,-------,.,_ _ ___..,..,---,--,_.,.,_:r,----,----,------,----,-----,,---,-,--,---,-----,----,---,------------, 

----.. ~ : : 
90 ++++-+-+-+--+---+-'---++++-+--+-'-+---+-~+---~+-+-'-:+-P~•~.+-~:1-+---1-~-H---1r: +-+-+--+--+--+----+-+-H--+--+--+---+---+--------, 

: ,: : 
I i~. I 

80 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+----+f-----++-+-+-+--++--+---+--+-+-- --+-+-+i+-+-+-+-+~ ,,-+---+---+--++-+++--+-+-----<f--+---+----++-+-+-+--+--+---+---+--------< 

I I I 

I~ I 
\ I 

I \ I 70 ++-+-+-+-+-+----+--~ll----+-+--+--+-+----+.l--+---+-l--+---l--+-hl+-+--+-+-----.-ll--+-+-, 1-~l ----+-1~1+-+---+----+---+-----+-----+-+-H--+---+---+---+----+--------, 

I \ I 
I I 

I I 

60 ++-+-+-+-+-+--+--+---++-+-+-+-+-+--+--+---1--+-rl+-+--+-+---'-t--+--Hl\ r--'-_---+-1r+-'-l +-+---+--+---+--+----+-+-H--+--+--+---+---+---------< 

: : \ : 
: : ,, : 

50 ++-+-+---+-+-+----+---++---++-+-+--+--++-+---+--+-+--~,--+-Hl+-+--+-+----¼l--+--1--+-'-\- H---l~,+-+---+----+---+----+-----+-+-H--+---+---+---+----+--------, 

: : \ : 
40 ++++-+-+-+--+--+.---++++-+-+.-+---+-~-1--~:--+-h:t-++-t------.t-+--t-~-H~ rl.l t-+-+--+--+--+----+-+-H--+--+--+---+---+--------, 

I \ : 

I I 
I I 

30 ++-+-+-+-+-+--+--~ll __ --+-+--+--+-+----+'l--+---+~ l-1-_~ l--+-~l+-+--+-+-----"-ll--+--1-~l _---+-1-+<-l +-+---+--+---+--+-----+-+-H-+--+---+---+---+---------< 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 

20 ++-+-+---+-+-+----+---++---+-+-+-+--+--++-+---+--+-+-- -+-+-+>+-+--+-+----¼l--+--l--+--H---1e++-+-l--l-+----+-----+--+-1---+-+--1--+-+---+--------l 

I I 
I I 
I I 

10 ++-+-+-+-+-+--+--+.---++-+-+-+-+.-+--+--+---+-+.-:+-+--+-+---ct--+--t---H---1r.: +-+---+--+---+--+----+-t-H-+--+--+---+---+--------, 

I I 
I I 
I I 

0 +--'-~~~~~-~11 __ --+-~~~•~~~•-1--~•--+-~'~-+-~•~-+--~~•---+-~' ~~~~-~----+--'~~~~~-~-______, 

100 10 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 



Gravel

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS

Sand

Coarse FineMediumCoarseFine

Silt or Clay

Sample Location:

Depth (ft):

USCS Soil Type:

Passing No. 200 (%):

B-4

4.5 - 5.5

SM

27

BY: CLS
APPENDIX: C.7

NOVA

GEOTECHNICAL

MATERIALS

SPECIAL INSPECTION

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B
San Diego, CA 92123
P: 858.292.7575

www.usa-nova.com

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F
San Clemente, CA 92673
P: 949.388.7710

SBEDVBE SDVOSB SLBE

DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA

C) 
C: 
·;;; 
(/) 
('ti 

a. 
c 
(1) 
0 
"
(1) 
a. 

~ Size (Inches) ~~~---- U.S. Standard Sieve Sizes Hydrometer Analysis 

0 0 

~ :::!: ~ ~ "Q" co ~ g ~ 0 ~ 
:. """"- M- """" - M g _g _g ~ ~ _g Q 

100 ,--,-,--,-----,--1-•,_t--r-11_9-1,...---------" ... ---.--'l'r,---.------.---,---r-- ----<,..----r-r,,cr,'",-.---,-,r-',.---------._____...,..-----------.,..,.,,-.--.---,----.------.----.----,---,,,-----,---,-------,-~---.-------, 
i-..,a._ I I I I 

'-. I : : : 

'-.!. 90 ++++-+-+---1-+-----t~--++++-+---+'--+--+--,-f--~: -+-+-':+-+-f-+------'-l-+----+-~-++--+-':+-+-+--+--+--+---++-t--1-+-t-1-+----+------, 

'-. I I I 
'-. I I I 

.. I I 
80 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+----+f-----++-+-+-+--++--+---+--+-+----+-'--.+-+--+-+-+1-+---+-t----++-+-f+-+--+---+---+--+---++-+-+--+--+-----<-+---+-------< 

I ) I 
I I 

I "◄~ I 
I I 70 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+----+1-, --++-+-+-+---+r, --+---+-, -+---,.------+~.-t--1--+-~, - .1-+---+-,---++-+--,+-+--+---+---+--+---++-+-+--+--+-----<-+---+-------< 

I ) I 

\ I 

60 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+----+----++-+-+-+---+"--+---+--+---1-

1 

+-+"+-+--+-+----r---'~w•~-+---+-+-r:+-+--+---+---+--+---+-+-+-+--+--+-----<-+---+-------< 
I I\ I 

: \ : 
I \ I 

50 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+----+f-----++-+-+-+--++--+---+--+-+----+-+-+-l+-+--+-+-+1-+--------~-t----++-+-f+-+--+---+---+--+---++-+-+--+--+-----<-+---+-------< 

: \ : 
: ~ : 40 ++++-+-+---l-+-----+~--++++-+---t-.-+--+~-+----l.-----+-h-t-+-+-+-.+---+--+------..-,,--++hl+-+-+--+--+--+---++-t--1-+-t-1-+----+------, 

\ I 

\ I 

30 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+----+1_1 _--++-+-+-+--+'-l --+---+-l -+---"-+-l ~ l+-+--+-+--"-l l-+---+-l~--+I\+-+':+-+--+---+---+--+---++-+-+--+--+-----<-+---+-------< 
' 1 • I 

I 
20 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+----+f-----+++-+-+--++--+---+--f--+-- --+-+-+-l+-+--+-+-+l-+---+-t----++-+-f+-+--+---+---+--+---++--t--1--+--+-----<-+---+-------< 

I 
I 
I 

10 +-+-+-+--+-+-+--+----+----++-+-+-+---+,---+---+--+---++.+-+--+-+---cl-+---+----++---r.:+-+--+---+---+--+---+-+-+-+--+--+-----<-+---+-------< 

I 
I 
I 

0 +-'-~~-~~~1_, _--+-~~·---· -+---"-+-' ~ "--+-~·~+-~-·~--+~'~----~--+--'--~~--~-------a 

100 10 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 



Gravel

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS

Sand

Coarse FineMediumCoarseFine

Silt or Clay

Sample Location:

Depth (ft):

USCS Soil Type:

Passing No. 200 (%):

B-4

7 - 8.5

SM

23

BY: CLS
APPENDIX: C.8

NOVA

GEOTECHNICAL

MATERIALS

SPECIAL INSPECTION

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B
San Diego, CA 92123
P: 858.292.7575

www.usa-nova.com

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F
San Clemente, CA 92673
P: 949.388.7710

SBEDVBE SDVOSB SLBE

DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA

~ Size (Inches) ~~ U.S. Standard Sieve Sizes 
'- ./ Hydrometer Analysis '-.,,. ..... .,,. 

0 0 

~ :;!: ~ ~ ;e 0 0 ~ 0 
'SI' <X) C') I!) N 

~ ~ C') ~ C') g .g .g ~ ~ .g ci 
100 - - - -r- - ,... - -. I I I I I I 

~ .... I I • I 
r-- I 

90 ' I 

~ 
I ' 
I 

80 " 
I \~ I 
I 

' C) 70 
I 

C: II I I I I ':~ I I 

·;;; I 

(/) I 
('ti I \ 
a. 60 I \ 

c I It 
I \ 

(1) 
I \ 0 

"- I \ (1) 50 a. 
I ' I \ I 

40 
I \ 
I , 

\ 
11 I I I I I I 

\ 
I 30 

~ 

\ 

t 
20 

I 
I 
I 

10 I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

0 1, I I I I I I I 

100 10 1 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 

I I I I I I I 



Gravel

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS

Sand

Coarse FineMediumCoarseFine

Silt or Clay

Sample Location:

Depth (ft):

USCS Soil Type:

Passing No. 200 (%):

B-6

1 - 2.5

CL

59

BY: CLS
APPENDIX: C.9

NOVA

GEOTECHNICAL

MATERIALS

SPECIAL INSPECTION

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B
San Diego, CA 92123
P: 858.292.7575

www.usa-nova.com

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F
San Clemente, CA 92673
P: 949.388.7710

SBEDVBE SDVOSB SLBE

DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA

C) 
C: 
·;;; 
(/) 
('ti 

a. 
c 
(1) 
0 
"
(1) 
a. 

~ Size (Inches) ~~~----- U.S. Standard Sieve Sizes Hydrometer Analysis 

0 0 

~ :::!: ~ ~ "Q" co ~ g ~ 0 ~ 
:. """"- M- """" - M g_ _g _g ~ ~ _g Q 100 ,--,,--,--,---,---11,_--,--a ___ .. ,..._--< ______ ~-,------t--,----=~--rc--___..,._.,---,-_ rT,,,...,_ ... ,,-------,.,_-,-------,.,..,---,--,_.,.,_,r.----,----.------.----.-----..---,-,--,---,---,-----,--,-----------, 

T ''•l I I 

' I I 
1' I I 

90 ++++-+-+-+--+---+-'---++++-+--+-'-+---+-~+---~+-+-'-+-+-l-+-----'-l-----'ttl~--+-~: --+--1-+-'-:+-+-+--+--+--+----+-+-H-+-+--+--+--+--------, 

\ I I 

' I I 80 +++-+-+-+-+--+---++---++-+-+-+--++-+--+--+-+-- -+-+-+++-+--+-+-+t--+--1'--+--t--+-,H+-+-f------i-+-------i--------i-+-+-+-+-t---+-+----+--------i 

\ I I " : 70 +++-+-+-+-+----+--~ll----+-+--+--+-+----+.l--+---+- l--+---1---+-hl+-+--+-+-----rlt--+--i--~l ~ --\ t--+-,~l +-+---+----+---+-----+-----+-+-H--+---+---+----+----+--------, 

I \ I 

: I\ : 
60 +++-+-+-+-+--+--+---++-+-+-+-+-+--+--+---1--+-+-'+-+-+--+--'-t---+--+-~1----+-1~' 1+-+-+--+---+--+----+-+-H--+--+--+---+---+--------, 

I I I 
I I I 
I I 
I I 

50 +++-+-+-+-+--+---tf---++-+-+--+--++-+---+--+-+---+-+-+++-+--+-+-+t--+--i---+--t--+-,H+-+-f------i-+-------i--------i-+-+-+-+-t---+-+----+--------i 

I I I 
I I I 
I I I 

40 ++++-+-+-+--+--+.---++++-+-+.-+---+-~-1--~:-+h-t-+--+-+.+---+--+-~: --+--l'-+.-: t-+-+--+--+--+----+-+-H-+-+--+--+--+--------, 

I I 
I I 
I I 

30 +++-+-+-+-+--+--~ll __ --+-+--+--+-+----+'l--+----+~ l-1-_ ~ l---+-~l+-+--+-+-----"-lt--+--1--~l _---+-1-+"-l +-+---+--+---+--+-----+-+-H--+--+--+----+---+---------< 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 

20 +++-+---+-+-+----+---tf---++-+-+--+-+1-+---+--+-+-- -+-+-+++-+--+-+-+t--+--i---+--t--+-,H+-+-f------i-+-------i--------i-+-+-+-+-t--+-+---+--------i 

I I 
I I 
I I 

10 +++-+-+-+-+--+--+.---++-+-+-+-+.-+--+--+---+-+.-+-+--+-+---ct--+--t-~: ----+-1'-+.-: t-+-+--+---+--+----+-t-H--+--+--+---+---+--------, 

I I 
I I 
I I 

0 +--'-~~~~~-~11 __ --+-~~~•~~~•-1--~•---+-~'~-+-~•~-+--~~•----+-~' ~~~~-~----a-~~~~~-~-______, 

100 10 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 



Gravel

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS

Sand

Coarse FineMediumCoarseFine

Silt or Clay

Sample Location:

Depth (ft):

USCS Soil Type:

Passing No. 200 (%):

B-6

2.5 - 4

SM

27

BY: CLS
APPENDIX: C.10

NOVA

GEOTECHNICAL

MATERIALS

SPECIAL INSPECTION

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B
San Diego, CA 92123
P: 858.292.7575

www.usa-nova.com

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F
San Clemente, CA 92673
P: 949.388.7710

SBEDVBE SDVOSB SLBE

DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA

~ Size (Inches) ~~ U.S. Standard Sieve Sizes 
,.,,, 

Hydrometer Analysis ' / ..... / 

0 0 

~ :;!: ~ ~ ~ 0 0 ~ 0 
'Sf' co (") I!) N 

~ ~ (") ~ (") 

1 _g _g ~ ~ _g ci 
100 - - - -r- - I"" - - , ... ,... I I I I I I 

I I I I 

' I 
I I I 

'- I I I 

90 I I I 
I 

' 
I I I 

I , . I I 
I .. I I 
I I I 

80 ' 
I 'I I 
I 'I I 
I l~ I 

en I I 

C: 
70 II I I I I ' I I I 

"iii I \ I 

Ill I I 

co I ~ I 
a. 60 I \ I 

'E I ' I 
I 

l~ 
I 

Q) 
I I (.) 

'- I \ I 
Q) 50 a. 

I \ I 
I ~ I 
I \ I 
I I 

40 I ,, I 
I I 
I 

\ 
I 

I I 
11 I I I I I I ' I 30 

\ I I 
I • I I 
I I 

20 
I I 
I I 
I I 

10 I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 
I I 

0 I I I I I I I I I 

100 10 1 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 

I I I I I I I 



Gravel

GRADATION ANALYSIS TEST RESULTS

Sand

Coarse FineMediumCoarseFine

Silt or Clay

Sample Location:

Depth (ft):

USCS Soil Type:

Passing No. 200 (%):

B-6

5 - 6

SP-SM

9

BY: CLS
APPENDIX: C.11

NOVA

GEOTECHNICAL

MATERIALS

SPECIAL INSPECTION

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B
San Diego, CA 92123
P: 858.292.7575

www.usa-nova.com

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F
San Clemente, CA 92673
P: 949.388.7710

SBEDVBE SDVOSB SLBE

DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA

~ Size (Inches) ~~ U.S. Standard Sieve Sizes 
'- ./ Hydrometer Analysis '-.,,. ..... .,,. 

0 0 

~ :;!: ~ ~ ;e 0 0 ~ 0 
'SI' <X) C') I!) N 

~ ~ C') ~ C') g .g .g ~ ~ .g ci 
100 - - - -r- - ,... - ' 

I I I I I I I 

I\ I I I I 
I I I I 

\ I I I I 

90 \ I I I I 

►, 
I I I 
I I I 
I I I 

~ I I I 

80 \ I I I 

\ I I I 

\ I I I 

C) 70 
I I I 

C: II I \ I I I I I I 

·;;; ~ I I I 

(/) 

' 
I I I 

('ti I I I 
a. 60 \ I I I I 

c \ I I I I 
I I I I (1) \ 1 I I I 0 

"- ~ I I I 
(1) 50 a. ,, 

I I I 
I \ 1 I I 
I ., I I 

40 
I I I I 
I I 

◄~ 
I I 

I I I 
I ' I I 
I ~ I I 

30 11 I I I I I I I 

I ' I I 
I 1~ I I 
I \ I I 
I \. I I 

20 
I \, I I 
I • I 
I 

,, 
I 

I I ' I 10 I I • I I I 
I I I 
I I I 

0 1, I I I I I I I 

100 10 1 0.1 0.01 0.001 

Grain Size (mm) 

I I I I I I I 



CONSOLIDATION TEST RESULTS

DATE: AUG 2020 PROJECT: 2020074BY: CLS
APPENDIX: C.12

NOVA

GEOTECHNICAL

MATERIALS

SPECIAL INSPECTION

SBE DVBE

4373 Viewridge Avenue, Suite B
San Diego, CA 92123
P: 858.292.7575

www.usa-nova.com

944 Calle Amanecer, Suite F
San Clemente, CA 92673
P: 949.388.7710

COLE GRADE ROAD FIRE STATION

VALLEY CENTER, CALIFORNIA

Sample Location:

Depth (ft):

USCS Soil Type:

1.5 - 3

SM

B-2

STRESS IN KIPS PER SQUARE FEET, (ksf) 

0.1 1.0 10.0 100.0 
-2.0 --, __ 

----
-1.0 --, __ 

----
0.0 ,_ ,_ 

--- ----- 1.0 -
-;!2_ ----

, __ 
0 -- ,_ 
(/) -
(/) 2.0 - -
w - --z .... --
:::.::: 

.... --.... 
u 3.0 .... --
:i: .... --
f-

.... --.... --w --
....J 4.0 ■ 

Cl... _ ,_ 
~ --
<( ----(/) 5.0 
LL 

, __ 
0 --, __ 
f-

6.0 - , __ 
z ....... --w ....... 
u ... , ----0::: 'I , __ 
w 7.0 ....... ... , 
Cl... ... , --
~ 

~ -- --, __ 
--

8.0 -z 
0 ... _,_ 
i= --... , __ 
<( 

9.0 ... --
0 
:::i ... ----'I 0 ... --
(/) 

10.0 ' 
, __ 

z .. --0 .As - ,_ ---u ,_ - ' 
,_ 

11.0 .... ,_ .. -- - ' --... - ' 
,_ ,_ 
-... -

12.0 ... ... -... ~, _ ,_ 
, __ 
--

13.0 -

---- L□adi 11 g1 Prior to H20 

.........,_ Loadi'11 g1 After H20 

- ..... - Reboun d 

,,, 
• 



Attachment 6 – Improvement Priority Lists for Station No. 1 and 2 
 

Improvement Priority List for Fire Station No. 1 

- Increase the height of the apparatus bay doors from approximately 10 feet 7 inches to 12 feet.  

New apparatus bay doors will be required in addition to modifications to the structure to 

achieve the increased height. 

- Install a new two-stage compressor and construct a compressor enclosure.  Plumb the 

apparatus bay for compressed air 

- Design and install a new HVAC system throughout the main fire station building.  This task will 

include consolidating the computer and telecommunications equipment in one location so that 

it can be effectively cooled.  Ductless mini-splits are the preferred HVAC technology, if feasible 

- Reconfigure the living space to provide dorm and dayroom space for four persons and to 

accommodate three refrigerators in the kitchen area 

- Modernize the kitchen with updated appliances and countertops 

- Upgrade the water heaters 

- Provide a covered porch area at the main public entrance 

- Reconfigure the front office to include a public counter with security measures and a plan 

layout counter area 

- Behind the public counter, reconfigure the office space to provide several workstations on the 

perimeter and a centrally located conference table for small meetings 

- Reconfigure the workout area to accommodate interior and exterior space 

 

Improvement Priority List for Fire Station No. 2 

- Increase the height of the apparatus bay doors from approximately 10 feet to 12 feet.  New 

apparatus bay doors will be required in addition to modifications to the structure to achieve the 

increased height. 

- Design and install a new HVAC system throughout the fire station.  Ductless mini-splits are the 

preferred HVAC technology, if feasible 

- Add a urinal to the Men’s restroom 

- Reconfigure dorm space to improve functionality and comfort 

- Upgrade the vanity in the Captain’s restroom 

- Remodel the kitchen to provide space for three refrigerators (to be relocated from the laundry 

area), update the appliances and countertops 

- Provide a screened in area with a half-wall and exercise flooring for the rear patio area where 

the exercise equipment is located 

- Remodel the laundry area to provide storage and an area to fold clothes 

- Relocate storage from the area adjacent to the dayroom to the laundry room to free up space 

to expand the adjacent office to provide three workstations 

- Replace and expand the concrete area in the rear of the station 

- Provide a “roof” for the existing metal framework to provide a partial enclosure for an antique 

fire engine 



Subtotals Totals

Preconstruction Services

Design Team (Architect and Subconsultants)

Schematic Design

Design Development

Construction Documents

Subtotal

Note: Do not include design team construction administration services 

in the preconstruction services budget

Design Builder (DB)

DB Cost for Preconstruction Services (provide breakdown on separate 

sheet)

Proposed DB Design Contingency

Proposed DB Fee for All Pre-Construction Services

Subtotal

Total Preconstruction Services Budget

Construction Services

General Conditions/General Requirements (provide monthly 

breakdown on separate sheet, identify staffing levels and hours)

Proposed DB Contingency (percentage)

Proposed DB Fee for Construction (percentage)

Bonds and Insurance

Performance/Payment Bonds (__%)

Liability Insurance (__%)

Builder's Risk (__%)

ATTACHMENT 7

Preliminary Cost Worksheet 



1 

VALLEY CENTER 
FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT 
INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS     
INSURANCE TYPES AND LIMITS, 
INDEMNIFICATION AND BEST 
PRACTICES FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 
TO THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE



2 

Table of Contents 

Insurance Requirements 

Page 3 Commercial General Liability 

Page 4 Workers Compensation 

Page 4 Excess or Umbrella Liability 

Page 5 Business Auto 

Page 5 Professional Liability / E&O 

Page 6 Pollution Liability 

Provisions for All Required Insurance for District ContractorsPage 7 



3 

Prior to the beginning of and throughout the duration of the Services, and for any 
additional period of time as specified below, CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and 
expense, maintain insurance in conformance with the requirements set forth below.  
CONTRACTOR shall submit Certificates of Insurance for the District’s review and 
acceptance. The Notice to Proceed shall not be issued, and CONTRACTOR shall not 
commence Services until such insurance has been accepted by the District. 

No representation is made that the minimum insurance requirements of this Agreement 
are sufficient to cover the obligations of the CONTRACTOR hereunder.   

A. Commercial General Liability

a. CONTRACTOR shall provide Commercial General Liability insurance covering
claims for Bodily, Injury, Personal and Advertising Injury, and Property Damage
on a policy form that provides coverage at least as broad as coverage provided
under the Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01, and that includes, but
is not limited to, the coverage limits and coverage provisions outlined below.

b. The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and
maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the
Named Insured, including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the following: 

$5,000,000 per Occurrence Each Pollution Condition;  
$5,000,000 Aggregate Liability. 
$2,000,000 General Aggregate;  
$2,000,000 Products - Completed Operations 

Aggregate. 

c. Coverage must be on an “occurrence” basis.

d. Coverage must be included for “products-completed operations” without any
“prior work” coverage limitation or exclusion applicable to any Services to be
performed under this Agreement.

e. Contractual Liability coverage at least as broad as coverage provided by the ISO
CG 00 01 policy form must be included.

f. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers,
officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional
Insureds on a primary and noncontributory basis The additional insureds must be
covered for:

i. Liability arising out of any premises or property utilized for any Services
performed under this Agreement, and

ii. Liability arising out of or related to this Agreement, including any
Services performed hereunder by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, and

Insurance Requirements for ALL District Contracts



4 

iii. Products and completed operations of CONTRACTOR.

   A severability of interests provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds, ensuring 
that CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom 
claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s limits of liability. 

B. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability

Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be on a state-approved policy form providing 
statutory benefits as required by law and Employer’s Liability coverage with limits no 
less than $1,000,000 per accident or disease for all covered losses.  If CONTRACTOR is 
self-insured with respect to Workers’ Compensation coverage, CONTRACTOR shall 
provide a Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure from the California Department of 
Industrial Relations confirming CONTRACTOR’s self-insured status.  Such self-
insurance shall meet the minimum limit requirements and waive subrogation rights in 
favor of the District as stated below.  If the CONTRACTOR is a sole proprietorship or 
partnership, with no employees, and is exempt from carrying Workers Compensation 
insurance, CONTRACTOR must submit a letter to the District stating that he/she is either 
the owner of the entity or a partner of the entity performing the Services, and is exempt 
from the State of California’s Workers Compensation requirements because he/she has 
no employees.   

CONTRACTOR and its Workers’ Compensation insurance must waive any rights of 
subrogation against the District and its directors, officers, officials, agents, volunteers, 
and employees, and CONTRACTOR shall defend and pay any damages as a result of 
failure to provide the waiver of subrogation from the insurance carrier(s). 

C. Excess or Umbrella Liability Insurance

If excess or umbrella policies are used to meet the insurance requirements of this 
Agreement, they shall provide coverage at least as broad as specified for the underlying 
coverages, and the full limits of the umbrella or excess coverage shall be available to the 
District.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers, 
officials, agents, volunteers and employees must be covered as additional insureds and 
such policy or policies shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that coverage 
shall also apply on a primary and noncontributory basis to the District before the 
District’s own primary insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a 
Named Insured.  A severability of interests provision must apply for all additional 
insureds, ensuring that CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom the claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the 
insurer’s limits of liability.      
1. Business Auto Liability



5 

a. CONTRACTOR shall provide Business Auto Liability coverage on a policy form
that provides coverage at least as broad as coverage provided under ISO Business
Auto Coverage form CA 00 01, and that includes, but is not limited to, the
coverage limits and coverage provisions outlined below.

b. Coverage must be provided for “Bodily Injury” and “Property Damage” Liability
caused by an accident and resulting from the ownership, maintenance or use of
covered autos.

c. The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and
maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the
Named Insured, including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the minimum
limits specified below:

$1,000,000 per Occurrence/Accident for Bodily Injury and Property      
Damage Liability. 

d. Covered “autos” must include all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles.

e. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers,
officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional
Insureds with respect to “any auto” owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
CONTRACTOR.  The policy(ies) shall contain or be endorsed to contain a
provision that coverage shall apply on a primary and noncontributory basis to the
District before the District’s own primary insurance or self-insurance shall be
called upon to protect it as a Named Insured.

f. A severability of interests provision must apply for all the Additional Insureds,
ensuring that CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s
limits of liability.

g. [Where applicable] The policy shall be endorsed to include Transportation
Pollution Liability insurance covering materials to be transported by
CONTRACTOR in any Services to be performed under this Agreement.
Alternatively, this coverage may be provided on the CONTRACTOR’s Pollution
Liability Policy.

2. Professional Liability (aka Errors and Omissions)
*Architects, Engineers, Surveyors and Third-Party Construction Management Entities.

The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and maximum 
limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the Named Insured, 
including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the following: $1,000,000 per 



6 

occurrence or claim and $2,000,000 aggregate.  Coverage may be written on a claims-
made form.  If coverage is on a claims-made basis, the coverage must be maintained for 
at least 3 years after all Services under this Agreement are complete and additional 
claims-made coverage requirements apply as described below. 

         Pollution Liability 

a. CONTRACTOR shall provide pollution liability coverage that includes, but is not
limited to, the coverage limits and coverage provisions outlined below.

b. Coverage must be included for bodily injury and property damage, including
coverage for loss of use and diminution in property value, and for resultant clean-
up costs, arising out of the or resulting from:

(i) any Services performed under this Agreement, including
(ii) any storage or transportation, including the loading or unloading of,

hazardous wastes, hazardous materials, or contaminants.
The required coverage limits shall be the greater of the broader coverage and 
maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the 
Named Insured, including applicable Umbrella or Excess Limits, or the following: 

$5,000,000 per Occurrence Each Pollution Condition; 
$5,000,000  Aggregate Liability. 

c. Coverage may be written on a claims-made form.  If coverage is on a claims-
made basis, the coverage must be maintained for at least 3 years after all Services
performed under this Agreement are complete and additional claims-made
coverage requirements apply as described below.

d. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District and its directors, officers,
officials, agents, volunteers, and employees must be covered as Additional
Insureds by way of an endorsement to the policy.  The policy(ies) shall also
contain or be endorsed to contain a provision that coverage shall apply on a
primary and noncontributory basis to the District before the District’s own
primary insurance or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a Named
Insured.

e. A severability of interests provision must apply for all the additional insureds,
ensuring that CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s
limits of liability.

Provisions for All Required Insurance for District Contractors 

A. Deductibles, Self-Insurance, Self-Insured Retentions
Any deductibles, self-insurance, or self-insured retentions (SIRs) applicable to required
insurance coverage must be declared to and accepted by the District. At the option and



7 

request of the District, CONTRACTOR shall provide documentation of its financial 
ability to pay the deductible, self-insurance, or SIR.   

B. Acceptability of Insurers
Unless otherwise reviewed and accepted by the District, all required insurance must be
placed with insurers with a current A. M. Best's rating of no less than A – VII. The
insurers shall be admitted, or approved by the Surplus Lines Association, to do business
in California.

C. Claims-made Coverage
For any coverage that is provided on a claims-made coverage form (which type of form
is permitted only where specified in the insurance requirements outlined above):
(i) The retroactive date must be shown, and must be before the date of this Agreement,

and before the beginning of any Services related to this Agreement.
(ii) Insurance must be maintained and Certificates of Insurance must be provided to the

District for at least three (3) years after expiration of this Agreement.
(iii) If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made

policy form with a retroactive date prior to the effective date of this Agreement or the
start of any Services related to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR must purchase an
extended reporting period for a minimum of three (3) years after expiration of the
Agreement.

(iv) If requested by the District, a copy of the policy’s claims reporting requirement must
be submitted to the District for review.

D. Notice of Claims
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide immediate notice to the District of any loss or claim
against CONTRACTOR arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, or Services 
performed under this Agreement.  The District assumes no obligation or liability by such 
notice, but has the right (but not the duty) to monitor the handling of any such claim or 
claims if they are likely to involve the District. 

E. Proof of Compliance
CONTRACTOR agrees to provide evidence of insurance required herein, satisfactory to
the District, consisting of Certificates of Insurance, evidencing all of the coverages
required.  CONTRACTOR agrees, upon request by the District, to provide complete,
certified copies of any policies within 10 days of such request. (Copies of policies may be
redacted to eliminate premium details.)  All Certificates of Insurance must be received
and accepted by the District before any Services are performed under this Agreement
commences.  Acceptance of CONTRACTOR’s Certificates of Insurance or any other
evidence of insurance coverage does not constitute any guarantee that CONTRACTOR’s
insurance meets the requirements herein.  It is CONTRACTOR’s responsibility to ensure
its compliance with these insurance requirements.  Any actual or alleged failure on the
part of the District to obtain proof of insurance required under this Agreement shall not in
any way be construed to be a waiver of any right or remedy of the District, in this or any
regard.

F. Notice of Cancellation/Non-Renewal/Material Reduction



8 

CONTRACTOR agrees to provide written notice to the District thirty (30) days prior to 
cancellation of coverage required under this Agreement, or of any material reduction or 
non-renewal of such coverage, other than for non-payment of premium which shall 
require a 10-day prior written notification.  Replacement of coverage with another policy 
or insurer, without any lapse in coverage or any reduction below these requirements does 
not require notice beyond submission to the District of an updated Certificate of 
Insurance.



 
 
 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR DESIGN-BUILD SERVICES 

FIRE STATION PROJECTS 
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

 

1. Attachment 8, which details the insurance requirements indicates the 
requirement of $5,000,000 per Occurrence for Each Pollution Condition under 
the Commercial General Liability section.  Will pollution liability coverage be 
required of the DB-Es under the contract with the VCFPD? 
 
Valley Center Fire Protection District will not require the DB-E to carry pollution 
liability coverage.  Please disregard all references to the requirement for this 
coverage. 
 

2. The RFP indicates that identification of subcontractors in the proposal as well as 
self-performance of work is discouraged by the District.  Please advise if the 
District is willing to change this in the RFP. 
 
VCFPD is discouraging identification of subcontractors and self-performance of 
work because it is the goal of the District to encourage competition of 
subcontractors in the bidding process.  In addition, the District would like to 
participate in the selection of subcontractors, which will be done on the basis of 
best value, as stated in the RFP.  An important goal of the District is to provide 
an opportunity for qualified local subcontractors to participate in the bidding 
process. 
 
There is no change to the District’s stated preference for not identifying 
subcontractor’s or self-performance of work in proposals. 
 

3. The project schedule allows for roughly nine months for Design and 
Construction. Does this include the Temporary Fire Station project and 
renovation of the two other sites all within the nine month period with completion 
by October 27, 2022?  When will the facilities at Harmony Grove be made 
available to move to this site? 

 
Yes, the nine month time-frame stated includes design and construction of the 
Temporary Fire Station and the fire station improvements.  The District 
anticipates receiving feedback on this ambitious schedule in the proposals.  The 
District understands that plan review by the County and SDG&E will probably 
result in the need to extend the schedule. 
 
The facilities at the Harmony Grove are available to be moved to the Temporary 
Fire Station site at any time. 



4. The RFQ asks the DB-E to provide a narrative and spread sheet with a 15 year 
Lifecycle Cost Analysis for the Temporary Fire Station.  Other portions of the 
RFP indicate the modular units for the Temporary Fire Station are existing 
facilities to be relocated from the Harmony Grove Fire Station site to VCFPD’s 
Temporary Fire Station site.  Please provide any available information on the 
modular units for use in preparing the Lifecycle Cost Analysis and advise how 
much the District paid for the modular units and covered apparatus parking 
facility that is currently located on the Harmony Grove Fire Station site. 
 
The VCFPD paid $42,013.90 for the modular units, storage buildings and steel 
shade cover for apparatus parking.  Additional information on the facilities is 
provided in the bulleted items following for use in the lifecycle analysis. 
 

 The modular units are each 864 square feet and 15 feet tall 
 

 The modular units were first put in use on the Harmony Grove site in 2014 
 

 The modular units have central heating and air.  The central heating is 
propane powered. 

 

 The stove is propane powered and the oven is electric 
 

 The modular unit purchase included two washers, two dryers and two 
refrigerators, all are household models and electric  

 

 The hot water heater is propane powered and has a 55 gallon capacity 
 

 The modular units are insulated with R-11 insulation 
 

 The project will include a motorized access gate 
 



 
 
 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR DESIGN-BUILD SERVICES 

FIRE STATION PROJECTS 
ADDENDUM NO. 2 

 

The deadline for submitting proposals has been extended from January 10, 2022, by 
2:00 pm to January 18, 2022, by 5:00 pm. 

 



                                               EXHIBIT D

# Subtotals Totals

1 Preconstruction Services

2 Design Team (Architect and Subconsultants)

3 Temporary Fire Station #3 - Cole Grade Rd.

4 Schematic Design $73,166

5 Design Development $80,667

6 Construction Documents $80,667

7      Subtotal $234,500

8 Fire Station #1 Remodel - Lilac Rd.

9 App Bay Doors (front only) and Auto Opener for Rear - BASE BID $43,000

10 Air Compressor and Enclosure - ALTERNATE $10,000

11 HVAC Replacement (both sides) - ALTERNATE $10,000

12 Dormitory and Day Room Remodel - ALTERNATE $12,000

13 Kitchen and Restroom Remodel - ALTERNATE $15,000

14      Subtotal $90,000

15 Fire Station #2 Remodel - N. Lake Wohlford Rd.

16 App Bay Doors (front and rear) - BASE BID $27,000

17 HVAC Replacement (both sides) - ALTERNATE $12,000

18 Dormitory Remodel - ALTERNATE $12,000

19 Kitchen Remodel for Refrigerator Relocation - ALTERNATE $10,000

20 Screened Porch at Rear Patio Area - ALTERNATE $7,500

21 Concrete Replacement at Rear of Station - ALTERNATE $3,000

22      Subtotal $71,500

23

Note: Do not include design team construction administration services in the

preconstruction services budget TBD
24

25 Design Builder (DB)

26 DB Cost for Preconstruction Services (provide breakdown on separate sheet) $47,000

27 Proposed DB Design Contingency $25,000

28 Proposed DB Fee for All Pre-Construction Services $30,000

29      Subtotal $102,000
30

31 Subtotal Preconstruction Services Budget $498,000

32 1% Liability Insurance on Preconstruction Services $4,980
33 Total Preconstruction Services Budget $502,980

34

35 Construction Services

36

General Conditions/General Requirements (provide monthly breakdown on

separate sheet, identify staffing levels and hours). To be confirmed at creation of $144,105

37 Proposed DB Contingency (percentage) 10%

38 Proposed DB Fee for Construction (percentage) 6.00%
39

40 Bonds and Insurance

41 COC (All-Risk) Coverage to be quoted at creation of GMP TBD

42 Liability Insurance (1.0%) 1.0%

ATTACHMENT 07 Rvsd. 3/10/2022

Preliminary Cost Worksheet



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

3/28/2022

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.
701 B Street, 6th floor
San Diego CA 92101

Susan Koelle
619-541-4851

Susan.Koelle@alliant.com

License#: 0C36861 National Union Fire Insurance 19445
ERICCON-01 Allied World Assurance Company 19489

Erickson-Hall Construction Company
500 Corporate Drive
Escondido CA 92029-1353

Lloyd's of London 10200

770460141

A X 1,000,000
X 500,000

25,000

1,000,000

2,000,000
X

Y Y 5856940 9/1/2021 9/1/2022

2,000,000

A 1,000,000

X
X X
X X

Y Y 5717908 9/1/2021 9/1/2022

B X X 10,000,0000311-4829 9/1/2021 9/1/2022

10,000,000
X 10,000 PRODUCTS COMP. OP AGG 10,000,000

A XY 014195849 9/1/2021 9/1/2022

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000
C Contractor's

Professional & Pollution
Liability

CPP1011121 9/1/2021 9/1/2022 Each Incident
Aggregate
SIR

$2,000,000
$4,000,000
$25,000

Re: #4211, Valley Center Temporary Fire Station #3 and Fire Station #1 and 2 Renovations, Temporary Fire Station #3, APN 133-220-38, located in the
community of Valley Center, northwest of the intersection of Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane. Fire Station #1, 28234 Lilac Road, Valley Center, CA
92082; Fire Station #2, 28205 N. Wohlford Lake Road, Valley Center, CA 92082.
Valley Center Fire Protection District and its directors, officers, officials, agents, volunteers, and employees are included as Additional Insureds on primary and
non-contributory basis, waiver of subrogation applies. Umbrella/Excess Liability follow form applies.

Valley Center Fire Protection District
28234 Lilac Road
Valley Center CA 92082

ACORD® I ~ 

I 

~ 

□ □ 
~ 

~ 

Fl □ □ 
~ 

~ ~ 

~ ~ 

~ ~ 

~ H 
I I 

I I I 

□ 

I 



POLICY NUMBER: 5856940 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 20 10 1219 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR 
CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR 

ORGANIZATION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) 
Or Organization(s) Location(s) Of Covered Operations 

~ny person or organization whom you become Per the contract or agreement. 
obligated to include as an additional insured as a 
result of any contract or agreement you have 
entered into. 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

A. Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to 
include as an additional insured the person(s) or 
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only 
with respect to liability for "bodily injury", 
"property damage" or "personal and advertising 
injury" caused, in whole or in part, by: 

1. Your acts or omissions; or 

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on 
your behalf; 

in the performance of your ongoing operations 
for the additional insured(s) at the location(s) 
designated above. 

However: 

1. The insurance afforded to such additional 
insured only applies to the extent permitted by 
law; and 

2. If coverage provided to the additional 
insured is required by a contract or 
agreement, the insurance afforded to such 
additional insured will not be broader than 
that which you are required by the contract 
or agreement to provide for such additional 
insured. 

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following additional 
exclusions apply: 

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" occurring after: 

1. All work, including materials, parts or 
equipment furnished in connection with such 
work, on the project (other than service, 
maintenance or repairs) to be performed by 
or on behalf of the additional insured(s) at 
the location of the covered operations has 
been completed; or 

2. That portion of "your work" out of which 
the injury or damage arises has been put to 
its intended use by any person or 
organization other than another contractor or 
subcontractor engaged in performing 
operations for a principal as a part of the 
same project. 

CG 20 10 1219 e Insurance Services Office, lnc.,2018 Pagel of2 



C. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following is added to Section 
Ill - Limits Of Insurance: 
If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the most we 
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the 
amount of insurance: 

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or 

2. Available under the applicable limits of 
insurance; 

whichever is less. 

This endorsement shall not increase the 
applicable limits of insurance. 

Page 2 of2 e Insurance Services Office, lnc.,2018 CG 20 10 1219 



POLICY NUMBER: 5856940 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 20 37 1219 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR 
CONTRACTORS- COMPLETED OPERATIONS 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) 
Location And Description Of Completed Operations Or Organization(s) 

Any person or organization whom you become Per the contract or agreement. 

obligated to include as an additional insured as a 
result of any contract or agreement you have 
entered into. 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

A. Section II -Who Is An Insured is amended to 
include as an additional insured the person(s) or 
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only 
with respect to liability for "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" caused, in whole or in part, 
by "your work" at the location designated and 
described in the Schedule of this endorsement 
performed for that additional insured and 
included in the "products-completed operations 
hazard". 

However: 

1. The insurance afforded to such additional 
insured only applies to the extent permitted by 
law; and 

2. If coverage provided to the additional 
insured is required by a contract or 
agreement, the insurance afforded to such 
additional insured will not be broader than 
that which you are required by the contract 
or agreement to provide for such additional 
insured. 

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following is added to Section 
Ill - Limits Of Insurance: 

If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the most we 
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the 
amount of insurance: 

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or 

2. Available under the applicable limits of 
insurance; 

whichever is less. 

This endorsement shall not increase the 
applicable limits of insurance. 

CG 20 3712 19 e Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Pagel of l 



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement, effective 12:01 A.M. 09/01/2021 forms a part of 

Policy No. 5856940 issued to ERICKSON-HALL CONSTRUCTION INC. 

By NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF PITTSBURGH, PA 

AMENDMENT OF LIMITS OF INSURANCE 
{Per Project or Per Location Aggregate Limit} 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

I. Your policy is amended to include either a Per Project General Aggregate Limit, a Per Location 
General Aggregate Limit or a Per Project and Per Location General Aggregate Limit. Please select only 
one of the following: 

[ X] Per Project General Aggregate Limit $2,000.000 
[ ] Per Location General Aggregate Limit $ ____ _ 

[ ] Per Project and Per Location General Aggregate Limit $ ____ _ 

IF NEITHER OF THESE BOXES ARE CHECKED, THIS ENDORSEMENT IS VOID. IF MORE THAN 
ONE OF THE THESE BOXES ARE CHECKED, THIS ENDORSEMENT IS VOID. 

II. SECTION Ill - LIMITS OF INSURANCE, is amended to include the following: 

1. The Limits of Insurance and the rules below fix the most we will pay regardless of the number 
of: 

a. Insureds; 

b. Claims made or "suits" brought; or 

c. Persons or organizations making claims or bringing "suits". 

2. The General Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for the sum of : 

a. Medical expenses under Coverage C; 

b. Damages under Coverage A, except damages because of "bodily injury" or "property 
damage" included in the products-completed operations hazard"; and 

c. Damages under Coverage B. 

3. The Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay under Coverage 
A for damages because of "bodily injury" and "property damage" included in the "products
completed operations hazard". 

4. Subject to 2. above, the Personal and Advertising Injury Limit is the most we will pay under 

86681 (9/04) 



Coverage B for the sum of all damages because of all "personal and advertising injury" 
sustained by any one person or organization. 

5. Subject to 2. or 3. above, whichever applies, the Each Occurrence Limit is the most we will 
pay for the sum of: 

a. Damages under Coverage A; and 

b. Medical expenses under Coverage C 

because of all "bodily injury" and "property damage" arising out of any one "occurrence". 

6. Subject to 5. above, the Damage to Premises Rented To You Limit is the most we will pay 
under Coverage A because of "property damage" to any one premises, while rented to you, 
or in the case of damage by fire, while rented to you or temporarily occupied by you with 
permission of the owner. 

7. Subject to 5. above, the Medical Expense Limit is the most we will pay under Coverage C for 
all medical expenses because of "bodily injury'' sustained by any one person. 

8. Subject to 2., 4., 5., 6., and/or 7. above, the Per Project Aggregate Limit is the most we will 
pay under Coverages A, B, and C combined for the sum of: 

a. Damages under Coverage A; 

b. Damages under Coverage B; and 

c. Medical Expenses under Coverage C 

arising out of any single Project described above. 

9. Subject to 2., 4., 5., 6., and/or 7. above, the Per Location Aggregate Limit is the most we will 
pay under Coverages A, B, and C combined for the sum of: 

a. Damages under Coverage A; 

b. Damages under Coverage B; and 

c. Medical expenses under Coverage C 

arising out of the any single Location described above. 

The Limits of Insurance of this Coverage Part apply separately to each consecutive annual period 
and to any remaining period of less than 12 months, starting with the beginning of the policy 
period shown in the Declarations. 

Ill. The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations are deleted in their entirety and replaced by 
the Limits of Insurance set forth below. 

General Aggregate Limit 
Each Occurrence Limit 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit 
Personal & Advertising Injury Limit 
Damage to Premises Rented to You 
Medical Expense Limit 
Per Project General Aggregate Limit, Per Location 

General Aggregate Limit or Per 
Project and Per Location General Aggregate Limit 

86681 (9/04) 

Limits of Insurance 
$ 15,000,000 
$ 1,000,000 
$ 2,000,000 
$ 1,000,000 
$ 500,000 
$ 25 000 
$ 2,000,000 



IV. SECTION V - DEFINITIONS, is amended to include the following : 

23. "Location" means premises involving the same or connecting lots, or premises whose connection 
is interrupted only by a street, roadway, waterway, or right-of-way railroad . 

All other terms and conditions of this policy remain the same. 

86681 (9/04) 



POLICY NUMBER: 5856940 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 20 01 12 19 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY -
OTHER INSURANCE CONDITION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

The following is added to the Other Insurance 
Condition and supersedes any provision to the 
contrary: 

Primary And Noncontributory Insurance 
This insurance is primary to and will not seek 
contribution from any other insurance available to 
an additional insured under your policy provided 
that: 

(1) The additional insured is a Named Insured 
under such other insurance; and 

(2) You have agreed in writing in a contract or 
agreement that this insurance would be 
primary and would not seek contribution from 
any other insurance available to the additional 
insured. 

CG 20 01 12 19 0 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Pagel of l 



POLICY NUMBER: 5856940 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 24 04 1219 

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY 
AGAINST OTHERS TO US (WAIVER OF SUBROGATION) 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
ELECTRONIC DATA LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DESIGNATED SITES 
POLLUTION LIABILITY LIMITED COVERAGE PART DESIGNATED SITES 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY DESIGNATED TANKS 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Person(s) Or Organization(s): 

Pursuant to applicable written contract or agreement you enter into. 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

The following is added to Paragraph 8. Transfer Of 
Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us of 
Section IV - Conditions: 

We waive any right of recovery against the 
person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Schedule 
above because of payments we make under this 
Coverage Part. Such waiver by us applies only to 
the extent that the insured has waived its right of 
recovery against such person(s) or organization(s) 
prior to loss. This endorsement applies only to the 
person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Schedule 
above. 

CG 24 04 12 19 0 Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Pagel of l 



ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement, effective 12:01 A.M. 09/01/2021 forms a part of 

Policy No. 5717908 issued to ERICKSON-HALL CONSTRUCTION INC. 

By NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF PITTSBURGH, PA 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED - WHERE REQUIRED UNDER CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 

SCHEDULE 

ADDITIONAL INSURED: 

ANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION FOR WHOM YOU ARE CONTRACTUALLY BOUND TO PROVIDE 
ADDITIONAL INSURED STATUS BUT ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF SUCH PERSON OR ORGANIZATIONS 
LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF A COVERED "AUTO". 

I. SECTION II - COVERED AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE, A. Coverage, 1. - Who Is Insured, is amended to 
add: 

d. Any person or organization, shown in the schedule above, to whom you become obligated to include as 
an additional insured under this policy, as a result of any contract or agreement you enter into which 
requires you to furnish insurance to that person or organization of the type provided by this policy, but 
only with respect to liability arising out of use of a covered "auto" . However, the insurance provided will 
not exceed the lesser of: 

(1) The coverage and/or limits of this policy, or 

(2) The coverage and/or limits required by said contract or agreement. 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

87950 {9/14) Page 1 of 1 



ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement, effective 12:01 A.M. 09/01/2021 forms a part of 

Policy No. 5717908 issued to ERICKSON-HALL CONSTRUCTION INC. 

By NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF PITTSBURGH, PA 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

INSURANCE PRIMARY AS TO CERTAIN ADDITIONAL INSUREDS 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 

Section IV - Business Auto Conditions, B., General Conditions, 5., Other Insurance, c., is 
amended by the addition of the following sentence: 

The insurance afforded under this policy to an additional insured will apply as primary insurance for such additional 
insured where so required under an agreement executed prior to the date of accident. We will not ask any insurer that 
has issued other insurance to such additional insured to contribute to the settlement of loss arising out of such 
accident. 

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. 

74445 (10/99) 



ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement, effective 12:01 A.M. 09/01/2021 forms a part of 

Policy No. 5717908 issued to ERICKSON-HALL CONSTRUCTION INC. 

By NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF PITTSBURGH, PA 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 

Section IV - Business Auto Conditions, A. - Loss Conditions, 5. - Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others 
to Us, is amended to add: 

However, we will waive any right of recover we have against any person or organization with whom you have entered into 
a contract or agreement because of payments we make under this Coverage Form arising out of an "accident" or "loss" if: 

(1) The "accident" or "loss" is due to operations undertaken in accordance with the contract existing between you and 
such person or organization; and 

(2) The contract or agreement was entered into prior to any "accident" or "loss". 

No waiver of the right of recovery will directly or indirectly apply to your employees or employees of the person or 
organization, and we reserve our rights or lien to be reimbursed from any recovery funds obtained by any injured 
employee. 

62897 (6/95) 

711~ 
AUTHORIZED 

REPRESENTATIVE 



WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement changes the policy to which it is attached effective on inception date of the policy unless a different 
date is indicated below. 

(The following " attaching clause" need be completed only when this endorsement is issued subsequent to preparation of the policy). 

This endorsement, effective 12:01 AM 09/01/2021 forms a part of 

Policy No. 014195849 Issued to ERICKSON-HALL CONSTRUCTION INC. 

By NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY OF PITTSBURGH, PA 

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not enforce our 
right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. This agreement applies only to the extent that you perform 
work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us. 

This agreement shall not operate directly or indirectly to benefit any one not named in the Schedule. 

Schedule 

ANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION TO WHOM YOU BECOME OBLIGATED TO WAIVE YOUR RIGHTS OF 
RECOVERY AGAINST, UNDER ANY CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT YOU ENTER INTO PRIOR TO THE 
OCCURRENCE OF LOSS. 

This form is not applicable in California, Kentucky, New Hampshire, New Jersey, North Dakota, Ohio, Tennessee, 
Texas, Utah, or Washington. This form is not applicable in Missouri when there is a construction code on the policy and 
there is Missouri premium or exposure. 

WC 00 0313 
(Ed. 04/84) 

~~· I ,--------
Countersigned by __________ ~~-fil_. __ • __ _ 

Authorized Representative 



NEW BUSINESS 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' PACKET 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 



RESOLUTION· 2022-20 

CFO 2008-1 PUBLIC HEARING 

EAGLES NOEL 

APNS: 133-324-38,44,47,48,49-00 



VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
Administrative Office & Fire Prevention Bureau 

28234 Lilac Road 
Valley Center, CA 92082 

Tel: 760-751-7600 Fax: 760-749-3892 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-20 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION.DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the annexation of described territory to the-Community Facilities District 
2008-01 (the"CFD") was submitted to a vote by the lfo.lhd,t'IWR@t'Qf the real property 
located within the jurisdictional boundaries of the Gfl),on Mar a~. 2022; and 

' 
WHEREAS, seventeen (17) votes (1 vote par' a9re) was cast by a pr~pe~ mail ballot 
in favor of the levy of special taxes within t~e efescribed te~tory of the ·cf£>,; and 

WHEREAS, a sufficient-number of votes were ~sHh favor of levying special taxes 
within the CFD; -

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESO~ ED~ 
The results of the election as sufficient~ levy,sp~raHaxes,)Nithin the CFD are 
hereby certified. · · 

PASSED, APPRPVJ:b, AND A0PPTED~~)he Board of Directors of the Valley 
Center Fire Protectiph,.Distri~'a~aschedul d\ ,Regular Board Meeting thereof, this 
21 st day ofApril, 202g b.y_ a"utJ8frimQJJ,~fffitey , 

SecretarY, 
Board of DitZ,ectors 

Fire Station #72 Fire Station #73 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 

mailto:lfo.lhd,t'IWR@t'Qf


RESOLUTION 2022-21 

CFD 2008-1 PUBLIC HEARING 

INFILL 

APNS: 186-791-37-00 



VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
Administrative Office & Fire Prevention Bureau 

28234 Lilac Road 
Valley Center, CA 92082 

Tel: 760-751-7600 Fax: 760-749-3892 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-21 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION.DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the annexation of described territory to the,Community Facilities District 
2008-01 (the"CFD") was submitted to a vote by the l,afl~~r"Qf the real property 
located within the jurisdictional boundaries of the GfD·on MarCQ )3, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, five (5) votes (1 vote per acre) w'as,,.cast by a proper m~ 'ballot in favor 
of the levy of special taxes within the desoefbe~:f territory oUhe CFO; an<f 

WHEREAS, a sufficient-number of votes were e~stih favor of levying special taxes 
within the CFO; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESO~Vl;OlR~J:' _ 
The results of the electioruts sufficie~ ~ levy,sp~fal-taxe-svwithin the CFO are 
hereby certified. 

PASSED, APP dVEb, AND ADPPTED~y,the Board of Directors of the Valley 
Center Fire Protettlohpistrick ailaschedul~d\~egular Board Meeting thereof, this 
21 st day of April'. 2022JJ)',piiq~frimQLLS vote . . :-· .·· 

...
Secretary 
Board of D~ctors 

Fire Station #72 Fire Station #73 
28234 Lilac Road 28205 N. Lake Wohlford Road 

Valley Center, CA 92082 Valley Center, CA 92082 



FIRE AGENCIES SELF INSURANCE SYSTEM 
1750 Creekside Oaks Drive, Suite 200 

Sacramento, CA 95833 
800 541-4591 Fax 916-244-1199 

April 4, 2022 

OFFICIAL ELECTION BALLOT FOR THE ELECTION OF THREE 
EXPIRING POSITIONS ON THE FASIS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Dear F ASIS Members: 

An election is to be held to fill three positions on the FASIS Board of Directors that will expire 
on June 30, 2022. Each position's new term will span from Ju]y 1, 2022, through June 30, 2025. 

Included with this transmittal message is an official election ballot for the three expiring 
positions. As there are several candidates running for the expiring positions, the three candidates 
that receive the most votes will fill these positions. 

Please take this opportunity to complete and sign a physical copy of the enclosed ballot and 
return it to FASIS no later than May 61 2022: 

FASIS, c/o Sedgwick 
1750 Creekside Oaks Drive, Suite 200 

Sacramento, California 95833 

Please contact Deni Banyard, at (916) 244-1178, or deni.banyard@sedgwick.com, if you have 
any questions or would like to send your completed ballots electronically. You may also send via 
fax to (916) 244-1199. 

* * Ballots received after the May 6, 2022, deadline will not be counted. * * 

Serving California Fire Districts Since 1984 

mailto:deni.banyard@sedgwick.com


-------------- ------------ --

FIRE AGENCIES SELF INSURANCE SYSTEM 
1750 Creekside Oaks Drive, Suite 200 

Sacramento, CA 95833 
800-541-4591 Fax 916-244-1199 

F ASIS Board of Directors - Official Election Ballot 

In response to a Call for Letters of Interest and Nomination Form, the FASIS Nominating Committee 
has received the following submissions for TI-IREE (3) Board of Directors positions that will expire on 
June 30, 2022. The Nominating Committee is recommending the following candidates for consideration 
by the full membership. A brief summary of each candidate's related experience is included with this 
ballot. 

OFFICIAL BALLOT - FASIS 2022 BOARD OF DIRECTORS ELECTION 

Please clearly mark an X in onl11 1HREE (3) of the following boxes, or mark the "none of the above" 
box. 

~ did~ or'three -'(3) expiring positions 011~the".·f~jS~B !i>f .Directors 
~--~-:._- Ter~n of July l, 202~,J!uou_gh)une:3O; ?025- -~-- . _ - -

VOTE 
(X)

•· •1 

''Vacaville Fire Protection District - Mr. Howard Wood, Fire Chief 

*Sonoma Valley Fire District - Mr. Stephen Akre, Fire Chief 

American Canyon Fire Protection District - Mr. Michael Cahill, Fire Chief 

Penryn Fire Protection District - Ms. Susan Mahoney, Board Secretary 

*Incumbent Board Member 

OR 

None of the potential candidates listed above. 

Signature of person completing on behalf of your District: ________________ 

Print Name: Position Title: 

District Address: _______________________________ 

Date completed:_____________E-mail:________________ 

Please return the completed, signed ballot via one of the following before May 6, 2022: 

Mail: FASIS, c/o Sedgwick, 1750 Creekside Oaks Drive, Suite #200, Sacramento, CA 95833 
Fax: (916) 244-1199 
Email: deni.banyard@sedgwick.com 

Serving California Fire Districts Since 1984 

mailto:deni.banyard@sedgwick.com


Your vote is very important. Please vote and return your official ballot by May 6, 2022. 

CANDIDATES FOR THE FASIS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
TO FILL THREE (3) EXPIRING POSITIONS 

FOR A TERM OF JULY 1, 2022, THROUGH JUNE 30, 2025 

CANDIDATES' SUMMARY OF EXPERIENCE 

-· ...District Candidates' Name -·- --Summary of Experience ' 

*Vacaville Fire 
Protection 
District 

Mr. Howard Wood, 
Fire Chief 

Chief Wood has participated on the Board since it was formed. He has been 
involved and makes almosJ all meetings. Currently, he holds the position of 
President on the Board. 

*Sonoma Valley Mr. Stephen Akre, I am very interested in being re-elected as a member of the F ASIS Board and 
Fire District 

American 

Fire Chief 

Mr. Michael Cahill, 

continuing to serve our Fire Districts as your Vice-President. I hope to continue 
to be a part of the collaborative work of FASIS to ensure the best worker's 
compensation program for both Fire Districts and our employees in the most 
cost-effective maimer possible. In my time on the Board, we have made 
significant progress by re-investing reserves into a more cost effective second 
tier of coverage and have expanded our opportunities for annual physicals. We 
are also taking important steps to address the current issue of behavioral health 
in the fire service. We are exploring consolidation with the FDAC EBA in order 
to provide better services to our member Districts. In my position as Fire Chief 
of Sonoma Valley Fire District, I continue to be actively involved in all aspects 
of improving Fire and Emergency services on both a local and regional level. I 
am currently serving as the President of the Sonoma County Fire Districts 
Association and the REDCOM Board (Fire and EMS Dispatch JPA) as well as a 
Board member of the FDAC EBA JPA. I feel that these experiences and 
connections allow me the opportunity to serve and represent the interests and 
concerns of not only the SVFD, but of other Districts in Sonoma County and 
throughout the State. The SVFD, (formerly Valley of the Moon Fire District) has 
been a long-standing member and representative on the FASIS Board and I 
humbly ask for your consideration in allowing me to continue to serve on the 
FASIS Board. 
Fire Chief/CEO of the American Canyon Fire Protection District. I have held 

Canyon Fire Fire Chief numerous Board and related type positions over the course of my 40+ years in 
Protection the Fire Service. I am a strong advocate for local government agencies joining 
District 

Penrvn Fire Ms. Susan Mahoney, 

forces to better serve themselves in markets like pooled insurance and joint 
purchasing. F ASIS has had a long history of supporting California Fire Districts 
in providing better access to Worker's Comp coverage and controlling costs. I 
believe that this type of organization requires active and engaged industry 
leadership to continue the valued work that has been done in the past. I would 
be willing to serve on the Board and would appreciate the opportunity to be 
considered as a candidate for one of the three upcoming openings on the FASIS 
Board of Directors. 
Director Mahoney has a wealth of experience in the public sector having been 

2 



Protection Board Secretary the Management Services Director of the City of Indio and she recently retired 
District from her position as the Finance Director for the City of Wheatland. She is on 

the contract and finance oversight committee for the Penryn Fire Protection 
District. She is also part of the Committee for future inter-district cooperation 

* Incumbent Member to the FASIS Board of Directors 

3 



' -. - ···--- ·- -· --.--
___.-.: '·1 

30100 . Mitigation Fees Capital Expenditures $224,735.00 

30120. Mitigation Interest $5,000.00 

30130 . CFD2008-1 Interest $1,250.00 

$445,645.11 

---...,·_1 _ Expected Increase over 
FY2021 budget or 
projected actuals. 

-·, : • ' ' I . ' I 3.00% 

$1,562.14 124.97% 3.00% 

FY 2022-2023 Draft 
Budget 

$2,139.98 

Percentage Change 

77.99% 

3.00% 

71 .20% 

' - - - - -------=--- =-

40000 . Benefit Fees/Standby (515001) 

40100.Taxes,Property(315000) 

40200. CFD-2000-1 (315002) 

40300. CFD-2008-01 (315003) 

40400 . General Fund Interest 

40500 . Mercy Transport Fees 

40600 . First Responder Fees 

40700 • Community Development Fees 

40800 . Fire Prevention Inspection Fees 

40900 . CFM Reimbursement 

40901 . CFM Payroll & Admin Reimbursement 

40902 . CFM Equipment Reimbursement 

41000 . Fixed Asset Disposal 

42000 . Incident Cost Recovery-F' 

43000. Training Reimb-Target & 

49000 - NCO JPA Capital 

44000 . Fire Foundation Fund 

45000 . Fire Explorer Post Donations 

46000 . Applied UASI Grant Income 

47000 . Applied SHSGP Grant Income 

48000 . Applied Grant Income-Other 

49000 . SAFER Grant 

County fire foundation grants 

Budget Totals 

Total Operating Revenue 

Total Revenue 

Total Personnel, Maintenance and Operating Expenses 

Capital Outlay • Expenses 
Total Expenses 

Operational Budget Surplus 

$1,680,943.51 

$580,801.24 

$300,304.69 

$151,289.05 

$24,516.20 

$42,000.00 

$15,260.00 

$120,000.00 

$7,000.00 

$0.00 

$145,000.00 

$10,000.00 

$396,500.00 

$500.00 

$13,500.00 

$14,150.00 

$336,288.00 

$3,902,441 .89 
$4,133,428.U 

$3,054,026.97 

$978,023.00 

$4,032,049.97 

$101,376.72 

$959,488.11 

$383,184.49 

$176,027.33 

$112,446.04 

$3,330.10 

$32,250.00 

$15,998.66 

$176,360.91 

$29,268.35 

$0.00 

$24,921.45 

$141,927.32 

·, '. , . .,. 

$1 3,640.00 

$10,059.37 

$970.68 

$13,738.00 

$1,130,115.87 

$3,268,968.89 
$3,717,038.17 

$2,316,755.28 

$588,922.88 

$2,903,878.14 

$813,358.03 

57.08% 3.00% $1,731,371.82 3.00% 

65.98% 1.25% $588,061.26 1.25% 

58.62% 3.00% $309,313.83 3.00% 

74.33% 4.00% $157,340.61 4.00% 

13.58% 3.00% $25,251.69 3.00% 

76.79% 3.00% $44,179.28 5.19% 

104.84% 3.00% $21,916.56 43.62% 

146.97% $50,000.00 -58.33% 

418.12% $8,000.00 14.29% 

NIA 3.00% $0.00 NIA 
17.19% 3.00% $149,350.00 3.00% 

1419.27% 3.00% 1844.26% 

3.00% 

3.00% 

27.21% 

r.. '" m'.• • . I 

- - ---- -- . ·-:~ rm ·· 
3.00 ¼ $408,395.00 3.00% 

2011.87% 3.00% $13,780.33 t • ' I I 

7.19% 3.00% $13,905.00 

97.09% 3.00% $18,819.69 33.00% 

336.06% $100,000.00 -70.26% 

$2,544,286.50 

83.72% $6,451,462.26 85.32% 

89.93% $8,858,752.24 85.13% 

75.86% $4,077,048.59 33.50% 

80.01% $2,321,131.61 137.38% 

72.01% $8,398,678.20 58.70% 

802.31% $460,074.04 353.83% 

Expected to award in June of 2022. Target for hires to be january 
2023. This grant covers three full years, 3 captains, 3 eng, 3 FFs 
at station 3 

Placeholder 



--- - -

',' .. ... ,• '••. ~ 0:. _.~ 

50000 . Explorer Post 

50100. EMT & Paramedic License Renewal 

50200 . Tuition and Reference Materials expenses 

5050 . ai 

50600 . Training Expenses - Grant Funded 
. . . ,~ -~- . . .· 

· 

• • I !
• ...,_,. . - .. 

51000 . Administrative Support Expenses 

51001 . Contingencies & Misc. 

51002. Recruitment and on boarding expenses 

51006. Election/Annexation Service 

· -·,·:- =.: .. •. ·... .. ✓- ._·._j _. __·: - -- ==--= -

51101 . Professional and contract services 

51105. Insurance 

51107. Trauma Intervention Program 

51109. Burn Inst/Youth Fire Prevent 

51110- MDC Equip Replacement-HP Lease 

51200 . CCRD Operational Expenses 

. , __ ..:, . 

51301 . #1 Facility MainURepairslreplacement 

51302. #1 Utilities 

51303. #1 Consumables 

51310. #2 Facility MainURepalrs 

51312. #2 Utilities 

51313. #2 Consumables 

41.13% 

72.48% 

64.03% 

Expected Increase over 
FY2021 budget or 
projected actuals. 

3.00% 

3.00% 
; II • . 

3.00% 

3.00% 

FY 2022-2023 Draft 
Budget 

$4,902.91 

$4,635.00 

$10,660.50 

$20,909.00 

$4,944.00 

Percentage Change 

880.58% 

3.00% 

3.00% 

3.00% 

3.00% 
- - - - - - - - - -

.. __ ---- -~ ---

82.67% 3.50% $143,115.28 13.80% 

33.73% 30.00% $13,000.00 30.00% 

47.83% 3.00% $12,154.00 3.00% 

32.94% 0 $10,000.00 0.00% 

~. =-- - _-=-' =- ~- ---=-----------= -- _-_ - - - ==-- _-- --~= 
137.01% 

119.64% 

100.00% 

0.00% 

110.67% 

73.20% 

37.98% 

65.70% 

NIA 

N/A 

3.00% $94,538.17 

20.00% $35,890.80 

3.00% $3,205.57 

3.00% $661.26 

.00% . 0.00 

-
3.00% $34,795.32 

00 , 17.45 

$18,850.00 

3.00% $19,482.45 

3.00% $0.00 

3.00% $0.00 

87.69% 

43.56% 

36.99% 

3.00% 

3.00% 

3.00% 

51 .61% 

3.00% 

28.67% 

3.00% 

NIA 

NIA 

Includes palomar tuition and reference books 

was just uasi. Need sub categories for all grants and years of uasi 

Includes: Service awards, bank fees, IT equipment, Office supplies, 
Broadband/telephone, copier lease, printing costs, crew scheduling 
software, dues and subscriptions, Target (vector) solutions, first arriving 
($1000/year) 

Any additional contingency costs for all areas, includes fire line meals 

Advertising, FF Recruit & Physicals (excluding uniforms) 

Election services for new Directors on our fire board. Election fees 

Lexipol, Acctg Audit, Legal, HR, RGM, palomar heatth for resp supervisory 
program 

FAIRA Gen Liability, fasis 

Public education,' Safety products, hydrant maintenance, CERT, outreach 
programs, and POST recertification costs 

Includes modular buildings at st 1, this includes appliance 
repair/replacement, building repairs, septic, garage doors, etc. 
Anything nailed down, or is a 'durable' good. Replace 2 public 
chairs and 3 rolling chairs in st 1 

Electric, gas, water, but not phone/or internet 

TP, supplies other than station repairs 

Lazy-Boys: Buy 3 now, buy 2 next year - Office chairs $850 

-------~---= -

$500.00 

, I I II 

$4,800.00 

-

$125,760.00 

$10,000.00 

$11,800.00 

$10,000.00 $3,293.63 -- - (:-=--_----= - -
$50,370.00 

$25,000.00 

$2,340.00 

$642.00 
·, , .I I I 11 
.h 

.:-_----=--

$103,966.64 

$3,372.85 

$5,643.91 

$69,011 .00 

$29,909.00 

$2,340.00 

$0.00 

$3,579.03 

$3,237.50 

$4,256.50 

1 • 

$3,073.29 

51320 . #3 Facility MainURepairs 

51322 . #3 Utilities 

51323. #3 Consumables 

$22,950.00 

$23,415.00 

$14,650.00 

$18,915.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$25,399.90 

$17,140.09 

$5,564,78 

$12,427.93 

$0.00 

$0.00 

https://12,427.93
https://17,140.09
https://25,399.90
https://18,915.00
https://14,650.00
https://23,415.00
https://22,950.00
https://3,073.29
https://4,256.50
https://3,237.50
https://3,579.03
https://2,340.00
https://29,909.00
https://5,643.91
https://3,372.85
https://103,966.64
https://2,340.00
https://25,000.00
https://50,370.00
https://3,293.63
https://10,000.00
https://11,800.00
https://10,000.00
https://125,760.00
https://4,800.00


51400 . Operations expenses $98,800.00 $101,987.93 103.23% 

51402 . Fuel $50,000.00 $30,350.08 60.70% 

Expected Increase over 
FY2021 budget or 
projected actuals. 

7.00% 

0.00% 

FY 2022-2023 Draft 
Budget 

$145,139.02 

$60,000.00 

Percentage Change 

46.90% Includes apparatus repairs, maintenance and all tools and supplies in 
station and on apparatus except what falls under the programs, does not 
include PPE or uniforms. tires, brakes, etc. Add $4k for 4ijas monitors 
(critical) 5 ipads $3040 (Critical) 2 recip saws ($1000) 

20.00% Includes DEF, and small engine fuels and additives 

~ - - _. •• ~- • .-~ -· • 1•· - - - -_ - - • J . =--- - - -_ ---=- - - - : -~ - -_ - - - - - -- - _- - -_-
51511 Hose/Nozzles/fittings/ladders 

51512 Tools/minor equip/small engines 

51513 BAs, fit testing, flow testing, compressor maintenance, air sampling $4,000.00 $2,853.40 71.34% 

51514 Rescue systems/equipment 

51514.1 Rescue Equipment Grant rNas 51503 equipment grant) $10,500.00 $0.00 0.00% 

51515 PPE/Uniforms 

$14,150.00 $2,146.75 15.17% 

61000. Operational Payroll $1,539,428.00 $976,206.27 63.41% 

65000 . CFAA Wages, Overtime / Expenditures $120,000.00 $12,186.29 10.16% 

65001 - SAFER grant payroll 

65001 . Planned Overtime $0.00 $0.00 NIA 

$9,010.00 

$26,866.00 

$7,760.00 

3.00% $10,815.00 

$46,182.00 

3.00% $14,574.50 

$1,698,483.60 

3.00% $123,600.00 

$424,047.75 

3.00% $0.00 

From blue folder 

From blue folder apparatus equipment. This is repair of tools 
such as chainsaws, circ saw, hand tools. Replacement of small 
ticket items like a shovel. Scott and Jim to rename these 

94.00% Was 51500 (add $3640 from blue folder) 

came from anncillary equip. purchase. Ropes, hardware, 
anchors, stokes 

3.00% County fire foundation grant for rescue equipment 

3.00o/c 

10.33% 

3.00% 

PPE/Uniforms from blue folder. $25600 for PPE (critical need) 
and $20582 for uniforms/tee shirts 

Includes: Cardiac Monitor calibration/Repairs, medications, 
durable medical supplies. 

$511,983.40 

NIA 

, ~~-I •• ,- _ .,, ,. • _ ~ ~ _- -- _ - 1- - _ , ' _ _ 1 

66000 -$818.53 

66001 . Taxes, FICA, SUTA, Unemployment $174,204.09 $360,083.73 206.70% $244,256.60 40.21% 

66002 . FASIS Workers Comp Emp Asst $150,712.88 $132,362.44 87.82% $76,974.03 -48.93% 

66003 . Payroll Service $9,800.00 $3,715.40 37.91% 3.00% $10,094.00 3.00% 

66005 $102,882.76 

66006 $7,928.00 

$1,698,483.60 

target for year 1, station 3 starting in FY 23. 100% for all three 
years. This year, just expense 1/2 year of 3 captains, 3 engineers, 
and 3 FFs. $2544286.50 for all three years, this is 1/2 of one 
years worth 

14 hours every other pay period plus 10 shifts of captain 
engineer and FF, and backfill for vacation. This is just a 
projection and not an actual account 

$76,974.03 

https://76,974.03
https://2544286.50
https://1,698,483.60


70000 · Engine 163 & Equipment $125,000.00 

70001 - RCS NextGen Network Infrastructure $11,000.00 

70002 · Type Three Engine 

70003 - SCBA Purchase - Completed 

70004 - Fire Station Development Costs $486,000.00 $384,682.20 

70005 - New Station Consulting $90,000.00 $19,305.00 

70006 - Fire Hose $9,735.00 $9,257.00 

70007 - Fire Station Electrical Resiliancy Program - complete $236,288.00 $153,880.00 

70008 - MDC Replacement program - Complete $20,000.00 $19,798.66 

70009 - VHF Radio replacement 

70010- Cardiac Monitor Replacement $87,899.30 $87,899.30 

70011 - Workout gear 

_ $8,253,375.96 _ $6,819_,,~2_4.37 

} 

0.00% 

0.00% 

79.15% 

21.45% 

95.09% 

65.12% 

98.99% 

100.00% 

Expected Increase over 
FY2021 budget or 
projected actuals. 

3.00% 

3.00% 

0.00% 

FY 2022-2023 Draft 
Budget 

$200,000.00 

$11,330.00 

$424,201 .61 

$1,500,000.00 

$92,700.00 

$12,000.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$81,400.00 

$87,899.30 

$8,750.00 

c a3,354 Q]9,74 

- --.. -

~ 
Percentage Change 

60.00% $200k down payment, rest to be financed. Total $875000 First 
payment in FY 2023 

3.00% Check with Susan and if possible Just pay this off 

$380k from Marie Waldron$, $44201.61 from mitigation Total: 
424201.61 

208.64% Build phase of erikson hall contract (estimate) 

3.00% Biglone construction managing 

Was lockers. $10000 mitigation, $2k our share 

VHF radios from mitigation funds (american radio quote) 

0.00% Cardiac monitor replacement for this year. Mitigation funds 
$81k, district funds $27k. $67200 from COVID funds $175798.60 
total 

Use Waldron $ treadmill for st 2 

TOTAL REVENUES & EXPENSES 

TOTAL REVENUES 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

·. '._, .--~-·-' 

jNot on approved list but were added sometime during the FY 21-22 year 



TREASURER'S REPORT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' PACKET 

VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 



1:12 PM Valley Center Fire Protection District 

04/13/22 Profit & Loss 
Accrual Basis March 2022 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

OPERATING REVENUE 
40000 • Benefit Fees/Standby (315001) 
40100 · Taxes, Property (315000) 
40200 · CFD-2000-1 (315002) 
40300 · CFD-2008-01 (315003) 
40700 · Community Development Fees 
42000 · Incident Cost Recovery-Fire USA 
43000 · Training Reimb-Target & Palomar 

Total OPERATING REVENUE 

Total Income 

Gross Profit 

Expense 
TRAINING 

50000 · Explorer Post 
50200 · Palomar College Tuition 
50500 · Training & Expenses 
50600 · Training Expenses - UASI 

Total TRAINING 

OVERHEAD/ ADMINISTRATIVE SERV 
51001 · Contingencies & Misc. 
51002 · Advertis FF Recruit & Physicals 
51004 · IT Equipment & Software 
51005 · Office & Computer Supplies 

Total OVERHEAD/ ADMINISTRATIVE SERV 

CONTRACT SERVICES 
51100 · Broadband Services & Telephone 
51101 · Professional Services 
51102 · Equipment Rental/Copier Lease 
51103 · Contract Labor 
51104 · Printing,Repro&Digital Map Serv 
51108 · Modular Buildings 
51110 · MDC Equip Replacement-HP Lease 

Total CONTRACT SERVICES 

COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION 
51203 · POST Recertification Materials 

Total COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION 

FIRE FACILITIES 
FIRE STATION #1 

51301 · #1 Facility Maint/Repairs 
51302 • #1 Utilities 

Total FIRE STATION #1 

FIRE STATION #2 
51310 • #2 Facility Maint/Repairs 
51312 · #2 Utilities 

Total FIRE STATION #2 

Total FIRE FACILITIES 

FIRE APPARATUS 
51400 · Ancillary Equip Ann Maintenance 
51401 · Apparatus Shop Tools/Rpr Supp 
51402 · Fuel 

Mar22 

57,466.62 
18,145.53 
11,241.66 
2,533.67 

37,477.27 
348.00 

8,221.50 

135,434.25 

135,434.25 

135,434.25 

437.75 
409.37 

1,498.21 
2,000.00 

4,345.33 

528.56 
2,004.00 

10.80 
454.79 

2,998.15 

5,157.61 
873.96 
584.60 

4,264.46 
845.00 
991.08 
500.89 

13,217.60 

15.00 

15.00 

457.59 
1,016.43 

1,474.02 

246.92 
921.56 

1,168.48 

2,642.50 

11,219.40 
409.83 

2,542.66 

Page 1 

https://2,542.66
https://11,219.40
https://2,642.50
https://1,168.48
https://1,474.02
https://1,016.43
https://13,217.60
https://4,264.46
https://5,157.61
https://2,998.15
https://2,004.00
https://4,345.33
https://2,000.00
https://1,498.21
https://135,434.25
https://135,434.25
https://135,434.25
https://8,221.50
https://37,477.27
https://2,533.67
https://11,241.66
https://18,145.53
https://57,466.62


1:12 PM Valley Center Fire Protection District 

04/13/22 Profit & Loss 
Accrual Basis March 2022 

Total FIRE APPARATUS 

OPERATIONS 
51504 · Station Uniforms 

Total OPERATIONS 

COMMUNICATIONS 
51600 • North County Dispatch 
51601 · RCS Comunication Fees 

Total COMMUNICATIONS 

PARAMEDIC EMERGENCY SUPPLIES 
51700 · Medical Equipment & Supplies 

Total PARAMEDIC EMERGENCY SUPPLIES 

PAYROLL-ADMINISTRATIVE 
60000 · Division Chief-Operations/Train 
60200 · Battalion Chief-Fire Marshal 
60300 · Administrative Captain 
60400 · Administrative Asst-Office Mgr. 
60500 · Bookkeeper 
60600 · Fire Chief 

Total PAYROLL-ADMINISTRATIVE 

PAYROLL - OPERATIONAL PERSONNEL 
61000 · Fire Engineers 
63000 · Firefighter-Paramedics 
64000 · Fire Captains 

Total PAYROLL - OPERATIONAL PERSONNEL 

66000 · PAYROLL EXPENSES 
66008 · Employer Taxes-FICA,SUTA,FUTA 
66002 · FASIS Workers Comp Emp Asst 
66003 · Payroll Service 
66004 · Health Benefit Costs 

Total 66000 · PAYROLL EXPENSES 

Engines & Equipment 
70004 · Fire Station Development Costs 
70005 · New Station Consulting 
70007 · Fire Station Electrical Resilia 

Total Engines & Equipment 

Total Expense 

Net Ordinary Income 

Other Income/Expense 
Other Expense 

80000 · Suspense 

Total Other Expense 

Net Other Income 

Net Income 

Mar22 

14,171.89 

2,654.91 

2,654.91 

31,056.62 
1,885.00 

32,941.62 

1,443.78 

1,443.78 

23,366.73 
7,265.64 
8,786.84 
3,787.27 
2,947.00 
8,731.69 

54,885.17 

38,646.71 
56,864.96 
45,406.19 

140,917.86 

15,111.08 
769.00 
395.43 

12,312.64 

28,588.15 

2,664.00 
1,887.99 

29,536.00 

34,087.99 

332,909.95 

-197,475.70 

-40,000.00 

-40,000.00 

40,000.00 

-157,475.70 

Page2 

https://157,475.70
https://40,000.00
https://40,000.00
https://40,000.00
https://197,475.70
https://332,909.95
https://34,087.99
https://29,536.00
https://1,887.99
https://2,664.00
https://28,588.15
https://12,312.64
https://15,111.08
https://140,917.86
https://45,406.19
https://56,864.96
https://38,646.71
https://54,885.17
https://8,731.69
https://2,947.00
https://3,787.27
https://8,786.84
https://7,265.64
https://23,366.73
https://1,443.78
https://1,443.78
https://32,941.62
https://1,885.00
https://31,056.62
https://2,654.91
https://2,654.91
https://14,171.89


1:11 PM Valley Center Fire Protection District 
04/13/22 Balance Sheet 
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2022 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 
1101 • General Operating #4811 
1102 · Payroll Acct #2271 
11013 • Fire Foundation #8451 
11014 · Explorer#8469 
11015 · Training #7024 
11016 · Grant Acct #7073 · 
11021 · VCFPD Oracle Gen Fund - #47850 
11022 · VCFPD Mitigation Fund -#47855 
11023 · CFD 2008-01 - #47853 

Total Checking/Savings 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

20000 · Accounts Payable 

Total Accounts Payable 

Credit Cards 
8180 · 8180 CitiBank 
9349 · 9349-VCFPD 

Total Credit Cards 

Other Current Liabilities 
24000 · Payroll Liabilities 

24100 · FF Assoc Dues& Cond Fee Payable 
24200 · Child Support Payable 
24300 · Cafe Health Payable 
24400 · ACF Local Payable 
24600 · Payroll Taxes Payable 

Total 24000 · Payroll Liabilities 

Total Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
30000 · Opening Balance Equity 
32000 · Retained Earnings 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

Mar 31, 22 

155,428.53 
235,505.34 

2,150.00 
14,275.09 
17,543.14 

1,216,069.60 
766,081.50 
738,307.22 
426,795.84 

3,572,156.26 

3,572, 156.26 

3,572, 156.26 

59,442.22 

59,442.22 

564.09 
6,516.17 

7,080.26 

575.00 
207.69 

14,575.42 
81.62 

185,980.29 

201,420.02 

201,420.02 

267,942.50 

267,942.50 

2,539,839.80 
164,606.35 
599,767.61 

3,304,213.76 

3,572, 156,26 

Page 1 

https://3,304,213.76
https://599,767.61
https://164,606.35
https://2,539,839.80
https://267,942.50
https://267,942.50
https://201,420.02
https://201,420.02
https://185,980.29
https://14,575.42
https://7,080.26
https://6,516.17
https://59,442.22
https://59,442.22
https://3,572,156.26
https://426,795.84
https://738,307.22
https://766,081.50
https://1,216,069.60
https://17,543.14
https://14,275.09
https://2,150.00
https://235,505.34
https://155,428.53


1:20 PM Valley Center Fire Protection District 

04(13/22 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 
Accrual Basis July 2021 through March 2022 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

NON-OPERATING REVENUE 
30100 • Mitigation Fees Capital Expendi 
30120 • Mitigation Interest 
30130: CFD2008-1 Interest 

Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 

OPERATING REVENUE 
49000 · NCO JPA Capital Equipment Relmb 
40000 • Benefit Fees/Standby (315001) 
40100 · Taxes, Property (315000) 
40200 • CFD-2000-1 (315002) 
40300 · CFD-2008-01 (315003) 
40400 • General Fund Interest 
40500 • Mercy Trensport Fees 
40600 • First Responder Fees 
40700 • Community Development Fees 
40800 • Fire Prevention Inspection Fees 
40900 • CFAA Reimbursement 

40901 · Payroll & Admin 
40902 · Equipment 
40900 • CFAA Reimbursement - Other 

Total 40900 • CFAA Reimbursement 

41000 · Fixed Asset Disposal 
42000 · Incident Cost Recovery-Fire USA 
43000 • Training Reimb-Target & Palomar 
44000 • Fire Foundation Fund 
45000 · Fire Explorer Post Donations 
46000 • Applied UASI Grant Income 
47000 • Applied SHSGP Grant Income 
48000 • Applied Grant Income-Other 
OPERATING REVENUE· Other 

Total OPERATING REVENUE 

Total Income 

Cost of Goods Sold 
50001 • Cost of Goods Sold 

Total COGS 

Grass Prafit 

Expense 
TRAINING 

50000 • Explorer Post 
50100 • EMT & Paramedic License Renewal 
50200 • Palomar College Tuition 
50300 • Station & Apparatus References 
50400 • Target Solutions 
50500 • Training & Expenses 
50600 • Training Expenses • UASI 

Total TRAINING 

OVERHEAD/ ADMINISTRATIVE SERV 
51000 · Service Awards & Commendations 
51001 • Contingencies & Misc. 
51002 • Advertis FF Recruit & Physicals 
51003 • Bank Fees/ Interest Expense 
51004 • IT Equipment & Software 
51005 • Office & Computer Supplies 
51006 • Election/Annexation Service 

Total OVERHEAD/ ADMINISTRATIVE SERV 

CONTRACT SERVICES 
51100 · Broadband Services & Telephone 
61101 · Professional Services 
51102 · Equipment Rental/Copier Lease 
51103 · Contract Labor 
51104 • Printlng,Repro&Digital Map Serv 
51105 · Insurance 
51106 · Crew Scheduling Services 
51107 · Trauma Intervention Program 
51108 • Modular Buildings 
51109 · Bum lnstNouth Fire Prevent 
51110 • MDC Equip Replacement-HP Lease 

Total CONTRACT SERVICES 

COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION 
51200 · Public Education 
51201 • CERT 
51202 • Safety Prod/Fire Hydrant Malnt 
51203 · POST Recertification Materials 

Jul '21 • Mar 22 Budget $ Over Budget 

220,910.11 
-2,139.97 

312.14 

219,082.28 

-663,988.78 
-179,471.22 
-113,035.70 
-36,309.34 
-21,186.10 

-9,750.00 
738.66 

75,891.88 
22,268.35 

-120,07B.55 
-10,000.00 
141,927.32 

445,645.11 
2,860.03 
1,562.14 

450,067.28 

15,915.21 
1,016,954.73 

401,330.02 
187,268.99 
114,979.71 

3,330.10 
32,250.00 
15,998.66 

195,891.88 
29,268.35 

24,921.45 
0.00 

141,927.32 

224,735.00 
5,000.00 
1,250.00 

230,985.00 

1,680,943.51 
580,801.24 
300,304.69 
151,289.05 
24,516.20 
42,000.00 
15,260.00 

120,000.00 
7,000.00 

145,000.00 
10,000.00 

0.00 

166,848.77 

0.00 
6,072.00 

21,255.00 
13,640.00 
10,059.37 

970.6B 
13,738.00 

1,130,115.87 
0.00 

155,000.00 

15,000.00 
20,000.00 
22,889.00 

396,500.00 
500.00 

13,500.00 
14,150.00 

336,288.00 
230,985.00 

11,848.77 

-15,000.00 
-13,928.00 

-1,634.00 
-382,B60.00 

9,559.37 
-12,529.32 

-412.00 
793,827.87 

-230,985.00 

%of Budget 

198.3% 
57.2% 

125.0% 

194.8% 

60.5% 
69.1% 
62.4% 
76.0% 
13.6% 
76.8% 

104.8% 
163.2% 
418.1% 

17.2% 
0.0% 

100.0% 

107.6% 

0.0% 
30.4% 
92.9% 

3.4% 
2,011.9% 

7.2% 
97.1% 

336.1% 
0.0% 

3,375,887.34 

3,825,954.62 

4,126,926.69 

4,357,911.69 

-751,039.35 

-531,957.07 

81.8% 

87.8% 

0.00 

0.00 

20,000.00 

20,000.00 

-20,000.00 

-20,000.00 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-511,957.07 

3,079.03 
-1,262.50 
-5,521.63 
-2,500.00 

0.00 
-4,088.51 

273.29 

88.2% 

715.8% 
71.9% 
29.7% 

0.0% 
100.0% 
79.9% 

105.7% 

3,825,954.62 

3,579.03 
3,237.50 
2,328.37 

0.00 
6,603.00 

16,211.49 
5,073.29 

4,337,911.69 

500.00 
4,500.00 
7,850.00 
2,500.00 
6,603.00 

20,300.00 
4,800.00 

-10,020.32 

-109.64 
-6,098.59 
-4,152.09 
-1,180.47 

379.40 
-1,701.81 
-6,706.37 

78.7% 

89.0% 
39.0% 
64.8% 
21.3% 

115.2% 
73.8% 
32.9% 

37,032.68 

890.36 
3,901.41 
7,647.91 

319.53 
2,879.40 
4,798.19 
3,293.63 

47,053.00 

1,000.00 
10,000.00 
11,800.00 
1,500.00 
2,500.00 
6,500.00 

10,000.00 

-19,569.57 

-18,502.88 
19,200.67 

-81,404.B9 
314.46 

1,466.50 
4,909.00 

-3,007.80 
0.00 

-134.52 
-642.00 

-1,491.99 

54.8% 

73.6% 
148.7% 

6.4% 
102.9% 
111.3% 
119.6% 
33.2% 

100.0% 
98.4% 

0.0% 
75.1% 

23,730.43 

51,497.12 
58,660.67 

5,595.11 
11,224.46 
14,466.50 
29,909.00 

1,492.20 
2,340.00 
8,165.48 

0.00 
4,508.01 

43,300.00 

70,000.00 
39,460.00 
87,000.00 
10,910.00 
13,000.00 
25,000.00 

4,500.00 
2,340.00 
8,300.00 

642.00 
6,000.00 

187,858.55 267,152.00 

2,331.60 5,250.00 
0.00 500.00 
0.00 0.00 

135.00 500.00 

-79,293.45 

-2,918.40 
-500.00 

0.00 
-365.00 

70.3% 

44.4% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

27.0% 

Page 1 

https://2,918.40
https://79,293.45
https://5,250.00
https://2,331.60
https://267,152.00
https://187,858.55
https://6,000.00
https://8,300.00
https://2,340.00
https://4,500.00
https://25,000.00
https://13,000.00
https://10,910.00
https://87,000.00
https://39,460.00
https://70,000.00
https://43,300.00
https://4,508.01
https://8,165.48
https://2,340.00
https://1,492.20
https://29,909.00
https://14,466.50
https://11,224.46
https://5,595.11
https://58,660.67
https://51,497.12
https://23,730.43
https://1,491.99
https://3,007.80
https://4,909.00
https://1,466.50
https://81,404.B9
https://19,200.67
https://18,502.88
https://19,569.57
https://10,000.00
https://6,500.00
https://2,500.00
https://1,500.00
https://11,800.00
https://10,000.00
https://1,000.00
https://47,053.00
https://3,293.63
https://4,798.19
https://2,879.40
https://7,647.91
https://3,901.41
https://37,032.68
https://6,706.37
https://1,701.81
https://1,180.47
https://4,152.09
https://6,098.59
https://10,020.32
https://4,800.00
https://20,300.00
https://6,603.00
https://2,500.00
https://7,850.00
https://4,500.00
https://4,337,911.69
https://5,073.29
https://16,211.49
https://6,603.00
https://2,328.37
https://3,237.50
https://3,579.03
https://3,825,954.62
https://4,088.51
https://2,500.00
https://5,521.63
https://1,262.50
https://3,079.03
https://511,957.07
https://230,985.00
https://793,827.87
https://12,529.32
https://9,559.37
https://382,B60.00
https://1,634.00
https://13,928.00
https://15,000.00
https://11,848.77
https://230,985.00
https://336,288.00
https://14,150.00
https://13,500.00
https://396,500.00
https://22,889.00
https://20,000.00
https://15,000.00
https://155,000.00
https://1,130,115.87
https://13,738.00
https://10,059.37
https://13,640.00
https://21,255.00
https://6,072.00
https://166,848.77
https://10,000.00
https://145,000.00
https://7,000.00
https://120,000.00
https://15,260.00
https://42,000.00
https://24,516.20
https://151,289.05
https://300,304.69
https://580,801.24
https://1,680,943.51
https://230,985.00
https://1,250.00
https://5,000.00
https://224,735.00
https://141,927.32
https://24,921.45
https://29,268.35
https://195,891.88
https://15,998.66
https://32,250.00
https://3,330.10
https://114,979.71
https://187,268.99
https://401,330.02
https://1,016,954.73
https://15,915.21
https://450,067.28
https://1,562.14
https://2,860.03
https://445,645.11
https://141,927.32
https://10,000.00
https://120,07B.55
https://22,268.35
https://75,891.88
https://9,750.00
https://21,186.10
https://36,309.34
https://113,035.70
https://179,471.22
https://219,082.28
https://2,139.97
https://220,910.11


1:20 PM Valley Center Fire Protection District 

04113/22 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 
Accrual Basis July 2021 through March 2022 

Jul '21 • Mar 22 Budget $ Over Budget %of Budget 

Total COMMUNITY RISK REDUCTION 2,466.60 6,250.00 -3,783.40 39.5% 

FIRE FACILITIES 
FIRE STATION #1 

51301 · #1 Faclllty Malnt/Repalrs 
51302 · #1 Utllltles 

17,613.01 
17,140.09 

14,650.00 
23,415.00 

2,963.01 
-6,274.91 

120.2% 
73.2% 

Total FIRE STATION #1 34,753.10 38,065.00 -3,311.90 91.3% 

FIRE STATION #2 
51310 • #2 Facility Maint/Repairs 
51312 · #2 Utilities 

5,724.59 
12,427.93 

14,650.00 
18,915.00 

-8,925.41 
-6,487.07 

39.1% 
65.7% 

Total FIRE STATION #2 18,152.52 33,565.00 -15,412.48 54.1% 

Fire Station #3 
51320 · #3 Faclllty Malnt/Repalrs 
51322 · #3 Utilities 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0,00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.0% 
0.0% 

Total Fire Station #3 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

Total FIRE FACILITIES 52,905.62 71,630.00 -18,724.38 73.9% 

FIRE APPARATUS 
51400 · Ancillary Equip Ann Maintenance 
51401 • Apparatus Shop Tools/Rpr Supp 
61402 · Fuel 

91,111.02 
5,131.15 

30,451.31 

76,500.00 
8,300.00 

50,000.00 

14,611.02 
-3,168.85 

-19,548.69 

119.1% 
61.8% 
60.9% 

Total FIRE APPARATUS 126,693.48 134,800.00 -8,106.52 94.0% 

OPERATIONS 
51500 · Breathing Air Equip Maintenance 
51501 · Fireline Meals 
51502 · SHSGP Grant PPE 
51503 · Equipment Grant 
51504 · Station Uniforms 

2,853.40 
0.00 

2,146.75 
0.00 

18,002.21 

4,000.00 
3,000.00 

14,150.00 
10,500.00 
14,000.00 

-1,146.60 
-3,000.00 

-12,003.25 
-10,500.00 

4,002.21 

71.3% 
0.0% 

15.2% 
0.0% 

128.6% 

Total OPERATIONS 23,002.3!, 45,650.00 -22,647.64 50.4% 

COMMUNICATIONS . 
51600 · North County Dispatch 
51601 · RCS Comunication Fees 

148,437.65 
18,956.00 

135,000.00 
12,400.00 

13,437.65 
6,556.00 

110.0% 
152.9% 

Total COMMUNICATIONS 167,393.65 147,400.00 19,993.65 113.6% 

PARAMEDIC EMERGENCY SUPPLIES 
51700 · Medical Equipment & Supplies 
51701 · Cardiac Monitor Calibration/Rpr 

10,714.17 
0.00 

15,000.00 
4,000.00 

-4,285.83 
-4,000.00 

71.4% 
0.0% 

Total PARAMEDIC EMERGENCY SUPPLIES 10,714.17 19,000.00 -8,285.83 56.4% 

MEMBERSHIPS & ASSOCIATIONS 
61800 · Dues & Subscriptions 9,430.00 11,457.00 -2,027.00 82.3% 

Total MEMBERSHIPS & ASSOCIATIONS 9,430.00 11,457.00 -2,027.00 82.3% 

PAYROLL-ADMINISTRATIVE 
60000 · Division Chief-Operations/Train 
60100 · Division Chief-Emerg Services 
60200 · Battalion Chief-Fire Marshal 
60300 · Administrative Captain 
60400 · Administrative Asst-Office Mgr. 
60500 · Bookkeeper 
60600 · Fire Chief 

95,164.76 
0.00 

51,963.91 
24,616.33 
30,896.65 
10,276.63 
61,732.70 

95,508.72 
0.00 

82,000.00 
0.00 

41,815.84 
24,327.13 

103,839.20 

-343.96 
0.00 

-30,036.09 
24,616.33 

-10,919.19 
-14,050.50 
-42,106.50 

99.6% 
0.0% 

63.4% 
100.0% 
73.9% 
42.2% 
59.5% 

Total PAYROLL-ADMINISTRATIVE 274,650.98 347,490.89 -72,839.91 79.0% 

PAYROLL· OPERATIONAL PERSONNEL 
61000 · Fire Engineers 
62000 · Reserve Firefighters (PT) 
63000 · Firefighter-Paramedics 
64000 · Fire Captains 
65000 · CFAA Wages 
PAYROLL· OPERATIONAL PERSONNEL· Other 

271,702.90 
912.09 

421,293.52 
343,083.76 
12,186.29 

-818.53 

412,111.00 
261,360.00 
274,569.00 
591,388.00 
120,000.00 

-140,408.10 
-260,447.91 
146,724.52 

-248,304.24 
-107,813.71 

65.9% 
0.3% 

153.4% 
58.0% 
10.2% 

Total PAYROLL - OPERATIONAL PERSONNEL 1,048,360.03 1,659,428.00 -611,067.97 63.2% 

66000 · PAYROLL EXPENSES 
66008 · Employer Taxes-FICA,SUTA,FUTA 
66007 • ACF Local Union Dues 
66001 · Employee Taxes, FICA,SUTA,SDI 
66002 · FASIS Workers Comp Emp Asst 
66003 • Payroll Service 
66004 · Health Benefit Costs 
66005 • 457 Retirement Costs 
66006 • VC FF Association Fees 

47,509.20 
1,461.74 

360,083.73 
132,362.44 

3,403.74 
59,828.49 

102,882.76 
7,928.00 

174,204.09 
150,712.88 

9,800.00 
33,524.00 

185,879.64 
-18,350.44 

-6,396.26 
26,304.49 

206.7% 
87.8% 
34.7% 

178.5% 

Total 66000 · PAYROLL EXPENSES 715,460.10 368,240.97 347,219.13 194.3% 

Engines & Equipment 
70000 · Engine 163 & Equipment 
70001 · RCS Nex!Gen Network lnfrastruct 
70002 · RCS Nex!Gen Radio Equipment 
70003 · SCBA Purchase 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

125,000.00 
11,000.00 

0.00 
0.00 

-125,000.00 
-11,000.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

Page2 



04/13/22 

1:20PM Valley Center Fire Protection District 
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual 

Accrual Basis July 2021 through March 2022 

70004 · Fire StaUon Development Costs 
70005 · New StaUon Consulting 
70006 · Fire Station PPE Lockers 
70007 · Fire Station Electrical Resllla 
70008 · MDC Replacement Program 

Total Engines & Equipment 

Total Expense 

Net Ordinary Income 

Other Income/Expense 
Other Expense 

80000 • Suspense 

Total Other Expense 

Net Other Income 

Net Income 

Jul '21 - Mar 22 

384,6B2.20 
21,192.99 

9,257.00 
153,880.00 

17,476.17 

586,488.36 

3,266,187.01 

559,767.61 

-40,000.00 

-40,000.00 

40,000.00 

599,767.61 

Budget 

486,000.00 
90,000.00 

9,735.00 
236,288.00 

20,000.00 

$ Over Budget %of Budget 

-101,317.80 79.2% 
-6B,B07.01 23.5% 

-47B.00 95.1% 
-82,408.00 65.1% 

-2,523.83 87.4% 

978,023.00 

4,146,874.86 

191,036.83 

-391,534.64 

-880,687.B5 

368,730.78 

60.0% 

78.8% 

293.0% 

0.00 

191,036.83 

40,000.00 

408,730.78 

100.0% 

314.0% 

Page3 

https://2,523.83
https://82,408.00
https://6B,B07.01
https://101,317.80
https://20,000.00
https://236,288.00
https://9,735.00
https://90,000.00
https://486,000.00
https://599,767.61
https://40,000.00
https://40,000.00
https://40,000.00
https://559,767.61
https://3,266,187.01
https://586,488.36
https://17,476.17
https://153,880.00
https://9,257.00
https://21,192.99
https://384,6B2.20

	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_2: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_3: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_4: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_5: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_6: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_7: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_8: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_9: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_10: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_11: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_12: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_13: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_14: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_15: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_16: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_17: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_18: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_19: 
	AIA Document A141™  2014 Copyright  2004 and 2014 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The American Institute of Architects AIA_20: 
	AIA Document A141 2014 Copyright2004 and 2oi4 by The American Institute of Architects All rights reserved The Amencan lnslilute of ArchIlecl AA: 
	yY r: 
	L: 
	fill_3: 
	ATTACHMENT 2 SITE PLAN FOR TEMPORARY FIRE STATION NO 3 N  SCALE 1  50 50 0 50 JOO EARTHJfORK QUANTITIES CJT FILL IMPORT 9035 CY 9035 C Y 0 CY JE EARTHWORK QUANTITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE AND ARE SUBJECT ro REVISIONS DURING FINAL DESIGN ADJIJSTJIENTS H4VE NOT BEEN MADE FOR REMEDIAL GRADING nEPAllllD IN lllll OPFICB OP BUCCOLA ENGINEERING  inc DATE PREPARED Nov 15 2021 PREPARED FOR JOE NAPIER FIRE CHIEF VALLEY CENTER FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 28234 LILAC ROAD VALLEY CENTER CA 92082 TELE 760 7517600: 
	SCALE 1  50: 
	5510 Overland Ave Suite 110 San Diego CA 92123: 
	Grading plans placed on 24 x 36sheets with 1 border on all edges: 
	Vicinity map distance shown to nearest street intersection page and section of: 
	Assessors Parcel Number: 
	Site address: 
	Bench mark show location on plan and describe in space provided if datum is: 
	California Coordinate in title block: 
	Purpose of grading shown in the title block: 
	next to title block where applicable: 
	Key map for projects covering several sheets: 
	Best Management Practices Items proposed during construction and Post: 
	undefined: 
	Structural calculation for proposed designed retaining wall if required: 
	D If Yes please provide project name and permit numbers: 
	undefined_2: 
	If Yes please provide Site Plan Record ID: 
	D Project is in a Permanent Road Division PRD Number: 
	PRDNumber: 
	By: 
	F REFERRAL TO ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW BOARD PDS Environmental: 
	1 Legal lotproof that site is a legal lot  always applicable: 
	6 Public Notification is required for all Major Grading See Sec 87208: 
	NOVA Project 2020074 August 20 2020: 
	Wail Mokhtar: 
	John F OBrien PE GE: 
	Melissa Stayner PG CEG: 
	Hillary A Price: 
	4373 Viewridge Avenue Suite B: 
	944 Calle Amanecer Suite F: 
	iv of vi: 
	v of vi: 
	vi of vi: 
	l: 
	is currently vacant open land with a bare soil surface and scattered shrubs and grasses: 
	Figure 22 1946 Aerial View of the 10Acre Parcel: 
	111: 
	investigation were collected for testing: 
	Figure 32 Drilling Operations B2 July 1 2020: 
	Test Well Reference: 
	Figure 33 Percolation Testing at Well P2 July 2 2020: 
	Figure 34 Tire Rutting of a Test Subgrade with Low RValue: 
	25: 
	this figure the site is covered by a dense cover of native grasses weeds and brush: 
	Figure 43 Unit 1 Alluvium: 
	KEY: 
	mapped historic landslides in the immediate site area: 
	Site Soil Class: 
	Site Latitude decimal degrees: 
	Site Longitude decimal degrees: 
	Site Coefficient Fa: 
	Site Coefficient Fv: 
	Mapped Short Period Spectral Acceleration SS: 
	Design Short Period Spectral Acceleration SDS: 
	Boring: 
	fill_10: 
	fill_11: 
	Moderate: 
	Severe: 
	F: 
	rsawcut: 
	CONCRETE: 
	Loading Condition: 
	RETAINING: 
	Table: 
	Area: 
	Class II aggregate base or similar should also be placed at a minimum 95 relative: 
	ASFE: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1600 FT MSLRow1: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1600 FT MSLRow1_2: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1600 FT MSLRow1_3: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1600 FT MSLRow1_4: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1600 FT MSLRow1_5: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1600 FT MSLRow2: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1600 FT MSLRow2_2: 
	SC: 
	38: 
	Row1: 
	20 25 30: 
	SM20 25 30: 
	TONALITE Kcg  SILTY SAND ORANGE BROWN WITH BLACK MICAS MOIST MEDIUM DENSE FINE TO COARSE GRAINED VERY DENSE LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN WITH BLACK MICAS DAMP TO MOIST DENSE: 
	30 44 505 50120 25 30: 
	BORING TERMINATED AT 155 FT NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED NO CAVING: 
	REMARKSSA: 
	undefined_3: 
	HIGHLY WEATHERED LESS WEATHERED: 
	KEY TO SYMBOLS: 
	undefined_4: 
	undefined_5: 
	undefined_6: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow1: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow1_2: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow1_3: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow1_4: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow1_5: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow2: 
	Row1_2: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow3: 
	SC_2: 
	18: 
	ALLUVIUM Qal  CLAYEY SAND BROWN TO ORANGE BROWN DRY TO DAMP MEDIUM DENSE FINE TO MEDIUM GRAINED: 
	REMARKSSA_2: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow4: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow5: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow6: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow7: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow8: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow9: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow10: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow11: 
	20 25 30_2: 
	SM20 25 30_2: 
	TONALITE Kcg  SILTY SAND LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN DRY TO DAMP VERY DENSE FINE TO COARSE GRAINED GRAYISH BROWN DRY: 
	505 57 503 502 501 502 50220 25 30: 
	BORING TERMINATED AT 16 FT NO GROUNDWATER ENCOUNTERED NO CAVING: 
	KEY TO SYMBOLS_2: 
	HIGHLY WEATHERED LESS WEATHERED_2: 
	undefined_7: 
	undefined_8: 
	undefined_9: 
	0: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1563 FT MSLRow1: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1563 FT MSLRow1_2: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1563 FT MSLRow1_3: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1563 FT MSLRow1_4: 
	SC_3: 
	SC_4: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1563 FT MSLRow3: 
	0Row1: 
	0Row2: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1563 FT MSLRow3_2: 
	0Row3: 
	10 15 20 25 30: 
	SM10 15 20 25 30: 
	KEY TO SYMBOLS_3: 
	BORING TERMINATED AT 5 FT AND CONVERTED TO A PERCOLATION WELL: 
	REMARKS: 
	HIGHLY WEATHERED LESS WEATHERED_3: 
	undefined_10: 
	undefined_11: 
	undefined_12: 
	0_2: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow1_6: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow1_7: 
	SC_5: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow1_8: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow2_2: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow2_3: 
	SC_6: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow3_2: 
	EQUIPMENT JULY 1 2020 8INCH DIAMETER AUGER BORING GROUNDWATER NOT ENCOUNTERED ELEVATION DATE EXCAVATED EXCAVATION DESCRIPTION GROUNDWATER DEPTH CME 95 GPS COORD NA   1568 FT MSLRow3_3: 
	10 15 20 25 30_2: 
	SM10 15 20 25 30_2: 
	TONALITE Kcg  SILTY SAND LIGHT GRAYISH BROWN DRY TO DAMP VERY DENSE: 
	0Row1_2: 
	0Row2_2: 
	0Row3_2: 
	KEY TO SYMBOLS_4: 
	BORING TERMINATED AT 5 FT AND CONVERTED TO A PERCOLATION WELL_2: 
	HIGHLY WEATHERED: 
	HIGHLY WEATHERED_2: 
	undefined_13: 
	undefined_14: 
	undefined_15: 
	SBE: Off
	Subtotals: 
	Totals: 
	Schematic Design: 
	Design Development: 
	Construction Documents: 
	Subtotal: 
	Note Do not include design team construction administration services in the preconstruction services budget: 
	Design Builder DB: 
	DB Cost for Preconstruction Services provide breakdown on separate sheet: 
	Proposed DB Design Contingency: 
	Proposed DB Fee for All PreConstruction Services: 
	Subtotal_2: 
	Proposed DB Contingency percentage: 
	Proposed DB Fee for Construction percentage: 
	Proposed DB Fee for Construction percentageRow1: 
	Bonds and Insurance: 
	PerformancePayment Bonds: 
	Liability Insurance: 
	Builders Risk: 
	PreliminaryCostWorksheet: 
	SubtotalsPreconstructionServices: 
	TotalsPreconstructionServices: 
	SubtotalsDesignTeamArchitectandSubconsultants: 
	TotalsDesignTeamArchitectandSubconsultants: 
	SubtotalsTemporary Fire Station 3  Cole Grade Rd: 
	TotalsTemporary Fire Station 3  Cole Grade Rd: 
	Schematic Design_2: 
	Totals73166: 
	Design Development_2: 
	Totals80667: 
	Construction Documents_2: 
	Totals80667_2: 
	80667Subtotal: 
	80667Fire Station 1 Remodel  Lilac Rd: 
	234500Fire Station 1 Remodel  Lilac Rd: 
	23450043000: 
	Air Compressor and Enclosure  ALTERNATE: 
	23450010000: 
	HVAC Replacement both sides  ALTERNATE: 
	23450010000_2: 
	Dormitory and Day Room Remodel  ALTERNATE: 
	23450012000: 
	Kitchen and Restroom Remodel  ALTERNATE: 
	23450015000: 
	15000Subtotal: 
	15000Fire Station 2 Remodel  N Lake Wohlford Rd: 
	90000Fire Station 2 Remodel  N Lake Wohlford Rd: 
	App Bay Doors front and rear  BASE BID: 
	9000027000: 
	HVAC Replacement both sides  ALTERNATE_2: 
	9000012000: 
	Dormitory Remodel  ALTERNATE: 
	9000012000_2: 
	9000010000: 
	Screened Porch at Rear Patio Area  ALTERNATE: 
	900007500: 
	Concrete Replacement at Rear of Station  ALTERNATE: 
	900003000: 
	3000Subtotal: 
	71500TBD: 
	Note Do not include design team construction administration services in the preconstruction services budget24: 
	TBD24: 
	7150024: 
	TBDDesignBuilderDB: 
	71500DesignBuilderDB: 
	7150047000: 
	Proposed DB Design Contingency_2: 
	7150025000: 
	Proposed DB Fee for All PreConstruction Services_2: 
	7150030000: 
	30000Subtotal: 
	Subtotal30: 
	3000030: 
	10200030: 
	30000SubtotalPreconstructionServicesBudget: 
	300001 Liability Insurance on Preconstruction Services: 
	30000TotalPreconstructionServicesBudget: 
	34: 
	ConstructionServices: 
	144105: 
	Proposed DB Contingency percentage_2: 
	10: 
	600: 
	Proposed DB Fee for Construction percentage39: 
	60039: 
	600BondsandInsurance: 
	COC AllRisk Coverage to be quoted at creation of GMP: 
	TBD: 
	Liability Insurance 10: 
	10_2: 
	AC No FAX: 
	INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE: 
	INSURED ERICCON01 EricksonHall Construction Company 500 Corporate Drive Escondido CA 920291353: 
	Allied World Assurance Company: 
	10200INSURER D: 
	10200INSURER E: 
	10200INSURER F: 
	X: 
	A: 
	A_2: 
	A_3: 
	GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: 
	A_4: 
	Y: 
	Y_2: 
	5856940: 
	912021: 
	 1000000: 
	 500000: 
	CLAIMSMADE 1: 
	CLAIMSMADE 2: 
	 25000: 
	 1000000_2: 
	 2000000: 
	 2000000_2: 
	PRODUCTS  COMPOP AGG912022: 
	fill_31: 
	X_2: 
	5717908: 
	912021_2: 
	undefined_16: 
	fill_35: 
	fill_36: 
	Per accident PROPERTY DAMAGE912022: 
	fill_37: 
	X_3: 
	YRow1: 
	YRow1_2: 
	03114829: 
	912021_3: 
	912022: 
	EACH OCCURRENCE: 
	10000000: 
	 10000000: 
	A_5: 
	Y  N: 
	014195849: 
	912021_4: 
	912022_2: 
	 1000000_3: 
	 1000000_4: 
	 1000000_5: 
	C: 
	N  AContractors Professional  Pollution Liability: 
	YContractors Professional  Pollution Liability: 
	CPP1011121: 
	912021_5: 
	912022_3: 
	Each Incident Aggregate SIR: 
	2000000 4000000 25000: 
	DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS  LOCATIONS  VEHICLES  ACORD 101 Additional Remarks Schedule may be attached if more space is required Re 4211 Valley Center Temporary Fire Station 3 and Fire Station 1 and 2 Renovations Temporary Fire Station 3 APN 13322038 located in the community of Valley Center northwest of the intersection of Cole Grade Road and Cole Grade Lane Fire Station 1 28234 Lilac Road Valley Center CA 92082 Fire Station 2 28205 N Wohlford Lake Road Valley Center CA 92082 Valley Center Fire Protection District and its directors officers officials agents volunteers and employees are included as Additional Insureds on primary and noncontributory basis waiver of subrogation applies UmbrellaExcess Liability follow form applies: 
	AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE: 
	ny person or organization whom you become obligated to include as an additional insured as a result of any contract or agreement you have entered into: 
	Per the contract or agreement: 
	Per the contract or agreement_2: 
	undefined_17: 
	Information required to complete this Schedule if not shown above will be shown in the Declarations: 
	AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE_2: 
	J rfil t: 


